
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
June 27, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, the City Council is conducting its public 
meeting in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Members of the public may view and 
provide public comment during the meeting in person at City Hall, via the online 
platform zoom (link below), or via telephone (number below). The public may also view 
the meeting live on the City’s YouTube channel. 
 

Remote access: 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/J/87290512399 

Zoom Meeting ID: 872 9051 2399 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

 
Guiding Principles 

• Are we raising the bar? 
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past? 
• Are we building connections with outside partners? 
• Is the decision-making process positively impacting diversity, equity, and 

inclusion? 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. Please keep your comments respectful and no personal attacks. This is a 
comment period and not a question-and-answer session. When recognized by the Mayor, please 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 
from your keypad to raise your hand.  
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments 
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits 
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Various Chapters of Port Orchard 

Municipal Code to Remove Gender Pronouns and Make Corrections to 
Position Titles and Secondary References (Lund) Page 4 

D. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting 2023-25 Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Safety Program Funding as Managed by the Washington State 
Department of Transportation for the Tremont Non-motorized 
Improvements, Phase 2 and 3 Development/Design Project (Lang) Page 
129 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 
 

Councilmembers: 
Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair   
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Transportation Committee 
KRCC-alt 

 
 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Lodging Tax, Chair  

 

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 
 

Jay Rosapepe  
Finance Committee,  
Land Use Committee 
KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-
alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,  
 

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

 

Tony Lang 
Public Works Director 
 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 
 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 
 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

 
 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
 
 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/J/87290512399


Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 
The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 

June 27, 2023, Meeting Agenda      Page 2 of 3 

E. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting 2023-25 Safe Routes to School Program State Funding as Managed
by the Washington State Department of Transportation for the Sidney Road Non-motorized
Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) Project (Lang) Page 134

F. Approval of Change Order No. 2 to Contract No. 075-22 with Ceccanti, Inc. for the McCormick Village
Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation (Lang) Page 139

5. PRESENTATION

6. PUBLIC HEARING

7. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending the 2023/2024 Biennial Budget and Salary Table (Crocker) Page

348 
B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Countyline Construction LLC, for the Abatement of

Code Violations Occurring at SE Crawford Road (Archer) Page 364
C. Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Intent to be Reimbursed for Capital Expenditures from a Future

Borrowing (Crocker) Page 419
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Aqua Tech, LLC for the McCormick Woods STEP

System Retrofit Project (Lang) Page 422
E. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with the Port of Bremerton for

Waterfront Parking (Lang) Page 457
F. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. for City Hall Construction

Support Services (Lang) Page 522
G. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group

for a Sewer Rate Study (Lang) Page 562
H. Approval of the May 16, 2023, City Council Work Study Session Meeting Minutes Page 589
I. Approval of the May 23, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes Page 592

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)

9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES

10. REPORT OF MAYOR

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS

12. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state
your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to raise your hand.)

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.

14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER

15. ADJOURNMENT

COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 



     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
June 27, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

Economic Development and Tourism  TBD Remote Access 

Utilities  July 11, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Finance July 19, 2023; 3:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation June 27, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Festival of Chimes & Lights June 26, 2023; 3:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  July 19, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  TBD, 2023 Remote Access 

Sewer Advisory  TBD, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 
  



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending  Prepared by: Debbie Lund 

 Various Chapters of Port Orchard  HR Director 
 Municipal Code to Remove Gender     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
 Pronouns and Make Corrections to Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 
 Position Titles and Secondary References   

 
Summary:  As staff continues work related to the City Council’s guiding principle of positively impacting 
diversity, equity and inclusion, research was conducted to identify and propose an alternative for gender 
specific pronouns throughout the Port Orchard Municipal Code. Words such as “he”, “she”, “her”, “him”, 
“himself”, “herself”, “councilman”, “fireman”, “policeman”, and “chairman”, are proposed for 
amendment to more gender neutral terms such as “they”, “theirs”, “themselves”, “councilmember”, 
“firefighter”, “police officer” and “chair”.  
 
Additionally, some position titles used throughout the code are proposed to match the position titles used 
in the City’s budget and associated position and salary table. Specifically, “treasurer” to “finance director”, 
“chief of police” to “police chief” and “planning director” to “community development director”.  
 
Two items that are housekeeping in nature are also included in the proposed amendments. Those include 
the location of the storage of job descriptions as well as the title of the Seattle consumer price index.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Council approve the Ordinance as presented.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to adopt an ordinance, as presented, which amends various sections of 
the Port Orchard Municipal Code affecting the use of gender pronouns, some position titles and other 
items housekeeping in nature.  
 
Fiscal Impact: None.  
 
Alternatives:  Not approve as presented and provide alternative guidance.  
 
Attachments: Ordinance and Exhibit A, a red lined version of proposed amendments to the Port 

Orchard Municipal Code.  
 

 

Page 4 of 596



 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON,  
AMENDING VARIOUS CHAPTERS OF THE PORT ORCHARD 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO REMOVE GENDER PRONOUNS AND MAKE 
CORRECTIONS TO POSITION TITLES AND SECONDARY REFERENCES; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to remove references to gender throughout the entirety of the 

municipal code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Seattle area published by the Bureau of 
Labor Statistics was amended from Seattle-Tacoma-Bremerton to Seattle-Tacoma-
Bellevue; and 

 
WHEREAS, titles of various positions named in the Code have changed affecting various 

sections of the Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, job descriptions are housed in the human resources department rather than 

the finance department; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City and its residents 

to amend the Port Orchard Municipal Code to address these issues; now, therefore, 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amendment. Gender references via the use of the terms “he”, “she”, “his”, 

“hers”, “himself”, “herself” and “man”, have been amended in the Port Orchard Municipal 
Code as shown in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein, to more gender-neutral terms such 
as “they”, “their”, “theirs”, “them”, “themself” and “person” and associated grammatical 
changes, if needed. 

 
SECTION 2.  Amendment. Gender specific terms such as “councilman”, “fireman”, 

“policeman”, “chairman” and “chairperson” have been amended in the Port Orchard Municipal 
Code as shown in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein, to more gender neutral and 
consistent terms such as “councilmember”, “firefighter”, “police officer”, and “chair”. 

 
SECTION 3.  Amendment. Definitions of the word “gender” in Port Orchard Municipal 

Code Sections 1.01.10(8) and 20.212.20 have been amended to ensure that all forms of gender 
identity have been included, as shown in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 4.  Amendment. References to the position of the city’s treasurer have been 

Page 5 of 596



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
amended to reflect the current position title of finance director in the Port Orchard Municipal 
Code as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 
SECTION 5.  Amendment. References to the position of the city planning director have 

been amended to reflect the current position title of community development director in the 
Port Orchard Municipal Code as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 
SECTION 6.  Amendment. References to the position of the city’s assistant finance 

director have been amended to reflect the current position title of deputy finance director in 
the Port Orchard Municipal Code as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein.  

 
SECTION 7.  Amendment. References to the position of the Chief of Police have been 

amended to reflect the current position title of Police Chief in the Port Orchard Municipal Code 
as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 
SECTION 8.  Amendment. References to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) have been 

amended to reflect the current name of the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue index in Port Orchard 
Municipal Code, Section 13.04.065 as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein.  

 
SECTION 9.  Amendment. References to the location of job descriptions have been 

amended to reflect their storage in the human resources department in Port Orchard Municipal 
Code Chapter 2.08 as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 
SECTION 10. If modification to any of the aforementioned terms consistent with the 

findings stated herein was inadvertently omitted in the preparation of this Ordinance and 
accompanying Exhibit, the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to make the corresponding 
modification to the Port Orchard Municipal Code as a scrivener’s error as permitted by Port 
Orchard Municipal Code Section 1.04.055.  

 
SECTION 11.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 12.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 

consisting of the title.  
 

SECTION 13.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect five days after publication, as provided by law.    

 

Page 6 of 596



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 
 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk John Clauson, Councilmember 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 
 

Page 7 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 1 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Port Orchard Municipal Code  
Chapter 1.04 
CODE 
 

*** 

1.04.030 Failure to pay fine, costs. 
Upon the rendition of judgment against any defendant for violation of this code and any ordinance of the city, the 
police magistrate or justice of the peace shall make an order and enter the same upon his docket, that if the 
defendant shall neglect or refuse to satisfy such judgment and costs of suit, he shall be confined in the city jail or 
other place of confinement provided for that purpose, one day for each $3.00 of such judgment and costs, and during 
such confinement he may be required to labor upon the streets or do other work for the city under the supervision 
and direction of the chief of policepolice chief. Execution shall be issued immediately upon the rendition of 
judgment.  

*** 

1.04.010 Definitions – Interpretation. 
*** 

(8) Gender. The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuterall other gender identities; 

*** 

1.04.015 Principal defined. 
Every person concerned in the commission of any misdemeanor prescribed by the code of the city, whether he they 
directly commits the act constituting the offense, or aids or abets in its commission, and whether present or absent; 
and every person whether he they directly or indirectly counsels, encourages, hires, commands, induces or otherwise 
procures another to commit any such misdemeanor, is a principal, and shall be proceeded against and punished as 
such. The fact that the person who aided, abetted, counseled, encouraged, hired, commanded, induced or procured 
could not or did not entertain a criminal intent, shall not be a defense to any person aiding, abetting, counseling, 
encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing or procuring him.  

*** 

1.04.030 Failure to pay fine, costs. 
Upon the rendition of judgment against any defendant for violation of this code and any ordinance of the city, the 
police magistrate or justice of the peace shall make an order and enter the same upon his their docket, that if the 
defendant shall neglect or refuse to satisfy such judgment and costs of suit, he they shall be confined in the city jail 
or other place of confinement provided for that purpose, one day for each $3.00 of such judgment and costs, and 
during such confinement he they may be required to labor upon the streets or do other work for the city under the 
supervision and direction of the chief of policepolice chief. Execution shall be issued immediately upon the 
rendition of judgment.  

*** 

  

Exhibit “A” 

Amendments to Port Orchard Municipal Code 

Page 8 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 2 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 1.18 
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 
 
*** 
 
1.18.020 Location of Port Orchard City Hall – Contact information – Public records officer appointed. 
 

*** 

(2) Any person wishing to request access to public records or seeking assistance in making a request should contact 
the city’s public records officer. The city clerk is hereby designated as the public records officer for the city of Port 
Orchard. The mayor may, in his or hertheir discretion, assign additional staff and/or the city attorney to assist the 
city clerk in responding to public records requests. Requests for records maintained by the Port Orchard police 
department will be processed by the police department. The city clerk will assist the police department as necessary. 

*** 

1.18.040 Processing of public records requests – General. 
 

*** 

(7) Inspection of Records. If a requestor seeks an opportunity to inspect public records, and once the records are 
available for inspection, the following provisions apply: 

(a) Consistent with other demands, the city of Port Orchard shall promptly provide space to inspect public 
records. No member of the public may remove a document from the viewing area or disassemble or alter any 
document. The requestor shall indicate which documents he or she wishesthey wish the agency to copy. The 
public records officer or designee will be present when records are being inspected. 

(b) The requestor must claim or review the assembled records within 30 days of the city of Port Orchard 
notification to him or herthem that the records are available for inspection or copying. The city will notify the 
requestor in writing of this requirement and inform the requestor that he or shethey should contact the city to 
make arrangements to claim or review the records. If the requestor or a representative of the requestor fails to 
claim or review the records within the 30-day period or make other arrangements, the city of Port Orchard may 
close the request and refile the assembled records. Other public records requests can be processed ahead of a 
subsequent request by the same person for the same or almost identical records, which can be processed as a 
new request. 

*** 

(9) Providing Records in Installments. When the request is for a large number of records, the public records officer 
or designee will provide access for inspection and copying in installments, if he or shethey reasonably determines 
that it would be practical to provide the records in that way. If, within 30 days, the requestor fails to inspect either 
the entire set of records made available, or one or more of the installments made available, the public records officer 
or designee may stop searching for the remaining records and close the request. 

*** 

(11) Closing Withdrawn or Abandoned Request. When the requestor either withdraws the request or fails to fulfill 
his or hertheir obligations to inspect the records or pay the deposit or final payment for the requested copies, the 
public records officer will close the request and indicate to the requestor that the city of Port Orchard has closed the 
request. 

*** 

  

Page 9 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 3 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 1.22 
CITY WAYFINDING LOGO 
 

*** 

1.22.010 Purpose. 
The city has adopted an official wayfinding logo for the city of Port Orchard to be used by city staff to promote city 
services. The city may also make this logo available to individuals, entities and organizations that wish to use it as a 
promotional tool to attract visitors and encourage tourism to the city and participation in city-related activities and 
events, as deemed appropriate by the mayor or his/hertheir designee. The purpose of this chapter is to set guidelines 
to ensure the logo will be used and displayed appropriately.  

*** 
 
  

Page 10 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 4 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.04 
COUNCIL MEETINGS* 
 
Sections: 
 
*** 
2.04.200    Reports to council by committee chairmanchair. 
 

*** 

2.04.040 Quorum. 
At all meetings of the council, a majority of the councilmen council members shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business, but a less number may adjourn from time to time and may compel the attendance of absent 
members in such manner and under such penalties as may be prescribed by ordinance.  

*** 

2.04.050 Mayor and city clerk. 
All meetings of the city council shall be presided over by the mayor, or in the mayor’s absence by the mayor pro 
tem, or deputy mayor if one has been appointed, or by a member of the council selected by a majority of the council 
members at such meeting. Appointment of a council member to preside over the meeting shall not in any way 
abridge his or hertheir right to vote on matters coming before the council at such meeting. In the absence of the city 
clerk, a deputy clerk or other qualified person appointed by the clerk, the mayor, or the council, may perform the 
duties of clerk at such meeting.  

*** 
 
2.04.140 Council member taking chair from presiding officer. 
The presiding officer of the council, may, at his their discretion, call any member to take the chair, to allow him 
them to address the council, make a motion, or discuss any other matter at issue.  

*** 

2.04.200 Reports to council by committee chairmanchair. 
The chairman chair of each respective committee, or the councilman council member acting for him in his their 
place, shall submit or make all reports to the council when so requested by the presiding officer or any member of 
the council.  

*** 
 
  

Page 11 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 5 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.08 
APPOINTIVE OFFICERS* 
 
*** 
 
2.08.010 Appointment and removal of appointive officers. 
The mayor of the city may appoint or remove the city clerk, finance director, public works director, city engineer, 
community development director, city attorney, police chief, municipal judge, code enforcement officer, abatement 
hearing officer, and hearing examiner subject to any applicable law, ordinance, rule, or regulation, including those 
relating to civil service. All appointments of city officers shall be made on the basis of ability and training or 
experience of the appointees in the duties they are to perform, from among persons having such qualifications as 
may be prescribed by ordinance, and in compliance with provisions of any merit system applicable to the city. 
Confirmation by the city council of appointments of officers shall be required only when the city council, by 
ordinance, provides for confirmation of such appointments. Confirmation of mayoral appointments by the council 
may be required by the council in any instance where qualifications for the office or position have not been 
established by ordinance. Appointive offices shall be without definite term unless a term is established for such 
office by law or ordinance.  
 
2.08.020 City clerk. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The city clerk shall administer the operation of the clerk’s office. The duties of the city clerk 
are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the job description on file in the office of the financehuman 
resources department and may be updated from time to time. The city clerk shall have all the powers granted and 
duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now existing or 
hereinafter adopted, subject to the general supervision and control of the mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

*** 

2.08.030 Finance director. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The finance director shall administer the operation of the finance department. The duties of 
the finance director are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the job description on file in the office 
of the financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to time. The finance director shall have all 
the powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city 
now existing or hereinafter adopted, subject to the general supervision and control of the mayor or the mayor’s 
designee.  

*** 

2.08.040 Public works director. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The public works director shall administer the operation of the public works department. The 
duties of the public works director are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the job description on 
file in the office of the financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to time. The public works 
director shall have all the powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and 
ordinances of the city now existing or hereinafter adopted, subject to the general supervision and control of the 
mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

Page 12 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 6 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

*** 

2.08.050 City engineer. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The duties of the city engineer are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the 
job description on file in the office of the financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to 
time. The city engineer shall have all the powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, 
resolutions, and ordinances of the city now existing or hereinafter adopted, subject to the general supervision and 
control of the mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

*** 

2.08.060 Community development director. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The community development director shall administer the operation of the community 
development department. The duties of the community development director are as detailed in, but not confined to 
those contained in, the job description on file in the office of the financehuman resources department and may be 
updated from time to time. The community development director shall have all the powers granted and duties 
imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now existing or hereinafter 
adopted, subject to the general supervision and control of the mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

*** 

2.08.070 Police chief. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The police chief shall administer the operation of the police department. The duties of the 
police chief are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the job description on file in the office of the 
financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to time. The police chief shall have all the 
powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now 
existing or hereinafter adopted, subject to the general supervision and control of the mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

*** 

2.08.090 Municipal judge. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The municipal judge shall administer the operation of the municipal court. The duties of the 
municipal judge as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, the job description on file in the office of the 
financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to time. The municipal judge shall have all the 
powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now 
existing or hereinafter adopted.  

*** 

  

Page 13 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 7 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

2.08.100 Code enforcement officer. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The duties of the code enforcement officer are as detailed in, but not confined to those 
contained in, the job description on file in the office of the financehuman resources department and may be updated 
from time to time. The code enforcement officer shall have all the powers granted and duties imposed by authority 
of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now existing or hereinafter adopted, subject to the 
general supervision and control of the mayor or the mayor’s designee.  

*** 

2.08.110 Hearing examiner. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The duties of the hearing examiner are as detailed in, but not confined to those contained in, 
the Port Orchard Municipal Code and the job description or professional services contract on file in the office of the 
finance human resources department and may be updated from time to time. The hearing examiner shall have all the 
powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state, resolutions, and ordinances of the city now 
existing or hereinafter adopted.  

*** 

2.08.120 Abatement hearing officer. 
 

*** 

(2) Powers and Duties. The duties of the abatement hearing officer are as detailed in, but not confined to those 
contained in, the Port Orchard Municipal Code and the job description or professional services contract on file in the 
office of the financehuman resources department and may be updated from time to time. The abatement hearing 
officer shall have all the powers granted and duties imposed by authority of the laws of the state and resolutions and 
ordinances of the city now existing or hereinafter adopted.  

*** 

  

Page 14 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 8 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.12 
FIRE AUTHORITY 
 
Sections: 
*** 

2.12.040    Reimbursement of expenses for volunteer firemenfirefighters. 

 

*** 

2.12.030 Duties and responsibilities. 
 

*** 

The fire authority shall be in full and complete charge of the volunteer firefighters, career firefighters and 
administrative fire personnel and shall have supervision and control of all fire apparatus and shall have the authority 
to enforce ordinances and resolutions of the city. The fire authority shall be in absolute charge at all fires and shall 
have the police powers of the chief of policepolice chief at and in the vicinity of all fires, and the orders of the fire 
authority shall be obeyed while in charge at a fire.  

2.12.040 Reimbursement of expenses for volunteer firemenfirefighters. 
Each regular registered volunteer fireman firefighter on the Port Orchard volunteer fire department shall be 
reimbursed at a rate predetermined by the Port Orchard city council for expenses for every fire drill attended by such 
fireman firefighter and every fire call responded to by such firemanfirefighter, under the direction of the fire chief or 
a duly designated subordinate of the fire chief.  

  

Page 15 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 9 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.14 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE AGREEMENTS 
 
*** 

2.14.040 Agreement – Terms and conditions. 
(1) Hazardous materials emergency assistance agreements which are executed prior to a hazardous materials 
incident shall include the following terms and conditions: 

(a) The person requested to assist shall not be obligated to assist; 

(b) The person requested to assist may act only under direction of the incident commander or his their 
representative; 

(c) The person requested to assist may withdraw his their assistance if he they deems the actions or directions 
of the incident commander to be contrary to accepted hazardous materials response practices; 

(d) The person requested to assist shall not profit from rendering the assistance; 

(e) The person requested to assist shall not be a public employee acting in his their official capacity within the 
boundaries of his their political subdivision; 

(f) Any person responsible for causing the hazardous materials incident shall not be covered by the liability 
standard defined in POMC 2.14.020. 

*** 

2.14.050 Agreement – Verbal agreement and notice of terms. 
(1) The chief of the fire authority or his their representative may enter into verbal hazardous materials emergency 
assistance agreements at the scene of an incident where execution of a written agreement prior to the incident is not 
possible. A notification of the terms of this section shall be presented at the scene by the incident commander or his 
representative to the person whose assistance is requested. The incident commander and the person whose assistance 
is requested shall both sign the notification which appears in subsection (2) of this section, indicating the date and 
time of signature. If a requesting agency deliberately misrepresents individual or agency status, that agency shall 
assume full liability for any damages resulting from the actions of the person whose assistance is requested, other 
than those damages resulting from gross negligence or wilful misconduct. 

*** 

  

Page 16 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 10 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.16 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Sections: 
2.16.010    Establishment. 
2.16.020    Chief of policePolice Chief – Appointment and civil service exclusion. 
2.16.030    Positions designated. 
2.16.040    Members – Appointment and commissioning. 
2.16.050    Police powers. 
2.16.060    Oath of office. 

2.16.010 Establishment. 
There is established and created a police department to be operated under the direction and control of the city’s chief 
law enforcement officer, the chief of policepolice chief, subject to the supervision of the city mayor.  

2.16.020 Chief of policePolice chief – Appointment and civil service exclusion. 
The chief of policepolice chief shall be appointed by the city mayor, subject to approval by the city council, and may 
be removed by the city mayor. Removal shall be in accordance with the law and the policies of the city of Port 
Orchard. Pursuant to RCW 41.12.050, the position of police chief is excluded from civil service for city police.  

2.16.030 Positions designated. 
In addition to the chief of police,police chief the police department shall be staffed by regular commissioned 
personnel in such numbers and ranks as shall be deemed necessary by the city council pursuant to its adopted 
budget. 

*** 

2.16.050 Police powers. 
The chief of police police chief and all commissioned police personnel shall have the powers granted to them by 
state and local law and shall be responsible for those duties imposed by the laws of the state relating to chief of 
police police chief and law enforcement personnel for code cities. The chief and all law enforcement personnel shall 
have the power and duty to enforce the ordinances of the city and to perform other such services as the laws of the 
state or the ordinances of the city may now or hereafter require including acts authorized pursuant to the Inter-Local 
Cooperation Act, the Mutual Aid Peace Officers Powers Act, and pursuant to Chapters 10.93 and 39.34 RCW. 

2.16.060 Oath of office. 
All commissioned personnel, to include the chief of policepolice chief, shall be sworn in to enforce the ordinances 
of the city of Port Orchard, state and federal law, to protect the public peace and safety within the city of Port 
Orchard, and to abide by the code of professional conduct and responsibility for peace officers. 

*** 

  

Page 17 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 11 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.18 
ENROLLMENT OF POLICE RESERVE OFFICERS 
 
*** 

2.18.020 Provisions for payment of necessary fees. 
The fees necessary for the annual enrollment of each member of the Port Orchard police reserve officers choosing to 
participate in the pension fund shall be paid by the city treasurer finance director from any funds available for that 
purpose. The members’ share of the annual pension fees for all reserve officers who choose to join the pension plan 
shall be the sole responsibility of the individual reserve officer. Procedures for collection of these fees will be 
established by the city clerk.  

*** 

  

Page 18 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 12 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.28 
VACATIONS AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 
*** 
 
2.28.010 Definitions. 
In construing the provisions of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 

*** 

(4) An “intermittent temporary employee” is any person employed by the city for not to exceed six months duration 
and shall not be entitled to the benefits of this chapter. An “intermittent temporary employee” will be considered 
“full-time” or “part-time” (subsection (1) or (2) of this section) when his their continuous service exceeds six 
months.  

*** 

2.28.080 Civil leave. 
Civil leave may be allowed by the director of a department to permit any employee to serve as a member of the jury, 
or to exercise his/hertheir other civil duties in compliance with state or federal statutes as prescribed by personnel 
policy or labor agreement approved for their position classification.  

*** 

  

Page 19 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 13 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.36 

SURETY BONDS* 

*** 
 
2.36.010 Amounts fixed. 
The amounts for the faithful performance bonds for the officers and employees of the city of Port Orchard are fixed 
as follows: 

Officer or Employee Amount 

Finance director $50,000 

City clerk $10,000 

City attorney $10,000 

Chief of policePolice Chief $10,000 
 
The premiums for such bonds shall be paid by the city.  

Page 20 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 14 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 

Chapter 2.38 
LEGAL DEFENSE OF OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES 
 
*** 
 
2.38.010 Purpose. 
This chapter is adopted pursuant to the provisions of RCW 4.96.041, which require the city to establish a procedure 
to review a request for defense against an action or proceeding for damages brought against any past or present 
official or employee of the city, arising from acts or omissions while performing or in good faith purporting to 
perform his or hertheir official duties; and, if the request is granted, to pay the necessary expenses for such defense, 
and to pay any monetary judgment against the official or employee for nonpunitive damages entered by a court of 
competent jurisdiction on approval by the city council.  

*** 

2.38.100 Failure to comply with conditions. 
In the event that any official or employee fails or refuses to comply with any of the conditions of POMC 2.38.020, 
or elects to provide his/hertheir own representation with respect to any such claim or litigation, then all of the 
provisions of this chapter shall be inapplicable, and have no force or effect with respect to any such claim or 
litigation.  

*** 

  

Page 21 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 15 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.44 
AUDITING OFFICER 
Sections: 
2.44.010    Assistant city treasurerDeputy finance director designated as auditing officer. 
2.44.010 Assistant city treasurerDeputy finance director designated as auditing officer. 
The assistant city treasurerdeputy finance director is designated as auditing officer for the city as required by 
Chapter 42.24 RCW.  

*** 

  

Page 22 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 16 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.64 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 
 
*** 
 
2.64.020 Notice of civil infraction. 
(1) The code enforcement officer has authority to issue a notice of civil infraction: 

*** 

(4) A notice of civil infraction shall be served upon the person to whom it is directed in person, or by mailing a copy 
of the notice to such person at his/her their last known address. Proof of service shall be made by a written 
declaration under penalty of perjury by the person serving the notice, declaring the date and time of service and the 
manner by which service was made. The notice of civil infraction, along with the declaration, shall be filed with the 
city of Port Orchard municipal court. 

*** 

  

Page 23 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 17 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.75 
ACTIVE CLUB BUILDING 
 
*** 
 
2.75.010 Active Club Building facilities use policy. 
 

*** 

(13) Youth groups, nonprofit groups, and citizen groups are allowed to bring their animals to the Active Club 
Building as part of their meetings. The following conditions will apply to all groups who bring animals to the Active 
Club Building: 

*** 

(b) Any complaints received regarding animal groups shall be investigated by the public works director and/or 
his/hertheir designee; and 

*** 

  

Page 24 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 18 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.76 
HEARING EXAMINER 
 
*** 
 
2.76.030 Authority. 
The examiner shall be appointed and compensated as set forth in Chapter 2.08 POMC, and shall have the powers 
and duties as set forth herein. The examiner shall be appointed based on his or hertheir qualifications for the duties 
of the office and shall have the necessary training and experience in land use and related legal matters to conduct 
administrative or quasi-judicial hearings, and to render decisions according to law. The examiner shall hold no other 
classified, appointive, or elected position in city government. The examiner shall suggest an examiner pro tem to 
serve in the event of his/hertheir absence or disability, or in the event of a conflict of interest. The appointment of an 
examiner pro tem is expected to be infrequent in nature. The examiner pro tem will be entitled to the same 
compensation as the examiner during his/hertheir term of service.  

*** 

2.76.050 Conflict of interest. 
(1) The examiner shall not conduct or participate in any hearing or decision in which: 

*** 

(b) The examiner has a beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in any aspect of the matter on which he or she 
isthey are called upon to issue a decision; or 

(c) The examiner has a direct or indirect familial interest which might influence or interfere with his or hertheir 
decision-making process or give rise to a violation of the appearance of fairness doctrine as codified in Chapter 
42.36 RCW, as written or hereafter amended, and the common law. 

(2) The examiner shall disclose matters involving ex parte contacts, conflicts of interest or appearance of fairness 
issues prior to or at the beginning of any matter or immediately upon becoming aware of the need for such 
disclosure. The examiner shall recuse himself or herselfthemself if the examiner believes his or hertheir review of 
the matter would represent a conflict of interest or violate the appearance of fairness doctrine as set forth herein. 

(3) In the event the examiner recuses himself or herselfthemself, an examiner pro tem will be appointed, according 
to POMC 2.76.030.  

2.76.060 Improper influence. 
No city official either elected or appointed shall attempt to influence the examiner in any matter officially before 
him or herthem so as to constitute misconduct by a public officer under Chapter 42.20 RCW, as written or hereafter 
amended, or that would constitute a violation of the appearance of fairness doctrine as codified in Chapter 42.36 
RCW, as written or hereafter amended.  

2.76.070 Organization and rules. 
(1) Organization. The examiner operates independently of any department of the city, but will receive such 
administrative assistance from the planning community development director as is necessary to carry out the 
functions of his or hertheir office. 

*** 

2.76.080 Powers. 
 

*** 

(2) Specific. In addition to the general authority as granted herein, the examiner shall have the authority granted to 
him them in this code. 

Page 25 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 19 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

*** 

2.76.130 Reconsideration. 
 

*** 

(2) Effect of Request. The filing of a request for reconsideration shall stay the running of the appeal period until the 
examiner issues a decision on the request. Upon issuance of a decision on a request for reconsideration, the time for 
filing an appeal will begin. The examiner will review the request in light of the official record and his or hertheir 
decision, taking into account the grounds for the request. The examiner may deny the request; may set a hearing in 
order to supplement the official record and issue a revised decision following that hearing; or may revise the 
decision without a hearing. If the request is denied without further hearing or submission of materials by other 
parties, the denial must be issued in writing within five working days of the date of the request. The examiner has 
the authority to take any action consistent with the powers granted herein, in order to issue a decision on a request 
for reconsideration. Action taken by the examiner in response to a request for reconsideration, other than a denial, 
shall be in writing, and shall be issued within 21 calendar days of the date of the request.  

*** 

  

Page 26 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 20 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.78 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
 
*** 
 
2.78.050 Meetings. 
 

*** 

(2) Quorum. No business shall be conducted without a quorum at the meeting. A quorum shall exist when the 
meeting is attended by a majority of the members of the board, which may include the chairpersonchair. 

(3) ChairpersonChair. The board shall elect one of its members to serve as chairperson chair for a term of one year. 
The chairperson chair may be elected to serve one consecutive additional term, but not for more than two successive 
terms. 

(4) Voting. All actions of the board shall be represented by a vote of the membership. Unless otherwise provided in 
this chapter, a simple majority of the members present at the meeting in which action is taken shall approve any 
action taken. The chairperson chair may vote at the meetings. 

*** 

  

Page 27 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 21 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.80 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 
 
*** 
 
2.80.050 Emergency management council – Composition. 
The council shall be composed of five persons as follows: One county commissioner; the three mayors of 
Bremerton, Port Orchard and Poulsbo; and one city council member from Bainbridge Island. If one of the members 
is unable to attend a meeting of the council, he or shethey may designate an alternate elected official who shall be 
empowered to vote and participate in and conduct the business of the council.  

2.80.060 Emergency management council – Conduct of business. 
(1) Meetings. The business and other matters which come before the council shall be transacted at open public 
meetings. Meetings may be scheduled at regular times or may be called only as necessary. Meetings may be called 
by the council’s chairperson chair or vice-chairperson chair or by the director. 

(2) Quorum. A quorum shall exist when there are at least two mayors, or their designees, and one commissioner, or 
his or hertheir designee, present. Business may be conducted by majority vote of the quorum unless otherwise 
provided in this agreement. 

*** 

(4) Election. At the first meeting of each calendar year the council shall elect one of its number chairperson chair 
and another vice-chairpersonchair. Each shall serve for the balance of the calendar year or until successors are 
elected. 

(5) Minutes. The director or someone designated by him or herthem shall keep the minutes of all meetings. 

*** 

2.80.210 Mayor’s proclamation of emergency. 
(1) When unforeseen circumstances, beyond the control of the city, present an emergency or disaster as defined in 
the city of Port Orchard’s comprehensive emergency management plan, RCW 38.52.010(6)(a), and/or other federal, 
state or local law, the mayor, or in his or hertheir absence, the mayor pro tempore, or in both their absence, the next 
successor in line on the city council, may issue a proclamation (“mayor’s proclamation”) that an emergency 
situation exists (“state of emergency”) which necessitates activation of the city of Port Orchard’s comprehensive 
emergency management plan, and the utilization of emergency powers granted pursuant to said plan, as well as this 
chapter, RCW 38.52.070(2) and other applicable federal, state and/or local laws. Upon such proclamation, the city 
departments are authorized to do the following: 

*** 

(3) Upon the conclusion of the event, the mayor, or in his or her their absence, the mayor pro tempore, or in both 
their absence, the next successor in line on the city council, will issue a declaration (“mayor’s declaration”) 
terminating the state of emergency as declared in the mayor’s proclamation ending the event period.  

  

Page 28 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 22 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 2.82 
ABATEMENT HEARING OFFICER 
 

*** 

2.82.020 Authority. 
The abatement hearing officer shall be appointed and compensated as set forth in Chapter 2.08 POMC, and shall 
have the powers and duties as set forth herein. The hearing officer shall be appointed based on his or hertheir 
qualifications for the duties of the office and shall have the necessary training and experience to conduct 
administrative or quasi-judicial hearings, and to render decisions according to law. The hearing officer shall suggest 
a hearing officer pro tem to serve in the event of his/hertheir absence or disability, or in the event of a conflict of 
interest. The appointment of a hearing officer pro tem is expected to be infrequent in nature. The hearing officer pro 
tem will be entitled to the same compensation as the hearing officer during his/hertheir term of service.  

2.82.030 Conflict of interest. 
(1) The hearing officer shall not conduct or participate in any hearing or decision in which: 

*** 

(b) The hearing officer has a beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in any aspect of the matter on which he 
or she isthey are called upon to issue a decision; or 

(c) The hearing officer has a direct or indirect familial interest which might influence or interfere with his or 
hertheir decision-making process or give rise to a violation of the appearance of fairness doctrine as codified in 
Chapter 42.36 RCW, as written or hereafter amended, and the common law. 

(2) The hearing officer shall disclose matters involving ex parte contacts, conflicts of interest or appearance of 
fairness issues prior to or at the beginning of any matter or immediately upon becoming aware of the need for such 
disclosure. The hearing officer shall recuse himself or herselfthemself if the hearing officer believes his or hertheir 
review of the matter would represent a conflict of interest or violate the appearance of fairness doctrine as set forth 
herein. 

(3) In the event the hearing officer recuses himself or herselfthemself, a hearing officer pro tem will be appointed, 
according to POMC 2.82.020.  

2.82.040 Improper influence. 
No city official either elected or appointed shall attempt to influence the hearing officer in any matter officially 
before him or herthem so as to constitute misconduct by a public officer under Chapter 42.20 RCW, as written or 
hereafter amended, or that would constitute a violation of the appearance of fairness doctrine as codified in Chapter 
42.36 RCW, as written or hereafter amended.  

2.82.050 Organization and rules. 
(1) Organization. The hearing officer operates independently of any department of the city, but will receive such 
administrative assistance from city staff as is necessary to carry out the functions of his or hertheir office. 

*** 

  

Page 29 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 23 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Title 3 
FINANCE 
 
*** 
 
Chapters: 
 
*** 

3.12    Treasurer’s Trust and Agency Fund 
 
*** 
 
  

Page 30 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 24 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.08 
ADVANCE TRAVEL EXPENSE REVOLVING FUND 

*** 

3.08.010 General provisions. 
There is established the advance travel expense fund in the amount of $2,000, which shall be a revolving fund 
maintained as a checking account in the bank that is designated by the city as its official depository bank and 
advances to officers or employees will be by check. All checks shall require the signature of the city treasurerfinance 
director, or their designee if the treasurer finance director is not available, or the mayor. The revolving fund is to be 
replenished by warrant. The maximum amount that may be used to pay for travel expenses incurred by any one 
officer or employee of the city is $500.00.  

3.08.020 Travel expense voucher. 
On or before the fifteenth day following the close of the authorized travel period for which expenses have been 
advanced to any officer or employee, they shall submit to the city treasurer finance director a fully itemized travel 
expense voucher, for all reimbursable items legally expended, accompanied by the unexpended portion of such 
advance, if any. Any advance made for this purpose, or any portion thereof, not repaid or accounted for in the time 
and manner specified herein, shall bear interest at the rate of 10 percent per year from the date of default until paid.  

3.08.030 Use restrictions. 
An advance made under the provisions of POMC 3.08.010 and 3.08.020 shall be considered as having been made to 
such officer or employee to be expended by him them as an agent of the city for the city’s purposes only, and 
specifically to defray necessary costs while performing his their official duties.  

*** 
 
3.08.050 Regulations. 
The advance travel expense fund shall be administered by the city treasurer finance director in accordance with the 
procedures adopted by the State Auditor’s office for advance travel expense accounts established pursuant to RCW 
42.24.120.  

  

Page 31 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 25 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.12 
TREASURER’S TRUST AND AGENCY FUND 

*** 

3.12.010 Created. 
There is created a treasurer’s trust and agency fund into which fees held in trust shall be placed as they are received.  

3.12.020 Collection and distribution. 
The treasurer finance director of the city is directed that the fees collected by the treasurerfinance director, acting as 
an intermediary depositary, shall be placed in the trust and agency fund and then distributed to the proper agencies 
on a regular and timely basis.  

*** 

 

  

Page 32 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 26 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.44 
TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT 
 

*** 

3.44.030 Assuming the transportation benefit district.  
 

*** 

(2) The treasurer of the transportation benefit district shall be the city treasurerfinance director. 

*** 

  

Page 33 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 27 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.48 

MULTIFAMILY PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION 

*** 

3.48.130 Cancellation of tax exemption. 
(1) The director may cancel a tax exemption on a property if he/shethey determines any of the following: 

***  

Page 34 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 28 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.56 

COMMUNITY EVENTS FUND 

*** 
 
3.56.020 Placement of moneys. 
The treasurer finance director of the city is directed to place said moneys into a special revenue fund entitled the 
community events fund. 

***  

Page 35 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 29 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.68 
WATER-SEWER EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 
 
*** 
 
3.68.020 Transfer of moneys. 
The treasurer finance director of the city is directed to transfer $15,000 from the water-sewer operating fund as set 
forth in the 1985 budget adopted on December 3, 1984.  

3.68.030 Disbursement of funds – Authorization. 
Disbursements from the water-sewer equipment replacement fund by the city treasurer finance director shall be 
made upon proper authorization by the mayor and city council. 

*** 

  

Page 36 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 30 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.72 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIVE UNIT FUND 

*** 

3.72.020 Placement of moneys. 
The treasurer finance director of the city is directed to place said moneys into a special reserve fund entitled “Special 
Investigative Unit (SIU) Fund”.  

*** 

  

Page 37 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 31 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.80 
CUMULATIVE RESERVE FOR EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 
 
*** 
3.80.020 Transfer of moneys. 
The treasurer finance director of the city is directed to transfer moneys as set forth in the 1990 budget adopted on 
December 4, 1989.  

*** 

  

Page 38 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 32 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.84 
REGISTRATION OF BONDS  
AND OBLIGATIONS 
 
*** 
 
3.84.030 Adoption of registration system. 
 

*** 

(5) Duties of Registrar.  

*** 

(b) When the treasurer finance director serves as registrar, a separate contract shall not be required. 

 

*** 

  

Page 39 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 33 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 3.90 
DONATION ACCEPTANCE 
 
*** 
 
3.90.010 Administration.  
The finance director or his/hertheir designee shall have the responsibility for the administration of all donations to 
the city.  

*** 

3.90.030 Acceptance.  
All monetary and nonmonetary donations with a current value greater than $5,000 must be approved by the city 
council prior to acceptance. The finance director or his/hertheir designee shall estimate the value of any 
nonmonetary donation not supported by a bona fide appraisal, for purposes of compliance with this section.  

*** 

  

Page 40 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 34 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.04 
ELECTRIC LIGHT BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX 
 
Sections: 
 
*** 
 
5.04.150 Treasurer Finance director to make rules. 

 
*** 
 
5.04.060 Levy of tax. 
There is levied an annual occupation tax, which shall be collected quarterly, against the persons, on account of the 
business activities, and in the amounts to be determined by the application of the rates against gross income, as 
follows: 

Upon every person engaged in or carrying on the business of selling or furnishing electric light and power, a fee or 
tax equal to six percent of the total gross income from such business in the city during his their quarter next 
preceding the tax year for which the license is required. 

*** 

5.04.070 Exceptions and deductions. 
 

*** 

(2) Any person subject to the payment of a license fee or tax under the provisions of any ordinance of the city, other 
than this chapter, on account of engaging in any activity for which he isthey are liable to tax under this chapter may 
deduct the amount of such fee or tax imposed by this chapter on account of such activity, but such person shall 
nevertheless, in the manner herein provided for, apply for and procure an occupation license.  

5.04.080 Application or return for license. 
(1) On or before the first day of each year, every taxpayer shall apply to the city treasurer finance director for an 
occupation license upon blanks or forms of returns to be prepared and provided by himthem, requesting such 
information as may be necessary to enable him them to arrive at the lawful amount of the fee or tax. The taxpayer 
shall write in a legible manner in such blank or form of return the information required and shall sign the same, and 
by affidavit at the foot thereof shall swear or affirm that the information given is full and true and that he they knows 
know the same to be so. 

*** 

5.04.090 Sale or transfer of business. 
Upon the sale or transfer during any tax year of a business on account of which a fee or tax is hereby required, the 
purchaser or transferee shall, if the fee or tax has not been paid in full for the year, be responsible for its payment for 
that portion of the year during which he they carried on such business.  

5.04.100 Income records – Returns. 
(1) It shall be the duty of each taxpayer taxed upon his their gross income to keep and enter in a proper book or set 
of books or records an account accurately reflecting the amount of his their gross income, which account shall 
always be open to the inspection of the city treasurer finance director or his their duly authorized agent, and from 
which the officer or his their agent may verify the return made by the taxpayer. 

(2) The applications, statements or returns made to the city treasurer finance director pursuant to this chapter shall 
not be made public, nor shall they be subject to the inspection of any person except the mayor, the city attorney, the 
city treasurer finance director or his their authorized agent, and members of the city council.  

Page 41 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 35 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

5.04.110 Investigation of returns. 
If any taxpayer fails to apply for license or make his their return, or if the city treasurer finance director is 
dissatisfied with the correctness of the statements made in the application or return of any taxpayer, the treasurer 
finance director or his their authorized agent may enter the premises of such taxpayer at any reasonable time for the 
purpose of inspecting his their books or records of account in order to ascertain the amount of the fee or tax or to 
determine the correctness of such statements, as the case may be. The treasurer finance director or his their 
authorized agent may examine any person under oath administered by himthem, touching the matters inquired into, 
or he they may fix a time for an investigation of the correctness of the return and may issue a subpoena to the 
taxpayer or any other person, to attend upon such investigation and there testify under oath administered by the 
treasurer finance director or his their agent, in regard to the matters inquired into and may, by subpoena, require him 
them or any person to bring with him them such books, records and papers as may be necessary.  

5.04.120 Over or under payment of tax. 
If the city treasurer finance director upon investigation or upon checking returns finds that the fee or tax paid on any 
of them is more than the amount required of the taxpayer, he they shall refund the amount overpaid by a check upon 
the general fund. If the city treasurer finance director finds that the fee or tax paid is less than required, he they shall 
send a statement to the taxpayer showing the balance due, who shall within 30 days pay the amount shown thereon.  

5.04.130 Failure to pay tax – Liability. 
If any taxpayer fails to apply for license, or to make his their return or to pay the fee or tax or any part thereof within 
30 days after the tax is due, the city treasurer finance director shall ascertain the amount of the fee or tax or 
installment due and shall notify the taxpayer who shall be liable therefor in any suit or action by the city for the 
collection of the tax. The city treasurer finance director shall also notify the city attorney in writing of the name of 
the delinquent taxpayer and the amount due from him them and the city attorney shall, with the assistance of the city 
treasurerfinance director, collect the same by any appropriate means or by suit or action in the name of the city.  

5.04.140 Appeals to city council. 
(1) Any taxpayer aggrieved by the amount of the fee or tax found by the city treasurer finance director to be required 
under the provisions of this chapter, may appeal to the city council from such finding by filing a written notice of 
appeal with the city clerk within 30 days from the time the taxpayer was given notice of the amount. The clerk shall, 
as soon as practicable, fix a time and place for the hearing of the appeal, which time shall be not more than 10 days 
after the filing of the notice of appeal, and he they shall cause a notice of the time and place thereof to be delivered 
or mailed to the appellant. At such hearing the taxpayer shall be entitled to be heard and to introduce evidence in his 
their own behalf. The city council shall thereupon ascertain the correct amount of the fee or tax by resolution and the 
city clerk shall immediately notify the appellant. The amount of the tax, together with costs of the appeal if appellant 
is unsuccessful therein, must be paid within 30 days after such notice is given. 

(2) The mayor may, by subpoena, require the attendance of any person at the hearing of the appeal and may also 
require him them to produce any pertinent books and records. Any person served with such subpoena shall appear at 
the time and place stated therein and produce the books and records required, if any, and shall testify truthfully 
under oath administered by the mayor as to any matter required of him them pertinent to the appeal, and it shall be 
unlawful for him them to fail or refuse to do so.  

5.04.150 Treasurer Finance director to make rules. 
The city treasurer finance director shall have the power and it shall be his their duty, from time to time, to adopt, 
publish and enforce rules and regulations not inconsistent with this chapter or with law for the purpose of carrying 
out the provisions thereof. It shall be unlawful to violate or fail to comply with any such rule or regulation.  

5.04.160 Licenses posted – Nontransferable. 
(1) All licenses issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter shall be kept posted by the licensee in a conspicuous 
place in his their principal place of business in the city. 

(2) No persons to whom a license has been issued pursuant to this chapter shall allow any other person chargeable 
with a separate license to operate under or display his their license, nor shall such other person operate under or 
display such license.  

***  

Page 42 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 36 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.08 
TELEPHONE BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX 
 
*** 
 
5.08.020 Application and issuance of license. 
No person, firm or corporation shall engage in or carry on any business, occupation, act or privilege for which a tax 
is imposed by POMC 5.08.030 without first having obtained, and being the holder of, a license as established in 
Chapter 5.12 POMC. Each such person, firm or corporation shall promptly apply to the city treasurer finance 
director for such license upon such forms as the treasurer finance director shall prescribe.  

*** 

5.08.050 Payment periods. 
The utility tax imposed by this chapter shall be due and payable in monthly installments and remittance shall be 
made on or before the thirtieth day of the month next succeeding each month in which the tax accrued. On or before 
the due date, the taxpayer shall file with the city treasurer finance director a written return, upon such form and 
setting forth such information as the treasurer finance director shall reasonably require, together with the payment of 
the amount of utility tax.  

*** 

  

Page 43 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 37 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.12 
BUSINESS LICENSES 
 
*** 
 
5.12.050 Disclaimer of city liability – Indemnification. 
(1) Issuance of a license pursuant to this chapter does not constitute the creation of a duty by the city to indemnify 
the licensee for any wrongful acts against the public, or to guarantee the quality of goods, services or expertise of a 
licensee. The issuance of a license does not shift responsibility from the licensee to the city for proper training, 
conduct or equipment of the licensee or his their agents, employees or representatives, even if specific regulations 
require standards of training, conduct or inspection. Issuance of the license does not exempt the licensee from other 
required permits or licenses. 

*** 

5.12.070 General qualifications of licensees. 
(1) No license shall be issued, nor shall any license be renewed, pursuant to the provisions of this chapter to: 

(a) An applicant who is under 18 years of age at the time of the application, unless he/shethey shall obtain the 
written consent of said applicant’s parent or guardian to make said application; 

*** 

5.12.120 Suspension or revocation procedure. 
 

*** 

(7) It is unlawful for any such person whose city business license has been revoked or suspended to continue 
operation of the business enterprise, or to keep the license issued to him/herthem in his/hertheir possession and 
control, and the same shall immediately be surrendered to the city license officer. Following revocation, no business 
license shall be issued for a period of 12 months to the person or business entity whose license was revoked, or to 
any business entity owned or controlled by such person or entity.  

*** 

5.12.150 Notice and order. 
 

*** 

(2) Method of Service. The notice and order shall be served upon the licensee either personally or by mailing a copy 
of such notice and order by mail, return receipt requested, to such licensee at his/hertheir address as it appears on the 
most recent business license application. The failure of any person to receive such notice shall not affect the validity 
of any proceedings taken under this section. Service by mail in the manner herein provided shall be effective on the 
date of mailing. 

*** 

5.12.170 Criminal penalties. 
Any person violating or failing to comply with any of the provisions of this business license chapter, and who has 
had a civil penalty entered against him or herthem pursuant to POMC 5.12.160 within the past five years, shall be 
subject to criminal prosecution and, upon conviction of a subsequent violation, shall be fined in a sum not exceeding 
$1,000. Each day of noncompliance with any of the provisions of this chapter shall constitute a separate offense.  

*** 

  

Page 44 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 38 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.20 
CABARETS* 
 
*** 
 
5.20.060 License – Nontransferable – Posting. 
The license issued under this chapter shall be personal and nontransferable, and shall at all times be conspicuously 
posted in the place of business for which it is issued. Where the location of business of the licensee is changed, the 
licensee shall return the license to the city clerk and a new license shall be issued for the new location of business 
without charge. No person to whom a license has been issued pursuant to this chapter shall permit or allow any other 
person to operate any business or display his/hertheir license, nor shall such other person operate under or display 
such license.  

5.20.070 License – Refusal, cancellation or revocation. 
 

*** 

(2) The city clerk may refuse to issue a cabaret license, or may cancel or revoke such license after it has been issued, 
if it is learned that the same was procured by fraud or false representation of facts, or that the applicant or permittee 
has failed to comply with the provisions and requirements of this chapter or has violated any provision of this 
chapter, or for any other reason which, in the opinion of the chief of police chief, will be detrimental to the public 
peace, health or welfare. 

*** 

  

Page 45 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 39 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.22 
ADMISSIONS TAX 
Sections: 
 
*** 
 
5.22.120    Rules and regulations adopted by the treasurerfinance director. 
 
*** 
5.22.030 Definitions. 
For purposes of this chapter, words and phrases shall have the following meanings: 

(1) “Admissions charge,” in addition to its usual and ordinary meaning, includes but shall not be limited to a charge 
made for use of seats and tables, reserved or otherwise, and other similar accommodations. 

(2) “City” means the city of Port Orchard, state of Washington. 

(3) Finance director” means the city finance director’s office. 

(34) “Nonprofit organization” means any organization organized and operated for charitable, educational or other 
purposes, which is exempt from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended. 

(45) “Person” means any individual, receiver, assignee, firm, partnership, joint stock company, association, society, 
corporation or any group of individuals acting as a unit, whether mutual, cooperative, fraternal, nonprofit, or 
otherwise. 

(56) “Place” means and includes, but is not restricted to, theaters, dancehalls, amphitheaters, auditoriums, stadiums, 
athletic pavilions and fields, baseball and athletic parks, circuses, sideshows, swimming pools, outdoor amusement 
parks and carnivals. 

(6) “Treasurer” means the city treasurer’s office. 

(7) “Start-up business” means an activity, occupation, pursuit or profession located and/or engaged in within the city 
with the object of gain, benefit or advantage to another person, directly or indirectly, whether part-time or full-time, 
and which has not operated for the prior 12 months or more at any location within the city. A change in ownership 
of a business shall not create a new start-up business unless the business has not operated for the prior 12 months or 
more.  

*** 

5.22.070 Collection and payment. 
(1) Any person, including any municipal or quasi-municipal corporation, who receives any payment for admissions 
on which a tax is levied under this chapter shall collect the amount of the tax imposed from the person making the 
admission payment and shall remit the same as provided for in this section. The tax imposed under this chapter shall 
be deemed to be held in trust by that person required to collect the tax until it is paid to the city as herein provided. 
Any person required to collect the tax imposed under this chapter who fails to collect the same or, having collected 
the same, fails to remit the same to the city in the manner prescribed in this chapter, whether such failure be the 
result of his or hertheir own act or the result of acts or conditions beyond his or hertheir control, shall nevertheless 
be personally liable to the city for the amount of such tax, and shall, unless remittance is made as required in this 
section, be guilty of a violation of this chapter. The tax imposed shall be collected at the time admission charge is 
paid by the person seeking admission to any place and shall be reported and remitted by the person receiving the tax 
to the city treasurer finance director monthly on or before the fifteenth day of the following month if the amount 
collected exceeds $100.00 collected in one month. Amounts less than $100.00 collected in one month may be 
remitted quarterly as follows: 

(a) January, February, March to be received by April 15th. 

Page 46 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 40 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

(b) April, May, June to be received by July 15th. 

(c) July, August, September to be received by October 15th. 

(d) October, November, December to be received by January 15th. 

The treasurer finance director may extend the time for making and filing the return and remittance of the tax for a 
period not to exceed 30 days. Payment or remittance of the tax collected may be made by check, unless payment or 
remittance is otherwise required by the treasurerfinance director. Checks should be made payable to the city. 
Payment by check shall not relieve the person collecting the tax from liability for payment and remittance of the tax 
unless the check is honored and in the full and correct amount. Any person receiving any payment for admissions 
shall make out a return upon such forms providing information as required by the treasurerfinance director. 
Whenever any theater, circus show, exhibition, entertainment or amusement makes an admission charge which is 
subject to the tax levied in this chapter, and the same is of a transitory or temporary nature, of which the treasurer 
finance director shall be the judge, the treasurer finance director shall require the report and remittance of the 
admissions tax immediately upon the collection of the tax at the conclusion of the performance or exhibition, or at 
the conclusion of a series of performances or exhibitions, or at such other time as the treasurer finance director shall 
determine. The treasurer finance director may require the applicant to deposit a sum of money or bond in advance of 
any performance, show or amusement. This deposit or bond shall be returned upon faithful compliance with the 
provisions of this chapter. 

(2) Failure to comply with any requirements of the treasurer finance director as to reporting and remitting the tax 
shall be a violation of this chapter. 

(3) The books, records and accounts of every person collecting a tax levied in this chapter shall, as to admission 
charges and tax collections, be subject to examination and audit by the treasurer finance director at all reasonable 
times.  

5.22.080 Penalty for late payment. 
(1) If payment of any tax due under this chapter is not received by the treasurer finance director by the last day of 
the month in which the tax was due, there shall be added to such tax a penalty of 15 percent of the tax due. 

(2) The treasurer finance director shall notify the taxpayer by mail of the amount of any penalties so added or 
assessed and these shall become due and payable within 10 days from the date of such notice. 

(3) In addition to this penalty, the treasurer finance director may charge the taxpayer interest of one percent of all 
taxes due for each 30-day period or portion thereof that such amounts are past due. 

*** 

5.22.090 Registration required. 
Any person conducting or operating any activity for which an admission charge is made shall register with the 
treasurerfinance director.  

5.22.100 Successor to business. 
When any person required to pay a tax under this chapter shall quit business or otherwise dispose of his or hertheir 
business, any admissions tax payable shall immediately become due and payable, and if such tax is not paid by such 
person within 10 days from the date of such sale, exchange or disposal of the business, the purchaser or successor 
shall also become liable for the payment of the full amount of such tax plus accrued penalties.  

5.22.110 Recordkeeping. 
It shall be the duty of every person liable for any tax imposed by this chapter to keep and preserve for a period of 
five years suitable records as may be necessary to determine the amount of any tax for which he or shethey may be 
liable under the provisions of this chapter.  

5.22.120 Rules and regulations adopted by treasurerfinance director. 
The treasurer finance director shall have the power to adopt rules and regulations not inconsistent with the terms of 
this chapter for carrying out and enforcing the payment, collection and remittance of the tax levied by this chapter 

Page 47 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 41 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

and a copy of the rules and regulations shall be on file and available for public examination at the treasurer’s finance 
director’s office. Failure or refusal to comply with any such rules and regulations shall be deemed a violation of this 
chapter.  

*** 

  

Page 48 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 42 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.28 
GAMBLING 
 
*** 
 
5.28.040 Exemption from taxation. 
 

*** 

(3) Any bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization desiring to obtain this exemption must make a verified 
application for exemption to the city treasurer finance director for each calendar year during which the exemption is 
sought. Such application shall set forth the facts and circumstances by which the organization qualifies for the 
exemption.  

*** 

5.28.050 Quarterly tax payments – Exemptions. 
 

*** 

(3) Whenever it appears that the collection of taxes from any person, association or organization may be in jeopardy, 
the city treasurerfinance director, after not less than five days’ notice to the taxpayer, is authorized to require that 
taxpayer to remit taxes and return at such shorter intervals than quarterly or annually, as the city treasurer finance 
director shall deem appropriate under the circumstances.  

5.28.060 Administration and collection. 
(1) Administration and collection of the various taxes imposed by this chapter shall be the responsibility of the city 
finance directortreasurer. Remittance of the amount due shall be accompanied by a completed return form 
prescribed and provided by the city finance directortreasurer. The taxpayer shall be required to swear and affirm that 
the information given in the return is true, accurate and complete. 

(2) The city finance director treasurer is authorized, but not required, to mail to taxpayers forms for returns. Failure 
of the taxpayer to receive such a form shall not excuse a taxpayer from making the return and timely paying all taxes 
due. The city finance director treasurer shall make forms available to the public during regular business hours. 

(3) In addition to the return form, a copy of the taxpayer’s report to the Washington State Gambling Commission as 
required by WAC Title 230, for the period in which the tax accrued, shall accompany the remittance of the tax 
amount due. The return, and copy of the report to the Washington State Gambling Commission, shall be filed in the 
city treasurer’s finance director’s office after notation by that office upon the return of the amount actually received 
from the taxpayer.  

5.28.070 Method of payment. 
(1) Taxes payable hereunder shall be remitted to the city finance director treasurer on or before the time required. If 
payment is made by draft or check, the tax shall not be deemed paid until the draft or check is honored in the usual 
course of business, nor shall the acceptance of any sum by the city finance director treasurer be an acquittance or 
discharge of the tax unless the amount paid is the full amount due. 

*** 
 
5.28.080 Failure to make remittance. 
(1) If full payment of any tax or fee due under this chapter is not received by the city finance director treasurer on or 
before the date due, there shall be added to the amount due a penalty fee as follows: 

(a) One through 10 days late: five percent of tax due; 

(b) Eleven through 20 days late: seven and one-half percent of tax due; 

Page 49 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 43 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

(c) Twenty-one through 31 days late: 10 percent of tax due; 

(d) Thirty-two through 60 days late: 15 percent of tax due. 

(2) In no event shall the penalty amount be less than $10.00. In addition to this penalty, the city finance director 
treasurer shall charge the taxpayer interest of eight percent per annum of all taxes and fees delinquent for more than 
30 days. 

*** 
 
5.28.090 Notice of intent to engage in gambling activity. 
In order that the city may identify those persons who are subject to taxation under this chapter, each person, 
association, or organization shall file with the city finance director treasurer a sworn declaration of intent to conduct 
an activity taxable under this chapter upon the form prescribed by the city finance directortreasurer, together with a 
copy of the license issued therefor by the Washington State Gambling Commission. The filing shall be made not 
later than 10 days prior to conducting or operating the taxable activity. No fee shall be charged for such filing. 
Failure to timely file shall not excuse any person, association, or organization from any tax liability.  

5.28.100 Records required. 
 

*** 

(3) Where a taxpayer does not keep all of the books, records, or items required to be kept or maintained under this 
section in this jurisdiction, so that any city law enforcement officer or agency may examine them conveniently, the 
taxpayer shall either: 

(a) Produce all of the required books, records, or items for such inspection within the city within 15 days 
following a request of any city law enforcement officer or agency that he they do so; or 

*** 

5.28.110 Overpayment or underpayment of tax. 
If, upon application by a taxpayer for a refund or for an audit of its records, or upon any examination of the returns 
or records of any taxpayer, it is determined by the city finance director treasurer that within three years immediately 
preceding the receipt by the city finance director treasurer of the application by the taxpayer for a refund, or an 
audit, or in the absence of such an application, within the three years immediately preceding the commencement by 
the city treasurer finance director of such examination: 

*** 

 

(2) A tax or other fee has been paid which is less than that properly due, or no tax or other fee has been paid, the city 
finance director treasurer shall mail a statement to the taxpayer showing the balance due, including the tax amount 
or penalty assessments and fees. It shall be a separate, additional violation of this chapter, both civil and criminal, if 
the taxpayer fails to make payment in full within 10 calendar days of such mailing.  

*** 

 
  

Page 50 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 44 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.32 
CIRCUSES AND CARNIVALS 
 
*** 
 
5.32.060 Application for license and information required. 
Before any person shall operate any amusement licensed under the provisions of this chapter, he they shall apply in 
writing to the city council for a license therefor and pay the license and Fire District review and inspection fees 
provided in this chapter. The application shall specify: 

(1) The name of the person, firm, or corporation which will use the structure; 

(2) The location of the principal place of business of such person, firm, or corporation; 

(3) The names and addresses of the officers of such firm or corporation; 

(4) The length of time the license is intended to be used for the purpose applied for; 

(5) Nature of activity to be conducted; 

(6) Such other relative information as the city council may require.  

5.32.070 Providing for policing. 
Before any person shall operate any amusement licensed under the provisions of this chapter he they shall provide 
sufficient information to the chief of policepolice chief as to show that adequate policing will be provided, such that 
persons attending any such amusement shall have reasonable police protection and supervision.  

*** 

  

Page 51 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 45 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.36 
JUNK DEALERS 
 
*** 
 
5.36.020 Record of transactions to be kept. 
Every junk dealer shall provide and keep a book in which shall be plainly written in ink and in the English language 
at the time of every purchase an accurate description of the article purchased, the name and residence of the person 
from whom such purchase was made; the day and hour of such purchase and the place where it is being kept or 
stored. The book shall at all times reasonable, be open for inspection by the chief of policepolice chief or other 
officials of the city. No entry made in the book shall be erased or in any manner obliterated or defaced.  

*** 

5.36.050 Inspection of premises. 
It shall be unlawful for any junk dealer to refuse to allow any city official to inspect his their place of business and 
all articles or things kept therein whenever such officer shall deem it necessary so to do.  

*** 

 

  

Page 52 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 46 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.40 
PAWNBROKERS 
 
*** 
 
5.40.060 Criteria for denial, nonrenewal, suspension or revocation of license. 
 

*** 

A licensee shall have his their license suspended for 30 days for the first violation, 90 days for the second violation; 
and upon the third violation in any 12-month period, the pawnbroker’s license shall be revoked.  

*** 

5.40.100 Transcript of pawnbroker’s record. 
(1) Every pawnbroker shall, before 12:00 noon of every business day furnish a full, true and correct transcript of the 
record of all transactions conducted on the preceding day. These transactions shall be recorded on such forms as 
may be provided and in such format as may be required by the chief of policepolice chief.  

(2) If a pawnbroker has good cause to believe that any property in his or hertheir possession has been previously lost 
or stolen, the pawnbroker shall promptly report that fact to the chief of policepolice chief, together with the name of 
the owner, if known, and the date when, and the name of the person from whom it was received.  

*** 

5.40.130 Pawnbrokers – Sale of pledged property limited – Written document required for transactions. 
 

*** 

(4) If a person who has entered into a loan transaction with a pawnbroker in this state is unable to redeem and repay 
the loan on or before the expiration of the term of the loan plus the minimum 60-day grace period, and that person 
wishes to retain his or hertheir rights to use that item by renewing the loan, and if both parties mutually agree, an 
existing loan transaction may be rewritten into a new loan, either in person or by mail. All applicable provisions of 
this chapter shall be followed in rewriting a loan, except that where an existing loan is rewritten by mail RCW 
19.60.020(1)(a) and (g) shall not apply.  

*** 
 
5.40.150 Operation at night. 
It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker to conduct or carry on the business of pawnbroker, in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, or to open, or keep open, his their pawnshop for the transaction of any business whatsoever 
therein, between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. except from December 15th to December 25th of each year, 
and on Saturdays, when pawnbrokers may remain open until, but not later than 10:00 p.m.  

*** 

5.40.170 Prohibited acts – Penalty.  
 

*** 

(3) Any pawnbroker to receive any property from any person under the age of 18 years, any person under the 
influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs, or from any person who is known to the pawnbroker as having been 
convicted of burglary, robbery, theft, or possession of or receiving stolen property within the past 10 years whether 
the person is acting in his or hertheir own behalf or as the agent of another; 

***  

Page 53 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 47 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.44 
PEDDLERS AND HAWKERS 
 
*** 

5.44.060 Issuance of peddler’s license. 
Any person desiring to engage in the business of peddler as defined in POMC 5.44.010, shall make payment in 
advance to the clerk, at the rates specified in POMC 5.44.040, and his their receipt shall operate as a license for the 
time specified thereon.  

5.44.070 Issuance of hawker’s license. 
Any person desiring to engage in the business of hawker, as defined in POMC 5.44.020, within the city, shall make 
payment in advance to the clerk, at the rates specified in POMC 5.44.050, and his their receipt shall operate as a 
license for the time specified thereon.  

 
*** 
  

Page 54 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 48 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.56 
TAXICABS 
 
*** 

5.56.010 Supervisory duties of officials. 
 

*** 

(2) The inspection of taxicabs, inspection and sealing of taxicab meters and the enforcing of the provisions of this 
chapter shall be under the supervision of the chief of policepolice chief (hereafter referred to as “chief”); and 

*** 

5.56.110 Photographs of driver applicant. 
Every applicant for a driver’s license must file with their application two recent photographs of himself or 
herselfthemself of a size designated by the clerk and which may be easily attached to their license, one of which 
shall be so attached when issued; the other shall be filed with the application. The photograph shall be so attached to 
the license that it cannot be removed and another photograph substituted without probability of detection. Each 
licensed driver shall, on demand of the license inspector, police officer or a passenger, exhibit their license and 
photograph for inspection.  

*** 

5.56.170 Penalty. 
In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided herein or by law, penalties shall be assessed by the 
city license officer, his or hertheir assignee, or by a police officer against any licensee, person, or business that 
violates any provision of this chapter as follows: 

*** 
 
5.56.180 Revocation or suspension of license – Procedure. 
 

*** 

(2) Any notice provided for in this section shall be served, either: (a) by delivering copy personally to the licensee, 
or (b) by leaving a copy with some person of suitable age and discretion at the place of business of the licensee, or if 
no such person be found at the place oss of the licensee, by leaving such notice in a conspicuous place on the 
premises, and mailing a copy of the notice to the licensee at his their place of business as set forth in his their 
application for license. At the hearing on said charges, the licensee shall have the right to appear and defend the 
charges and, if licensee so desires, to be represented by counsel.  

  

Page 55 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 49 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.60 
FIREWORKS 
 
*** 
 
5.60.005 Definitions. 
 

*** 

(6) “Fire authority” means the fire chief of the South Kitsap Fire and Rescue District or his/hertheir designee for the 
purposes of this chapter. 

*** 

5.60.020 Conditions for sales of fireworks and public display – Permit issuance. 
 

*** 

(5) Applicant shall post a $50.00 deposit conditioned upon the prompt removal of the temporary stand and/or the 
cleaning up of all debris from the site. If the applicant removes such temporary stand and cleans up all the debris 
before the tenth day of July each year, he they shall be entitled to the return of his their $50.00 deposit. 

*** 

  

Page 56 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 50 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.68 
NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE 
 
*** 
 
5.68.120 Gross earnings – Excise tax. 
The right and privileges hereby granted are upon condition that the CNG, its successors or assigns, shall pay, as 
compensation and as a consideration for the use of the streets, avenues, alleys, and public grounds of the city, for the 
purposes herein designated, the full sum and amount of six percent of its gross earnings from the sale of gas in the 
city, monthly into the treasury of the city for the use and benefit of the city. CNG’s payment of the compensation 
shall be made on or before the last day of each month following the month in which the tax accrued from the 
granting of this franchise. And for the purpose of ascertaining the gross earnings upon which payment shall be 
made, as aforesaid, an accurate account of such earnings shall be kept by CNG, and an abstract and account thereof 
furnished by it to the city treasurer finance director of the city on or before the last day of each month following the 
month in which the tax accrued, the truth of which abstract shall be verified by affidavit of CNG. For the purpose of 
verification of such statements, the books of CNG shall be at all times opened for the inspection of such officer, 
person or persons as may be appointed for that purpose by the city. And for the purpose of securing to the city the 
payment of the aforesaid per centum, the city shall have a lien for the payment of the said per centum and the same 
shall be charged against all of the property, estate and effects of the said company whatsoever, real, personal or 
mixed, and may be enforced by the city by civil action. But nothing contained herein shall be held to impair the 
rights of the city in enforcing the terms and conditions of this franchise. The city reserves the right, upon adequate 
notice to CNG, to increase the excise tax CNG pays on its gross earnings from the sale of gas in the city up to the 
maximum amount allowed by law.  

*** 

  

Page 57 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 51 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.78 
GARBAGE UTILITY BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX 
 
*** 
 
5.78.020 Payment of tax. 
The tax due under this chapter shall be paid to the city treasurer finance director by the contractor on a monthly 
basis.  

*** 

  

Page 58 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 52 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.84 
WATER, SEWER, STORM BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX 
 
*** 

5.84.060 Application or return for license. 
(1) On or before the first day of each year, every taxpayer shall apply to the city finance director for an occupation 
license upon blanks or forms of returns to be prepared and provided by himthem, requesting such information as 
may be necessary to enable him them to arrive at the lawful amount of the fee or tax. The taxpayer shall write in a 
legible manner in such blank or form of return the information required and shall sign the same, and by affidavit at 
the foot thereof shall swear or affirm that the information given is full and true and that he or she knowsthey know 
the same to be so. 

*** 

5.84.120 Appeals to city council. 
(1) Any taxpayer aggrieved by the amount of the fee or tax found by the city finance director to be required under 
the provisions of this chapter may appeal to the city council from such finding by filing a written notice of appeal 
with the city clerk within 30 days from the time the taxpayer was given notice of the amount. If the determination 
being appealed is the amount of the tax or fee due, the amount determined by the finance director must be paid to 
Port Orchard under protest before filing an appeal. The clerk shall, as soon as practicable, fix a time and place for 
the hearing of the appeal, which time shall be not more than 30 days after the filing of the notice of appeal, and shall 
cause a notice of the time and place thereof to be delivered or mailed to the appellant. At such hearing the taxpayer 
shall be entitled to be heard and to introduce evidence in his or hertheir own behalf. The city council shall thereupon 
ascertain the correct amount of the fee or tax by resolution and the city clerk shall immediately notify the appellant. 
The amount of the tax, together with costs of the appeal if appellant is unsuccessful therein, must be paid within 30 
days after such notice is given. 

*** 

5.84.140 Licenses posted – Nontransferable. 
 

*** 

(2) No persons to whom a license has been issued pursuant to this chapter shall allow any other person chargeable 
with a separate license to operate under or display his or hertheir license, nor shall such other person operate under 
or display such license.  

*** 

  

Page 59 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 53 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.94 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
*** 
 
5.94.070 Revocation of permit. 
The chief of policepolice chief, fire chief, or public works director, or their designated representatives, shall have the 
authority to revoke a permit issued hereunder instantly upon violation of any one or more of the code ordinances or 
conditions or standards of issuance as herein set forth.  

5.94.080 City assistance. 
The chief of policepolice chief, fire chief, and/or public works director may require necessary public safety and 
traffic control, including but not limited to requiring certified flagger(s), use of downtown parking lots, police 
protection and/or emergency medical services to be provided at the special event at the organizer’s expense. Special 
events that have been exempted by the city council from personnel expenses in the form of a resolution shall not be 
subject to expenses for city support. The finance department shall notify all applicants of the actual expenses related 
to city support of the special event. 

*** 

(2) Police Services Protection. After obtaining as much information as the chief of policepolice chief reasonably 
deems necessary regarding a special event permit application, he or shethey shall determine whether and to what 
extent additional police protection reasonably will be required for the special event for purposes of crowd control, 
and security. In making this determination, the chief of policepolice chief shall consider those factors set out in 
POMC 5.94.060. If additional police protection for the special event is deemed necessary by the chief of 
policepolice chief, he or shethey shall notify the applicant. The applicant then shall have the duty to secure police 
protection acceptable to the chief of policepolice chief at the sole expense of the applicant and shall prepay the 
expenses of such protection, as required. The fees are set by council resolution, which establishes the reimbursement 
rate for enhanced security expenses. The chief of policepolice chief shall consider what additional personnel, 
equipment and supplies are needed, as well as any other items or expenses which will be necessary. 

(3) Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services. 

(a) After receiving notification of the intended special event, the fire chief shall make a determination as to the 
need for on-site fire watch and/or emergency medical personnel. The fire chief shall consider such factors as 
the location, number of anticipated participants and spectators, and type of event, including the application of 
appropriate codes and ordinances. If fire watch and/or emergency medical personnel for the event are deemed 
necessary by the fire chief, he or shethey shall notify the applicant, and the applicant shall be responsible for 
securing fire watch/emergency medical personnel reasonably acceptable to the fire chief at the sole expense of 
the applicant and shall prepay the expenses of such protection. Only state-certified, licensed professional 
fire/emergency medical personnel shall be used for this purpose, preferably South Kitsap Fire and Rescue 
employees and equipment. 

*** 
 
  

Page 60 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 54 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 5.97 
TOW COMPANIES 
 
*** 
 
5.97.050 Towing and storage fees and charges. 
 

*** 

(5) Preparation of Bills. Every tow operator, his agent or employee, after towing a vehicle shall prepare a bill in 
duplicate, the original of which shall be given to the registered owner of such vehicle or his their authorized 
representative, and a copy retained by the operator at his their place of business for a period of at least one year and 
shall be exhibited to the Port Orchard police department upon demand. The bill shall contain the following: 

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of the tow truck company; 

(b) The name and address of the person calling for and engaging the tow truck; 

(c) License number and description of the vehicle towed, such as year, make, model and color; 

(d) The company number of the tow truck used; 

(e) Itemized and total amount charged for towing and storage, and time and place from which towing 
commenced and terminated.  

*** 
 
5.97.090 Procedure for application to tow. 
 

*** 

(2) Each application shall be considered within 30 days. Inspections shall be made and, upon the passing of the 
inspections and meeting all requirements, the chief of policepolice chief shall order the applicant to be placed at the 
bottom of the rotation towing list. 

*** 

5.97.100 Compliance. 
 

*** 

(2) If a tow company fails to respond or fails to respond within the response time requirements of this chapter to 
more than 10 percent of the tows requested by the Port Orchard police department or the city during any 30-day 
period, the chief of policepolice chief may request a report or other information from the towing company justifying 
those periods of unavailability. If a satisfactory justification is not supplied, the chief of policepolice chief may 
revoke or suspend the tow operator’s letter of approval for placement on the Port Orchard rotational towing list. 

*** 

  

Page 61 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 55 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 6.04 
GARBAGE AND REFUSE* 
 
*** 
 
6.04.040 Property owner responsibility. 
(1) At a minimum, the property owner and/or resident responsibilities shall include: 

*** 

(b) No garbage can shall be overloaded with earth, rocks, or heavy refuse beyond the point where one pickup 
man person can lift the can to the pickup truck, and in no event will it be overloaded so that the total weight 
exceeds 65 pounds. In the event any loaded garbage can weighs over 65 pounds, the customer may be charged 
for additional containers to the extent of the overweight. 

*** 

6.04.110 Penalty for refusal to remove rubbish. 
Any person who fails, neglects or refuses to remove any refuse from any premises owned, occupied or controlled by 
such person, either as owner, occupant, tenant or agent, or upon any street, avenue, alley, highway or public place 
abutting such premises, within seven calendar days after having been notified in writing to do so by the city building 
official, or any policeman police officer of the city, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  

*** 

  

Page 62 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 56 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 6.12 
TREES AND SHRUBS 
 
*** 
 
6.12.020 Notice to remove. 
Whenever in the opinion of the city engineer/superintendent of public works of the city, any trees, plants, shrubs or 
vegetation or parts thereof, should be removed or destroyed for any of the reasons set forth in POMC 6.12.010, he 
they shall cause a notice to be served on the owner of the property in the manner set forth in this section. Such notice 
shall describe the property involved and the condition to be corrected and shall require that the owner cause the 
condition to be corrected within such period of time as shall be designated in the notice. The notice shall further 
provide that if the condition is not corrected within the time specified, that after the termination of the period of time 
and on a date specified in such notice, a resolution will be presented to the city council to provide for the removal or 
destruction of the trees, plants, shrubs, vegetation or parts thereof, and the cost of the removal or destruction 
becomes a charge against the owner and a lien against the property.  

6.12.030 Service of notice. 
The notice provided for in POMC 6.12.020 shall be served by delivering the notice or a copy thereof to the owner 
personally or by leaving the same at his their place of residence with a person of suitable age or discretion, or, if the 
owner is not a resident of the city, by leaving the same with the agent handling the property or the tenant in 
possession thereof, or if there be no such agent or tenant, by posting a copy of the notice in a conspicuous place on 
the premises involved and mailing a copy thereof to the owner at his their last known place of residence, if any.  

*** 

  

Page 63 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 57 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Title 7 
ANIMALS 
 
Chapter 7.01 
DEFINITIONS 
 
*** 
 
7.01.010 Definitions. 
Within the provisions of this title, the following definitions shall apply: 

(1) “Animal” is a female, spayed female, male or neutered male animal, including any goat, horse, mule, cattle, 
swine or other domestic livestock used or raised on a farm, and any living vertebrate creature including reptiles or 
birds and excluding any marine mammals, fish or manperson. “Animal” also includes dogs or cats unless 
specifically excluded. 

*** 

(18) “Local law enforcement officer” means the police chief or his/hertheir designee. 

*** 

  

Page 64 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 58 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 7.04 
ANIMAL CONTROL 
 
*** 
 
7.04.060 Stray animal. 
 

*** 

It shall be the duty of each and every person who takes into his their possession or custody any stray animal not 
placed in his their custody by the person having lawful ownership, custody or control thereof at once to notify Port 
Orchard police department and/or the animal control authority giving a detailed description of the animal. In the 
event the rightful owner is unknown, and the person having possession or custody of the stray animal desires to 
assume ownership of the stray animal, they may do so after notifying the animal control authority and obtaining a 
license, if one is required for the type of animal found. If the owner of the animal is known or comes forward to 
identify themself as the owner of the animal, it is unlawful to refuse to release such animal to an officer of the Port 
Orchard police department, the animal control authority or rightful owner of the animal upon demand and without 
charge. Every effort must be made by the person finding the stray animal and the animal control authority to identify 
the rightful owner.  

*** 

 
  

Page 65 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 59 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 7.06 

DANGEROUS ANIMALS 

*** 

7.06.040 Registration of a dangerous animal. 
 

*** 

(9) Change of Ownership Prohibited. An owner of an animal declared dangerous shall not sell or otherwise transfer 
the ownership, custody or residence of the animal without first obtaining a written court order authorizing the 
transfer. An owner or keeper seeking court approval shall notify the animal control authority of his their intent. In 
determining whether to grant or deny approval, the court shall consider the following criteria: 

(a) The information set forth in POMC subsection (4) of this section; and 

(b) Any previous violations of this title by the proposed new owner; and 

(c) The facilities proposed to contain the animal at its new site; and 

(d) The characteristics of the neighborhood surrounding the proposed new owner’s premises, i.e., number of 
children, schools, day care facilities, etc.  

 
*** 
  

Page 66 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 60 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 7.08 

IMPOUNDING 

*** 

7.08.030 Animal control authority employees to be special police.  
Each employee of the animal control authority over the age of 21 years may be made a special police officer and 
charged with the duty of enforcing animal control ordinances of the city and statutes of the state as prescribed in 
POMC 7.08.020, but without pay from the city treasury. A special police commission shall be issued to such 
employees by, and at the discretion of the chief of policepolice chief of the city, and may be revoked at will by the 
chief of policepolice chief, and when so revoked such appointment shall cease and be null and void.  

*** 

  

Page 67 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 61 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 7.10 

EXOTIC ANIMALS 

*** 

7.10.070 Periodic inspection of premises.  
The director of the animal control authority, or any other officer authorized by himthem, may make routine periodic 
inspections of a licensee’s premises and records in order to determine the number, kind, weight and condition of 
exotic animals possessed by the licensee, and for purposes of enforcing the provisions of this chapter and the rules 
and regulations of the animal control authority.  

*** 

  

Page 68 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 62 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 7.12 

LICENSES 

*** 

7.12.040 Issuance of animal licenses.  
It shall be the duty of the city clerk, his or hertheir appointee or his or hertheir authorized agent to issue licenses to 
persons applying therefor, upon payment of the license fee, if required, as herein provided, and a tag for each dog or 
cat licensed. The license shall be dated and numbered and shall bear the name of Port Orchard, Washington, the 
name and address of the owner or keeper of the dog or cat licensed, the name of the dog or cat and a description of 
the dog or cat, including its age and sex. The tag shall bear the name of Port Orchard, Washington, a serial number 
corresponding with the name on the license. It shall be a violation of this chapter for any owner or keeper of a dog to 
not have a substantial collar on the dog and attached firmly thereto the license tag.  

*** 

  

Page 69 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 63 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Title 9 

PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND SAFETY 

*** 

Chapter 9.02 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

*** 

9.02.040 Costs of prosecution. 
Whenever anyone is convicted of any offense under a section of this title, or of any other city ordinance, in addition 
to the fine imposed, he or shethey shall pay the costs of prosecution. In default of such payments, he or shethey may 
be imprisoned until the fine is paid or worked out on the basis of $25.00 per each day of imprisonment.  

*** 

  

Page 70 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 64 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.09 

PUBLIC DEFENSE SERVICES 

*** 

9.09.100 Disposition of client complaints. 
The public defender shall provide a method to respond promptly to client complaints. Complaints should first be 
directed to the attorney, firm or agency which provided representation. If the client feels that he or she hasthey have 
not received an adequate response, the city shall designate a person or agency to evaluate the legitimacy of 
complaints and to follow up meritorious ones. The complaining client should be informed as to the disposition of his 
or hertheir complaint within one week. Nothing herein shall bar a client from also filing a complaint with the 
Washington State Bar Association.  

*** 

  

Page 71 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 65 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.14 

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES 

*** 

9.14.080 Drug-related loitering. 
 

*** 

(2) Among the circumstances, which may be considered in determining whether such a purpose is manifested are: 

*** 

(b) Such person is currently subject to an order prohibiting his or hertheir presence in a high drug activity 
geographic area; 

(c) Such person behaves in such a manner as to raise a reasonable suspicion that he or she isthey are about to 
engage in or is then engaged in unlawful drug-related activity, including, by way of example only, such person 
acting as a “lookout”; 

*** 

(g) Such person manifestly endeavors to conceal himself or herselfthemself or any object, which reasonably 
could be involved in unlawful drug-related activity; 

*** 

 
  

Page 72 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 66 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.20 

OFFENSES AGAINST PUBLIC MORALS 

*** 
 
9.20.020 Prostitution loitering. 
(1) A person is guilty of prostitution loitering if he or she remainsthey remain in a public place and intentionally 
solicits, induces, entices or procures another to commit prostitution. 

(2) Among the circumstances which may be considered in determining whether the actor intends such prohibited 
conduct are that he or shethey:  

(a) Repeatedly beckons to, stops or attempts to stop pedestrians or engages pedestrians in conversation; or  

(b) Repeatedly beckons to, stops or attempts to stop motor vehicle operators by hailing, waiving of arms or any 
other bodily gesture; or 

(c) Circles an area in a motor vehicle and repeatedly beckons to, contacts or attempts to stop pedestrians; or  

(d) Is a known prostitute or procurer; or  

(e) Inquires whether a potential patron, procurer or prostitute is a police officer, searches for articles that would 
identify a police officer, or requests the touching or exposing of genitals or female breasts to prove that a 
person is not a police officer. 

*** 

9.20.070 Lewd conduct. 
(1) A person is guilty of lewd conduct if he or shethey intentionally performs perform any lewd act in a public place 
or at a place and under circumstances where such act could be observed by the public. 

(2) The owner or operator of premises open to the public is guilty of lewd conduct if he or shethey knowingly 
permits permit lewd conduct in a public place under his or hertheir control. 

*** 

9.20.080 Public display of erotic material. 
(1) A person is guilty of public display of erotic material if he or shethey knowingly places place such material upon 
public display, or if he or shethey knowingly fails fail to take prompt action to remove such a display from property 
in his or hertheir possession after learning of its existence. 

*** 

  

Page 73 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 67 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.22 

ALARM SYSTEMS 

*** 

9.22.030 Charges for false alarms. 
 

(1) In the case of a false alarm, the owner of the business or residence upon which the alarm system is located shall 
pay to the city treasurer finance director the response fee and provide the report set forth in this section. 

(2) In the case of a false alarm response to a business or residence at which no other false alarm has occurred in the 
previous 12-month period, there will be no fee charged. Within seven calendar days after the false alarm the owner 
of the business or residence shall file a report with the chief of policepolice chief. The report shall be prepared on a 
form available from the police department. The report shall be completed in its entirety. The report, at a minimum, 
shall contain the cause of such false alarm, the corrective action taken, whether such alarm has been inspected by an 
authorized service technician, and such other information as the chief of policepolice chief may reasonably require 
to determine the cause of such false alarm and corrective action necessary. It is a civil infraction to fail to provide a 
complete report within the seven-day period or to take the corrective action within 10 days after the false alarm. 

*** 

(4) If the fees imposed in accordance with this section are not paid to the city treasurer finance director within 30 
days from the date of billing, a penalty of five percent shall be assessed for every 30 days payment is delinquent.  

*** 
 

  

Page 74 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 68 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.24 

OFFENSES AGAINST PUBLIC ORDER 

*** 

9.24.040 Disruption of school activities. 
(1) A person is guilty of disruption of school activities if he or she comesthey come into or remains remain in any 
school building, classroom, or upon any school ground, street, sidewalk or public way adjacent thereto, without 
lawful reason, and intentionally causes cause undue disruption of the activities of the school. 

*** 

9.24.050 Public disturbance noises – Nuisances. 
 

*** 

(3) Noises Exempt – Daytime Hours. The following noises shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter, 
during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, Sunday, 
New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Veterans Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas: 

*** 

(5) Enforcement. The chief of policepolice chief of the Port Orchard police department and all duly appointed and 
commissioned police officers are authorized and directed to administer and enforce the provisions of this chapter. 

*** 

9.24.060 Aggressively begging. 
 

*** 

(2) The following definitions apply to this section: 

*** 

(b) “Intimidate” means to engage in threatening conduct, which would make a reasonable person fearful of 
harm to his or hertheir person or property. 

*** 

  

Page 75 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 69 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.30 

NUISANCES 

*** 

9.30.010 Definitions.  
The words and phrases used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, shall have the following 
meanings: 

(1) “Abate” means to repair, remove, replace or destroy or otherwise remedy the condition in question by such 
means and in such a manner and to such an extent as the enforcement officer in his/hertheir judgement determines is 
necessary in the interest of the general health, safety and welfare of the community. 

*** 

 

  

Page 76 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 70 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.32 
OFFENSES BY AND AGAINST MINORS 

 
*** 

9.32.010 Definitions. 
*** 

(6) “Neglected child” means a child who is:  

*** 

(b) In a situation of clear and present danger of suffering substantial damage to his or hertheir mental or 
physical health; or  

(c) A runaway from his or hertheir home or a fugitive from his or hertheir parent or guardian.  

*** 

9.32.040 Contributing to the delinquency of a minor. 
(1) A person is guilty of contributing to the delinquency of a minor if, by act or omission, he or shethey knowingly 
causes cause or encourages encourage a minor to commit or otherwise contributes to a minor’s commission of a 
delinquent act. 

*** 

  

Page 77 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 71 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.46 

CITY-OWNED DOCKS AND PIERS 

*** 

9.46.050 Violation – Penalty. 
 

*** 

(2) It shall be the duty of the police department, under the direction of the chief of policepolice chief, to enforce the 
regulations set forth in this chapter.  

*** 

9.46.060 Authority to impound abandoned or derelict vessels. 
Whenever a vessel remains moored at a city facility for more than two consecutive days or is in violation of any 
other provision of this chapter, the chief of policepolice chief or designee may impound the vessel and any property 
associated with the vessel. Vessels moored in prohibited areas and unauthorized vessels moored in restricted areas 
are subject to immediate impoundment. In addition, the chief of policepolice chief or designee may impound any 
vessel moored at a city facility if the watercraft poses a risk to public health or safety. The chief of policepolice chief 
or designee, in his, her or their discretion, shall decide whether the vessel shall be impounded in place through use of 
a locking device or removed to an appropriate holding area. 

*** 

  

Page 78 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 72 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.55 

URINATING IN PUBLIC 

*** 

9.55.010 Urinating in public. 
A person is guilty of urinating in public if he they intentionally urinates urinate or defecates defecate in a public 
place, other than a washroom or toilet room, under circumstances where such act could be observed by any member 
of the public. “Public place,” as used in this section, is defined in POMC 9.20.010(6).  

*** 

  

Page 79 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 73 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 9.60 

PARK AND PUBLIC PROPERTY RULES 

*** 

9.60.060 Animals. 
(1) No animals shall be allowed in any city park other than dogs or cats. It is unlawful for any person to allow or 
permit any dog or cat to run at large at any park, or to permit any dog or cat with or without a leash, except service 
animals or dogs used by public law enforcement agencies and under control of a law enforcement officer, to enter 
any public beach, swimming or wading area, pond, fountain, stream or organized athletic areas thereon, except in 
areas specifically designated by the director for the exercising of dogs and cats. It is also unlawful for any person to 
permit any dog or cat to enter any area which the director or designee has posted as a place prohibited to animals. It 
is further unlawful for any person to permit any dog or cat, whether on or off leash, to disturb or harass any park 
users or other pets. Any person with a dog or cat in his their possession in any park shall be responsible for both the 
conduct of the animal and shall also be responsible to remove from the park any feces deposited by such animal. 

*** 

9.60.130 Camping prohibited. 
 

*** 

(2) A person is guilty of unlawful camping if he or she usesthey use park property or nonresidential public property, 
as defined in this chapter, as a temporary or permanent place of dwelling, lodging, residence, or living 
accommodation. 

*** 

9.60.135 Trespassing. 
It is unlawful for any person except an authorized city employee in the performance of his/hertheir duties, or other 
person duly authorized pursuant to law, to enter or go upon any area which has been designated and posted by the 
director or designee as a “No Admittance” or “No Trespassing” area, or to enter a park during any time during 
which the park is posted as being closed to the public.  

*** 

9.60.150 Noncompliance and ejection from park. 
 

*** 

(2) The director or designee or authorized agent may order the expulsion of any person from any or all parks for a 
period of one to seven days if he or she observes they observe such person: 

*** 

(4) Any order of expulsion under this section shall be in writing and shall be personally served or sent by certified 
mail to the person expelled at his or hertheir last known address. 

(5) Any person who enters a park during a period during which he or she hasthey have been expelled under this 
section is guilty of a misdemeanor.  

*** 

  

Page 80 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 74 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.12 

PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING* 

*** 

10.12.010 Definitions. 
 

*** 

(16) “Police or police officer” includes the police officers of a city, a town marshal, or the sheriff and his/hertheir 
deputies of a county, whichever is applicable, but when the term “sheriff” is used in this chapter, it shall only mean 
the sheriff. (WAC 308-330-157) 

*** 

10.12.120 Special passes. 
 

*** 

(4) The mayor or designee may issue special passes to other motorists when he/she determinesthey determine that 
there is a need for issuance. The pass will only be valid through the date listed on the pass, and on the city streets 
listed on the pass. 

*** 
 
10.12.240 Right-of-way for parking. 
(1) The driver of any vehicle who first begins driving or maneuvering his/hertheir vehicle into a vacant parking 
space shall have a prior right-of-way to park in such place, and it shall be unlawful for another driver to attempt to 
deprive him/herthem thereof by blocking his/hertheir access or otherwise. For the purpose of establishing right-of-
way in this section it shall be considered proper to back into any but a front-in angle parking space. (WAC 308-330-
460) 

*** 
 
10.12.500 Parking time limited on certain city parking lots. 
(1) The city parking lots are identified as follows: 

*** 

(e) Lot 5, which is all parking spaces on City Hall property (first floor entry). Parking in Lot 5 shall be for City 
Hall ADA parking patrons and official vehicles only. The police chief or his/hertheir designate may authorize 
deviations to this policy for Lot 5, if necessary. No monetary charge. 

*** 
  

Page 81 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 75 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.13 

PARKING OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES 

*** 

10.13.040 Nonconforming uses. 
 

*** 

(2) The nonconforming use may continue for a period of 120 days from the date of adoption of the ordinance 
codified in this chapter. At the expiration of the 120-day period, the owner shall at his/hertheir expense either 
remove the vehicles or otherwise bring them into compliance with the requirements and standards of this chapter.  

*** 

  

Page 82 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 76 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.14 

RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMIT SYSTEM 

*** 
 
10.14.080 Violation – Penalty. 
(1) Violation of this chapter shall constitute a class 2 civil infraction and be enforced under Chapter 7.80 RCW when 
one or more of the following has occurred: 

(a) It is unlawful and a violation of this chapter for a person to falsely represent himself themself as eligible for 
a parking permit or to furnish false information in an application therefor to the office of the city clerk or 
finance department. 

*** 

  

Page 83 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 77 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.30 

BICYCLE SAFETY AND HELMETS 

*** 

10.30.050 Bicycle, roller skates, scooter or skateboard rental, lease, or loan – Bicycle helmet required. 
 

*** 

(3) It is a defense to this section for a person wearing an unapproved helmet that the helmet was furnished in 
conjunction with his or hertheir lease of a bicycle, skateboard, roller skates, or scooter by a person engaged in the 
business of renting bicycles, skateboards, roller skates, or scooters, and that the helmet was fastened securely while 
bicycling, skateboarding, roller-skating, or riding a scooter. 

*** 

10.30.080 Enforcement/implementation. 
 

*** 

(3) In order to educate the public concerning the provisions of this chapter, after the effective date of the ordinance 
codified in this chapter, a violator may be issued a regular notice of civil infraction. However, if this is the first time 
a person has been issued a notice of civil infraction for a violation of POMC 10.30.030 and he or she appearsthey 
appear in person before the court and establishes establish that he or she hasthey have obtained a bicycle helmet in 
order to comply with said section, the court may dismiss the notice of civil infraction without costs.  

*** 

  

Page 84 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 78 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.60 

FIRE LANES 

*** 

10.60.060 Enforcement. 
It shall be the joint duty of the police chief and the fire authority and/or their authorized designee(s) to enforce this 
chapter as related POMC 10.60.030. It shall be the duty of the fire authority or his their authorized designee(s) to 
enforce the other sections of this chapter.  

*** 

10.60.080 Vehicle impound. 
In accordance with Chapter 10.72 POMC, the police department shall have the discretion to have any vehicle or 
object which is obstructing a fire lane towed at the owner’s expense. The registered owner of the vehicle shall be 
notified by the towing company at his/hertheir registered address.  

*** 

  

Page 85 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 79 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.66 

SNOW ROUTE 

*** 

10.66.040 Violation a misdemeanor. 
Any person parking or leaving his/hertheir vehicle on the snow route during periods of snow shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor.  

  

Page 86 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 80 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.72 

VEHICLE IMPOUNDMENT 

*** 

10.72.040 Redemption of impounded vehicles.  
Vehicles impounded by the city shall be redeemed only under the following circumstances: 

(1) Only the registered owner, a person authorized by the registered owner, or one who has purchased the vehicle 
from the registered owner, who produces proof of ownership or authorization and signs a receipt therefor, may 
redeem an impounded vehicle. A person redeeming a vehicle impounded pursuant to POMC 10.72.030 must, prior 
to redemption, establish that he or she hasthey have a valid driver’s license, is are in compliance with RCW 
46.30.020 and has have paid a $100.00 administrative fee to the Port Orchard municipal court. A vehicle impounded 
pursuant to POMC 10.72.030(4) through (9) can be released only pursuant to a written order from the court. 

*** 

  

Page 87 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 81 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.86 

COMMUTE TRIP REDUCTION 

*** 

10.86.020 Definitions. 
The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this chapter: 

(1) “Affected employee” means a full-time employee who begins his or hertheir regular work day at a single 
worksite covered by the commute trip reduction plan between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. (inclusive) on two or more 
weekdays per week for at least 12 continuous months, who is not an independent contractor. The following 
classifications of employees are excluded from the definition of affected employees: 

(a) Seasonal agricultural employees, including seasonal employees of processors of agricultural products; and 

(b) Employees of construction worksites when the expected duration of the construction is less than two years. 

*** 

(39) “Peak period trip” means any commute trip that delivers the employee to begin his or hertheir regular workday 
between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. (inclusive), Monday through Friday, except legal holidays. 

*** 

  

Page 88 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 82 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 10.88 

BOATING PROVISIONS 

*** 

10.88.020 Nonappearance after written promise. 
Any person violating his or hertheir written or signed promise to respond to a notice of an infraction or notice of 
violation under this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor regardless of the disposition of the charge upon which he or 
she wasthey were originally arrested or the disposition of the notice of infraction or notice of violation.  

*** 

  

Page 89 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 83 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 12.04 

EXCAVATIONS 

*** 

12.04.100 Failure to restore site. 
In excavating any public street, avenue or alley the surface material and earth removed must be kept separate and 
deposited in a manner that will occasion the least inconvenience to or interference with the public, with adequate 
provision for proper surface drainage and safe passage for the travelling public. Such surface or pavement, after 
refilling, shall be placed in as good condition and wear as it existed immediately prior to the excavations. If the 
permittee shall fail to complete such work and restore such street, alley, pavement or improvement before the 
expiration of the time fixed by the permit, the superintendent of public works shall, if he deemsthey deem it 
advisable, cause such work to be done by the city or any other in order to return such street, alley, pavement, 
improvement or place to its origin and proper condition as it existed immediately prior to such excavation; in such 
case the permittee shall be liable unto the city for any and all work performed and the city shall have the right to 
proceed against the performance bond filed by said permittee as herein provided. The city shall have a right of 
action against such permittee for all fees, expenses and costs paid out and incurred in connection with such work, 
not otherwise covered by the bond.  

*** 

12.04.130 Bond. 
The superintendent of public works shall have the right to elect, and to specify such election, on the permit to be 
issued that the refilling of all trenches made in a public street, alley or highway, and the repaving or resurfacing 
thereof, may be done by the city and any and all costs and expenses in connection therewith to be charged to and 
paid by the permittee and/or the sureties of his their performance bond. The bond shall be an amount not less than 
the anticipated cost of the work to be done.  

*** 

12.04.170 Notice of completion – Delay. 
Such permit shall be issued in triplicate and one copy thereof shall be forthwith filed with the chief of policepolice 
chief, and one copy with the clerk, who shall also be notified when the street, alley or other improvements shall be 
restored to their former condition as required by this chapter. Immediately upon the completion of the acts or work 
allowed under such permit, written notice thereof shall also be given to the superintendent of public works by the 
permittee.  

12.04.180 Bond required. 
The applicant for any such permit, prior to the issuance thereof as herein provided, shall execute and deliver unto the 
city and file with its clerk a performance bond in such amount as shall be fixed by the superintendent of public 
works with sureties to be approved by the clerk, which bond or any additional bond and/or separate liability 
insurance coverage shall also provide that the applicant will keep and save the city harmless from any and all claims, 
liabilities, judgments, loss, damages, and expenses arising from any acts which said permittee may do under the 
permit, or which may be done by any of his their agents, servants, representatives or employees in excavating or 
disturbing any such alley, street, pavement or improvement, or by reason of the violation of any of the provisions of 
this chapter; and to otherwise fully warrant the work and acts required hereunder for a period of two years.  

*** 

  

Page 90 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 84 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 12.08 

VACATIONS* 

*** 

12.08.020 Notice of hearing. 
 

*** 

(2) Elements of Notice When Petition Initiated by Abutters. The notice shall contain a statement that a petition has 
been filed to vacate the street or alley described in the notice, together with a statement of the time and place fixed 
by the city council for the hearing on the petition. The notice will state that the council shall hold a public hearing on 
the proposed vacation in the manner required by this chapter. In addition, the notice posted on the alley or street 
identified in the petition shall indicate that the easement for public travel in such area is proposed to be vacated, and 
that anyone objecting to the proposed vacation should attend the public hearing or submit written testimony to the 
city council indicating his or hertheir objection prior to such hearing. 

*** 

12.08.040 Limitations on vacation of streets abutting bodies of water – Procedure. 
 

*** 

(2) Before adopting a resolution vacating a street or alley under subsection (1)(b) of this section, the city shall: 

*** 

(c) Hold a public hearing on the proposed vacation in the manner required by this chapter, where in addition to 
the normal requirements for publishing notice, notice of the public hearing is posted conspicuously on the street 
or alley sought to be vacated, which posted notice indicates that the area is public access, it is proposed to be 
vacated, and that anyone objecting to the proposed vacation should attend the public hearing or send a letter to 
a particular official indicating his or hertheir objection; and 

*** 
 
  

Page 91 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 85 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 12.12 

SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE 

*** 

12.12.010 Definitions. 
The words and phrases used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, shall have the following 
meanings: 

(1) “Abate” means to repair, remove, replace or destroy or otherwise remedy the condition in question by such 
means and in such a manner and to such an extent as the enforcement officer in his their judgment determines is 
necessary in the interest of the general health, safety and welfare of the community. 

*** 

12.12.090 Appeal. 
Any person who has received a notice to abate a condition as determined by the code enforcement officer under 
POMC 12.12.060 may appeal the determination by filing written notice of appeal, within five days after the date of 
the notice to abate, with the city council. The notice shall set forth the grounds upon which the appeal is based. 
Upon receipt of notice of appeal, the city council shall hold a hearing not more than 10 days after the appeal was 
filed. It shall be the duty of the code enforcement officer to present proof relating to the grounds for the issuance of 
the notice to abate. If the city council finds that a violation exists based on the criteria of this chapter, it shall order 
that such violation be abated pursuant to this chapter and shall set forth reasonable time limits for such abatement 
not to exceed 45 days from the date of the hearing. If the commissioner finds that a violation does not exist under 
this chapter, he they shall cancel the notice to abate. Upon the filing of a proper notice of appeal, the time limits 
specified in POMC 12.12.060 shall be stayed during the pendency of the appeal.  

*** 

  

Page 92 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 86 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 12.24 

STREET USE PERMITS 

*** 

12.24.060 Processing of applications.  
 

*** 

2) The director may require additional information or material when he/she deemsthey deem appropriate, including, 
but not limited to: a map, photographs, construction plans, or a survey of the site; the director may inspect the 
premises, solicit comments from other abutters or the public, post or require posting of notice at the site inviting 
comment to the authorized department, or give notice of the submission of a street use permit application according 
to requirements for an administrative review in POMC Title 20 for notice of application procedure.  

(3) If an application for a street use permit requires a permit under any other chapter of the city’s code, but the other 
permit application has not been filed with the appropriate department, then the street use permit application shall be 
sent to the appropriate director/department for review. The director/department with the authority to review the 
associated permit applications shall send his/hertheir findings and comments to the director.  

*** 

12.24.200 Appeals.  
 

*** 

(2) An aggrieved person may appeal the director’s decision by filing an appeal statement with the city clerk within 
10 calendar days of the date of the decision. The request shall identify the decision for which review or 
reconsideration is requested, the objection(s) to the decision, and the specific alternative being proposed. The city 
clerk shall schedule the appeal with the city hearing examiner on their regular meeting calendar. The director may, 
at his/hertheir discretion, stay implementation of a decision pending the appeal. The hearing examiner shall follow 
the procedures in the permit processing procedures in the city’s land use regulatory code for the appeal. The hearing 
examiner’s decision on appeal shall be final.  

*** 

12.24.210 Definitions.  
 

*** 

“Director” shall mean the director of public works or his/hertheir designee. 

*** 

  

Page 93 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 87 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 13.04 

WATER AND SEWERS 

*** 
 
13.04.040 Sewer capital facility charge – Extension of sewer. 
 

*** 

(12) Requirement for Utility Extension Agreement. 

*** 

(b) The city may disconnect the utilities for failure of the applicant or his/hertheir successors or assigns, for 
violation of this chapter, or for violation of the terms and conditions of the UEA. 

*** 

13.04.050 Billing. 
(1) The water and/or sewer charges shall be billed by the city treasurer finance director bimonthly, on the last day of 
the bimonthly period, to the property owner. The charges and rates shall be due to the treasurerfinance director, who 
is authorized and empowered to collect and receipt for such payments, on the first day of the month following the 
receipt of services. 

*** 

(4) If the delinquent water and/or sewer charges remain unpaid over a period of 30 days after the due and payable 
date, service will be discontinued by turn-off. Service will not resume thereafter until the delinquent charges and 
penalties, together with a turn-off fee, have been paid in full. The turn-off fee shall be set forth in POMC 13.04.025. 

*** 

(b) In the event of a declared state of emergency, due to a natural disaster, weather or public health emergency, 
the city treasurer finance director is authorized to suspend disconnection of water and/or sewer services and to 
waive turn-off fees for the duration of the declared emergency. All other fees and charges shall continue to 
accrue. 

*** 

(6) In the event of a declared local state of emergency, due to a natural disaster, weather or public health emergency, 
the city treasurer finance director is authorized to suspend disconnection.  

*** 

13.04.056 Waiver authority. 
The finance director, or his/hertheir designee, at his/hertheir discretion, shall have the authority to adjust or waive 
utility late fees, penalties, and/or disconnection charges during a local, state or federally declared emergency; or, in 
the case of errors or other similar extenuating circumstances, as long as the utility account has not received a waiver 
in the previous 12 months. 

The finance director, or his/hertheir designee, at his/hertheir discretion, shall have the authority to make alternative 
utility payment arrangements during a local, state or federally declared emergency; or, in the case of errors or other 
similar extenuating circumstances, as long as the utility account has not received an alternative utility payment 
arrangement in the previous 12 months.  

Page 94 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 88 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

*** 

13.04.090 Discontinuation of sewer charges. 
Upon receipt of a written statement by the owner of a lot or parcel of property which has previously been connected 
to the public sewer system that there is no longer any building or structure for human occupation or use or for any 
business purpose located thereon and that the toilet and other facilities therein have been removed, disconnected and 
properly plugged from the public sewer system, and upon inspection by the superintendent or his their designated 
representative to ascertain that the statement is true, the sewer charges shall cease as of the first day of the following 
month.  

13.04.100 Cross connections. 
*** 

The city engineer, or his their designated representative with proper identification, shall have free access at 
reasonable hours of the day to all parts of the premises or within the building to which the water is supplied. Water 
service may be refused or terminated to any premises for failure to allow necessary inspections.  

*** 

  

Page 95 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 89 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 13.06 

STORM DRAINAGE UTILITY 

*** 
 
13.06.121 Waiver authority. 
The finance director, or his/hertheir designee, at his/hertheir discretion, shall have the authority to adjust or waive 
utility late fees, penalties, and/or disconnection charges during a local, state or federally declared emergency; or, in 
the case of errors or other similar extenuating circumstances, as long as the utility account has not received a waiver 
in the previous 12 months. 

The finance director, or his/hertheir designee, at his/hertheir discretion, shall have the authority to make alternative 
utility payment arrangements during a local, state or federally declared emergency; or, in the case of errors or other 
similar extenuating circumstances, as long as the utility account has not received an alternative utility payment 
arrangement in the previous 12 months.  

*** 

  

Page 96 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 90 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 13.08 

LATECOMER AGREEMENTS 

*** 

13.08.020 Definitions. 
The definitions set forth in this section shall apply throughout this chapter: 

*** 

(5) “Latecomer” means a property owner not a party to a duly executed and recorded latecomer agreement, owning 
property in the area benefitted by such agreement, who seeks to connect to the water and/or sewer facilities 
constructed under the latecomer agreement within the time frame established in the agreement, and who many only 
do so by making payment to the city of his/hertheir pro rata share of the cost of construction.  

*** 

  

Page 97 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 91 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 15.28 

FIRE HYDRANT INSTALLATION 

*** 

15.28.020 Definitions and abbreviations. 
 

*** 

(2) For the purpose of this chapter, the following words, terms, phrases and their derivations shall have the meaning 
given in this section unless the context otherwise indicates. Words used in the present tense include the future; 
words in the plural include the singular, and the singular the plural. The word “shall” is always mandatory. 

*** 

(h) “Water authority” means the city engineer, his their appointee or any other approved entity distributing 
water to fire hydrants within the city of Port Orchard.  

*** 

15.28.100 Hydrant obstructions. 
Hydrants shall not be obstructed by any structure or vegetation that would impair sight visibility of the hydrant 
within a distance of 150 feet in any direction of vehicular approach to the hydrant.  

*** 

  

Page 98 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 92 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 15.30 

ILLICIT DISCHARGE PREVENTION, DETECTION AND ELIMINATION 

*** 

15.30.100 Requirement to prevent, control, and reduce stormwater pollutants by the use of source control 
best management practices (BMPs).  
 

*** 

(4) BMP Descriptions. BMPs are described in the stormwater manuals adopted by the city. The stormwater manuals 
describe the types of regulated activities, the types of contaminants generated by each activity, the contaminant’s 
effect on water quality, the applicable required source control BMPs, and the available treatment BMPs. The 
stormwater manuals include information on design, maintenance, and allowable use of additional or alternative 
BMPs. Source control BMPs not included in the stormwater manuals may be approved by the director or designee if 
the director or designee determines that it provides equivalent effectiveness. The city may require additional source 
control BMPs and/or treatment BMPs or facilities if additional BMPs or facilities are deemed necessary by the 
director and/or his or hertheir designee to eliminate an ongoing release of pollution, in accordance with the 
stormwater manuals. 

*** 

15.30.130 Inspection and investigation.  
 

*** 

(3) Obstructing the Director. No person shall obstruct the director in the performance of his or hertheir official duties 
in the enforcement of this chapter, including but not limited to: 

(a) Intentional use of, or threat to use, force to obstruct a person he or she knowsthey know, or should 
reasonably know, is the director and is performing his or hertheir official duties in the enforcement of 
stormwater system regulations; or 

(b) Acting in a manner that he or she knowsthey know, or should reasonably know, will interfere with or 
obstruct a person known to be, or who should reasonably be known to be, responsible for the enforcement of 
stormwater system regulations; or 

(c) Refusing to identify himself or herselfthemself and give his or hertheir current address to the director for the 
enforcement of this chapter pursuant to an investigation of a violation upon request by the director. 

*** 

15.30.160 Records retention.  
If the discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner or 
operator of such establishment shall retain an on-site written record of the discharge and the actions taken to prevent 
its occurrence. Such records shall be kept and maintained on a permanent basis from the effective date of the 
ordinance codified in this chapter. The record shall include books, documents, memoranda, reports, and 
correspondence relating to any operation, maintenance, monitoring, sampling, and chemical analysis associated with 
the discharge and all records which pertain to matters which are the subject of any enforcement or litigation 
activities brought by the director pursuant to this chapter. Copies of any or all records shall be provided to the 
director upon his their request.  

***  

Page 99 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 93 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Title 20 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

Chapter 20.02 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

*** 

20.02.060 Violations – Enforcement – Penalties. 
 

*** 

(2) Enforcement. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the director, or his/hertheir duly authorized designee, to enforce this title. The director 
may call upon the code enforcement officer, building official, police, fire, health, public works or other 
appropriate city departments to assist in enforcement. 

*** 

  

Page 100 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 94 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.04 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 

*** 

20.04.060 Agenda process. 
 

*** 

(5) The director shall provide the recommended final comprehensive plan amendment process agenda of project-
specific amendments and city-wide comprehensive plan amendments, along with a brief description of each 
suggested plan amendment, to the city council for review and consideration. The city council, after considering the 
community development director’s recommended final comprehensive plan amendment agenda, shall adopt the final 
comprehensive plan amendment agenda for the current year plan amendment cycle no later than April 30th of each 
year. 

*** 

  

Page 101 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 95 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.12  
DEFINITIONS 

*** 
 
20.12.010 Definitions. 
*** 

“Aggrieved person” means: 

*** 

(2) Another person aggrieved or adversely affected by the land use decision, or who would be aggrieved or 
adversely affected by a reversal or modification of the land use decision. A person is aggrieved or adversely affected 
within the meaning of this section only when all of the following conditions are present: 

*** 

(d) The petitioner has exhausted his or hertheir administrative remedies to the extent required by law. 

*** 

“Common ownership” means ownership by the same person, corporation, firm, entity, partnership or unincorporated 
association, or ownership by different corporations, firms, partnerships, entities or unincorporated associations, in 
which a stockbroker, partner or associate, or a member of his their family owns an interest in each corporation, firm, 
partnership, entity or unincorporated association. 

*** 

“Dedication” means the deliberate appropriation of land or rights in land by its owner for any general and public 
use, reserving to himself or herselfthemself no other rights than such as are compatible with the full exercise and 
enjoyment of the public use to which the property has been devoted. The intention to dedicate shall be evidenced by 
deed, or other instrument of conveyance, or by dedication on a duly filed and recorded plat (or short plat). 
Dedications by short plat may require city council acceptance. 

*** 

“Director” or “development director” means the community development director of the city of Port Orchard or his 
or hertheir duly authorized designee, or as otherwise indicated in this title. 

 
*** 
 
  

Page 102 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 96 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.22 

PERMITTING AND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL – PERMIT PROCESS TYPES  

*** 
 
20.22.050 Type III (hearing examiner decision, judicial appeal). 
 

*** 

(4) Review of Application. 

*** 

(c) If a director recommendation is not available to the hearing examiner as provided in this section, the hearing 
examiner may reschedule or continue the hearing upon his or hertheir own motion or upon the motion of a 
party, or the hearing examiner may decide the matter without the recommendation. 

*** 

(5) Public Hearing. A Type III action requires an open record hearing before the hearing examiner. 

*** 

(e) The public hearing shall be conducted pursuant to the hearing examiner’s adopted rules and procedures and 
shall be recorded on audio or audiovisual tape. The hearing examiner may remand an application to staff at his 
or hertheir discretion to allow staff to administratively address an issue or irregularity with the application or 
the processing thereof. 

*** 

  

Page 103 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 97 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.24 

PERMITTING AND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL – APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

*** 
 
20.24.020 Master permit required. 
 

*** 

(2) The director shall establish and may revise at his/hertheir discretion submittal requirements for the master permit 
application. At a minimum, the master permit application shall require the following: 

*** 
 
20.24.030 Submission requirements. 
(1) The director shall establish and may revise at his/hertheir discretion submittal requirements for each type of land 
use and development permit application required under this title. The submittal requirements shall be in the form of 
a counter-complete checklist. The requirements shall be made available to the public in a form that clearly explains 
what material must be submitted for an application to be considered complete, including type, size, detail, and 
number of copies for each item. 

*** 

  

Page 104 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 98 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.25  

PERMITTING AND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL – PUBLIC NOTICE 

*** 

20.25.040 Optional public notice of application.  
(1) The director, in his or hertheir discretion, may: 

*** 
  

Page 105 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 99 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.28 

VARIANCES 

*** 
 
20.28.160 Administration of quasi-judicial variances. 
The planning community development director is authorized and directed to administer the provisions of this chapter 
relating to quasi-judicial variances. The authority to hold an open record hearing and provide a final decision on 
variances is granted to the hearing examiner and the city council has the authority to make a decision on appeal after 
a closed record hearing.  

*** 

  

Page 106 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 100 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.50 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

*** 

20.50.020 Administration and procedure.  
(1) The planning community development director is authorized and directed to administer the provisions of this 
chapter relating to conditional use permits.  

*** 

20.50.040 Site plan.  
 

*** 

(3) Adjustments to the site plan may be approved after conditional use permit approval as follows: 

(a) Minor Adjustments. Minor adjustments to the site plan may be made and approved by the planning 
community development director or designee. Minor adjustments are those which may affect the precise 
dimensions or siting of buildings, but which do not affect the basic character or arrangement of buildings 
approved, nor the development coverage of the development or the open space requirements. Such dimensional 
adjustments shall not vary more than 10 percent from the original site plan. Minor adjustments may include 
revisions to landscaping provided that the landscaping plan complies with the landscape code and the permit 
conditions of approval. 

(b) Major Adjustments. Major adjustments are those adjustments, other than minor adjustments, when 
determined by the planning community development director or designee, that substantially change the basic 
design, coverage, open space or other requirements of the conditional use permit, and/or would result in 
noncompliance with one or more permit conditions of approval. When the planning community development 
director or designee determines a change constitutes a major adjustment, no building or other permit shall be 
issued for the use without prior review and approval of such adjustment pursuant to this section. 

The submittal requirements and review and approval process for a major adjustment to the site plan of an 
approved conditional use permit shall be substantially the same as that required for the original conditional use 
permit. An application for major adjustment meeting the information requirements of POMC 20.50.030 shall be 
submitted. At the discretion of the planning community development director or designee, the applicant may be 
able to resubmit or incorporate by reference some portions of the original conditional use permit submittal as 
part of the application for a major adjustment; however, the application for major adjustment shall be subject to 
the same submittal, fees, processing, and findings of fact requirements of this chapter for conditional use 
permits, as applicable.  

*** 
 
20.50.050 Criteria for approval. 
 
*** 
 
(3) Denial. The director may recommend conditioning or denial of the conditional use permit application based on 
RCW 43.21C.060 (SEPA).1 In addition, the hearing examiner may deny the conditional use permit if he/she 

Page 107 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 101 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

determinesthey determine that the proposed use does not meet the criteria in this section and/or is materially 
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property in the zone or vicinity in which the property is located. 
 
*** 
 
20.50.080 Expiration, extensions and permit implementation. 
(1) A conditional use permit shall become null and void three years after the effective date, unless one of the 
following has occurred:  

*** 

(c) An extension has been granted by the planning community development director. Such extension shall be 
for a maximum of one year, and no extension may be granted which would extend the validity of the permit 
more than five years beyond the effective date of the permit. No extension will be granted if it necessitates 
modification of any condition of approval; or  

*** 

  

Page 108 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 102 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.54 

NONCONFORMITIES* 

*** 

20.54.030 Establishing a legal nonconforming building type, lot, use or structure for the record. 
(1) Permit Required. A landowner may establish that he/she hasthey have a legal nonconforming building type, use 
or structure for the record by obtaining the permit described in POMC 20.54.080. This process is optional in 
situations other than code enforcement actions (in which the landowner may choose to utilize the process in order to 
establish the legality of the nonconforming building type, use or structure). 

*** 

20.54.040 Establishing a legal nonconforming lot for the record. 
(1) Permit Required. A landowner may establish that he/she hasthey have a legal nonconforming lot for the record 
by obtaining the permit described in POMC 20.54.080 through 20.54.140. This process is optional in situations 
other than code enforcement actions. 

*** 

  

Page 109 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 103 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.58 

TEMPORARY USES 

*** 

20.58.120 Temporary uses requiring permits. 
The following categories identify temporary uses that are permitted uses subject to securing a permit from the 
planning community development director: 

*** 

  

Page 110 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 104 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.60 

HOME BUSINESSES 

*** 

20.60.030 Business license required.  
No person shall operate or maintain a home business without having a license to do so issued by the city treasurer 
finance director in accordance with the provisions of this chapter and with the provisions of Chapter 5.12 POMC. 
The specific provisions of this chapter shall control over any conflicting provisions of Chapter 5.12 POMC.  

*** 

  

Page 111 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 105 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.70 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES 

*** 
 
20.70.040 Permits required. 
 

*** 

(2) Any application submitted pursuant to this chapter shall be reviewed and evaluated by the director for all 
projects located on public or private property. The director of public works or his/hertheir designee shall review all 
proposed wireless communication facilities that are totally within city right-of-way. If a project is both on private or 
public property and city right-of-way, the community development director shall review the application. Regardless 
of whether the community development director or the director of public works is reviewing the application, all 
applications will be reviewed and evaluated pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. 

*** 

(8) The selection of the third-party expert may be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the city, or at the 
discretion of the city, with a provision for the applicant and beneficially interested parties to comment on the 
proposed expert and review his/hertheir qualifications. The third-party expert review is intended to address 
interference and public safety issues and be a site-specific review of engineering and technical aspects of the 
proposed wireless communication facilities and/or a review of the applicant’s methodology and equipment used, and 
is not intended to be a subjective review of the site which was selected by an applicant. Based on the results of the 
expert review, the city may require changes to the application. The expert review shall address the following: 

*** 

  

Page 112 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 106 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.72 

SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES 

*** 

20.72.060 Small wireless facility application requirements. 
The following information shall be provided by all applicants for a small wireless permit: 

*** 

(6) A professional engineer licensed by the state of Washington shall certify in writing, over his or hertheir seal, that 
construction plans of the small wireless facilities and structure or pole and foundation are designed to reasonably 
withstand wind and seismic loads as required by applicable codes. 

*** 

(10) Such other information as the director, in his/hertheir reasonable discretion, shall deem appropriate to 
effectively evaluate the application based on technical, engineering and aesthetic considerations.  

*** 
 

  

Page 113 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 107 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.80 

SUBDIVISIONS – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

*** 

20.80.050 Exemptions. 
Pursuant to RCW 58.17.040, the following activities are not considered short plats or plats and the provisions of this 
subtitle shall not apply: 

*** 

(8) Portions of property deeded to the city for the limited purpose of providing a right-of-way and/or utility facilities, 
such as but not limited to the installation of linear utility facilities, such as electric power lines, telephone lines, 
water supply lines, sewer service lines, cable lines or other utility facilities of a similar or related nature; or a pump 
house, reservoir or well site; provided the remaining property is not reduced in size below the minimum square 
footage required by applicable zoning, that no conflict is created with any applicable design standards for the 
property, and that written approval from the planning community development director is received; 

*** 

20.80.060 Document forms. 
 

*** 

(2) Dedication. Roads not dedicated to the public must be clearly marked on the face of the plat. Any dedication, 
donation or grant as shown on the face of the plat shall be considered to all intents and purposes as a quitclaim deed 
to the said donor or donees, grantee or grantees, for his, her or their use for the purpose intended by the grantors or 
donors. 

*** 

  

Page 114 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 108 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.82 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

*** 

20.82.040 Violations, enforcement, and penalties. 
 

*** 

(6) No building permit, septic tank permit, or other development permit shall be issued for any lot, tract, or parcel of 
land divided in violation of this subtitle unless the authority authorized to issue such permit finds that the public 
interest will not be adversely affected thereby. The prohibition contained in this section shall not apply to an 
innocent purchaser for value without actual notice. All purchasers’ or transferees’ property shall comply with 
provisions of this subtitle and each purchaser or transferee may recover his or hertheir damages from any person, 
firm, corporation, or agent selling or transferring land in violation of this subtitle, including any amount reasonably 
spent as a result of inability to obtain any development permit and spent to conform to the requirements of this 
subtitle as well as cost of investigation, suit, and reasonable attorneys’ fees occasioned thereby. Such purchaser or 
transferee may, as an alternative to conforming their property to these requirements, rescind the sale, or transfer and 
recover costs of investigation, suit, and reasonable attorneys’ fees occasioned thereby. 

*** 

  

Page 115 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 109 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.124 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS – PARKING AND CIRCULATION 

*** 

20.124.080 Transit and rideshare provisions. 
To support the use of ridesharing as an alternative mode of transportation that will aid the city in its efforts to reduce 
air pollution, traffic congestion, and fossil fuel consumption, the following shall apply: 

*** 

(2) When one or more scheduled transit routes provide service within 660 feet of the employment site and there is 
designated pedestrian access, the planning community development director may reduce the number of required off-
street parking spaces. 

*** 

  

Page 116 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 110 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.132 

SIGN CODE 

*** 

20.132.070 Sign variances. 
 

*** 

(6) First Amendment Exception/Variance. Where an applicant can demonstrate that the strict application of the 
regulations in this chapter would violate his/hertheir First Amendment rights, the city may grant a variance that does 
not conform to all of the variance criteria in subsection (5) of this section. However, the applicant shall submit an 
application which provides his/hertheir response to each of the variance criteria in subsection (5) of this section. The 
city need not make findings that all of the variance criteria have been satisfied, but the city shall grant such variance 
only to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the applicant’s First Amendment rights. If a First Amendment 
exception is granted, it shall be treated as an approval of a variance for purposes of this chapter. 

*** 

  

Page 117 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 111 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.140  

LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY 

*** 

20.140.050 Administration. 
 

*** 

(3) As a condition of any permit issued for activity covered by this chapter, the property owner shall be required to 
consent to entry upon the land by the director or his/hertheir designee at all reasonable times to inspect the same or 
to perform any duty imposed upon the director by this chapter. If the land is occupied, the director shall first present 
proper credentials and request entry. If the land is unoccupied, a reasonable effort shall be made to locate the owner 
or other persons at the site who are in apparent charge or control of the land and demand entry. If no person is 
located, the director may enter said property and shall, with due diligence, make attempts to notify the owner, 
occupant, or other person having charge within a reasonable amount of time of the entry.  

*** 

20.140.140 Standards – Grading.  
 

*** 

(2) The applicant shall, at all times, protect adjacent private properties and public rights-of-way or easements from 
damage occurring during grading operations. The applicant shall restore public improvements damaged by his/her 
their operations.  

*** 

  

Page 118 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 112 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.150 

STORMWATER DRAINAGE 

*** 

20.150.010 Purpose and objectives – Liability. 
 

*** 

20.150.020 Definitions. 
 

*** 

(14) “P” 

*** 

“Professional engineer” shall mean a person who, by reason of his or hertheir special knowledge of the 
mathematical and physical sciences and the principles and methods of engineering analysis and design, acquired by 
professional education and practical experience, is qualified to practice engineering as attested by his or hertheir 
legal registration as a professional engineer in the state of Washington. 

“Project engineer” shall mean the professional engineer responsible for the design of the project, who will affix 
his/hertheir seal on the project drainage plans and drainage analysis. The project engineer shall be licensed in the 
state of Washington and qualified by experience or examination. 

*** 

  

Page 119 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 113 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.160 

STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) 

*** 

20.160.190 Public notice. 
 

*** 

(5) The city may require an applicant to complete the public notice requirements for the applicant’s proposal at 
his/hertheir expense.  

*** 

20.160.240 Appeals.  
The city establishes the following administrative appeal procedures under RCW 43.21C.075 and WAC 197-110-
680:  

*** 

(10) Content of Appeal. Every appeal must be in writing, and must include the following: 

*** 

(c) A statement describing the appellant’s standing, or why the appellant believes that he or she isthey are 
aggrieved by the decision appealed from; 

*** 

(12) Hearing Examiner Appeals.  

*** 

(d) Appeals of Hearing Examiner’s Decision. The hearing examiner’s decision on the timeliness of an appeal 
within his/hertheir jurisdiction, and any other appeals allowed under this subsection within his/hertheir 
jurisdiction shall be the final decision of the city. The hearing examiner’s decision shall state that any appeal of 
the final decision shall be filed in Kitsap County superior court (pursuant to Chapter 36.70C RCW), or the 
shorelines hearings board, if applicable.  

*** 

 
  

Page 120 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 114 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.162 

CRITICAL AREAS REGULATIONS 

*** 
 
20.162.020 Administration – Generally. 
(1) The director, or his/hertheir authorized designee, shall administer and interpret the provisions of this chapter, 
except as otherwise specifically provided. The director shall determine whether building, development, platting, or 
alteration of vegetation, trees, or habitat is subject to this chapter. The director may also consult with other city 
departments and state and federal agencies as necessary to obtain additional technical and environmental review 
assistance. The director is authorized to adopt such administrative rules and regulations as are necessary and 
appropriate to implement the provisions of this chapter. 

*** 

20.162.094 Qualifications of professionals. 
Any special report prepared by a professional as described in this article shall include his or hertheir resume, or 
other list of qualifications, to aid the department in assessing these qualifications.  

*** 

20.162.096 Wetland report/wetland mitigation plan. 
 

*** 

(3) Wetland Mitigation Report. 

(f) Waiver. The department may waive portions of this report if, in his or hertheir opinion, there is adequate 
information available on the site to determine its impacts and appropriate measures. 

*** 

  

Page 121 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 115 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.172 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS FACILITY WARNING SYSTEM 

*** 

20.172.060 Enforcement. 
The fire chief of the fire authority or his their designee shall enforce this chapter.  

*** 

  

Page 122 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 116 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.180 

CONCURRENCY 

*** 

20.180.002 Authority. 
The director of public works or his/hertheir designee shall be responsible for implementing and enforcing this 
chapter.  

*** 

20.180.018 Denial letter. 
 

*** 

(3) For Sewer. The city may include the options available to the applicant such as a temporary septic system (if 
allowed by law) which the applicant would agree in a development agreement to install and remove at his/hertheir 
own cost when sewer capacity became available. 

*** 

20.180.021 Appeals. 
 

*** 

(2) Upon receipt of an appeal of the denial letter, the director shall handle the appeal as follows: 

*** 

(b) Within 14 days after the meeting, the director shall issue a written decision, which will list all of the 
materials he or shethey considered in making the decision. The director’s decision shall either affirm, modify or 
reverse the denial letter. If the denial letter is reversed, the director shall identify the mitigation that the 
applicant proposes to provide at the applicant’s cost, which will be imposed on the application approval in 
order to achieve concurrency. 

*** 

  

Page 123 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 117 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.182 

IMPACT FEES 

*** 

20.182.110 Time of payment of impact fees. 
 

*** 

(4) Deferral of Payment of Impact Fees. Payment of impact fees for single-family attached or single-family detached 
residential dwelling units may be deferred only until issuance of certificate of occupancy or equivalent certification, 
pursuant to RCW 82.02.050(3), subject to the following provisions: 

(a) Each applicant, in accordance with his or hertheir contractor registration number or other unique 
identification number, is entitled to annually receive deferrals under this section for the first 20 single-family 
residential construction building permits per city. Any single-family residential building construction permits 
beyond 20 for the same applicant are subject to payment of impact fees at the time of building permit issuance 
as required by subsection (1) of this section. 

*** 

(h) The city may withhold a certificate of occupancy or equivalent certification until the impact fees are paid in 
full. Upon receipt of final payment of all deferred impact fees for a property, and upon payment of all 
applicable administration fees in the city’s fee resolution, the city must execute a release of deferred impact fee 
lien for the property. The property owner at the time of the release, at his or hertheir expense, is responsible for 
recording the lien release. 

*** 

  

Page 124 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 118 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.200 

CITY CONSTRUCTION CODE 

*** 

20.200.022 Penalties and other relief. 
 

*** 

(4) Other Legal or Equitable Relief. Notwithstanding the existence or use of any other remedy, the director or 
his/hertheir designee may seek legal or equitable relief to enjoin any acts or practices or abate any conditions which 
constitute or will constitute a violation of the provisions of this chapter; 

*** 

  

Page 125 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 119 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.206 

FIRE SAFETY – EXISTING BUILDINGS 

*** 

20.206.030 Fire and life safety requirements for existing multifamily residential buildings.  
 

*** 

(6) Annual Fire Inspection. All Level I, II, and III buildings shall be inspected annually by the chief or his/hertheir 
designee for compliance with the requirements of this section. 

(7) Fire Safety Evaluation. In addition to the annual fire inspections, Level III buildings shall be evaluated for fire 
safety utilizing the fire safety matrix. Each Level III building shall achieve a minimum of 80 points on the matrix 
within 10 years of the date the ordinance codified in this chapter is adopted. A comprehensive review of all Level III 
building evaluations will be conducted by the fire safety advisory committee. During that review the chief shall 
determine if Level III buildings not meeting the 80 points criteria are a distinct hazard to life or property. If the chief 
determines a building to be a distinct hazard, he or shethey shall take action pursuant to the dangerous buildings 
code in this title to have the building repaired, rehabilitated, demolished or removed. 

*** 
 
  

Page 126 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 120 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Chapter 20.212 

DANGEROUS AND UNFIT DWELLINGS, BUILDINGS, AND STRUCTURES 

*** 

20.212.020 Definitions. 
For the purposes of this chapter, certain words shall have the meanings as defined in this section. Words, terms, or 
phrases not defined in this section shall be as defined in the building code, other codes of this jurisdiction, or their 
commonly accepted meanings. Words used in the singular include the plural. Words in the masculine gender include 
the feminine and in the feminine gender include the masculine and all other gender identities. 

 

*** 

(5) “Director” shall mean the director of the department of community development or public works and his/hertheir 
designee(s). 

*** 

20.212.040 Criteria for unfit or dangerous buildings or structures. 
The director may determine that a building or structure is dangerous or unfit for occupancy or other use if he/she 
findsthey find that conditions exist in such building or structure that are dangerous or injurious to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the occupants of such structure, the occupants of neighboring structures, or other residents of the city, 
or is otherwise not safe or fit for the use for which it was designed or intended, or for other appropriate and legal 
use. Such conditions may include the following, without limitations: 

*** 
 
20.212.050 Inspection and complaint. 
If, after a preliminary investigation of any dwelling, building, structure, or premises, the director finds that it is 
dangerous or unfit for human habitation, occupancy, or other appropriate and legal use, he or shethey shall issue a 
complaint stating in what respects such dwelling, building, structure, or premises is dangerous or unfit. Such 
complaint shall contain a notice that a hearing will be held before the director, at a place therein fixed, not less than 
10 days nor more than 30 days after the serving of the complaint; and that all parties in interest shall be given the 
right to file an answer to the complaint, to appear in person, or otherwise, and to give testimony at the time and place 
in the complaint. The rules of evidence prevailing in courts of law or equity shall not be controlling in hearings 
before the director. 

*** 

20.212.060 Findings and order. 
If the director determines that the dwelling, building, structure, or premises is dangerous or unfit for human 
habitation, occupancy, or use, in accordance with this chapter, he/shethey shall state in writing his/hertheir findings 
of fact in support of such determination, and shall issue an order that: (1) requires the owner or party in interest, 
within the time specified in the order, to repair, alter, or improve such dwelling, building, structure, or premises, or 
otherwise remove or correct the violating condition(s), so as to eliminate the threat and/or nuisance to the occupants 
and/or community and render it fit for human habitation, occupancy, or other appropriate or legal use, and/or to 
vacate and close the dwelling, building, structure, or premises, if such course of action is deemed proper on the basis 
of the standards set forth in POMC 20.212.040; or (2) requires the owner or party in interest, within the time 
specified in the order, to remove or demolish such dwelling, building, structure, or premises, if this course of action 
is deemed proper on the basis of those standards. 

*** 

Page 127 of 596



  

Exhibit A - Page 121 of 121 

10695186.1 - 366922 - 0001 

20.212.080 Appeals. 
 

*** 

(3) The city shall establish rules of procedure adequate to assure a prompt and thorough review of matters submitted 
to the hearing officer, including but not limited to the following: 

(a) The hearing officer must resolve all matters submitted to him/herthem within 60 days from the date of 
filing; 

*** 

20.212.100 Requests for reconsideration, modification, or extension. 

*** 

(3) Any owner or responsible party who has appealed to the hearing officer must petition the hearing officer for any 
subsequent modification of the time, method, materials, or other provisions of the order issued by the hearing 
officer, unless the hearing officer has delegated such authority to the director. If such authority has been delegated, 
the director, at his or hertheir discretion, may consult with or defer any such decision back to the hearing officer. 

*** 

20.212.110 Emergency measures. 
Whenever the director finds that any building, structure, premises, or portion thereof is an imminent hazard to the 
public, the building occupants, or surrounding buildings or properties, he/shethey may, without notice and order, 
take immediate action to vacate, stabilize, secure from entry, or otherwise protect the occupants, public, and 
surrounding properties or buildings from the hazard. Such action may include closing and vacating sidewalks, 
streets, and surrounding properties and buildings. The director shall, within five working days following completion 
of such work or action, issue a complaint pursuant to this chapter. Any city funds spent in responding to the 
emergency shall be included in costs recoverable under this chapter. 

*** 
 
20.212.130 Recovery of expenses. 
 

*** 

(3) Upon certification to him/herthem by the director of the assessment amount being due and owing, the county 
treasurer shall enter the amount of such assessment upon the tax rolls against the property for the current year and 
the same shall become a part of the general taxes for that year to be collected at the same time and with interest at 
such rates and in such manner as provided for in RCW 84.56.020 for delinquent taxes, and when collected to be 
deposited to the credit of the general fund of the city.  

*** 

Page 128 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
   Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Accepting  Prepared by: Tony Lang 
 2023-25 Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety   Public Works Director 
 Program Funding as Managed by the     Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 Washington State Department of  Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 
 Transportation for the Tremont    
 Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2    
 and 3 Development/Design Project   

Summary:  The City of Port Orchard Public Works Department applied for 2023-25 Pedestrian & Bicycle 
Safety Program funding through the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for the 
Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 – Development/Design Project (the Project).  
On May 19, 2023, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department was notified by WSDOT that the 
Project was selected to receive $732,000 in State funding for Preliminary Engineering from WSDOT 
through the 2023-25 Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Program.  City acceptance of this state funding does not 
require a local match.  By this action, the Council would authorize the acceptance of the grant funding 
from WSDOT for the Project. 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8 – Transportation 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution accepting the 2023-25 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Program State funding and authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents 
necessary to effectuate this award with WSDOT for the Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, 
Phase 2 & 3 – Development/Design Project. 

Motion for Consideration: I move that the City Council adopt a Resolution, accepting the 2023-25 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Program State funding and authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents 
necessary to effectuate this award with WSDOT for the Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, 
Phase 2 & 3 – Development/Design Project. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no local match required for eligible items. 

Alternative: Do not accept Grant and provide alternative direction. 

Attachment: Resolution, WSDOT Award Letter 

 

Page 129 of 596



 

RESOLUTION NO.____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING  
2023-25 PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE SAFETY PROGRAM STATE FUNDING, AS 
MANAGED BY THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(WSDOT). 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department applied for 2023-25 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Program funding through the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) for the Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 – 
Development/Design Project (the Project); and     

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2023, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department was 
notified by WSDOT that the Project was selected to receive $732,000 in State funding for 
Preliminary Engineering from WSDOT through the 2023-25 Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, City acceptance of this state funding does not require a local match; and 

WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of 
the City to accept the grant funding from WSDOT for the Project; now, therefore,  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

THAT:  The City Council hereby accepts the State 2023-25 Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety 
 Program Grant Funding from Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) 
 for the Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 - 
 Development/Design, described in the WSDOT award letter, attached hereto as Exhibit 
 A and incorporated herein by this reference.  The Mayor is authorized to execute all 
 documents necessary to effectuate this acceptance. 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
 hereon. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June, 2023. 

 
 

              
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST:       

        
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk         

Page 130 of 596



May 19, 2023 

Mr. Tony Lang 
Public Works Director 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 

RE: Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 - Development/Design 
2023-25 Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Program 
State Funding 

Dear Mr. Lang: 

WSDOT is pleased to advise you that the above-mentioned project was selected to receive funding through 
the Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety program. The state funding is limited as shown below: 

Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 - Development/Design $732,000 
Scope: See attached project summary. 

In order to meet state requirements, the following are required: 
 Project expenditures incurred before receiving notice from Local Programs of state fund 

authorization are not eligible for reimbursement.
 Please refer to the Local Programs webpage for detailed authorization information, including:

(https://wsdot.wa.gov/business-wsdot/support-local-programs)
 Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) manual for detailed requirements.
 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Statewide Transportation Improvement 

Program (STIP) amendments, as applicable.
 Funding and billing forms; and
 Local Project Report required to be completed by the end of June and December each year. 

To access the database, you will need an account name and password. Your account name is 
XX and your password is XX. The password is case sensitive. 

As a reminder, Local Programs encourages all agencies to submit monthly progress billings to ensure timely 
reimbursement of eligible expenditures. 

For assistance, please contact your Region Local Programs Engineer, John Ho, at (564) 669-1018 or 
John.Ho@wsdot.wa.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Jay Drye, PE 
Director 
Local Programs 

cc: Kelly McGourty, Transportation Director, PSRC 
John Ho, Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer

Page 131 of 596

https://wsdot.wa.gov/business-wsdot/support-local-programs
mailto:John.Ho@wsdot.wa.gov


Page 1 of 2 

Project Summary 

Program: Pedestrian and Bicycle Program 
Date: May 2023 
Agency: Port Orchard 
Project Title: Tremont Street Non-motorized Improvements, Phase 2 & 3 - Development/ Design 

Project Description: Community Engagement Events, Pedestrian/Bicyclist Counts, Conflict analysis, 
Planning/analyzing pedestrian/bicyclist networks, Level of Stress Analysis, Route Directness Analysis, 
Preliminary Right of Way Activities, Preliminary Environmental Analysis, 90% Preliminary Engineering, 
Preliminary Pedestrian/Bicyclist Safety Plan Analysis 

Detailed Project Description:  
1) Design a solution that connects active travelers from central Port Orchard vicinity to downtown

Port Orchard in the north portion of the city. Evaluate opportunities along the following
corridors at a minimum:

a. Along Port Orchard Blvd (between the intersection of Port Orchard Blvd with Bay St and
the intersection of Port Orchard Blvd with Tremont St)

b. Along Tremont St (from just west of intersection with Port Orchard Blvd with Tremont St
and the SE Lund Ave bridge)

c. Along Sidney Ave (between intersection of Lippert Dr W with Sidney Ave and Melcher St
with Sidney Ave)

2) Conduct pedestrian and bicyclist counts
3) Collect conflict analysis data (example, analysis of video or other field observation data)
4) Conduct preliminary pedestrian/bicyclist safety plan analysis to support development of a Local

Roads Safety Plan
5) Evaluate roadway and intersection level of traffic stress
6) Evaluate route directness between origins/destinations (including availability of crossings that

create or mitigate active travel detours)
7) Evaluate pedestrian and bicyclist network (origin/destination analysis and links and nodes used

to travel between them) in order to develop a network plan
8) Develop alternatives for community input.
9) Provide a minimum of 5 community engagement events:

a. Include outreach to user groups, including but not limited to West Sound Cycling and
the Local ADA chapter

b. Target community neighborhoods adjacent to Tremont St for input before considering
active transportation alternatives

c. Host workshop(s) at one or more locations in the neighborhoods where the city is
targeting outreach and where lower income residents can more easily access the
event(s), (example suggested by city, Van Zee Park).

10) Conduct preliminary right of way evaluation for preferred alternative(s)
11) Conduct preliminary environmental analysis for preferred alternative(s)
12) Develop one or more designs for improvements meeting the primary need, with at least one

design reaching 90% preliminary engineering. It is recommended that other improvement
designs be developed to at least 30% to facilitate more competitive future construction grant
applications.

Page 132 of 596



Page 2 of 2 

Project Schedule: 

Begin Project 01/24 

Estimated Project Advertisement Date 10/23 

Estimated Project Contract Award Date 01/24 

Begin Community Outreach 04/24 

Begin engineering/design 9/25 

Design Complete (Design-only projects) 03/26 

Project Cost and Award Amount: 
Phase Total Project 

Cost 
Amount Requested Amount Awarded 

Preliminary Engineering $732,000 $732,000 

Right-of-Way N/A N/A 

Construction N/A N/A 

Total $732,000 $732,000 

If you agree to the project summary described above, please sign below and return to Charlotte 
Claybrooke or Brian Wood. 

Concurrence:  I agree to the project summary described above. 

Approving Authority Name (Print): ___K. Chris Hammer, PE, PMP – City Engineer_________ 

Approving Authority Signature: __Kenneth C, Hammer____________________________

Date: ___May 3, 2023_____________________________________________________________ 

$732,000

N/A

N/A
$732,000

Page 133 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
 Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4E Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Accepting  Prepared by: Tony Lang 
 2023-25 Safe Routes to School Program  Public Works Director 
 State Funding as Managed by the     Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 Washington State Department of  Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 
 Transportation for the Sidney Road   
 Non-motorized Improvements    
 (SR-16 to Hovde) Project   

Summary:  In 2022, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department applied for 2023-25 Safe Routes 
to School Program funding through the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for 
the Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) Project (the Project).  On May 19, 2023, 
the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department was notified by WSDOT that the Project was 
selected to receive $1,394,750 in State funding for Engineering and Construction from WSDOT through 
the 2023-25 Safe Routes to School Program.  The anticipated cost for the Project is $1,942,140.  The 
City match requirement for the project is $547,390 and will be funded from Transportation Impact 
Fees.  By this action, the Council would authorize the acceptance of the grant funding from WSDOT for 
the Project. 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8 – Transportation 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution accepting the Safe 
Routes to School Program State funding and authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents necessary 
to effectuate this award with WSDOT for the Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to 
Hovde) Project. 

Motion for Consideration: I move that the City Council adopt a Resolution accepting the Safe Routes to 
School Program State funding and authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents necessary to 
effectuate this award with WSDOT for the Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) 
Project. 

Fiscal Impact: $547,390 will be funded with Transportation Impact Fees.  A budget amendment 
will be required. 

Alternative:   Do not accept Grant and provide alternative direction. 

Attachment:   Resolution  
      WSDOT Award Letter 

Page 134 of 596



RESOLUTION NO._______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING 
2023-25 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM STATE FUNDING, AS MANAGED 
BY THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (WSDOT). 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department applied for 2023-25 Safe 
Routes to School Program funding through the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) for the Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) Project (the 
Project); and     

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2023, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department was 
notified by WSDOT that the Project was selected to receive $1,394,750 in State funding for 
Engineering and Construction from WSDOT through the 2023-25 Safe Routes to School 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, City acceptance of this state funding requires a local commitment of 
$547,390 to complete the project and will be funded from Transportation Impact Fees; and 

WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of 
the City to accept the grant funding from WSDOT for the Project; now, therefore,  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

THAT:  The City Council hereby accepts the 2023-25 Safe Routes to School Program 
Grant Funding from Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for the 
Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) Project, described in the 
WSDOT award letter, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  The Mayor is authorized to execute all documents necessary to effectuate 
this acceptance. 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June, 2023. 

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 135 of 596



May 19, 2023 

Mr. Tony Lang 
Public Works Director 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 

RE: Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) 
2023-25 Safe Routes to School Program 
State Funding 

Dear Mr. Lang: 

WSDOT is pleased to advise you that the above-mentioned project was selected to receive funding 
through the Safe Routes to School program. The state funding is limited as shown below: 

Sidney Rd Non-Motorized Improvements (SR-16 to Hovde) $1,394,750 
Scope: See attached project summary. 

In order to meet state requirements, the following are required: 
 Project expenditures incurred before receiving notice from Local Programs of state fund 

authorization are not eligible for reimbursement.
 Please refer to the Local Programs webpage for detailed authorization information, including:

(http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/localprograms/)
 Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) manual for detailed requirements;
 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Statewide Transportation Improvement 

Program (STIP) amendments, as applicable;
 Funding and billing forms;
 Local Project Report is required to be completed by the end of June and December each 

year. To access the database you will need an account name and password. Your account 
name is XX and your password is XX. The password is case sensitive. 

As a reminder, Local Programs encourages all agencies to submit monthly progress billings to ensure 
timely reimbursement of eligible expenditures. 

For assistance, please contact your Region Local Programs Engineer, John Ho, at (564) 669-1018 or 
John.Ho@wsdot.wa.gov.  

Sincerely, 

Jay Drye, PE 
Director 
Local Programs 

cc: Kelly McGourty, Transportation Director, PSRC 
John Ho, Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer 

Page 136 of 596

http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/localprograms/
mailto:John.Ho@wsdot.wa.gov


Project Summary 

Program: Safe Routes To School 
Date: May 2023 
Agency: City of Port Orchard 
Project Title: Sidney Rd Non-motorized Improvement Project (from SR16 to Hovde) 

Project Description: New marked crosswalk, crossing advance stop bars, Rectangular Rapid Flashing 
Beacons (RRFBs), pedestrian scale crossing illumination, ADA curb ramps, sidewalk (6'+) with curb, 
sidewalk (5'+) with curb and buffer, bike lanes 

Detailed Project Description: (south to north) 
1) On Sidney Road SW between SW Hovde Road and a point "'200' north of SR-16 overpass install 

a. Sidewalk (6' wide+ with curb and gutter, some areas will be separated by a buffer: east 
side of road from SW Hovde Rd to Glenwood Rd SW ("'340'); west side of the road from 
Glenwood Rd SW to Birch Rd SW ("'600'); west side of the road from north boundary of 
mini-storage development to the northern terminus "'200' north of SR-16 overpass 
("'1,500'), with exception of 5' wide for short segments (<100') adjacent to a culvert that 
narrows the available street ROW width and (320') between SW Hovde Rd and 
Glenwood Rd SW with limited ROW availability. 

b. Street lighting along school frontage (and otherwise as noted at intersections) providing 
illumination of pedestrian areas (some locations of illumination included in separate 
federally funded project) 

c. Bike lanes (6' wide), where sidewalks are constructed 
2) At the intersection of Sydney Rd SW and SW Hovde Rd install 

a. Marked crosswalks (1, east leg) 
b. ADA curb ramps (1) 
c. Advance stop bars 

3) At the intersection of Sidney Rd SW and Glenwood Rd SW install 
a. RRFBs (2) on SW and SE corners 
b. Advance stop bars 
c. ADA curb ramps (4) 
d. Marked crosswalks (2, south leg and west leg) 
e. Pedestrian scale crossing illumination (1) 

4) At the intersection of Sidney Rd SW and SW Birch Rd install 
a. Updated marked crosswalks (south leg and west leg) to align with curb ramps 
b. Advance stop bars 
c. ADA curb ramps (4), including 2 on path to school entrance 
d. RRFBs (2) on SW and SE corners 
e. Pedestrian scale crossing illumination (3) (included in separate federally funded project) 

5) At the intersection of Sidney Rd SW and SW Berry Lake Rd install 
a. ADA curb ramps (4) 
b. Marked crosswalk (1, revised to align with new curb ramp on south leg) 
c. Advance stop bars 
d. Pedestrian scale crossing illumination (4) (included in separate federally funded proje) 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 137 of 596



Project Schedule: 
Begin PE 10/23 

Environmental Documents Approved 12/24 
Right-of-Way Approved 1/25 
Estimated Contract Ad 4/25 

Estimated Contract Award Date 5/25 
Open to Traffic 12/25 

Project Cost and Award Amount: 
Phase Total Project Cost Amount Requested Amount Awarded 

Preliminary Engineering) $235,000 $177,860 
Right-of-Way $0 $0 
Construction $1,707,140 $1,216,890 

Match $547,390 N/A 
Total $1,942,140 $1,394,750 

If you agree to the project summary described above, please sign below and return to Charlotte 
Claybrooke or Brian Wood. 

Concurrence: I agree to the project summary described above. 

Approving Authority Name (Print): k, (ha,~ ff M, ~ c,J., vi,• •&<:c: 

Approving Authority Signature: ----.-~--__,,_/2_L_· __ --- __ ~_. + __ • _ 7/f.--, 
Date: 6_v_l 1_ .. _-z..c....=0-=.-..__=:3=---------------------- 

Page 2 of 2 

$177,860
$0

$1,216,890
N/A

$1,394,750

Page 138 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029

Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4F Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Change Order No. 2 to Contract Prepared by: Tony Lang 

No. 075-22 with Ceccanti, Inc. for the Public Works Director 
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment   Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
Facility Installation Atty Review Date: June 23, 2023 

Summary: The City owns and operates a splash pad at the McCormick Village Park for its residents and desires to 
modify the existing flow-through system to a recirculating system. This will be accomplished through the 
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation and Retrofitting project (the “Project”).  On 
July 26, 2022, following a procurement process consistent with state law and the City’s Procurement Policies 
adopted by Resolution 036-22, as amended, the City executed Contract No. C075-22 with Ceccanti, Inc. for the 
Project.  On February 28, 2023, Council Approved Change Order No. 1 which addressed modifications required 
based on Dept of Health regulations, review, and approval, adjusted the Washington State Sales tax rate and 
extended the duration of the contract.   

This change order is to address additional modifications necessary to complete construction.  Unsuitable 
subgrade was found at the invert of the reservoir which needs to be remedied.  A louvered grill on the building 
needs to be relocated, a fire barrier needs to be installed, and water line manifolds and solenoids need to be 
relocated from the existing vaults into the mechanical building.  This Change Order will increase the existing 
contract, as amended, by $9,173.60 (WSST Included) for a new contract total of $738,696.45.  

Recommendation: Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to Execute Change Order No. 2 to 
Contract No. C075-22 with Ceccanti, Inc for the McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility 
Installation to increase the contract, as amended, by $9,173.60, for a contract total of $738,696.45 (applicable 
taxes included).  

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 4- Parks 

Motion for Consideration: I move to authorize the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 2 to Contract No. C075-
22 with Ceccanti, Inc for the McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation to increase the 
contract, as amended, by $9,173.60, for a contract total of $738,696.45 (applicable taxes included).  

Fiscal Impact: The 2023-2024 biennial budget includes $590,400 for this project from Park Impact Fees.  A 
Budget amendment will be required to provide the additional funding from Park Impact Fees.  The expenses for 
this project are budgeted in GL Code 302.05.594.76.60  

Alternatives:   Do not approve and provide alternative guidance 

Attachments:     Change Order No. 2, Courtesy Copy - Contract No. C075-22 

Page 139 of 596



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

Authorization for Change Order No. 2

Date: 6/14/2023	
McCormick Village Park Splash

Pad Treatment Facility

Project: Installation	

Contract/Job # C075-22

Contractor: Ceccanti, Inc.

4116 Brookdale Road East

Tacoma, WA 98446

THIS CHANGE ORDER AUTHORIZES (add description).

Additional work: Work Change Directive 1 -54,3X0.00- Unsuitable subgrade found at tlie invert elevation of the reservoir. Solution was

provided by Consorto over-excavaie approximately 12” until finner subgrade was found. Place geotextile fabric in the hole (leave extra for

wrapping"). Fill ovcr-excavation with 2”x4” quany spalls. Wrap fabric over spalls like a burrito. Use either top course or base course to dress on
top of the wrap and under the structure to density and grade. Work Change Directive 2 -52,213.05- Relocation of tlie 24”x24” Louvered Grill to

the north face of building and the addition of the L-hour fire barrier intended to meet IBC 414.2.1 construction requirements. See attached Cost

Summaiy Sheet for brealc down. Work Change Directive 3 -Sl.(S0O.00- Existing solenoid manifolds (2) for the splash pad are in two
vaults at the edge of the splash pad. The manifolds ciiiTently leak extensively and are very diflicuU to winterize. Change Directive
#3 authorizes the manifold and solenoids to be relocated into the mechanical building. The manifold is to be rebuilt using new
components, existing solenoids to be reused. Total ofWork Change Directive 1, 2, and 3- $8,393.05 plus 9.3% WST=$9,173.60

Contract History

Sales Tax TotalAmount Date

$540,647.00 $49,739.52 $590,386.52Original Contract 26-Jul-22 Council

$12,333.33$126,803.00 $139,136.33Change Order 1 28-Feb-23 Council

$8,393.05 $780.55 $9,173.60Change Order 2 27-Jun-23 Council

$675,843.05 $62,853.40 $738,696.45Total Contract

I have reviewed the Change Order information above and certify that to the best of my knowledge descriptions and
costs are true and accurate.

Public Works DirectorContractor Approval Signature

Donna Motland, Corporate Secretary
Tony Lang

Printed Name & Title Printed Name

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of

$50,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract

amount established by City Council can be approved by the Public
Works Director.

Approved:
Mayor

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of

$100,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract

amount established by City Council are to be approved by the

Mayor.

Attest:

City Clerk

Change Orders over $100,000 or exceed a total of 10% require

Council Action. Council Approval Date

Page 140 of 596



City of Port Orchard
iss

■V-'f:S'
flA<J-^:

■●%p,
ri'>M

yic

Work Change Directive: I

Engineer: Consor	

Date: May 24, 2023

Project: McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Retro

Contractor: Ceccanti. Inc	

Subject: Unsuitable Reservoir Subgrade- Over Excavate. Geo Fabric. Spalls, CSBC

The following information/clariifcation further explains the Scope of Work:
The City, Consor and Contractor have jointly resolved unsuitable subgrade found at the invert elevation of the
reservoir.

Our recommendation is as follows:

1. Over-excavate approximately 12” until firmer subgrade is found.
2. Place geotextile fabric in the hole (leave extra for wrapping).
3. Fill over-excavation w'iih 2”x4” quarry spalls.
4. Wrap fabric over spalls like a biirrito.
5. Use either top course or base course to dress on top of the wrap and under the structure to density and

grade.

The intent of the change is to ensure reservoir is set on firm and unyielding material. Bid Item A11 - Over excavation
is being investigated. All activities will be tracked via force account.
Estimated Costs:

2x4 Quarry Spalls
1 'A Crushed Rock

Geofabric

Chevy 6500 (5) Inc. mark up
Volvo 120F (5) Inc. mark up
Deere 245 G LC (5) Inc. mark up
Ken'worth T-880 (5) Inc, mark up
Labor x 3 (5) Inc. mark up
Total

S250.00

S65.00

S65.00

$445.00

$575.00

$800.00

$680.00

$1500.00

($4,380,00)

Costing:

□ Not-to-Exceed Price of $ 00.00

work is complete.

Lump Sum Price of S	

.. Actual costs will be submitted after the above scope of

□ .(additive / deductive).

Force Account. Per General Conditions 1-09.6. Provide daily breakdown for costs associated with above
scope of work

Contract Time changes shall be submitted as follows:

Increase/decrease in Contract Time;

Substantial Complete; Zero
Final Completion	

Method of determining change in Contract Times;
n Actual Days Required
Q Acceptance of Contractor Estimate
^ Other	

If the change involves an increase, the Estimated times are not to be exceeded without further authorization.

days

days

Attachments:

RecommendedBy;
/j

Engineer Date

Approved By:

j-
Owner

Accepted By-;'''' j
Page 141 of 596



City of Port Orchard

uMlMl
V-'?'

Date: June 2,2023	

Project; McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Retro

Contractor: Ceccanti, Inc	

Work Change Directive: 2

Engineer: Consor	

Subject: Relocate Louver to North Face, Addition of Fire Wall

Thefollowinginformation/clarificationfurtherexplainsthe Scope of Work:
Consor has provided a solution to the COPO DCD Review Matrix. Relocation of the 24”x24” Louvered Grill to the
north face of the building as shown on the revised sheet A1.0. Addition of the 1-Hour Fire Barrier Walls as shown
on the revised sheet A1.0.		

The design is being modified to move the louver so that it does not face the wetland to the east. When opened, the
louver will allow some sound to escape the building. The loudest piece of equipment anticipated in the building will
be the booster pump which when in operation will run at an estimated 65-80 decibels. Addition of the 1 -hour fire
barrier wall are intended to meet IBC 414.2.1Construction requirements.
Costing:

Ndt-t6-Exc.eed Price of $ 00.00

work is complete.

Lump Sum Price of $	

. Actual costs will be submitted after the above scope of

Time and Material estimate -$2,213.05
□ (additive / deductive).

Force Account. Per General Conditions 1-09.6. Provide daily breakdown for costs associated with above

scope of work

□

Contract Time changes shall be submitted as follows:

Increase/decrease in Contract Time:

Substantia! Complete: Zero

Final Completion	

Method of determining change in Contract Times:
n Actual Days Required
O Acceptance of Contractor Estimate
^ Other	

If the change involves an increase, the Estimated times are not to be exceeded without further authorization.

days
days

Attachments:

Recommaified By:

DateEngineer

Approved By:

r-
s

Owner Date

Accepted By:
V

Contractor Date

Incorporated into Change Order

Page 142 of 596



City of Port Orchard
■'<c:

fi

Date: June 7,2023	

Project: McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Retro

Contractor: Ceccanti, Inc	

Work Change Directive: 3

Engineer: Consor	

Subject: Rebuild Solenoid Manifolds

Thefollowing information/clarificathn further explains the Scope of Work:
Existing solenoid manifolds (2) for the splash pad are in two vaults at the edge of the splash pad. The manifolds
currently leak extensively and are very difficult to winterize. Change Directive #3 authorizes the manifold and
solenoids to be relocated into the mechanical building. The manifold is to be rebuilt using new components, existing
solenoidsto be reused.		

Costing:

. Actual costs will be submitted after the above scope ofNot-to-Exceed Price of $ 1800.00

work is complete.

Lump Sum Price of $	

Force Account. Per General Conditions 1-09.6. Provide daily breakdown for costs associated with above
scope of work

□ .(additive / deductive).

□

Contract Time changes shall be submitted as follows:

Increase/decrease in Contract Time:

Substantial Complete: Zero
Final Completion	

Method of determining change in Contract Times:
Q Actual Days Required
n Acceptance of Contractor Estimate
^ Other 	

If the change involves an increase, the Estimated times are not to be exceeded without further authorization.

days

days

Attachments:

Recommen(^^ Ry:

Engin^r

Approved By;

Date

7-
Owner Date

Accepted By:
r

DateContractor

incorporated into Change Order

Page 143 of 596



CONTRACT

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation

CoNTRACT NO. C075-22

THIS CONTRACT ("Contract") is made and entered into this 26th day of July, 2022, by and
between the City of Port Orchard, a municipality incorporated and existing under the laws of the
State of Washington, hereinafter called the "City," and Ceccanti, lnc., hereinafter called the
"Contractor."

WITNESSETH

l. General Provisions.

A. Description of Work.
The Contractor, in consideration of the covenants, agreements and payments to be performed
and made by the City, hereby covenants and agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials,
equipment and supplies required for, and to execute, construct and finish in full compliance with
the Contract Documents, McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility lnstallation. The
Contractor further agrees to perform all such work for the Contract Price stated in the
Contractor's Bid Proposal dated lune24,2022, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference as if set forth in full. Contractor further represents that the services furnished under
this Agreement will be performed in accordance with and as described in the attached plans and
specifications and with the Port Orchard Municipal Code, the City's Public Works Standards,
which includes (but is not limited to) the 202L edition of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for
Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction (which shall apply except where noted otherwise). All
of these standards are bythis reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof. Contractor
further represents that the services furnished under this Agreement will be performed in
accordance with generally accepted professional practices within the Puget Sound region in
effect at the time such services are performed.

The Contract Documents include:

Exhibit A -a confirmed copy of the Proposal made by the Contractor on June 24, 2022,

together with the lnstructions to Bidders.

Exhibit B - The Project Manual for the McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility
lnstallation.

Exhibit C - Retainage Options

All Exhibits to this Contract are by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as

if set forth in full.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PW2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page I of30

Page 144 of 596



B. Time of Completion.

Time is of the essence of this Contract. lt is agreed that the Preconstruction Phase work covered
by this Contract shall start within L4 calendar days after Notice to Proceed is issued and that
Construction Phase shall begin after September 12,2022. Construction shall be complete not
later than March 3I, 2023.

C. Liquidated Damages.

It is further agreed that the City will suffer damage and be put to additional expense in the event
that the Contractor shall not have the specified portions of the work completed in all its parts in
the time specified, and as it may be difficult to accurately compute the amount of such damage,
the Contractor expressly covenants and agrees to pay to the City liquidated damages, the sum as

calculated by the equation shown in Section 1-08.9 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications, for
each and every working day said work is not complete beyond the time shown in the Proposal.

ll. Non-Discrimination.

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors
in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities;
including but not limited to compliance with the following Pertinent Non-Discrimination
Authorities:

. Title vl of the civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 u .s.c. 5 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Parl21.

. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,
(42 U.S.C. 5 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property
has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. g 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on
the basis of sex);

. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 5794 et seq.), as amended,
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part27;

. The Age Discrimination Act of L975, as amended,(42 U .S.C.5 6101et seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

. Airport and Airway lmprovement Act of 1982, (49 USCS 471-, Section 4 7!23), as

amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage

and applicability of Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 7964, The Age Discrimination Act of
1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of
the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the
Federal-aid recipients, sub- recipients and contractors, whether such programs or
activities are Federally funded or not);

. Titles ll and lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Sphsh Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PW2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 2 oJ30

Page 145 of 596



a

a

transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42

U.S.C. SS 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at
49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;

The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. 5 47123l'
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address EnvironmentalJustice in Minority
Populations and Low-lncome Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately
high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income
populations;
Executive Order 13166, lmproving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English

Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with
Title Vl, you must take reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to74lOOl;
Title lX of the Education Amendments of L972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. L681 et seq).

a

a

Title Vl of the Civil Rishts Act of 1964

The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,78 Stat. 252,

42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part2L, nondiscrimination in federally assisted
programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively
ensure that its contracts comply with these regulations.

Also, in accordance with Title Vl, the City is required to include the following clauses in every
contract subject to Title Vl and its related regulations.

Therefore, during the performance of this Contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and

successors in interest agrees as follows:

1,. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor will comply with the Acts and the
regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S.

Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be

amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part
of this Contract.

2. Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during this
Contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age,

disability, income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as

set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference,
Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PW2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 3 of30

Page 146 of 596



including employment practices when this Contract covers any activity, project, or
program set forth in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: ln

all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Contractor for
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or
leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the
Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this Contract and the Acts and the
Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin,
sex, age, disability, income-level, or LEP.

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor will provide all information and reports
required by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will
permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its
facilities as may be determined by the City or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain

compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where any information
required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses

to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the City or the FHWA, as

appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: ln the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the

Non-discrimination provisions of this Contract, the City will impose such contract
sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited

to:
L. withholding payments to the Contractor under the Contract until the Contractor

complies; and/or

2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Contract, in whole or in part.

6. lncorporation of Provisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant

thereto. The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement

as the City or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the
Contractor may request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the
City. ln addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation
to protect the interests of the United States.

lll. Public Records Act Chaoter 42.56 RCW

Contractor understands that her/his bid response documents, and any contract documents may

be subject to release under the Public Records Act Chapter 42,56 RCW and the City may be

required to disclose such documents upon a request. Contractor acknowledges that s/he has
Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.

McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PIY2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 4 of30

Page 147 of 596



been advised to mark any records believed to be trade secrets or confidential in nature as

"confidential." lf records marked as "confidential" are found to be responsive to the request for
records, the City as a courtesy to the Contractor, may elect to give notice to Contractor of the
request so as to allow Contractor to seek a protective order from a Court. Contractor
acknowledges and agrees that any records deemed responsive to a public records request may
be released at the sole discretion of, and without notice by, the City.

lV. Termination

The City may terminate this contract for cause or for convenience

1. Termination for Cause. The City may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to
its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract,
or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following
events: Contractor fails to complete the work or any portion thereof with sufficient
diligence to ensure substantial completion of the work within the contract time;
Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit of its
creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency; Contractor fails in a

material way to replace or correct work not in conformance with the Contract
Documents, Contractor repeatedly fails to supply skilled workers or proper materials or
equipment; Contractor materially disregards or fails to comply with laws, ordinances,
rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or Contractor is

otherwise in material breach of any provision of the contract. Upon termination, the City
may, at its option, take possession of or use all documents, materials, equipment, tools,
and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by Contractor to maintain
the orderly progress of, and to finish, the work, and finish the work by whatever other
reasonable method it deems expedient.

2. Termination for Convenience. The City may, upon written notice, terminate (without
prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for the
convenience of the City.

3. Settlement of Costs. lf the City terminates for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled
to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred
prior to the effective date of the termination, plus a reasonable allowance for overhead
and profit on work performed prior to termination, plus the reasonable administrative
costs of the termination, but shall not be entitled to any other costs or damages,
whatsoever, provided however, the total sum payable upon termination shall not exceed
the Contract Sum reduced by prior payments.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PIIr2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 5 of30

Page 148 of 596



Corporate Suretv Bond

his Contract, Contractor is furnishing a Corporate Surety Bond in the amount of
fivc \r!r.d,rgq\ N *tcUfa;.d T\r.s*c-

V

with t

6t Sr
as Surety, to ensure full comp tance, execution and performa
Contractor in accordance with all its terms and provisions

Vl. lndependent Contractor.

The parties intend that an lndependent Contractor-Employer Relationship will be created by this
Agreement and that the Contractor has the ability to control and direct the performance and

details of its work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.

Vll. Emplovment of State Retirees.

The City is a "DRS-covered employer" which is an organization that employs one or more
members of any retirement system administered by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems (DRS). Pursuant to RCW 41.50.139(1) and WAC 41"5-02-325(71, the City is

required to elicit on a written form if any of the Contractor's employees providing services to the
City retired using the 2008 Early Retirement Factors (ERFs), or if the Contractor is owned by an

individual who retired using the 2008 ERFs, and whether the nature of the service and

compensation would result in a retirement benefit being suspended. Failure to make this
determination exposes the City to significant liability for pension overpayments. As a result,

before commencing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall determine whether any of its
employees providing services to the City or any of the Contractor's owners retired using the 2008

ERFs, and shall immediately notify the City and shall promptly complete the form provided by the
City after this notification is made. This notification to DRS could impact the payment of
retirement benefits to employees and owners of Contractor. Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or other liability, including
attorneys' fees and costs, relating to a claim by DRS of a pension overpayment caused by or
resulting from Contractor's failure to comply with the terms of this provision. This provision shall

survive termination of this Agreement.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Irctallation

ttars (S510,1bb.53 ) with
nce of this Contract by the

Project # PIV2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 6 of30

Page 149 of 596



Vlll. Chanses.

The City may issue a written change order for any change in the Contract work during the
performance of this Agreement. lf the Contractor determines, for any reason, that a change
order is necessary, Contractor must submit a written change order request to the person listed
in the Notice provision section of this Agreement, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date
Contractor knew or should have known of the facts and events giving rise to the requested
change. lf the City determines that the change increases or decreases the Contractor's costs or
time for performance, the City will make an equitable adjustment. The City will attempt, in good
faith, to reach agreement with the Contractor on all equitable adjustments. However, if the
parties are unable to agree, the City will determine the equitable adjustment as it deems
appropriate. The Contractor shall proceed with the change order work upon receiving either a

written change order from the City or an oral order from the City before actually receiving the
written change order. lf the Contractor fails to require a change order within the time specified
in this paragraph, the Contractor waives its right to make any claim or submit subsequent change
order requests for that portion of the contract work. lf the Contractor disagrees with the
equitable adjustment, the Contractor must complete the change order work; however, the
Contractor may elect to protest the adjustment as provided in subsections A through E of Section
lX entitled, "Claims," below.

The Contractor accepts all requirements of a change order by: (1) endorsing it, (2) writing a

separate acceptance, or (3) not protesting in the way this section provides. A change order that
is accepted by Contractor as provided in this section shall constitute full payment and final
settlement of all claims for contract time and for direct, indirect and consequential costs,
including costs of delays related to any work, either covered or affected by the change.

lX. Claims. lf the Contractor disagrees with anything required by a change order, another
written order, or an oral order from the City, including any direction, instruction, interpretation,
or determination by the City, the Contractor may file a claim as provided in this section. The

Contractor shall give written notice to the City of all claims within fourteen (14) calendar days of
the occurrence of the events giving rise to the claims, or within fourteen (14) calendar days of
the date the Contractor knew or should have known of the facts or events giving rise to the claim,
whichever occurs first. Any claim for damages, additional payment for any reason, or extension
of time, whether under this Agreement or otherwise, shall be conclusively deemed to have been
waived by the Contractor unless a timely written claim is made in strict accordance with the
applicable provisions of this Agreement.

At a minimum, a Contractor's written claim shall include the information set forth in subsections
A, items l through 5 below.

FAILURE TO PROVIDE A COMPLETE, WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF CTAIM WITHIN THE TIME
ALLOWED SHALL BE AN ABSOLUTE WAIVER OF ANY CLAIMS ARISING IN ANY WAY FROM THE

FACTS OR EVENTS SURROUNDING THAT CTAIM OR CAUSED BY THAT DELAY.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Trealment Facility lrstallation Project # PW2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 7 of30

Page 150 of 596



A. Notice of Claim
information:

Provide a signed written notice of claim that provides the following

The date of the Contractor's claim;

The nature and circumstances that caused the claim;

The provisions in this Agreement that support the claim;

The estimated dollar cost, if any, of the claimed work and how that estimate was
determined; and

An analysis of the progress schedule showing the schedule change or disruption if
the Contractor is asserting a schedule change or disruption.

B. Records. The Contractor shall keep complete records of extra costs and time incurred as

a result of the asserted events giving rise to the claim. The City shall have access to any of the
Contractor's records needed for evaluating the protest.

The City will evaluate all claims, provided the procedures in this section are followed. lf the City
determines that a claim is valid, the City will adjust payment for work or time by an equitable
adjustment. No adjustment will be made for an invalid protest.

C. Contractor's Duty to Complete Protested Work. ln spite of any claim, the Contractor shall
proceed promptly to provide the goods, materials and services required by the City under this
Agreement.

D. Failure to Protest Constitutes Waiver. By not protesting as this section provides, the
Contractor also waives any additional entitlement and accepts from the City any written or oral
order (including directions, instructions, interpretations, and determination).

E. Failure to Follow Procedures Constitutes Waiver. By failing to follow the procedures of
this section, the Contractor completely waives any claims for protested work and accepts from
the City any written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations, and
determination).

X. Limitation Of Actions.

CONTRACTOR MUST, IN ANY EVENT, FILE ANY LAWSUIT ARISING FROM OR CONNECTED WITH
THIS AGREEMENT WITHIN 120 CALENDAR DAYS FROM THE DATE THE CONTRACT WORK IS

COMPLETE OR CONTRACTOR'S ABILITY TO FILE THAT CLAIM OR SUIT SHALL BE FOREVER BARRED.

THIS SECTION FURTHER LIMITS ANY APPLICABLE STATUTORY LIMITATIONS PERIOD.

Rev 3/lB/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Instdllation

1

2

3

4

5

Project # PIIt2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page I of30

Page 151 of 596



Xl. Warrantv.

Upon acceptance of the contract work, Contractor must provide the City a two-year warranty
bond in the amount of twenty percent (20%l of the contract price a form and amount acceptable
to the City. The Contractor shall correct all defects in workmanship and materials within two (2)

years from the date of the City's acceptance of the Contract work, including replacing vegetation
that fails to thrive. ln the event any parts are repaired or replaced, only original replacement
parts shall be used-rebuilt or used parts will not be acceptable. When defects are corrected,
the warranty for that portion of the work shall extend for one (1) additional year from the date
such correction is completed and accepted by the City. The Contractor shall begin to correct any
defects within seven (7) calendar days of its receipt of notice from the City of the defect. lf the
Contractor does not accomplish the corrections within a reasonable time as determined by the
City, the City may complete the corrections and the Contractor shall pay all costs incurred by the
City in order to accomplish the correction.

Xll. lndemnification.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents

and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, including all
legal costs and attorneyfees, arising out of or in connection with the Contractor's performance
of this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the sole

negligence of the City.

The City's inspection or acceptance of any of Contractor's work when completed shall not be
grounds to avoid any of these covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW

4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor
and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers, the Contractor's liability
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Contractor's negligence.

It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein
constitutes the contractor's waiver of immunity under lndustrial lnsurance, Title 51 RCW, solely
for the purposes of this indemnification. The parties further acknowledge that they have

mutually negotiated this waiver.

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS

AGREEMENT.

Xlll. Insurance.

The Contractor shall procure and maintain forthe duration of the Agreement, insurance against
claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with

Rev 3/lB/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PIr/2022-008 Contlact #C075-22

Page 9 of 30

Page 152 of 596



the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representative, employees
or subcontractors.

No Limitation. Contractor's maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement shall not be
construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or
otherwise limit the City's recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.

A. Minimum Scope of lnsurance. Contractor shall obtain insurance of the types described
below:

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased

vehicles. Coverage shall be written on lnsurance Services Office (lSO) form CA O0 0l- or a

substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. lf necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form
CG 00 0L and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop gap liability,
independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury and

advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract. The Commercial
General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide the Aggregate Per Project
Endorsement ISO form CG 25 03 1L 85. There shall be no endorsement or modification of
the Commercial General Liability insurance for liability arising from explosion, collapse or
underground property damage. The City shall be named as an insured under the
Contractor's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work
performed for the City using ISO Additional lnsured endorsement CG 20 LO 10 01 and

Additional lnsured-Completed Operations endorsement CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute
endorsements providing equ ivalent coverage.

3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the lndustrial lnsurance laws of
the State of Washington.

4. Builders Risk insurance covering interests of the City, the Contractor,
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors in the work. Builders Risk insurance shall be on

a all-risk policy form and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and

physical loss or damage including flood and earthquake, theft, vandalism, malicious
mischief, collapse, temporary buildings and debris removal. This Builders Risk insurance
covering the work will have a deductible of 55,000 for each occurrence, which will be the
responsibility of the Contractor. Higher deductibles for flood and earthquake perils may
be accepted by the City upon written request by the Contractor and written acceptance
by the City. Any increased deductibles accepted by the City will remain the responsibility
of the Contractor. The Builders Risk insurance shall be maintained until final acceptance
of the work by the City.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Instdllation Proiect # PW2022-008 Contrdct #C075-22

Page 10 of30

Page 153 of 596



B. Minimum Amounts of lnsurance. Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits:

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damage of S1,000,000 per accident.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than
51,000,000 each occurrence, 52,000,000 general aggregate and a 52,000,000 products-
completed operations aggregate limit.

3. Builders Risk insurance shall be written in the amount of the completed value of
the project with no coinsurance provisions.

C. Other lnsurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability and
Builders Risk insurance:

1. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City

shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

2. The Contractor's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be

cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.

D. Contractor's lnsurance for Other Losses. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility
for all loss or damage from any cause whatsoever to any tools, Contractor's employee-owned
tools, machinery, equipment, or motor vehicles owned or rented by the Contractor, or the
Contractor's agents, suppliers or contractors as well as to any temporary structures, scaffolding
and protective fences.

E. Waiver of Subrogation. The Contractor and the City waive all rights against each other
any of their Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, each of the other, for
damages caused by fire or other perils to the extend covered by Builders Risk insurance or other
property insurance obtained pursuant to the lnsurance Requirements Section of this Contract or
other property insurance applicable to the work. The policies shall provide such waivers by
endorsement or otherwise.

F. Acceptability of lnsurers. lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best

rating of not less than A:Vll.

G. Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish the City with original certificates and a

copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional
insured endorsement, evidencing the Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability
insurance of the Contractor before commencement of the work. Before any exposure to loss may
occur, the Contractor shall file with the City a copy of the Builders Risk insurance policy that
Rev 3/lB/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash PadTreatment Facility Installation Project # PII/2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page II of30

Page 154 of 596



includes all applicable conditions, exclusions, definitions, terms and endorsements related to this
Project.

H. Subcontractors. Contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor of every tier obtain at a
minimum the same insurance coverage and limits as stated herein for the Contractor (with the
exception of Builders Risk insurance). Upon request the City, the Contractor shall provide
evidence of such insurance.

XlV. WORK PERFORMED AT CONTRACTOR'S RISK. Contractor shall take all necessary
precautions and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and subcontractors
in the performance of the contract work and shall utilize all protection necessary for that
purpose. All work shall be done at Contractor's own risk, and Contractor shall be responsible for
any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection with
the work.

XV. Miscellaneous Provisions

A. Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred
by this Agreement in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or
relinquishment of those covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in
full force and effect.

B. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. lf the parties are unable to
settle any dispute, difference or claim arising from the parties' performance of this Agreement,
the exclusive means of resolving that dispute, difference or claim, shall only be by filing suit
exclusively under the venue, rules and jurisdiction of the Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap

County, Washington, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute resolution
process. ln any claim or lawsuit for damages arising from the parties' performance of this
Agreement, each party shall pay all its legal costs and attorney's fees incurred in defending or
bringing such claim or lawsuit, including all appeals, in addition to any other recovery or award
provided by law; provided, however, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the
City's right to indemnification under Section Xll of this Agreement.

C. Written Notice. All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties

at the addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Any written notice hereunder shall become effective three (3) business days after the date of
mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the
addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or such other address as may be hereafter
specified in writing.

D. Assignment. Any assignment of this Agreement by either party without the written
consent of the non-assigning party shall be void. lf the non-assigning party gives its consent to

Rev 3/l 8/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # Pltr2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 12 of30

Page 155 of 596



DocuSign Envelope lD: 82579A07-6DDC-438A-A76F -7604D542O902

any assignment, the terms of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and no further
assignment shall be made without additional written consent.

E. Modification. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of
the City and Contractor.

F. Entire Agreement. The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with
any Exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering
into or forming a part of or altering in any manner this Agreement. All of the above documents
are hereby made a part of this Agreement. However, should any language in any of the Exhibits
to this Agreement conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the terms of this
Agreement shall prevail.

G. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and
municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the future become applicable
to Contractor's business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this
Agreement or accruing out of the performance of those operations.

H. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement.lN
WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused these presents to be duly executed.

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

DocuSigned by:

By: Kolru{ lvlaawsw
R ansuu, Mayor

CONTRACTOR
t

By:

Title:
eicod

Address: H\[n Brnn\tAo,\q- RsoA Ec\t
-lor nrrn rrA Qn*r-\-\-

by:

W^llarL

Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk

/i:r J /,t.-'j
Cilv rtf l'ot't ()rchurd unl ('eccotti, htt'.
lfc{.'orntk I'ilhrya l\rk Spkrh I'ud'li'tutntcttt l'itctlilS, Itt.ttallutiut

o

SEAL

Pn rycc1 r, l'lf 2l)2 2 -00]l (\)ntt'dct tt('0:5-:2

l\rye l-| o[-]0

Page 156 of 596



DocuSign Envelope lD: B2579A07-6DDCr43BA-A76F-7604D54209O2

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

-Docusignsd 
by:

| .;{t' -?---l{t!*

rErEPHONE (eSiEn-=erO
Email@nn

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney

NOTICES TO BE SENTTO:

CONTRACTOR:

I NSERT NaNr g tcttsr\t\,\c\c.
ADDRESS\\\ro SrooYdaro !d €
Ti,^*-*. tr.q. 1flqAr,a

CITY

City of Port Orchard Public Works Department
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356
TELEPHONE (360) 875-4991
FAX:360 876-4980
Email: publicworks@citvofportorchard. us

With a copy to the City Clerk at the same address

/icr'-i' /8/.:t:r
(.'it;' t11'1tor, Orchunl unJ t.lt:cc'utttt, Itte'.

!tc(irnrck l'tlluge t\trk Sphtsh I'ml li'cdntctil I.uctlit.r, lrrnilfutnnt I'rtyat t ti l' ll' :lr: : "Ul ),\ ('o,tt.td :;('0i-i-I2

l'ugt Il of .10

Page 157 of 596



PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

S.'i?il[ i'T'i:ifif 't''^t1[il?,:1,'o 
o 

p R o r E cr
PW PROJECT NO. Pw2o22-oo8

Bond to City of Port Orchard, Washington
Bond No. WAC547S4

We, Ceccanti, lnc. sn6 Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual)

(Su rety)

Corporation, and as a surety corporation authorizeda

(Principal)

lowa

to become a surety upon Bonds of Contractors with municipal corporations in Washington State,

are jointly and severally bound to the City of Port Orchard, Washington ("Owner"), in the penal

sum of ***Five Hundred Ninety Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Six Dollars'and Fifty Two Cents**x DollafS

(S590,386,52********x ), the payment of which sum, on demand, we bind
successors, heirs, administrators, executors, or personal representatives, as th
Performance Bond is provided to secure the performance of Principal in

contract dated July26 , 2022 , between Principal and Owner for
*?:?[#if{,"i:iflii,ifl1[i,'^'fltil,'^' ("Project") Public works Project No.

ourselves and our
e case may be. This
connection with a

a project entitled
PW2022-008

("Contract"). The initial penal sum shall equal 100 percent of the Total Bid Price, including all

applicable state sales tax, as specified in the Proposal submitted by Principal.

NOW, THEREFORE, this Performance and Payment Bond shall be satisfied and released only upon

the condition that Principal:

Faithfully performs all provisions of the Contract and changes authorized by Owner in the
manner and within the time specified as may be extended under the ContracU

Pays all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material-persons,

and all other persons or agents who supply labor, equipment, or materials to the Project;

Pays the taxes, increases and penalties incurred on the Project underTitles 50, 51and 82

RCW on: (A) Projects referred to in RCW 60.28,0L1(1Xb); and/or (B) Projects for which

the bond is conditioned on the payment of such taxes, increases and penalties; and

Posts a two-year warranty/maintenance bond to secure the project. Such bond shall be

in the amount of twenty percent (20%J of the project costs,

Provided, further that this bond shall remain in full force and effect until released in writing by

the City at the request of the Surety or Principal.

The surety shall indemnify, defend, and protect the Owner against any claim of direct or indirect

Rev 3/18/22
Ciry oI Porl Orchard and Ceccanli, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treutment Facility Installation Project # PW2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 2I of30

Page 158 of 596



loss resulting from the failure

Of the Principal (or any of the employees, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors

of the Principal) to faithfully perform the Contract, or

Of the Principal (or any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor of the Principal) to pay

all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material person, or
any other person who provides supplies or provisions for carrying out the work'

The liability of Surety shall be limited to the penal sum of this Performance and Payment Bond.

No change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work
to be performed under the Contract shall in any way affect Surety's obligation on the
Performance Bond, Surety hereby waives notice of any change, extension of time, alteration, or
addition to the terms of the Contract or the Work, with the exception that Surety shall be notified
if the Contract time is extended by more than twenty percent (20%1.

lf any modification or change increases the total amount to be paid under the Contract, Surety's

obligation under this Performance and Payment Bond shall automatically increase in a like

amount. Any such increase shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the original amount of
the Performance and Payment Bond without the prior written consent of Surety.

This Performance and Payment Bond shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State

of Washington, and venue shall be in Kitsap County, Washington.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties executed this instrument in two (2) identical

counterparts this 26th day of
have

July ,20 22.

Cecca I nc. l\.4prchants Bondins nanrr ll\/lrrtrral)

Princi

t

Au cial
Gricad

Vic Fwcidat

Printed Name and Title Power of Attorney)

Name and address of local office ln c.

Agent and/or Surety Company: Suite 800

Sookane. WA 99201

Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the current Authorized lnsurance List in the
State of Washington per Section L-02.7 of the Standard Specifications.

Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and CeccanlL Inc.
McCormick Villuge Purk Splash Pud Treuuncnt Fucility Installution Project # PW2022-008 Contruct #C075-22

Page 22 of30

Page 159 of 596



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Corporation, Partnership, or lndividual

STATE OF

)ss

COUNTY OF

on this AA orv or , \u-0.u 2oaa, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and

for
appea

th Sta watsni duly commissioned and sworn, personally

to me known to be the (check one of the following

A of the
corporation,

pa rtnersh ip,

individual,

that executed the foregoing instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said A
corporation, O partnership, A individual for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on

oath stated thatphe Oshe was authorized to execute said instrument'

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written,

theof

K
o

o

Notary Seal with Ink Stnmp

Rev 3/18/22
City of Porl Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facilit), Instullation

Print or type n e

NOTARY PUBLIC,

in and for the State of Washington

Residing at

My Commission expires nt-16-)a

Prcject # Pl{2022-008 Contract ftC075-22

Page 2j of 30

Page 160 of 596



SU RETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF Washington

)ss
COUNTy OF Spokane

On this 26th day of___]{y__, ZO 22 , before me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally

appeared Nicholas W, Paget , to me known to be the AttorneV-in-Fact

of Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) , the corporation that executed the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of
said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that O he O

she was authorized to execute said instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the and year fi

Shawn M, Wilson

Print or type name

Residing in Sookane. WA

My Commission expires : March 2023

Notary Seal With Ink Stamp

Rev 3/18/22
Ci\) of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Villuge Park Splash Pud Treatment Facility Inslullation

NOTARY PUBLIC,

in and for the State of Washington

Project # Pll2022-008 Contract #C075-22

Page 24 of30

Page 161 of 596



MERCHANTS
B ON DI NG COMPANY,"

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KnowAll Persons By These Presents, that MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC.,
both being corporations of the State of lowa (herein collectively called the "Companies") do hereby make, constitute and appoint, individually,

George C Schroeder; Jeffrey F O'Neill; Jennifer Mendenhall; Lauren E Richardson; Mark Roff; Nicholas W Paget; Patricia M Wachter; Shawn M

Wilson; Shelly Donovan

their true and laMul Attorney(s)-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety(ies) and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings,
contracts and other written instruments in the nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity
of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any
actions or proceedings allowed by law.

This Power-olAttorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following By-Laws adopted by the Board
of Directors of Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) on April 23,2011 and amended August 14, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors
of MerchantsNational Bonding, lnc., on October 16, 2015.

"The President, Secretary, Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary or any Vice President shall have power and authority
to appoint Attorneys-in-Fact, and to authorize them to execute on behalf of the Company, and attach the seal of the Company thereto, bonds and
undertakings, recognizances, contracts of indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof."

"The signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile or electronic transmission to any Power of Attorney
or Certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or other suretyship obligations of the
Company, and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manually fixed."

ln connection with obligations in favor of the Florida Department of Transportation only, it is agreed that the power and aut hority hereby given to the

Attorney-in-Fact includes any and all consents for the release of retained percentages and/or final estimates on engineering and construction

contracts required by the State of Florida Department of Transportation. lt is fully understood that consenting to the Stale of Florida Department
of Transportation making payment of the final estimate to the Contractor and/or its assignee, shall not relieve this surety company of any of
its obligations under its bond.

ln connection with obligations in favor of the Kentucky Department of Highways only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby

to the Attorney-in-Fact cannot be modified or revoked unless prior written personal notice of such intent has been given to the

Department of Highways of the Commonwealth of Kentucky at least thirty (30) days prior to the modification or revocation.

ln Witness Whereof, the this instrument to be signed and sealed this 11th day of February , 2020

given
Commissioner-

STATE OF IOWA
COUNTY OF DALLAS ss.

MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL)
MERCHAP NATIoNAL BoNDING, lNc.

"'/z-"fu

Trtlf

-o- o
2

2003 o "
:Fi-r. -o- g:-:
rr.rnr',li,'...$sTj

*
ftt

On this 11th dayof February 2020 , before me appeared Larry Taylor, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn

did say that he is President of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC.; and that the

seals affixed to the foregoing instrument are the Corporate Seals of the Companies; and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf

of the Companies by authority of their respective Boards of Directors.

fffi}
POLLY MASON

Commission Number 750576
My Cornmission Expires

January 07,2Q23

]4lr'USo*-

Notary Public

(Expiration of notary's commission
does not invalidate this instrument)

l, William Warner, Jr., Secretary of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC., do hereby
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the POWER-OF-ATTORNEY executed by said Companies, which is still in full
force and effect and has not been amended or revoked.

ln Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Companies on this 26th day of July ,2022

POA 0018 (1/20)

Page 162 of 596



EXHIBIT C

5% RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTIONl

Contractor Cecra"rS,\sG

Project Name

oate:llaJra
\

Project Number: Lo15-aa
Pursuant to RCW 60.28.0L0, as amended, you may exercise an option as to how the 5% retainage under this
contract will be invested. Please complete and sign this form indication your preference. lf you fail to do so

you will miss the benefit of any interest earned. Select one of the following options:

L. Savings Account: Money will be placed in an interest-bearing account. The interest will be

paid to you directly, rather than kept on deposit. lf this is your choice, then please complete
attached SAVINGS ACCOUNT AGREEMENL P|ease state the name of your bank.

Ban

2. Escrow/lnvestments: The City will deliver retainage checks to a selected bank, pursuant

to an escrow agreement. The bank will then invest the funds in securities or bonds selected by you,

and interest will be paid to you as it accrues. lf this is your choice then please complete attached
ESCROW AGREEMNT.

Preferred Bank

Securities/Bonds:

3. Guarantee Deposit: Retainage will be held by the City. No interest is payable to the Contractor

Retainage is normally released 45 days after final acceptance of the work or following receipt of Labor and

lndustries/Department of Revenue clearance, whichever date is the later. Retainage on landscaping work
may be longer, due to its seasonal nature. However, if this project is subject to grant funding then the
retainage may also be held until such time as the Contractor meets its obligations to the City to provide

required information and documentation for compliance with the grant funding requirements.

State law allows for limited early release of retainage in certain circumstance

s dture

Title Vice prrridcnt

' If the Contractor opts to post a retainage bond under RCW 60.28.011, such bond shall be in a form acceptable to the
City, shall be with a surety with a minimum of A.M. Best financial strength rating of a minimum of A-.
Rev 3/18/22
City of Port Orchard and Ceccanti, Inc.
McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation Project # PII/2022-008 Contract #C075-22

\-

Page 15 of30

Page 163 of 596



To

Contractor:
State License No.:

PROPOSAL

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
MCCORMICK VIttAGE PARK SPLASH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTALLATION

coNTRACT NO.C046-22

Mayor and City Council
City of Port Orchard, Washington

Ceccnt \ nc.\
0r-rr RT+3 cIb

Date L
Month/Day/Year

Bi dder's Declorotion an d lJ nde rsta n din g

The Bidder declares that s/he has carefully examined the Contract Documents for the
construction of the project, that s/he has personally inspected the site, that s/he has satisfied
her/himself as to the quantities involved, including materials and equipment, and conditions of
work involved, including the fact that the description of the quantities of work and materials, as
included herein, is brief and is intended only to indicate the general nature of the work and to
identify the said quantities with the detailed requirements of the Contract Documents, and that
this Proposal is made according the provisions and under the terms of the Contract Documents,
which Documents are hereby made a part of this Proposal. The Bidder further declares that s/he
has exercised her/his own judgment regarding the interpretation, of subsurface information and
has utilized all data, which s/he believes pertinent from City and other sources and has made
such independent investigations as the Bidder deems necessary in arriving at her/hls conclusions.

Bidder understands that any bid response documents may be subject to release under the Public
Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW and the City may be required to disclose bid responses upon a
request. Bidder acknowledges that s/he has been advised to mark any records believed to be
trade secrets or confidential in nature as "confidential." lf records marked as "confidential" are
found to be responsive to the request for records, the City as a courtesy to the Bidder may elect
to give notice to Bidder of the request so as to allow Bidder to seek a protective order from a
Court. Bidder acknowledges and agrees that any records deemed responsive to a public records
request may be released atthe sole discretion of, and without notice by, the City.

Contract Execution

The Bidder agrees that if this Proposal is accepted, s/he will, within fourteen (14| calendar days after
Notice of Award, complete and sign the Contract in the form annexed hereto, and will at that time
deliver to the City executed copies of the Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment bond, the
Certificate of lnsurance, and other documentation required by the Contract Documents, and will, to
the extent of her/his Proposal, furnish all machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of
construstion and do the work and furnish all the materials or services necessary to complete all work
as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.

Rev I/29/18 bv SEC
Cily of Port Otchard
McCormick l,1ltuge Park Splash PadTreatment Facility Install.qtian, Project # PW2022-008,

LD.I3
Contract ltC075-22

BidDocuments

Exhibit A

Page 164 of 596



Start of Construction and Cantract Completion

The Bidder further agrees that within fourteen (14) calendar days of CONTRACT START DATE,
s/he will meet with engineering personnel and begin Preconstruction Phase work no later than
five (5) days after the CONTRACT START DATE, and complete the construction within sixty (60)
working days of the Construction Phase START DATE that shall begin after September 12,2022.

Lump Sum and Unit Price Work

The Bidder further proposes to accept as full payment for the work proposed herein the amounts
computed underthe provisions of the Contract Documents and based on lump sum and unit price
amounts, it being expressly understood that the unit prices are independent of the exact
quantities involved. The Bidder agrees that the lump sum prices, and the unit prices represent a
true measure of the labor, services, and materials required to perform the work, including all
allowances for overhead and profit for each type and unit of work called for in these Contract
Documents.

lf any material, item, or service required by the Contract Documents has not been mentioned
specifically, the same shall be furnished and placed with the understanding that the full cost to
the City has been merged with prices named in the proposal.

Rev l/29/IB by SEC
Cily of Port Orchard
McCormick I,1ll.age Park Splash PadTrectttnent Facility Install.ation, Project # PlY2022-008,

LD.I4
Conh"act #C075-22

BidDaa.ments

Page 165 of 596



SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT PRICES
MCCORMICK VILLAGE PARK SPLASH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTATTATION

NOTE: Unit pricesfor allitems and the total amount bid must be shown. The Project must be bid
in its entirety, including all bid items as specifically listed in the Proposal, in order to be considered
a responsive bid. Where conflict occurs between the unit price and the total amount named for
any items, the unit price typed or printed and entered in ink shall prevail. The Contracting Agency
reserves the right to award all work bid according to the lowest qualified responsive bid tendered,
available funds, and as it best serves the interest of the Contracting Agency. All work awarded
will be made to the same Contractor/bidder.

Rev 1/29/lB bv SEC
Cill' of Porl:Orchard

9/N
aD.

McCormick tllkge Park Splash PadTreatment Focility Install.crtbn, Ptoject lt PW2022-008,
LD.l5

Conb'act llC075-22

BidDocumenls

Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

L t STD Mobilization d,
5 Son,:yr) IIMW LS swwa

Mobilization consists'of preconstrutti/on expenses and the costs of prep#atory
Work and operations performed by the Contractor which occur before l-0
percent of the total original Contract amount is earned from other Contract
items. ltems which are not to be included in the item of Mobilization include but
are not limited to: any portion of the Work covered by the specific Contract
item or incidental Work which is to be included in a Contract item or items;
profit, interest on borrowed money, overhead, or management costs; any costs
of mobilizing equipment for force account Work. Based on the lump sum
Contract price for "Mobilization", partial payments will be made as follows:
when 5 percent of the total original Contract amount is earned from other
Contract items, excluding amounts paid for materials on hand, 50 percent of the
amount Bid for mobilization, or 5 percent of the total original Contract amount,
whichever is the least, will be paid.2; when 10 percent of the total original
Contract amount is earned from other Contract items, excluding amounts paid
for materials on hand, i-00 percent of the amount Bid for mobilization, or 10
percent of the total original Contract amount, whichever is the least, will be
paid; when the Substantial Completion Date has been established for the
project, payment of any amount Bid for mobilization in excess of 1-0 percent of
the total original Contract amount will be paid. (1-09) Per Lump Sum

A1 1 SP Demolition and Removals

s /0, o(D. ao LS W,otD,N
Demolition and Removals fump sum will be full payment for all V(ork
associated with the preparation for and implementation of demolition
and removal, as indicated on the plans, except included in or incidentalto
other bid items (See Drawings)

A2 1, STD Erosion Control

5 T60il, fo LS $'b,5n,a

Page 166 of 596



Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

Erosion control lump sum shall be full payment for the work, materials,
tools, labor, and equipment required to install, maintain, and remove all
erosion control measures, except Stabilized Construction Entrance (Bid

Item 43) or Temporary Fence (Bid ltem A4), (See Drawings)

A3 L STD Construction Entrance

s 1.6frt,00 EA 51,67D.00
Stabilized construction dnirances will be measured by each entra nce
constructed. The unit price will include all work, materials, tools, labor,
and equipment required to install, maintain, and remove the
Construction Entrance. (See Drawings)

A4 1, STD Temporary Fence

$ b.Dn, ou LS 56,D00.00
Temporary Fence wiil be measured by linear foot of completed /ence.
The unit price for temporary fence shall include all work, materials, tools,
labor, and equipment required to install, maintain, and remove
Temporary Fence. (See Drawings)

A5 L SP Excavation Export Excess Materials

5 1{,, ilDl,-,At) LS s le nm. ol
Full payment'for all Work associated

with transport of excess materials. (See

Drawings)

I

Per Lump Sum

A6 551 SP Gravel 7-lnch

S J.hD SF t, tu.Da
The unit price per squaie foot shall include hauling, furnishingiplacing,
and compacting base rock as shown on the Plans and specified in the
Contract Documents. The unit price shall also include the removal and
proper disposal of material being replaced by the gravel. No additional or
separate payment shall be made for sub-grade preparation. (See

Drawings) e,9 3t,
A7 315 STD Base Rock 4-lnch \,t2-d) t(

5 ehhDDF tt{ 944?W4b)
The unit price per ton shall include hauling, furnishing, placing, afd
compacting base rock as shown on the
Plans and specified in the Contract Documents. The unit price shall also
include the removal and proper disposal of material being replaced by

$nts"'n
v9.

Rev 1/29/1B by SEC
Cilt' of Port Orchard
McCormick L'ilhge Park Splash PctdTreatment Facility Instctllcttion, Project lt PlV2022-008,

LD-l6
L-onh'act llC075-22

Bid DouLments

Page 167 of 596



Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

the base rock. No additional or separate payment shall be made for sub-
grade preparation. (See Drawings)

A8 10 STD Concrete

5 /, b00, au CY $16, DD2.tt
Cement concretdpavement will be measured by the cubic yard for the/
completed pavement. The volume will be determined from measurements
taken as listed: the width measurement will be the width of the pavement
shown on the typical cross-section in the Plans, additional widening where
called for, or as otherwise specified in writing by the Engineer; the length will be

measured along the center of each Roadway or ramp; the depth shall be
determined by magnetic pulse induction thickness testing. The depth utilized to
calculate the volume shall not exceed the Plan depth plus 0.04 feet. The unit
Contract price per cubic yard for "Cement Conc. Pavement" shall be full
compensation for all costs incurred to carry out the Work. All costs associated
with performing the magnetic pulse induction thickness testing shall be included
in the unit Contract price per cubic yard for "Cement Conc. Pavement" (See

Drawings) i2 (7

A9 236 STD Asphalt Paving 3-inch *
$ *#hov l0.a) *., t{ $.tbtjKlHe

The unit price per ton shall include all work, materials, tools, labdr,'and
equipment required for installation of temporary and permanent asphalt
as shown on the Plans and specified in the Contract Documents. The unit
price shall also include sawcutting existing asphalt, removal and proper
disposal of subgrade and all existing asphalt being replaced by the new
asphalt, preparing the sub-grade for paving; cleaning of existing asphalt;
joint sealing; grinding at transitions; placing tack coat; furnishing, hauling,
placing, and compacting the temporary and permanent asphalt
pavement; adjusting all utility covers and monument case covers to the
new grade as necessary; replacing all disturbed pavement striping and
markings; and all other incidental work to complete the asphalt
pavement. No pay factors will be used for temporary or permanent
asphalt pavement. The Contractor is hereby advised that existing asphalt
pavement varies by depth and material and no additional compensation
shall be made for these variances. The unit price per ton shall include all

work, materials, tools, labor, and equipment required for installation of
temporary and permanent asphalt trench patch, as shown on the Plans,

including but not limited to, subgrade preparation, cleaning of existing
asphalt, joint sealing, placing tack coat, furnishing, hauling, placing, and
compacting the temporary and permanent asphalt pavement, adjusting
utility covers and monument case covers to the new grade as necessary,

2,w
fr.D-

Rev l/29i18 bv SEC
Cily of Pe7'1 Otchard
McCormichblllage Park Splash PsdTreqtrnentFacility Instctllcttion, Project PlV2022-008,

LD.l7
Canh'act ltC075-22

Bid Documents

Page 168 of 596



Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

and replacing disturbed pavement striping and markings. The amount of
asphalt is determined by the surface area shown on the drawings. (See

Drawings)

A10 1 SP Landscaping

$ 30, nln r0 LS ,JO,Til,N
The Landscaping lump sum aliwork, materials, tools, labor, and '
equipment required to complete landscaping activities as determined in

the Contract Drawings, including but not limited to seeding, mulching,
planting, and tree pruning (See Drawings)

A11 466 SP Overexcavation Is la. 0u CY s %u00, a
(Words) (See Drawings) Per Cubic YJrd

ALz L STD Pre-Cast Structure

5 b,[M,N EA ,TDN, OU

The unit cost fo? each Pre-Cast Structure shall include all work, r{aterials,
tools, labor, and equipment required for installation of the pre-cast

structure. (See Drawings)

A13 1 STD Site Piping

$ / 50, nn. tt} LS slc),N.00
The site piping lumfl sum for site pipe of the kind and size specifie-d in the
contract drawings shall be full pay for furnishing, hauling, and assembling
in place the completed installation including all wyes, tees, special

fittings, joint materials, and bedding and backfill material for the
completion of the installation to the required lines and grades (See

Drawings) ,Q4,nf'oo
B1 252 STD New BUilding ?p,

$ 4#nAP -7QD.-t SF "#rtllfuw
New building will be measured per square foot for the completed
building. The unit price per square foot shall include all work, materials,
tools, labor, and equipment required for installation of the new building,
as shown in the Contract Drawings, except as included in Building
Foundation.(See Drawings)

C1 3 STD Building Foundatio-ns I .5n. au CY s(4u,[), uo
Building Foundati6n will be measured by the cubic yard for the '
completed building foundation. The unit price per cubic yard of building
foundation shall be full payment for all costs to perform the Work in

6.q

Rev 1/29iIB by SEC
CiLt' of Port Orchard
McCormichb'il.hge Parlt SplashPadTreatmentFacil.ity Instctllcrtion, Project# PlV2022-008,

LD.l8
Conh"act flC075-22

BidDocumenl.s

Page 169 of 596



Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

connection with constructing building foundation. (Words) (See

Drawings)
D1 I SP Grinder-Pump Paclage

s LS 5 4.nm rD
The Grinder euri-d Package lump sum price shall include all wol(
material, tools, labor, and equipment required for installation, testing,
and final set up of Grinder Pump Package. (See Drawings)

D2 1 SP Media Filter

$ LS $ /D,Ail. tt
The Media Filter lvlmp sum price shall include allwork, materialsltools,
labor, and equipment required to furnish and install the media filter. (See

Drawings)
D3 I SP V.oChemical Feed Tanks \B,9x> P.

s #iatv.tr b,ffi) LS 5J1$,ffit
The Chemical Feedfanks lump sum price shall include all work, m?terials,
tools, labor, and equipment required to furnish and install the chemical
feed tanks. (See Drawings)

D4 1 SP Chemical Feed Pumps Y3) 9,a
s LS $JJ4,ffi72

The Chemical Fedd Pumps lump sum price shall include all work,'
materials, tools, labor, and equipment required to furnish and install the
chemical feed pumps. (See Drawings)

D5 1 SP Miscellaneous Chemical Equipment

$ LS t4r6r)tD, a
The Miscellaneousthemical Equipment lump sum price shall inc[ide all

work, materials, tools, labor, and equipment required to furnish and
installthe miscellaneous chemical equipment as indicated on the
Contract Drawings. (See Drawings)

D5 1, SP lnterior Mechanicql Piping

s LS 5q ma, la
The interior mechanical pipifig lump sum for kind and size pipe.specified
in the contract drawings shall be full pay for furnishing, hauling, and
assembling in place the completed installation including all wyes, tees,
special fittings, joint materials, and appurtenances for the completion of
the installation as indicated on the Contract Drawings. (See Drawings)

E1 1 SP HVAC Eqqipment

s LS s KiltD.0u

B,e,

Rev l/29/18 bt; SEC
Cih, of Port Orchard
lulcCormickl,'ill,age Park Splash PctdTreatrnentFacility Instctllcrtion, Project# PlV2022-00B,

LD-I9
Confi"act tlC075-22

BidDctcttments

Page 170 of 596



Item
No.

Estimated

Quantity
SP or
STD

Description of ltems
Unit
Price

Amount

The HVAC Equipment lump sum price shall include all work, materials,
tools, labor, and equipment required to furnish and install the HVAC
equipment as indicated on the Contract Drawings (See Drawings)

F1 1 SP 200 Amp Breaker Sub-Panel

5 1, t)DD. A0 LS sJ.nfl.0u
The 200 Amp Breake'r Sub Panel lump sum price shall includealfwork,
materials, tools, labor, and equipment required to furnish and install the
200 amp breaker sub panel as indicated on the Contract Drawings(See
Drawings)

Sub-Total $ S4o, ("11

Washington State Sales Tax (9.2%l s 41j315a
TOTAL $ 

'qq3gc.s7
SALES TAX

Retaililrg/Retail Sales Tax Rule WAC 458-20-170: Washington State Retail sales tax added as percent (7o)
in addition to conh'act bid price; sales tax shorvn as separate line item.

Rev l/29/18 by SEC
Cily of Pers 6r"rnrO
McConnick l,'il.lage Park Splash PadTreatrnent Facility Installation, Project # PlV2022-008,

LD.2O
Conh"act tlC075-22

BidDoamenxs

Page 171 of 596



Docu

The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to start construction on this project, if awarded, no later
than fourteen (14) calendar days after Notice to Proceed and to complete the project within the
time pulated in the Contract. By signing below, Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following
Add da to the Bid Documents:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
MCCORMICK VILLAGE PARK SPLASH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTATLATION

NO. C075-22

6 20>z
endum No Date ipt Addendum No. Date of Receipt

Ad endum No Date R ceipt Addendum No. Date of Receipt

N : Failure to acknowledge receipt of Addendo moy be cansidered as an irregularity in the Bid
and Owner reserves the right to determine whether the bid will be disqualified.

Bys ing below, Bidder certifies that s/he has reviewed the insurance provisions of the Bid
ents and will provide the required coverage.

The ndersigned Bidder hereby certifies that, within the three-year period immediately
p ding the bid solicitation date for this Project, the Bidder is not a "willful" violator, as defined
ln 49.48.082, of any provision of chapters 49.46,49.48, or 49.52 RCW, as determined by a

final nd binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Department of Labor and
ries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction.lnd

N : lf the Bidder is a co-partnership, give firm name under which business is transacted;
I must be executed by a partner. lf the Bidder is a corporation, proposal must be executed

in th corporate name by the president or vice-president (or any other corporate officer
panied by evidence of authority to sign).

Rev B bv SEC
Orchard

acco

l,'ilkge Park Splash PadTreahnentFacility Instctllction, Project# PlV2022-0A8,
LD.21

Conh"act flC075-22

BidDoa.men!,s

OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR BIDDER:

t'l 
c(

the
rtify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that
'oregoing is trueand correctr"

t, la.+laott
Date:Sign atu re

Location or Place Executed (City, State):

/=Turor\q-l\.o h
Prin Fd-trtame

4^t
and Title:'l^Lt[')e,-L 

JuM,)
Busi
ttttt
fnt

ness Addfess: \
r brOot-d.a.\s- B.A €ast
i\T\rd.- \.)Q 9ft1'Lt*tn

Business Telephone:

Gae)5n-aq1o

ci4,

Page 172 of 596



STATE OF

COUNTY OF Pir rco
I certify that I know or have sa

this proposal, on oath stated that
evidence that
was aut zed to execute the proposal

(title) of

Conh'act #C075-22

BidDoa.ments

)ss

tisfactorv

@/srre'
gned

and

(name of party on behalf of whom proposal was
executed) and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes
mentioned in this proposal.

Dated this A* day of 204a'.

\-s-W
o

Notary Public

rshe Rt qS

Printed Name

Mv Commission Expires
0l-ts-.1,1

owle it as the

.\ttno

Rev 1/29/lB bv SEC
Ciltt of Port Orchard
McCormick l,'ilkge Park Splash PadTrecttment Fcrcility Installcttion, Project # PlV2022-00B,

LD.22

i >o<
'. PUaLto

I

ANOT R Y

Page 173 of 596



BtDDER',S QUAL|FICAT|ON FORM

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
MCCORMICK VITLAGE PARK SPLASH PAD TREATMENT FACITITY INSTALLATION

CoNTRACT NO. C075-22

of Contractor:1. Name
feccnnh.\nc.

Address:
\ UAoW

2. Telephone No

No,:
t063t 55t-\o1tt3 Fax

3. Washington State Dept. of Labor and lndustries Worker's Compensation Account No.:

3l;r tbA. oa

4. Washington State Dept. of Licensing Contractor's Registration No.: L?CU+Vaor.-\Cnf

Expiration Date: of]gdal
5. Washington State Uniform Business ldentifier No.: \.ltrO 3-\1 {1*

(Must hove UBI number before the contract is aworded.)

6. Number of years engaged in contracting business under above name )+5 'gro rS

7. At the time of bid submittal, did the contractor have a certificate of registration in compliance
with Chapter 18.27 RCW? u"J]))

0
8. Does the contractor have industrial insurance coverage for its employees working in

Washington as requ ired in Title 51. RCW? Uo-tlt-.r
a

9. Does the contractor have an

RCW? (provide number)
employment security department number as required in Title 50

' \trbtatn)+
10. Does the contractor have a state excise tax registration number as required in Title 82 RCW?

(provide number): t\o U.- \e\O ?\1q3.*
a

11. Has the contractor been disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under RCW

3e.06.010 or 3e.L2.o6s(s)? No

L2. Has the contractor received training on the requirements related to public works and
prevailing wage under chapters 39.04 and 39.L2 RCW, as required in RCW 39.04.350(1Xf)
4x mt rrf

I
Rev 1/29/lB by SEC
Cily of Po*Orchard
McCormickVill,age Park Splash PadTreatrnentFacil.ity Instalfution, Ptojectll PW2022-008,

LD.23
Conh'act tlC075-22

Bid Doatmenls

Page 174 of 596



13. Within the three-year period immediately preceding the date of the bid solicitation, was the
contractor (determined by a final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the
department of labor and industries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or
general jurisdiction) to have willfully violated, as defined in RCW 49.48.082, any provision of
chapter 49.46,49.48, or 49.52RCW? \)O

14. Has the contractor violated the "Off-site Prefabricated Non-Standard Project Specific ltems"
reporting requirements more than one time as determined by the department of labor and
industries? \J-

15. Particular types of construction performed by your company

Eu(*hwuP-IL \ tt+,,t* hon)

16. Gross amount of contracts now on hand: 5 lbD ncr\\\refl
17. List similar recent construction projects that your firm has done in the last 5 years (i.e., water

and storm and sanitary sewer main construction, road reconstruction, excavations, extensive

dewatering, etc.):

Amount Type Owner's
Name

Phone

\e<-ru

Rev l/29/18 by SEC
Cih, of Port Orchard
McCormick l"ilbge Park Splash Psd Treatrnent Facil,ity Install.ution, Pt oject lt P14r2022-00B,

r.D-2,/
Conh"(tct lNC075-22

BidDoutmenls

Page 175 of 596



06-24-22 Ceccanti, lnc. Completed Projects

2019- September 2021

2019 - September 2020

2017 - December2019

2016- October 2018

2015- September 2017

2014- June 201 6

2014- Auqust 2015

2012- December 2014

2011- May 2013

2009- June2012

2009- November 201 1

2008- December2010

2008- April 2009

Start/Gomplete

SR410 Traffic Avenue

South 216th Street

Harbor Hill Drive

SeaTac - Co nnecti n g 28l24th

North Base Vikinq Park & Ride

Delridqe CSO Retrofit

Calistoqa Setback Levee

Stadium Way

South Central Forcemain

Belfair WWC

244th Avenue Bridqe

94th Avenue East / 116th Street

SR 16 Burley Olalla lnterchanqe

Proiect

City of Sumner

City of Des Moines

Citv of Giq Harbor

City of SeaTac

Kitsap Transit

City of Seattle

City of Orting

City of Tacoma

Kitsap Countv

Mason County

City of Sammamish

Pierce County

WSDOT

Owner/General Gontractor

$ 11,433,146.00

$ 6,058,709.00

$ 9,455,924.00

$ 12,610,395.00

$ 13,303,909.00

$ 5,605,863.00

$ 14,045,012.00

$ 13,664,775.44

$ 4,992,368.00

$ 11,920,549.53

$ 9,986,246.00

$ 7,375,214.00

$ 15,864,309.00

Gontract Amount

Tammy Seymour

Scott Romano

Trent Ward

Hein Nguyen

Stephanie Edwards

Tara Wonq Esteban

Matt Kastberq

Lynn DeLorenzo

Barbara Zaroff

Brian Matthews

Jed lreland

Jerry Bryant

Brenden Clarke

Contact Person

253-604-6737

206-870-6522

253-853-7553

206-973-4720

206-436-051 5

206-684-5903

253-604-6735

253-594-7919

360-337-5777

360-427-9670

425-295-0563

253-798-7172

360-874-3020

Phone

Page 176 of 596



18. What is the construction experience of the principal individuals to be assigned to this project?

Years of
Construction

Na Title nence Availabil

Pursuant to RCW 39.06.020, the contractor further agrees to verifv responsibilitv criteria for each
of its subcontractors and to require each of its subcontractors to both v
as described herein for its subcontractors and include instant condition for verification
requirement.

ized ature)
Title: ,nlf,r#rCricoA

u\a+\aa, VioGRpddcnt
Date

NOTE: Any bidder having current outstanding litigation with the City will not be consldered

responsible and will be rejected by the City.

By:

Rev I/39/lBbv SEC
Cilt' of Port Orchard
McCormick l4l.l.age Park Splash PcrdTreatunent Fqcility Inskill.crtion, Project # PlV2022-008,

LD-25
Contract #C075-22

Bid Doclmenls

Page 177 of 596



BID SECURITY

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
MCCORMICK VILTAGE PARK sPIAsH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTATTATION

CoNTRACT NO. C075-22

Bld Deposit:

The undersigned Principal hereby submits a Bid Deposit with the City of Port Orchard in the
deposit, certified or cashier's check, or postal money order in the

N/A

form ofa cash

amount of
Dollars

($

Bld Bondr

KNOWALLMEN BYTHESE PRESENTS: Thatwe, Ceccanti, lnc. , as Principaland
Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) as Surety, are held firmly bound unto the City of port Orchard,
Washington, as Obligee, in the penal sum of ***Five Percent of Bid Amount*** (5%) Dollars, for the
payment of which the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns, jointly and severally by these presents.

The conditions of this obligation are such that if the Obligee shall make any award to the Principal for
IthSl)'llnt{rXl\**rf5fio**to*ttooot*tottttt .. Port orchard, washington, according to the terms of the
Proposal or Bid made by the Principal therefore, and the Principal shall duly make and enter into a contract
with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of said Proposal or Bid and award and shall give bond for
the faithful performance thereof, with Surety or Sureties approved by the Obligee, or if the Principal shall,
in case of failure to do so, pay and forfeit to the Obligee the penal amount of the deposit specified in the
call for bids, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and
effect and the Surety shallforthwith pay and forfeit to the Obligee, as penalty and liquidated damages,
the amount of this Bond.

Signed, Sealed and Dated 16;5 24th day of June 2022 _.

)

818 W Riverside Avenue, Suite 800

Spokane, WA 99201

Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the current Authorized lnsurance List in the State of
Washington per Section L-02.7 of the Standard Specification.

Rev l/29/)Bb1,SEC
CiD' o71>or, O,"U,rr,,
A,IcConnick l;illage Parlc Splash Pad Treabnent Facility Installation, Prqiect # PW2022-008,

LD-26
Contrqct llc075-22

Bid Documents

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify ScalPage 178 of 596



MEncl{r{l-{'F\
BONDING COMPANY,.

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KnowAll Persons By These Presents, that MERCHANTS BONDING CQMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC.,

both being corporations of the State of lowa (herein collectively called the "Companies") do hereby make, constitute and appoint, individually,

George C Schroeder; Jeffrey F O'Neill; Jennifer Mendenhall; Lauren E Richardson; Mark Roff; Nicholas W Paget; Patricia M Wachter; Shawn M

Wilson; Shelly Donovan

their true and laMul Attorney(s)-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety(ies) and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings,
contracts and other written instruments in the nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity
of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any
actions or proceedings allowed by law.

This Power-olAttorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following By-Laws adopted by the Board
of Directors of Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) on April 23,2011 and amended August 14, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors
of MerchantsNational Bonding, lnc., on October 16,2015.

"The President, Secretary, Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary or any Vice President shall have power and authority

to appoint Attorneys-in-Fact, and to authorize them to execute on behalf of the Company, and attach the seal of the Company thereto, bonds and

undertakings, recognizances, contracts of indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof."

"The signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile or electronic transmission to any Power of Attorney
or Certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or other suretyship obligations of the

Company, and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manually fixed."

ln connection with obligations in favor of the Florida Department of Transportation only, it is agreed that the power and aut hority hereby given to the

Attorney-in-Fact includes any and all consents for the release of retained percentages and/or final estimates on engineering and construction

contracis required by the State of Florida Department of Transportation, lt is fully understood that consenting to the State of Florida Department

of Transportation making payment of the final estimate to the Contractor and/or its assignee, shall not relieve this surety company of any of
its obligations under its bond.

ln connection with obligations in favor of the Kentucky Department of Highways only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given 
.

to the Attorney-in-FaCt cannot be modified or revoked unless prior written personal notice of such intent has been given to the Commissioner-
Department of Highways of the Commonwealth of Kentucky at least thirty (30) days prior to the modification or revocation.

ln Witness Whereof, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed and sealed this 11th day of February , 2020

STATE OF IOWA ltrtt

r$t?''f" ,'
otnl|i.:.i$

MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL)
MERCHYF NATIONAL BONDING, INC.,,/3,,',fu

Trttn

COUNTY OF DALLAS ss.
On this 11th day of February 2O2O , before me appeared Larry Taylor, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn

did say that he is president of MERCHANTS BONDING CoMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC.; and that the

seals iffixed to the foregoing instrument are the Corporate Seals of the Companies; and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf

of the Companies by authority of their respective Boards of Directors.

fffiT
POLLY MASON

Commission Number 750576
My Commission Expires

January 07,2023

YWLSz.-,

Notary Public

(Expiration of notary's commission
does not invalidate this instrument)

l, William Warner, Jr., Secretary of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, lNC., do hereby

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the POWER-OF-ATTORNEY executed by said Companies, which is still in full

force and effect and has not been amended or revoked.

ln Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Companies on this 24th day of June ,2022

e

POA 0018 (1/20)

B$t.!l]l|llh.rrk^-*,,{@
"=*:.ii.. 

secretary

Page 179 of 596



Failure to return this Declaration as part of the bid proposal package
will make the bid nonresponsive and ineligible for award.

N ON.COLLUSION DEC LARATION

l. by signing the proposal. hereby declare, under penalty of
perjury under the laws of the United States that the following
statements are true and correct:

That ihe undersigned person(sj, firnr. associa:ron or corooratton has
rhavei not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreenlent.
cafticipated in any collusion, or othenyise :aken any action in rastrain: of
free ccnrpetitiue t:idding in connection lvith ihe pro1ect for',lhich this
proposal is sul:nritted.

That by sagning the signature page of this proposal, I am
deemed to have signed and to have agreed to the provisions
of this declaration.

NOTICE TO ALL BIDDERS

To report rrgging ac':rvrties call

1-800-424-9071

The U S. Departnrent of Transportatron (USDOT) operates rhe al:ove toll-free
"hotline" L4ondaythrough Friday, S 00 a.nr. to 5:00 p nr.. easterntrnre Anyone
'.vith knowledge of possil)le l:id rigging, lridcler collusion or other frauduleni
aciivrties shoulC use the "hotline'' to report such activities.

The 'hotilne' is cart of USDOT's continuing effort to ideniiflr'and investiga:e
highvray consrruction contract fraud and alluse and is operated under the
direction of the USDOT lnspector General All inforntation rv'ill tle irea:ed
confidentially and caller anonynrity will be respected.

1

2

Fcrr,:::-f35.{
Fle! %: !- l:

E-

CiIl' of Port Orchard
lulcCormick l,llhge Park Splash PadTreeftrnent Ftrciliry* Installtrtion, Pr oject # PW2022-008,

LD.27
Conh'act llC075-22

Bi d Doa.tmenl.s

Page 180 of 596



CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH WAGE PAYMENT STATUTES

The bidder hereby certifies that, within the three-year period immediately preceding the bid

solicitation date Friday, May 20rh,2022, the bidder is not a "willful" violator, as defined in RCW

49.48.082, of any provision of chapters 49.46,49.48, or 49.52 RCW, as determined by a final and

binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Department of Labor and lndustries or
through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or generaljurisdiction.

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the foregoing is

true and correct.

Bidder's Busi ss

orized Officer presentative*

Printed Name

Title

si

to\a+\aa
Date

Check One:

Sole Proprietorship n Partnership n

Tiu r$NO-,

Joint Venture n Corporatio n/ttCfl

City State

State of lncorporation, or if not a corporation, State where business entity was formed:

lf a co-partnership, give firm name under which business is transacted:

*lf a corporatian or limited liability company, this certificate must be executed in the entity's
nome by the president or vice-president (or any other corporote officer accompanied by

evidence of outhority to sign). tf a co-portnership, this certificate must be executed by a portner.

Rev 1/29/18 bv SEC
Ci\, oTltort Or"rorO
M cC o rmi ck L'i I h g e P ark Sp Ia sh P a d T re atment F acili ty Ins tctll.a ti on,

LD.28
P t oiect # PlV2 022-008, Contract ltc07 5-22

Bid Dctamrcnts

Page 181 of 596



SUPPLEMENTAL CRITERIA INFORMATION FORM

As evidence that the Bidder meets the mandatory and supplemental responsibility criteria, the
apparent two lowest Bidders must submit to the Owner by 12:00 p.m. (noon) of the second
business day following the bid submittal deadline, this Supplemental Criteria lnformation Form
verifying that the Bidder meets the Mandatory Criteria under RCW 39.04.350(1) and the
Supplemental Bidder Criteria stated below. The two lowest Bidders shall also submit supporting
documentation including but not limited to that detailed below (sufficient in the sole judgment

of the Owner) demonstrating compliance with all mandatory and supplemental responsibility
criteria. The Owner reserves the right to request such documentation from other Bidders as well,
and to request further documentation as needed to assess Bidder responsibility. The Owner also

reserves the right to obtain information from third parties and independent sources of
information concerning a Bidder's compliance with the mandatory and supplemental criteria,
and to use that information in their evaluation. The Owner may (but is not required to) consider
mitigating factors in determining whether the Bidder complies with the requirements of the
su pplemental criteria.

The basis for evaluation of Bidder compliance with these mandatory and supplemental criteria
shall include any documents or facts obtained by Owner (whether from the Bidder or third
parties) including but not limited to: (i) financial, historical, or operational data from the Bidder;
(ii) information obtained directly by the Owner f rom others for whom the Bidder has worked, or
other public agencies or private enterprises; and (iii) any additional information obtained by the
Owner which is believed to be relevant to the matter.

lf the Owner determines the Bidder does not meet the bidder responsibility criteria and is

therefore not a responsible Bidder or the bid is not responsive, the Owner shall notify the Bidder

in writing, with the reasons for its determination. lf the Bidder disagrees with this determination,
it may appeal the determination within two (2) business days of the Owner's determination by

presenting its appeal and any additional information to the Owner. The Owner will consider the
appeal and any additional information before issuing its final determination. lf the final
determination affirms that the Bidder is not responsible (or the bid is not responsive), the Owner
will not execute a contract with any other Bidder until at least two (2) business days after the
Bidder determined to be not responsible (or the bid not responsive) has received the Owner's
final determination.

Request to Change Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Criteria Prior to Bid: Bidders with
concerns about the relevancy or restrictiveness of the Supplemental Bidder Responsibility

Criteria may make or submit requests to the Owner to modify the criteria. Such requests shall be

in writing, describe the nature of the concerns, and propose specific modifications to the criteria.
Bidders shall submit such requests to the Owner no later than five (5) business days prior to the
bid submittal deadline and address the request to the Project Engineer or such other person

designated by the Owner in the Bid Documents.

Rev l/29/18 by SEC
Citl' of Port Orchard
'McCotmickb'il.fuge Pa* SplashPcrdTreatmentFacil.ity htstallatictn, Projectli PlV2022-008,

LD.29
Contract llC075-22

BidDoa.ments

Page 182 of 596



For criteria with check boxes, the bidder will check either "Yes" or "No." For each "Yes" answer
on the form, the Bidder shall provide a signed and dated statement providing the project
information re uested and lainin the extenuatin circumstances.

mation

a$\ Po-d\coJncleN\{
Project Name:

Part A. General Company

Company Name: L<tS-sSn
Address: \r,F q?

sNg Q-ett-anh\xt.wv
Years in business as a subcontractor:

Contact E-mail:

\sYears in business as a Prime Contractor:

Contact Phone

Years in business under Present Name: $
List any former company names under which the company, its owners, andlor its principals
has operated in the past five (5! years. UgS.-r-..-'

Explain reason for name change(s) in the past five (5 years)

Part B. Delinquent State Taxes

ls the bidder listed on the Washington State Department of Revenue's "Delinquent
Taxpayer List" website:
http:l I dor.wa.govfcoqtent/fileandpaytaxes/latefi I ing/dtlwest.aspx

Yes ruol

lf 'Yes" attach a copy of the written payment plan approved by the Department of
Revenue.

Part C. Federal Debarment

The bidder shall not be listed as a current debarred or suspended bidder on the Federal

"system For Award Management" website www.sam.gov. ls the bidder listed as debarred
or suspended? \

XNoYes f 1

Rev 1/29/18 by SEC
CiLv of Port Orchard
McCormickL'il.Iage Park Splash PadTrealmentFacility Instctllcttion, Ptoject# PlV2022-008,

LD.3O
Contract ftc075-22

BidDocuments

Page 183 of 596



Pa rt D. Subcontractor Responsibi lity

Does the bidder's standard subcontract form include the subcontractor language required
by RCW 39.05.020? Does the bidder have an established procedure which it uses to
validate the responsibility of each of its subcontractors? Does the subcontract form require
that each of the bidder's subcontractors have and document a similar procedure for sub-
tier subcontractors?

YesX No

lf 'Yes) or "No", provide a copy of its standard subcontract form and a copy of the
procedures used to validate the responsibility of subcontractors.

Part E. Prevailing Wages

ln the last five (5) years, has the bidder had prevailing wage complaints filed against it or
received violations as determined by the applicable state or federal government agency
monitoring prevailing andl or Davis-Bacon wage compliance?

Yes f rrroM
lf "Yes," attach a separate signedldated statement listing the prevailing wage violations,
along with an explanation of each violation and how it was resolved. The City shall
evaluate these explanations and the resolution of each violation to determine whether the
violations demonstrate a pattern of failure to pay prevailing wages to workers unless there
are extenuating circumstances acceptable to the City.

Part F. Claims Against Retainage and Bonds

Does the bidder have a record of any claims filed against the retainage or payment bonds
for public works projects during the previous three (3) years?

ves f] No

ll "Yes", attach , ,ipt"r"t" signed / dated statement for each project with claims which
includes the following: 1) Owner and contact information for the owner; 2) a list of claims
filed against the retainage and/or payment bond for the project; and 3) a written
explanation of the circumstances surrounding the claim and the ultimate resolution of the
claim. The City may contact previous owners to validate the information provided by the
Bidder. The City shall evaluate the information to determine if it demonstrates a lack of
effective management by the bidder of making timely and appropriate payments, unless
there are extenuating circumstances acceptable to the City in its sole discretion.

Rev I/29/18 by SEC
Cih, of Port Orchard
McCotmick l,'ill.age Park Splash PudTreatrnent Facili\, Installcrtirn, Pr oject lt PlV2022-008,

LD-31
Cctnh"act tlC075-22

Bid Doctments

Page 184 of 596



Part G. Public Bidding Crime

Has the bidder been convicted of a crime involving bidding on a public works contract
within the last five (5) years?

ruoKYes

Part H. Termination for Cause/Termination for Default

Has the bidder had any public works contract terminated for cause by any government
ring the previous five (5! years?agency du

Yes f] ruoV
lf "Yes", attach 

" 
t"ptAte signed / dated statement listing each contract terminated, the

government agency terminating the contract and the circumstances involving the
termination for cause. The City will determine if there are extenuating circumstances
acceptable to the City in its sole discretion.

Part l. Lawsuits

Has the bidder been involved in lawsuits (or arbitrations for those instances where
arbitration is completed in lieu of a lawsuit) with judgments entered against the bidder for
failure to meet terps/n contracts in the previous five (5) years?

ruo,E,Yes

lf "Yes", attach a list of lawsuits andlor arbitrations with judgments / arbitration awards
entered against the bidder along with a written explanation of the circumstances
surrounding each lawsuit andlor arbitration.

Part J. Work Experience

List at least three construction projects on the attached Work Experience Form, each of
which meet all of the following riteria:

r Successfully completed pavement repairs of arterial classified streets andl or
highways, in the past 7 years.

o Work includes grinding and patching.
r Contract value exceeding $100,000.00.

Rev 1/29i1 B bv SEC
Cill'of Port Otchard
McCormick L1l.l.age Park Splash PadTreatment Facility Instctll.ation, Ptoject.lt PlV2022-00B,

LD.32
Llontract ltc075-22

BidDouments

Page 185 of 596



Part K. Signature

I hereby certify, warront ond declare under penalty of perjury that the information included

herein is correct and complete. Failure to disclose requested information or submitting false
or misleading infarmation may result in rejection of my bid, termination of my contract, ond

may impact my firm's obility to bid op future praiects.

zed RepreseSignature of

trla+laa
Date

ey6ted Name of Authorized Representative

I[on VanAer G,nend

Title

\tce Prc\\c\€-r\F

Rev I/29/18 bt'SEC
Ci[v of Port Orchard
M c C o rmi ck l,'ill,ag e P a* S p lash P a d T re a tment F acili ty In s tctllcr ti on,

LD.33
Conh'act #C075-22

BidDocuments

Pr oject ll PW2022-008,

Page 186 of 596



SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per RCW 39.30.060, the bidder is required to submit as part of the bid the names of the
subcontractors with whom the bidder will subcontract for pertormance of the work of HVAC

(heating, ventilation, and air conditioning), plumbing as described in chapter 18.106 RCW, and

electrical as described in chapter !9.28 RCW, or to name itself for the work and is also required
to list the names of subcontractors with whom the bidder will subcontract for performance of
the work of structural steel installation and rebar installation. The bidder shall not list more than
one subcontractor for each category of work identified, unless subcontractors vary with bid
alternates, in which case the bidder must indicate which subcontractor will be used for which
alternate.

The work to be performed is to be listed below the subcontractor(s) name. The requirement to
name the bidder's proposed HVAC, plumbing, electrical, structural steel installation, and rebar
installation subcontractors applies only to proposed HVAC, plumbing, electrical, structural steel
installation, and rebar installation subcontractors who will contract directly with the bidder
submitting the bid to the public entity.

Failure to list subcontractors who are proposed to perform the work of HVAC (heating,

ventilation and air conditioning), plumbing, and electrical, or to name itself to perform such

work, or failing to name subcontractors who are proposed to perform structural steel
installation or rebar installation, or naming more than one subcontractor to perform the same
work will result in your bid being non-responsive and therefore void.

Subcontractor Name

Work to be Performed

Subcontractor Name
Work to be Performed

Subcontractor Name
Work to be Performed

I

Rev I/29/lB by SEC
Cily of Pot't Orchard
McCormick Llll,age Park Splash PadTreahnent Faciliry* Installcttion, Pr oject tt PlV2022-008,

LD-3't
Contract llc075-22

Bid Docrtmenls

Page 187 of 596



Subcontractor Name
Work to be Performed

Subcontractor Name
Work to be Performed

Rev l/29/18 by SEC
City of PortOrchard
McCormicb l/il.lage Park Splash PadTreattnent Fetcility Installation, Ptoject # PWZ022-008,

LD-s5
Contract #C075-22

BidDoaments

Page 188 of 596



Addendum fl
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

MCCORMICK VIIIAGE PARK SPIASH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTALLATION

coNTRACt NO. C075-22

Notice is hereby given that the deadline for sealed bids for construction of the McCormick Village Park

Splash Pad Treatment Facility lnstallation has been extended to Friday July 1, 2022, at 1:ff) PM.

Sealed bids will be received at the office of the City Clerk for the City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect
Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366, for construction of the McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment
Facility lnstallation, Contract No C075-22.

No proposals will be accepted after the above-stated time. lmmediately following the above-stated
time, the proposals will be publicly opened and read.

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Scale
Page 189 of 596



ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

MCCORMICK VILLAGE PARK SPLASH PAD TREATMENT FACILITY INSTALTATION

CoNTRACT NO. C075-22

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received at the office of the City Clerk for the City

of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98355 until 1:00 PM on Friday, I*+ib

N,ZOZZ, for construction of the McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility

lnstallation, Contract No C075-22. No proposals will be accepted after the above-stated

time. lmmediately following the above-stated time, the proposals will be publicly opened and

read. I

The project includes: a new package pump station and treatment building that will treat water

recycled from the exlsting McCormick Woods Splash Pad.

The project will be completed in two phases: Preconstruction Phase and Construction Phase.

The Preconstruction Phase shall begin within five (5) days of the CONTRACT START DATE and

include submittals review, equipment procurement, requests for information, and work

directives, if needed. The Construction Phase includes the installation of the treatment
equipment and shall begin no earlier than September t2, 2022, after the summer season

for the splash pad has concluded. The total anticipated duration of both phases is seven (7)

months from the CONTRACT START DATE.

Work is shown on the drawings and described in the specifications but, in part, includes:

. Construcl a 2O'-4" xLI'-0" building
o Furnish and install one duplex package grinder pump station
o Furnish and install a new solenoid control panel

o Furnish and install one booster pump
r Furnish and install one media filter
o Furnish and install six hydro pneumatic tanks
r Furnish and install one sodium hypochlorite (chlorine solution)feed system,
r Furnish and install one peracetic acid (pH adjustment solution)feed system,
o Furnish and install piping
o Relocated the existing solenoid valve control system
o Furnish and install electrical equipment,
r Furnish and install landscaping and fencing,
r Furnish and install sitework,

The Enginee/s construction estimate forthis project is $472,000.

'T- IJ*,f

#*{
.* t

/

Rev 1/29/18 b1t SEC
CiLl: of Port Orchard
McCotmick l4l.Iage Park Splash PadTreatunent Faciliry* Installcttion, Project # PW2022-008,

LD-1
Conh"act #C075-22

Advertisement

Page 190 of 596



Rev 1/29/18 by SEC 

City of Port Orchard 

McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation,     Project # PW2022-008,     Contract #C075-22 
LD-66 

Contract Documents 

APPENDIX A 

CONTRACT PROVISIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

Exhibit B

Page 191 of 596



PROJECT MANUAL 

FOR 

City of Port Orchard WA 
McCormick Woods Splash Pad  

Treatment Equipment Installation 

Signed 6/3/2022 
Lee H. Odell, PE 

WA #29695 

Prepared by: 

Murraysmith, Inc 
Wilsonville, OR 

June 2022

Page 192 of 596



McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility 
Table of Contents 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DIVISION 0 – Documents 
00-700  Standard General Conditions 
00-800  Supplementary Conditions 

DIVISION 01 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
01-010 Summary of Project 
01-027 Application for Payment 
01-028 Change Order Procedures 
01-030 Alternatives 
01-090 Reference Standards 
01-300 Submittals  
01-400 Quality Control 
01-500 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
01-600 Material and Equipment 
01-650 Starting of Systems 
01-700 Contract Closeout 
01-730 Operation and Maintenance Data 
01-740 Warranties and Bonds 

Page 193 of 596



 
 

 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

SECTION 00700 

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS 
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Prepared By 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Endorsed By 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 194 of 596



 
 

 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Copyright© 2018 

National Society of Professional Engineers 

1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 

(703) 684-2882 

www.nspe.org 

American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 347-7474 

www.acec.org 

American Society of Civil Engineers 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 

(800) 548-2723 

www.asce.org 

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed 
above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC 
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE. 

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring 
organizations above. 

 

Page 195 of 596



 
 

 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Guidelines Page 1 of 2 

GUIDELINES FOR USE OF EJCDC® C-700, 
STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

1.0 PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THE DOCUMENT 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018), is the foundation 
document for the EJCDC Construction Series. The General Conditions define the basic rights, 
responsibilities, risk allocations, and contractual relationship of the Owner and Contractor, and establish 
how the Contract is to be administered. 

2.0 OTHER DOCUMENTS 

EJCDC documents are intended to be used as a system and changes in one EJCDC document may require 
a corresponding change in other documents. Other EJCDC documents may also serve as a reference to 
provide insight or guidance for the preparation of this document. 

These General Conditions have been prepared for use with either EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between 
Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price), or EJCDC® C-525, Agreement Between 
Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Cost-Plus-Fee) (2018 Editions). The provisions of the 
General Conditions and the Agreement are interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate a change in 
the other. 

To prepare supplementary conditions that are coordinated with the General Conditions, use 
EJCDC® C-800, Supplementary Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018). 

The full EJCDC Construction series of documents is discussed in the EJCDC® C-001, Commentary on the 
2018 EJCDC Construction Documents (2018). 

3.0 ORGANIZATION OF INFORMATION 

All parties involved in a construction project benefit significantly from a standardized approach in the 
location of subject matter throughout the documents. Experience confirms the danger of addressing the 
same subject matter in more than one location; doing so frequently leads to confusion and unanticipated 
legal consequences. Careful attention should be given to the guidance provided in 
EJCDC® N-122/AIA® A521, Uniform Location of Subject Matter (2012 Edition) when preparing documents. 
EJCDC® N-122/AIA® A521 is available at no charge from the EJCDC website, www.ejcdc.org, and from the 
websites of EJCDC’s sponsoring organizations. 

If CSI MasterFormat™ is used for organizing the Project Manual, consult CSI MasterFormat™ for the 
appropriate document number (e.g., under 00 11 00, Advertisements and Invitations), and accordingly 
number the document and its pages. 

Page 196 of 596



 
 

 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Guidelines Page 2 of 2 

4.0 EDITING THIS DOCUMENT 

Remove these Guidelines for Use. Some users may also prefer to remove the two cover pages. 

Although it is permissible to revise the Standard EJCDC Text of C-700 (the content beginning at page 1 and 
continuing to the end), it is common practice to leave the Standard EJCDC Text of C-700 intact and 
unaltered, with modifications and supplementation of C-700’s provisions set forth in EJCDC® C-800, 
Supplementary Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018). If the Standard Text itself is revised, the 
user must comply with the terms of the License Agreement, Paragraph 4.0, Document-Specific Provisions, 
concerning the tracking or highlighting of revisions. The following is a summary of the relevant License 
Agreement provisions: 

1. The term “Standard EJCDC Text” for C-700 refers to all text prepared by EJCDC in the main body 
of the document. Document covers, logos, footers, instructions, or copyright notices are not 
Standard EJCDC Text for this purpose. 

2. During the drafting or negotiating process for C-700, it is important that the two contracting 
parties are both aware of any changes that have been made to the Standard EJCDC Text. Thus, if 
a draft or version of C-700 purports to be or appears to be an EJCDC document, the user must 
plainly show all changes to the Standard EJCDC Text, using “Track Changes” (redline/strikeout), 
highlighting, or other means of clearly indicating additions and deletions. 

3. If C-700 has been revised or altered and is subsequently presented to third parties (such as 
potential bidders, grant agencies, lenders, or sureties) as an EJCDC document, then the changes 
to the Standard EJCDC Text must be shown, or the third parties must receive access to a version 
that shows the changes. 

4. Once the document is ready to be finalized (and if applicable executed by the contracting parties), 
it is no longer necessary to continue to show changes to the Standard EJCDC Text. The user may 
produce a final version of the document in a format in which all changes are accepted, and the 
document at that point does not need to include any “Track Changes,” redline/strikeout, 
highlighting, or other indication of additions and deletions to the Standard EJCDC Text. 

5.0 LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This document is subject to the terms and conditions of the License Agreement, 2018 EJCDC® 
Construction Series Documents. A copy of the License Agreement was furnished at the time of purchase 
of this document, and is available for review at www.ejcdc.org and the websites of EJCDC’s sponsoring 
organizations. 

 

Page 197 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 1 of 6 

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS 
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Article 1—Definitions and Terminology  1 

1.01 Defined Terms   1 

1.02 Terminology 6 

Article 2—Preliminary Matters 7 

2.01 Delivery of Performance and Payment Bonds; Evidence of Insurance 7 

2.02 Copies of Documents 7 

2.03 Before Starting Construction 7 

2.04 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives 8 

2.05 Acceptance of Schedules 8 

2.06 Electronic Transmittals 8 

Article 3—Contract Documents: Intent, Requirements, Reuse 9 

3.01 Intent 9 

3.02 Reference Standards 9 

3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 10 

3.04 Requirements of the Contract Documents 10 

3.05 Reuse of Documents 11 

Article 4—Commencement and Progress of the Work 11 

4.01 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed 11 

4.02 Starting the Work 11 

4.03 Reference Points 11 

Page 198 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 2 of 6 

4.04 Progress Schedule 12 

4.05 Delays in Contractor’s Progress 12 

Article 5—Site; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions 13 

5.01 Availability of Lands 13 

5.02 Use of Site and Other Areas 14 

5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 15 

5.04 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions 16 

5.05 Underground Facilities 17 

5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site 19 

Article 6—Bonds and Insurance 21 

6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds 21 

6.02 Insurance—General Provisions 22 

6.03 Contractor’s Insurance 24 

6.04 Builder’s Risk and Other Property Insurance 25 

6.05 Property Losses; Subrogation 25 

6.06 Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds 27 

Article 7—Contractor’s Responsibilities 27 

7.01 Contractor’s Means and Methods of Construction 27 

7.02 Supervision and Superintendence 27 

7.03 Labor; Working Hours 27 

7.04 Services, Materials, and Equipment 28 

7.05 “Or Equals” 28 

7.06 Substitutes 29 

7.07 Concerning Subcontractors and Suppliers 31 

7.08 Patent Fees and Royalties 32 

Page 199 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 3 of 6 

7.09 Permits  33 

7.10 Taxes 33 

7.11 Laws and Regulations 33 

7.12 Record Documents 33 

7.13 Safety and Protection 34 

7.14 Hazard Communication Programs 35 

7.15 Emergencies 35 

7.16 Submittals 35 

7.17 Contractor’s General Warranty and Guarantee 38 

7.18 Indemnification 39 

7.19 Delegation of Professional Design Services 39 

Article 8—Other Work at the Site 40 

8.01 Other Work 40 

8.02 Coordination 41 

8.03 Legal Relationships 41 

Article 9—Owner’s Responsibilities 42 

9.01 Communications to Contractor 42 

9.02 Replacement of Engineer 42 

9.03 Furnish Data 42 

9.04 Pay When Due 42 

9.05 Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings 43 

9.06 Insurance 43 

9.07 Change Orders 43 

9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals 43 

9.09 Limitations on Owner’s Responsibilities 43 

Page 200 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 4 of 6 

9.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition 43 

9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements 43 

9.12 Safety Programs 43 

Article 10—Engineer’s Status During Construction 44 

10.01 Owner’s Representative 44 

10.02 Visits to Site 44 

10.03 Resident Project Representative 44 

10.04 Engineer’s Authority 44 

10.05 Determinations for Unit Price Work 45 

10.06 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work 45 

10.07 Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and Responsibilities  45 

10.08 Compliance with Safety Program 45 

Article 11—Changes to the Contract 46 

11.01 Amending and Supplementing the Contract 46 

11.02 Change Orders 46 

11.03 Work Change Directives  46 

11.04 Field Orders 47 

11.05 Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work 47 

11.06 Unauthorized Changes in the Work 47 

11.07 Change of Contract Price 47 

11.08 Change of Contract Times 49 

11.09 Change Proposals 49 

11.10 Notification to Surety 50 

Article 12—Claims 50 

12.01 Claims 50 

Page 201 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 5 of 6 

Article 13—Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work 51 

13.01 Cost of the Work 51 

13.02 Allowances 55 

13.03 Unit Price Work 55 

Article 14—Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work 56 

14.01 Access to Work 56 

14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals 56 

14.03 Defective Work 57 

14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work 58 

14.05 Uncovering Work 58 

14.06 Owner May Stop the Work 58 

14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work 59 

Article 15—Payments to Contractor; Setoffs; Completion; Correction Period 59 

15.01 Progress Payments 59 

15.02 Contractor’s Warranty of Title 62 

15.03 Substantial Completion 62 

15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy 63 

15.05 Final Inspection 64 

15.06 Final Payment 64 

15.07 Waiver of Claims 65 

15.08 Correction Period 66 

Article 16—Suspension of Work and Termination 67 

16.01 Owner May Suspend Work 67 

16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause 67 

16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience 68 

Page 202 of 596



 

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
TOC Page 6 of 6 

16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate 68 

Article 17—Final Resolution of Disputes 69 

17.01 Methods and Procedures 69 

Article 18—Miscellaneous 69 

18.01 Giving Notice 69 

18.02 Computation of Times 69 

18.03 Cumulative Remedies 70 

18.04 Limitation of Damages 70 

18.05 No Waiver 70 

18.06 Survival of Obligations 70 

18.07 Controlling Law  70 

18.08 Assignment of Contract  70 

18.09 Successors and Assigns  70 

18.10 Headings 70 

 

Page 203 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-7
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS 
OF THE CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT 

ARTICLE 1—DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY 

1.01 Defined Terms 

A. Wherever used in the Bidding 
Requirements or Contract Documents, a 
term printed with initial capital letters, 
including the term’s singular and plural 
forms, will have the meaning indicated 
in the definitions below. In addition to 
terms specifically defined, terms with 
initial capital letters in the Contract 
Documents include references to 
identified articles and paragraphs, and 
the titles of other documents or forms. 

1. Addenda—Written or graphic 
instruments issued prior to the 
opening of Bids which clarify, 
correct, or change the Bidding 
Requirements or the proposed 
Contract Documents. 

2. Agreement—The written 
instrument, executed by Owner and 
Contractor, that sets forth the 
Contract Price and Contract Times, 
identifies the parties and the 
Engineer, and designates the 
specific items that are Contract 
Documents. 

3. Application for Payment—The 
document prepared by Contractor, 
in a form acceptable to Engineer, to 
request progress or final payments, 
and which is to be accompanied by 
such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Contract 
Documents. 

4. Bid—The offer of a Bidder submitted 
on the prescribed form setting forth 
the prices for the Work to be 
performed. 

5. Bidder—An individual or entity that 
submits a Bid to Owner. 

6. Bidding Documents—The Bidding 
Requirements, the proposed 
Contract Documents, and all 
Addenda. 

7. Bidding Requirements—The 
Advertisement or invitation to bid, 
Instructions to Bidders, Bid Bond or 
other Bid security, if any, the Bid 
Form, and the Bid with any 
attachments. 

8. Change Order—A document which 
is signed by Contractor and Owner 
and authorizes an addition, deletion, 
or revision in the Work or an 
adjustment in the Contract Price or 
the Contract Times, or other revision 
to the Contract, issued on or after 
the Effective Date of the Contract. 

9. Change Proposal—A written request 
by Contractor, duly submitted in 
compliance with the procedural 
requirements set forth herein, 
seeking an adjustment in Contract 
Price or Contract Times; contesting 
an initial decision by Engineer 
concerning the requirements of the 
Contract Documents or the 
acceptability of Work under the 
Contract Documents; challenging a 
set-off against payments due; or 
seeking other relief with respect to 
the terms of the Contract. 

10. Claim 

a. A demand or assertion by 
Owner directly to Contractor, 
duly submitted in compliance 

Page 204 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-8
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

with the procedural 
requirements set forth herein, 
seeking an adjustment of 
Contract Price or Contract 
Times; contesting an initial 
decision by Engineer concerning 
the requirements of the 
Contract Documents or the 
acceptability of Work under the 
Contract Documents; contesting 
Engineer’s decision regarding a 
Change Proposal; seeking 
resolution of a contractual issue 
that Engineer has declined to 
address; or seeking other relief 
with respect to the terms of the 
Contract. 

b. A demand or assertion by 
Contractor directly to Owner, 
duly submitted in compliance 
with the procedural 
requirements set forth herein, 
contesting Engineer’s decision 
regarding a Change Proposal, or 
seeking resolution of a 
contractual issue that Engineer 
has declined to address. 

c. A demand or assertion by 
Owner or Contractor, duly 
submitted in compliance with 
the procedural requirements set 
forth herein, made pursuant to 
Paragraph 12.01.A.4, 
concerning disputes arising after 
Engineer has issued a 
recommendation of final 
payment. 

d. A demand for money or services 
by a third party is not a Claim. 

11. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, 
petroleum, radioactive materials, 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), 
lead-based paint (as defined by the 
HUD/EPA standard), hazardous 
waste, and any substance, product, 

waste, or other material of any 
nature whatsoever that is or 
becomes listed, regulated, or 
addressed pursuant to Laws and 
Regulations regulating, relating to, 
or imposing liability or standards of 
conduct concerning, any hazardous, 
toxic, or dangerous waste, 
substance, or material. 

12. Contract—The entire and integrated 
written contract between Owner 
and Contractor concerning the 
Work. 

13. Contract Documents—Those items 
so designated in the Agreement, and 
which together comprise the 
Contract. 

14. Contract Price—The money that 
Owner has agreed to pay Contractor 
for completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

15. Contract Times—The number of 
days or the dates by which 
Contractor shall: (a) achieve 
Milestones, if any; (b) achieve 
Substantial Completion; and (c) 
complete the Work. 

16. Contractor—The individual or entity 
with which Owner has contracted 
for performance of the Work. 

17. Cost of the Work—See 
Paragraph 13.01 for definition. 

18. Drawings—The part of the Contract 
that graphically shows the scope, 
extent, and character of the Work to 
be performed by Contractor. 

19. Effective Date of the Contract—The 
date, indicated in the Agreement, on 
which the Contract becomes 
effective. 

Page 205 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-9
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

20. Electronic Document—Any Project-
related correspondence, 
attachments to correspondence, 
data, documents, drawings, 
information, or graphics, including 
but not limited to Shop Drawings 
and other Submittals, that are in an 
electronic or digital format. 

21. Electronic Means—Electronic mail 
(email), upload/download from a 
secure Project website, or other 
communications methods that 
allow: (a) the transmission or 
communication of Electronic 
Documents; (b) the documentation 
of transmissions, including sending 
and receipt; (c) printing of the 
transmitted Electronic Document by 
the recipient; (d) the storage and 
archiving of the Electronic 
Document by sender and recipient; 
and (e) the use by recipient of the 
Electronic Document for purposes 
permitted by this Contract. 
Electronic Means does not include 
the use of text messaging, or of 
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, or 
similar social media services for 
transmission of Electronic 
Documents. 

22. Engineer—The individual or entity 
named as such in the Agreement. 

23. Field Order—A written order issued 
by Engineer which requires minor 
changes in the Work but does not 
change the Contract Price or the 
Contract Times. 

24. Hazardous Environmental 
Condition—The presence at the Site 
of Constituents of Concern in such 
quantities or circumstances that 
may present a danger to persons or 
property exposed thereto. 

a. The presence at the Site of 
materials that are necessary for 
the execution of the Work, or 
that are to be incorporated into 
the Work, and that are 
controlled and contained 
pursuant to industry practices, 
Laws and Regulations, and the 
requirements of the Contract, is 
not a Hazardous Environmental 
Condition. 

b. The presence of Constituents of 
Concern that are to be removed 
or remediated as part of the 
Work is not a Hazardous 
Environmental Condition. 

c. The presence of Constituents of 
Concern as part of the routine, 
anticipated, and obvious 
working conditions at the Site, is 
not a Hazardous Environmental 
Condition. 

25. Laws and Regulations; Laws or 
Regulations—Any and all applicable 
laws, statutes, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, codes, and binding 
decrees, resolutions, and orders of 
any and all governmental bodies, 
agencies, authorities, and courts 
having jurisdiction. 

26. Liens—Charges, security interests, 
or encumbrances upon Contract-
related funds, real property, or 
personal property. 

27. Milestone—A principal event in the 
performance of the Work that the 
Contract requires Contractor to 
achieve by an intermediate 
completion date, or by a time prior 
to Substantial Completion of all the 
Work. 

Page 206 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-10
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

28. Notice of Award—The written notice 
by Owner to a Bidder of Owner’s 
acceptance of the Bid. 

29. Notice to Proceed—A written notice 
by Owner to Contractor fixing the 
date on which the Contract Times 
will commence to run and on which 
Contractor shall start to perform the 
Work. 

30. Owner—The individual or entity 
with which Contractor has 
contracted regarding the Work, and 
which has agreed to pay Contractor 
for the performance of the Work, 
pursuant to the terms of the 
Contract. 

31. Progress Schedule—A schedule, 
prepared and maintained by 
Contractor, describing the sequence 
and duration of the activities 
comprising Contractor’s plan to 
accomplish the Work within the 
Contract Times. 

32. Project—The total undertaking to be 
accomplished for Owner by 
engineers, contractors, and others, 
including planning, study, design, 
construction, testing, 
commissioning, and start-up, and of 
which the Work to be performed 
under the Contract Documents is a 
part. 

33. Resident Project Representative—
The authorized representative of 
Engineer assigned to assist Engineer 
at the Site. As used herein, the term 
Resident Project Representative 
(RPR) includes any assistants or field 
staff of Resident Project 
Representative. 

34. Samples—Physical examples of 
materials, equipment, or 
workmanship that are 

representative of some portion of 
the Work and that establish the 
standards by which such portion of 
the Work will be judged. 

35. Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, 
prepared and maintained by 
Contractor, of required submittals 
and the time requirements for 
Engineer’s review of the submittals. 

36. Schedule of Values—A schedule, 
prepared and maintained by 
Contractor, allocating portions of 
the Contract Price to various 
portions of the Work and used as the 
basis for reviewing Contractor’s 
Applications for Payment. 

37. Shop Drawings—All drawings, 
diagrams, illustrations, schedules, 
and other data or information that 
are specifically prepared or 
assembled by or for Contractor and 
submitted by Contractor to illustrate 
some portion of the Work. Shop 
Drawings, whether approved or not, 
are not Drawings and are not 
Contract Documents. 

38. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the 
Contract Documents as being 
furnished by Owner upon which the 
Work is to be performed, including 
rights-of-way and easements, and 
such other lands or areas furnished 
by Owner which are designated for 
the use of Contractor. 

39. Specifications—The part of the 
Contract that consists of written 
requirements for materials, 
equipment, systems, standards, and 
workmanship as applied to the 
Work, and certain administrative 
requirements and procedural 
matters applicable to the Work. 

Page 207 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-11
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

40. Subcontractor—An individual or 
entity having a direct contract with 
Contractor or with any other 
Subcontractor for the performance 
of a part of the Work. 

41. Submittal—A written or graphic 
document, prepared by or for 
Contractor, which the Contract 
Documents require Contractor to 
submit to Engineer, or that is 
indicated as a Submittal in the 
Schedule of Submittals accepted by 
Engineer. Submittals may include 
Shop Drawings and Samples; 
schedules; product data; Owner-
delegated designs; sustainable 
design information; information on 
special procedures; testing plans; 
results of tests and evaluations, 
source quality-control testing and 
inspections, and field or Site quality-
control testing and inspections; 
warranties and certifications; 
Suppliers’ instructions and reports; 
records of delivery of spare parts 
and tools; operations and 
maintenance data; Project 
photographic documentation; 
record documents; and other such 
documents required by the Contract 
Documents. Submittals, whether or 
not approved or accepted by 
Engineer, are not Contract 
Documents. Change Proposals, 
Change Orders, Claims, notices, 
Applications for Payment, and 
requests for interpretation or 
clarification are not Submittals. 

42. Substantial Completion—The time 
at which the Work (or a specified 
part thereof) has progressed to the 
point where, in the opinion of 
Engineer, the Work (or a specified 
part thereof) is sufficiently 
complete, in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, so that the 
Work (or a specified part thereof) 

can be utilized for the purposes for 
which it is intended. The terms 
“substantially complete” and 
“substantially completed” as applied 
to all or part of the Work refer to 
Substantial Completion of such 
Work. 

43. Successful Bidder—The Bidder to 
which the Owner makes an award of 
contract. 

44. Supplementary Conditions—The 
part of the Contract that amends or 
supplements these General 
Conditions. 

45. Supplier—A manufacturer, 
fabricator, supplier, distributor, or 
vendor having a direct contract with 
Contractor or with any 
Subcontractor to furnish materials 
or equipment to be incorporated in 
the Work by Contractor or a 
Subcontractor. 

46. Technical Data 

a. Those items expressly identified 
as Technical Data in the 
Supplementary Conditions, with 
respect to either (1) existing 
subsurface conditions at or 
adjacent to the Site, or existing 
physical conditions at or 
adjacent to the Site including 
existing surface or subsurface 
structures (except Underground 
Facilities) or (2) Hazardous 
Environmental Conditions at the 
Site. 

b. If no such express identifications 
of Technical Data have been 
made with respect to conditions 
at the Site, then Technical Data 
is defined, with respect to 
conditions at the Site under 
Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.06, 

Page 208 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-12
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

as the data contained in boring 
logs, recorded measurements of 
subsurface water levels, 
assessments of the condition of 
subsurface facilities, laboratory 
test results, and other factual, 
objective information regarding 
conditions at the Site that are 
set forth in any geotechnical, 
environmental, or other Site or 
facilities conditions report 
prepared for the Project and 
made available to Contractor. 

c. Information and data regarding 
the presence or location of 
Underground Facilities are not 
intended to be categorized, 
identified, or defined as 
Technical Data, and instead 
Underground Facilities are 
shown or indicated on the 
Drawings. 

47. Underground Facilities—All active or 
not-in-service underground lines, 
pipelines, conduits, ducts, 
encasements, cables, wires, 
manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or 
other such facilities or systems at 
the Site, including but not limited to 
those facilities or systems that 
produce, transmit, distribute, or 
convey telephone or other 
communications, cable television, 
fiber optic transmissions, power, 
electricity, light, heat, gases, oil, 
crude oil products, liquid petroleum 
products, water, steam, waste, 
wastewater, storm water, other 
liquids or chemicals, or traffic or 
other control systems. An 
abandoned facility or system is not 
an Underground Facility. 

48. Unit Price Work—Work to be paid 
for on the basis of unit prices. 

49. Work—The entire construction or 
the various separately identifiable 
parts thereof required to be 
provided under the Contract 
Documents. Work includes and is 
the result of performing or providing 
all labor, services, and 
documentation necessary to 
produce such construction; 
furnishing, installing, and 
incorporating all materials and 
equipment into such construction; 
and may include related services 
such as testing, start-up, and 
commissioning, all as required by 
the Contract Documents. 

50. Work Change Directive—A written 
directive to Contractor issued on or 
after the Effective Date of the 
Contract, signed by Owner and 
recommended by Engineer, 
ordering an addition, deletion, or 
revision in the Work. 

1.02 Terminology 

A. The words and terms discussed in 
Paragraphs 1.02.B, C, D, and E are not 
defined terms that require initial capital 
letters, but, when used in the Bidding 
Requirements or Contract Documents, 
have the indicated meaning. 

B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives: 
The Contract Documents include the 
terms “as allowed,” “as approved,” “as 
ordered,” “as directed” or terms of like 
effect or import to authorize an exercise 
of professional judgment by Engineer. In 
addition, the adjectives “reasonable,” 
“suitable,” “acceptable,” “proper,” 
“satisfactory,” or adjectives of like effect 
or import are used to describe an action 
or determination of Engineer as to the 
Work. It is intended that such exercise of 
professional judgment, action, or 
determination will be solely to evaluate, 
in general, the Work for compliance with 

Page 209 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-13
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

the information in the Contract 
Documents and with the design concept 
of the Project as a functioning whole as 
shown or indicated in the Contract 
Documents (unless there is a specific 
statement indicating otherwise). The 
use of any such term or adjective is not 
intended to and shall not be effective to 
assign to Engineer any duty or authority 
to supervise or direct the performance 
of the Work, or any duty or authority to 
undertake responsibility contrary to the 
provisions of Article 10 or any other 
provision of the Contract Documents. 

C. Day: The word “day” means a calendar 
day of 24 hours measured from midnight 
to the next midnight. 

D. Defective: The word “defective,” when 
modifying the word “Work,” refers to 
Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or 
deficient in that it: 

1. does not conform to the Contract 
Documents; 

2. does not meet the requirements of 
any applicable inspection, reference 
standard, test, or approval referred 
to in the Contract Documents; or 

3. has been damaged prior to 
Engineer’s recommendation of final 
payment (unless responsibility for 
the protection thereof has been 
assumed by Owner at Substantial 
Completion in accordance with 
Paragraph 15.03 or 
Paragraph 15.04). 

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide 

1. The word “furnish,” when used in 
connection with services, materials, 
or equipment, means to supply and 
deliver said services, materials, or 
equipment to the Site (or some 
other specified location) ready for 

use or installation and in usable or 
operable condition. 

2. The word “install,” when used in 
connection with services, materials, 
or equipment, means to put into use 
or place in final position said 
services, materials, or equipment 
complete and ready for intended 
use. 

3. The words “perform” or “provide,” 
when used in connection with 
services, materials, or equipment, 
means to furnish and install said 
services, materials, or equipment 
complete and ready for intended 
use. 

4. If the Contract Documents establish 
an obligation of Contractor with 
respect to specific services, 
materials, or equipment, but do not 
expressly use any of the four words 
“furnish,” “install,” “perform,” or 
“provide,” then Contractor shall 
furnish and install said services, 
materials, or equipment complete 
and ready for intended use. 

F. Contract Price or Contract Times: 
References to a change in “Contract 
Price or Contract Times” or “Contract 
Times or Contract Price” or similar, 
indicate that such change applies to 
(1) Contract Price, (2) Contract Times, or 
(3) both Contract Price and Contract 
Times, as warranted, even if the term “or 
both” is not expressed. 

G. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract 
Documents, words or phrases that have 
a well-known technical or construction 
industry or trade meaning are used in 
the Contract Documents in accordance 
with such recognized meaning. 

Page 210 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-14
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

ARTICLE 2—PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

2.01 Delivery of Performance and Payment 
Bonds; Evidence of Insurance 

A. Performance and Payment Bonds: When 
Contractor delivers the signed 
counterparts of the Agreement to 
Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to 
Owner the performance bond and 
payment bond (if the Contract requires 
Contractor to furnish such bonds). 

B. Evidence of Contractor’s Insurance: 
When Contractor delivers the signed 
counterparts of the Agreement to 
Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to 
Owner, with copies to each additional 
insured (as identified in the Contract), 
the certificates, endorsements, and 
other evidence of insurance required to 
be provided by Contractor in accordance 
with Article 6, except to the extent the 
Supplementary Conditions expressly 
establish other dates for delivery of 
specific insurance policies. 

C. Evidence of Owner’s Insurance: After 
receipt of the signed counterparts of the 
Agreement and all required bonds and 
insurance documentation, Owner shall 
promptly deliver to Contractor, with 
copies to each additional insured (as 
identified in the Contract), the 
certificates and other evidence of 
insurance required to be provided by 
Owner under Article 6. 

2.02 Copies of Documents 

A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor four 
printed copies of the Contract (including 
one fully signed counterpart of the 
Agreement), and one copy in electronic 
portable document format (PDF). 
Additional printed copies will be 
furnished upon request at the cost of 
reproduction. 

B. Owner shall maintain and safeguard at 
least one original printed record version 
of the Contract, including Drawings and 
Specifications signed and sealed by 
Engineer and other design professionals. 
Owner shall make such original printed 
record version of the Contract available 
to Contractor for review. Owner may 
delegate the responsibilities under this 
provision to Engineer. 

2.03 Before Starting Construction 

A. Preliminary Schedules: Within 10 days 
after the Effective Date of the Contract 
(or as otherwise required by the 
Contract Documents), Contractor shall 
submit to Engineer for timely review: 

1. a preliminary Progress Schedule 
indicating the times (numbers of 
days or dates) for starting and 
completing the various stages of the 
Work, including any Milestones 
specified in the Contract; 

2. a preliminary Schedule of 
Submittals; and 

3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for 
all of the Work which includes 
quantities and prices of items which 
when added together equal the 
Contract Price and subdivides the 
Work into component parts in 
sufficient detail to serve as the basis 
for progress payments during 
performance of the Work. Such 
prices will include an appropriate 
amount of overhead and profit 
applicable to each item of Work. 

2.04 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of 
Authorized Representatives 

A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a 
conference attended by Owner, 
Contractor, Engineer, and others as 
appropriate will be held to establish a 

Page 211 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-15
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

working understanding among the 
parties as to the Work, and to discuss the 
schedules referred to in 
Paragraph 2.03.A, procedures for 
handling Shop Drawings, Samples, and 
other Submittals, processing 
Applications for Payment, electronic or 
digital transmittals, and maintaining 
required records. 

B. At this conference Owner and 
Contractor each shall designate, in 
writing, a specific individual to act as its 
authorized representative with respect 
to the services and responsibilities under 
the Contract. Such individuals shall have 
the authority to transmit and receive 
information, render decisions relative to 
the Contract, and otherwise act on 
behalf of each respective party. 

2.05 Acceptance of Schedules 

A. At least 10 days before submission of the 
first Application for Payment a 
conference, attended by Contractor, 
Engineer, and others as appropriate, will 
be held to review the schedules 
submitted in accordance with 
Paragraph 2.03.A. No progress payment 
will be made to Contractor until 
acceptable schedules are submitted to 
Engineer. 

1. The Progress Schedule will be 
acceptable to Engineer if it provides 
an orderly progression of the Work 
to completion within the Contract 
Times. Such acceptance will not 
impose on Engineer responsibility 
for the Progress Schedule, for 
sequencing, scheduling, or progress 
of the Work, nor interfere with or 
relieve Contractor from Contractor’s 
full responsibility therefor. 

2. Contractor’s Schedule of Submittals 
will be acceptable to Engineer if it 
provides a workable arrangement 

for reviewing and processing the 
required submittals. 

3. Contractor’s Schedule of Values will 
be acceptable to Engineer as to form 
and substance if it provides a 
reasonable allocation of the 
Contract Price to the component 
parts of the Work. 

4. If a schedule is not acceptable, 
Contractor will have an additional 10 
days to revise and resubmit the 
schedule. 

2.06 Electronic Transmittals 

A. Except as otherwise stated elsewhere in 
the Contract, the Owner, Engineer, and 
Contractor may send, and shall accept, 
Electronic Documents transmitted by 
Electronic Means. 

B. If the Contract does not establish 
protocols for Electronic Means, then 
Owner, Engineer, and Contractor shall 
jointly develop such protocols. 

C. Subject to any governing protocols for 
Electronic Means, when transmitting 
Electronic Documents by Electronic 
Means, the transmitting party makes no 
representations as to long-term 
compatibility, usability, or readability of 
the Electronic Documents resulting from 
the recipient’s use of software 
application packages, operating 
systems, or computer hardware 
differing from those used in the drafting 
or transmittal of the Electronic 
Documents. 

ARTICLE 3—CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, 
REQUIREMENTS, REUSE 

3.01 Intent 

A. The Contract Documents are 
complementary; what is required by one 

Page 212 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-16
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Contract Document is as binding as if 
required by all. 

B. It is the intent of the Contract 
Documents to describe a functionally 
complete Project (or part thereof) to be 
constructed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

C. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract 
Documents, if there is a discrepancy 
between the electronic versions of the 
Contract Documents (including any 
printed copies derived from such 
electronic versions) and the printed 
record version, the printed record 
version will govern. 

D. The Contract supersedes prior 
negotiations, representations, and 
agreements, whether written or oral. 

E. Engineer will issue clarifications and 
interpretations of the Contract 
Documents as provided herein. 

F. Any provision or part of the Contract 
Documents held to be void or 
unenforceable under any Law or 
Regulation will be deemed stricken, and 
all remaining provisions will continue to 
be valid and binding upon Owner and 
Contractor, which agree that the 
Contract Documents will be reformed to 
replace such stricken provision or part 
thereof with a valid and enforceable 
provision that comes as close as possible 
to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

G. Nothing in the Contract Documents 
creates: 

1. any contractual relationship 
between Owner or Engineer and any 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other 
individual or entity performing or 
furnishing any of the Work, for the 
benefit of such Subcontractor, 

Supplier, or other individual or 
entity; or 

2. any obligation on the part of Owner 
or Engineer to pay or to see to the 
payment of any money due any such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other 
individual or entity, except as may 
otherwise be required by Laws and 
Regulations. 

3.02 Reference Standards 

A. Standards Specifications, Codes, Laws 
and Regulations 

1. Reference in the Contract 
Documents to standard 
specifications, manuals, reference 
standards, or codes of any technical 
society, organization, or association, 
or to Laws or Regulations, whether 
such reference be specific or by 
implication, means the standard 
specification, manual, reference 
standard, code, or Laws or 
Regulations in effect at the time of 
opening of Bids (or on the Effective 
Date of the Contract if there were no 
Bids), except as may be otherwise 
specifically stated in the Contract 
Documents. 

2. No provision of any such standard 
specification, manual, reference 
standard, or code, and no 
instruction of a Supplier, will be 
effective to change the duties or 
responsibilities of Owner, 
Contractor, or Engineer from those 
set forth in the part of the Contract 
Documents prepared by or for 
Engineer. No such provision or 
instruction shall be effective to 
assign to Owner or Engineer any 
duty or authority to supervise or 
direct the performance of the Work, 
or any duty or authority to 
undertake responsibility 

Page 213 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-17
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

inconsistent with the provisions of 
the part of the Contract Documents 
prepared by or for Engineer. 

3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 

A. Reporting Discrepancies 

1. Contractor’s Verification of Figures 
and Field Measurements: Before 
undertaking each part of the Work, 
Contractor shall carefully study the 
Contract Documents, and check and 
verify pertinent figures and 
dimensions therein, particularly 
with respect to applicable field 
measurements. Contractor shall 
promptly report in writing to 
Engineer any conflict, error, 
ambiguity, or discrepancy that 
Contractor discovers, or has actual 
knowledge of, and shall not proceed 
with any Work affected thereby until 
the conflict, error, ambiguity, or 
discrepancy is resolved by a 
clarification or interpretation by 
Engineer, or by an amendment or 
supplement to the Contract issued 
pursuant to Paragraph 11.01. 

2. Contractor’s Review of Contract 
Documents: If, before or during the 
performance of the Work, 
Contractor discovers any conflict, 
error, ambiguity, or discrepancy 
within the Contract Documents, or 
between the Contract Documents 
and (a) any applicable Law or 
Regulation, (b) actual field 
conditions, (c) any standard 
specification, manual, reference 
standard, or code, or (d) any 
instruction of any Supplier, then 
Contractor shall promptly report it 
to Engineer in writing. Contractor 
shall not proceed with the Work 
affected thereby (except in an 
emergency as required by 
Paragraph 7.15) until the conflict, 

error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is 
resolved, by a clarification or 
interpretation by Engineer, or by an 
amendment or supplement to the 
Contract issued pursuant to 
Paragraph 11.01. 

3. Contractor shall not be liable to 
Owner or Engineer for failure to 
report any conflict, error, ambiguity, 
or discrepancy in the Contract 
Documents unless Contractor had 
actual knowledge thereof. 

B. Resolving Discrepancies 

1. Except as may be otherwise 
specifically stated in the Contract 
Documents, the provisions of the 
part of the Contract Documents 
prepared by or for Engineer take 
precedence in resolving any conflict, 
error, ambiguity, or discrepancy 
between such provisions of the 
Contract Documents and: 

a. the provisions of any standard 
specification, manual, reference 
standard, or code, or the 
instruction of any Supplier 
(whether or not specifically 
incorporated by reference as a 
Contract Document); or 

b. the provisions of any Laws or 
Regulations applicable to the 
performance of the Work 
(unless such an interpretation of 
the provisions of the Contract 
Documents would result in 
violation of such Law or 
Regulation). 

3.04 Requirements of the Contract Documents 

A. During the performance of the Work and 
until final payment, Contractor and 
Owner shall submit to the Engineer in 
writing all matters in question 

Page 214 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-18
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

concerning the requirements of the 
Contract Documents (sometimes 
referred to as requests for information 
or interpretation—RFIs), or relating to 
the acceptability of the Work under the 
Contract Documents, as soon as possible 
after such matters arise. Engineer will be 
the initial interpreter of the 
requirements of the Contract 
Documents, and judge of the 
acceptability of the Work. 

B. Engineer will, with reasonable 
promptness, render a written 
clarification, interpretation, or decision 
on the issue submitted, or initiate an 
amendment or supplement to the 
Contract Documents. Engineer’s written 
clarification, interpretation, or decision 
will be final and binding on Contractor, 
unless it appeals by submitting a Change 
Proposal, and on Owner, unless it 
appeals by filing a Claim. 

C. If a submitted matter in question 
concerns terms and conditions of the 
Contract Documents that do not involve 
(1) the performance or acceptability of 
the Work under the Contract 
Documents, (2) the design (as set forth 
in the Drawings, Specifications, or 
otherwise), or (3) other engineering or 
technical matters, then Engineer will 
promptly notify Owner and Contractor 
in writing that Engineer is unable to 
provide a decision or interpretation. If 
Owner and Contractor are unable to 
agree on resolution of such a matter in 
question, either party may pursue 
resolution as provided in Article 12. 

3.05 Reuse of Documents 

A. Contractor and its Subcontractors and 
Suppliers shall not: 

1. have or acquire any title to or 
ownership rights in any of the 
Drawings, Specifications, or other 

documents (or copies of any 
thereof) prepared by or bearing the 
seal of Engineer or its consultants, 
including electronic media versions, 
or reuse any such Drawings, 
Specifications, other documents, or 
copies thereof on extensions of the 
Project or any other project without 
written consent of Owner and 
Engineer and specific written 
verification or adaptation by 
Engineer; or 

2. have or acquire any title or 
ownership rights in any other 
Contract Documents, reuse any such 
Contract Documents for any 
purpose without Owner’s express 
written consent, or violate any 
copyrights pertaining to such 
Contract Documents. 

B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 
will survive final payment, or 
termination of the Contract. Nothing 
herein precludes Contractor from 
retaining copies of the Contract 
Documents for record purposes. 

ARTICLE 4—COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF 
THE WORK 

4.01 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to 
Proceed 

A. The Contract Times will commence to 
run on the 30th day after the Effective 
Date of the Contract or, if a Notice to 
Proceed is given, on the day indicated in 
the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to 
Proceed may be given at any time within 
30 days after the Effective Date of the 
Contract. In no event will the Contract 
Times commence to run later than the 
60th day after the day of Bid opening or 
the 30th day after the Effective Date of 
the Contract, whichever date is earlier. 

Page 215 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-19
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

4.02 Starting the Work 

A. Contractor shall start to perform the 
Work on the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run. No Work may 
be done at the Site prior to such date. 

4.03 Reference Points 

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys 
to establish reference points for 
construction which in Engineer’s 
judgment are necessary to enable 
Contractor to proceed with the Work. 
Contractor shall be responsible for 
laying out the Work, shall protect and 
preserve the established reference 
points and property monuments, and 
shall make no changes or relocations 
without the prior written approval of 
Owner. Contractor shall report to 
Engineer whenever any reference point 
or property monument is lost or 
destroyed or requires relocation 
because of necessary changes in grades 
or locations, and shall be responsible for 
the accurate replacement or relocation 
of such reference points or property 
monuments by professionally qualified 
personnel. 

4.04 Progress Schedule 

A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress 
Schedule established in accordance with 
Paragraph 2.05 as it may be adjusted 
from time to time as provided below. 

1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer 
for acceptance (to the extent 
indicated in Paragraph 2.05) 
proposed adjustments in the 
Progress Schedule that will not 
result in changing the Contract 
Times. 

2. Proposed adjustments in the 
Progress Schedule that will change 
the Contract Times must be 

submitted in accordance with the 
requirements of Article 11. 

B. Contractor shall carry on the Work and 
adhere to the Progress Schedule during 
all disputes or disagreements with 
Owner. No Work will be delayed or 
postponed pending resolution of any 
disputes or disagreements, or during any 
appeal process, except as permitted by 
Paragraph 16.04, or as Owner and 
Contractor may otherwise agree in 
writing. 

4.05 Delays in Contractor’s Progress 

A. If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom 
Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, 
or interferes with the performance or 
progress of the Work, then Contractor 
shall be entitled to an equitable 
adjustment in Contract Price or Contract 
Times. 

B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
adjustment in Contract Price or Contract 
Times for delay, disruption, or 
interference caused by or within the 
control of Contractor. Delay, disruption, 
and interference attributable to and 
within the control of a Subcontractor or 
Supplier shall be deemed to be within 
the control of Contractor. 

C. If Contractor’s performance or progress 
is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with 
by unanticipated causes not the fault of 
and beyond the control of Owner, 
Contractor, and those for which they are 
responsible, then Contractor shall be 
entitled to an equitable adjustment in 
Contract Times. Such an adjustment will 
be Contractor’s sole and exclusive 
remedy for the delays, disruption, and 
interference described in this paragraph. 
Causes of delay, disruption, or 
interference that may give rise to an 
adjustment in Contract Times under this 

Page 216 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-20
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

paragraph include but are not limited to 
the following: 

1. Severe and unavoidable natural 
catastrophes such as fires, floods, 
epidemics, and earthquakes; 

2. Abnormal weather conditions; 

3. Acts or failures to act of third-party 
utility owners or other third-party 
entities (other than those third-
party utility owners or other third-
party entities performing other work 
at or adjacent to the Site as arranged 
by or under contract with Owner, as 
contemplated in Article 8); and 

4. Acts of war or terrorism. 

D. Contractor’s entitlement to an 
adjustment of Contract Times or 
Contract Price is limited as follows: 

1. Contractor’s entitlement to an 
adjustment of the Contract Times is 
conditioned on the delay, 
disruption, or interference adversely 
affecting an activity on the critical 
path to completion of the Work, as 
of the time of the delay, disruption, 
or interference. 

2. Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
adjustment in Contract Price for any 
delay, disruption, or interference if 
such delay is concurrent with a 
delay, disruption, or interference 
caused by or within the control of 
Contractor. Such a concurrent delay 
by Contractor shall not preclude an 
adjustment of Contract Times to 
which Contractor is otherwise 
entitled. 

3. Adjustments of Contract Times or 
Contract Price are subject to the 
provisions of Article 11. 

E. Each Contractor request or Change 
Proposal seeking an increase in Contract 
Times or Contract Price must be 
supplemented by supporting data that 
sets forth in detail the following: 

1. The circumstances that form the 
basis for the requested adjustment; 

2. The date upon which each cause of 
delay, disruption, or interference 
began to affect the progress of the 
Work; 

3. The date upon which each cause of 
delay, disruption, or interference 
ceased to affect the progress of the 
Work; 

4. The number of days’ increase in 
Contract Times claimed as a 
consequence of each such cause of 
delay, disruption, or interference; 
and 

5. The impact on Contract Price, in 
accordance with the provisions of 
Paragraph 11.07. 

Contractor shall also furnish such 
additional supporting documentation as 
Owner or Engineer may require 
including, where appropriate, a revised 
progress schedule indicating all the 
activities affected by the delay, 
disruption, or interference, and an 
explanation of the effect of the delay, 
disruption, or interference on the critical 
path to completion of the Work. 

F. Delays, disruption, and interference to 
the performance or progress of the 
Work resulting from the existence of a 
differing subsurface or physical 
condition, an Underground Facility that 
was not shown or indicated by the 
Contract Documents, or not shown or 
indicated with reasonable accuracy, and 
those resulting from Hazardous 

Page 217 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-21
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Environmental Conditions, are governed 
by Article 5, together with the provisions 
of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E. 

G. Paragraph 8.03 addresses delays, 
disruption, and interference to the 
performance or progress of the Work 
resulting from the performance of 
certain other work at or adjacent to the 
Site. 

ARTICLE 5—SITE; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL 
CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL 
CONDITIONS 

5.01 Availability of Lands 

A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall 
notify Contractor in writing of any 
encumbrances or restrictions not of 
general application but specifically 
related to use of the Site with which 
Contractor must comply in performing 
the Work. 

B. Upon reasonable written request, 
Owner shall furnish Contractor with a 
current statement of record legal title 
and legal description of the lands upon 
which permanent improvements are to 
be made and Owner’s interest therein as 
necessary for giving notice of or filing a 
mechanic’s or construction lien against 
such lands in accordance with applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 

C. Contractor shall provide for all 
additional lands and access thereto that 
may be required for temporary 
construction facilities or storage of 
materials and equipment. 

5.02 Use of Site and Other Areas 

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas 

1. Contractor shall confine 
construction equipment, temporary 
construction facilities, the storage of 

materials and equipment, and the 
operations of workers to the Site, 
adjacent areas that Contractor has 
arranged to use through 
construction easements or 
otherwise, and other adjacent areas 
permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
and shall not unreasonably 
encumber the Site and such other 
adjacent areas with construction 
equipment or other materials or 
equipment. Contractor shall assume 
full responsibility for (a) damage to 
the Site; (b) damage to any such 
other adjacent areas used for 
Contractor’s operations; (c) damage 
to any other adjacent land or areas, 
or to improvements, structures, 
utilities, or similar facilities located 
at such adjacent lands or areas; and 
(d) for injuries and losses sustained 
by the owners or occupants of any 
such land or areas; provided that 
such damage or injuries result from 
the performance of the Work or 
from other actions or conduct of the 
Contractor or those for which 
Contractor is responsible. 

2. If a damage or injury claim is made 
by the owner or occupant of any 
such land or area because of the 
performance of the Work, or 
because of other actions or conduct 
of the Contractor or those for which 
Contractor is responsible, 
Contractor shall (a) take immediate 
corrective or remedial action as 
required by Paragraph 7.13, or 
otherwise; (b) promptly attempt to 
settle the claim as to all parties 
through negotiations with such 
owner or occupant, or otherwise 
resolve the claim by arbitration or 
other dispute resolution 
proceeding, or in a court of 
competent jurisdiction; and (c) to 
the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, indemnify and hold 

Page 218 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-22
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

harmless Owner and Engineer, and 
the officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, 
consultants and subcontractors of 
each and any of them, from and 
against any such claim, and against 
all costs, losses, and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees 
and charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals 
and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) arising out 
of or relating to any claim or action, 
legal or equitable, brought by any 
such owner or occupant against 
Owner, Engineer, or any other party 
indemnified hereunder to the extent 
caused directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part by, or based upon, 
Contractor’s performance of the 
Work, or because of other actions or 
conduct of the Contractor or those 
for which Contractor is responsible. 

B. Removal of Debris During Performance 
of the Work: During the progress of the 
Work the Contractor shall keep the Site 
and other adjacent areas free from 
accumulations of waste materials, 
rubbish, and other debris. Removal and 
disposal of such waste materials, 
rubbish, and other debris will conform to 
applicable Laws and Regulations. 

C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial 
Completion of the Work Contractor shall 
clean the Site and the Work and make it 
ready for utilization by Owner. At the 
completion of the Work Contractor shall 
remove from the Site and adjacent areas 
all tools, appliances, construction 
equipment and machinery, and surplus 
materials and shall restore to original 
condition all property not designated for 
alteration by the Contract Documents. 

D. Loading of Structures: Contractor shall 
not load nor permit any part of any 
structure to be loaded in any manner 

that will endanger the structure, nor 
shall Contractor subject any part of the 
Work or adjacent structures or land to 
stresses or pressures that will endanger 
them. 

5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 

A. Reports and Drawings: The 
Supplementary Conditions identify: 

1. Those reports of explorations and 
tests of subsurface conditions at or 
adjacent to the Site that contain 
Technical Data; 

2. Those drawings of existing physical 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site, 
including those drawings depicting 
existing surface or subsurface 
structures at or adjacent to the Site 
(except Underground Facilities), that 
contain Technical Data; and 

3. Technical Data contained in such 
reports and drawings. 

B. Underground Facilities: Underground 
Facilities are shown or indicated on the 
Drawings, pursuant to Paragraph 5.05, 
and not in the drawings referred to in 
Paragraph 5.03.A. Information and data 
regarding the presence or location of 
Underground Facilities are not intended 
to be categorized, identified, or defined 
as Technical Data. 

C. Reliance by Contractor on Technical 
Data: Contractor may rely upon the 
accuracy of the Technical Data expressly 
identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions with respect to such reports 
and drawings, but such reports and 
drawings are not Contract Documents. If 
no such express identification has been 
made, then Contractor may rely upon 
the accuracy of the Technical Data as 
defined in Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b. 

Page 219 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-23
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

D. Limitations of Other Data and 
Documents: Except for such reliance on 
Technical Data, Contractor may not rely 
upon or make any claim against Owner 
or Engineer, or any of their officers, 
directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, or 
subcontractors, with respect to: 

1. the completeness of such reports 
and drawings for Contractor’s 
purposes, including, but not limited 
to, any aspects of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, 
and procedures of construction to 
be employed by Contractor, and 
safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto; 

2. other data, interpretations, 
opinions, and information contained 
in such reports or shown or 
indicated in such drawings; 

3. the contents of other Site-related 
documents made available to 
Contractor, such as record drawings 
from other projects at or adjacent to 
the Site, or Owner’s archival 
documents concerning the Site; or 

4. any Contractor interpretation of or 
conclusion drawn from any 
Technical Data or any such other 
data, interpretations, opinions, or 
information. 

5.04 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions 

A. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor 
believes that any subsurface or physical 
condition that is uncovered or revealed 
at the Site: 

1. is of such a nature as to establish 
that any Technical Data on which 
Contractor is entitled to rely as 
provided in Paragraph 5.03 is 
materially inaccurate; 

2. is of such a nature as to require a 
change in the Drawings or 
Specifications; 

3. differs materially from that shown 
or indicated in the Contract 
Documents; or 

4. is of an unusual nature, and differs 
materially from conditions ordinarily 
encountered and generally 
recognized as inherent in work of 
the character provided for in the 
Contract Documents; 

then Contractor shall, promptly after 
becoming aware thereof and before 
further disturbing the subsurface or 
physical conditions or performing any 
Work in connection therewith (except in 
an emergency as required by 
Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and 
Engineer in writing about such 
condition. Contractor shall not further 
disturb such condition or perform any 
Work in connection therewith (except 
with respect to an emergency) until 
receipt of a written statement 
permitting Contractor to do so. 

B. Engineer’s Review: After receipt of 
written notice as required by the 
preceding paragraph, Engineer will 
promptly review the subsurface or 
physical condition in question; 
determine whether it is necessary for 
Owner to obtain additional exploration 
or tests with respect to the condition; 
conclude whether the condition falls 
within any one or more of the differing 
site condition categories in 
Paragraph 5.04.A; obtain any pertinent 
cost or schedule information from 
Contractor; prepare recommendations 
to Owner regarding the Contractor’s 
resumption of Work in connection with 
the subsurface or physical condition in 
question and the need for any change in 
the Drawings or Specifications; and 

Page 220 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-24
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

advise Owner in writing of Engineer’s 
findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations. 

C. Owner’s Statement to Contractor 
Regarding Site Condition: After receipt 
of Engineer’s written findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations, 
Owner shall issue a written statement to 
Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) 
regarding the subsurface or physical 
condition in question, addressing the 
resumption of Work in connection with 
such condition, indicating whether any 
change in the Drawings or Specifications 
will be made, and adopting or rejecting 
Engineer’s written findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations, in whole or in 
part. 

D. Early Resumption of Work: If at any time 
Engineer determines that Work in 
connection with the subsurface or 
physical condition in question may 
resume prior to completion of 
Engineer’s review or Owner’s issuance 
of its statement to Contractor, because 
the condition in question has been 
adequately documented, and analyzed 
on a preliminary basis, then the Engineer 
may at its discretion instruct Contractor 
to resume such Work. 

E. Possible Price and Times Adjustments 

1. Contractor shall be entitled to an 
equitable adjustment in Contract 
Price or Contract Times, to the 
extent that the existence of a 
differing subsurface or physical 
condition, or any related delay, 
disruption, or interference, causes 
an increase or decrease in 
Contractor’s cost of, or time 
required for, performance of the 

Work; subject, however, to the 
following: 

a. Such condition must fall within 
any one or more of the 
categories described in 
Paragraph 5.04.A; 

b. With respect to Work that is 
paid for on a unit price basis, any 
adjustment in Contract Price will 
be subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 13.03; and, 

c. Contractor’s entitlement to an 
adjustment of the Contract 
Times is subject to the 
provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D 
and 4.05.E. 

2. Contractor shall not be entitled to 
any adjustment in the Contract Price 
or Contract Times with respect to a 
subsurface or physical condition if: 

a. Contractor knew of the 
existence of such condition at 
the time Contractor made a 
commitment to Owner with 
respect to Contract Price and 
Contract Times by the 
submission of a Bid or becoming 
bound under a negotiated 
contract, or otherwise; 

b. The existence of such condition 
reasonably could have been 
discovered or revealed as a 
result of any examination, 
investigation, exploration, test, 
or study of the Site and 
contiguous areas expressly 
required by the Bidding 
Requirements or Contract 
Documents to be conducted by 
or for Contractor prior to 
Contractor’s making such 
commitment; or 

Page 221 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-25
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

c. Contractor failed to give the 
written notice required by 
Paragraph 5.04.A. 

3. If Owner and Contractor agree 
regarding Contractor’s entitlement 
to and the amount or extent of any 
adjustment in the Contract Price or 
Contract Times, then any such 
adjustment will be set forth in a 
Change Order. 

4. Contractor may submit a Change 
Proposal regarding its entitlement 
to or the amount or extent of any 
adjustment in the Contract Price or 
Contract Times, no later than 30 
days after Owner’s issuance of the 
Owner’s written statement to 
Contractor regarding the subsurface 
or physical condition in question. 

F. Underground Facilities; Hazardous 
Environmental Conditions: 
Paragraph 5.05 governs rights and 
responsibilities regarding the presence 
or location of Underground Facilities. 
Paragraph 5.06 governs rights and 
responsibilities regarding Hazardous 
Environmental Conditions. The 
provisions of Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.04 
are not applicable to the presence or 
location of Underground Facilities, or to 
Hazardous Environmental Conditions. 

5.05 Underground Facilities 

A. Contractor’s Responsibilities: Unless it is 
otherwise expressly provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions, the cost of 
all of the following are included in the 
Contract Price, and Contractor shall have 
full responsibility for: 

1. reviewing and checking all 
information and data regarding 
existing Underground Facilities at 
the Site; 

2. complying with applicable state and 
local utility damage prevention Laws 
and Regulations; 

3. verifying the actual location of those 
Underground Facilities shown or 
indicated in the Contract Documents 
as being within the area affected by 
the Work, by exposing such 
Underground Facilities during the 
course of construction; 

4. coordination of the Work with the 
owners (including Owner) of such 
Underground Facilities, during 
construction; and 

5. the safety and protection of all 
existing Underground Facilities at 
the Site, and repairing any damage 
thereto resulting from the Work. 

B. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor 
believes that an Underground Facility 
that is uncovered or revealed at the Site 
was not shown or indicated on the 
Drawings, or was not shown or indicated 
on the Drawings with reasonable 
accuracy, then Contractor shall, 
promptly after becoming aware thereof 
and before further disturbing conditions 
affected thereby or performing any 
Work in connection therewith (except in 
an emergency as required by 
Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and 
Engineer in writing regarding such 
Underground Facility. 

C. Engineer’s Review: Engineer will: 

1. promptly review the Underground 
Facility and conclude whether such 
Underground Facility was not shown 
or indicated on the Drawings, or was 
not shown or indicated with 
reasonable accuracy; 

2. identify and communicate with the 
owner of the Underground Facility; 

Page 222 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-26
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

prepare recommendations to 
Owner (and if necessary issue any 
preliminary instructions to 
Contractor) regarding the 
Contractor’s resumption of Work in 
connection with the Underground 
Facility in question; 

3. obtain any pertinent cost or 
schedule information from 
Contractor; determine the extent, if 
any, to which a change is required in 
the Drawings or Specifications to 
reflect and document the 
consequences of the existence or 
location of the Underground Facility; 
and 

4. advise Owner in writing of 
Engineer’s findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations. 

During such time, Contractor shall be 
responsible for the safety and protection 
of such Underground Facility. 

D. Owner’s Statement to Contractor 
Regarding Underground Facility: After 
receipt of Engineer’s written findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations, 
Owner shall issue a written statement to 
Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) 
regarding the Underground Facility in 
question addressing the resumption of 
Work in connection with such 
Underground Facility, indicating 
whether any change in the Drawings or 
Specifications will be made, and 
adopting or rejecting Engineer’s written 
findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations in whole or in part. 

E. Early Resumption of Work: If at any time 
Engineer determines that Work in 
connection with the Underground 
Facility may resume prior to completion 
of Engineer’s review or Owner’s 
issuance of its statement to Contractor, 
because the Underground Facility in 

question and conditions affected by its 
presence have been adequately 
documented, and analyzed on a 
preliminary basis, then the Engineer may 
at its discretion instruct Contractor to 
resume such Work. 

F. Possible Price and Times Adjustments 

1. Contractor shall be entitled to an 
equitable adjustment in the 
Contract Price or Contract Times, to 
the extent that any existing 
Underground Facility at the Site that 
was not shown or indicated on the 
Drawings, or was not shown or 
indicated with reasonable accuracy, 
or any related delay, disruption, or 
interference, causes an increase or 
decrease in Contractor’s cost of, or 
time required for, performance of 
the Work; subject, however, to the 
following: 

a. With respect to Work that is 
paid for on a unit price basis, any 
adjustment in Contract Price will 
be subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 13.03; 

b. Contractor’s entitlement to an 
adjustment of the Contract 
Times is subject to the 
provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D 
and 4.05.E; and 

c. Contractor gave the notice 
required in Paragraph 5.05.B. 

2. If Owner and Contractor agree 
regarding Contractor’s entitlement 
to and the amount or extent of any 
adjustment in the Contract Price or 
Contract Times, then any such 
adjustment will be set forth in a 
Change Order. 

3. Contractor may submit a Change 
Proposal regarding its entitlement 

Page 223 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-27
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

to or the amount or extent of any 
adjustment in the Contract Price or 
Contract Times, no later than 30 
days after Owner’s issuance of the 
Owner’s written statement to 
Contractor regarding the 
Underground Facility in question. 

4. The information and data shown or 
indicated on the Drawings with 
respect to existing Underground 
Facilities at the Site is based on 
information and data (a) furnished 
by the owners of such Underground 
Facilities, or by others, (b) obtained 
from available records, or (c) 
gathered in an investigation 
conducted in accordance with the 
current edition of ASCE 38, Standard 
Guideline for the Collection and 
Depiction of Existing Subsurface 
Utility Data, by the American Society 
of Civil Engineers. If such 
information or data is incorrect or 
incomplete, Contractor’s remedies 
are limited to those set forth in this 
Paragraph 5.05.F. 

5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site 

A. Reports and Drawings: The 
Supplementary Conditions identify: 

1. those reports known to Owner 
relating to Hazardous 
Environmental Conditions that have 
been identified at or adjacent to the 
Site; 

2. drawings known to Owner relating 
to Hazardous Environmental 
Conditions that have been identified 
at or adjacent to the Site; and 

3. Technical Data contained in such 
reports and drawings. 

B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data 
Authorized: Contractor may rely upon 

the accuracy of the Technical Data 
expressly identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions with respect 
to such reports and drawings, but such 
reports and drawings are not Contract 
Documents. If no such express 
identification has been made, then 
Contractor may rely on the accuracy of 
the Technical Data as defined in 
Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b. Except for such 
reliance on Technical Data, Contractor 
may not rely upon or make any claim 
against Owner or Engineer, or any of 
their officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, 
consultants, or subcontractors, with 
respect to: 

1. the completeness of such reports 
and drawings for Contractor’s 
purposes, including, but not limited 
to, any aspects of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences 
and procedures of construction to 
be employed by Contractor, and 
safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto; 

2. other data, interpretations, 
opinions, and information contained 
in such reports or shown or 
indicated in such drawings; or 

3. any Contractor interpretation of or 
conclusion drawn from any 
Technical Data or any such other 
data, interpretations, opinions or 
information. 

C. Contractor shall not be responsible for 
removing or remediating any Hazardous 
Environmental Condition encountered, 
uncovered, or revealed at the Site unless 
such removal or remediation is expressly 
identified in the Contract Documents to 
be within the scope of the Work. 

D. Contractor shall be responsible for 
controlling, containing, and duly 

Page 224 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-28
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

removing all Constituents of Concern 
brought to the Site by Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone 
else for whom Contractor is responsible, 
and for any associated costs; and for the 
costs of removing and remediating any 
Hazardous Environmental Condition 
created by the presence of any such 
Constituents of Concern. 

E. If Contractor encounters, uncovers, or 
reveals a Hazardous Environmental 
Condition whose removal or 
remediation is not expressly identified in 
the Contract Documents as being within 
the scope of the Work, or if Contractor 
or anyone for whom Contractor is 
responsible creates a Hazardous 
Environmental Condition, then 
Contractor shall immediately: (1) secure 
or otherwise isolate such condition; (2) 
stop all Work in connection with such 
condition and in any area affected 
thereby (except in an emergency as 
required by Paragraph 7.15); and (3) 
notify Owner and Engineer (and 
promptly thereafter confirm such notice 
in writing). Owner shall promptly consult 
with Engineer concerning the necessity 
for Owner to retain a qualified expert to 
evaluate such condition or take 
corrective action, if any. Promptly after 
consulting with Engineer, Owner shall 
take such actions as are necessary to 
permit Owner to timely obtain required 
permits and provide Contractor the 
written notice required by 
Paragraph 5.06.F. If Contractor or 
anyone for whom Contractor is 
responsible created the Hazardous 
Environmental Condition in question, 
then Owner may remove and remediate 
the Hazardous Environmental Condition, 
and impose a set-off against payments 
to account for the associated costs. 

F. Contractor shall not resume Work in 
connection with such Hazardous 
Environmental Condition or in any 

affected area until after Owner has 
obtained any required permits related 
thereto, and delivered written notice to 
Contractor either (1) specifying that 
such condition and any affected area is 
or has been rendered safe for the 
resumption of Work, or (2) specifying 
any special conditions under which such 
Work may be resumed safely. 

G. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as 
to entitlement to or on the amount or 
extent, if any, of any adjustment in 
Contract Price or Contract Times, as a 
result of such Work stoppage, such 
special conditions under which Work is 
agreed to be resumed by Contractor, or 
any costs or expenses incurred in 
response to the Hazardous 
Environmental Condition, then within 30 
days of Owner’s written notice regarding 
the resumption of Work, Contractor may 
submit a Change Proposal, or Owner 
may impose a set-off. Entitlement to any 
such adjustment is subject to the 
provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D, 4.05.E, 
11.07, and 11.08. 

H. If, after receipt of such written notice, 
Contractor does not agree to resume 
such Work based on a reasonable belief 
it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume 
such Work under such special 
conditions, then Owner may order the 
portion of the Work that is in the area 
affected by such condition to be deleted 
from the Work, following the 
contractual change procedures in 
Article 11. Owner may have such 
deleted portion of the Work performed 
by Owner’s own forces or others in 
accordance with Article 8. 

I. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify 
and hold harmless Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the 
officers, directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, and 

Page 225 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-29
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

subcontractors of each and any of them, 
from and against all claims, costs, losses, 
and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals, and all court, arbitration, 
or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to a Hazardous 
Environmental Condition, provided that 
such Hazardous Environmental 
Condition (1)  was not shown or 
indicated in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or other Contract 
Documents, identified as Technical Data 
entitled to limited reliance pursuant to 
Paragraph 5.06.B, or identified in the 
Contract Documents to be included 
within the scope of the Work, and (2) 
was not created by Contractor or by 
anyone for whom Contractor is 
responsible. Nothing in this 
Paragraph 5.06.I obligates Owner to 
indemnify any individual or entity from 
and against the consequences of that 
individual’s or entity’s own negligence. 

J. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Owner and 
Engineer, and the officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, agents, 
consultants, and subcontractors of each 
and any of them, from and against all 
claims, costs, losses, and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees and 
charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals and 
all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or 
relating to the failure to control, contain, 
or remove a Constituent of Concern 
brought to the Site by Contractor or by 
anyone for whom Contractor is 
responsible, or to a Hazardous 
Environmental Condition created by 
Contractor or by anyone for whom 
Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this 
Paragraph 5.06.J obligates Contractor to 
indemnify any individual or entity from 

and against the consequences of that 
individual’s or entity’s own negligence. 

K. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, 
and 5.05 do not apply to the presence of 
Constituents of Concern or to a 
Hazardous Environmental Condition 
uncovered or revealed at the Site. 

ARTICLE 6—BONDS AND INSURANCE 

6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds 

A. Contractor shall furnish a performance 
bond and a payment bond, each in an 
amount at least equal to the Contract 
Price, as security for the faithful 
performance and payment of 
Contractor’s obligations under the 
Contract. These bonds must remain in 
effect until one year after the date when 
final payment becomes due or until 
completion of the correction period 
specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever 
is later, except as provided otherwise by 
Laws or Regulations, the terms of a 
prescribed bond form, the 
Supplementary Conditions, or other 
provisions of the Contract. 

B. Contractor shall also furnish such other 
bonds (if any) as are required by the 
Supplementary Conditions or other 
provisions of the Contract. 

C. All bonds must be in the form included 
in the Bidding Documents or otherwise 
specified by Owner prior to execution of 
the Contract, except as provided 
otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and 
must be issued and signed by a surety 
named in “Companies Holding 
Certificates of Authority as Acceptable 
Sureties on Federal Bonds and as 
Acceptable Reinsuring Companies” as 
published in Department Circular 570 (as 
amended and supplemented) by the 
Bureau of the Fiscal Service, U.S. 

Page 226 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-30
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Department of the Treasury. A bond 
signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact 
must be accompanied by a certified copy 
of that individual’s authority to bind the 
surety. The evidence of authority must 
show that it is effective on the date the 
agent or attorney-in-fact signed the 
accompanying bond. 

D. Contractor shall obtain the required 
bonds from surety companies that are 
duly licensed or authorized, in the state 
or jurisdiction in which the Project is 
located, to issue bonds in the required 
amounts. 

E. If the surety on a bond furnished by 
Contractor is declared bankrupt or 
becomes insolvent, or the surety ceases 
to meet the requirements above, then 
Contractor shall promptly notify Owner 
and Engineer in writing and shall, within 
20 days after the event giving rise to 
such notification, provide another bond 
and surety, both of which must comply 
with the bond and surety requirements 
above. 

F. If Contractor has failed to obtain a 
required bond, Owner may exclude the 
Contractor from the Site and exercise 
Owner’s termination rights under 
Article 16. 

G. Upon request to Owner from any 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person 
or entity claiming to have furnished 
labor, services, materials, or equipment 
used in the performance of the Work, 
Owner shall provide a copy of the 
payment bond to such person or entity. 

H. Upon request to Contractor from any 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person 
or entity claiming to have furnished 
labor, services, materials, or equipment 
used in the performance of the Work, 
Contractor shall provide a copy of the 
payment bond to such person or entity. 

6.02 Insurance—General Provisions 

A. Owner and Contractor shall obtain and 
maintain insurance as required in this 
article and in the Supplementary 
Conditions. 

B. All insurance required by the Contract to 
be purchased and maintained by Owner 
or Contractor shall be obtained from 
insurance companies that are duly 
licensed or authorized in the state or 
jurisdiction in which the Project is 
located to issue insurance policies for 
the required limits and coverages. 
Unless a different standard is indicated 
in the Supplementary Conditions, all 
companies that provide insurance 
policies required under this Contract 
shall have an A.M. Best rating of A-VII or 
better. 

C. Alternative forms of insurance coverage, 
including but not limited to self-
insurance and “Occupational Accident 
and Excess Employer’s Indemnity 
Policies,” are not sufficient to meet the 
insurance requirements of this Contract, 
unless expressly allowed in the 
Supplementary Conditions. 

D. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with 
copies to each additional insured 
identified in the Contract, certificates of 
insurance and endorsements 
establishing that Contractor has 
obtained and is maintaining the policies 
and coverages required by the Contract. 
Upon request by Owner or any other 
insured, Contractor shall also furnish 
other evidence of such required 
insurance, including but not limited to 
copies of policies, documentation of 
applicable self-insured retentions (if 
allowed) and deductibles, full disclosure 
of all relevant exclusions, and evidence 
of insurance required to be purchased 
and maintained by Subcontractors or 
Suppliers. In any documentation 

Page 227 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-31
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

furnished under this provision, 
Contractor, Subcontractors, and 
Suppliers may block out (redact) (1) any 
confidential premium or pricing 
information and (2) any wording specific 
to a project or jurisdiction other than 
those applicable to this Contract. 

E. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with 
copies to each additional insured 
identified in the Contract, certificates of 
insurance and endorsements 
establishing that Owner has obtained 
and is maintaining the policies and 
coverages required of Owner by the 
Contract (if any). Upon request by 
Contractor or any other insured, Owner 
shall also provide other evidence of such 
required insurance (if any), including but 
not limited to copies of policies, 
documentation of applicable self-
insured retentions (if allowed) and 
deductibles, and full disclosure of all 
relevant exclusions. In any 
documentation furnished under this 
provision, Owner may block out (redact) 
(1) any confidential premium or pricing 
information and (2) any wording specific 
to a project or jurisdiction other than 
those relevant to this Contract. 

F. Failure of Owner or Contractor to 
demand such certificates or other 
evidence of the other party’s full 
compliance with these insurance 
requirements, or failure of Owner or 
Contractor to identify a deficiency in 
compliance from the evidence provided, 
will not be construed as a waiver of the 
other party’s obligation to obtain and 
maintain such insurance. 

G. In addition to the liability insurance 
required to be provided by Contractor, 
the Owner, at Owner’s option, may 
purchase and maintain Owner’s own 
liability insurance. Owner’s liability 
policies, if any, operate separately and 
independently from policies required to 

be provided by Contractor, and 
Contractor cannot rely upon Owner’s 
liability policies for any of Contractor’s 
obligations to the Owner, Engineer, or 
third parties. 

H. Contractor shall require: 

1. Subcontractors to purchase and 
maintain worker’s compensation, 
commercial general liability, and 
other insurance that is appropriate 
for their participation in the Project, 
and to name as additional insureds 
Owner and Engineer (and any other 
individuals or entities identified in 
the Supplementary Conditions as 
additional insureds on Contractor’s 
liability policies) on each 
Subcontractor’s commercial general 
liability insurance policy; and 

2. Suppliers to purchase and maintain 
insurance that is appropriate for 
their participation in the Project. 

I. If either party does not purchase or 
maintain the insurance required of such 
party by the Contract, such party shall 
notify the other party in writing of such 
failure to purchase prior to the start of 
the Work, or of such failure to maintain 
prior to any change in the required 
coverage. 

J. If Contractor has failed to obtain and 
maintain required insurance, 
Contractor’s entitlement to enter or 
remain at the Site will end immediately, 
and Owner may impose an appropriate 
set-off against payment for any 
associated costs (including but not 
limited to the cost of purchasing 
necessary insurance coverage), and 
exercise Owner’s termination rights 
under Article 16. 

K. Without prejudice to any other right or 
remedy, if a party has failed to obtain 

Page 228 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-32
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

required insurance, the other party may 
elect (but is in no way obligated) to 
obtain equivalent insurance to protect 
such other party’s interests at the 
expense of the party who was required 
to provide such coverage, and the 
Contract Price will be adjusted 
accordingly. 

L. Owner does not represent that 
insurance coverage and limits 
established in this Contract necessarily 
will be adequate to protect Contractor 
or Contractor’s interests. Contractor is 
responsible for determining whether 
such coverage and limits are adequate 
to protect its interests, and for obtaining 
and maintaining any additional 
insurance that Contractor deems 
necessary. 

M. The insurance and insurance limits 
required herein will not be deemed as a 
limitation on Contractor’s liability, or 
that of its Subcontractors or Suppliers, 
under the indemnities granted to Owner 
and other individuals and entities in the 
Contract or otherwise. 

N. All the policies of insurance required to 
be purchased and maintained under this 
Contract will contain a provision or 
endorsement that the coverage 
afforded will not be canceled, or renewal 
refused, until at least 10 days prior 
written notice has been given to the 
purchasing policyholder. Within three 
days of receipt of any such written 
notice, the purchasing policyholder shall 
provide a copy of the notice to each 
other insured and Engineer. 

6.03 Contractor’s Insurance 

A. Required Insurance: Contractor shall 
purchase and maintain Worker’s 
Compensation, Commercial General 
Liability, and other insurance pursuant 

to the specific requirements of the 
Supplementary Conditions. 

B. General Provisions: The policies of 
insurance required by this 
Paragraph 6.03 as supplemented must: 

1. include at least the specific 
coverages required; 

2. be written for not less than the limits 
provided, or those required by Laws 
or Regulations, whichever is greater; 

3. remain in effect at least until the 
Work is complete (as set forth in 
Paragraph 15.06.D), and longer if 
expressly required elsewhere in this 
Contract, and at all times thereafter 
when Contractor may be correcting, 
removing, or replacing defective 
Work as a warranty or correction 
obligation, or otherwise, or 
returning to the Site to conduct 
other tasks arising from the 
Contract; 

4. apply with respect to the 
performance of the Work, whether 
such performance is by Contractor, 
any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by 
anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform 
any of the Work, or by anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be 
liable; and 

5. include all necessary endorsements 
to support the stated requirements. 

C. Additional Insureds: The Contractor’s 
commercial general liability, automobile 
liability, employer’s liability, umbrella or 
excess, pollution liability, and unmanned 
aerial vehicle liability policies, if required 
by this Contract, must: 

1. include and list as additional 
insureds Owner and Engineer, and 

Page 229 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-33
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

any individuals or entities identified 
as additional insureds in the 
Supplementary Conditions; 

2. include coverage for the respective 
officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, and 
consultants of all such additional 
insureds; 

3. afford primary coverage to these 
additional insureds for all claims 
covered thereby (including as 
applicable those arising from both 
ongoing and completed operations); 

4. not seek contribution from 
insurance maintained by the 
additional insured; and 

5. as to commercial general liability 
insurance, apply to additional 
insureds with respect to liability 
caused in whole or in part by 
Contractor’s acts or omissions, or 
the acts and omissions of those 
working on Contractor’s behalf, in 
the performance of Contractor’s 
operations. 

6.04 Builder’s Risk and Other Property Insurance 

A. Builder’s Risk: Unless otherwise 
provided in the Supplementary 
Conditions, Contractor shall purchase 
and maintain builder’s risk insurance 
upon the Work on a completed value 
basis, in the amount of the Work’s full 
insurable replacement cost (subject to 
such deductible amounts as may be 
provided in the Supplementary 
Conditions or required by Laws and 
Regulations). The specific requirements 
applicable to the builder’s risk insurance 
are set forth in the Supplementary 
Conditions. 

B. Property Insurance for Facilities of 
Owner Where Work Will Occur: Owner is 

responsible for obtaining and 
maintaining property insurance covering 
each existing structure, building, or 
facility in which any part of the Work will 
occur, or to which any part of the Work 
will attach or be adjoined. Such property 
insurance will be written on a special 
perils (all-risk) form, on a replacement 
cost basis, providing coverage consistent 
with that required for the builder’s risk 
insurance, and will be maintained until 
the Work is complete, as set forth in 
Paragraph 15.06.D. 

C. Property Insurance for Substantially 
Complete Facilities: Promptly after 
Substantial Completion, and before 
actual occupancy or use of the 
substantially completed Work, Owner 
will obtain property insurance for such 
substantially completed Work, and 
maintain such property insurance at 
least until the Work is complete, as set 
forth in Paragraph 15.06.D. Such 
property insurance will be written on a 
special perils (all-risk) form, on a 
replacement cost basis, and provide 
coverage consistent with that required 
for the builder’s risk insurance. The 
builder’s risk insurance may terminate 
upon written confirmation of Owner’s 
procurement of such property 
insurance. 

D. Partial Occupancy or Use by Owner: If 
Owner will occupy or use a portion or 
portions of the Work prior to Substantial 
Completion of all the Work, as provided 
in Paragraph 15.04, then Owner 
(directly, if it is the purchaser of the 
builder’s risk policy, or through 
Contractor) will provide advance notice 
of such occupancy or use to the builder’s 
risk insurer, and obtain an endorsement 
consenting to the continuation of 
coverage prior to commencing such 
partial occupancy or use. 

Page 230 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-34
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

E. Insurance of Other Property; Additional 
Insurance: If the express insurance 
provisions of the Contract do not require 
or address the insurance of a property 
item or interest, then the entity or 
individual owning such property item 
will be responsible for insuring it. If 
Contractor elects to obtain other special 
insurance to be included in or 
supplement the builder’s risk or 
property insurance policies provided 
under this Paragraph 6.04, it may do so 
at Contractor’s expense. 

6.05 Property Losses; Subrogation 

A. The builder’s risk insurance policy 
purchased and maintained in 
accordance with Paragraph 6.04 (or an 
installation floater policy if authorized 
by the Supplementary Conditions), will 
contain provisions to the effect that in 
the event of payment of any loss or 
damage the insurer will have no rights of 
recovery against any insureds 
thereunder, or against Engineer or its 
consultants, or their officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, agents, 
consultants, or subcontractors. 

1. Owner and Contractor waive all 
rights against each other and the 
respective officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, 
agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of 
them, for all losses and damages 
caused by, arising out of, or resulting 
from any of the perils, risks, or 
causes of loss covered by such 
policies and any other property 
insurance applicable to the Work; 
and, in addition, waive all such rights 
against Engineer, its consultants, all 
individuals or entities identified in 
the Supplementary Conditions as 
builder’s risk or installation floater 
insureds, and the officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, 

agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of 
them, under such policies for losses 
and damages so caused. 

2. None of the above waivers extends 
to the rights that any party making 
such waiver may have to the 
proceeds of insurance held by 
Owner or Contractor as trustee or 
fiduciary, or otherwise payable 
under any policy so issued. 

B. Any property insurance policy 
maintained by Owner covering any loss, 
damage, or consequential loss to 
Owner’s existing structures, buildings, or 
facilities in which any part of the Work 
will occur, or to which any part of the 
Work will attach or adjoin; to adjacent 
structures, buildings, or facilities of 
Owner; or to part or all of the completed 
or substantially completed Work, during 
partial occupancy or use pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.04, after Substantial 
Completion pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.03, or after final payment 
pursuant to Paragraph 15.06, will 
contain provisions to the effect that in 
the event of payment of any loss or 
damage the insurer will have no rights of 
recovery against any insureds 
thereunder, or against Contractor, 
Subcontractors, or Engineer, or the 
officers, directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, or 
subcontractors of each and any of them, 
and that the insured is allowed to waive 
the insurer’s rights of subrogation in a 
written contract executed prior to the 
loss, damage, or consequential loss. 

1. Owner waives all rights against 
Contractor, Subcontractors, and 
Engineer, and the officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, 
agents, consultants and 
subcontractors of each and any of 
them, for all losses and damages 

Page 231 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-35
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

caused by, arising out of, or resulting 
from fire or any of the perils, risks, or 
causes of loss covered by such 
policies. 

C. The waivers in this Paragraph 6.05 
include the waiver of rights due to 
business interruption, loss of use, or 
other consequential loss extending 
beyond direct physical loss or damage to 
Owner’s property or the Work caused 
by, arising out of, or resulting from fire 
or other insured peril, risk, or cause of 
loss. 

D. Contractor shall be responsible for 
assuring that each Subcontract contains 
provisions whereby the Subcontractor 
waives all rights against Owner, 
Contractor, all individuals or entities 
identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions as insureds, the Engineer and 
its consultants, and the officers, 
directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of them, 
for all losses and damages caused by, 
arising out of, relating to, or resulting 
from fire or other peril, risk, or cause of 
loss covered by builder’s risk insurance, 
installation floater, and any other 
property insurance applicable to the 
Work. 

6.06 Receipt and Application of Property 
Insurance Proceeds 

A. Any insured loss under the builder’s risk 
and other policies of property insurance 
required by Paragraph 6.04 will be 
adjusted and settled with the named 
insured that purchased the policy. Such 
named insured shall act as fiduciary for 
the other insureds, and give notice to 
such other insureds that adjustment and 
settlement of a claim is in progress. Any 
other insured may state its position 
regarding a claim for insured loss in 

writing within 15 days after notice of 
such claim. 

B. Proceeds for such insured losses may be 
made payable by the insurer either 
jointly to multiple insureds, or to the 
named insured that purchased the 
policy in its own right and as fiduciary for 
other insureds, subject to the 
requirements of any applicable 
mortgage clause. A named insured 
receiving insurance proceeds under the 
builder’s risk and other policies of 
insurance required by Paragraph 6.04 
shall maintain such proceeds in a 
segregated account, and distribute such 
proceeds in accordance with such 
agreement as the parties in interest may 
reach, or as otherwise required under 
the dispute resolution provisions of this 
Contract or applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

C. If no other special agreement is reached, 
Contractor shall repair or replace the 
damaged Work, using allocated 
insurance proceeds. 

ARTICLE 7—CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

7.01 Contractor’s Means and Methods of 
Construction 

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, and procedures of 
construction. 

B. If the Contract Documents note, or 
Contractor determines, that 
professional engineering or other design 
services are needed to carry out 
Contractor’s responsibilities for 
construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and procedures, 
or for Site safety, then Contractor shall 
cause such services to be provided by a 
properly licensed design professional, at 

Page 232 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-36
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Contractor’s expense. Such services are 
not Owner-delegated professional 
design services under this Contract, and 
neither Owner nor Engineer has any 
responsibility with respect to (1) 
Contractor’s determination of the need 
for such services, (2) the qualifications or 
licensing of the design professionals 
retained or employed by Contractor, (3) 
the performance of such services, or (4) 
any errors, omissions, or defects in such 
services. 

7.02 Supervision and Superintendence 

A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and 
direct the Work competently and 
efficiently, devoting such attention 
thereto and applying such skills and 
expertise as may be necessary to 
perform the Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. 

B. At all times during the progress of the 
Work, Contractor shall assign a 
competent resident superintendent 
who will not be replaced without written 
notice to Owner and Engineer except 
under extraordinary circumstances. 

7.03 Labor; Working Hours 

A. Contractor shall provide competent, 
suitably qualified personnel to survey 
and lay out the Work and perform 
construction as required by the Contract 
Documents. Contractor shall maintain 
good discipline and order at the Site. 

B. Contractor shall be fully responsible to 
Owner and Engineer for all acts and 
omissions of Contractor’s employees; of 
Suppliers and Subcontractors, and their 
employees; and of any other individuals 
or entities performing or furnishing any 
of the Work, just as Contractor is 
responsible for Contractor’s own acts 
and omissions. 

C. Except as otherwise required for the 
safety or protection of persons or the 
Work or property at the Site or adjacent 
thereto, and except as otherwise stated 
in the Contract Documents, all Work at 
the Site will be performed during regular 
working hours, Monday through Friday. 
Contractor will not perform Work on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday. 
Contractor may perform Work outside 
regular working hours or on Saturdays, 
Sundays, or legal holidays only with 
Owner’s written consent, which will not 
be unreasonably withheld. 

7.04 Services, Materials, and Equipment 

A. Unless otherwise specified in the 
Contract Documents, Contractor shall 
provide and assume full responsibility 
for all services, materials, equipment, 
labor, transportation, construction 
equipment and machinery, tools, 
appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, 
telephone, water, sanitary facilities, 
temporary facilities, and all other 
facilities and incidentals necessary for 
the performance, testing, start up, and 
completion of the Work, whether or not 
such items are specifically called for in 
the Contract Documents. 

B. All materials and equipment 
incorporated into the Work must be new 
and of good quality, except as otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents. All 
special warranties and guarantees 
required by the Specifications will 
expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If 
required by Engineer, Contractor shall 
furnish satisfactory evidence (including 
reports of required tests) as to the 
source, kind, and quality of materials 
and equipment. 

C. All materials and equipment must be 
stored, applied, installed, connected, 
erected, protected, used, cleaned, and 
conditioned in accordance with 

Page 233 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-37
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

instructions of the applicable Supplier, 
except as otherwise may be provided in 
the Contract Documents. 

7.05 “Or Equals” 

A. Contractor’s Request; Governing 
Criteria: Whenever an item of 
equipment or material is specified or 
described in the Contract Documents by 
using the names of one or more 
proprietary items or specific Suppliers, 
the Contract Price has been based upon 
Contractor furnishing such item as 
specified. The specification or 
description of such an item is intended 
to establish the type, function, 
appearance, and quality required. 
Unless the specification or description 
contains or is followed by words reading 
that no like, equivalent, or “or equal” 
item is permitted, Contractor may 
request that Engineer authorize the use 
of other items of equipment or material, 
or items from other proposed Suppliers, 
under the circumstances described 
below. 

1. If Engineer in its sole discretion 
determines that an item of 
equipment or material proposed by 
Contractor is functionally equal to 
that named and sufficiently similar 
so that no change in related Work 
will be required, Engineer will deem 
it an “or equal” item. For the 
purposes of this paragraph, a 
proposed item of equipment or 
material will be considered 
functionally equal to an item so 
named if: 

a. in the exercise of reasonable 
judgment Engineer determines 
that the proposed item: 

1) is at least equal in materials 
of construction, quality, 
durability, appearance, 

strength, and design 
characteristics; 

2) will reliably perform at least 
equally well the function 
and achieve the results 
imposed by the design 
concept of the completed 
Project as a functioning 
whole; 

3) has a proven record of 
performance and 
availability of responsive 
service; and 

4) is not objectionable to 
Owner. 

b. Contractor certifies that, if the 
proposed item is approved and 
incorporated into the Work: 

1) there will be no increase in 
cost to the Owner or 
increase in Contract Times; 
and 

2) the item will conform 
substantially to the detailed 
requirements of the item 
named in the Contract 
Documents. 

B. Contractor’s Expense: Contractor shall 
provide all data in support of any 
proposed “or equal” item at 
Contractor’s expense. 

C. Engineer’s Evaluation and 
Determination: Engineer will be allowed 
a reasonable time to evaluate each “or-
equal” request. Engineer may require 
Contractor to furnish additional data 
about the proposed “or-equal” item. 
Engineer will be the sole judge of 
acceptability. No “or-equal” item will be 
ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized 
until Engineer’s review is complete and 

Page 234 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-38
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Engineer determines that the proposed 
item is an “or-equal,” which will be 
evidenced by an approved Shop Drawing 
or other written communication. 
Engineer will advise Contractor in 
writing of any negative determination. 

D. Effect of Engineer’s Determination: 
Neither approval nor denial of an “or-
equal” request will result in any change 
in Contract Price. The Engineer’s denial 
of an “or-equal” request will be final and 
binding, and may not be reversed 
through an appeal under any provision 
of the Contract. 

E. Treatment as a Substitution Request: If 
Engineer determines that an item of 
equipment or material proposed by 
Contractor does not qualify as an “or-
equal” item, Contractor may request 
that Engineer consider the item a 
proposed substitute pursuant to 
Paragraph 7.06. 

7.06 Substitutes 

A. Contractor’s Request; Governing 
Criteria: Unless the specification or 
description of an item of equipment or 
material required to be furnished under 
the Contract Documents contains or is 
followed by words reading that no 
substitution is permitted, Contractor 
may request that Engineer authorize the 
use of other items of equipment or 
material under the circumstances 
described below. To the extent possible 
such requests must be made before 
commencement of related construction 
at the Site. 

1. Contractor shall submit sufficient 
information as provided below to 
allow Engineer to determine if the 
item of material or equipment 
proposed is functionally equivalent 
to that named and an acceptable 
substitute therefor. Engineer will 

not accept requests for review of 
proposed substitute items of 
equipment or material from anyone 
other than Contractor. 

2. The requirements for review by 
Engineer will be as set forth in 
Paragraph 7.06.B, as supplemented 
by the Specifications, and as 
Engineer may decide is appropriate 
under the circumstances. 

3. Contractor shall make written 
application to Engineer for review of 
a proposed substitute item of 
equipment or material that 
Contractor seeks to furnish or use. 
The application: 

a. will certify that the proposed 
substitute item will: 

1) perform adequately the 
functions and achieve the 
results called for by the 
general design; 

2) be similar in substance to 
the item specified; and 

3) be suited to the same use as 
the item specified. 

b. will state: 

1) the extent, if any, to which 
the use of the proposed 
substitute item will 
necessitate a change in 
Contract Times; 

2) whether use of the 
proposed substitute item in 
the Work will require a 
change in any of the 
Contract Documents (or in 
the provisions of any other 
direct contract with Owner 
for other work on the 
Project) to adapt the design 

Page 235 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-39
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

to the proposed substitute 
item; and 

3) whether incorporation or 
use of the proposed 
substitute item in 
connection with the Work is 
subject to payment of any 
license fee or royalty. 

c. will identify: 

1) all variations of the 
proposed substitute item 
from the item specified; and 

2) available engineering, sales, 
maintenance, repair, and 
replacement services. 

d. will contain an itemized 
estimate of all costs or credits 
that will result directly or 
indirectly from use of such 
substitute item, including but 
not limited to changes in 
Contract Price, shared savings, 
costs of redesign, and claims of 
other contractors affected by 
any resulting change. 

B. Engineer’s Evaluation and 
Determination: Engineer will be allowed 
a reasonable time to evaluate each 
substitute request, and to obtain 
comments and direction from Owner. 
Engineer may require Contractor to 
furnish additional data about the 
proposed substitute item. Engineer will 
be the sole judge of acceptability. No 
substitute will be ordered, furnished, 
installed, or utilized until Engineer’s 
review is complete and Engineer 
determines that the proposed item is an 
acceptable substitute. Engineer’s 
determination will be evidenced by a 
Field Order or a proposed Change Order 
accounting for the substitution itself and 
all related impacts, including changes in 

Contract Price or Contract Times. 
Engineer will advise Contractor in 
writing of any negative determination. 

C. Special Guarantee: Owner may require 
Contractor to furnish at Contractor’s 
expense a special performance 
guarantee or other surety with respect 
to any substitute. 

D. Reimbursement of Engineer’s Cost: 
Engineer will record Engineer’s costs in 
evaluating a substitute proposed or 
submitted by Contractor. Whether or 
not Engineer approves a substitute so 
proposed or submitted by Contractor, 
Contractor shall reimburse Owner for 
the reasonable charges of Engineer for 
evaluating each such proposed 
substitute. Contractor shall also 
reimburse Owner for the reasonable 
charges of Engineer for making changes 
in the Contract Documents (or in the 
provisions of any other direct contract 
with Owner) resulting from the 
acceptance of each proposed substitute. 

E. Contractor’s Expense: Contractor shall 
provide all data in support of any 
proposed substitute at Contractor’s 
expense. 

F. Effect of Engineer’s Determination: If 
Engineer approves the substitution 
request, Contractor shall execute the 
proposed Change Order and proceed 
with the substitution. The Engineer’s 
denial of a substitution request will be 
final and binding, and may not be 
reversed through an appeal under any 
provision of the Contract. Contractor 
may challenge the scope of 
reimbursement costs imposed under 
Paragraph 7.06.D, by timely submittal of 
a Change Proposal. 

Page 236 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-40
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

7.07 Concerning Subcontractors and Suppliers 

A. Contractor may retain Subcontractors 
and Suppliers for the performance of 
parts of the Work. Such Subcontractors 
and Suppliers must be acceptable to 
Owner. The Contractor’s retention of a 
Subcontractor or Supplier for the 
performance of parts of the Work will 
not relieve Contractor’s obligation to 
Owner to perform and complete the 
Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

B. Contractor shall retain specific 
Subcontractors and Suppliers for the 
performance of designated parts of the 
Work if required by the Contract to do 
so. 

C. Subsequent to the submittal of 
Contractor’s Bid or final negotiation of 
the terms of the Contract, Owner may 
not require Contractor to retain any 
Subcontractor or Supplier to furnish or 
perform any of the Work against which 
Contractor has reasonable objection. 

D. Prior to entry into any binding 
subcontract or purchase order, 
Contractor shall submit to Owner the 
identity of the proposed Subcontractor 
or Supplier (unless Owner has already 
deemed such proposed Subcontractor 
or Supplier acceptable during the 
bidding process or otherwise). Such 
proposed Subcontractor or Supplier 
shall be deemed acceptable to Owner 
unless Owner raises a substantive, 
reasonable objection within 5 days. 

E. Owner may require the replacement of 
any Subcontractor or Supplier. Owner 
also may require Contractor to retain 
specific replacements; provided, 
however, that Owner may not require a 
replacement to which Contractor has a 
reasonable objection. If Contractor has 
submitted the identity of certain 

Subcontractors or Suppliers for 
acceptance by Owner, and Owner has 
accepted it (either in writing or by failing 
to make written objection thereto), then 
Owner may subsequently revoke the 
acceptance of any such Subcontractor or 
Supplier so identified solely on the basis 
of substantive, reasonable objection 
after due investigation. Contractor shall 
submit an acceptable replacement for 
the rejected Subcontractor or Supplier. 

F. If Owner requires the replacement of 
any Subcontractor or Supplier retained 
by Contractor to perform any part of the 
Work, then Contractor shall be entitled 
to an adjustment in Contract Price or 
Contract Times, with respect to the 
replacement; and Contractor shall 
initiate a Change Proposal for such 
adjustment within 30 days of Owner’s 
requirement of replacement. 

G. No acceptance by Owner of any such 
Subcontractor or Supplier, whether 
initially or as a replacement, will 
constitute a waiver of the right of Owner 
to the completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

H. On a monthly basis, Contractor shall 
submit to Engineer a complete list of all 
Subcontractors and Suppliers having a 
direct contract with Contractor, and of 
all other Subcontractors and Suppliers 
known to Contractor at the time of 
submittal. 

I. Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
scheduling and coordinating the work of 
Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

J. The divisions and sections of the 
Specifications and the identifications of 
any Drawings do not control Contractor 
in dividing the Work among 
Subcontractors or Suppliers, or in 

Page 237 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-41
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

delineating the Work to be performed 
by any specific trade. 

K. All Work performed for Contractor by a 
Subcontractor or Supplier must be 
pursuant to an appropriate contractual 
agreement that specifically binds the 
Subcontractor or Supplier to the 
applicable terms and conditions of the 
Contract for the benefit of Owner and 
Engineer. 

L. Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor 
or Supplier, to the extent practicable, 
information about amounts paid to 
Contractor for Work performed for 
Contractor by the Subcontractor or 
Supplier. 

M. Contractor shall restrict all 
Subcontractors and Suppliers from 
communicating with Engineer or Owner, 
except through Contractor or in case of 
an emergency, or as otherwise expressly 
allowed in this Contract. 

7.08 Patent Fees and Royalties 

A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and 
royalties and assume all costs incident to 
the use in the performance of the Work 
or the incorporation in the Work of any 
invention, design, process, product, or 
device which is the subject of patent 
rights or copyrights held by others. If an 
invention, design, process, product, or 
device is specified in the Contract 
Documents for use in the performance 
of the Work and if, to the actual 
knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use 
is subject to patent rights or copyrights 
calling for the payment of any license fee 
or royalty to others, the existence of 
such rights will be disclosed in the 
Contract Documents. 

B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify 
and hold harmless Contractor, and its 

officers, directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors, from and against all 
claims, costs, losses, and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees and 
charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals, and 
all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or 
relating to any infringement of patent 
rights or copyrights incident to the use in 
the performance of the Work or 
resulting from the incorporation in the 
Work of any invention, design, process, 
product, or device specified in the 
Contract Documents, but not identified 
as being subject to payment of any 
license fee or royalty to others required 
by patent rights or copyrights. 

C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Owner and 
Engineer, and the officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, agents, 
consultants and subcontractors of each 
and any of them, from and against all 
claims, costs, losses, and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees and 
charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals and 
all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or 
relating to any infringement of patent 
rights or copyrights incident to the use in 
the performance of the Work or 
resulting from the incorporation in the 
Work of any invention, design, process, 
product, or device not specified in the 
Contract Documents. 

7.09 Permits 

A. Unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents, Contractor shall 
obtain and pay for all construction 
permits, licenses, and certificates of 
occupancy. Owner shall assist 
Contractor, when necessary, in 

Page 238 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-42
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

obtaining such permits and licenses. 
Contractor shall pay all governmental 
charges and inspection fees necessary 
for the prosecution of the Work which 
are applicable at the time of the 
submission of Contractor’s Bid (or when 
Contractor became bound under a 
negotiated contract). Owner shall pay all 
charges of utility owners for connections 
for providing permanent service to the 
Work. 

7.10 Taxes 

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, 
use, and other similar taxes required to 
be paid by Contractor in accordance 
with the Laws and Regulations of the 
place of the Project which are applicable 
during the performance of the Work. 

7.11 Laws and Regulations 

A. Contractor shall give all notices required 
by and shall comply with all Laws and 
Regulations applicable to the 
performance of the Work. Neither 
Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible 
for monitoring Contractor’s compliance 
with any Laws or Regulations. 

B. If Contractor performs any Work or 
takes any other action knowing or 
having reason to know that it is contrary 
to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall 
bear all resulting costs and losses, and 
shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, 
directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of them, 
from and against all claims, costs, losses, 
and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals and all court or arbitration 
or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to such Work or other 
action. It is not Contractor’s 

responsibility to make certain that the 
Work described in the Contract 
Documents is in accordance with Laws 
and Regulations, but this does not 
relieve Contractor of its obligations 
under Paragraph 3.03. 

C. Owner or Contractor may give written 
notice to the other party of any changes 
after the submission of Contractor’s Bid 
(or after the date when Contractor 
became bound under a negotiated 
contract) in Laws or Regulations having 
an effect on the cost or time of 
performance of the Work, including but 
not limited to changes in Laws or 
Regulations having an effect on 
procuring permits and on sales, use, 
value-added, consumption, and other 
similar taxes. If Owner and Contractor 
are unable to agree on entitlement to or 
on the amount or extent, if any, of any 
adjustment in Contract Price or Contract 
Times resulting from such changes, then 
within 30 days of such written notice 
Contractor may submit a Change 
Proposal, or Owner may initiate a Claim. 

7.12 Record Documents 

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place 
at the Site one printed record copy of all 
Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, 
Change Orders, Work Change Directives, 
Field Orders, written interpretations and 
clarifications, and approved Shop 
Drawings. Contractor shall keep such 
record documents in good order and 
annotate them to show changes made 
during construction. These record 
documents, together with all approved 
Samples, will be available to Engineer for 
reference. Upon completion of the 
Work, Contractor shall deliver these 
record documents to Engineer. 

Page 239 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-43
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

7.13 Safety and Protection 

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
initiating, maintaining, and supervising 
all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Work. Such 
responsibility does not relieve 
Subcontractors of their responsibility for 
the safety of persons or property in the 
performance of their work, nor for 
compliance with applicable safety Laws 
and Regulations. 

B. Contractor shall designate a qualified 
and experienced safety representative 
whose duties and responsibilities are the 
prevention of Work-related accidents 
and the maintenance and supervision of 
safety precautions and programs. 

C. Contractor shall take all necessary 
precautions for the safety of, and shall 
provide the necessary protection to 
prevent damage, injury, or loss to: 

1. all persons on the Site or who may 
be affected by the Work; 

2. all the Work and materials and 
equipment to be incorporated 
therein, whether in storage on or off 
the Site; and 

3. other property at the Site or 
adjacent thereto, including trees, 
shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, 
roadways, structures, other work in 
progress, utilities, and Underground 
Facilities not designated for 
removal, relocation, or replacement 
in the course of construction. 

D. All damage, injury, or loss to any 
property referred to in 
Paragraph 7.13.C.2 or 7.13.C.3 caused, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, 
by Contractor, any Subcontractor, 
Supplier, or any other individual or 
entity directly or indirectly employed by 

any of them to perform any of the Work, 
or anyone for whose acts any of them 
may be liable, shall be remedied by 
Contractor at its expense (except 
damage or loss attributable to the fault 
of Drawings or Specifications or to the 
acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer 
or anyone employed by any of them, or 
anyone for whose acts any of them may 
be liable, and not attributable, directly 
or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the 
fault or negligence of Contractor or any 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other 
individual or entity directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them). 

E. Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable Laws and Regulations relating 
to the safety of persons or property, or 
to the protection of persons or property 
from damage, injury, or loss; and shall 
erect and maintain all necessary 
safeguards for such safety and 
protection. 

F. Contractor shall notify Owner; the 
owners of adjacent property; the 
owners of Underground Facilities and 
other utilities (if the identity of such 
owners is known to Contractor); and 
other contractors and utility owners 
performing work at or adjacent to the 
Site, in writing, when Contractor knows 
that prosecution of the Work may affect 
them, and shall cooperate with them in 
the protection, removal, relocation, and 
replacement of their property or work in 
progress. 

G. Contractor shall comply with the 
applicable requirements of Owner’s 
safety programs, if any. Any Owner’s 
safety programs that are applicable to 
the Work are identified or included in 
the Supplementary Conditions or 
Specifications. 

H. Contractor shall inform Owner and 
Engineer of the specific requirements of 

Page 240 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-44
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Contractor’s safety program with which 
Owner’s and Engineer’s employees and 
representatives must comply while at 
the Site. 

I. Contractor’s duties and responsibilities 
for safety and protection will continue 
until all the Work is completed, Engineer 
has issued a written notice to Owner and 
Contractor in accordance with 
Paragraph 15.06.C that the Work is 
acceptable, and Contractor has left the 
Site (except as otherwise expressly 
provided in connection with Substantial 
Completion). 

J. Contractor’s duties and responsibilities 
for safety and protection will resume 
whenever Contractor or any 
Subcontractor or Supplier returns to the 
Site to fulfill warranty or correction 
obligations, or to conduct other tasks 
arising from the Contract Documents. 

7.14 Hazard Communication Programs 

A. Contractor shall be responsible for 
coordinating any exchange of safety 
data sheets (formerly known as material 
safety data sheets) or other hazard 
communication information required to 
be made available to or exchanged 
between or among employers at the Site 
in accordance with Laws or Regulations. 

7.15 Emergencies 

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or 
protection of persons or the Work or 
property at the Site or adjacent thereto, 
Contractor is obligated to act to prevent 
damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall 
give Engineer prompt written notice if 
Contractor believes that any significant 
changes in the Work or variations from 
the Contract Documents have been 
caused by an emergency, or are required 
as a result of Contractor’s response to an 
emergency. If Engineer determines that 

a change in the Contract Documents is 
required because of an emergency or 
Contractor’s response, a Work Change 
Directive or Change Order will be issued. 

7.16 Submittals 

A. Shop Drawing and Sample Requirements 

1. Before submitting a Shop Drawing or 
Sample, Contractor shall: 

a. review and coordinate the Shop 
Drawing or Sample with other 
Shop Drawings and Samples and 
with the requirements of the 
Work and the Contract 
Documents; 

b. determine and verify: 

1) all field measurements, 
quantities, dimensions, 
specified performance and 
design criteria, installation 
requirements, materials, 
catalog numbers, and 
similar information with 
respect to the Submittal; 

2) the suitability of all 
materials and equipment 
offered with respect to the 
indicated application, 
fabrication, shipping, 
handling, storage, assembly, 
and installation pertaining 
to the performance of the 
Work; and 

3) all information relative to 
Contractor’s responsibilities 
for means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and 
procedures of construction, 
and safety precautions and 
programs incident thereto; 

c. confirm that the Submittal is 
complete with respect to all 

Page 241 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-45
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

related data included in the 
Submittal. 

2. Each Shop Drawing or Sample must 
bear a stamp or specific written 
certification that Contractor has 
satisfied Contractor’s obligations 
under the Contract Documents with 
respect to Contractor’s review of 
that Submittal, and that Contractor 
approves the Submittal. 

3. With each Shop Drawing or Sample, 
Contractor shall give Engineer 
specific written notice of any 
variations that the Submittal may 
have from the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. This notice 
must be set forth in a written 
communication separate from the 
Submittal; and, in addition, in the 
case of a Shop Drawing by a specific 
notation made on the Shop Drawing 
itself. 

B. Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings 
and Samples: Contractor shall label and 
submit Shop Drawings and Samples to 
Engineer for review and approval in 
accordance with the accepted Schedule 
of Submittals. 

1. Shop Drawings 

a. Contractor shall submit the 
number of copies required in 
the Specifications. 

b. Data shown on the Shop 
Drawings must be complete 
with respect to quantities, 
dimensions, specified 
performance and design 
criteria, materials, and similar 
data to show Engineer the 
services, materials, and 
equipment Contractor proposes 
to provide, and to enable 
Engineer to review the 

information for the limited 
purposes required by 
Paragraph 7.16.C. 

2. Samples 

a. Contractor shall submit the 
number of Samples required in 
the Specifications. 

b. Contractor shall clearly identify 
each Sample as to material, 
Supplier, pertinent data such as 
catalog numbers, the use for 
which intended and other data 
as Engineer may require to 
enable Engineer to review the 
Submittal for the limited 
purposes required by 
Paragraph 7.16.C. 

3. Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is 
required by the Contract Documents 
or the Schedule of Submittals, any 
related Work performed prior to 
Engineer’s review and approval of 
the pertinent submittal will be at the 
sole expense and responsibility of 
Contractor. 

C. Engineer’s Review of Shop Drawings and 
Samples 

1. Engineer will provide timely review 
of Shop Drawings and Samples in 
accordance with the accepted 
Schedule of Submittals. Engineer’s 
review and approval will be only to 
determine if the items covered by 
the Submittals will, after installation 
or incorporation in the Work, 
comply with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, and be 
compatible with the design concept 
of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole as indicated by 
the Contract Documents. 

Page 242 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-46
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

2. Engineer’s review and approval will 
not extend to means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or to 
safety precautions or programs 
incident thereto. 

3. Engineer’s review and approval of a 
separate item as such will not 
indicate approval of the assembly in 
which the item functions. 

4. Engineer’s review and approval of a 
Shop Drawing or Sample will not 
relieve Contractor from 
responsibility for any variation from 
the requirements of the Contract 
Documents unless Contractor has 
complied with the requirements of 
Paragraph 7.16.A.3 and Engineer 
has given written approval of each 
such variation by specific written 
notation thereof incorporated in or 
accompanying the Shop Drawing or 
Sample. Engineer will document any 
such approved variation from the 
requirements of the Contract 
Documents in a Field Order or other 
appropriate Contract modification. 

5. Engineer’s review and approval of a 
Shop Drawing or Sample will not 
relieve Contractor from 
responsibility for complying with the 
requirements of Paragraphs 7.16.A 
and B. 

6. Engineer’s review and approval of a 
Shop Drawing or Sample, or of a 
variation from the requirements of 
the Contract Documents, will not, 
under any circumstances, change 
the Contract Times or Contract 
Price, unless such changes are 
included in a Change Order. 

7. Neither Engineer’s receipt, review, 
acceptance, or approval of a Shop 
Drawing or Sample will result in such 

item becoming a Contract 
Document. 

8. Contractor shall perform the Work 
in compliance with the 
requirements and commitments set 
forth in approved Shop Drawings 
and Samples, subject to the 
provisions of Paragraph 7.16.C.4. 

D. Resubmittal Procedures for Shop 
Drawings and Samples 

1. Contractor shall make corrections 
required by Engineer and shall 
return the required number of 
corrected copies of Shop Drawings 
and submit, as required, new 
Samples for review and approval. 
Contractor shall direct specific 
attention in writing to revisions 
other than the corrections called for 
by Engineer on previous Submittals. 

2. Contractor shall furnish required 
Shop Drawing and Sample 
submittals with sufficient 
information and accuracy to obtain 
required approval of an item with no 
more than two resubmittals. 
Engineer will record Engineer’s time 
for reviewing a third or subsequent 
resubmittal of a Shop Drawing or 
Sample, and Contractor shall be 
responsible for Engineer’s charges 
to Owner for such time. Owner may 
impose a set-off against payments 
due Contractor to secure 
reimbursement for such charges. 

3. If Contractor requests a change of a 
previously approved Shop Drawing 
or Sample, Contractor shall be 
responsible for Engineer’s charges 
to Owner for its review time, and 
Owner may impose a set-off against 
payments due Contractor to secure 
reimbursement for such charges, 

Page 243 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-47
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

unless the need for such change is 
beyond the control of Contractor. 

E. Submittals Other than Shop Drawings, 
Samples, and Owner-Delegated Designs 

1. The following provisions apply to all 
Submittals other than Shop 
Drawings, Samples, and Owner-
delegated designs: 

a. Contractor shall submit all such 
Submittals to the Engineer in 
accordance with the Schedule of 
Submittals and pursuant to the 
applicable terms of the Contract 
Documents. 

b. Engineer will provide timely 
review of all such Submittals in 
accordance with the Schedule of 
Submittals and return such 
Submittals with a notation of 
either Accepted or Not 
Accepted. Any such Submittal 
that is not returned within the 
time established in the Schedule 
of Submittals will be deemed 
accepted. 

c. Engineer’s review will be only to 
determine if the Submittal is 
acceptable under the 
requirements of the Contract 
Documents as to general form 
and content of the Submittal. 

d. If any such Submittal is not 
accepted, Contractor shall 
confer with Engineer regarding 
the reason for the non-
acceptance, and resubmit an 
acceptable document. 

2. Procedures for the submittal and 
acceptance of the Progress 
Schedule, the Schedule of 
Submittals, and the Schedule of 

Values are set forth in 
Paragraphs 2.03. 2.04, and 2.05. 

F. Owner-delegated Designs: Submittals 
pursuant to Owner-delegated designs 
are governed by the provisions of 
Paragraph 7.19. 

7.17 Contractor’s General Warranty and 
Guarantee 

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to 
Owner that all Work will be in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents and will not be defective. 
Engineer is entitled to rely on 
Contractor’s warranty and guarantee. 

B. Owner’s rights under this warranty and 
guarantee are in addition to, and are not 
limited by, Owner’s rights under the 
correction period provisions of 
Paragraph 15.08. The time in which 
Owner may enforce its warranty and 
guarantee rights under this 
Paragraph 7.17 is limited only by 
applicable Laws and Regulations 
restricting actions to enforce such rights; 
provided, however, that after the end of 
the correction period under 
Paragraph 15.08: 

1. Owner shall give Contractor written 
notice of any defective Work within 
60 days of the discovery that such 
Work is defective; and 

2. Such notice will be deemed the start 
of an event giving rise to a Claim 
under Paragraph 12.01.B, such that 
any related Claim must be brought 
within 30 days of the notice. 

C. Contractor’s warranty and guarantee 
hereunder excludes defects or damage 
caused by: 

1. abuse, or improper modification, 
maintenance, or operation, by 

Page 244 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-48
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

persons other than Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any 
other individual or entity for whom 
Contractor is responsible; or 

2. normal wear and tear under normal 
usage. 

D. Contractor’s obligation to perform and 
complete the Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents is absolute. 
None of the following will constitute an 
acceptance of Work that is not in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents, a release of Contractor’s 
obligation to perform the Work in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents, or a release of Owner’s 
warranty and guarantee rights under 
this Paragraph 7.17: 

1. Observations by Engineer; 

2. Recommendation by Engineer or 
payment by Owner of any progress 
or final payment; 

3. The issuance of a certificate of 
Substantial Completion by Engineer 
or any payment related thereto by 
Owner; 

4. Use or occupancy of the Work or any 
part thereof by Owner; 

5. Any review and approval of a Shop 
Drawing or Sample submittal; 

6. The issuance of a notice of 
acceptability by Engineer; 

7. The end of the correction period 
established in Paragraph 15.08; 

8. Any inspection, test, or approval by 
others; or 

9. Any correction of defective Work by 
Owner. 

E. If the Contract requires the Contractor 
to accept the assignment of a contract 
entered into by Owner, then the specific 
warranties, guarantees, and correction 
obligations contained in the assigned 
contract will govern with respect to 
Contractor’s performance obligations to 
Owner for the Work described in the 
assigned contract. 

7.18 Indemnification 

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, and in addition to any 
other obligations of Contractor under 
the Contract or otherwise, Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, 
directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants and 
subcontractors of each and any of them, 
from losses, damages, costs, and 
judgments (including but not limited to 
all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals, and all court or arbitration 
or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
from third-party claims or actions 
relating to or resulting from the 
performance or furnishing of the Work, 
provided that any such claim, action, 
loss, cost, judgment or damage is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, or death, or to damage to or 
destruction of tangible property (other 
than the Work itself), including the loss 
of use resulting therefrom, but only to 
the extent caused by any negligent act or 
omission of Contractor, any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any 
individual or entity directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform any 
of the Work, or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable. 

B. In any and all claims against Owner or 
Engineer, or any of their officers, 
directors, members, partners, 
employees, agents, consultants, or 

Page 245 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-49
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

subcontractors, by any employee (or the 
survivor or personal representative of 
such employee) of Contractor, any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any 
individual or entity directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform any 
of the Work, or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under 
Paragraph 7.18.A will not be limited in 
any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of damages, compensation, or 
benefits payable by or for Contractor or 
any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or 
other individual or entity under workers’ 
compensation acts, disability benefit 
acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

7.19 Delegation of Professional Design Services 

A. Owner may require Contractor to 
provide professional design services for 
a portion of the Work by express 
delegation in the Contract Documents. 
Such delegation will specify the 
performance and design criteria that 
such services must satisfy, and the 
Submittals that Contractor must furnish 
to Engineer with respect to the Owner-
delegated design. 

B. Contractor shall cause such Owner-
delegated professional design services 
to be provided pursuant to the 
professional standard of care by a 
properly licensed design professional, 
whose signature and seal must appear 
on all drawings, calculations, 
specifications, certifications, and 
Submittals prepared by such design 
professional. Such design professional 
must issue all certifications of design 
required by Laws and Regulations. 

C. If a Shop Drawing or other Submittal 
related to the Owner-delegated design is 
prepared by Contractor, a 
Subcontractor, or others for submittal to 
Engineer, then such Shop Drawing or 

other Submittal must bear the written 
approval of Contractor’s design 
professional when submitted by 
Contractor to Engineer. 

D. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to 
rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and 
completeness of the services, 
certifications, and approvals performed 
or provided by the design professionals 
retained or employed by Contractor 
under an Owner-delegated design, 
subject to the professional standard of 
care and the performance and design 
criteria stated in the Contract 
Documents. 

E. Pursuant to this Paragraph 7.19, 
Engineer’s review, approval, and other 
determinations regarding design 
drawings, calculations, specifications, 
certifications, and other Submittals 
furnished by Contractor pursuant to an 
Owner-delegated design will be only for 
the following limited purposes: 

1. Checking for conformance with the 
requirements of this 
Paragraph 7.19; 

2. Confirming that Contractor (through 
its design professionals) has used 
the performance and design criteria 
specified in the Contract 
Documents; and 

3. Establishing that the design 
furnished by Contractor is consistent 
with the design concept expressed 
in the Contract Documents. 

F. Contractor shall not be responsible for 
the adequacy of performance or design 
criteria specified by Owner or Engineer. 

G. Contractor is not required to provide 
professional services in violation of 
applicable Laws and Regulations. 

Page 246 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-50
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

ARTICLE 8—OTHER WORK AT THE SITE 

8.01 Other Work 

A. In addition to and apart from the Work 
under the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may perform other work at or 
adjacent to the Site. Such other work 
may be performed by Owner’s 
employees, or through contracts 
between the Owner and third parties. 
Owner may also arrange to have third-
party utility owners perform work on 
their utilities and facilities at or adjacent 
to the Site. 

B. If Owner performs other work at or 
adjacent to the Site with Owner’s 
employees, or through contracts for 
such other work, then Owner shall give 
Contractor written notice thereof prior 
to starting any such other work. If Owner 
has advance information regarding the 
start of any third-party utility work that 
Owner has arranged to take place at or 
adjacent to the Site, Owner shall provide 
such information to Contractor. 

C. Contractor shall afford proper and safe 
access to the Site to each contractor that 
performs such other work, each utility 
owner performing other work, and 
Owner, if Owner is performing other 
work with Owner’s employees, and 
provide a reasonable opportunity for the 
introduction and storage of materials 
and equipment and the execution of 
such other work. 

D. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, 
and patching of the Work that may be 
required to properly connect or 
otherwise make its several parts come 
together and properly integrate with 
such other work. Contractor shall not 
endanger any work of others by cutting, 
excavating, or otherwise altering such 
work; provided, however, that 
Contractor may cut or alter others' work 

with the written consent of Engineer and 
the others whose work will be affected. 

E. If the proper execution or results of any 
part of Contractor’s Work depends upon 
work performed by others, Contractor 
shall inspect such other work and 
promptly report to Engineer in writing 
any delays, defects, or deficiencies in 
such other work that render it 
unavailable or unsuitable for the proper 
execution and results of Contractor’s 
Work. Contractor’s failure to so report 
will constitute an acceptance of such 
other work as fit and proper for 
integration with Contractor’s Work 
except for latent defects and 
deficiencies in such other work. 

F. The provisions of this article are not 
applicable to work that is performed by 
third-party utilities or other third-party 
entities without a contract with Owner, 
or that is performed without having 
been arranged by Owner. If such work 
occurs, then any related delay, 
disruption, or interference incurred by 
Contractor is governed by the provisions 
of Paragraph 4.05.C.3. 

8.02 Coordination 

A. If Owner intends to contract with others 
for the performance of other work at or 
adjacent to the Site, to perform other 
work at or adjacent to the Site with 
Owner’s employees, or to arrange to 
have utility owners perform work at or 
adjacent to the Site, the following will be 
set forth in the Supplementary 
Conditions or provided to Contractor 
prior to the start of any such other work: 

1. The identity of the individual or 
entity that will have authority and 
responsibility for coordination of the 
activities among the various 
contractors; 

Page 247 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-51
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

2. An itemization of the specific 
matters to be covered by such 
authority and responsibility; and 

3. The extent of such authority and 
responsibilities. 

B. Unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall 
have sole authority and responsibility for 
such coordination. 

8.03 Legal Relationships 

A. If, in the course of performing other 
work for Owner at or adjacent to the 
Site, the Owner’s employees, any other 
contractor working for Owner, or any 
utility owner that Owner has arranged to 
perform work, causes damage to the 
Work or to the property of Contractor or 
its Subcontractors, or delays, disrupts, 
interferes with, or increases the scope or 
cost of the performance of the Work, 
through actions or inaction, then 
Contractor shall be entitled to an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract 
Price or the Contract Times. Contractor 
must submit any Change Proposal 
seeking an equitable adjustment in the 
Contract Price or the Contract Times 
under this paragraph within 30 days of 
the damaging, delaying, disrupting, or 
interfering event. The entitlement to, 
and extent of, any such equitable 
adjustment will take into account 
information (if any) regarding such other 
work that was provided to Contractor in 
the Contract Documents prior to the 
submittal of the Bid or the final 
negotiation of the terms of the Contract, 
and any remedies available to 
Contractor under Laws or Regulations 
concerning utility action or inaction. 
When applicable, any such equitable 
adjustment in Contract Price will be 
conditioned on Contractor assigning to 
Owner all Contractor’s rights against 
such other contractor or utility owner 

with respect to the damage, delay, 
disruption, or interference that is the 
subject of the adjustment. Contractor’s 
entitlement to an adjustment of the 
Contract Times or Contract Price is 
subject to the provisions of 
Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E. 

B. Contractor shall take reasonable and 
customary measures to avoid damaging, 
delaying, disrupting, or interfering with 
the work of Owner, any other 
contractor, or any utility owner 
performing other work at or adjacent to 
the Site. 

1. If Contractor fails to take such 
measures and as a result damages, 
delays, disrupts, or interferes with 
the work of any such other 
contractor or utility owner, then 
Owner may impose a set-off against 
payments due Contractor, and 
assign to such other contractor or 
utility owner the Owner’s 
contractual rights against 
Contractor with respect to the 
breach of the obligations set forth in 
this Paragraph 8.03.B. 

2. When Owner is performing other 
work at or adjacent to the Site with 
Owner’s employees, Contractor 
shall be liable to Owner for damage 
to such other work, and for the 
reasonable direct delay, disruption, 
and interference costs incurred by 
Owner as a result of Contractor’s 
failure to take reasonable and 
customary measures with respect to 
Owner’s other work. In response to 
such damage, delay, disruption, or 
interference, Owner may impose a 
set-off against payments due 
Contractor. 

C. If Contractor damages, delays, disrupts, 
or interferes with the work of any other 
contractor, or any utility owner 

Page 248 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-52
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

performing other work at or adjacent to 
the Site, through Contractor’s failure to 
take reasonable and customary 
measures to avoid such impacts, or if any 
claim arising out of Contractor’s actions, 
inactions, or negligence in performance 
of the Work at or adjacent to the Site is 
made by any such other contractor or 
utility owner against Contractor, Owner, 
or Engineer, then Contractor shall (1) 
promptly attempt to settle the claim as 
to all parties through negotiations with 
such other contractor or utility owner, or 
otherwise resolve the claim by 
arbitration or other dispute resolution 
proceeding or at law, and (2) indemnify 
and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, 
and the officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, 
consultants and subcontractors of each 
and any of them from and against any 
such claims, and against all costs, losses, 
and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals and all court or arbitration 
or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to such damage, delay, 
disruption, or interference. 

ARTICLE 9—OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

9.01 Communications to Contractor 

A. Except as otherwise provided in these 
General Conditions, Owner shall issue all 
communications to Contractor through 
Engineer. 

9.02 Replacement of Engineer 

A. Owner may at its discretion appoint an 
engineer to replace Engineer, provided 
Contractor makes no reasonable 
objection to the replacement engineer. 
The replacement engineer’s status 
under the Contract Documents will be 
that of the former Engineer. 

9.03 Furnish Data 

A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data 
required of Owner under the Contract 
Documents. 

9.04 Pay When Due 

A. Owner shall make payments to 
Contractor when they are due as 
provided in the Agreement. 

9.05 Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and 
Drawings 

A. Owner’s duties with respect to providing 
lands and easements are set forth in 
Paragraph 5.01. 

B. Owner’s duties with respect to providing 
engineering surveys to establish 
reference points are set forth in 
Paragraph 4.03. 

C. Article 5 refers to Owner’s identifying 
and making available to Contractor 
copies of reports of explorations and 
tests of conditions at the Site, and 
drawings of physical conditions relating 
to existing surface or subsurface 
structures at the Site. 

9.06 Insurance 

A. Owner’s responsibilities, if any, with 
respect to purchasing and maintaining 
liability and property insurance are set 
forth in Article 6. 

9.07 Change Orders 

A. Owner’s responsibilities with respect to 
Change Orders are set forth in Article 11. 

9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals 

A. Owner’s responsibility with respect to 
certain inspections, tests, and approvals 
is set forth in Paragraph 14.02.B. 

Page 249 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-53
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

9.09 Limitations on Owner’s Responsibilities 

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or 
have control or authority over, nor be 
responsible for, Contractor’s means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident 
thereto, or for any failure of Contractor 
to comply with Laws and Regulations 
applicable to the performance of the 
Work. Owner will not be responsible for 
Contractor’s failure to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

9.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental 
Condition 

A. Owner’s responsibility in respect to an 
undisclosed Hazardous Environmental 
Condition is set forth in Paragraph 5.06. 

9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements 

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall 
furnish Contractor reasonable evidence 
that financial arrangements have been 
made to satisfy Owner’s obligations 
under the Contract (including 
obligations under proposed changes in 
the Work). 

9.12 Safety Programs 

A. While at the Site, Owner’s employees 
and representatives shall comply with 
the specific applicable requirements of 
Contractor’s safety programs of which 
Owner has been informed. 

B. Owner shall furnish copies of any 
applicable Owner safety programs to 
Contractor. 

ARTICLE 10—ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING 
CONSTRUCTION 

10.01 Owner’s Representative 

A. Engineer will be Owner’s representative 
during the construction period. The 
duties and responsibilities and the 
limitations of authority of Engineer as 
Owner’s representative during 
construction are set forth in the 
Contract. 

10.02 Visits to Site 

A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at 
intervals appropriate to the various 
stages of construction as Engineer 
deems necessary in order to observe, as 
an experienced and qualified design 
professional, the progress that has been 
made and the quality of the various 
aspects of Contractor’s executed Work. 
Based on information obtained during 
such visits and observations, Engineer, 
for the benefit of Owner, will determine, 
in general, if the Work is proceeding in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents. Engineer will not be 
required to make exhaustive or 
continuous inspections on the Site to 
check the quality or quantity of the 
Work. Engineer’s efforts will be directed 
toward providing for Owner a greater 
degree of confidence that the 
completed Work will conform generally 
to the Contract Documents. On the basis 
of such visits and observations, Engineer 
will keep Owner informed of the 
progress of the Work and will endeavor 
to guard Owner against defective Work. 

B. Engineer’s visits and observations are 
subject to all the limitations on 
Engineer’s authority and responsibility 
set forth in Paragraph 10.07. 
Particularly, but without limitation, 
during or as a result of Engineer’s visits 
or observations of Contractor’s Work, 

Page 250 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-54
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Engineer will not supervise, direct, 
control, or have authority over or be 
responsible for Contractor’s means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident 
thereto, or for any failure of Contractor 
to comply with Laws and Regulations 
applicable to the performance of the 
Work. 

10.03 Resident Project Representative 

A. If Owner and Engineer have agreed that 
Engineer will furnish a Resident Project 
Representative to represent Engineer at 
the Site and assist Engineer in observing 
the progress and quality of the Work, 
then the authority and responsibilities of 
any such Resident Project 
Representative will be as provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions, and 
limitations on the responsibilities 
thereof will be as provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions and in 
Paragraph 10.07. 

B. If Owner designates an individual or 
entity who is not Engineer’s consultant, 
agent, or employee to represent Owner 
at the Site, then the responsibilities and 
authority of such individual or entity will 
be as provided in the Supplementary 
Conditions. 

10.04 Engineer’s Authority 

A. Engineer has the authority to reject 
Work in accordance with Article 14. 

B. Engineer’s authority as to Submittals is 
set forth in Paragraph 7.16. 

C. Engineer’s authority as to design 
drawings, calculations, specifications, 
certifications and other Submittals from 
Contractor in response to Owner’s 
delegation (if any) to Contractor of 

professional design services, is set forth 
in Paragraph 7.19. 

D. Engineer’s authority as to changes in the 
Work is set forth in Article 11. 

E. Engineer’s authority as to Applications 
for Payment is set forth in Article 15. 

10.05 Determinations for Unit Price Work 

A. Engineer will determine the actual 
quantities and classifications of Unit 
Price Work performed by Contractor as 
set forth in Paragraph 13.03. 

10.06 Decisions on Requirements of Contract 
Documents and Acceptability of Work 

A. Engineer will render decisions regarding 
the requirements of the Contract 
Documents, and judge the acceptability 
of the Work, pursuant to the specific 
procedures set forth herein for initial 
interpretations, Change Proposals, and 
acceptance of the Work. In rendering 
such decisions and judgments, Engineer 
will not show partiality to Owner or 
Contractor, and will not be liable to 
Owner, Contractor, or others in 
connection with any proceedings, 
interpretations, decisions, or judgments 
conducted or rendered in good faith. 

10.07 Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and 
Responsibilities 

A. Neither Engineer’s authority or 
responsibility under this Article 10 or 
under any other provision of the 
Contract, nor any decision made by 
Engineer in good faith either to exercise 
or not exercise such authority or 
responsibility or the undertaking, 
exercise, or performance of any 
authority or responsibility by Engineer, 
will create, impose, or give rise to any 
duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed 
by Engineer to Contractor, any 

Page 251 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-55
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other 
individual or entity, or to any surety for 
or employee or agent of any of them. 

B. Engineer will not supervise, direct, 
control, or have authority over or be 
responsible for Contractor’s means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident 
thereto, or for any failure of Contractor 
to comply with Laws and Regulations 
applicable to the performance of the 
Work. Engineer will not be responsible 
for Contractor’s failure to perform the 
Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

C. Engineer will not be responsible for the 
acts or omissions of Contractor or of any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any 
other individual or entity performing any 
of the Work. 

D. Engineer’s review of the final 
Application for Payment and 
accompanying documentation, and all 
maintenance and operating instructions, 
schedules, guarantees, bonds, 
certificates of inspection, tests and 
approvals, and other documentation 
required to be delivered by Contractor 
under Paragraph 15.06.A, will only be to 
determine generally that their content 
complies with the requirements of, and 
in the case of certificates of inspections, 
tests, and approvals, that the results 
certified indicate compliance with the 
Contract Documents. 

E. The limitations upon authority and 
responsibility set forth in this 
Paragraph 10.07 also apply to the 
Resident Project Representative, if any. 

10.08 Compliance with Safety Program 

A. While at the Site, Engineer’s employees 
and representatives will comply with the 

specific applicable requirements of 
Owner’s and Contractor’s safety 
programs of which Engineer has been 
informed. 

ARTICLE 11—CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT 

11.01 Amending and Supplementing the Contract 

A. The Contract may be amended or 
supplemented by a Change Order, a 
Work Change Directive, or a Field Order. 

B. If an amendment or supplement to the 
Contract includes a change in the 
Contract Price or the Contract Times, 
such amendment or supplement must 
be set forth in a Change Order. 

C. All changes to the Contract that involve 
(1) the performance or acceptability of 
the Work, (2) the design (as set forth in 
the Drawings, Specifications, or 
otherwise), or (3) other engineering or 
technical matters, must be supported by 
Engineer’s recommendation. Owner and 
Contractor may amend other terms and 
conditions of the Contract without the 
recommendation of the Engineer. 

11.02 Change Orders 

A. Owner and Contractor shall execute 
appropriate Change Orders covering: 

1. Changes in Contract Price or 
Contract Times which are agreed to 
by the parties, including any 
undisputed sum or amount of time 
for Work actually performed in 
accordance with a Work Change 
Directive; 

2. Changes in Contract Price resulting 
from an Owner set-off, unless 
Contractor has duly contested such 
set-off; 

Page 252 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-56
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

3. Changes in the Work which are: 
(a) ordered by Owner pursuant to 
Paragraph 11.05, (b) required 
because of Owner’s acceptance of 
defective Work under 
Paragraph 14.04 or Owner’s 
correction of defective Work under 
Paragraph 14.07, or (c) agreed to by 
the parties, subject to the need for 
Engineer’s recommendation if the 
change in the Work involves the 
design (as set forth in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise) or 
other engineering or technical 
matters; and 

4. Changes that embody the substance 
of any final and binding results 
under: Paragraph 11.03.B, resolving 
the impact of a Work Change 
Directive; Paragraph 11.09, 
concerning Change Proposals; 
Article 12, Claims; 
Paragraph 13.02.D, final 
adjustments resulting from 
allowances; Paragraph 13.03.D, final 
adjustments relating to 
determination of quantities for Unit 
Price Work; and similar provisions. 

B. If Owner or Contractor refuses to 
execute a Change Order that is required 
to be executed under the terms of 
Paragraph 11.02.A, it will be deemed to 
be of full force and effect, as if fully 
executed. 

11.03 Work Change Directives 

A. A Work Change Directive will not change 
the Contract Price or the Contract Times 
but is evidence that the parties expect 
that the modification ordered or 
documented by a Work Change 
Directive will be incorporated in a 
subsequently issued Change Order, 
following negotiations by the parties as 
to the Work Change Directive’s effect, if 
any, on the Contract Price and Contract 

Times; or, if negotiations are 
unsuccessful, by a determination under 
the terms of the Contract Documents 
governing adjustments, expressly 
including Paragraph 11.07 regarding 
change of Contract Price. 

B. If Owner has issued a Work Change 
Directive and: 

1. Contractor believes that an 
adjustment in Contract Times or 
Contract Price is necessary, then 
Contractor shall submit any Change 
Proposal seeking such an 
adjustment no later than 30 days 
after the completion of the Work set 
out in the Work Change Directive. 

2. Owner believes that an adjustment 
in Contract Times or Contract Price is 
necessary, then Owner shall submit 
any Claim seeking such an 
adjustment no later than 60 days 
after issuance of the Work Change 
Directive. 

11.04 Field Orders 

A. Engineer may authorize minor changes 
in the Work if the changes do not involve 
an adjustment in the Contract Price or 
the Contract Times and are compatible 
with the design concept of the 
completed Project as a functioning 
whole as indicated by the Contract 
Documents. Such changes will be 
accomplished by a Field Order and will 
be binding on Owner and also on 
Contractor, which shall perform the 
Work involved promptly. 

B. If Contractor believes that a Field Order 
justifies an adjustment in the Contract 
Price or Contract Times, then before 
proceeding with the Work at issue, 
Contractor shall submit a Change 
Proposal as provided herein. 

Page 253 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-57
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

11.05 Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work 

A. Without invalidating the Contract and 
without notice to any surety, Owner 
may, at any time or from time to time, 
order additions, deletions, or revisions in 
the Work. Changes involving the design 
(as set forth in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise) or other 
engineering or technical matters will be 
supported by Engineer’s 
recommendation. 

B. Such changes in the Work may be 
accomplished by a Change Order, if 
Owner and Contractor have agreed as to 
the effect, if any, of the changes on 
Contract Times or Contract Price; or by a 
Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of 
any such document, Contractor shall 
promptly proceed with the Work 
involved; or, in the case of a deletion in 
the Work, promptly cease construction 
activities with respect to such deleted 
Work. Added or revised Work must be 
performed under the applicable 
conditions of the Contract Documents. 

C. Nothing in this Paragraph 11.05 
obligates Contractor to undertake work 
that Contractor reasonably concludes 
cannot be performed in a manner 
consistent with Contractor’s safety 
obligations under the Contract 
Documents or Laws and Regulations. 

11.06 Unauthorized Changes in the Work 

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
increase in the Contract Price or an 
extension of the Contract Times with 
respect to any work performed that is 
not required by the Contract 
Documents, as amended, modified, or 
supplemented, except in the case of an 
emergency as provided in 
Paragraph 7.15 or in the case of 
uncovering Work as provided in 
Paragraph 14.05.C.2. 

11.07 Change of Contract Price 

A. The Contract Price may only be changed 
by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal 
for an adjustment in the Contract Price 
must comply with the provisions of 
Paragraph 11.09. Any Claim for an 
adjustment of Contract Price must 
comply with the provisions of Article 12. 

B. An adjustment in the Contract Price will 
be determined as follows: 

1. Where the Work involved is covered 
by unit prices contained in the 
Contract Documents, then by 
application of such unit prices to the 
quantities of the items involved 
(subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 13.03); 

2. Where the Work involved is not 
covered by unit prices contained in 
the Contract Documents, then by a 
mutually agreed lump sum (which 
may include an allowance for 
overhead and profit not necessarily 
in accordance with 
Paragraph 11.07.C.2); or 

3. Where the Work involved is not 
covered by unit prices contained in 
the Contract Documents and the 
parties do not reach mutual 
agreement to a lump sum, then on 
the basis of the Cost of the Work 
(determined as provided in 
Paragraph 13.01) plus a Contractor’s 
fee for overhead and profit 
(determined as provided in 
Paragraph 11.07.C). 

C. Contractor’s Fee: When applicable, the 
Contractor’s fee for overhead and profit 
will be determined as follows: 

1. A mutually acceptable fixed fee; or 

Page 254 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-58
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

2. If a fixed fee is not agreed upon, 
then a fee based on the following 
percentages of the various portions 
of the Cost of the Work: 

a. For costs incurred under 
Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 
13.01.B.2, the Contractor’s fee 
will be 15 percent; 

b. For costs incurred under 
Paragraph 13.01.B.3, the 
Contractor’s fee will be 5 
percent; 

c. Where one or more tiers of 
subcontracts are on the basis of 
Cost of the Work plus a fee and 
no fixed fee is agreed upon, the 
intent of Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a 
and 11.07.C.2.b is that the 
Contractor’s fee will be based 
on: (1) a fee of 15 percent of the 
costs incurred under 
Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 
13.01.B.2 by the Subcontractor 
that actually performs the Work, 
at whatever tier, and (2) with 
respect to Contractor itself and 
to any Subcontractors of a tier 
higher than that of the 
Subcontractor that actually 
performs the Work, a fee of 5 
percent of the amount (fee plus 
underlying costs incurred) 
attributable to the next lower 
tier Subcontractor; provided, 
however, that for any such 
subcontracted Work the 
maximum total fee to be paid by 
Owner will be no greater than 
27 percent of the costs incurred 
by the Subcontractor that 
actually performs the Work; 

d. No fee will be payable on the 
basis of costs itemized under 
Paragraphs 13.01.B.4, 
13.01.B.5, and 13.01.C; 

e. The amount of credit to be 
allowed by Contractor to Owner 
for any change which results in a 
net decrease in Cost of the Work 
will be the amount of the actual 
net decrease in Cost of the Work 
and a deduction of an additional 
amount equal to 5 percent of 
such actual net decrease in Cost 
of the Work; and 

f. When both additions and credits 
are involved in any one change 
or Change Proposal, the 
adjustment in Contractor’s fee 
will be computed by 
determining the sum of the 
costs in each of the cost 
categories in Paragraph 13.01.B 
(specifically, payroll costs, 
Paragraph 13.01.B.1; 
incorporated materials and 
equipment costs, 
Paragraph 13.01.B.2; 
Subcontract costs, 
Paragraph 13.01.B.3; special 
consultants costs, 
Paragraph 13.01.B.4; and other 
costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.5) and 
applying to each such cost 
category sum the appropriate 
fee from Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a 
through 11.07.C.2.e, inclusive. 

11.08 Change of Contract Times 

A. The Contract Times may only be 
changed by a Change Order. Any Change 
Proposal for an adjustment in the 
Contract Times must comply with the 
provisions of Paragraph 11.09. Any 
Claim for an adjustment in the Contract 
Times must comply with the provisions 
of Article 12. 

B. Delay, disruption, and interference in 
the Work, and any related changes in 
Contract Times, are addressed in and 
governed by Paragraph 4.05. 

Page 255 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-59
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

11.09 Change Proposals 

A. Purpose and Content: Contractor shall 
submit a Change Proposal to Engineer to 
request an adjustment in the Contract 
Times or Contract Price; contest an 
initial decision by Engineer concerning 
the requirements of the Contract 
Documents or relating to the 
acceptability of the Work under the 
Contract Documents; challenge a set-off 
against payment due; or seek other 
relief under the Contract. The Change 
Proposal will specify any proposed 
change in Contract Times or Contract 
Price, or other proposed relief, and 
explain the reason for the proposed 
change, with citations to any governing 
or applicable provisions of the Contract 
Documents. Each Change Proposal will 
address only one issue, or a set of closely 
related issues. 

B. Change Proposal Procedures 

1. Submittal: Contractor shall submit 
each Change Proposal to Engineer 
within 30 days after the start of the 
event giving rise thereto, or after 
such initial decision. 

2. Supporting Data: The Contractor 
shall submit supporting data, 
including the proposed change in 
Contract Price or Contract Time (if 
any), to the Engineer and Owner 
within 15 days after the submittal of 
the Change Proposal. 

a. Change Proposals based on or 
related to delay, interruption, or 
interference must comply with 
the provisions of 
Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E. 

b. Change proposals related to a 
change of Contract Price must 
include full and detailed 
accounts of materials 

incorporated into the Work and 
labor and equipment used for 
the subject Work. 

The supporting data must be 
accompanied by a written 
statement that the supporting data 
are accurate and complete, and that 
any requested time or price 
adjustment is the entire adjustment 
to which Contractor believes it is 
entitled as a result of said event. 

3. Engineer’s Initial Review: Engineer 
will advise Owner regarding the 
Change Proposal, and consider any 
comments or response from Owner 
regarding the Change Proposal. If in 
its discretion Engineer concludes 
that additional supporting data is 
needed before conducting a full 
review and making a decision 
regarding the Change Proposal, then 
Engineer may request that 
Contractor submit such additional 
supporting data by a date specified 
by Engineer, prior to Engineer 
beginning its full review of the 
Change Proposal. 

4. Engineer’s Full Review and Action on 
the Change Proposal: Upon receipt 
of Contractor’s supporting data 
(including any additional data 
requested by Engineer), Engineer 
will conduct a full review of each 
Change Proposal and, within 30 days 
after such receipt of the 
Contractor’s supporting data, either 
approve the Change Proposal in 
whole, deny it in whole, or approve 
it in part and deny it in part. Such 
actions must be in writing, with a 
copy provided to Owner and 
Contractor. If Engineer does not take 
action on the Change Proposal 
within 30 days, then either Owner or 
Contractor may at any time 
thereafter submit a letter to the 

Page 256 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-60
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

other party indicating that as a result 
of Engineer’s inaction the Change 
Proposal is deemed denied, thereby 
commencing the time for appeal of 
the denial under Article 12. 

5. Binding Decision: Engineer’s 
decision is final and binding upon 
Owner and Contractor, unless 
Owner or Contractor appeals the 
decision by filing a Claim under 
Article 12. 

C. Resolution of Certain Change Proposals: 
If the Change Proposal does not involve 
the design (as set forth in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise), the 
acceptability of the Work, or other 
engineering or technical matters, then 
Engineer will notify the parties in writing 
that the Engineer is unable to resolve 
the Change Proposal. For purposes of 
further resolution of such a Change 
Proposal, such notice will be deemed a 
denial, and Contractor may choose to 
seek resolution under the terms of 
Article 12. 

D. Post-Completion: Contractor shall not 
submit any Change Proposals after 
Engineer issues a written 
recommendation of final payment 
pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.B. 

11.10 Notification to Surety 

A. If the provisions of any bond require 
notice to be given to a surety of any 
change affecting the general scope of 
the Work or the provisions of the 
Contract Documents (including, but not 
limited to, Contract Price or Contract 
Times), the giving of any such notice will 
be Contractor’s responsibility. The 
amount of each applicable bond will be 
adjusted to reflect the effect of any such 
change. 

ARTICLE 12—CLAIMS 

12.01 Claims 

A. Claims Process: The following disputes 
between Owner and Contractor are 
subject to the Claims process set forth in 
this article: 

1. Appeals by Owner or Contractor of 
Engineer’s decisions regarding 
Change Proposals; 

2. Owner demands for adjustments in 
the Contract Price or Contract 
Times, or other relief under the 
Contract Documents; 

3. Disputes that Engineer has been 
unable to address because they do 
not involve the design (as set forth in 
the Drawings, Specifications, or 
otherwise), the acceptability of the 
Work, or other engineering or 
technical matters; and 

4. Subject to the waiver provisions of 
Paragraph 15.07, any dispute arising 
after Engineer has issued a written 
recommendation of final payment 
pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.B. 

B. Submittal of Claim: The party submitting 
a Claim shall deliver it directly to the 
other party to the Contract promptly 
(but in no event later than 30 days) after 
the start of the event giving rise thereto; 
in the case of appeals regarding Change 
Proposals within 30 days of the decision 
under appeal. The party submitting the 
Claim shall also furnish a copy to the 
Engineer, for its information only. The 
responsibility to substantiate a Claim 
rests with the party making the Claim. In 
the case of a Claim by Contractor seeking 
an increase in the Contract Times or 
Contract Price, Contractor shall certify 
that the Claim is made in good faith, that 
the supporting data are accurate and 

Page 257 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-61
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

complete, and that to the best of 
Contractor’s knowledge and belief the 
amount of time or money requested 
accurately reflects the full amount to 
which Contractor is entitled. 

C. Review and Resolution: The party 
receiving a Claim shall review it 
thoroughly, giving full consideration to 
its merits. The two parties shall seek to 
resolve the Claim through the exchange 
of information and direct negotiations. 
The parties may extend the time for 
resolving the Claim by mutual 
agreement. All actions taken on a Claim 
will be stated in writing and submitted to 
the other party, with a copy to Engineer. 

D. Mediation 

1. At any time after initiation of a 
Claim, Owner and Contractor may 
mutually agree to mediation of the 
underlying dispute. The agreement 
to mediate will stay the Claim 
submittal and response process. 

2. If Owner and Contractor agree to 
mediation, then after 60 days from 
such agreement, either Owner or 
Contractor may unilaterally 
terminate the mediation process, 
and the Claim submittal and 
decision process will resume as of 
the date of the termination. If the 
mediation proceeds but is 
unsuccessful in resolving the 
dispute, the Claim submittal and 
decision process will resume as of 
the date of the conclusion of the 
mediation, as determined by the 
mediator. 

3. Owner and Contractor shall each 
pay one-half of the mediator’s fees 
and costs. 

E. Partial Approval: If the party receiving a 
Claim approves the Claim in part and 

denies it in part, such action will be final 
and binding unless within 30 days of 
such action the other party invokes the 
procedure set forth in Article 17 for final 
resolution of disputes. 

F. Denial of Claim: If efforts to resolve a 
Claim are not successful, the party 
receiving the Claim may deny it by giving 
written notice of denial to the other 
party. If the receiving party does not 
take action on the Claim within 90 days, 
then either Owner or Contractor may at 
any time thereafter submit a letter to 
the other party indicating that as a result 
of the inaction, the Claim is deemed 
denied, thereby commencing the time 
for appeal of the denial. A denial of the 
Claim will be final and binding unless 
within 30 days of the denial the other 
party invokes the procedure set forth in 
Article 17 for the final resolution of 
disputes. 

G. Final and Binding Results: If the parties 
reach a mutual agreement regarding a 
Claim, whether through approval of the 
Claim, direct negotiations, mediation, or 
otherwise; or if a Claim is approved in 
part and denied in part, or denied in full, 
and such actions become final and 
binding; then the results of the 
agreement or action on the Claim will be 
incorporated in a Change Order or other 
written document to the extent they 
affect the Contract, including the Work, 
the Contract Times, or the Contract 
Price. 

ARTICLE 13—COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; 
UNIT PRICE WORK 

13.01 Cost of the Work 

A. Purposes for Determination of Cost of 
the Work: The term Cost of the Work 
means the sum of all costs necessary for 
the proper performance of the Work at 

Page 258 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-62
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

issue, as further defined below. The 
provisions of this Paragraph 13.01 are 
used for two distinct purposes: 

1. To determine Cost of the Work 
when Cost of the Work is a 
component of the Contract Price, 
under cost-plus-fee, time-and-
materials, or other cost-based 
terms; or 

2. When needed to determine the 
value of a Change Order, Change 
Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other 
adjustment in Contract Price. When 
the value of any such adjustment is 
determined on the basis of Cost of 
the Work, Contractor is entitled only 
to those additional or incremental 
costs required because of the 
change in the Work or because of 
the event giving rise to the 
adjustment. 

B. Costs Included: Except as otherwise may 
be agreed to in writing by Owner, costs 
included in the Cost of the Work will be 
in amounts no higher than those 
commonly incurred in the locality of the 
Project, will not include any of the costs 
itemized in Paragraph 13.01.C, and will 
include only the following items: 

1. Payroll costs for employees in the 
direct employ of Contractor in the 
performance of the Work under 
schedules of job classifications 
agreed upon by Owner and 
Contractor in advance of the subject 
Work. Such employees include, 
without limitation, superintendents, 
foremen, safety managers, safety 
representatives, and other 
personnel employed full time on the 
Work. Payroll costs for employees 
not employed full time on the Work 
will be apportioned on the basis of 
their time spent on the Work. 
Payroll costs include, but are not 

limited to, salaries and wages plus 
the cost of fringe benefits, which 
include social security contributions, 
unemployment, excise, and payroll 
taxes, workers’ compensation, 
health and retirement benefits, sick 
leave, and vacation and holiday pay 
applicable thereto. The expenses of 
performing Work outside of regular 
working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, 
or legal holidays, will be included in 
the above to the extent authorized 
by Owner. 

2. Cost of all materials and equipment 
furnished and incorporated in the 
Work, including costs of 
transportation and storage thereof, 
and Suppliers’ field services required 
in connection therewith. All cash 
discounts accrue to Contractor 
unless Owner deposits funds with 
Contractor with which to make 
payments, in which case the cash 
discounts will accrue to Owner. All 
trade discounts, rebates, and 
refunds and returns from sale of 
surplus materials and equipment 
will accrue to Owner, and Contractor 
shall make provisions so that they 
may be obtained. 

3. Payments made by Contractor to 
Subcontractors for Work performed 
by Subcontractors. If required by 
Owner, Contractor shall obtain 
competitive bids from 
subcontractors acceptable to Owner 
and Contractor and shall deliver 
such bids to Owner, which will then 
determine, with the advice of 
Engineer, which bids, if any, will be 
acceptable. If any subcontract 
provides that the Subcontractor is to 
be paid on the basis of Cost of the 
Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor’s 
Cost of the Work and fee will be 
determined in the same manner as 
Contractor’s Cost of the Work and 

Page 259 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-63
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

fee as provided in this 
Paragraph 13.01. 

4. Costs of special consultants 
(including but not limited to 
engineers, architects, testing 
laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, 
and accountants) employed or 
retained for services specifically 
related to the Work. 

5. Other costs consisting of the 
following: 

a. The proportion of necessary 
transportation, travel, and 
subsistence expenses of 
Contractor’s employees 
incurred in discharge of duties 
connected with the Work. 

b. Cost, including transportation 
and maintenance, of all 
materials, supplies, equipment, 
machinery, appliances, office, 
and temporary facilities at the 
Site, which are consumed in the 
performance of the Work, and 
cost, less market value, of such 
items used but not consumed 
which remain the property of 
Contractor. 

1) In establishing included 
costs for materials such as 
scaffolding, plating, or 
sheeting, consideration will 
be given to the actual or the 
estimated life of the 
material for use on other 
projects; or rental rates may 
be established on the basis 
of purchase or salvage value 
of such items, whichever is 
less. Contractor will not be 
eligible for compensation 
for such items in an amount 
that exceeds the purchase 
cost of such item. 

c. Construction Equipment Rental 

1) Rentals of all construction 
equipment and machinery, 
and the parts thereof, in 
accordance with rental 
agreements approved by 
Owner as to price (including 
any surcharge or special 
rates applicable to overtime 
use of the construction 
equipment or machinery), 
and the costs of 
transportation, loading, 
unloading, assembly, 
dismantling, and removal 
thereof. All such costs will 
be in accordance with the 
terms of said rental 
agreements. The rental of 
any such equipment, 
machinery, or parts must 
cease when the use thereof 
is no longer necessary for 
the Work. 

2) Costs for equipment and 
machinery owned by 
Contractor or a Contractor-
related entity will be paid at 
a rate shown for such 
equipment in the 
equipment rental rate book 
specified in the 
Supplementary Conditions. 
An hourly rate will be 
computed by dividing the 
monthly rates by 176. These 
computed rates will include 
all operating costs. 

3) With respect to Work that is 
the result of a Change 
Order, Change Proposal, 
Claim, set-off, or other 
adjustment in Contract Price 
(“changed Work”), included 
costs will be based on the 
time the equipment or 

Page 260 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-64
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

machinery is in use on the 
changed Work and the costs 
of transportation, loading, 
unloading, assembly, 
dismantling, and removal 
when directly attributable 
to the changed Work. The 
cost of any such equipment 
or machinery, or parts 
thereof, must cease to 
accrue when the use thereof 
is no longer necessary for 
the changed Work. 

d. Sales, consumer, use, and other 
similar taxes related to the 
Work, and for which Contractor 
is liable, as imposed by Laws and 
Regulations. 

e. Deposits lost for causes other 
than negligence of Contractor, 
any Subcontractor, or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them or for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, and 
royalty payments and fees for 
permits and licenses. 

f. Losses and damages (and 
related expenses) caused by 
damage to the Work, not 
compensated by insurance or 
otherwise, sustained by 
Contractor in connection with 
the performance of the Work 
(except losses and damages 
within the deductible amounts 
of builder’s risk or other 
property insurance established 
in accordance with 
Paragraph 6.04), provided such 
losses and damages have 
resulted from causes other than 
the negligence of Contractor, 
any Subcontractor, or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them or for whose acts 
any of them may be liable. Such 

losses include settlements made 
with the written consent and 
approval of Owner. No such 
losses, damages, and expenses 
will be included in the Cost of 
the Work for the purpose of 
determining Contractor’s fee. 

g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and 
sanitary facilities at the Site. 

h. Minor expenses such as 
communication service at the 
Site, express and courier 
services, and similar petty cash 
items in connection with the 
Work. 

i. The costs of premiums for all 
bonds and insurance that 
Contractor is required by the 
Contract Documents to 
purchase and maintain. 

C. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the 
Work does not include any of the 
following items: 

1. Payroll costs and other 
compensation of Contractor’s 
officers, executives, principals, 
general managers, engineers, 
architects, estimators, attorneys, 
auditors, accountants, purchasing 
and contracting agents, expediters, 
timekeepers, clerks, and other 
personnel employed by Contractor, 
whether at the Site or in 
Contractor’s principal or branch 
office for general administration of 
the Work and not specifically 
included in the agreed upon 
schedule of job classifications 
referred to in Paragraph 13.01.B.1 
or specifically covered by 
Paragraph 13.01.B.4. The payroll 
costs and other compensation 
excluded here are to be considered 

Page 261 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-65
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

administrative costs covered by the 
Contractor’s fee. 

2. The cost of purchasing, renting, or 
furnishing small tools and hand 
tools. 

3. Expenses of Contractor’s principal 
and branch offices other than 
Contractor’s office at the Site. 

4. Any part of Contractor’s capital 
expenses, including interest on 
Contractor’s capital employed for 
the Work and charges against 
Contractor for delinquent 
payments. 

5. Costs due to the negligence of 
Contractor, any Subcontractor, or 
anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them or for 
whose acts any of them may be 
liable, including but not limited to, 
the correction of defective Work, 
disposal of materials or equipment 
wrongly supplied, and making good 
any damage to property. 

6. Expenses incurred in preparing and 
advancing Claims. 

7. Other overhead or general expense 
costs of any kind and the costs of any 
item not specifically and expressly 
included in Paragraph 13.01.B. 

D. Contractor’s Fee 

1. When the Work as a whole is 
performed on the basis of cost-plus-
a-fee, then: 

a. Contractor’s fee for the Work 
set forth in the Contract 
Documents as of the Effective 
Date of the Contract will be 
determined as set forth in the 
Agreement. 

b. for any Work covered by a 
Change Order, Change Proposal, 
Claim, set-off, or other 
adjustment in Contract Price on 
the basis of Cost of the Work, 
Contractor’s fee will be 
determined as follows: 

1) When the fee for the Work 
as a whole is a percentage of 
the Cost of the Work, the 
fee will automatically adjust 
as the Cost of the Work 
changes. 

2) When the fee for the Work 
as a whole is a fixed fee, the 
fee for any additions or 
deletions will be 
determined in accordance 
with Paragraph 11.07.C.2. 

2. When the Work as a whole is 
performed on the basis of a 
stipulated sum, or any other basis 
other than cost-plus-a-fee, then 
Contractor’s fee for any Work 
covered by a Change Order, Change 
Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other 
adjustment in Contract Price on the 
basis of Cost of the Work will be 
determined in accordance with 
Paragraph 11.07.C.2. 

E. Documentation and Audit: Whenever 
the Cost of the Work for any purpose is 
to be determined pursuant to this 
Article 13, Contractor and pertinent 
Subcontractors will establish and 
maintain records of the costs in 
accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices. Subject to prior 
written notice, Owner will be afforded 
reasonable access, during normal 
business hours, to all Contractor’s 
accounts, records, books, 
correspondence, instructions, drawings, 
receipts, vouchers, memoranda, and 
similar data relating to the Cost of the 

Page 262 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-66
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Work and Contractor’s fee. Contractor 
shall preserve all such documents for a 
period of three years after the final 
payment by Owner. Pertinent 
Subcontractors will afford such access to 
Owner, and preserve such documents, 
to the same extent required of 
Contractor. 

13.02 Allowances 

A. It is understood that Contractor has 
included in the Contract Price all 
allowances so named in the Contract 
Documents and shall cause the Work so 
covered to be performed for such sums 
and by such persons or entities as may 
be acceptable to Owner and Engineer. 

B. Cash Allowances: Contractor agrees 
that: 

1. the cash allowances include the cost 
to Contractor (less any applicable 
trade discounts) of materials and 
equipment required by the 
allowances to be delivered at the 
Site, and all applicable taxes; and 

2. Contractor’s costs for unloading and 
handling on the Site, labor, 
installation, overhead, profit, and 
other expenses contemplated for 
the cash allowances have been 
included in the Contract Price and 
not in the allowances, and no 
demand for additional payment for 
any of the foregoing will be valid. 

C. Owner’s Contingency Allowance: 
Contractor agrees that an Owner’s 
contingency allowance, if any, is for the 
sole use of Owner to cover 
unanticipated costs. 

D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate 
Change Order will be issued as 
recommended by Engineer to reflect 
actual amounts due Contractor for Work 

covered by allowances, and the Contract 
Price will be correspondingly adjusted. 

13.03 Unit Price Work 

A. Where the Contract Documents provide 
that all or part of the Work is to be Unit 
Price Work, initially the Contract Price 
will be deemed to include for all Unit 
Price Work an amount equal to the sum 
of the unit price for each separately 
identified item of Unit Price Work times 
the estimated quantity of each item as 
indicated in the Agreement. 

B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit 
Price Work are not guaranteed and are 
solely for the purpose of comparison of 
Bids and determining an initial Contract 
Price. Payments to Contractor for Unit 
Price Work will be based on actual 
quantities. 

C. Each unit price will be deemed to include 
an amount considered by Contractor to 
be adequate to cover Contractor’s 
overhead and profit for each separately 
identified item. 

D. Engineer will determine the actual 
quantities and classifications of Unit 
Price Work performed by Contractor. 
Engineer will review with Contractor the 
Engineer’s preliminary determinations 
on such matters before rendering a 
written decision thereon (by 
recommendation of an Application for 
Payment or otherwise). Engineer’s 
written decision thereon will be final and 
binding (except as modified by Engineer 
to reflect changed factual conditions or 
more accurate data) upon Owner and 
Contractor, and the final adjustment of 
Contract Price will be set forth in a 
Change Order, subject to the provisions 
of the following paragraph. 

Page 263 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-67
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

E. Adjustments in Unit Price 

1. Contractor or Owner shall be 
entitled to an adjustment in the unit 
price with respect to an item of Unit 
Price Work if: 

a. the quantity of the item of Unit 
Price Work performed by 
Contractor differs materially 
and significantly from the 
estimated quantity of such item 
indicated in the Agreement; and 

b. Contractor’s unit costs to 
perform the item of Unit Price 
Work have changed materially 
and significantly as a result of 
the quantity change. 

2. The adjustment in unit price will 
account for and be coordinated with 
any related changes in quantities of 
other items of Work, and in 
Contractor’s costs to perform such 
other Work, such that the resulting 
overall change in Contract Price is 
equitable to Owner and Contractor. 

3. Adjusted unit prices will apply to all 
units of that item. 

ARTICLE 14—TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; 
CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCEPTANCE OF 
DEFECTIVE WORK 

14.01 Access to Work 

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and 
other representatives and personnel of 
Owner, independent testing 
laboratories, and authorities having 
jurisdiction have access to the Site and 
the Work at reasonable times for their 
observation, inspection, and testing. 
Contractor shall provide them proper 
and safe conditions for such access and 
advise them of Contractor’s safety 
procedures and programs so that they 

may comply with such procedures and 
programs as applicable. 

14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals 

A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely 
notice of readiness of the Work (or 
specific parts thereof) for all required 
inspections and tests, and shall 
cooperate with inspection and testing 
personnel to facilitate required 
inspections and tests. 

B. Owner shall retain and pay for the 
services of an independent inspector, 
testing laboratory, or other qualified 
individual or entity to perform all 
inspections and tests expressly required 
by the Contract Documents to be 
furnished and paid for by Owner, except 
that costs incurred in connection with 
tests or inspections of covered Work will 
be governed by the provisions of 
Paragraph 14.05. 

C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body 
having jurisdiction require any Work (or 
part thereof) specifically to be 
inspected, tested, or approved by an 
employee or other representative of 
such public body, Contractor shall 
assume full responsibility for arranging 
and obtaining such inspections, tests, or 
approvals, pay all costs in connection 
therewith, and furnish Engineer the 
required certificates of inspection or 
approval. 

D. Contractor shall be responsible for 
arranging, obtaining, and paying for all 
inspections and tests required: 

1. by the Contract Documents, unless 
the Contract Documents expressly 
allocate responsibility for a specific 
inspection or test to Owner; 

2. to attain Owner’s and Engineer’s 
acceptance of materials or 

Page 264 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-68
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

equipment to be incorporated in the 
Work; 

3. by manufacturers of equipment 
furnished under the Contract 
Documents; 

4. for testing, adjusting, and balancing 
of mechanical, electrical, and other 
equipment to be incorporated into 
the Work; and 

5. for acceptance of materials, mix 
designs, or equipment submitted for 
approval prior to Contractor’s 
purchase thereof for incorporation 
in the Work. 

Such inspections and tests will be 
performed by independent inspectors, 
testing laboratories, or other qualified 
individuals or entities acceptable to 
Owner and Engineer. 

E. If the Contract Documents require the 
Work (or part thereof) to be approved by 
Owner, Engineer, or another designated 
individual or entity, then Contractor 
shall assume full responsibility for 
arranging and obtaining such approvals. 

F. If any Work (or the work of others) that 
is to be inspected, tested, or approved is 
covered by Contractor without written 
concurrence of Engineer, Contractor 
shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover 
such Work for observation. Such 
uncovering will be at Contractor’s 
expense unless Contractor had given 
Engineer timely notice of Contractor’s 
intention to cover the same and 
Engineer had not acted with reasonable 
promptness in response to such notice. 

14.03 Defective Work 

A. Contractor’s Obligation: It is 
Contractor’s obligation to assure that 
the Work is not defective. 

B. Engineer’s Authority: Engineer has the 
authority to determine whether Work is 
defective, and to reject defective Work. 

C. Notice of Defects: Prompt written notice 
of all defective Work of which Owner or 
Engineer has actual knowledge will be 
given to Contractor. 

D. Correction, or Removal and 
Replacement: Promptly after receipt of 
written notice of defective Work, 
Contractor shall correct all such 
defective Work, whether or not 
fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if 
Engineer has rejected the defective 
Work, remove it from the Project and 
replace it with Work that is not 
defective. 

E. Preservation of Warranties: When 
correcting defective Work, Contractor 
shall take no action that would void or 
otherwise impair Owner’s special 
warranty and guarantee, if any, on said 
Work. 

F. Costs and Damages: In addition to its 
correction, removal, and replacement 
obligations with respect to defective 
Work, Contractor shall pay all claims, 
costs, losses, and damages arising out of 
or relating to defective Work, including 
but not limited to the cost of the 
inspection, testing, correction, removal, 
replacement, or reconstruction of such 
defective Work, fines levied against 
Owner by governmental authorities 
because the Work is defective, and the 
costs of repair or replacement of work of 
others resulting from defective Work. 
Prior to final payment, if Owner and 
Contractor are unable to agree as to the 
measure of such claims, costs, losses, 
and damages resulting from defective 
Work, then Owner may impose a 
reasonable set-off against payments due 
under Article 15. 

Page 265 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-69
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work 

A. If, instead of requiring correction or 
removal and replacement of defective 
Work, Owner prefers to accept it, Owner 
may do so (subject, if such acceptance 
occurs prior to final payment, to 
Engineer’s confirmation that such 
acceptance is in general accord with the 
design intent and applicable engineering 
principles, and will not endanger public 
safety). Contractor shall pay all claims, 
costs, losses, and damages attributable 
to Owner’s evaluation of and 
determination to accept such defective 
Work (such costs to be approved by 
Engineer as to reasonableness), and for 
the diminished value of the Work to the 
extent not otherwise paid by Contractor. 
If any such acceptance occurs prior to 
final payment, the necessary revisions in 
the Contract Documents with respect to 
the Work will be incorporated in a 
Change Order. If the parties are unable 
to agree as to the decrease in the 
Contract Price, reflecting the diminished 
value of Work so accepted, then Owner 
may impose a reasonable set-off against 
payments due under Article 15. If the 
acceptance of defective Work occurs 
after final payment, Contractor shall pay 
an appropriate amount to Owner. 

14.05 Uncovering Work 

A. Engineer has the authority to require 
additional inspection or testing of the 
Work, whether or not the Work is 
fabricated, installed, or completed. 

B. If any Work is covered contrary to the 
written request of Engineer, then 
Contractor shall, if requested by 
Engineer, uncover such Work for 
Engineer’s observation, and then 
replace the covering, all at Contractor’s 
expense. 

C. If Engineer considers it necessary or 
advisable that covered Work be 
observed by Engineer or inspected or 
tested by others, then Contractor, at 
Engineer’s request, shall uncover, 
expose, or otherwise make available for 
observation, inspection, or testing as 
Engineer may require, that portion of 
the Work in question, and provide all 
necessary labor, material, and 
equipment. 

1. If it is found that the uncovered 
Work is defective, Contractor shall 
be responsible for all claims, costs, 
losses, and damages arising out of or 
relating to such uncovering, 
exposure, observation, inspection, 
and testing, and of satisfactory 
replacement or reconstruction 
(including but not limited to all costs 
of repair or replacement of work of 
others); and pending Contractor’s 
full discharge of this responsibility 
the Owner shall be entitled to 
impose a reasonable set-off against 
payments due under Article 15. 

2. If the uncovered Work is not found 
to be defective, Contractor shall be 
allowed an increase in the Contract 
Price or an extension of the Contract 
Times, directly attributable to such 
uncovering, exposure, observation, 
inspection, testing, replacement, 
and reconstruction. If the parties are 
unable to agree as to the amount or 
extent thereof, then Contractor may 
submit a Change Proposal within 30 
days of the determination that the 
Work is not defective. 

14.06 Owner May Stop the Work 

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor 
fails to supply sufficient skilled workers 
or suitable materials or equipment, or 
fails to perform the Work in such a way 
that the completed Work will conform to 

Page 266 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-70
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

the Contract Documents, then Owner 
may order Contractor to stop the Work, 
or any portion thereof, until the cause 
for such order has been eliminated; 
however, this right of Owner to stop the 
Work will not give rise to any duty on the 
part of Owner to exercise this right for 
the benefit of Contractor, any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other 
individual or entity, or any surety for, or 
employee or agent of any of them. 

14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work 

A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable 
time after written notice from Engineer 
to correct defective Work, or to remove 
and replace defective Work as required 
by Engineer, then Owner may, after 7 
days’ written notice to Contractor, 
correct or remedy any such deficiency. 

B. In exercising the rights and remedies 
under this Paragraph 14.07, Owner shall 
proceed expeditiously. In connection 
with such corrective or remedial action, 
Owner may exclude Contractor from all 
or part of the Site, take possession of all 
or part of the Work and suspend 
Contractor’s services related thereto, 
and incorporate in the Work all 
materials and equipment stored at the 
Site or for which Owner has paid 
Contractor but which are stored 
elsewhere. Contractor shall allow 
Owner, Owner’s representatives, agents 
and employees, Owner’s other 
contractors, and Engineer and 
Engineer’s consultants access to the Site 
to enable Owner to exercise the rights 
and remedies under this paragraph. 

C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages 
incurred or sustained by Owner in 
exercising the rights and remedies under 
this Paragraph 14.07 will be charged 
against Contractor as set-offs against 
payments due under Article 15. Such 
claims, costs, losses and damages will 

include but not be limited to all costs of 
repair, or replacement of work of others 
destroyed or damaged by correction, 
removal, or replacement of Contractor’s 
defective Work. 

D. Contractor shall not be allowed an 
extension of the Contract Times because 
of any delay in the performance of the 
Work attributable to the exercise by 
Owner of Owner’s rights and remedies 
under this Paragraph 14.07. 

ARTICLE 15—PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-
OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD 

15.01 Progress Payments 

A. Basis for Progress Payments: The 
Schedule of Values established as 
provided in Article 2 will serve as the 
basis for progress payments and will be 
incorporated into a form of Application 
for Payment acceptable to Engineer. 
Progress payments for Unit Price Work 
will be based on the number of units 
completed during the pay period, as 
determined under the provisions of 
Paragraph 13.03. Progress payments for 
cost-based Work will be based on Cost of 
the Work completed by Contractor 
during the pay period. 

B. Applications for Payments 

1. At least 20 days before the date 
established in the Agreement for 
each progress payment (but not 
more often than once a month), 
Contractor shall submit to Engineer 
for review an Application for 
Payment filled out and signed by 
Contractor covering the Work 
completed as of the date of the 
Application and accompanied by 
such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Contract 
Documents. 

Page 267 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-71
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

2. If payment is requested on the basis 
of materials and equipment not 
incorporated in the Work but 
delivered and suitably stored at the 
Site or at another location agreed to 
in writing, the Application for 
Payment must also be accompanied 
by: (a) a bill of sale, invoice, copies of 
subcontract or purchase order 
payments, or other documentation 
establishing full payment by 
Contractor for the materials and 
equipment; (b) at Owner’s request, 
documentation warranting that 
Owner has received the materials 
and equipment free and clear of all 
Liens; and (c) evidence that the 
materials and equipment are 
covered by appropriate property 
insurance, a warehouse bond, or 
other arrangements to protect 
Owner’s interest therein, all of 
which must be satisfactory to 
Owner. 

3. Beginning with the second 
Application for Payment, each 
Application must include an affidavit 
of Contractor stating that all 
previous progress payments 
received by Contractor have been 
applied to discharge Contractor’s 
legitimate obligations associated 
with prior Applications for Payment. 

4. The amount of retainage with 
respect to progress payments will be 
as stipulated in the Agreement. 

C. Review of Applications 

1. Engineer will, within 10 days after 
receipt of each Application for 
Payment, including each 
resubmittal, either indicate in 
writing a recommendation of 
payment and present the 
Application to Owner, or return the 
Application to Contractor indicating 

in writing Engineer’s reasons for 
refusing to recommend payment. In 
the latter case, Contractor may 
make the necessary corrections and 
resubmit the Application. 

2. Engineer’s recommendation of any 
payment requested in an 
Application for Payment will 
constitute a representation by 
Engineer to Owner, based on 
Engineer’s observations of the 
executed Work as an experienced 
and qualified design professional, 
and on Engineer’s review of the 
Application for Payment and the 
accompanying data and schedules, 
that to the best of Engineer’s 
knowledge, information and belief: 

a. the Work has progressed to the 
point indicated; 

b. the quality of the Work is 
generally in accordance with the 
Contract Documents (subject to 
an evaluation of the Work as a 
functioning whole prior to or 
upon Substantial Completion, 
the results of any subsequent 
tests called for in the Contract 
Documents, a final 
determination of quantities and 
classifications for Unit Price 
Work under Paragraph 13.03, 
and any other qualifications 
stated in the recommendation); 
and 

c. the conditions precedent to 
Contractor’s being entitled to 
such payment appear to have 
been fulfilled in so far as it is 
Engineer’s responsibility to 
observe the Work. 

3. By recommending any such 
payment Engineer will not thereby 

Page 268 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-72
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

be deemed to have represented 
that: 

a. inspections made to check the 
quality or the quantity of the 
Work as it has been performed 
have been exhaustive, extended 
to every aspect of the Work in 
progress, or involved detailed 
inspections of the Work beyond 
the responsibilities specifically 
assigned to Engineer in the 
Contract; or 

b. there may not be other matters 
or issues between the parties 
that might entitle Contractor to 
be paid additionally by Owner or 
entitle Owner to withhold 
payment to Contractor. 

4. Neither Engineer’s review of 
Contractor’s Work for the purposes 
of recommending payments nor 
Engineer’s recommendation of any 
payment, including final payment, 
will impose responsibility on 
Engineer: 

a. to supervise, direct, or control 
the Work; 

b. for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or 
the safety precautions and 
programs incident thereto; 

c. for Contractor’s failure to 
comply with Laws and 
Regulations applicable to 
Contractor’s performance of the 
Work; 

d. to make any examination to 
ascertain how or for what 
purposes Contractor has used 
the money paid by Owner; or 

e. to determine that title to any of 
the Work, materials, or 
equipment has passed to Owner 
free and clear of any Liens. 

5. Engineer may refuse to recommend 
the whole or any part of any 
payment if, in Engineer’s opinion, it 
would be incorrect to make the 
representations to Owner stated in 
Paragraph 15.01.C.2. 

6. Engineer will recommend 
reductions in payment (set-offs) 
necessary in Engineer’s opinion to 
protect Owner from loss because: 

a. the Work is defective, requiring 
correction or replacement; 

b. the Contract Price has been 
reduced by Change Orders; 

c. Owner has been required to 
correct defective Work in 
accordance with 
Paragraph 14.07, or has 
accepted defective Work 
pursuant to Paragraph 14.04; 

d. Owner has been required to 
remove or remediate a 
Hazardous Environmental 
Condition for which Contractor 
is responsible; or 

e. Engineer has actual knowledge 
of the occurrence of any of the 
events that would constitute a 
default by Contractor and 
therefore justify termination for 
cause under the Contract 
Documents. 

D. Payment Becomes Due 

1. Ten days after presentation of the 
Application for Payment to Owner 
with Engineer’s recommendation, 
the amount recommended (subject 

Page 269 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-73
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

to any Owner set-offs) will become 
due, and when due will be paid by 
Owner to Contractor. 

E. Reductions in Payment by Owner 

1. In addition to any reductions in 
payment (set-offs) recommended 
by Engineer, Owner is entitled to 
impose a set-off against payment 
based on any of the following: 

a. Claims have been made against 
Owner based on Contractor’s 
conduct in the performance or 
furnishing of the Work, or 
Owner has incurred costs, 
losses, or damages resulting 
from Contractor’s conduct in the 
performance or furnishing of 
the Work, including but not 
limited to claims, costs, losses, 
or damages from workplace 
injuries, adjacent property 
damage, non-compliance with 
Laws and Regulations, and 
patent infringement; 

b. Contractor has failed to take 
reasonable and customary 
measures to avoid damage, 
delay, disruption, and 
interference with other work at 
or adjacent to the Site; 

c. Contractor has failed to provide 
and maintain required bonds or 
insurance; 

d. Owner has been required to 
remove or remediate a 
Hazardous Environmental 
Condition for which Contractor 
is responsible; 

e. Owner has incurred extra 
charges or engineering costs 
related to submittal reviews, 
evaluations of proposed 

substitutes, tests and 
inspections, or return visits to 
manufacturing or assembly 
facilities; 

f. The Work is defective, requiring 
correction or replacement; 

g. Owner has been required to 
correct defective Work in 
accordance with 
Paragraph 14.07, or has 
accepted defective Work 
pursuant to Paragraph 14.04; 

h. The Contract Price has been 
reduced by Change Orders; 

i. An event has occurred that 
would constitute a default by 
Contractor and therefore justify 
a termination for cause; 

j. Liquidated or other damages 
have accrued as a result of 
Contractor’s failure to achieve 
Milestones, Substantial 
Completion, or final completion 
of the Work; 

k. Liens have been filed in 
connection with the Work, 
except where Contractor has 
delivered a specific bond 
satisfactory to Owner to secure 
the satisfaction and discharge of 
such Liens; or 

l. Other items entitle Owner to a 
set-off against the amount 
recommended. 

2. If Owner imposes any set-off against 
payment, whether based on its own 
knowledge or on the written 
recommendations of Engineer, 
Owner will give Contractor 
immediate written notice (with a 
copy to Engineer) stating the 

Page 270 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-74
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

reasons for such action and the 
specific amount of the reduction, 
and promptly pay Contractor any 
amount remaining after deduction 
of the amount so withheld. Owner 
shall promptly pay Contractor the 
amount so withheld, or any 
adjustment thereto agreed to by 
Owner and Contractor, if Contractor 
remedies the reasons for such 
action. The reduction imposed will 
be binding on Contractor unless it 
duly submits a Change Proposal 
contesting the reduction. 

3. Upon a subsequent determination 
that Owner’s refusal of payment was 
not justified, the amount wrongfully 
withheld will be treated as an 
amount due as determined by 
Paragraph 15.01.D.1 and subject to 
interest as provided in the 
Agreement. 

15.02 Contractor’s Warranty of Title 

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees 
that title to all Work, materials, and 
equipment furnished under the Contract 
will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) 
all Liens and other title defects, and (2) 
all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty 
obligations, no later than 7 days after 
the time of payment by Owner. 

15.03 Substantial Completion 

A. When Contractor considers the entire 
Work ready for its intended use 
Contractor shall notify Owner and 
Engineer in writing that the entire Work 
is substantially complete and request 
that Engineer issue a certificate of 
Substantial Completion. Contractor shall 
at the same time submit to Owner and 
Engineer an initial draft of punch list 
items to be completed or corrected 
before final payment. 

B. Promptly after Contractor’s notification, 
Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall 
make an inspection of the Work to 
determine the status of completion. If 
Engineer does not consider the Work 
substantially complete, Engineer will 
notify Contractor in writing giving the 
reasons therefor. 

C. If Engineer considers the Work 
substantially complete, Engineer will 
deliver to Owner a preliminary 
certificate of Substantial Completion 
which will fix the date of Substantial 
Completion. Engineer shall attach to the 
certificate a punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected before final 
payment. Owner shall have 7 days after 
receipt of the preliminary certificate 
during which to make written objection 
to Engineer as to any provisions of the 
certificate or attached punch list. If, after 
considering the objections to the 
provisions of the preliminary certificate, 
Engineer concludes that the Work is not 
substantially complete, Engineer will, 
within 14 days after submission of the 
preliminary certificate to Owner, notify 
Contractor in writing that the Work is 
not substantially complete, stating the 
reasons therefor. If Owner does not 
object to the provisions of the 
certificate, or if despite consideration of 
Owner’s objections Engineer concludes 
that the Work is substantially complete, 
then Engineer will, within said 14 days, 
execute and deliver to Owner and 
Contractor a final certificate of 
Substantial Completion (with a revised 
punch list of items to be completed or 
corrected) reflecting such changes from 
the preliminary certificate as Engineer 
believes justified after consideration of 
any objections from Owner. 

D. At the time of receipt of the preliminary 
certificate of Substantial Completion, 
Owner and Contractor will confer 
regarding Owner’s use or occupancy of 

Page 271 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-75
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

the Work following Substantial 
Completion, review the builder’s risk 
insurance policy with respect to the end 
of the builder’s risk coverage, and 
confirm the transition to coverage of the 
Work under a permanent property 
insurance policy held by Owner. Unless 
Owner and Contractor agree otherwise 
in writing, Owner shall bear 
responsibility for security, operation, 
protection of the Work, property 
insurance, maintenance, heat, and 
utilities upon Owner’s use or occupancy 
of the Work. 

E. After Substantial Completion the 
Contractor shall promptly begin work on 
the punch list of items to be completed 
or corrected prior to final payment. In 
appropriate cases Contractor may 
submit monthly Applications for 
Payment for completed punch list items, 
following the progress payment 
procedures set forth above. 

F. Owner shall have the right to exclude 
Contractor from the Site after the date 
of Substantial Completion subject to 
allowing Contractor reasonable access 
to remove its property and complete or 
correct items on the punch list. 

15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy 

A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the 
Work, Owner may use or occupy any 
substantially completed part of the 
Work which has specifically been 
identified in the Contract Documents, or 
which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor 
agree constitutes a separately 
functioning and usable part of the Work 
that can be used by Owner for its 
intended purpose without significant 
interference with Contractor’s 
performance of the remainder of the 

Work, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. At any time, Owner may request in 
writing that Contractor permit 
Owner to use or occupy any such 
part of the Work that Owner 
believes to be substantially 
complete. If and when Contractor 
agrees that such part of the Work is 
substantially complete, Contractor, 
Owner, and Engineer will follow the 
procedures of Paragraph 15.03.A 
through 15.03.E for that part of the 
Work. 

2. At any time, Contractor may notify 
Owner and Engineer in writing that 
Contractor considers any such part 
of the Work substantially complete 
and request Engineer to issue a 
certificate of Substantial Completion 
for that part of the Work. 

3. Within a reasonable time after 
either such request, Owner, 
Contractor, and Engineer shall make 
an inspection of that part of the 
Work to determine its status of 
completion. If Engineer does not 
consider that part of the Work to be 
substantially complete, Engineer will 
notify Owner and Contractor in 
writing giving the reasons therefor. 
If Engineer considers that part of the 
Work to be substantially complete, 
the provisions of Paragraph 15.03 
will apply with respect to 
certification of Substantial 
Completion of that part of the Work 
and the division of responsibility in 
respect thereof and access thereto. 

4. No use or occupancy or separate 
operation of part of the Work may 
occur prior to compliance with the 
requirements of Paragraph 6.04 
regarding builder’s risk or other 
property insurance. 

Page 272 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-76
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

15.05 Final Inspection 

A. Upon written notice from Contractor 
that the entire Work or an agreed 
portion thereof is complete, Engineer 
will promptly make a final inspection 
with Owner and Contractor and will 
notify Contractor in writing of all 
particulars in which this inspection 
reveals that the Work, or agreed portion 
thereof, is incomplete or defective. 
Contractor shall immediately take such 
measures as are necessary to complete 
such Work or remedy such deficiencies. 

15.06 Final Payment 

A. Application for Payment 

1. After Contractor has, in the opinion 
of Engineer, satisfactorily completed 
all corrections identified during the 
final inspection and has delivered, in 
accordance with the Contract 
Documents, all maintenance and 
operating instructions, schedules, 
guarantees, bonds, certificates or 
other evidence of insurance, 
certificates of inspection, annotated 
record documents (as provided in 
Paragraph 7.12), and other 
documents, Contractor may make 
application for final payment. 

2. The final Application for Payment 
must be accompanied (except as 
previously delivered) by: 

a. all documentation called for in 
the Contract Documents; 

b. consent of the surety, if any, to 
final payment; 

c. satisfactory evidence that all 
title issues have been resolved 
such that title to all Work, 
materials, and equipment has 
passed to Owner free and clear 

of any Liens or other title 
defects, or will so pass upon 
final payment. 

d. a list of all duly pending Change 
Proposals and Claims; and 

e. complete and legally effective 
releases or waivers (satisfactory 
to Owner) of all Lien rights 
arising out of the Work, and of 
Liens filed in connection with 
the Work. 

3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of 
Liens specified in 
Paragraph 15.06.A.2 and as 
approved by Owner, Contractor may 
furnish receipts or releases in full 
and an affidavit of Contractor that: 
(a) the releases and receipts include 
all labor, services, material, and 
equipment for which a Lien could be 
filed; and (b) all payrolls, material 
and equipment bills, and other 
indebtedness connected with the 
Work for which Owner might in any 
way be responsible, or which might 
in any way result in liens or other 
burdens on Owner's property, have 
been paid or otherwise satisfied. If 
any Subcontractor or Supplier fails 
to furnish such a release or receipt in 
full, Contractor may furnish a bond 
or other collateral satisfactory to 
Owner to indemnify Owner against 
any Lien, or Owner at its option may 
issue joint checks payable to 
Contractor and specified 
Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

B. Engineer’s Review of Final Application 
and Recommendation of Payment: If, on 
the basis of Engineer’s observation of 
the Work during construction and final 
inspection, and Engineer’s review of the 
final Application for Payment and 
accompanying documentation as 
required by the Contract Documents, 

Page 273 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-77
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Engineer is satisfied that the Work has 
been completed and Contractor’s other 
obligations under the Contract have 
been fulfilled, Engineer will, within 10 
days after receipt of the final Application 
for Payment, indicate in writing 
Engineer’s recommendation of final 
payment and present the final 
Application for Payment to Owner for 
payment. Such recommendation will 
account for any set-offs against payment 
that are necessary in Engineer’s opinion 
to protect Owner from loss for the 
reasons stated above with respect to 
progress payments. Otherwise, Engineer 
will return the Application for Payment 
to Contractor, indicating in writing the 
reasons for refusing to recommend final 
payment, in which case Contractor shall 
make the necessary corrections and 
resubmit the Application for Payment. 

C. Notice of Acceptability: In support of its 
recommendation of payment of the final 
Application for Payment, Engineer will 
also give written notice to Owner and 
Contractor that the Work is acceptable, 
subject to stated limitations in the notice 
and to the provisions of 
Paragraph 15.07. 

D. Completion of Work: The Work is 
complete (subject to surviving 
obligations) when it is ready for final 
payment as established by the 
Engineer’s written recommendation of 
final payment and issuance of notice of 
the acceptability of the Work. 

E. Final Payment Becomes Due: Upon 
receipt from Engineer of the final 
Application for Payment and 
accompanying documentation, Owner 
shall set off against the amount 
recommended by Engineer for final 
payment any further sum to which 
Owner is entitled, including but not 
limited to set-offs for liquidated 
damages and set-offs allowed under the 

provisions of this Contract with respect 
to progress payments. Owner shall pay 
the resulting balance due to Contractor 
within 30 days of Owner’s receipt of the 
final Application for Payment from 
Engineer. 

15.07 Waiver of Claims 

A. By making final payment, Owner waives 
its claim or right to liquidated damages 
or other damages for late completion by 
Contractor, except as set forth in an 
outstanding Claim, appeal under the 
provisions of Article 17, set-off, or 
express reservation of rights by Owner. 
Owner reserves all other claims or rights 
after final payment. 

B. The acceptance of final payment by 
Contractor will constitute a waiver by 
Contractor of all claims and rights 
against Owner other than those pending 
matters that have been duly submitted 
as a Claim, or appealed under the 
provisions of Article 17. 

15.08 Correction Period 

A. If within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion (or such longer 
period of time as may be prescribed by 
the Supplementary Conditions or the 
terms of any applicable special 
guarantee required by the Contract 
Documents), Owner gives Contractor 
written notice that any Work has been 
found to be defective, or that 
Contractor’s repair of any damages to 
the Site or adjacent areas has been 
found to be defective, then after receipt 
of such notice of defect Contractor shall 
promptly, without cost to Owner and in 
accordance with Owner’s written 
instructions: 

1. correct the defective repairs to the 
Site or such adjacent areas; 

Page 274 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-78
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

2. correct such defective Work; 

3. remove the defective Work from the 
Project and replace it with Work that 
is not defective, if the defective 
Work has been rejected by Owner, 
and 

4. satisfactorily correct or repair or 
remove and replace any damage to 
other Work, to the work of others, 
or to other land or areas resulting 
from the corrective measures. 

B. Owner shall give any such notice of 
defect within 60 days of the discovery 
that such Work or repairs is defective. If 
such notice is given within such 60 days 
but after the end of the correction 
period, the notice will be deemed a 
notice of defective Work under 
Paragraph 7.17.B. 

C. If, after receipt of a notice of defect 
within 60 days and within the correction 
period, Contractor does not promptly 
comply with the terms of Owner’s 
written instructions, or in an emergency 
where delay would cause serious risk of 
loss or damage, Owner may have the 
defective Work corrected or repaired or 
may have the rejected Work removed 
and replaced. Contractor shall pay all 
costs, losses, and damages (including 
but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys, and 
other professionals and all court or 
arbitration or other dispute resolution 
costs) arising out of or relating to such 
correction or repair or such removal and 
replacement (including but not limited 
to all costs of repair or replacement of 
work of others). Contractor’s failure to 
pay such costs, losses, and damages 
within 10 days of invoice from Owner 
will be deemed the start of an event 
giving rise to a Claim under 
Paragraph 12.01.B, such that any related 

Claim must be brought within 30 days of 
the failure to pay. 

D. In special circumstances where a 
particular item of equipment is placed in 
continuous service before Substantial 
Completion of all the Work, the 
correction period for that item may start 
to run from an earlier date if so provided 
in the Specifications. 

E. Where defective Work (and damage to 
other Work resulting therefrom) has 
been corrected or removed and 
replaced under this paragraph, the 
correction period hereunder with 
respect to such Work will be extended 
for an additional period of one year after 
such correction or removal and 
replacement has been satisfactorily 
completed. 

F. Contractor’s obligations under this 
paragraph are in addition to all other 
obligations and warranties. The 
provisions of this paragraph are not to 
be construed as a substitute for, or a 
waiver of, the provisions of any 
applicable statute of limitation or 
repose. 

ARTICLE 16—SUSPENSION OF WORK AND 
TERMINATION 

16.01 Owner May Suspend Work 

A. At any time and without cause, Owner 
may suspend the Work or any portion 
thereof for a period of not more than 90 
consecutive days by written notice to 
Contractor and Engineer. Such notice 
will fix the date on which Work will be 
resumed. Contractor shall resume the 
Work on the date so fixed. Contractor 
shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
Contract Price or an extension of the 
Contract Times directly attributable to 
any such suspension. Any Change 

Page 275 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-79
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

Proposal seeking such adjustments must 
be submitted no later than 30 days after 
the date fixed for resumption of Work. 

16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause 

A. The occurrence of any one or more of 
the following events will constitute a 
default by Contractor and justify 
termination for cause: 

1. Contractor’s persistent failure to 
perform the Work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents 
(including, but not limited to, failure 
to supply sufficient skilled workers 
or suitable materials or equipment, 
or failure to adhere to the Progress 
Schedule); 

2. Failure of Contractor to perform or 
otherwise to comply with a material 
term of the Contract Documents; 

3. Contractor’s disregard of Laws or 
Regulations of any public body 
having jurisdiction; or 

4. Contractor’s repeated disregard of 
the authority of Owner or Engineer. 

B. If one or more of the events identified in 
Paragraph 16.02.A occurs, then after 
giving Contractor (and any surety) 10 
days’ written notice that Owner is 
considering a declaration that 
Contractor is in default and termination 
of the Contract, Owner may proceed to: 

1. declare Contractor to be in default, 
and give Contractor (and any surety) 
written notice that the Contract is 
terminated; and 

2. enforce the rights available to 
Owner under any applicable 
performance bond. 

C. Subject to the terms and operation of 
any applicable performance bond, if 

Owner has terminated the Contract for 
cause, Owner may exclude Contractor 
from the Site, take possession of the 
Work, incorporate in the Work all 
materials and equipment stored at the 
Site or for which Owner has paid 
Contractor but which are stored 
elsewhere, and complete the Work as 
Owner may deem expedient. 

D. Owner may not proceed with 
termination of the Contract under 
Paragraph 16.02.B if Contractor within 7 
days of receipt of notice of intent to 
terminate begins to correct its failure to 
perform and proceeds diligently to cure 
such failure. 

E. If Owner proceeds as provided in 
Paragraph 16.02.B, Contractor shall not 
be entitled to receive any further 
payment until the Work is completed. If 
the unpaid balance of the Contract Price 
exceeds the cost to complete the Work, 
including all related claims, costs, losses, 
and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals) sustained by Owner, such 
excess will be paid to Contractor. If the 
cost to complete the Work including 
such related claims, costs, losses, and 
damages exceeds such unpaid balance, 
Contractor shall pay the difference to 
Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and 
damages incurred by Owner will be 
reviewed by Engineer as to their 
reasonableness and, when so approved 
by Engineer, incorporated in a Change 
Order. When exercising any rights or 
remedies under this paragraph, Owner 
shall not be required to obtain the 
lowest price for the Work performed. 

F. Where Contractor’s services have been 
so terminated by Owner, the 
termination will not affect any rights or 
remedies of Owner against Contractor 
then existing or which may thereafter 

Page 276 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-80
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

accrue, or any rights or remedies of 
Owner against Contractor or any surety 
under any payment bond or 
performance bond. Any retention or 
payment of money due Contractor by 
Owner will not release Contractor from 
liability. 

G. If and to the extent that Contractor has 
provided a performance bond under the 
provisions of Paragraph 6.01.A, the 
provisions of that bond will govern over 
any inconsistent provisions of 
Paragraphs 16.02.B and 16.02.D. 

16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience 

A. Upon 7 days’ written notice to 
Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, 
without cause and without prejudice to 
any other right or remedy of Owner, 
terminate the Contract. In such case, 
Contractor shall be paid for (without 
duplication of any items): 

1. completed and acceptable Work 
executed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents prior to the 
effective date of termination, 
including fair and reasonable sums 
for overhead and profit on such 
Work; 

2. expenses sustained prior to the 
effective date of termination in 
performing services and furnishing 
labor, materials, or equipment as 
required by the Contract Documents 
in connection with uncompleted 
Work, plus fair and reasonable sums 
for overhead and profit on such 
expenses; and 

3. other reasonable expenses directly 
attributable to termination, 
including costs incurred to prepare a 
termination for convenience cost 
proposal. 

B. Contractor shall not be paid for any loss 
of anticipated profits or revenue, post-
termination overhead costs, or other 
economic loss arising out of or resulting 
from such termination. 

16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate 

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, 
(1) the Work is suspended for more than 
90 consecutive days by Owner or under 
an order of court or other public 
authority, or (2) Engineer fails to act on 
any Application for Payment within 30 
days after it is submitted, or (3) Owner 
fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any 
sum finally determined to be due, then 
Contractor may, upon 7 days’ written 
notice to Owner and Engineer, and 
provided Owner or Engineer do not 
remedy such suspension or failure 
within that time, terminate the contract 
and recover from Owner payment on 
the same terms as provided in 
Paragraph 16.03. 

B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and 
without prejudice to any other right or 
remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on 
an Application for Payment within 30 
days after it is submitted, or Owner has 
failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any 
sum finally determined to be due, 
Contractor may, 7 days after written 
notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the 
Work until payment is made of all such 
amounts due Contractor, including 
interest thereon. The provisions of this 
paragraph are not intended to preclude 
Contractor from submitting a Change 
Proposal for an adjustment in Contract 
Price or Contract Times or otherwise for 
expenses or damage directly 
attributable to Contractor’s stopping the 
Work as permitted by this paragraph. 

Page 277 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-81
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

ARTICLE 17—FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES 

17.01 Methods and Procedures 

A. Disputes Subject to Final Resolution: The 
following disputed matters are subject 
to final resolution under the provisions 
of this article: 

1. A timely appeal of an approval in 
part and denial in part of a Claim, or 
of a denial in full, pursuant to 
Article 12; and 

2. Disputes between Owner and 
Contractor concerning the Work, or 
obligations under the Contract 
Documents, that arise after final 
payment has been made. 

B. Final Resolution of Disputes: For any 
dispute subject to resolution under this 
article, Owner or Contractor may: 

1. elect in writing to invoke the dispute 
resolution process provided for in 
the Supplementary Conditions; 

2. agree with the other party to submit 
the dispute to another dispute 
resolution process; or 

3. if no dispute resolution process is 
provided for in the Supplementary 
Conditions or mutually agreed to, 
give written notice to the other 
party of the intent to submit the 
dispute to a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

ARTICLE 18—MISCELLANEOUS 

18.01 Giving Notice 

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract 
requires the giving of written notice to 
Owner, Engineer, or Contractor, it will be 

deemed to have been validly given only 
if delivered: 

1. in person, by a commercial courier 
service or otherwise, to the 
recipient’s place of business; 

2. by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, to the recipient’s 
place of business; or 

3. by e-mail to the recipient, with the 
words “Formal Notice” or similar in 
the e-mail’s subject line. 

18.02 Computation of Times 

A. When any period of time is referred to in 
the Contract by days, it will be computed 
to exclude the first and include the last 
day of such period. If the last day of any 
such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday 
or on a day made a legal holiday by the 
law of the applicable jurisdiction, such 
day will be omitted from the 
computation. 

18.03 Cumulative Remedies 

A. The duties and obligations imposed by 
these General Conditions and the rights 
and remedies available hereunder to the 
parties hereto are in addition to, and are 
not to be construed in any way as a 
limitation of, any rights and remedies 
available to any or all of them which are 
otherwise imposed or available by Laws 
or Regulations, by special warranty or 
guarantee, or by other provisions of the 
Contract. The provisions of this 
paragraph will be as effective as if 
repeated specifically in the Contract 
Documents in connection with each 
particular duty, obligation, right, and 
remedy to which they apply. 

18.04 Limitation of Damages 

A. With respect to any and all Change 
Proposals, Claims, disputes subject to 

Page 278 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00700-82
 Standard General Conditions  
 

 
 

final resolution, and other matters at 
issue, neither Owner nor Engineer, nor 
any of their officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, 
consultants, or subcontractors, shall be 
liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, 
losses, or damages sustained by 
Contractor on or in connection with any 
other project or anticipated project. 

18.05 No Waiver 

A. A party’s non-enforcement of any 
provision will not constitute a waiver of 
that provision, nor will it affect the 
enforceability of that provision or of the 
remainder of this Contract. 

18.06 Survival of Obligations 

A. All representations, indemnifications, 
warranties, and guarantees made in, 
required by, or given in accordance with 
the Contract, as well as all continuing 
obligations indicated in the Contract, will 
survive final payment, completion, and 
acceptance of the Work or termination 
of the Contract or of the services of 
Contractor. 

18.07 Controlling Law 

A. This Contract is to be governed by the 
law of the state in which the Project is 
located. 

18.08 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in 
the Contract, no assignment by a party 
to this Contract of any rights under or 
interests in the Contract will be binding 
on the other party without the written 
consent of the party sought to be bound; 
and, specifically but without limitation, 
money that may become due and 
money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the 
extent that the effect of this restriction 
may be limited by law), and unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any 
written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract. 

18.09 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, 
its successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party 
hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations 
contained in the Contract Documents. 

18.10 Headings 

A. Article and paragraph headings are 
inserted for convenience only and do 
not constitute parts of these General 
Conditions. 

 

Page 279 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-1
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

SECTION 00800 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
 
PART 1- GENERAL 
 
1.1 Additions, Deletions and Revisions 
 

The following supplements shall modify, change, delete from, and/or add to the “Standard 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract”. Where any article, paragraph, or 
subparagraph in the General Conditions is supplemented by one of the following 
paragraphs, the provisions of such article, paragraph or subparagraph shall remain in effect 
and the supplementary provisions shall be considered as added thereto.  Where any 
article, paragraph or subparagraph in the General Conditions is amended, voided, or 
superseded by any of the following paragraphs, the provisions of such article, paragraph 
or subparagraph so amended, voided, or superseded shall remain in effect. 

 
A. Article 1 – Definitions 

 
1. Contract Time:  Amend paragraph defining “Contract Time” to read as follows: 

 
Contract time shall be the time period commencing on the date of issuance 
of “Notice to Proceed” and concluding after expiration of the dates 
specified in the Contract Documents by the Contractor for the satisfactory 
completion of the work. 
 

2. Owner:  Amend paragraph defining “Owner” to read as follows: 
 
Whenever the word “Owner” is used in the Contract Documents, it shall be 
understood to be the City of Port Orchard, WA and duly authorized 
representatives thereof. 
 

3. Engineer:  Amend paragraph defining “Engineer” to read as follows: 
 
Whenever the word “Engineer” is used in the Contract Documents, it shall 
be understood that Murraysmith, Inc, and duly authorized representative 
thereof. 

 
B. Article 2 – Preliminary Matters 

 
1. SC 2.8:  Pre-Construction Conference: 

 
Add new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 2.8 of the General 
Conditions which are to read as follows: 

Page 280 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-2
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

 
2.8.1 A pre-construction conference shall be held as soon as possible after 
Award of Contract and before Work is started.  The conference will be held 
at a location selected by Owner.  The conference will be attended by: 
a. Contractor’s Office Representative 
b. Contractor’s Resident Superintendent 
c. Any Subcontractor’s or Supplier’s representatives whom Contractor 

may desire to invite or Engineer may request 
d. Engineer’s Representatives 
e. Owner’s Representatives 
f. Local Utilities Representatives 

 
2.8.2 A suggested format would include, but not be limited to the following 
subjects: 

 
a. Presentation of a proposed construction schedule by Contractor. 
b. Check of required bonds and insurance certifications prior to notice to 

proceed. 
c. Chain of command, direction of correspondence, and coordinating 

responsibility between Contractor. 
 

C. Article 5 – Bonds and Insurance 
 

1. SC 5.2:  Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 5.2 of the 
General Conditions. 

 
 In addition, no further progress payments under the Agreement will be made by 

Owner until Contractor complies with the provisions of this Article. 
 
  2. SC 5.3: Contractor’s Liability Insurance 
 
  The Contractor agrees that he will before the time of beginning work 

hereunder, take out and keep in force at all times for the duration of all work 
agreed to be done hereunder, policies of insurance with minimum limits as 
required under this Article with an insurer approved by the [Owner].  This insurance 
shall cover all operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by 
himself or by any subcontractor or materialmen or anyone directly employed by 
them. 

 
  3. SC 5.3.1: The Contractor shall in all respects comply with any 

and all statutes and ordinances which impose any duty or obligation upon either 
the Contractor or the [Owner] with respect to the performance of any part of the 
work hereby undertaken by the Contractor and the Contractor agrees to do and 
perform any and all acts required by any statutes or ordinances to be performed 

Page 281 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-3
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

by either the Contractor or the [Owner] with respect to such work.  The Contractor 
hereby agrees to hold the [Owner] its employees, agents and Murraysmith, Inc. 
harmless and to indemnify them against and to reimburse them for any loss, 
damage, costs or expenses, together with reasonable attorney’s fees, which they 
might or may incur by reason of failure of the Contractor to observe and comply 
with any and all such statutes and ordinances. 

 
  4. SC 5.3.2: The Contractor shall also indemnify and hold 

harmless the [Owner] and agents and Murraysmith, Inc. from and against any and 
all claims and demands whatsoever, including cost, litigation expenses, counsel 
fees and liabilities incurred in connection therewith, arising out of injury to, or 
death of, any person or persons whatsoever, or damage to property of any kind by 
whomsoever owned, caused in whole or in part by the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor any Subcontractor, the Contractor’s materialmen, or any other person 
directly or indirectly employed by them, or any of them, while engaged in the 
performance of the work or any activity associated therewith or relative thereto. 

 
5. Applicable to All Policies 

 
All policies shall be written with insurance companies licensed to do business in the 
State of Washington and having a rating of not less than A VI, according to the latest 
edition of the A.M. Best Co. 
 
Certificate of insurance evidencing the required coverages shall be submitted to 
the Owner and Engineer prior to commencing work on the project. 
 
6. Liability Insurance 

 
The limits of liability for the liability insurance required shall provide coverages for 
not less than the following amounts or greater where required by law and 
coverages shall be as follows: 
 

a. Workers Compensation 
i. State: Statutory 
ii. Applicable Federal:  Statutory 
iii. Employer’s Liability  

Bodily Injury by Accident (each accident) $500,000 
Bodily Injury by Disease (policy limit) $500,000 
Bodily Injury by Disease (each employee) $100,000 

b. Commercial General Liability (including Premises-Operations; 
Independent Contractors’ Protection; Products and Completed 
Operations; Broad Form Property Damage): 
i. Bodily Injury/Property Damage/Personal Injury (Combined 

Single Limit per Occurrence):  $1,000,000 

Page 282 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-4
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

ii. Property Damage liability insurance will provide Explosion, 
Collapse and Underground coverages 

c. Comprehensive Automobile Damage 
i. Bodily Injury/Property Damage (Combined Single Limit per 

Accident): $1,000,000 
d. Additional liability coverage for Owner and Engineer will be 

provided: 
i. By endorsement as additional insureds on Contractor’s 

General Liability policy. 
ii. Contractor’s general liability carrier shall issue a separate 

Protective Liability policy covering Owner and Engineer.  
(Combined Single Limit):  $1,000,000 

e. Umbrella Liability Insurance in Contractor’s name with Owner and 
Engineer as additional insureds – (Limit):  $1,000,000 

f. The deductible on the Contractor’s Insurance Policy (as outlined 
above) will not exceed $5,000.00. 

g. ALL INSURANCE COVERAGE LIMITS PROVIDED THE VILLAGE 
(OWNER) ARE ON A PER LOCATION AGGREGATE LIMIT BASIS. 

h. All insurance provided to the Village (Owner) is primary and non-
contributory with any insurance or self-insurance program 
maintained by the Village (Owner). 

i. The Contractor’s insurance policies are to be endorsed to the 
(Owner) and at least 30 days advanced notice will be given to the 
(Owner) of cancellation, material reduction of insurance or non-
renewal. 

 
7. Property Insurance 

 
a. Property insurance to the full insurable value of the work will be 

provided by the Contractor. 
b. Such coverage shall be written on an “All Risk” Completed Value 

form. 
c. The deductible under this policy shall be the responsibility of the 

Contractor. 
d. The Named Insureds shall include the Owner and Engineer. 

 
D. Article 6 – Contractor’s Responsibilities 

 
1. SC 6.7.3:  Substitutions:  Comply with Section 01600 of the Specifications 

for specific methods of requesting approval of substitutions. 
2. SC 6.19:  Add the following language at the end of paragraph 6.19 of the 

General Conditions: 
 

Page 283 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-5
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

The Contractor shall also be responsible for maintaining a marked set of drawings 
showing all deviations in line and grade, additions, and/or deletions to the scope of 
work.  All items and dimensions shall be specifically marked.  The ends of all services 
shall be referenced to the front lot corners.  The Contractor shall furnish the Owner 
with complete set of Record Drawings upon completion of the work. 

  
3. SC 6.8.3:  Add a new subparagraph immediately after Subparagraph 6.8.2 

of the General Conditions which is to read as follows: 
 

Contractor shall not award Work to Subcontractor(s) in excess of 10% of the 
Contract Price without prior written approval of Owner. 

 
4. SC 6.23:  Submittals:  Comply with Section 01300 of the Specifications for 

detailed requirements for submitting Shop Drawings, Samples, Operator’s 
Instructions, Service and Parts Manuals. 

 
E. Article 14 – Payments to Contractor and Completion 

 
1. Payments:  Payments to the Contractor shall be made on the basis of 

monthly estimates equal to 90 percent of the value of the work completed 
and approved by the Engineer including materials and equipment delivered 
to the job, until the project is substantially complete.  When the work is 
substantially complete, the retainage may be reduced to five percent of all 
the additional work satisfactorily completed.  Provided that the Contractor 
is making satisfactory progress, and there is no specific cause for greater 
withholding. 

2. Pay Request Submittals shall Include: 
a. Transmittal Form 
b. Pay Request Form EJCDC 190-8-E 
c. Schedule of Valves 
d. An updated construction schedule 
e. Current photographs of construction site 
f. Current payroll certification 
g. Current waivers of lien 
h. Contractor’s Affidavit 

3. After Substantial Completion, including Start-up, the withheld amount may 
be further reduced, below five percent, to that amount necessary to assure 
completion. 

4. Waivers of Lien:  Provide the Owner with all waivers of lien prior to receipt 
of any payments for work completed. 

 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 

Page 284 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  00800-6
 Supplementary Conditions  
 

PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 

 
END OF SECTION 

 

Page 285 of 596



Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility 01010-1
Summary of Project 

SECTION 01110 
SUMMARY OF PROJECT 

PART1 – GENERAL 

1.1 

1.2 

1.3 

Section Includes: Project Summary; Outline of Work covered by Contract Documents. 

General Conditions:  Duties and responsibilities of the Construction Manager and 
other parties. 

Project Summary – Work covered by Contract Documents includes the following major 
items plus additional work not mentioned below but specified elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents: 

The project was originally designed by Land Expressions and modified by Murraysmith as 
a result of a value Engineering project completed for the City of Port Orchard.  Elements 
of the original design have been maintained in the revised design including the building 
structure, site work, and electrical panel design.  The treatment system has been 
modified along with associated piping, fittings and controls.

The project includes the construction of the treatment facilities: 

The project includes: a new package pump station and treatment building, which will 
treat water recycled from the existing McCormick Woods Splash Pad.  Work is shown 
on the drawings and described in the specifications but, in part, includes: 
 Construct a 20’4” x 11’ building
 Furnish and install one duplex package grinder pump station
 Furnish and install one booster pump
 Furnish and install one media filter
 Furnish and install six hydro pneumatic tanks
 Furnish and install one sodium hypochlorite (chlorine solution) feed 

system,
 Furnish and install one peracetic acid (pH adjustment solution) feed system,
 Furnish and install piping
 Relocated the existing solenoid valve control system
 Furnish and install electrical equipment,
 Furnish and install landscaping and fencing,
 Furnish and install a new solenoid control panel
 Furnish and install sitework.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
Not Used 

PART 3- EXECUTION 
Not Used END OF SECTION 

Page 286 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01027-1
 Application for Payment 
 

SECTION 01027 
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 Procedures for preparation and submittal of Applications for Payment. 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Document 00501 – Agreement:  Contract Sum/Price 
 B. Document 00700 – General Conditions:  Progress Payments and Final Payment 
 C. Document 01028 – Change Order Procedures:  Procedures for changes to the Work 
 D. Section 01300 – Submittals:  Submittal procedures 
 E. Section 01700 – Contract Closeout:  Final Payment. 
 
1.3 Format 
 
 A. EJCDC 1910-8-E – Application for Payment including continuation sheets when 

required. 
 B. For each item, provide a column for listing:  Item Number; Description of work; 

Scheduled Value, Previous Applications:  Work in Place under this Application:  
Authorized Change Orders; Total Completed to Date of Application; Percentage of 
Completion; Balance to Finish; and Retainage. 

 
1.4 Preparation of Applications 
 
 A. Present required information in typewritten form or on electronic media printout. 
 B. Execute certification by signature of authorized officer. 
 C. Use data from approved Schedule of Values.  Provide dollar value in each column 

for each line item for portion of work performed. 
 D. List each authorized Change Order as an extension on continuation sheet, listing 

Change Order number and dollar amount as for an original item of Work. 
 E. Prepare Application for Final Payment as specified in Section 01700. 
 
1.5 Submittal Procedures 
 
 A. Submit three copies of each Application for Payment. 
 B. Submit an updated construction schedule and construction photographs with each 

Application for Payment. 
 C. Payment Period:  Submit at intervals stipulated in the Agreement. 
 D. Submit under transmittal letter specified in Section 01300. 
 E. Submit all current waivers. 

Page 287 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01027-2
 Application for Payment 
 

 
1.6 Substantiating Data 
 
 A. When Architect/Engineer requires substantiating information, submit data 

justifying dollar amounts in question. 
 B. Provide one copy of data with cover letter for each copy of submittal.  Show 

Application number and date and line item by number and description. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
 
3.1 Sample Pay Request 
 
 A sample pay request is shown on the following page: 
 

Page 288 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01027-3
 Application for Payment 
 

SWORN STATEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR TO OWNER 
PAY REQUEST NO.   

 
Contractor:       Contract Date: 
 
Pay Request Date:      For Period Ending: 
 
Contracted for: [Owner] – McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility 
 
Amount of Pay Request: 
 
The affiant, (Name)      , being duly sworn, on oath deposes and says 
that he is the (Title)     of (Company)     , that 
he has contracted with the City of Port Orchard, WA, Owner for the McCormick Woods Splash Pad 
Water Treatment Facility, on the following described premises in Kitsap County, to-wit:  Port 
Orchard, WA, Kitsap County 
 
That, for the purpose of said contract, the following persons have been contracted with, and have 
furnished, or are furnishing and preparing materials for, and have done or are doing labor on said 
improvement.  That there is due and to become due them, respectively, the amounts set opposite 
their names for materials or labor as stated.  That this statement is a full, true, and complete 
statement of all such persons, the amounts paid and the amounts due or to become due to each. 
 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
Original Contract Price 
Net Change Orders 
Work Deducted from Contract 
Current Contract Price 
Work to be Done 
Work to Date 
Amount Retained (10%) 
Subtotal 
Previous Payments 
Amount Due This Payment 

 
It is understood that the total amount paid to date plus the amount requested in this application 
shall not exceed 90% of the cost of work completed to date. 
 
I agree to furnish Waivers of Lien for all materials under my contract when demanded. 
 
             
      Name, Title 
 
             

Page 289 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01027-4
 Application for Payment 
 

      Organization 
 
ATTESTED BY NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this  ____ day of   , 2021. 
 
 (notary seal)  
 
            
     Notary Public 
 
     My commission expires on      
      

END OF SECTION 

Page 290 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01028-1
 Change Order Procedures 
 

SECTION 01028 
CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Submittals 
 B. Documentation of change in Contract Sum/Price and Contract Time 
 C. Change procedures 
 D. Construction Change Directive 
 E. Stipulated Price change order 
 F. Unit price change order 
 G. Time and material change order 
 H. Execution of change orders 
 I. Correlation of Contractor submittals 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Document 00501 – Agreement Forms:  Monetary values of established Unit Prices. 
 B. Document 00700 – General Conditions:  Governing requirements for changes in 

Work, in Contract Sum/Price, and Contract Time. 
 C. Document 00800 – Supplementary Conditions:  Percentage allowances for 

Contractor’s overhead and profit. 
 D. Section 01027 – Applications for Payment:  Payment applications. 
 E. Section 01300 – Submittals:  Work Schedule 
 F. Section 01600 – Material and Equipment:  Product options and substitutions. 
 G. Section 01700 – Contract Closeout:  Project Record Documents. 
 
1.3 Submittals 
 
 A. Submit name of the individual authorized to receive change documents, and be 

responsible for informing others in Contractor’s employ or Subcontractors of 
changes to the Work. 

 B. Change Order Forms:  EJCDC 1910-8-B Change Order. 
 
1.4 Documentation of Change in Sum/Price and Contract Time 
 
 A. The contract price or time may be changed only by a change order.  When 

negotiations are required, they shall be conducted in accordance with this Section 
as well as the General Conditions. 

    
 
 B. Maintain detailed records of work done on a time and material basis.  

Provide full information required for evaluation of proposed changes, and to 
substantiate costs of changes in the Work. 

Page 291 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01028-2
 Change Order Procedures 
 

 
 C. Document each quotation for a change in cost or time with sufficient data 

to allow evaluation of the quotation. 
 
 D. On request, provide additional data to support computations: 
  1. Quantities of products, labor, and equipment 
  2. Taxes, insurance and bonds 
  3. Overhead and profit 
  4. Justification for any change in Contract Time 
  5. Credit for deletions from Contract, similarly documented 
 
 E. Support each claim for additional costs, and for work done on a time and 

material basis, with additional information:   
  1. Origin and date of claim 
  2. Dates and times work was performed, and by whom 
  3. Time records and wage rates paid 
  4. Invoices and receipts for products, equipment and 

subcontracts, similarly documented. 
 
 F. For each change order the contractor shall submit the loan recipient for 

review sufficient cost and pricing data to enable the loan recipient to ascertain the 
necessity and reasonableness of costs and amounts proposed, and the allowability 
and eligibility of costs proposed. 

 
1.5 Change Procedures 
 

A. The Engineer will advise of minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment 
to Contract Sum/Price or Contract Time as authorized by EJCDC 1910-B Paragraph 
9.5 by issuing supplemental instructions. 

 
B. The Engineer may issue a Proposal Request which includes a detailed description 

of a proposed change with supplementary or revised Drawings and specifications, 
a change in Contract Time for executing the change (with a stipulation of any 
overtime worked required).  Contractor will prepare and submit an estimate within 
5 days. 

 
C. The Contractor may propose a change by submitting a request for change to the 

Engineer, describing the proposed change and its full effect on the Work, with a 
statement describing the reason for the change, and the effect on the Contract 
Sum/Price and Contract Time with full documentation and a statement describing 
the effect on Work by separate or other contractors. 

 
1.6 Construction Change Directive 
 
 A. Engineer may issue a document, signed by the Owner, instructing the 

Page 292 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01028-3
 Change Order Procedures 
 

Contractor to proceed with a change in the Work, for subsequent inclusion in a 
Change Order. 

  
B. Document will describe changes in the Work, and will designate method of 

determining any change in Contract Sum/Price or Contract Time. 
  

C. Promptly execute the change in Work. 
 
1.7 Stipulated Price Change Order 
 

Based on Proposal Request and Contractor’s price quotation or Contractor’s request for a 
Change Order as approved by Engineer. 

 
1.8 Unit Price Change Order 
 
 A. For pre-determined unit prices and quantities, the Change Order will be 

executed on a fixed unit price basis. 
 
 B. For unit costs or quantities of units of work which are not pre-determined, 

execute Work under a Construction Change Directive. 
 
 C. Changes in Contract Sum/Price or Contract Time will be computed as 

specified for Time and Material Change Order. 
 
1.9 Time and Material Change Order 
 
 A. Submit itemized account and supporting data after completion of change, 

within time limits indicated in the Conditions of the Contract. 
 
 B. Engineer will determine the change allowable in Contract Sum/Price and 

Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
 C. Maintain detailed records of work done on Time and Material basis. 
 
 D. Provide full information required for evaluation of proposed changes, and 

to substantiate costs for changes in the Work. 
 
1.10 Execution of Change Orders 
 

Engineer will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties as provided in the Conditions of 
the Contract. 

 
1.11 Correlation of Contractor Submittals 
 

Page 293 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01028-4
 Change Order Procedures 
 

 A. Promptly revise Schedule of Values and Application for Payment forms to 
record each authorized Change Order as a separate line item and adjust the 
Contract Sum/Price. 

 
 B. Promptly revise progress schedules to reflect any change in Contract Time, 

revise sub-schedules to adjust time for other items of work affected by the change, 
and resubmit. 

 
 C. Promptly enter changes in Project Record Documents. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used. 
 
PART 3 – EXUECTION 
Not Used. 
 

END OF SECTION 

Page 294 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01030-1
 Alternates 
 

SECTION 01030 
ALTERNATES 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes: 
 
 A. Submission procedures 
 
 B. Documentation of changes to Contract Sum/Price and Contract Time 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Document 00100 – Instructions to Bidders 
 
 B. Document 00501 – Agreement Form 
 
 C. Section 01300 – Submittals 
 
 D. Section 01600 – Material and Equipment 
 
1.3 Requirements 
 
 A. Submit Alternates with full description of the proposed Alternate and the 

effect on adjacent or related structures and components. 
 
 B. Alternates quoted on Bid Forms will be reviewed and accepted or rejected 

at Owner’s option.  Accepted Alternates will be identified in the Owner-Contractor 
Agreement. 

 
 C. Coordinate related work and modify surrounding work to integrate the 

Work of each Alternate. 
 
1.4 Selection and Award of Alternatives 
 
 A. Indicate variation of Bid Price for Alternates which requests a “difference” 

in Bid Price by a deduction from the base bid price. 
 
 B. Bid may be evaluated on base bid price.  After determination of preferred 

bidder, consideration will be given to Alternate and Bid Price adjustments. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS - Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUCTION - Not Used 

END OF SECTION 
 

Page 295 of 596



Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility 01300-1
Submittals 

SECTION 01300 
SUBMITTALS 

PART 1 – GENERAL 

1.1 Section Includes 

A. Submittal Procedures
B. Construction Progress Schedules
C. Proposed Products List
D. Shop Drawings
E. Product Data
F. Samples
G. Manufacturer’s Instructions
H. Manufacturer’s Certificates
I. Construction Photographs

1.2 Related Sections 

A. Section 01400 – Quality Control:  Manufacturer’s field services and reports
B. Section 01700 – Contract Closeout:  Contract closeout submittals
C. Section 01730 – Operation and Maintenance Data
D. Section 01740 – Warranties and Bonds

1.3 Submittal Procedures 

A. Transmit each submittal with AIA Form G810.

B. Sequentially number the transmittal forms.  Resubmittals to have original
number with an alphabetic suffix.

C. Identify Project, Contractor, Subcontractor or supplier; pertinent Drawing
sheet and detail number(s) and specification Section number, as appropriate.

D. Apply Contractor’s stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review,
verification of Products required, field dimensions, adjacent construction Work,
and coordination of information, is in accordance with the requirements of the
Work and Contract Documents.

F. Schedule submittals to expedite the Project and deliver to Engineer at 
lee.odell@murraysmith.us and the City at jbrown@cityofportorchard.us

G. Coordinate submission of related items.

F. Identify variations from Contract Documents and Product or system 
limitations which may be detrimental to successful performance of the completed 
Work.  

Page 296 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01300-2
 Submittals 
 

 
 G. Revise and resubmit submittals as required, identify all changes made since 

previous submittal. 
 
 H. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals to concerned parties.  Instruct 

parties to promptly report any inability to comply with provisions. 
 
1.4 Construction Progress Schedules 
 
 A. Submit initial progress schedule in duplicate within 15 days after date of 

Owner-Contractor Agreement for Engineer review. 
 
 B. Revise and resubmit as required by Engineer. 
 
 C. Submit revised schedules with each Application for Payment, identifying 

changes since previous version. 
 
 D. Submit a horizontal bar chart with separate line for each major section of 

Work or Operation, identifying first work day of each week. 
 
 E. Show complete sequence of construction by activity, identifying Work of 

separate stages and other logically grouped activities.  Indicate the early and late 
start, early and late finish, float dates and duration. 

 
 F. Indicate estimated percentage of completion for each item of Work at each 

submission. 
 
 G. Indicate submittal dates required for shop drawings, product data, samples 

and product delivery dates, including those furnished by Owner and under 
Allowances. 

 
1.5 Proposed Products List 
 
 A. Within 15 days after date of Owner-Contractor Agreement, submit 

complete list of major products proposed for use, with name of manufacturer, 
trade name and model number of each product. 

 
 B. For products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, 

trade name, model or catalog designation and reference standards. 
 
1.6 Shop Drawings 
  
 A. Submit the number of opaque reproductions which Contractor requires, 

plus four copies which will be retained by Engineer. 
 

Page 297 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01300-3
 Submittals 
 

 B. After review, reproduce and distribute in accordance with Article on 
Procedures above and for Record Documents described in Section 01700-
Contract Closeout. 

 
1.7 Product Data 
 
 A. Submit the number of copies which the Contractor requires, plus four 

copies which will be retained by the Engineer. 
 
 B. Mark each copy to identify applicable products, models, options, and other 

data.  Supplement manufacturer’s standard data to provide information unique to 
this Project. 

 
 C. After review, distribute in accordance with Article on Procedures above and 

provide copies for Record Documents described in Section 01700 – Contract 
Closeout. 

 
1.8 Samples 
 
 A. Submit samples to illustrate functional and aesthetic characteristics of the 

Product, with integral parts and attachment devices.  Coordinate sample submittals 
for interfacing work. 

 
 B. Submit samples of finishes from the full range of manufacturers’ standard 

colors, textures, and patterns for Engineer’s selection. 
 
 C. Include identification on each sample, with full Project information. 
 
 D. Submit the number of samples specified in individual specifications 

Sections; one of which will be retained by Engineer. 
 
 E. Reviewed samples which may be used in the Work are indicated in 

individual specification Sections. 
 
1.9 Manufacturer’s Instructions 
 
 A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit manufacturers’ 

printed instructions for delivery, storage, assembly, installation, start-up, adjusting 
and finishing, in quantities specified for Product Data. 

 
 B. Identify conflicts between manufacturers’ instructions and Contract 

Documents. 
 
1.10 Manufacturer’s Certificates 
 

Page 298 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01300-4
 Submittals 
 

 A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit manufacturers’ 
certificate to Engineer for review, in quantities specified for Product Data. 

 
 B. Indicate material or product conforms to or exceeds specified 

requirements.  Submit supporting reference data, affidavits, and certifications as 
appropriate. 

 
 C. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or Product, 

but must be acceptable to Engineer. 
1.11 Schedule of submittals 
 

 Engineer may require further documentation or submittals on items not listed. 
 All equipment referenced by model or manufacturer on the drawings 
 All pumps, piping materials, tanks, filters, valves  
 All electrical equipment 
 

 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 

END OF SECTION 

Page 299 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01400-1
 Quality Control 
 

SECTION 01400 
QUALITY CONTROL 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Quality Assurance and Control of Installation 
 B. References 
 C. Field Samples 
 D. Mock-up 
 E. Inspection and Testing Laboratory Services 
 F. Manufacturer’s Field Services and Reports 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Section 01090 – Reference Standards 
 
 B. Section 01300 – Submittals:  Submission of Manufacturers’ Instructions and 

Certificates. 
 
 C. Section 01600 – Material and Equipment:  Requirements for material and 

product quality. 
 
1.3 Quality Assurance/Control of Installation 
 
 A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, 

site conditions, and workmanship to produce Work of specified quality. 
 
 B. Comply fully with manufacturers’ instructions, including each step in 

sequence. 
 
 C. Should manufacturers’ instructions conflict with Contract Documents, 

request clarification from Engineer before proceeding. 
 
 D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except 

when more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher 
standards or more precise workmanship. 

 
 E. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified 

quality. 
 
 F. Secure Products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and 

sized to withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion or disfigurement. 
 

Page 300 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01400-2
 Quality Control 
 

1.4 References 
 
 A. Conform to reference standard by date of issue current on date of Contract 

Documents. 
 B. Obtain copies of standards when required by Contract Documents. 
 
 C. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, 

request clarification for Engineer before proceeding. 
 
 D. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be 

altered from the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any 
reference document. 

 
1.5 Manufacturer’s Field Services and Reports 
 
 A. Submit qualifications of observer to Engineer 30 days in advance of required 

observations.  Observer subject to approval of Engineer. 
 
 B. When specified in individual specification Sections, require material or 

Product suppliers or manufacturers to provide qualified stall personnel to observe 
site conditions, conditions of surfaces and installation, quality of workmanship, 
start-up of equipment, test, adjust and balance of equipment as applicable, and to 
initial instructions when necessary. 

 
 C. Individuals to report observations and site decisions or instructions given to 

applicators or installers that are supplemental or contrary to manufacturers’ 
written instructions. 

 
 D. Submit report in duplicate within 10 days of observation to Engineer for 

review. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 
 
 

END OF SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 301 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01500-1
 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 

SECTION 01500 
CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Temporary Utilities:  Electricity, lighting, heat, air conditioning, ventilation 

telephone service, water, and sanitary facilities. 
 
 B. Temporary Controls:  Barriers, enclosures and fencing, protection of the 

Work and water control. 
 
 C. Construction Facilities:  Access roads, parking, progress cleaning, project 

signage and temporary buildings. 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
  
 Section 01700 – Contract Closeout:  Final cleaning 
 
1.3 Temporary Electricity 
 
 A. Provide and pay for power service required from the Batavia Electric Department. 
 
 B. Power Service Characteristics:  120-240 volt, 100 ampere, single phase. 
 
 C. Provide power outlets for construction operations, with branch wiring and 

distribution boxes located as required.  Provide flexible power cords as required. 
 
 D. Provide main service disconnect/overcurrent protection at convenient 

location. 
 
 E. Permanent convenience receptacles may be utilized during construction. 
 
 F. Provide adequate distribution equipment, wiring, and outlets to provide 

single phase branch circuits for power and lighting. 
 
1.4 Temporary Lighting 
 
 A. Provide and maintain incandescent lighting for construction operations to 

achieve a minimum lighting level of 2 watt/sq.ft. 
 
 B. Provide branch wiring from power source to distribution boxes with lighting 

conductors, pigtails, and lamps as required. 
 
 C. Maintain lighting and provide routine repairs. 

Page 302 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01500-2
 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 

 
 D. Permanent building lighting may be utilized during construction. 
1.5 Temporary Heat 
 
 A. Provide and pay for heat devices and heat as required to maintain specified 

conditions for construction operations. 
 
 B. Prior to operation of permanent equipment for temporary heating 

purposes, verify that installation is approved for operation, equipment is lubricated 
and filters are in place.  Provide and pay for operation, maintenance, and regular 
replacement of filters and worn or consumed parts. 

 
 C. Maintain minimum ambient temperature of 50 degrees F in areas where 

construction is in progress, unless indicated otherwise in specifications. 
 
1.6 Temporary Ventilation 
 

Ventilate enclosed areas to assist cure of materials, to dissipate humidity, and to prevent 
accumulation of dust, fumes, vapors or gases. 

 
1.7 Telephone Services 
 

Provide, maintain and pay for telephone service to field office and Engineer’s field office 
at time of project mobilization. 

 
1.8 Temporary Water Services 
 
 Provide bottled water for drinking 
 
1.9 Temporary Sanitary Facilities 
 
 Provide and maintain required facilities and enclosures 
 
1.10 Barriers 
 
 A. Provide barriers to prevent unauthorized entry to construction areas and to 

protect existing facilities and adjacent properties from damage from construction 
operations. 

 
 B. Provide barricades and covered walkways required by governing authorities 

for public rights-of-way and for public access to existing building. 
 
 C. Provide protection for plant life designated to remain.  Replace damaged 

plant life. 
 

Page 303 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01500-3
 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 

 D. Protect non-owned vehicular traffic, stored materials, site and structures 
from damage. 

 
1.11 Fencing 
 
 Construction:  Contractor’s option 
 
1.12 Water Control 
 
 A. Grade site to drain.  Maintain excavations free of water.  Provide, operate, 

and maintain pumping equipment. 
 
 B. Protect site from puddling or running water.  Provide water barriers as 

required to protect site from soil erosion. 
 
1.13 Exterior Enclosures 
 
 Provide temporary weather-tight closure of exterior openings to accommodate acceptable 

working conditions and protection for Products, to allow for temporary heating and 
maintenance of required ambient temperatures identified in individual specification 
Sections, and to prevent entry of unauthorized persons.  Provide access doors with self-
closing hardware and locks. 

 
1.14 Protection of Installed Work 
 
 A. Protect installed Work and provide special protection where specified in 

individual specifications Sections. 
 
 B. Provide temporary and removable protection for installed Products.  

Control activity in immediate work area to minimize damage. 
 
 C. Provide protective coverings at walls, projections, jambs, sills, and soffits of 

openings. 
 
 D. Protect finished floors, stairs and other surfaces from traffic, dirt, wear, 

damage, or movement of heavy objects, by protecting with durable sheet 
materials. 

 
 E. Prohibit traffic or storage upon waterproofed or roofed surfaces.  If traffic 

or activity is necessary, obtain recommendations for protection from 
waterproofing or roofing material manufacturer. 

 
 F. Prohibit traffic from landscaped areas. 
 
1.15 Access Road 

Page 304 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01500-4
 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 

 
A. Construct and maintain temporary roads accessing public thoroughfares to serve 

construction areas. 
 
B. Extend and relocate as Work progress requires.  Provide detours necessary for 

unimpeded traffic flow. 
 
C. Provide and maintain access to fire hydrants, free of obstructions. 
 

1.16 Parking 
 
A. Construct temporary gravel surface parking areas to accommodate construction 

personnel. 
 
B. When site space is not adequate, provide additional off-site parking. 
 
C. Do not allow vehicle parking on existing pavement. 
 
D. Designate one parking space for the Owner and Engineer 

 
1.17 Progress Cleaning 
 
 A. Maintain areas free of waste materials, debris and rubbish.  Maintain site in 

a clean and orderly condition. 
 
 B. Remove debris and rubbish from pipe chases, plenums, attics, crawl spaces, 

and other closed or remote spaces, prior to enclosing the space. 
 
 C. Broom and vacuum clean interior areas prior to start of surface finishing 

and continue cleaning to eliminate dust. 
 
 D. Remove waste materials, debris and rubbish from site periodically and 

dispose off-site. 
 
1.18 Project Identification 
 
 No signs are allowed except those required by law. 
 
1.19 Removal of Utilities, Facilities and Controls 
 
 A. Removal temporary above grade or buried utilities, equipment, facilities, 

materials prior to Final Application for Payment inspection. 
 
 B. Remove underground installations to a minimum depth of 2 feet.  Grade 

site as indicated. 

Page 305 of 596



 

Port Orchard McCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01500-5
 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 

 
 C. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary work. 
 
 D. Restore existing facilities used during construction to original condition.  

Restore permanent facilities used during construction to specified condition. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS - Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION - Not Used 

END OF SECTION 
 

Page 306 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01600-1
 Material and Equipment 
 

SECTION 01600 
MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Products 
 B. Transportation 
 C. Storage and Protection 
 D. Product Options 
 E. Substitutions 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
  
 A. Document 00100 – Instructions to Bidders:  Product options and 

substitution procedures 
 
 B. Section 01400 – Quality Control:  Product quality monitoring 
 
1.3 Products 
 
 A. Products:  Means new material, machinery, components, equipment, 

fixtures and systems forming the Work.  Does not include machinery and 
equipment used for preparation, fabrication, conveying and erection of the Work.  
Products may also include existing materials or components required for reuse. 

 
 B. Do not use materials and equipment removed from existing premises, 

except as specifically permitted by the Contract Documents. 
 
 C. Provide interchangeable components of the same manufacturer for similar 

components. 
 
1.4 Transportation and Handling 
 
 A. Transportation and handle products in accordance with manufacturer’s 

instructions. 
 
 B. Promptly inspect shipments to assure that products comply with 

requirements, quantities are correct and products are undamaged. 
 
 C. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to 

prevent soiling, disfigurement or damage. 
 
1.5 Storage and Protection 
 

Page 307 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01600-2
 Material and Equipment 
 

 A. Store and protect products in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions, 
with seals and labels intact and legible.  Store sensitive products in weather-tight, 
climate controlled enclosures. 

 
 B. For exterior storage of fabricated products, place on sloped supports, above 

ground. 
 
 C. Provide off-site storage and protection when site does not permit on-site 

storage or protection. 
 
 D. Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering.  

Provide ventilation to avoid condensation. 
 
 E. Store loose granular materials on solid flat surfaces in a well-drained area.  

Provide mixing with foreign matter. 
 
 F. Provide equipment and personnel to store products by methods to prevent 

soiling, disfigurement or damage. 
 
 G. Arrange storage of products to permit access for inspection.  Periodically 

inspect to assure products are undamaged and are maintained under specified 
conditions. 

 
1.6 Product Options 
 
 A. Products Specified by Reference Standards or by Description Only:  Any 

product meeting those standards or description. 
 
 B. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers:  Products of 

manufacturers named and meeting specifications, no options or substitutions 
allowed. 

 
 C. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers with a Provision 

for Substitutions:  Submit a request for substitution for any manufacturer not 
named. 

 
1.7 Substitutions 
 
 A. Engineer will consider requests for Substitutions only within 15 days after 

date of Owner-Contractor Agreement. 
 
 B. Substitutions may be considered when a product becomes unavailable 

through no fault of the Contractor. 
 

Page 308 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01600-3
 Material and Equipment 
 

 C. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of 
proposed Substitution with Contract Documents. 

 
 D. A request constitutes a representation that the Contractor: 
  1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it 

meets or exceeds the quality level of the specified product. 
  2. Will provide the same warranty for the Substitution as for 

the specified product. 
  3. Will coordinate installation and make changes to other Work 

which may be required for the Work to be complete with no additional cost 
to Owner. 

  4. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension which 
may subsequently become apparent. 

  5. Will reimburse Owner for review or redesign services 
associated with re-approval by authorities. 

  
E. Substitutions will not be considered when they are indicated or implied on shop 

drawing or product data submittals, without separate written request, or when 
acceptance will require revision to the Contract Documents. 

 
 F. Substitution Submittal Procedure: 
  1. Submit three copies of request for Substitution for 

consideration.  Limit each request to one proposed Substitution. 
  2. Submit shop drawings, product data and certified test 

results attesting to the proposed product equivalence.   
  3. The Engineer will notify Contractor, in writing, of decision to 

accept or reject request. 
 

END OF SECTION 
 

Page 309 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01650-1
 Starting of Systems 
 

SECTION 01650 
STARTING OF SYSTEMS 

 
PART 1- GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes: 
 
 A. Starting Systems 
 B. Demonstration and Instructions 
 C. Testing, Adjusting and Balancing 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Section 01400 – Quality Control:  Manufacturers field report 
 
 B. Section 01700 – Contract Closeout:  System operation and maintenance 

data and extra materials. 
 
1.3 Starting Systems 
 
 A. Coordinate schedule for start-up of various equipment and systems. 
 
 B. Notify Engineer 10 days prior to start-up of each item. 
 
 C. Verify that each piece of equipment or system has been checked for proper 

lubrication, drive rotation, belt tension, control sequence, or other conditions 
which may cause damage. 

 
 D. Verify that tests, meter readings, and specified electrical characteristics 

agree with those required by the equipment or system manufacturer. 
 
 E. Verify wiring and support components for equipment are complete and 

tested. 
 

F. Execute start-up under supervision of responsible manufacturer’s representative 
in accordance with manufacturers’ instructions. 

 
 G. When specified in individual specification Sections, require manufacturer to 

provide authorized representative to be present at site to inspect, check and 
approve equipment or system installation prior to start-up and to supervise placing 
equipment or system in operation. 

 
 H. Submit a written report in accordance with Section 01400 that equipment 

or system has been properly installed and is functioning correctly. 
 
1.4 Demonstration and Instructions 

Page 310 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01650-2
 Starting of Systems 
 

 
 A. Demonstrate operation and maintenance of Products to Owner’s personnel 

1 week prior to date of final inspection. 
 
 B. Demonstrate project equipment, instruct in a classroom environment 

located at plant and instructed by a manufacturers’ representative who is 
knowledgeable about the Project. 

 
 C. Utilize operation and maintenance manuals as basis for instruction.  Review 

contents of manual with Owners’ personnel in detail to explain all aspects of 
operation and maintenance. 

 
 D. Demonstrate start-up, operation, control, adjustment, trouble-shooting, 

servicing, maintenance and shutdown of each item of equipment at agreed-upon 
times, at designated location. 

 
 E. Prepare and insert additional data in operations and maintenance manuals 

when need for additional data becomes apparent during instruction. 
 
 F. The amount of time required for instruction on each item of equipment and 

system is specified in individual sections. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 
 

END OF SECTION 
 

Page 311 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01700-1
 Contract Closeouts 
 

SECTION 01700 
 

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL  
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Close-out Procedures 
 B. Final Cleaning 
 C. Adjusting 
 D. Project Record Documents 
 E. Operation and Maintenance Data 
 F. Warranties 
 G. Spare Parts and Maintenance Materials 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Section 01650 – Starting of Systems:  System start-up, testing, adjusting, 

and balancing. 
 B. Section 01730 – Operation and Maintenance Data 
 C. Section 01740 – Warranties and Bonds 
 
1.3 Closeout Procedures 
  
 A. Submit written certification that Contract Documents have been reviewed, 

Work has been inspected and that Work is complete in accordance with Contract 
Documents and ready for Engineer’s inspection. 

 B. Provide submittals to Engineer that are required by governing or other 
authorities. 

 C.  Submit final Application for Payment identifying total adjusted Contract 
Sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due. 

 
1.4 Final Cleaning 
 
 A. Execute final cleaning prior to final inspection. 
 B. Clean debris site and drainage systems. 
 C. Clean each building. 
 D. Clean site; sweep paved areas, rake clean landscaped surfaces. 
 E. Remove waste and surplus materials, rubbish and construction facilities 

from the site. 
 
1.5 Adjusting – Adjust all frames on structures. 
 
1.6 Project Record Documents 

Page 312 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01700-2
 Contract Closeouts 
 

 
 A. Maintain on site, one set of the following record documents; record actual 

revisions to the Work 
 
  1. Contract Drawings 
  2. Specifications 
  3. Addenda 
  4. Change Orders and other Modifications to the Contract 
  5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data and samples 
 
 B. Store Record Documents separate from documents used for construction. 
 C. Record information concurrent with construction progress. 
 D. Specifications:  Legibly mark and record at each Product section description 

of actual Products installed, including the following: 
  1. Manufacturer’s name and product model and number. 
  2. Product substitutions or alternate utilized. 
  3. Changes made by Addenda and Modification. 
 
 E. Record Documents and Shop Drawings:  Legibly mark each item to record 

actual construction including: 
  1. Measured depths of foundations in relation to finish first floor datum. 
  2. Measured horizontal and vertical locations of underground 

utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surface 
improvements. 

  3. Measured locations of internal utilities and appurtenances 
concealed in construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of 
the Work. 

  4. Field changes of dimension and detail. 
  5. Submit documents to Engineer with claim for final 

Application for Payment. 
 
1.7 Operation and Maintenance Data 
 
 A. Submit two sets prior to final inspection, bound in 8-1/2 x 11 inch (216 x 

279 mm) text pages, three D side ring capacity expansion binders with durable 
plastic covers. 

 B. Prepare binder covers with printed title “OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
INSTRUCTIONS”, title of project, and subject matter of binder when multiple 
binders are required. 

 C. Internally subdivide the binder contents with permanent page dividers, 
logically organized as described below; the tab titling clearly printed under 
reinforced laminated plastic tabs. 

 D. Contents:  Prepare a Table of Contents for each volume, with each Product 
or system description identified, type on 30 pound white paper. 

Page 313 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01700-3
 Contract Closeouts 
 

 E. Part 1:  Directory, listing names, addresses, and telephone numbers of 
Engineer, Contractor, Subcontractors and major equipment suppliers. 

 F. Part 2:  Operation and maintenance instructions, arranged by system 
process flow and subdivided by specification section.  For each category, identify 
names, addresses and telephone numbers of Subcontractors and suppliers.  
Identify the following: 

  1. Significant design criteria 
  2. List of equipment 
  3. Parts list for each component 
  4. Operating instructions 
  5. Maintenance instructions for equipment and systems. 
  6. Maintenance instructions for special finishes, including 

recommended cleaning methods and materials and special precautions 
identifying detrimental agents. 

 G. Part 3:  Project documents and certificates, including the following: 
 
  1. Shop drawings and product data. 
  2. Air and water balance reports. 
  3. Certificates 
  4. Photocopies of warranties and bonds. 
 H. Submit one copy of completed volumes in final form 15 days prior to final 

inspection.  This copy will be returned after final inspection, with Engineer 
comments.  Revised content of documents are required prior to final submittal. 

 I. Submit final volumes revised, within ten days after final inspection. 
 
1.8 Warranties 
 
 A. Provide duplicate notarized copies 
 B. Execute and assemble documents from Subcontractors, suppliers and 

manufacturers. 
 C. Provide Table of Contents and assemble in three D side ring binder with 

durable plastic cover. 
 D. Submit prior to final Application for Payment. 
 E. For items for Work delayed beyond date of Substantial Completion, provide 

updated submittal within ten days after acceptance, listing date of acceptance as 
start of warranty period. 

 F. Contractor shall give owner a 1-year warrantee on all work to start upon 
final acceptance. 

 
1.9 Spare Parts and Maintenance Materials 
 
 A. Provide products, spare parts, maintenance and extra materials in 

quantities specified in individual specification Sections. 
 B. Deliver to and place in location as directed; obtain receipt prior to final payment. 
 

Page 314 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01700-4
 Contract Closeouts 
 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXEUCTION 
Not Used 
 

END OF SECTION 
 

Page 315 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01730-1
 Operation and Maintenance Data 
 

SECTION 01730 
 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 A. Format and Content of Manuals. 
 B. Instruction of Owner’s Personnel. 
 C. Schedule of Submittals. 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Section 01300 – Submittals:  Submittals procedures 
 B. Section 01400 – Quality Control:  Manufacturer’s instructions 
 C. Section 01600 – Material and Equipment:  Systems demonstration 
 D. Section 01700 – Contract Close-out 
 E. Section 01740 – Warranties and Bonds 
 F. Individual Specifications Sections:  Specific requirements for operation and 

maintenance data. 
 
1.3 Quality Assurance 
  
 Prepare instructions and data by personnel experienced in maintenance and operation of 

described products. 
 
1.4 Format 
 
 A. Prepare data in the form of an instructional manual. 
 B. Binders:  Commercial quality, 8-1/2 x 11 inch (219 x 279 mm) three-ring 

binders with hardback, cleanable plastic covers.  When multiple binders are used, 
correlate data into related consistent groupings. 

 C. Cover:  Identify each binder with typed or printed title OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS; list title of Project. 

 D. Arrange content by process flow under section numbers and sequence of 
Table of Contents of this Project Manual. 

 E. Provide tabbed fly leaf for each separate product and system, with typed 
description of product and major component parts of equipment. 

 F. Text:  Manufacturer’s printed data, or typewritten data on 30 pound paper. 
 G. Drawings:  Provide with reinforced punched binder tab.  Bind in with text; 

fold larger drawings to size of text pages. 
 
1.5 Contents, Each Volume 
 

Page 316 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01730-2
 Operation and Maintenance Data 
 

 A. Table of Contents:  Provide title of Project; names, addresses and telephone 
numbers of Engineer, subconsultants and Contractor with name of responsible 
parties; schedule of products and systems, indexed to content of the volume. 

 B. For Each Product or System:  List names, address and telephone numbers 
of Subcontractors and suppliers, including local source of supplies and replacement 
parts. 

 C. Product Data:  Mark each sheet to clearly identify specific products and 
component parts, and data applicable to installation.  Delete inapplicable 
information. 

 D. Drawings:  Supplement product data to illustrate relations of component 
parts of equipment and systems to show control and flow diagrams.  (Do not use 
Project Record Documents as maintenance drawings). 

 E. Type Text:  As required to supplement product data.  Provide logical 
sequence of instructions for each procedure, incorporating manufacturer’s 
instructions specified in Section 01400. 

 F. Warranties and Bonds:  As specified in Section 01740. 
 
1.6 Manual for Materials and Finishes 
  
 A. Building Products, Applied Materials and Finishes:  Include product data, 

with catalog number, size, composition and color and texture designations.  
Provide information for re-ordering customer manufactured products. 

 B. Instructions for Care and Maintenance:  Include manufacturer’s 
recommendations for cleaning agents and methods, precautions against 
detrimental agents and methods, and recommended schedule for cleaning and 
maintenance. 

 C. Moisture Protection and Weather Exposed Products:  Include product data 
listing applicable reference standards, chemical composition and details of 
installation.  Provide recommendations for inspections, maintenance and repair. 

 D. Additional Requirements:  As specified in individual product specification 
Sections. 

 E. Provide a listing in Table of Contents for design data, with tabbed fly sheet 
and space for insertion of data. 

 
1.7 Manual for Equipment and Systems 
 
 A. Each Item of Equipment and Each System:  Include description of unit or 

system and component parts.  Identify function, normal operating characteristics, 
and limiting conditions.  Include performance curves, with engineering data and 
tests and complete nomenclature and commercial number of replaceable parts. 

 B. Panelboard Circuit Directories:  Provide electrical service characteristics, 
controls and communications. 

 C. Include color coded wiring diagrams as installed. 
 D. Operating Procedures:  Include start-up, break-in and routine normal 

operating instructions and sequences.  Include regulation, control, stopping, shut-

Page 317 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01730-3
 Operation and Maintenance Data 
 

down and emergency instructions.  Include summer, winter and any special 
operating instructions. 

 E. Maintenance Requirements:  Include routine procedures and guide for 
troubleshooting; disassembly, repair and reassembly instructions; and alignment, 
adjust, balancing and checking instructions. 

 F. Provide servicing and lubrication schedule and list of lubricants required. 
 G. Include manufacturer’s printed operation and maintenance instructions. 
 H. Include sequence of operation by controls manufacturer. 
 I. Provide original manufacturer’s parts list, illustrations, assembly drawings 

and diagrams required for maintenance. 
 J. Provide control diagrams by controls manufacturer as installed. 
 K. Provide Contractor’s coordination drawings with color coded piping 

diagrams as installed. 
 L. Provide charts of valve tag numbers, with location and function of each 

valve, keyed to flow and control diagrams. 
 M. Provide list of original manufacturer’s spare parts, current prices and 

recommended quantities to be maintained in storage. 
 N. Include test and balancing reports as specified in Section 01400. 
 O. Additional Requirements:  As specified in individual product specification 

Sections. 
 P. Provide a listing in Table of Contents for design data with tabbed fly sheet 

and space for insertion of data. 
 
1.8 Instruction of Owner Personnel 
 
 A. Before final inspection, instruct Owner’s designated personnel in operation, 

adjustment, and maintenance of products, equipment, and systems, at agreed 
upon times. 

 B. Use operation and maintenance manuals as basis for instruction.  Review 
contents of manual with personnel in detail to explain all aspects of operation and 
maintenance. 

 C. Prepare and insert additional data in Operation and Maintenance Manual 
when need for such data becomes apparent during instruction. 

 
1.9 Submittals 
 
 A. Submit two copies of preliminary draft or proposed formats and outlines of 

contents before start of Work.  Engineer will review draft and return one copy with 
comments. 

 B. For equipment, or component parts of equipment put into service during 
construction and operated by Owner, submit documents within ten days after 
acceptance. 

 C. Submit one copy of completed volumes in final form 15 days prior to final 
inspection.  Copy will be returned after final inspection, with Engineer comments.  
Revise content of documents a required prior to final submittal. 

Page 318 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01730-4
 Operation and Maintenance Data 
 

 D. Submit 4 copies of revised volumes of data in final form within ten days 
after final inspection. 

 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 

END OF SECTION 

Page 319 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01740-1
 Warranties and Bonds 
 

SECTION 01740 
 

WARRANTIES AND BONDS 
 

PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 Section Includes 
 
 A. Preparation and submittal. 
 B. Time and schedule of submittals. 
 
1.2 Related Sections 
 
 A. Section 00100 – Instructions to Bidders:  Bid Bonds. 
 B. General Conditions:  Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment 

Bonds, Warranty and Correction of Work 
 C. Section 01700 – Contract close-out:  Contract close-out procedures. 
 D. Section 01730 – Operation and Maintenance Data. 
 E. Individual Specifications Sections:  Warranties required for specific 

products or Work. 
 
1.3 Form of Submittals 
 
 A. Bind in commercial quality, 8-1/2 x 11 inch (216 - 279 mm) three-ring side 

binders with hardback, cleanable, plastic covers. 
 B. Label cover of each binder with typed or printed title WARRANTIES AND 

BONDS, with title of Project; name, address and telephone number of Contractor 
and equipment supplier; and name of responsible principal. 

 C. Table of Contents:  Neatly typed, in the sequence of the Table of Contents 
of the Project Manual, with each item identified with the number and title of the 
specification Section in which specified, and the name of the product or work item. 

 D. Separate each warranty or bond with index tab sheets keyed to the Table 
of Contents listing.  Provide full information, using separate typed sheets as 
necessary.  List Subcontractor, supplier, and manufacturer, with name, address and 
telephone number of responsible principal. 

 
1.4 Preparation of Submittals 
 
 A. Obtain warranties and bonds, executed in duplicate by responsible 

Subcontractors, suppliers, and manufacturers, within 10 days after completion of 
the applicable item or work.  Except for items put into use with the owner’s 
permission, leave date of beginning of time of warranty until the Date of Substantial 
Completion is determined. 

 B. Verify that documents are in proper form, contain full information, and are 
notarized.   

Page 320 of 596



 

Port OrchardMcCormick Woods Splash Pad Water Treatment Facility  01740-2
 Warranties and Bonds 
 

C. Co-execute submittals when required. 
 D. Retain warranties and bonds until time specified for submittal. 
1.5 Time of Submittals 
 
 A. For equipment or component of equipment put into service during 

construction with Owner’s permission, submit documents within 10 days after 
acceptance. 

 B. Make other submittals within 10 days after Date of Substantial Completion, 
prior to final Application for Payment. 

 C. For items of Work when acceptance is delayed beyond Date of Substantial 
Completion, submit within 10 days after acceptance, listing the date of acceptance 
as the beginning of the warranty period. 

 
1.6 WARRANTEES 
 
 A. Contractor shall provide to Owner a one-year non-conditional warrantee on 

all work to begin upon final acceptance. 
 B. Product warrantees are required as follows, but may be added to if owner 

deems necessary. 
 

Building materials and roofing 
Electrical equipment 
All pumps 
Hydro pneumatic tanks 
Media Filter 

 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
Not Used 
 

END OF SECTION 

Page 321 of 596



 

   
 

 

Page 322 of 596



 

Rev 1/29/18 by SEC 

City of Port Orchard    

McCormick Village Park Splash Pad Treatment Facility Installation,     Project # PW2022-008,     Contract #C075-22  
LD-67 

 Contract Documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

CONTRACT DRAWINGS 

Page 323 of 596



C
V
.
0
1

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

1

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

C
O

V
ER

 S
H

EE
T

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
G

.
d
w

g
 
C
V
.
0
1
 
2
/
7
/
2
0
2
2
 
7
:
2
7
 
A
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

MCCORMICK VILLAGE PARK

SPLASH PAD RETROFIT

00-0000.000

JANUARY 2022

INDEX OF DRAWINGS

LOCATION MAP

GENERAL

CV.01

G1.0

G2.0

C1.0

C1.1

A1.0

L1.0 
L2.0  
L4.1 
L4.2 
L4.3 
L4.4

E-1

E-2

E-3

E-4

E-5

E-6

#

ADDRESS:

3201 SW OLD CLIFTON ROAD

PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367

OWNER:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

216 PROSPECT STREET

PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366

DESIGN MODIFIED BY:

LEE H/ ODELL, PE

MURRAYSMITH, INC

PHONE: 971-285-7926

EMAIL: LEE.ODELL@MURRAYSMITH.US

ELECTRICAL:

INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS

STRUCTURAL:

JACKOLA

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE BEEN IN BUSINESS

UNDER THE SAME NAME THE LAST 5 CONTINUOUS

YEARS AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OR 3

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS WHICH ARE SIMILAR IN

TYPE, SIZE, AND SCOPE OR WORK REQUIRED FOR

THIS PROJECT.

2. THE SCOPE OR WORK FOR THIS PROJECT

CONSTITUTES AS PUBLIC WORK UNDER STATE LAW.

BIDDERS SHOULD TAKE INTO CONSIDERATION

STATUTORY LEGAL REQUIREMENTS, PARTICULARLY,

THE PAYMENT OR PREVAILING WAGES,

PAYMENT/PERFORMANCE BONDS AND SALES TAX

IMPLICATIONS IN MAKING THEIR BID.

3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING

CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO BID

SUBMISSION. ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN FIELD

CONDITIONS AND PROJECT INTENT/CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS AFFECTING THE COST OR THE  PROJECT

SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE IMMEDIATELY.

4. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OR THE CONTRACTOR

TO LOCATE ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

COST OR LOCATES IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OR

THE CONTRACTOR.

5. OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL

PERMITS.

6. THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS ARE NOT

COMPLETE UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE PROJECT

MANUAL, SPECIFICATIONS, AND BID FORM PROVIDED

BY THE CITY OR PORT ORCHARD THAT CONFORM TO

WASHINGTON STATE REGULATIONS.

7. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INCIDENTAL

TRAFFIC CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUAL ON TRAFFIC

CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) AND WASHINGTON

STATE MODIFICATIONS TO THE MUTCD.

8. AREAS DISTURBED OR DAMAGED BY

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED

OR RESTORED TO ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OR BETTER.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR

DOCUMENTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND ANY DAMAGES THAT

MAY OCCUR.

9. OWNER WILL FURNISH COMPACTION & MATERIAL

TESTING. IF CONTRACTOR RAILS TESTING, THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

ADDITIONAL TESTING UNTIL COMPACTION AND

MATERIALS MEET SPECIFICATION.

GENERAL NOTES

COVER SHEET

EXISTING AS–BUILT PLAN

EXISTING CONDITIONS

TESC PLAN

TESC DETAILS

MECHANICAL BUILDING

DEMOLITION PLAN

SCHEMATIC PIPING PLAN

DETAILS

WATER TREATMENT

WATER TREATMENT DETAILS

GRINDER PUMP DETAILS

ELECTRICAL GENERAL NOTES AND ABBREVIATIONS 
ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS LEGEND AND STANDARD DETAILS 
ELECTRICAL ONE LINE DIAGRAM AND PANEL SCHEDULE 
ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN

ELECTRICAL BUILDING POWER AND LIGHTING PLAN 
ELECTRICAL CIRCUIT SCHEDULE

STRUCTURAL NOTES

STRUCTURAL NOTES

STRUCTURAL PLANS

STRUCTURAL DETAILS

STRUCTURAL DETAILS

S0.00

S0.01

S1.00

S4.00

S4.01

Page 324 of 596



G
1
.
0

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

2

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
G

.
d
w

g
 
G

1
.
0
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
8
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 A

S
 B

U
IL

T 
P

LA
N

Page 325 of 596



S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

D

E E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

W

W

W

W

S

D

S

D

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

W

W

W

W

G
2
.
0

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

3

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T
I
O

N
S

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
G

.
d
w

g
 
G

2
.
0
 
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
1
:
2
8
 
A
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

KEY NOTES:

EXISTING SPRAY SYSTEM MANIFOLDS/VAULTS.

EXISTING SPRAY PARK CONTROL PANEL.

EXISTING ISOLATION VALVE.

EXISTING 2" WATER LINE.

EXISTING 1" BURIED ELECTRIC CONDUIT FROM RESTROOM BUILDING TO SPLASH

PAD CONTROLLER.

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION. PIPE SIZE BASED ON AS-BUILT

PROVIDED BY THE CITY. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SIZE ON SITE.

EXISTING 6" STORM DRAIN LINE. PIPE SIZE BASED ON AS-BUILT PROVIDED BY THE

CITY. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SIZE ON SITE.

EXISTING 8" KNIFE VALVE ON SEWER AND 8" TO 6" WYE WITH 6" KNIFE VALVE TYING

INTO STORM LINE. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SIZE ON SITE.

EXISTING 8" DRAIN LINE FROM SPRAY PAD.

EXISTING 2" WATER METER IN STANDARD METER BOX.

EXISTING 1-1/2" METER IN STANDARD METER BOX.

EXISTING 2" BRONZE GATE VALVE IN STANDARD VALVE BOX.

EXISTING 3" IN-GROUND DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY IN POLYPROPYLENE

VALVE BOX.

EXISTING CIRCUITS AND CONDUIT FROM ELECTRICAL PANEL BOX FOR SPLASH PAD

CONTROLLER.

EXISTING ELECTRICAL SERVICE IN RESTROOM FACILITY.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

NOTES:

1. ALL INFORMATION OBTAINED FROM PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS AND

PROVIDED AS-BUILT INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CITY. CONTRACTOR

IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING CONDITIONS AND SHALL NOTIFY OWNER

OF DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE: 1"=10'

EXISTING CONDITIONS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

3

15

14

390.70 FG

390.15 RIM

390.15 RIM

390.33 FG

389.12 TOP OF

SEWER/STORM

MANIFOLD

389.31 IE OF

STORM/SEWER

PIPE

386.19 FG

385.31 FG

389.44 FG

50' CATEGORY III

WETLAND BUFFER

Page 326 of 596



S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W
E
T
L

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

T
E
S

C
 
P

L
A

N

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
C
.
d
w

g
 
W

E
T
L
 
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
1
:
4
7
 
A
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES:

1. SCHEDULE - ALL REQUIRED SEDIMENTATION / EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES MUST BE

CONSTRUCTED AND IN OPERATION PRIOR TO ANY LAND CLEARING AND/OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION

TO ENSURE THAT THE TRANSPORT   OF SEDIMENT TO SURFACE WATERS, DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AND

ADJACENT PROPERTIES IS PREVENTED. THE TESC FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL

PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL (PAVING, STRUCTURE, RE-VEGETATION WITH TREES, SHRUBS,

GROUND COVER, ETC.) PER THE APPROVED PLANS IS IN PLACE.

2. IMPLEMENTATION - THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT

CONTROL (TESC) PLANS AND THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPLACEMENT AND UPGRADING

OF THE TESC FACILITIES IN COORDINATION WITH THE APPROVED PLANS AND/OR SWPPP IS THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR / TESC SUPERVISOR UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION IS

APPROVED AND SITE IS PERMANENTLY STABILIZED. DURING

THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, IT SHALL BE THE OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE

CONTRACTOR TO ADDRESS ANY NEW CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE CREATED BY THEIR ACTIVITIES

AND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FACILITIES, OVER AND ABOVE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS, AS MAY

BE NEEDED TO PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND WATER QUALITY OF THE RECEIVING

DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

3. INSPECTIONS BY CONTRACTOR - THE TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE

INSPECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR DAILY AND AT THE END OF EVERY RAINFALL, AND MAINTAINED

AS NECESSARY TO ENSURE THEIR CONTINUED FUNCTIONING UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION IS

APPROVED AND THE SITE HAS STABILIZED.

4. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) - ALL TESC FACILITIES SHALL CONFORM TO THE BEST

MANAGEMENT PRACTICES LISTED IN THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT MANUAL FOR WESTERN WASHINGTON AND THE APPROVED SWPPP.

5. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS - THE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL SYSTEMS DEPICTED

ON THESE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO BE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS TO MEET ANTICIPATED SITE

CONDITIONS. AS CONSTRUCTION PROGRESSES AND UNEXPECTED OR SEASONAL CONDITIONS

DICTATE, THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD ANTICIPATE THAT MORE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION

CONTROL FACILITIES WILL BE NECESSARY TO ENSURE COMPLETE SILTATION CONTROL ON THE

SITE. THE CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MEANS AND METHODS AND

SEQUENCING OF TESC MEASURES AND ENSURING WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS ARE MET.

6. APPROVALS - APPROVAL OF THIS TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL (TESC) PLAN

DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN APPROVAL OF PERMANENT ROAD OR DRAINAGE DESIGN (E.G., SIZE

AND LOCATION OF ROADS, PIPES, RESTRICTORS, CHANNELS, RETENTION FACILITIES, UTILITIES,

ETC.), BUT IS AN APPROVAL OF THE TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLANS

ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS FOR STORMWATER DISCHARGE

ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, INCLUDING OBTAINING THE APPROPRIATE PERMITS

AND APPROVALS.

7. CLEARING LIMITS / LIMITS OF WORK - THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CLEARING LIMITS SHOW ON

THIS PLAN SHALL BE CLEARLY FLAGGED BY A CONTINUOUS LENGTH OF ORANGE PROTECTION

FENCING PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. DURING CONSTRUCTION, NO DISTURBANCE BEYOND THE

CLEARING LIMITS SHALL BE PERMITTED. THE CLEARING LIMITS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE

CONTRACTOR / TESC SUPERVISOR UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED AND APPROVED.

8. CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE - THE FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE SHALL BE FOLLOWED

IN ORDER TO BEST MINIMIZE THE POTENTIAL FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL (ESC)

PROBLEMS:

● CLEAR AND GRUB SUFFICIENTLY FOR INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY EROSION AND

SEDIMENT CONTROL BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE MEASURES (BMPS);

● INSTALL TEMPORARY ESC BMPS, CONSTRUCTING SEDIMENT TRAPPING BMPS AS ONE OF

THE FIRST STEPS PRIOR TO GRADING;

● CLEAR, GRUB AND GRADE SUBJECT SITE;

● TEMPORARILY STABILIZE, THROUGH RE-VEGETATION OR OTHER APPROPRIATE BMPS,

SUBJECT SITE IN SITUATIONS WHERE SUBSTANTIAL CUT OR FILL SLOPES ARE A RESULT

OF THE SITE GRADING;

● PROTECT ALL PERMANENT STORMWATER FACILITIES UTILIZING THE APPROPRIATE BMPS;

REMOVE TEMPORARY ESC CONTROLS WHEN:

● PERMANENT ESC CONTROLS, WHEN APPLICABLE, HAVE BEEN COMPLETELY INSTALLED;

● ALL LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES THAT HAVE THE POTENTIAL TO CAUSE EROSION OR

SEDIMENTATION PROBLEMS HAVE CEASED; AND,

● VEGETATION HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED IN THE AREAS NOTED AS REQUIRING VEGETATION

ON THE ACCEPTED ESC PLAN ON FILE WITH THE LOCAL JURISDICTION.

9. EXISTING VEGETATED AREAS - RETAIN THE DUFF LAYER, NATIVE TOPSOIL, AND NATURAL

VEGETATION IN AN UNDISTURBED STATE TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICAL.

10. ADJACENT PROPERTIES - ALL PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT SITE SHALL BE

PROTECTED FROM SEDIMENT DEPOSITION AND RUNOFF.

11. STABILIZATION OF DISTURBED AREAS - ALL EXPOSED AND UNWORKED SOILS SHALL BE

STABILIZED WITH MULCHING, GRASS PLANTING, PLASTIC COVERING OR OTHER APPROVED

EROSION CONTROL TREATMENT APPLICABLE TO THE EXPOSED SOIL CONDITIONS AND THE TIME

OF YEAR IN QUESTION. FROM OCTOBER 1 TO APRIL 30, NO SOILS SHALL REMAIN UNSTABILIZED

FOR MORE THAN 2 DAYS. FROM MAY 1 TO SEPTEMBER 30, NO SOILS SHALL REMAIN UNSTABILIZED

FOR MORE THAN 7 DAYS. GRASS SEEDING ALONE WILL BE ACCEPTABLE ONLY DURING THE

MONTHS OF APRIL THRU SEPTEMBER INCLUSIVE. SEEDING MAY PROCEED OUTSIDE THE SPECIFIED

TIME PERIOD WHENEVER IT IS IN THE INTEREST OF THE CONTRACTOR, BUT MUST BE AUGMENTED

WITH MULCHING, NETTING, OR OTHER TREATMENT AS APPROVED BY THE LOCAL JURISDICTION.

12. FILTER FABRIC FENCE - FILTER FABRIC FENCES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ALONG THE

DOWNSLOPE EDGES OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE

CONTRACTOR UNTIL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETE AND THE SITE HAS STABILIZED. REGULAR

INSPECTIONS SHALL BE MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE FENCE IS FUNCTIONING PROPERLY, AND

ADDITIONAL INSPECTIONS SHALL BE MADE AFTER EACH LARGE RUNOFF PRODUCING STORM AND

DURING PROLONGED RAINFALL PERIODS. TRAPPED SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED

WHEN IT REACHES APPROXIMATELY ONE QUARTER THE HEIGHT OF THE FENCE. THE WASHED

GRAVEL BACKFILL SHALL BE REPLACED AND THE FILTER FABRIC CLEANED IF IT IS RENDERED

NONFUNCTIONAL BY EXCESSIVE SILT ACCUMULATION. POSTS SHALL BE SPACED A MAXIMUM OF 6

FEET APART, AND DRIVEN SECURELY INTO THE GROUND A MINIMUM OF 30 INCHES, WHERE

POSSIBLE. FILTER FABRIC JOINTS SHALL BE MADE ONLY AT A SUPPORT POST, WITH A 6 INCH

MINIMUM OVERLAP, WITH BOTH ENDS SECURELY FASTENED TO THE POST.

13. STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION - ANY CATCH BASINS, INLETS, OR TRENCH DRAINS

COLLECTING RUNOFF FROM THE SITE, WHETHER THEY ARE ON OR OFF THE SITE, SHALL HAVE

STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION PER THE CATCH BASIN INSERT DETAIL SHOWN ON THIS PLAN

SET. INSERTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL SUCH TIME THAT ALL

CONSTRUCTION IS APPROVED AND THE SITE HAS BEEN STABILIZED.

14. SEDIMENT ACCUMULATION - AT NO TIME SHALL MORE THAN ONE FOOT OF SEDIMENT BE

ALLOWED TO ACCUMULATE WITHIN A SEDIMENT FILTER THAT IS INSTALLED WITHIN A CATCH

BASIN. ALL CATCH BASINS AND CONVEYANCE LINES SHALL BE CLEANED PRIOR TO PAVING

ACTIVITIES. THE CLEANING OPERATION SHALL NOT FLUSH SEDIMENT-LADEN WATER INTO THE

DOWNSTREAM SYSTEM. ACCUMULATED SEDIMENTS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF IN A MANNER

APPROVED BY THE LOCAL JURISDICTION. ALL CATCH BASINS AND SEDIMENT FILTERS SHALL BE

INSPECTED FOR COMPLIANCE DAILY AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF A RAINFALL EVENT.

SCALE: 1"=20'

TESC PLAN

INLET PROTECTION

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE

SEDIMENT FENCING

TEMP CONSTRUCTION

FENCING (ORANGE)

LIMITS OF WORK

STAGING AREA

WETLAND AREA

WETLAND AREA BUFFER

BENCH MARK NOTE:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING

PROPERTY CORNERS AND BENCH MARKS. ANY DAMAGE

CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE

REMEDIED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

NOTES:

1. CONSTRUCTION ACCESS IS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE

ONLY, ACTUAL ROUTE AND EXTENTS TO BE

DETERMINED ON SITE AT THE

PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING.

2. RECOMMENDED SILT FENCE LOCATION. ADJUST AS

NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN SEDIMENT IN PROJECT

AREA.

3. TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCE SHALL BE

CHAIN LINK, 6 FEET TALL, WITH ABOVE GROUND POST

BASES. CONSTRUCTION FENCING TO BE ADJUSTED AS

NECESSARY TO ACCOMMODATE CONSTRUCTION

ACTIVITIES.

CONTRACTOR

STAGING AREA

TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION

FENCE, SEE NOTE 3

CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE

SEE NOTE 1

LIMITS OF WORK

TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION

FENCE, SEE NOTE 3

SILT FENCE

SEE NOTE 1

INLET PROTECTION,

TYP

A

C1.1

C

C1.1

B

C1.1

50' CATEGORY III

WETLAND BUFFER

100' CATEGORY II

WETLAND BUFFER

C
1.

0

Page 327 of 596



C
1
.
1

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

5

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

T
E
S

C
 
D
ET
A
IL
S

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
C
.
d
w

g
 
C
1
.
1
 
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
3
:
0
1
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

Page 328 of 596



A
1
.
0

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

6

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

M
E
C

H
A

N
I
C

A
L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
A
.
d
w

g
 
A
1
.
0
 
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
5
:
0
5
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

6

Page 329 of 596



S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

S

D

W

W

S

D

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

L
1
.
0

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

7

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

D
EM
O
LI
TI
O
N

 
P

L
A

N

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
1
.
0
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

SCALE: 1"=20'

DEMOLITION PLAN

KEY NOTES:

INTERCEPT EXISTING WATER LINE AND REROUTE TO MECHANICAL BUILDING FOR 
DISTRIBUTION.

NEW SPRAY PARK CONTROL PANEL TO BE LOCATED IN NEW BUILDING.

REMOVE TURF FOR PIPE PLACEMENT AND REPLACE WITH SOD AS REQUIRED. REPAIR 
AND REPLACE ALL IRRIGATION AS REQUIRED.

REMOVE GRAVEL PATH SECTION FOR PIPE PLACEMENT AS REQUIRED AND REPLACE 
PATH WITH GRAVEL MATERIAL THAT MATCHES EXISTING. SEE SHEET L1.4/DETAIL 8.

APPROXIMATE CLEAR AND GRUB LIMITS FOR MECHANICAL BUILDING, RESERVOIR, 
AND OVERFLOW VAULT.

REMOVE AND REPLACE TWO SECTIONS OF CONCRETE WALK, EXPANSION JOINT TO 
EXPANSION JOINT. SEE SHEET L4.1/DETAILS 6 AND 7.

REMOVED EXISTING SECTION OF SANITARY SEWER LINE TO ALLOW FOR MANHOLE 
AND STRAINER.

ABANDON EXISTING ELECTRICAL. REROUTE FROM RESTROOM BUILDING TO 
MECHANICAL BUILDING PER SHEET L2.0.

PRESERVE AND PROTECT EXISTING TURF AND PLANTINGS AROUND PICNIC SHELTER.

REMOVE AND REPLACE CONCRETE SECTION TO UPSIZE ELECTRICAL CONDUIT.

REPAIR AND REPLACE ANY TURF DAMAGED FROM CONSTRUCTION ACCESS.

LIMIT OF WORK.

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO BID SUBMISSION. ANY

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN FIELD CONDITIONS AND PROJECT INTENT / CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AFFECTING THE COST OF

THE PROJECT SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IMMEDIATELY.

2. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE THAT ALL TREE PROTECTION MEASURES HAVE BEEN INSTALLED

PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD STANDARDS.

3. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW PROJECT LIMITS FOR QUANTITY AND TYPE OF PLANTINGS, STRUCTURES, OBSTRUCTIONS, ROCK

AND DEBRIS AT THE TIME OF BIDDING AND SHALL INCORPORATE ALL REMOVALS/DISPOSAL IN THEIR BID.

4. LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE

CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL UTILITIES AND THEIR CONNECTION POINTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. COST OF LOCATES IS

THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED TO THE

EXISTING UTILITIES AND UTILITY STRUCTURES THAT ARE TO REMAIN. COORDINATE WITH THE APPROVED AGENCIES AS

NEEDED PRIOR TO DEMOLITION.

5. ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES, TREES, SHRUBS, FENCES, GRAVEL WALKS, FOUNDATIONS, ASPHALT AND CONCRETE WHERE

DESIGNATED FOR DEMOLITION/REMOVAL, ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM SITE UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN OR DIRECTED.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL WASTE MATERIAL AND DEBRIS FROM SITE AND DISPOSE OF LEGALLY IN SUITABLE

LOCATIONS OFFSITE.

6. OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS, INCLUDING RIGHT–OF–WAY OBSTRUCTION PERMITS.

7. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INCIDENTAL TRAFFIC CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE MANUAL ON TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) AND WASHINGTON STATE MODIFICATIONS TO THE MUTCD.

8. DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT TO THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, THE TRUCK ROUTE, SCHEDULE OF DEMOLITION,

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN, METHOD OF DEMOLITION, AND DUST AND NOISE CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED TO OBTAIN

OBSTRUCTION PERMIT.

9. PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY DEMOLITION OR GROUND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL BMP'S

FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL. MEASURES SHALL INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO; CONSTRUCTION ACCESS,

SILT FENCE AND INLET PROTECTION.

10. TREE PRUNING, REMOVAL, AIR SPADING AND ROOT PRUNING SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER A CITY OF PORT ORCHARD

ARBORIST SUPERVISION. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE DIRECTLY WITH CITY OF PORT ORCHARD ARBORIST TO

SCHEDULE WORK.

11. OWNER WILL FURNISH COMPACTION & MATERIAL TESTING. IF CONTRACTOR FAILS TESTING, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ADDITIONAL TESTING UNTIL COMPACTION AND MATERIALS MEET SPECIFICATION.

12. DEMOLITION LIMITS ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY. ACTUAL DEMOLITION LIMITS TO BE DETERMINED BY AWARDED

CONTRACTOR.

13. IF MATERIALS SUSPECTED OF CONTAINING HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE ENCOUNTERED, DO NOT DISTURB;

IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AND OWNER.

14. AREAS DISTURBED OR DAMAGED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OR RESTORED TO ORIGINAL

CONDITIONS OR BETTER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DOCUMENTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

ACTIVITIES AND ANY DAMAGE THAT MAY OCCUR.

2 4

8

4

4

3

3

6

10

12

11

11

EXISTING PICNIC SHELTER

EXISTING

RESTROOMS

EXISTING

SPLASH PAD

Page 330 of 596



S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

W

W

W

W

1

"

1

"

2

"

4

"

8

"

3

"

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

L
2
.
0

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

8

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

S
C

H
E
M

A
T
I
C

 
P

I
P

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
2
.
0
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

SCALE: 1"=20'

SCHEMATIC PIPING PLAN

KEY NOTES:

MECHANICAL BUILDING. SEE DETAIL 1/SHEET L4.0.

WATER SUPPLY LINE TO EYEWASH STATIONS.

EYE WASH STATION.

4" SUPPLY.

2" AUTO FILL LINE.

3" FILTER RETURN

NOT USED.

NOT USED.

3" BACKWASH/WASTE.

4" FLOOR DRAIN.

ELECTRICAL CONDUIT TO MECHANICAL BUILDING. SEE

ELECTRICAL PLAN.

NOT USED.

NOT USED.

NOT USED.

EXISTING CONTROL PANEL TO BE SALVAGED AND RELOCATED

INSIDE MECHANICAL BUILDING.

CONDUIT TO ACTIVATION BOLLARD. SEE ELECTRICAL PLAN.

2" CONDUIT TO EXISTING VAULT.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

PLUMBING NOTES:

1. ADJUSTMENT OF SPLASH PAD IMPROVEMENTS MAY BE REQUIRED DUE TO EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS. NOTIFY

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES FOUND BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH OTHER TRADES TO PLACE PIPE, INSTALL MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT INCLUDING

CONNECTION TO POWER AND UTILITIES, INSTALLATION OF FIXTURES, AND OTHER WORK INTEGRAL TO THE SUCCESSFUL

INSTALLATION OF SPLASH PAD MECHANICAL AND PLUMBING SYSTEM.

3. PIPING LOCATIONS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY AND SHOULD ONLY BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION REFERENCE.

4. ALL PIPING TEES SHOULD BE EQUAL IN SIZE TO THAT OF THE LARGEST CONNECTED PIPE.

5. ALL PIPING TO SPLASH PAD COMPONENTS TO BE INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR INCLUDING PIPE, VALVES, RITTINGS,

BOLTS, NUTS, GASKETS AND ANY PIPE SUPPORTS OR HANGERS.

6. ALL PIPING INSIDE VAULTS SHALL BE SCHEDULE 80 PVC PRESSURE PIPE AND RITTINGS. ALL PIPING OUTSIDE VAULTS

SHALL BE SCHEDULE 40 PVC PRESSURE PIPE AND RITTINGS.

7. EVERY PIECE OF EQUIPMENT SHOULD BE CONNECTED BY UNIONS ON THE INLET AND OUTLET SIDES TO ALLOW ROR

MAINTENANCE, REMOVAL, AND REPLACEMENTS.

8. ALL SUPPLY AND DISCHARGE PIPING SHALL HAVE A UNIRORM SLOPE BACK TO THE MECHANICAL BUILDING AND WATER

RESERVOIR TO ENSURE PROPER DRAINAGE DURING COLD WEATHER. IR A WATER TRAP IS UNAVOIDABLE, EITHER DRAIN

VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE LOW POINT OR PIPES SHOULD BE BLOWN OUT AND PLUGGED TO AVOID RREEZING.

9. ALL WALKS AND LANDSCAPE AREAS TO BE RESTORED TO ORIGINAL CONDITIONS ONCE WORK IS COMPLETE. PHOTO

DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY WORK.

10. ELECTRICAL COMPONENTS ARE SHOWN ROR LOCATION RERERENCE ONLY.

11. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SUBMITTALS TO OWNER FOR ALL EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS INTENDED FOR USE. PUMP

SYSTEMS MAY BE PROVIDED AS INDIVIDUAL COMPONENTS OR AS 'SKID' SYSTEM. ONLY APPROVED EQUIPMENT AND

MATERIALS SHALL BE

UTILIZED.

12. PRESSURE TESTING OF NEW PIPE IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO BACKFILL.

12.1. TEST SPLASH PAD FILTRATION SYSTEM PIPING HYDROSTATICALLY AT A PRESSURE OF 80 PSIG FOR A FOUR

HOUR DURATION.

12.2. TEST SLASH PAD WATER MAKE–UP SYSTEM PIPING HYDROSTATICALLY AT LINE PRESSURE OR 80 PSIG, 

WHICHEVER IS GREATER, FOR A FOUR HOUR DURATION.

12.3. TEST SPLASH PAD DRAIN PIPING HYDROSTATICALLY AT A PRESSURE OF 30 PSIG FOR A TWO–HOUR DURATION.

12.4. WORK MAY BE TESTED IN SECTIONS, IF NECESSARY, FOR CONVENIENCE. IN THIS CASE, TEST OF LAST 

SECTION SHALL INCLUDE ALL SECTIONS BETWEEN PREVIOUSLY TESTED SECTIONS AND SECTION DIRECTLY

UNDER TEST.

12.5. FURNISH ALL LABOR AND MATERIALS REQUIRED TO MAKE TEST, AND PERFORM TESTING IN THE PRESENCE OF

THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

12.6. SHOULD ANY PIECE OF EQUIPMENT, APPARATUS, MATERIALS, OR WORK FAIL IN ANY OF THESE TEST, 

IMMEDIATELY REMOVE AND REPLACE WITH PERFECT MATERIAL, AND RETEST THE PORTION OF THE WORK 

REPLACED.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A MINIMUM TEN (10) FEET OF HORIZONTAL SEPARATION BETWEEN WATER PIPE AND

PIPE CARRYING NON POTABLE WATER. AT CROSSINGS, PROVIDE A MINIMUM VERTICAL CLEARANCE OF 24 INCHES

BETWEEN WATER PIPE (ABOVE) AND PIPE CARRYING NON–POTABLE WATER (BELOW). INSTALLATIONS FOR PIPE

CARRYING NON–POTABLE WATER MAY BE INSTALLED AT A CLEARANCE OF LESS THAN THOSE STATED ABOVE IF THE

NON–POTABLE LINE IS SLEEVED. THE SLEEVE PIPE SHALL BE AT LEAST TWENTY (20) FEET IN LENGTH AND CENTERED ON

THE CROSSING TO PROVIDED FOR A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF TEN (10) FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE

CROSSING, MEASURED PERPENDICULAR TO THE CROSSED LINE. EACH END OF THE SLEEVE SHALL BE SEALED WITH A

FERNCO RUBBER COUPLER.

14. UTILITY PIPE AND CONDUITS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH CONTINUOUS WARNING TAPE DIRECTLY OVER PIPING AT

DEPTHS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD. WARNING TAPE SHALL ALSO BE INSTALLED AT OUTSIDE

EDGE OF UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES.

1

EXISTING PICNIC

SHELTER

EXISTING

RESTROOMS

EXISTING

SPLASH PAD

2" CONDUIT TO EXISTING VAULT.

NOT USED.

POINT OF CONNECTION TO EXISTING 2" WATER LINE.

2" POTABLE WATER SUPPLY.

DRAIN LINE FROM SPLASH PAD TO RESERVOIR.

APPROXIMATELY 100 LF, 6% SLOPE.

LINE TO SANITARY SEWER LINE.

NOT USED.

PRECAST Ø30" VAULT WITH SOLID LID. STRUCTURE SHALL BE

CORED ON SITE (NO KNOCK-OUTS). PROVIDE

DOWN-TURNED ELBOW WITH PIPE EXTENSION ON EFFLUENT

OUTLET TO FORM WATER SEAL IN VAULT.

RIM EL: 391.35 - RAISE SURROUNDING GRADE TO MATCH

STRUCTURE RIM.

SEE SHEET L4.1/DETAIL 5

IE 4" PRESSURIZED EVACUATION PIPE IN: 388.97

IE 8" SS OUT: 388.31

EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPE TO REMAIN AND PROTECT IN

PLACE.

APPROXIMATE AREA TO BE REGRADED TO ACCOMMODATE TOP

OF STRUCTURES (EL 391.35).

PIPE CROSSINGS; REFER TO PLUMBING NOTE 13 FOR

CLEARANCE AND SLEEVING REQUIREMENTS.

EXISTING HOSE BIB.

4' WIDE CONCRETE WALK ALONG THE WEST AND SOUTH SIDE

OF THE MECHANICAL BUILDING.

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

2

3

4

5

6

10

9

3015

11

23

28

26

22

16

21

20

18

17

25

27

24-30" BERM

AROUND VAULTS

29

EXISTING

RESTROOMS

PAVING NOTE:

COMPLY WITH WSDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION

5–05 AND THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE (ACI) 301

REQUIREMENTS FOR MEASURING, MIXING,

TRANSPORTING, AND PLACING CEMENT CONCRETE

PAVEMENT.

Page 331 of 596



L
4
.
1

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

9

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

D
E
T
A

I
L
S

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
4
.
1
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

<NOT USED>

Page 332 of 596



L
4
.
2

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

1
0

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

W
A

T
E
R

 
T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
4
.
2
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

PH/CL2

ANALYZER &

CONTROLLER

3 X 120 GALLON

PRESSURE TANKS

3 X 120 GALLON

PRESSURE TANKS

2"

2"

3"

1"

2"

1
"

1
"

P

BACKWASH

FILTER

LOCAL

CONTROL

PANEL

FLOW FROM

SPLASH PAD

DRAINS

2HP

GRINDER

PUMP

STATION

CHECK

VALVE

PLUG

VALVE

2HP

BOOSTER

PUMP

PRESSURE

RELIEF

VALVE

FROM CITY

WATER

SUPPLY

2"

PRESSURE SUSTAINING

VALVE OPENS IF

PRESSURE IS BELOW

10 PSI

PRESSURE SUSTAINING

VALVE OPENS IF

PRESSURE IS BELOW

10 PSI

P
H

 
A
D

J
U

S
T
M

E
N

T

C
H

L
O

R
I
N

E

SPLASH PAD

SOLENOID

VALVES IN

EXITING

BACKFLOW

PREVENTER

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
A
L
 
P
A
N

E
L

HYDROPNUEMATIC TANKS: WELL XTROL 119

GALLON TANKS 26" DIA.

150 PSIG WORKING PRESSURE

PROVIDE PRESSURE SWITCH FOR EACH SET

OF THREE TANKS

PH/CL2 ANALYZER CONTROLLER,

HACH CLT10SC WITH HACH SC200

CONTROLLER, SEE DETAIL 3

S

NEW AQUATIX

SOLENOID CONTROL PANEL

AQUATIX@PLAYSI.COM

877-632-0503

5.7"

5
.
7
"

19.5"

1
6
.
1
3
"

DETAIL 3: PH/CL2 ANALYZER & CONTROLLER

HACH CL10SC

HACH SC200 CONTROLLER

2"

(
S
E
E
 
N

O
T
E
 
2
0
 
O

N
 
S
H

E
E
T
 
L
2
.
0
)

Page 333 of 596



L
4
.
3

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

1
1

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

W
A

T
E
R

 
T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 
D

E
T
A

I
L
S

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
4
.
3
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

Page 334 of 596



L
4
.
4

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

N
E
M

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

1
2

X
X
X

X
X
X

L
H

O

G
R

I
N

D
E
R

 
P

U
M

P
 
D

E
T
A

I
L
S

G
:
\
P
D

X
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
\
3
0
2
2
 
-
 
P
o
r
t
 
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
 
-
 
V
a
l
u
e
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
S
t
u
d
y
\
C
A
D

\
S
h
e
e
t
s
\
2
1
-
3
0
2
2
-
W

A
-
L
.
d
w

g
 
L
4
.
4
 
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
4
3
 
P
M

 
N

I
C
K
.
M

C
F
A
D

D
I
N

 
2
3
.
0
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

Page 335 of 596



1.0

1.630 / 0.567

1.304/ 0.542

92 MPH

125 PSF

30.0 PSF

I

LIGHT FRAMED WALL SYSTEM W/ 

WOOD STRUCTURAL PANELS

D

1.7 KIPS

1.0

2. FLOOR LIVE LOAD

3. ROOF LIVE LOAD -

4. ROOF SNOW LOAD

    A. THE GROUND SNOW LOAD, Pg -

    B. FLAT-ROOF SNOW LOAD, Pf -

    C. SNOW EXPOSURE FACTOR, Ce -

    D. SNOW LOAD IMPORTANCE FACTOR, I -

    E. THERMAL FACTOR, Ct -

5. WIND LOAD

    A. BASIC WIND SPEED (3-SECOND GUST) -

    B. WIND IMPORTANCE FACTOR-

    C. BUILDING CATEGORY -

    D. WIND EXPOSURE -

6. EARTHQUAKE DESIGN DATA

   A. SEISMIC IMPORTANCE FACTOR -

   D. SPECTRAL RESPONSE COEFFICIENTS SDS / SD1 -

   E. SITE CLASS -

   H. BASE SHEAR

   F. SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY

   G. BASIC SEISMIC FORCE RESISTING SYSTEM-

15 PSF1. ROOF DEAD LOAD

   B.  OCCUPANCY CATEGORY-

   C. MAPPED SPECTRAL RESPONSE ACCELERATIONS Ss / S1 -

   I. SEISMIC RESPONSE COEFFICIENT Cs

   J. RESPONSE MODIFICATION FACTOR

   K. ANALYSIS PROCEDURE USED

I

0.201

6.5

EQUIVALENT LATERAL FORCE

C

NOTE: SEE  UNBALANCED 

SNOW LOADS ON 6/S0.00

B.  DESIGN LOADS

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

A. GOVERNING CODES AND GENERAL NOTES

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (IBC) 2015

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS (ASCE)-  MINIMUM DESIGN LOADS FOR BUILDINGS & OTHER STRUCTURES- ASCE 7-16

AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE (ACI) - BUILDING CODE & COMMENTARY ACI 318-14

AMERICAN FOREST & PAPER ASSOCIATION (AF&PA) - NATIONAL DESIGN SPECIFICATION FOR WOOD CONSTRUCTION NDS 2018 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TIMBER CONSTRUCTION (AITC) 9TH EDITION

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING OR HAVING LOCATED THE BUILDING ON THE SITE AND VERIFYING ALL 

FOUNDATION DIMENSIONS, AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS FROM EASEMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES WITH THE ARCHITECT PRIOR 

TO CONSTRUCTION.

D

20 PSF

1.0

0.8

1.2

25.0 PSF

CONCRETE

A. SEE SOILS AND GEOTECHNICAL NOTES FOR SITE PREP AND STRUCTURAL FILL REQUIREMENTS ON THIS SHEET FOR SUBGRADE PREP.

B. ALL CEMENT IN CONCRETE TO CONFORM TO ASTM C150 SPECIFICATION FOR PORTLAND CEMENT.

C. ALL AGGREGATE TO CONFORM TO ASTM C33 SPECIFICATION FOR CONCRETE AGGREGATES.

D. CONCRETE SUPPLIER TO MIX BASED ON THEIR TESTING TO ASSURE THIS MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH PER ACI 318. IN THE 

ABSENCE OF SUFFICIENT TEST DATA, CONCRETE PROPORTIONING SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 318. 

E. THE MAXIMUM NOMINAL AGGREGATE SIZE SHALL BE ONE FIFTH THE NARROWEST DIMENSION BETWEEN THE FORMS OR ONE 

THIRD THE DEPTH OF THE SLAB, OR THREE-FOURTHS THE MINIMUM CLEAR SPACING BETWEEN INDIVIDUAL REINFORCING BARS 

OR WIRES, WHICHEVER APPLIES. THESE PROVISIONS ARE TO ASSURE CONCRETE PLACEMENT WITHOUT VOIDS OR HONEYCOMBS 

AND MAY BE WAIVED ONLY BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL IF THEY JUDGE THAT LARGER SIZES ARE ADEQUATE BECAUSE OF 

WORKABILITY AND METHODS OF CONSOLIDATION.

F. CONCRETE CURING (OTHER THAN HIGH-EARLY) SHALL BE MAINTAINED ABOVE A TEMPERATURE OF 50°F AND IN A MOIST 

CONDITION FOR AT LEAST THE FIRST SEVEN DAYS AFTER PLACEMENT.  HIGH EARLY CONCRETE SHALL BE CURED ABOVE 50°F AND 

IN A MOIST CONDITION FOR AT LEAST THE FIRST THREE DAYS.

G. ADEQUATE EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR HEATING CONCRETE MATERIALS AND PROTECTING CONCRETE DURING 

FREEZING OR NEAR-FREEZING WEATHER.  ALL CONCRETE MATERIALS, REINFORCEMENT, FORMS, FILLERS, AND GROUND WHICH 

THE CONCRETE IS TO BE IN CONTACT WITH IS TO BE FREE OF FROST.  FROZEN MATERIALS OR MATERIALS CONTAINING ICE SHALL 

NOT BE USED.

H. DURING HOT WEATHER, PROPER ATTENTION SHALL BE GIVEN TO INGREDIENTS, PRODUCTION METHODS, HANDLING, PLACING, 

PROTECTION, AND CURING TO PREVENT EXCESSIVE CONCRETE TEMPERATURES AND EVAPORATION THAT MAY IMPAIR REQUIRED 

STRENGTH OR SERVICEABILITY OF THE MATERIAL.

I. ALL FOUNDATIONS SHALL BE MECHANICALLY CONSOLIDATED.  VIBRATORS SHALL BE INSERTED IN PREVIOUS POURED FRESH 

CONCRETE TO PREVENT COLD JOINTS WHEN MULTIPLE LAYER OF CONCRETE ARE PLACED IN A WALL.

J. CONDUITS, PIPES, AND SLEEVES SHALL BE ALLOWED ONLY WHERE NOTED ON THE PLANS.  ANY ADDITIONAL ALTERATIONS ARE 

NOT PERMITTED WITHOUT ENGINEER APPROVAL THAT IT WILL NOT COMPROMISE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY.

K. THE SURFACE OF ALL CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE CLEANED AND LAITANCE REMOVED.  IMMEDIATELY BEFORE NEW 

CONCRETE IS PLACED, JOINTS SHALL BE WETTED AND STANDING WATER REMOVED.  PROVISIONS SHALL BE MADE TO TRANSFER 

SHEAR FORCES THROUGH THE CONSTRUCTION JOINT.

L. INTERIOR SLAB ON GRADE SHALL BE CLASS 1 W/ A NORMAL STEEL TROWELED FINISH.  TOTAL AIR CONTENT SHALL NOT EXCEED 

3%.  FLOOR SHALL BE WITHIN 1/8" PER 10 FT FOR FLATNESS REQUIREMENTS. SLAB SHALL BE SEALED WITH A HIGH SOLID CONTENT 

SOLVENT BASED CURE & SEAL, EUCLID SUPER DIAMOND OR APPROVED EQUAL       

M. CONCRETE IN SIDEWALKS OR EXTERIOR SLABS THAT WILL BE EXPOSED TO FREEZING/THAWING OR DEICING CHEMICALS SHALL 

HAVE A MINIMUM 0.45 WATER/CEMENTITIOUS RATIO BY WEIGHT FOR NORMAL WEIGHT AGGREGATE CONCRETE AND BE 4000 PSI 

MINIMUM.

N. ALL REINFORCING BARS SPECIFIED SHALL BE DEFORMED BARS AT LEAST GRADE 60.

O. ALL BENDING OF REINFORCING MATERIAL SHALL BE DONE COLD AND MINIMUM BEND DIAMETER SHALL BE 6 TIMES THE 

NOMINAL BAR DIAMETER FOR #3-#8 BAR AND 8 TIMES THE NOMINAL BAR DIAMETER FOR #9-#11 BARS.  REINFORCEMENT 

PARTIALLY IMBEDDED IN CONCRETE MAY BE FIELD BENT.

P. REINFORCEMENT, ANCHORS AND EMBEDDED ITEMS SHALL BE ACCURATELY PLACED AND SUPPORTED BEFORE CONCRETE IS 

PLACED AND SHALL BE SECURED AGAINST DISPLACEMENT WITHIN TOLERANCES OF SECTION 1907.5 OF THE CURRENT VERSION OF 

CURRENT IBC.

Q. STANDARD HOOK ON REINFORCING BAR SHALL BE:

1. 180° BEND PLUS 4d EXTENSION, BUT NOT LESS THAN 2 1/2" AT FREE END OF BAR.

2. 90° BEND PLUS 12d EXTENSION AT FREE END OF BAR.

3. FOR STIRRUP AND TIE HOOKS: SEE PLANS AND DETAILS  

R. MINIMUM REBAR LAPS - FOR #3-15", #4-20", #5-24 & #6-30" WITH A CLEAR SPACING OF NOT LESS THAN 2d AND CLEAR COVER OF 

NOT LESS THAN d.  ALL OTHER SPLICES CONDITIONS SHALL BE BY THE EOR AND ILLUSTRATED ON FOUNDATION PLAN & DETAIL 

SHEETS.       

S. REFER TO TABLE BELOW FOR MINIMUM COVER AND TOTAL AIR CONTENT FOR CONCRETE IN DIFFERENT SERVICE CONDITIONS.

No. 11 BAR AND SMALLER

CONCRETE NOT EXPOSED TO WEATHER OR IN CONTACT WITH THE GROUND:

3/4

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE (NON-PRESTRESSED)

CONCRETE EXPOSED TO EARTH OR WEATHER:

No. 5 BAR, W31 OR D31 WIRE AND SMALLER

CONCRETE CAST AGAINST & PERMANENTLY EXPOSED TO EARTH 3

1-1/2

MINIMUM COVER (IN)DESCRIPTION

CONCRETE PROTECTION FOR REINFORCEMENT

FOOTINGS

INTERIOR SLAB

EXTERIOR SLAB

3000 PSI

4000 PSI

4000 PSI

28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH

5/3

SLUMP (IN) MAX/MIN

.5

.45

.45

MAX W/C RATIO

6 +/- 1.5%

3 MAX 

6 +/- 1.5%

AIR CONTENT (%)

NOTE: SLAB WITH SUPER PLASTIZER SHALL HAVE A SLUMP OF 6 1/2"

5/3

5/3

WOOD FRAMING

A. WOOD IBC CHAPTER 23

1. GRADE STAMPED DOUGLAS FIR/LARCH (SEE LUMBER GRADES).

2. NAILS:  COMMON WIRE   UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. EDGE OR END DISTANCES IN THE DIRECTION OF STRESS SHALL NOT 

BE LESS THAN ONE HALF OF THE REQUIRED PENETRATION. THE SPACING CENTER TO CENTER OF NAILS IN THE DIRECTION 

OF STRESS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN THE REQUIRED PENETRATION. HOLES FOR NAILS, WHERE NECESSARY TO PREVENT 

SPLITTING, SHALL BE BORED TO A DIAMETER SMALLER THAN THAT OF THE NAIL.

3. ANCHOR BOLTS (FOUNDATION ANCHOR BOLTS) MINIMUM REQUIRED: PROVIDE  5/8 INCH DIAMETER ANCHOR OR 

MACHINE BOLTS WITH A MINIMUM OF 7 INCHES EMBEDMENT INTO THE CONCRETE AND WITHIN 12 INCHES OF EACH END 

OF EACH PLATE. SPACE ANCHORS AT 48 INCHES ON CENTER UNO. ANCHORS SHALL BE LOCATED A MAXIMUM OF 2 INCHES 

FROM THE FACE OF STUD RECEIVING WOOD STRUCTURAL PANELS. ANCHOR BOLT HOLES 1/32 TO 1/16 INCH LARGER THAN 

THE ANCHOR BOLT DIAMETER. HOLES MORE THAN 1/16 INCH LARGER THAN THE ANCHOR BOLT SHALL BE EPOXY FILLED 

UNDER THE CONTINUOUS SUPERVISION OF A LICENSED SPECIAL INSPECTOR.

4. SQUARE STEEL PLATE WASHERS (PW): ANCHOR BOLTS, BOLTS, LAGS AND NUTS, NOTED PW, SHALL BE SQUARE STEEL 

PLATE WASHERS:

BOLT DIAM THICKNESS SIZE

(IN) (IN) (IN)

1/2                   3/16                      2 X 2

5/8 1/4 2 1/2X2 1/2    

3/4 5/16 2 3/4X2 3/4

7/8 5/16 3X3

1 3/8 3 1/2X3 1/2

5. CUT STEEL WASHERS: FOR BOLTS, LAGS AND NUTS, UNO.

6. FRAMING CONNECTORS: PER MANUFACTURER'S APPROVED PRODUCT EVALUATION REPORTS ICC APPROVED AND 

INSTALLED ACCORDINGLY. SIZE AND NUMBER OF NAILS TO BE MAXIMUM SPECIFIED BY THE MANUFACTURER UNO.

7. PRESERVATIVE TREATED WOOD: WOOD EXPOSED TO THE WEATHER; FOUNDATION PLATES ON CONCRETE SLABS, 

FOUNDATIONS WHICH ARE IN DIRECT CONTACT WITH EARTH SHALL BE TREATED WOOD WITH PRESERVATIVE RETENTION 

AS REQUIRED FOR USE. NEWLY EXPOSED SURFACES RESULTING FROM FIELD CUTTING, BORING OR HANDLING SHALL BE 

FIELD TREATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AWPA M-4.

8. TOP PLATES: TWO PIECES, SAME SIZE AS STUDS, STAGGER SPLICES AND CONNECT PER SCHEDULE.

9. CUTTING AND NOTCHING: DO NOT CUT, BORE, COUNTERSINK OR NOTCH WOOD MEMBERS EXCEPT WHERE SHOWN IN 

THE DETAILS. HOLES THROUGH PLATES, STUDS AND DOUBLE PLATES IN WALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED 40 % THE MEMBER 

WIDTH AND SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE CENTER OF THE MEMBER. SEE DETAILS  ON FRAMING DRAWINGS. 

10. GALVANIZING: ALL EXPOSED STEEL TIMBER HARDWARE, FASTENERS AND CONNECTORS.

11. TRIMMERS AND HEADER JOISTS SHALL BE DOUBLED OR OF LUMBER OF EQUIVALENT CROSS SECTION WHERE THE SPAN OF 

THE HEADER EXCEEDS 4 FT.

12. NOT LESS THAN 3 STUDS OR LUMBER OF EQUIVALENT CROSS SECTION SHALL BE INSTALLED AT EACH CORNER OF ALL EXT. 

WALLS.

B. LUMBER GRADES DOUGLAS FIR/LARCH IBC CHAPTER 23

COMPLY WITH PS 20, AMERICAN SOFTWOOD LUMBER STANDARD AND STANDARD GRADING RULES FOR WESTERN LUMBER. 19% 

MAXIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AT TIME OF PLACEMENT.

1. DIMENSION LUMBER: STUDS  2" TO 4" THICK, STUD AND BETTER

2. DIMENSION LUMBER: BLOCKING  2" TO 4" THICK, STANDARD

3. DIMENSION LUMBER: JOISTS & RAFTERS, 2" TO 4" THICK, NO. 2 AND BETTER.

C. WOOD STRUCTURAL PANELS PANEL - EXPOSURE I APA RATED

1. REFERENCES: PS1, PS2, APA STANDARD PRP-108, NATIONAL EVALUATION SERVICE REPORT NER-108 AND ICC ES REPORT 

1952.

2. WALL PANELS: PER SCHEDULE

3. ROOF PANELS: PER SCHEDULE

4. BLOCKING:

a. WALLS: ALL UNSUPPORTED PANEL JOINTS SHALL BE BLOCKED SOLID WITH 2x BLOCKING.

b. ROOFS: WHERE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS, ALL UNSUPPORTED PANEL JOINTS SHALL BE BLOCKED SOLID WITH 

2x4 FLAT BLOCKING

5. NAILING:  COMMON WIRE NAILS IN  PANEL SHALL BE DRIVEN SO THAT THE HEADS ARE FLUSH WITH THE SURFACE OF THE 

PANEL. FIELD NAILING (FN) SHALL BE PER SCHEDULE AND THE MINIMUM PANEL EDGE DISTANCES SHALL BE MAINTAINED.

6. MACHINE NAILING: SUBJECT TO A SATISFACTORY JOB SITE DEMONSTRATION FOR THIS PROJECT AND REVIEW BY THE 

ENGINEER. THE USE OF MACHINE NAILING IS SUBJECT TO CONTINUED SATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE. PANEL NAILS SHALL 

BE DRIVEN SO THAT THE HEADS ARE FLUSH WITH THE SURFACE OF THE PANEL AND THE MINIMUM PANEL EDGE 

DISTANCES ARE MAINTAINED.

7. WOOD STRUCTURAL PANELS (PANELS): WHERE ADJACENT WALLS ARE PANELED, PANELS SHALL BE INSTALLED OVER AND 

UNDER OPENINGS

D. COMMON WIRE NAILS

SIZE DIAMETER WIRE PENETRATION

PENNY INCHES GAGE INCHES

8d .131 10-1/4 1-1/2

10d .148 9 1-5/8

16d .162 8 1-3/4

20d .192 6 2-1/8

30d .207 5 2-1/4

PENETRATION IS MEASURED INTO THE PIECE RECEIVING THE NAIL POINT. 1-1/2 INCHES OF PENETRATION FOR 10d AND 16d NAILS IS  

ACCEPTABLE FOR TOP PLATES AND DOUBLED 2X MEMBERS. WHERE THE NAIL PENETRATION WILL BE LESS THAN SPECIFIED, 

INCREASE  NAIL LENGTH (SIZE) TO OBTAIN THE PENETRATION REQUIRED FOR THE NAIL SPECIFIED.

ALL HORIZONTAL SEAMS ON PANELED SHEAR WALLS TO BE BLOCKED AND VERTICAL SEAMS TO LIE ON A STUD LINE, ALL DIAPHRAGM 

BOUNDARIES TO BE 3x  OR DBL 2x AND STAGGER NAILED PER SCHEDULE.  SHEAR WALL DIAPHRAGM BOUNDARIES ARE STRUCTURAL 

RESISTANCE LINES, I.E. SILL PLATES, TOP PLATES, & HOLD DOWN POSTS.  PANEL EDGES ARE VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL SEAMS, NOT 

ONE OF ABOVE.  FIELD IS FASTENING AREAS  WHERE MEMBERING OCCURS INSIDE PANEL EDGES.  SHEAR WALL NAILS SHALL BE 

PLACED NOT LESS THAN 3/8" FROM THE PANEL EDGE, AND FIRMLY DRIVEN INTO FRAMING MEMBER  WITHOUT CRUSHING THE 

SURFACE OF THE SHEETING WITH THE HEAD.  SHEAR WALL SHEATHING MATERIAL TO BE MANUFACTURED USING EXTERIOR GLUE; IF 

PARTICLEBOARD, MINIMUM GRADE IS 2-M-F, IF   FRAMED OPENINGS IN SHEAR WALLS SHALL CONSIST OF DOUBLE FRAMING 

MEMBERS WITH NO PANEL EDGES ALIGNING WITH THE FRAME LINE WITHIN 2'.  THE EDGE NAILING SHALL BE 6" STAGGERED UNLESS 

A PATTERN IS SPECIFIED ON THE SHEAR WALL SCHEDULE.  ALL LUMBER TO BE NUMBER 2 OR BETTER UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  

ALL BEAMS/HEADERS TO BE AS SPECIFIED, CONTACT EOR FOR SUBSTITUTIONS SINCE ALLOWABLE STRESSES VARY

E. STRUCTURAL CONNECTORS

SIMPSON STRONG-TIE IS SPECIFIED FOR ALL LIGHT GAUGE METAL CONNECTORS SUCH AS HOLD DOWNS, COLUMN CAPS & BASES, 

JOIST, TRUSS & BEAM HANGERS & CONNECTORS AND STRAPS & TIES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  USP STRUCTURAL CONNECTORS 

ARE AN ACCEPTABLE SUBSTITUTION PROVIDED THE LOAD VALUE FOR THE USP PRODUCT MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE SIMPSON 

PRODUCT.  

F. IF LUMBER OR PREFABRICATED PORTIONS OF THE BUILDING ARE STORED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION THESE MATERIALS SHALL BE 

PROTECTED FROM WEATHER AND STORED ON DUNNAGE TO PREVENT THEM FROM SITTING IN STANDING WATER/SNOW OR IN 

CONTACT WITH THE GROUND.

6. SOLE PLATE TO JOIST OR BLOCKING, TYPICAL FACE NAIL

  DOUBLE TOP PLATES, SEE DETAIL FOR LAP SPLICE

   SOLE PLATE TO JOIST OR BLOCKING, AT BRACED WALL PANELS

10. DOUBLED TOP PLATES, TYPICAL FACE NAIL

11. BLOCKING BETWEEN JOISTS OR RAFTERS TO TOP PLATE, TOE NAIL

1. JOIST TO SILL OR GIRDER, TOENAIL

2. BRIDGING TO JOIST, TOENAIL EACH END

3. 1"X6" SUBFLOOR OR LESS TO EACH JOIST, FACE NAIL

4. WIDER THAN 1"X6" SUBFLOOR TO EACH JOIST, FACE NAIL

5. 2" SUBFLOOR TO JOIST OR GIRDER, BLIND AND FACE NAIL

17. CEILING JOISTS, LAPS OVER PARTITIONS, FACE NAIL

18. CEILING JOISTS TO PARALLEL RAFTERS, FACE NAIL

20. 1" BRACE TO EACH STUD AND PLATE, FACE NAIL

21. 1"X8" SHEATHING OR LESS TO EACH BEARING, FACE NAIL

22. WIDER THAN 1"X8" SHEATHING TO EACH BEARING, FACE NAIL

26. WOOD STRUCTURAL AND PARTICLE BOARD

13. TOP PLATES, LAPS AND INTERSECTIONS, FACE NAIL

14. CONTINUOUS HEADER, TWO PIECES

15. CEILING JOIST TO PLATE, TOENAIL

16. CONTINUOUS HEADER TO STUD, TOENAIL

12. RIM JOIST TO TOP PLATE, TOENAIL

7. TOP PLATE TO STUD, END NAIL

8. STUD TO SOLE PLATE

9. DOUBLE STUDS, FACE NAIL

     5/8"

29. INTERIOR PANELING

     3/8"
     1/4"

     25/32"

28. FIBERBOARD SHEATHING:
     1/2"

24. BUILT-UP GIRDER AND BEAMS

     1/2" OR LESS
27. PANEL SIDING (TO FRAMING):

25. 2" PLANKS

19. RAFTER TO PLATE, TOE NAIL

23. BUILT-UP CORNER STUDS

16d @ 16" o.c.

2-16d

16d @ 16" o.c.

3-16d @ 16"

16d @ 24" o.c.

3-8d

4-8d,TOENAIL OR 2-16d, END NAIL

3-8d

2-8d

2-8d

3-8d

2-16d

8d

No. 11 ga.

No. 16 ga.

No. 11 ga.

No. 16 ga.

6d
4d

6d

8d

3-8d

2-8d

3-16d

2-8d

3-8d

16d @ 24" o.c.

BOTTOM AND STAGGERED 2-20d
AT ENDS AND AT EACH SPLICE

2-16d AT EACH BEARING

SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS

20d @ 32" o.c. AT TOP AND

6d

2-16d

3-8d

4-8d

3-16d

16d @ 16" o.c. ALONG EACH EDGE

8d @ 6" o.c.

1. COMMON OR BOX NAILS MAY BE USED EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED.

2. WHEN 3X SOLE PLATE IS USED, END NAILING SHALL BE 2-30d BOX OR COMMON NAILS TO STUD.

3. CORROSION-RESISTANT SIDING OR CASING NAILS CONFORMING TO TABLE 2304.9.1 OF IBC.

4. CORROSION-RESISTANT ROOFING NAILS WITH 7/16" DIA. HEAD AND 1-1/2" LENGTH FOR 1/2" SHEATHING AND 

1-3/4"  LENGTH FOR 25/32" SHEATHING CONFORMING TO TABLE 2304.9.1 OF IBC.

5. CORROSION-RESISTANT STAPLES WITH NOMINAL 7/16" CROWN AND 1-1/8" LENGTH FOR 1/2" SHEATHING AND 

1-1/2" LENGTH FOR 25/32" SHEATHING  CONFORMING TO TABLE 2304.9.1 OF IBC.

6. PANEL SUPPORTS AT 16" (20" IF STRENGTH AXIS IN THE LONG DIRECTION OF THE PANEL, UNLESS OTHERWISE   

MARKED). CASING OR FINISH NAILS SPACED 6" ON PANEL EDGES, 12" AT INTERMEDIATE SUPPORTS.

7. PANEL SUPPORTS AT 24". CASING OR FINISH NAILS SPACED 6" ON PANEL EDGES, 12" AT INTERMEDIATE 

SUPPORTS.

CONNECTION NAILING 1

3

7

5

6

5

4

4

4

1

3

2

PREFABRICATED WOOD TRUSSES

A. CODES AND FABRICATION: MANUFACTURER'S APPROVED ICC PRODUCT EVALUATION REPORTS.

B. GRADE STAMPED DOUGLAS FIR/LARCH NO. 2 OR BETTER, OR AS REQ'D BY DESIGN.

C. DESIGN REQUIREMENTS:

1. TOP CHORD DEAD LOAD  10 PSF, BOTTOM CHORD DEAD LOAD 5 PSF

2. DEFLECTION: ROOF TOTAL LOAD DEFLECTION SHALL NOT EXCEED L/280, LIVE LOAD DEFLECTION SHALL NOT EXCEED 

L/360.

D. CALCULATIONS & SHOP DRAWINGS: SUBMIT FOR REVIEW, SHOP DRAWINGS AND CALCULATIONS BY A LICENSED ENGINEER IN THE 

STATE OF THE PROJECT, FOR THE DESIGN LOADS, INCLUDING MAXIMUM REACTION, SHEAR, MOMENT, AND DEFLECTION IN 

COMPARISON TO THE ALLOWABLES.  SIZE THE TOP CHORD FOR THE DIAPHRAGM NAILING AND A 2X MINIMUM NOMINAL WIDTH. 

THE TRUSSES SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS ARE SCHEMATIC AND MAY REQUIRE SIZE OR SPACING MODIFICATIONS. VERIFY WITH 

BEARING LOCATIONS BEFORE MAKING ANY CHANGES.

E. BLOCKING, BRACING AND BRIDGING: AS REQUIRED BY THE MANUFACTURER'S APPROVED PRODUCT EVALUATION REPORTS, THE 

IBC, ICC APPROVALS, THE CALCULATIONS AND THE DRAWINGS.

F. TRUSS CHANGES: OBTAIN WRITTEN CONSENT FROM THE TRUSS MFR ENGINEER TO CHANGE THE TRUSS TYPE, WIDTH, CHORD 

DEPTH, TRUSS SHAPE OR SPACING.

G. TRUSS MARKINGS: EACH TRUSS SHALL BE LEGIBLY BRANDED, MARKED OR OTHERWISE HAVE PERMANENTLY AFFIXED THERETO THE 

FOLLOWING INFORMATION WITHIN 2' OF THE CENTER OF THE SPAN ON THE FACE OF THE BOTTOM CHORD:

H. TRUSS MFR SHALL CERTIFY THAT ALL LOADING IS PER LOCAL CONDITIONS STATED ON 'STRUCTURAL LOAD INFORMATION' NOTE.

I. TRUSS MFR SHALL CERTIFY THAT THE CALCULATIONS REFLECT COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF IBC FOR UNBALANCED 

SNOW LOADS, FOR DRIFT LOADING,  FOR IMPACT LOADING AS NOTED ON THE PLANS. ALL EAVES SHALL BE DESIGNED FOR 2 TIMES 

THE LIVE LOAD.

J. ALL TRUSS TO TRUSS CONNECTIONS SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE TRUSS MANUFACTURER.

K. STAMPED SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE BUILDING OFFICIAL AND ENGINEER FOR REVIEW BEFORE ANY 

FABRICATION.

L. TRUSS HANDLING AND JOB-SITE STORAGE SHALL BE PER TPI STANDARDS AND NOT AFFECT TRUSS PERFORMANCE.

M. CONFIRM WEIGHT, SIZE AND LOCATION OF MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT PRIOR TO DESIGN OF TRUSSES TO ENSURE POINT LOADS ARE 

ACCOUNTED FOR IN TRUSS DESIGN.

A. ALL STRUCTURAL FRAMING SHALL BE DESIGNED FOR BALANCED SNOW LOADING PER SNOW LOAD ABOVE AND UNBALANCED  

LOADING AS SHOWN. BALANCED SNOW LOADING DOES NOT OCCUR CONCURRENTLY WITH UNBALANCED SNOW LOADING.  

BOTH CASES MUST BE EXAMINED  DURING DESIGN.

B. UNBALANCED SNOW LOADING IS PER CURRENT VERSION OF ASCE 7.

C. UNBALANCED AND BALANCED SNOW LOADING SHALL BE EXAMINED IN  CONJUNCTION WITH SNOW DRIFT PLAN.

D. FIGURE ABOVE SHOWS UNBALANCED LOADING DUE TO WIND FROM THE LEFT, BOTH WIND DIRECTIONS MUST BE 

ACCOUNTED FOR DURING DESIGN.

E. L =       x 2.2 x √S                         2.2 x 21.2

F. ROOF TRUSSES SHALL BE DESIGNED FOR SNOW DRIFT LOADING SHOWN IN ADDITION TO ALL OTHER LOADS INDICATED 

ON THE PLANS, DETAILS AND NOTES.

G. ROOFS THAT DRAIN WATER OVER THE EAVES SHALL BE DESIGNED FOR 2XPF ON THE OVERHANGING PORTION OF THE EAVE.

THIS SHALL BE COMBINED WITH DEAD LOAD ONLY.

8
3

Pr=
√S

L

P
a

LOAD = 0.3xPs  

1

S

P
s

SNOW LOADING

SOILS AND FOUNDATIONS

A. FOUNDATIONS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED BASED ON ALLOWABLE BEARING PRESSURE OF 1,500 PSF

B. CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL - EARTHWORK:  

1. STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL CONSIST OF APPROVED ON-SITE SOILS OR BE FROM AN APPROVED MATERIAL 

SOURCE.

2. GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING GRADATION & COMPOSITION

SIEVE SIZE % PASSING BY WEIGHT

3 INCH 100

1 1/2" 85-100

NO. 4 30-60

NO. 200 10 MAXIMUM 

BOTH STRUCTURAL FILL & GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING:

a. PLACED IN NO GREATER THAN 8" THICK LIFTS COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 95% OF 

MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY ASTM D698

b. MOISTURE CONTENT OF THE STRUCTURAL FILL AT THE TIME OF COMPACTION SHOULD BE 

WITHIN 3% OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AS DETERMINED BY ASTM 698

c. COBBLES AND BOULDERS LARGER THAN 4" MAXIMUM SIZE SHOULD NOT BE USED IN FILL 

MATERIALS 

d. SAND & GRAVEL SIZE PARTICLES COMPRISING THE FILL SHOULD BE HARD DURABLE ROCK 

MATERIALS THAT WILL NOT DEGRADE BY MOISTENING OR UNDER MECHANICAL ACTION OF 

THE COMPACTION EQUIPMENT; I.E. NO SHALE OR OTHER CLAYEY ROCK TYPES

e. THE BINDER/FINES SHOULD HAVE MAXIMUM LIQUID LIMIT AND PLASTIC INDEX VALUES OF 25 

& 10% RESPECTIVELY

f. NO FROZEN, ORGANIC OR OTHER DELETERIOUS MATERIALS SHOULD BE PRESENT IN FILL 

MATERIAL.

g. GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL BE USED UNDER BUILDING FOUNDATION AND IF THE FILL 

OPERATIONS ARE PLANNED FOR RELATIVELY WET FALL, WINTER & SPRING MONTHS.

3. OPEN GRADED ANGULAR CRUSH ROCK: 

a. BETWEEN 1/4 TO 3/4" ANGULAR CRUSHED ROCK

b. COMPACTED USING VIBRATORY COMPACTION METHODS UNTIL WELL KEYED

4. 1/4 TO 1 1/2" OPEN GRADED DRAINAGE AGGREGATE

5. NON-WOVEN DRAINAGE GEOTEXTILE:  MIRAFI 140N OR APPROVED EQUAL. EDGES SHALL BE 

OVERLAPPED AND HELD IN PLACE DURING BACK FILL OPERATION TO ENSURE THE DRAIN AGGREGATE IS 

COMPLETELY ENCLOSED FOLLOWING BACKFILL

6. VAPOR BARRIER:  10 MIL WR MEADOWS PERMIATOR, STEGO INDUSTRIES STEGO WRAP CLASS A OR 

APPROVED EQUAL. ALL SEAMS SHALL BE OVERLAPPED & SEALED WITH MANUFACTURER APPROVED 

TAPE. ALL PROTRUSIONS & PENETRATIONS SHALL BE SEALED. HOLES SHALL BE REPAIRED. SEAL THE 

VAPOR BARRIER TO THE VERTICAL FACE OF THE STEM WALL WITH THE MANUFACTURER 

RECOMMENDED ATTACHMENT DETAIL. INSTALLATION SHALL MEET ASTM E 1643-C STANDARD 

PRACTICE FOR INSTALLATION OF VAPOR RETARDER USED IN CONTACT WITH EARTH OR FILL UNDER 

CONCRETE SLAB

C. SITE PREPARATION:

1. THE REMOVAL OF TOPSOIL, OTHER ORGANIC MATERIAL & FILL, INCLUDING THE CLEARING AND 

GRUBBING OF SURFICIAL VEGETATION AND ROOT ZONES, SHOULD BE ACCOMPLISHED WITHIN THE 

CONSTRUCTION ZONE PRIOR TO ANY EARTHWORK CONSTRUCTION.

2. SURFACE DRAINAGE SHOULD BE ESTABLISHED TO DIRECT RUNOFF AWAY FROM THE CONSTRUCTION 

AREA

3. CARE SHOULD BE TAKEN TO MINIMIZE CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC OVER MOISTURE SENSITIVE SUBGRADE 

SOILS DURING WET WEATHER CONDITIONS. 

4. THE STABILITY OF CONSTRUCTION EXCAVATIONS AND ASSOCIATED WORKER SAFETY ARE THE 

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT OSHA REGULATIONS; THIS 

RESPONSIBILITY MAY REQUIRE DESIGN BY A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER BASED ON THE 

PREDOMINANT SOIL TYPES ENCOUNTERED. ACTUAL SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS AT THE TIME OF 

EXCAVATION SHOULD BE OBSERVED BY A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER TO DETERMINE WHETHER SLOPE 

FLATTENING, BRACING OR OTHER STABILIZATION IS NECESSARY DUE TO SEEPAGE OR OTHER 

UNEXPECTED CONDITIONS.

5. FINAL EXCAVATIONS SHALL BE COMPLETED WITH A SMOOTH-LIPPED BUCKETS IN FINE GRAINED SOILS 

SUCH AS SILTS & CLAYS. ANY AREAS OF RUTTING, EXCESSIVE DEFORMATION, OR OTHER NON-UNIFORM 

PERFORMANCE OF THE NATIVE SURFACE OR THE BACKFILL SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED BY 

GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL 

D. FOUNDATION & SLAB PREPARATION:

1. THICKENED EDGE FOUNDATIONS SHALL BE ESTABLISHED ON UNDISTURBED NATIVE OR STRUCTURAL 

FILL ON UNDISTURBED NATIVE. NOTIFY EOR IF ANY RUTTING, EXCESSIVE DEFORMATION, OR OTHER 

NON-UNIFORM PERFORMANCE OF THE NATIVE SURFACE IS OBSERVED

2. ALL INTERIOR FOOTINGS SHOULD HAVE A MINIMUM EMBEDMENT OF 1.0 FT BELOW FINISHED 

INTERIOR SURFACES. EXTERIOR WALL FOOTINGS SHOULD BE EMBEDDED 1.0 FT TO ESTABLISH FROST 

PROTECTION.

3. BACKFILL COMPACTION WITHIN 5 FEET OF FOUNDATIONS SHOULD BE CONDUCTED USING HAND 

OPERATED TAMPING EQUIPMENT ONLY.

4. INTERIOR SLAB PREPARATION:  THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITEM C1. 

AREAS OF UNSUITABLE FILL MATERIAL OR WHERE RUTTING, YIELDING, OR OTHER NON-UNIFORM 

SUBGRADE PERFORMANCE IS OBSERVED SHALL BE REMOVED & GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL OR 

APPROVED COMPACTED NATIVE SHALL BE INSTALLED TO GRADE ELEVATION. FOLLOWING THE 

SUBGRADE PREPARATION ANY SITE GRADING PER D6 BELOW SHALL BE COMPLETED. A NOMINAL 6-INCH 

THICK LAYER OF OPEN-GRADED ANGULAR CRUSHED ROCK TO BE INSTALLED FOR A CAPILLARY BREAK 

WITH 2 INCHES OF 3/4 INCH MINUS CRUSHED ROCK ABOVE TO PROVIDE A COMPACT SURFACE FOR 

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. THE SLAB-ON GRADE BASE COURSE SHOULD BE COMPACTED USING 

VIBRATORY COMPACTION METHODS UNTIL WELL KEYED. A VAPOR BARRIER PER B7 SHALL BE INSTALLED 

UNDER THE SLAB

5. EXTERIOR SLAB PREPARATION

a. EXTERIOR SLABS AT ENTRYWAYS FIXED TO THE BUILDING SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST FROST 

HEAVES

b. A MINIMUM OF 18" OF GRANULAR STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL BE INSTALLED UNDER A 6" LAYER 

OF OPEN GRADED ANGULAR ROCK UNDERNEATH SLABS. ALL ITEMS SHALL BE COMPACTED PER 

THE ABOVE SPECIFICATIONS.

6. IF GRADE NEEDS TO BE RAISED UNDER THE SLAB BETWEEN THE NATIVE & THE BASE OF THE CAPILLARY 

BREAK LAYER EITHER STRUCTURAL OR GRANULAR FILL PER B1 & B2 ABOVE SHALL BE INSTALLED.

E. QUALITY CONTROL SHALL BE COMPLETED PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TESTING AND OBSERVATION NOTES. P
R

O
JE

C
T
 N

A
M

E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

G
:\

P
D

X
_
P
ro

je
c
ts

\2
1
\3

0
2
2
 -

 P
o
rt

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 -
 V

a
lu

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

tu
d
y
\C

A
D

\O
u
tg

o
in

g
\2

0
2
1
-1

1
-0

3
\2

1
-3

0
2
2
-W

A
-T

B
L
K
-A

T
T
-V

E
R

T
.d

w
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
1
1
/3

/2
0
2
1
 3

:5
2
 P

M
 D

A
K
 2

3
.0

s
 (

L
M

S
 T

e
c
h
)

S
C

A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
IZ

:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R

O
V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
IC

E

IF
 T

H
IS

 B
A
R

 D
O

E
S

N
O

T
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E
 1

"

T
H

E
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
S

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

2
1

0
9

0
7

/2
1

-3
0

2
2

.0
2

0
0

S
0

.0
0

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

2

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 S
P

L
A

S
H

P
A

D
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3
2
0
1
 S

W
 O

L
D

 C
L
IF

F
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
, 
W

A
 9

8
3
6
7

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

 N
O

T
E

S
T

A
R

A
M

H

A
M

H

J
C

1
STRUCTURAL DESIGN INFORMATION

2
CONCRETE NOTES

3
WOOD FRAMING NOTES

5
NAILING SCHEDULE

4
PREFABRICATED TRUSS NOTES

6
SNOW LOADING INFORMATION & NOTES

7
SOILS & GEOTECHNICAL NOTES

Page 336 of 596



STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS & STRUCTURAL OBSERVATIONS

NOTES

A. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS SHALL BE COMPLETED BY AN APPROVED INDEPENDENT AGENCY EMPLOYED BY THE OWNER.  THE 

STRUCTURAL OBSERVATIONS SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD (EOR) OR A REGISTERED DESIGN PROFESSIONAL 

AS OUTLINED BELOW.     

B. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE SITE & MANLIFTS &/OR SAFETY EQUIPMENT REQUIRED FOR ACCESS TO THE 

PARTICULAR INSPECTION LOCATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SUFFICIENT NOTICE IN ADVANCE FOR THE INSPECTIONS 

AND OBSERVATIONS TO BE COMPLETED.  

C. SPECIAL INSPECTORS SHALL BE COMPLETED TO SECTION 1705 OF THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE.

D. SPECIAL  INSPECTORS SHALL SUBMIT A STATEMENT OF THEIR ACCREDITATION TO THE ARCHITECT AND THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.   

E. THE APPROVED SPECIAL INSPECTORS AND STRUCTURAL OBSERVERS SHALL COMPLETE A  STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTORS FOR 

THEIR SCOPE OF WORK.  

F. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE CONSTRUCTION A MEETING WITH THE BUILDING OFFICIAL, OWNER, ARCHITECT, EOR, 

CONTRACTOR  AND SPECIAL INSPECTOR AGENCY(IES) SHALL BE COMPLETED TO REVIEW THE SCOPE AND THE STATEMENT(S) OF 

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS.

G. SPECIAL INSPECTOR DUTIES

1. OBSERVE AND OR TEST THE WORK FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.  

2. NOTIFY THE CONTRACTOR OF ALL DISCREPANCIES AND NOTED IN THE INSPECTION REPORTS

3. INSPECTION AND OBSERVATION REPORTS SHALL BE COMPLETED & SUBMITTED TO THE BUILDING OFFICIAL, ARCHITECT 

ENGINEER AND CONTRACTOR.  INSPECTION AGENCY SHALL SUBMIT A REPORT THAT ALL WORK REQUIRING SPECIAL 

INSPECTIONS WAS INSPECTED AND IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND ALL 

DISCREPANCIES NOTED IN THE INSPECTION REPORTS HAVE BEEN CORRECTED.   

H. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS OF POST INSTALLED ANCHORS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENT OF THE APPROVED ICC-ES REPORT FOR THE 

PRODUCT    

TABLE 1 - REQUIRED GEOTECHNICAL INSPECTIONS 

ITEM FREQUENCY BY NOTES 

VERIFY MATERIALS BELOW SHALLOW FOUNDATIONS ARE 

ADEQUATE TO ACHIEVE THE DESIGN BEARING CAPACITY

PERIODIC GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEER 

VERIFY EXCAVATIONS ARE EXTENDED TO PROPER DEPTH 

AND HAVE REACH PROPER MATERIAL 

PERIODIC GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEER 

PERFORM CLASSIFICATION AND TESTING OF 

COMPACTED FILL MATERIAL 

PERIODIC GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEER 

VERIFY USE OF PROPER MATERIALS DENSITIES AND LIFT 

THICKNESS DURING PLACEMENT OPERATIONS AND 

COMPACTION OF COMPACTED FILL 

CONTINUOUS GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEER 

PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF COMPACTED FILL OBSERVE 

SUBGRADE AND SITE HAS BEEN PROPERLY PREPARED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEER 

PERIODIC 

TABLE 2 - REQUIRED  VERIFICATION & INSPECTIONS OF CONCRETE 

CONSTRUCTION

ITEM FREQUENCY BY NOTES 

INSPECTION OF REINFORCING STEEL PERIODIC SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

PERIODIC 

1

2

3

4

5

1

2 VERIFY USE OF REQUIRED MIX DESIGN

3 AT THE TIME CONCRETE IS SAMPLED TO FABRICATE 

SPECIMENS FOR STRENGTH TESTS PERFORM SLUMP AND AIR 

TEST AND DETERMINE THE TEMPERATURE THE CONCRETE 

4 A MINIMUM OF (1) STRENGTH TEST SHALL BE COMPLETED. 

STRENGTH TESTS ARE NOT REQUIRED IF TOTAL QUANTITY OF 

CONCRETE IS LESS THAN 50 YDS, PROVIDED EVIDENCE OF 

SATISFACTORY STRENGTH IS PROVIDED TO THE EOR & 

BUILDING OFFICIAL.

SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

5 INSPECTION OF CONCRETE INSTALLATION SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

CONTINUOUS 

6 INSPECTION FOR MAINTENANCE OF SPECIFIED CURING 

TEMPERATURE AND TECHNIQUES 

SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

PERIODIC 

7 INSPECTION FORMWORK FOR SHAPE, LOCATIONS AND 

DIMENSIONS 

SPECIAL 

INSPECTOR  

PERIODIC 

ON THIS PROJECT THE QUALITY ASSURANCE SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE SPECIAL INSPECTORS.

PERFORM MEANS THESE ITEMS NEED TO BE COMPLETED.

OBSERVE MEANS THESE ITEMS NEED TO BE PERFORMED ON A RANDOM BASIS.

SUBMITTALS

SUBMITTALS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER OF RECORD (EOR) AND FORWARDED TO THE BUILDING OFFICIAL FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO 

FABRICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH IBC107.3.4.1. ALLOW 7-14 DAYS FOR REVIEW BY THE EOR.

A. SUBMIT MIX DEISGNS FOR:

a. CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE

B. SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS FOR:

a. REINFORCING STEEL

C. SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS AND CALCULATIONS, STAMPED BY A REGISTERED STRUCTURAL ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE OF 

WASHINGTON, FOR:

a. PRE-FABRICATED WOOD TRUSSES

b. BIDDER-DESIGN STRUCTURAL ITEMS

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 N

A
M

E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

G
:\

P
D

X
_
P
ro

je
c
ts

\2
1
\3

0
2
2
 -

 P
o
rt

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 -
 V

a
lu

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

tu
d
y
\C

A
D

\O
u
tg

o
in

g
\2

0
2
1
-1

1
-0

3
\2

1
-3

0
2
2
-W

A
-T

B
L
K
-A

T
T
-V

E
R

T
.d

w
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
1
1
/3

/2
0
2
1
 3

:5
2
 P

M
 D

A
K
 2

3
.0

s
 (

L
M

S
 T

e
c
h
)

S
C

A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
IZ

:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R

O
V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
IC

E

IF
 T

H
IS

 B
A
R

 D
O

E
S

N
O

T
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E
 1

"

T
H

E
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
S

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

2
1

0
9

0
7

/2
1

-3
0

2
2

.0
2

0
0

S
0

.0
1

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

2

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 S
P

L
A

S
H

P
A

D
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3
2
0
1
 S

W
 O

L
D

 C
L
IF

F
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
, 
W

A
 9

8
3
6
7

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

 N
O

T
E

S
T

A
R

A
M

H

A
M

H

J
C

1
STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

2
DEFFERED SUBMITTALS

SUBMITTALS

SUBMITTALS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER OF RECORD (EOR) AND FORWARDED TO THE BUILDING OFFICIAL FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO 

FABRICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH IBC107.3.4.1. ALLOW 7-14 DAYS FOR REVIEW BY THE EOR.

A. SUBMIT MIX DEISGNS FOR:

a. CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE

B. SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS FOR:

a. REINFORCING STEEL

C. SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS AND CALCULATIONS, STAMPED BY A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE OF 

WASHINGTON, FOR:

a. PRE-FABRICATED WOOD TRUSSES

b. BIDDER-DESIGN STRUCTURAL ITEMS

Page 337 of 596



FOUNDATION LEGEND

THICKENED SLAB

CONTROL JOINT

AAAA

AAAA

1111 1111

2222 2222

BBBB

BBBB

CCCC

CCCC

8"

1

2

3

1

S4.00

2

S4.00

3

S4.00

20' - 6"

4' - 6 1/2" 15' - 11 1/2"

1
1

' -
 0

"

TYP

12

S4.00

4 1/2"

6
"

4
 1

/2
"

6"

6
"

4

7

S4.00

TYP

5
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

1/2"

AAAA

AAAA

1111 1111

2222 2222

BBBB

BBBB

CCCC

CCCC

H1-1.X.1

H1-1.X.1

H
1

-1
.X

.1
H

1
-1

.X
.1

1

22

3

3

4

4

S4.00

6

S4.00

TYP

TYP
5

AAAA

AAAA

1111 1111

2222 2222

BBBB

BBBB

CCCC

CCCC

A A

A

A

1

A

A

TYP

ROOF FRAMING LEGEND

JOIST

BEAM/HEADER

SHEATHING

SHEAR WALL

SHEAR PLAN LEGEND

X
DIAPHRAGM TAG, 

SEE DET. 1/S4.01

TOP PLATE CONN. 

TAG, SEE DET. 2/S4.01

XSHEAR WALL TAG, 

SEE DET. 1/S4.01

X

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 N

A
M

E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

G
:\

P
D

X
_
P
ro

je
c
ts

\2
1
\3

0
2
2
 -

 P
o
rt

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 -
 V

a
lu

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

tu
d
y
\C

A
D

\O
u
tg

o
in

g
\2

0
2
1
-1

1
-0

3
\2

1
-3

0
2
2
-W

A
-T

B
L
K
-A

T
T
-V

E
R

T
.d

w
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
1
1
/3

/2
0
2
1
 3

:5
2
 P

M
 D

A
K
 2

3
.0

s
 (

L
M

S
 T

e
c
h
)

S
C

A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
IZ

:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R

O
V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
IC

E

IF
 T

H
IS

 B
A
R

 D
O

E
S

N
O

T
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E
 1

"

T
H

E
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
S

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

2
1

0
9

0
7

/2
1

-3
0

2
2

.0
2

0
0

S
1

.0
0

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

2

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 S
P

L
A

S
H

P
A

D
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3
2
0
1
 S

W
 O

L
D

 C
L
IF

F
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
, 
W

A
 9

8
3
6
7

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

 P
L

A
N

S
T

A
R

A
M

H

A
M

H

J
C

FOUNDATION KEYNOTES

1 12" THICK X 18" DEEP THICKENED SLAB EDGE

2 6" THICK CONCRETE SLAB W/ #4 BARS @ 18" O.C. E.W.

3 12" THICK X 12" DEEP THICKENED SLAB

4 4" TALL CONCRETE CURB, SEE DETAILS

1/2" = 1'-0"
1

FOUNDATION

1/2" = 1'-0"
2

ROOF FRAMING PLAN

1/2" = 1'-0"
3

SHEAR PLAN

ROOF FRAMING KEYNOTES

1 PRE-MANUFACTURED ROOF TRUSSES @ 24" O.C.

2 2X4 OUTLOOKERS @ 24" O.C., SEE DETAILS

3 DROP-CHORD END TRUSS

4 SHTG PER SHEAR PLAN

5 DRAG TRUSS, SEE SHEAR PLAN

HEADER SCHEDULE

TAG SIZE MATERIAL BEARING

H1 (2) 2X8 DF/L NO.2 SEE DETAIL 7/S4.01

GENERAL PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE S4.00-S4.01 FOR STRUCTURAL DETAILS.

2. DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO OUTSIDE OF 

FRAMING AND OUTSIDE OF CONCRETE 

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. VERIFY FINAL OPENING DIMENSIONS IN 

WALLS, SLABS, AND ROOFS WITH OTHER 

DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO 

CONSTRUCTION OF THESE ELEMENTS.

4. DO NOT CUT OR MODIFY STRUCTURAL 

MEMBERS FOR PIPES, DUCTS, ETC, UNLESS 

SPECIFICALLY DETAILED OR APPROVED IN 

WRITING BY THE ENGINEER.

SHEAR PLAN KEYNOTES

1 95 PLF DRAG TRUSS ALIGNED W/ SHEAR WALL, ADD TRUSS IF

NOT IN LAYOUT, CONNECT PER DETAIL 5/S4.00

Page 338 of 596



COMPACTED STRUCTURAL FILL TO NATIVE

PROVIDE #4 DROP BAR LATERALS

@ 18" O.C. & TIE OFF TO #4 SLAB

STEEL AS SHOWN.

#4 BAR HORIZONTAL, (1) BAR

FOR EACH 12" OF WIDTH

SLAB THICKNESS PER PLAN

RUN SLAB BARS THRU

#4 BAR

5/8" SIMPSON TITEN HD BOLTS

@ 48" O.C. MAX W/ 4" MIN. EMBED, 

MAX 8" FROM END AT PLATES

FRAMED

WALL PER PLAN

P
E

R
 P

LA
N

P.T. PLATE

1
1

SEE NOTES FOR  SUBSLAB

RECOMMENDATIONS

PER PLAN

CURB PER PLAN, CENTER ON WALL, 

MAY BE TWO POURS

#4 BAR CONTINUOUS THROUGH CURB

#4 BAR VERTICAL 

@ 36" O.C. MAX, 

ALTERNATE BEND 

DIRECTION

PER PLAN

(2) #4 CONTINUOUS

SLAB REINFORCEMENT

WD STUDS

5/8" X 12"A.B. @ 48" O.C. MIN.
SLAB PER PLAN

PER PLAN

1

1

P
E

R
 P

LA
N

SHTG PER PLAN

EN

BEND SLAB BARS 

DOWN

6
" 

M
IN

4', 1/2" SMOOTH DOWELS @ 36" OC @ COLD JT 

LOCATIONS. GREASE END IN SECOND POUR

T
/4

PLASTIC OR PREFORMED 

HARDBOARD STRIP; IF SAWCUT 

ONLY, FILL WITH SEALER 

FREE END OF SMOOTH DOWELS TO BE 

COATED WITH NON-BONDING AGENT

CONSTRUCTION COLD JOINT, 

FILL WITH SEALER 

CONTROL JOINT CONSTRUCTION JOINT

REBAR PER PLAN

TYPICAL SLAB

10 MIL VB TYP.

SLAB SEE PLAN FOR THICKNESS & REBAR 

LOCATE REBAR IN CENTER OF SLAB 

S
LA

B

SEE 'TYPICAL SLAB' 

FOR SUBGRADE

SEE 'TYPICAL SLAB' FOR SUBGRADE

6" OPEN GRADED ROCK

COMPACTED STRUCTURAL  

FILL TO UNDISTURBED NATIVE

2" LEVELING COURSE

JOINT SPACING LIMITED TO 

MAXIMUM OF +/- 15 FEET ALTERNATE USE DIAMOND PLATE DOWEL BY 

PNA OR APPROVED EQUAL

BAR

SIZE

HOOKED REINFORCEMENT TENSION

DEVELOPMENT LENGTH SCHEDULE

TENSION DEVELOPMENT LENGTH, (ldh), INCHES

f'c = 3 KSI

#3

#4

#5

#6

9"

#7

#8

#9

#10

#11

4db

2 1/2" MIN.

ldh

db

1
2

d
b

SEE NOTES BELOW FOR BAR YIELD STRENGTH FACTOR

f'c = 4 KSI

11"

14"

17"

20"

22"

25"

28"

31"

8"

10"

12"

15"

17"

19"

22"

24"

27"

BENDING RADIUS 3db FOR #3

THROUGH #8 AND 4db FOR

#9 THROUGH #11 MEASURED

TO THE INTERIOR OF THE BAR
FACE OF SUPPORT,

HORIZONTAL OR

VERTICAL JOINT OR

POTENTIAL CRACK LINE

db

BENDING DIAMETER 6db FOR

#3 THROUGH #8 AND 8db

FOR #9 THROUGH #11

MEASURED TO THE INTERIOR

OF THE BAR

ldh

NOTES:

1.   TABULATED DEVELOPMENT LENGTHS ARE BASED ON REINFORCING YIELD

STRENGTH FY = 60 KSI AND NORMAL WEIGHT CONCRETE.

2.   ALL TABULATED VALUES ARE MINIMUM LENGTHS. IN CASE OF CONFLICT WITH THE

PLANS, SECTIONS OR DETAILS, USE THE LONGER LENGTH.

3.   ADJUST TABULATED LENGTHS BY THE FOLLOWING FACTOR WHERE APPLICABLE.

A.  REINFORCING BAR YIELD STRENGTH OTHER THAN 60 KSI: ( fy/ 60,000)

STRAIGHT SPLICE LENGTH SCHEDULE

SEE NOTES BELOW FOR COVER AND SPACING

FACTORS

DEV.LENGTH LAP LENGTH

< 6" AND ld/5

DEV.LENGTH REINFORCING DOWELS OR BARS

CONTINUOUS THROUGH JOINT

FACE OF SUPPORT, HORIZONTAL OR VERTICAL 

JOINT OR POTENTIAL CRACK LINE

DEVELOPMENT

REFER TO "HOOKED REINFORCEMENT TENSION DEVELOPMENT LENGTH

SCHEDULE" WHEN THE STRAIGHT DEV. LENGTH IN TENSION CANNOT BE

ACCOMMODATED IN THE CONCRETE SECTION.

LAP SPLICE

LAP SPLICES IN ADJACENT BARS SHALL BE STAGGERED A

MINIMUM OF 24 INCHES.

NOTES:

1.   ALWAYS USE TENSION DEVELOPMENT LENGTH AND TENSION LAP

SPLICE LENGTH VALUES, EXCEPT WHEN THE PLANS OR DETAILS NOTE

SPECIFICALLY COMPRESSION LENGTHS.

2.   TABULATED DEVELOPMENT AND LAP SPLICE LENGTHS ARE BASED ON

REINFORCING YIELD STRENGTH FY = 60 KSI, NORMAL WEIGHT CONCRETE

AND CLASS B LAPS.

3.   TOP BARS ARE DEFINED AS HORIZONTAL BARS WITH MORE THAN 12

INCHES OF FRESH CONCRETE CAST IN THE MEMBER BELOW THE

DEVELOPMENT LENGTH OR SPLICE.

4.   WHEN DIFFERENT BAR DIAMETERS ARE SPLICED, USE LARGER BAR LAP

SPLICE LENGTH.

5.   ALL TABULATED VALUES AREA MINIMUM LENGTHS. IN CASE OF

CONFLICT WITH THE PLANS, SECTIONS OR DETAILS, USE THE LONGER

LENGTH.

6.   TABULATED VALUES FOR DEVELOPMENT AND LAP LENGTHS IN

TENSION SHALL BE FACTORED BY 1.5 WHEN THE CLEAR COVER IS LESS

THAN db AND THE CLEAR SPACING IS LESS THAN db (AND THERE ARE

STIRRUPS OR TIES ALONG ld) OR IS LESS THAN 2db (AND THERE ARE NO

STIRRUPS OR TIES ALONG ld).

7.   ALL STRAIGHT BAR DEVELOPMENTS AND SPLICES SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF ACI 318.

8.   db = BAR DIAMETER

LAP SPLICE LENGTH, INCHES

FOOTINGS

TOP BOTTOM

#3

BAR SIZE

#4

#5

#6

FDN WALLS

VERTS HORIZ.

SLABS

SINGLE MAT DOUBLE MAT

28"

37"

46"

56"

21"

28"

36"

43"

28"

37"

46"

56"

21"

28"

36"

43"

MINIMUM 60 KSI STEEL

MINIMUM 3000 PSI CONCRETE

28"

37"

46"

56"

BAR

SIZE

STANDARD HOOKS

D,

IN.

180° HOOKS,

FT.-IN.

90° HOOKS,

FT.-IN.

A OR G J A OR G

#3
#4
#5
#6

2 1/4
3

3 3/4
4 1/2

0-5
0-6
0-7
0-8

0-3
0-4
0-5
0-6

0-6
0-8

0-10
1-0

ALL SPECIFIC DIMENSIONS RECOMMENDED BY CRSI BELOW MEET MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF ACI 318

#7
#8
#9

#10

6
9 1/2

10 3/4

0-10
0-11
1-3
1-5

0-7
0-8

0-11 3/4
1-1 1/4

1-2
1-4
1-7

1-10

#11
#14
#18

12
18 1/4

24

1-7
2-3
3-0

1-2 3/4
1-9 3/4
2-4 1/2

2-0
2-7
3-5

5 1/4

HOOK

A OR G

DETAILING

DIMENSION

d

4d OR

2 1/2" MIN.

DETAILING

DIMENSION

d

A
 O

R
 G

D

D

1
2

d

BAR

SIZE

D,

IN.

90°

HOOK, IN.

A OR G

#3
#4
#5

#6

1 1/2
2

2 1/2

4 1/2

0-4
0-4 1/2

0-6

1-0

4
4 1/2
5 1/2

8

2 1/2
3

3 3/4

4 1/2
#7
#8 6

1-2
1-4

9
10 1/2

5 1/4
6

5 1/4

BAR

SIZE

D,

IN.

135° HOOK, IN.

A OR G
H

(APPROX.)

#3
#4
#5

#6
#7
#8

135° HOOK, IN.

A OR G
H

(APPROX.)

1 1/2
2

2 1/2

4 1/2

6
5 1/4

4 1/4
4 1/2
5 1/2

8

3
3

3 3/4

4 1/2
9

10 1/2
5 1/4

6

D
E

T
A

IL
IN

G

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N

D

A OR G

D

12d FOR #6,7,8

6d FOR #3,4,5

C
L BEAM

D
E

T
A

IL
IN

G

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N

d

D

H
O

O
K

A
 O

R
 G

D

C
L BEAM

D
E

T
A

IL
IN

G

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N

H
O

O
K

A
 O

R
 G 6d, 3" MIN.

H

D

d
d 6d

RECOMMENDED END HOOKS

ALL GRADES OF STEEL
D = FINISHED BEND DIAMETER

90° AND 135° STIRRUP AND TIE HOOKS 135° SEISMIC STIRRUP/ TIE HOOKS

STIRRUP (TIES SIMILAR) STIRRUP

AND TIE HOOK DIMENSIONS

135° SEISMIC STIRRUP/ TIE HOOK

DIMENSIONS

ALL GRADES OF STEEL ALL GRADES OF STEEL

H

J

180

90

13513590

°

°

°°°

STD ACI HOOK 

PER TYP. DTL

1. CORNER BARS MAY BE OMITTED IF 

BOTH  WALL STEEL BARS HAVE 90

˚HOOKS WITH MINIMUM LAPS AS 

SCHEDULED. 

2. MATCH SIZE, SPACING, NUMBER, AND 

LOCATION OF HORIZONTAL WALL, 

FOOTING, OR GRADE BEAM BARS. 

3. USE AT ALL CONCRETE CORNERS 

INCLUDING THICKENED SLAB ON GRADE, 

WALLS, CURBS, BEAMS, GRADE BEAMS, 

AND SLABS UNLESS INDICATED 

OTHERWISE.

SINGLE REINFORCING MAT

1. ALL 90˚ HOOKS SHALL EXTEND TO 

FAR SIDE REINFORCING OF WALL OR 

FOOTING.

DOUBLE REINFORCING MAT

STD ACI HOOK 

FOR TYP. DTL

VERTICAL BARS 

REQ'D @ CORNER 

AND LAP -3"

WALL JOINT VFY JOINT 

LOCATIONS W/ STRUCTURAL 

ENGINEER IN ADVANCE

WATERSTOP RQ'D 

WHEN EXTERIOR GRADE 

IS ABOVE F.F.

2x4 KEYWAY

LAP PER SCHED

LA
P

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D

LA
P

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D

LA
P

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D LAP PER SCHED

LA
P

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D

 S
C

H
E

D

LA
P

 P
E

R

LA
P

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D

LAP PER SCHED
LAP PER SCHED

VERTICAL BARS 

REQ'D @ CORNER 

AND LAP -3"

MIN CLEARANCES

SEE TABLE FOR

SCHED

LAP PER

TRUSS

DTC CLIP @ 4'-0" O.C.

A: TRUSS @ NON BEARING

WALL PERP TO TRUSS

VERIFY GAP BASED ON 

TRUSS DEFLECTION

A35 @ 5'-0" O.C.

B: DRAG TRUSS 

CONNECTION

SHTG PER PLAN

EN

WALL BUILDUP

FOUNDATION SEE S1.00

EDGE NAIL, STAGGERED

AB

WALL SHEATHING PER SHEAR WALLS, IF NO SHEAR 

WALL NAILING PROVIDED FOR WALL, USE 6" O.C. EN, 

12" O.C. FN

HEADER SEE FRAMING PLAN

2X STUDS

WINDOW FRAMING 

SHOW DOOR SIM

EN

EN 

2X STUDS TO DBL TOP PLATE, BASED ON PLATE HEIGHT/ 

HEADER NO CRIPPLES MAY BE RQUIRED

DBL TOP PLATE

STAGGERED EN

HURRICANE TIES ON 

ALL TRUSSES H1 UNO 

DIAPHRAGM NAILING INTO 

BLOCKING  

FULL HEIGHT SOLID BLOCKING 

VENT PER ARCH

SUB FASCIA 

(3) 12 D NAILS

FASCIA

EXTEND SHTG TO BASE OF 

RAKED OR FLAT SOFFIT

BLOCKING TO BE MIN 1 1/4" 

LSL OR 2X 

TOP OF

FOUNDATION

SHTG PER SCHEDULE.

MAINTAIN MIN. 1/8" GAP AT SHTG

PER APA GUIDELINES  FOR SWELL

WALL FRAMING

SOLID BLOCKING

OUTLOOKER

PER PLAN

DROP CHORD GABLE

END TRUSS PER PLAN

SIMPSON H 1 @

EACH OUTLOOKER

SUB-FASCIA

CONTINUOUS EDGE NAILING

ON SHEATHING TO BLOCKING

MANUFACTURED

TRUSS PER PLAN

ROOFING

SHTG PER PLAN

2X WIND BRACING @ MID WALL

SIMPSON GBC CLIPS EACH

SIDE OF BRACE

4
0

°-6
0

°

ADJUST BETWEEN LIMITS FOR ANGLE BRACING TO

TERMINATE @ TRUSS TOP CHORDS

2X BLOCKING AT BRACE,

NAIL SHTG TO BLK'G

EN

EN

DO NOT BREAK SHTG ON 

END TRUSS

(2) 16d NAILS 

EA OUTLOOKER

t+
1

 1
/2

"

P
R

O
JE

C
T

IO
N

TREATED PLATE

ANCHOR BOLT PER 

SCHEDULE. POSITION 

@ C/L OF PLATE.

t=
T

H
IC

K
N

E
S

S

PLATE WASHERS 

REQUIRED AT SHEAR 

WALLS, SEE SIZE TABLE

SPLICE OR CORNER,

WHERE OCCURS

12" MAX

6" MIN -

12" MAX

6" MIN -

SPACING AS SCHEDULED

8
" 

M
IN

.

COMPACTED STRUCTURAL FILL TO NATIVE

SLAB PER PLAN

#4 BAR

5/8" SIMPSON TITEN HD BOLTS

@ 48" O.C. MAX W/ 4" MIN. EMBED, 

MAX 8" FROM END AT PLATES

FRAMED

WALL PER PLAN

P.T. PLATE

SEE NOTES FOR  SUBSLAB

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURB PER PLAN, CENTER ON WALL, 

MAY BE TWO POURS

#4 BAR CONTINUOUS THROUGH CURB

#4 BAR @ 36" O.C., 

ALTERNATE BEND 

DIRECTIONS INTO SLAB

P
E

R
 P

LA
N

PER PLAN

(2) #4 CONTINUOUS

SLAB REINFORCEMENT

WD STUDS

5/8" X 12"A.B. @ 48" O.C. MIN.

SLAB PER PLAN

PER PLAN

1

1
P

E
R

 P
LA

N

SHTG PER PLAN

EN

BEND SLAB BARS 

DOWN

CURB PER PLAN, MAY BE TWO 

POURS
#4 BAR CONTINUOUS THROUGH CURB

#4 BAR @ 36" O.C., 

BEND AS SHOWN

PER PLAN

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 N

A
M

E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

G
:\

P
D

X
_
P
ro

je
c
ts

\2
1
\3

0
2
2
 -

 P
o
rt

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 -
 V

a
lu

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

tu
d
y
\C

A
D

\O
u
tg

o
in

g
\2

0
2
1
-1

1
-0

3
\2

1
-3

0
2
2
-W

A
-T

B
L
K
-A

T
T
-V

E
R

T
.d

w
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
1
1
/3

/2
0
2
1
 3

:5
2
 P

M
 D

A
K
 2

3
.0

s
 (

L
M

S
 T

e
c
h
)

S
C

A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
IZ

:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R

O
V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
IC

E

IF
 T

H
IS

 B
A
R

 D
O

E
S

N
O

T
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E
 1

"

T
H

E
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
S

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

2
1

0
9

0
7

/2
1

-3
0

2
2

.0
2

0
0

S
4

.0
0

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

2

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 S
P

L
A

S
H

P
A

D
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3
2
0
1
 S

W
 O

L
D

 C
L
IF

F
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
, 
W

A
 9

8
3
6
7

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

T
A

R

A
M

H

A
M

H

J
C

1" = 1'-0"
2

TYP. THICKENED SLAB

1" = 1'-0"
1

TYP TURN DOWN EDGE

1" = 1'-0"
3

SLAB AND CONTROL JOINT

9
STANDARD REINFORCEMENT SCHEDULES

1" = 1'-0"
10

STANDARD HOOK DETAIL

3/4" = 1'-0"
11

TYP. CORNER REINFORCING DET.

1" = 1'-0"
5

TRUSS FRAMING DETAILS

1" = 1'-0"
4

DETAILED WOOD FRAMED WALL

1" = 1'-0"
6

TYP. OUTLOOKER DETAIL

1" = 1'-0"
8

ANCHOR LOC'NS
1" = 1'-0"

12
SLAB W/ CURB

1" = 1'-0"
7

TURN DOWN EDGE W/ CURB

Page 339 of 596



DENOTATION KEY APA CERTIFICATION KEY

INDICATES SIDE

OF WALL TO BE

SHEETED

DENOTES

SCHEDULE

SPECIFICATION

APA CERTIFICATION

STAMP

DENOTES ROOF/

FLOOR SPAN RATING

DENOTES SHEATHING

THICKNESS

DENOTES SHEATHING

EXPOSURE RATING

DENOTES SHEATHING

STRUCTURAL RATING

DENOTES RATED

SHEATHING

X

APA

32/16

EXPOSURE 1

STRUCTURAL 1 RATED

WOOD ASSOCIATION

RATED SHEATHING

THE ENGINEERED

SIZED FOR SPACING

15/32 INCH

000

PRP-108  HUD-UM-40C
PANELIZED ROOFS

NOTES:

1. ALL NAILS ARE COMMON UNLESS NOTES OTHERWISE.

2. REFER TO TYPICAL SHEAR WALL DETAIL AND TYPICAL HORIZONTAL DIAPHRAGM DETAIL FOR FURTHER REQUIREMENTS.

3. 24" O.C. STUD SPACING MAY BE USED IF 15/32" SHEATHING IS USED OR IF SHEATHING IS INSTALLED WITH THE LONG DIMENSION PERPENDICULAR TO WALL STUDS.

4. 5/8" TITEN HD TO HAVE MIN EMBEDMENT OF 4".

# OF ROWS

NAIL/ SCREW QUANTITY

SPLICE LENGTH

NAIL/ SCREW QUANTITY

SPACING

BOUNDARY NAIL TO WALL BLOCKING PER SCHEDULE

EXTERIOR WALL OR INTERIOR SHEAR WALL

TYPICAL FRAMING MEMBERS ON LAYOUT

BOUNDARY NAIL SHTG TO ALL COLLECTORS 

PER PLAN

EDGE NAIL EACH SHEET TO COMMON FRAMING 

MEMBER

STAGGER SHEETS ACROSS FRAMING

BLOCK LONGITUDINAL SEAMS WHEN SCHEDULED

FIELD NAILING PER SCHEDULE

GAP SHEETS 1/8" FOR SWELLING

NAILS TO BE DRIVEN FLUSH W/ NO CRUSHING OF 

SHEETING AND A MIN OF 3/8" FROM EDGE.

STRUT, TIE, OR COLLECTOR ELEMENT PER PLAN

PLAN VIEW

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

2

5

3

48
7

6

5

1

10

8

9

11

16

15

14
MAX UNREINFORCED HOLE SIZE 4 1/2"X 4 1/2", 

NO OVERCUTTING PERMITTED

2X BLOCKING FOR HOLES LARGER THAN 4 1/2"X 4 1/2". MAX 

ACCUMULATED LENGTH OF HOLE <20% OF SHEAR WALL LENGTH.

NO HOLES OR CUTTING OF SHEATHING WITHIN 16" OF CORNERS.

STAGGER END NAIL INTO ALL KING STUD/ 

HOLDDOWN POST ASSEMBLES ALONG  

SHEAR WALLS  @ WINDOWS AND DOORS.  

EXTEND NAILING FROM SILL PLATE TO 

DOUBLE TOP PLATE. NAIL TRIMMER W/ FIELD 

NAIL 

STAGGER EDGE NAIL (EN) SHTG TO HOLD-DOWN POSTS @

EACH BOUNDARY OF SHEAR WALL PER SCHEDULE

APA RATED SHEATHING PER THE SHEAR WALL SCHEDULE

BLOCKING REQUIRED (SIZE PER SCHEDULE) AT ALL 

HORIZONTAL SEAMS

SPECIAL FRAMING MEMBER(S) AT PANEL EDGES PER SCHEDULE

1/8" GAP AT ALL PANEL EDGES - TYPICAL

SHEAR WALL NAILS PLACED NOT LESS THAN 3/8" FROM PANEL

EDGE AND FIRMLY DRIVEN FLUSH INTO FRAMING MEMBER

WITHOUT CRUSHING THE SURFACE OF THE SHEATHING

EDGE NAIL PER SCHEDULE

DBL TOP CHORDS, MIN. 6' LAP - SPLICE PER SCHEDULE

FIELD NAILING PER SCHEDULE

HOLD-DOWN AND ANCHORS PER SCHEDULE

ANCHOR BOLT SIZE & SPACING PER SCHEDULE; PLATE WASHERS REQUIRED

FRAMING PER SCHEDULE, DOUGLAS FIR/ LARCH NO. 2+

CRIPPLES PER H.D. DTLS AND HEADER SCHEDULE

ELEVATION VIEW

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

2

13

3

4

9

711

10

78 12

14 15

7

3 6

4

5

WHEREVER THE BOTTOM PLATE IS CUT FOR 

DUCTWORK, A GALVANIZED 16 GA REPAIR 

STRAP IS REQUIRED. FASTEN WITH (6) 16d 

NAILS ON EACH SIDE OF CUT

WHEREVER THE TOP PLATE IS CUT FOR 

DUCTWORK, A GALVANIZED 16 GA 

REPAIR STRAP IS REQUIRED FOR EACH 

PLATE. FASTEN WITH (6) 16d NAILS ON 

EACH SIDE OF CUT

WHEREVER THE TOP PLATES ARE CUT FOR 

DUCTWORK IN TWO ADJACENT STUD BAYS, 

A 3" WIDE, 16 GA GALVANIZED REPAIR 

STRAP IS REQUIRED. FASTEN WITH (6) 16d 

NAILS ON EITHER END OF THE CUTS

WHEREVER THE BOTTOM PLATE IS CUT 

FOR DUCTWORK IN TWO ADJACENT STUD 

BAYS, A 3" WIDE, 16 GA GALVANIZED 

REPAIR STRAP IS REQUIRED. FASTEN WITH 

(6) 16d NAILS ON EITHER END OF THE CUTS

FOR (1) AND (2) FAMILY DWELLINGS ONLY, 

MAXIMUM NOTCH DEPTHS IN TOP & BOTTOM PLATES ARE:

FRMNG BRG/NBRG NOTCH DPTH

2X4 INT-NBRG NO LIMIT

EXT/BRG 1 3/4"

NO LIMIT2X6
2 3/4"

INT-NBRG

EXT/BRG

5 1/2" MIN

2"MIN.

A

WHERE DIM. "A" IS LESS THAN 1 1/2", A 

GALVANIZED PROTECTION PLATE 

EXTENDING 2" BELOW THE TOP PLATE, 

FASTENED WITH 8-16d NAILS, IS REQUIRED.

"A"

DIM "A"

FROM EDGE OF PIPE TO 

FACE OF FRAMING

WHERE DIM. "A" IS  1 1/2" OR MORE, A 

GALVANIZED PROTECTION PLATE, FASTENED 

WITH 8-16d NAILS, IS REQUIRED.

WHEREVER DIM. "A" IS LESS THAN 1 1/2", A 

GALVANIZED PROTECTION PLATE EXTENDING 

2" ABOVE THE BOTTOM PLATE, FASTENED 

WITH 8-16d NAILS, IS REQUIRED.

WHEREVER DIM. "A" IS  1 1/2" OR MORE, A 

GALVANIZED PROTECTION PLATE, FASTENED 

WITH 8-16d NAILS, IS REQUIRED.

WHEREVER DIM. "A" IS 1/2" OR LESS, A 

STUD SHOE OR SHALL BE INSTALLED TO 

REPAIR THE STUD AND PROTECT THE PIPE.

A
WHEREVER DIM. "A" IS 1 1/2" OR LESS, A 

GALVANIZED PLATE EXTENDING AT LEAST 1 1/2" 

ABOVE AND BELOW THE PIPE IS REQUIRED

MAXIMUM HOLE DIA OR NOTCH DEPTH

WITHOUT REPAIR OR PROTECTION:

FRMG BRG/NBRG HOLE DIA. NOTCH DPTH

2X4
INT-NBRG 2 1/8" 1 3/8"
EXT/BRG 1 3/8" 7/8"

3 1/4" 2 3/16"
2X6

2 3/16" 1 3/8"
INT-NBRG
EXT/BRG

WHEREVER DIM. "A" IS 1 1/4" OR LESS, A 

GALVANIZED PLATE EXTENDING AT LEAST 1 1/4" 

ABOVE AND BELOW THE WIRE IS REQUIRED
A

FOR (1) AND (2) FAMILY DWELLINGS ONLY, NO 

REPAIR OR PROTECTION IS REQUIRED FOR 

MAXIMUM HOLE DIAMETERS/NOTCH DEPTHS:

2X4 - 1 3/4"

2X6 - 2 3/4"

DIM "A" FOR PIPES MUST BE AT LEAST 1 1/2"
A

R.O.

HEADER, SEE PLANS AND HEADER SCHEDULE

DBL TOP PL.

DENOTES HEADER

SCHEDULE #
# OF LEFT CRIPPLES (H=HANGER)

H.1-1.X.2

# OF INTERMEDIATE BRG (X=NONE)

# OF RIGHT CRIPPLES (H=HANGER - SEE REMARKS)

NOTE: KING STUD NOTATIONS ONLY FOR 

NON SHEAR WALL LOCATIONS.  REFER TO 

SHEAR PLAN AND H.D. DTLS FOR KING 

STUD RQ'MTS @ SHEAR

WALL ENDS.

BACK NAIL W/ 16d IN

SUCCESSIVE LAYERS AS SHOWN

> 3'-6" SINGLE KING STUD

3'-6" < 6'-0" DBL KING STUD

6'-0" > 10'-0" TRIPLE KING STUD

INTERIOR WALLS

CAN DOUBLE SPANS NOTED 

FOR KING STUD RQ'MTS.

ELEVATION AS VIEWED FROM EXTERIOR

OR LABEL SIDE ON INTERIOR HEADER

2X

SECTION

DOUBLE TOP PLATE

HEADER

2X FLAT

INSULATION

OR CRIPPLE TO 

DOUBLE TOP PLATE

- --

PER PLAN

NOTE: SEE PLANS FOR HEADER 

LOCATIONS

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 N

A
M

E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

G
:\

P
D

X
_
P
ro

je
c
ts

\2
1
\3

0
2
2
 -

 P
o
rt

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 -
 V

a
lu

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

tu
d
y
\C

A
D

\O
u
tg

o
in

g
\2

0
2
1
-1

1
-0

3
\2

1
-3

0
2
2
-W

A
-T

B
L
K
-A

T
T
-V

E
R

T
.d

w
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
1
1
/3

/2
0
2
1
 3

:5
2
 P

M
 D

A
K
 2

3
.0

s
 (

L
M

S
 T

e
c
h
)

S
C

A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
IZ

:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R

O
V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
IC

E

IF
 T

H
IS

 B
A
R

 D
O

E
S

N
O

T
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E
 1

"

T
H

E
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
S

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

2
1

0
9

0
7

/2
1

-3
0

2
2

.0
2

0
0

S
4

.0
1

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

2

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 S
P

L
A

S
H

P
A

D
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3
2
0
1
 S

W
 O

L
D

 C
L
IF

F
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
, 
W

A
 9

8
3
6
7

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

T
A

R

A
M

H

A
M

H

J
C

1
SHEAR WALL/DIAPHRAGM SCHEDULE

2
TOP PLATE CONNECTION SCHEDULE

3
HORIZONTAL DIAPHRAGM

4
SHEAR WALL DETAIL

5
HVAC REPAIRS

6
PLBG/ELCTRCL REPAIRS & PRTCTN

SHEAR WALL SCHEDULE

TAG APA RATED SHTG. SHTG. TYPE SIDES SHTD. SILL BLK'G PANEL EDGE NAILS EDGE NAIL FIELD NAIL STUD SPACING A.B. SIZE A.B. SPACING

A 7/16" (SEE NOTE 3) EXP 1 1 2X 2X 8d 6" O.C. 12" O.C. 16" O.C. (SEE NOTE 3) 5/8"X12" (5/8" TITEN HD) 48" O.C.

HORIZONTAL DIAPHRAGM SCHEDULE

TAG BLOCKING APA RATED SHTG SPAN RATING NAILS EDGE NAIL BOUNDARY NAIL FIELD NAIL NOTES

A NONE 15/32" EXP 1 40/20 8d 6" O.C. 6" O.C. 12" O.C.

TOP PLATE CONNECTION SCHEDULE

SHEAR REGION MIN SPLICE # ROWS SPACING PLATE GRADE NAIL MIN #

A 6' 2 12" O.C. DF/L NO. 2 OR HEM-FIR SS 16d 12

3/4" = 1'-0"
7

HEADER/BEAM DETAIL

Page 340 of 596



ABBREVIATIONS

a

A

AC

A/D

AF

AFE

AIC

ALT

A/M

ANN

AS

ASD

AT

ATS

AUTO

AWG

b

BCG

C

CAP

CB

CC

CHH

CL

CKT

CMH

CO

COMM

CON

COND

CONT

CPT

CP

CR

CS

CT

CWP

DC

DIAG

DISC

DISTR

DP

DPDT

DPST

(E)

EF

EHH

ELEM

EMERG

EFFL

EQ

EQUIP

ETM

FACP

FIN FL

FLEX

FLUOR

FO

FREQ

FU

FUT

FVNR

FVR

FWD

GA

GEN

GFI

GRS

H₂O₂
HMI

HOA

HOR

HORZ

HPS

HTR

HV

HZ

IND LT

INCAND

I/O

JB

KA

KCMIL

KV

KVA

KVAR

KVARH

KW

KWH

LCP

LP

LPS

LTG

LT(S)

(M)

Ma

MCC

MCP

MOV

MS

MTD

MTG

MTS

(N)

NEC

NEMA

NEUT

NO

NTS

OVHD

OL

OT

PB

PD

PE

PEC

PF

pH

PH

PLC

PM

PNL

PNLBD

PRI

PS

PSI

PWR

(RL)

(RLD)

RCPT

RCT

RPM

RT

SCR

SD

SDBC

SEC

SECT

SF

SHH

SIG

SN

SPEC

SPD

SPDT

SS

SW

SWBD

SWGR

SYNC

TB

TC

TEMP

TP

TSP

TVSS

UH

UV

V

VA

VFD

VAR

VERT

VH

VS

W

WHM

WHDM

WP

WTRT

WTP

XDCR

XMTR

CIRCUIT BREAKER AUX.

CONTACT, CLOSED WHEN

BREAKER IS CLOSED

AMMETER, AMPERES

ALTERNATING CURRENT

ANALOG TO DIGITAL

AMPERE FRAME

ACTIVE FRONT END (VFD)

AMPERES INTERRUPTING

CAPACITY

ALTERNATOR

AUTO/MANUAL

CONTROLLER

ANNUNCIATOR

AMMETER SWITCH

ADJUSTABLE SPEED DRIVE

AMPERE TRIP

AUTOMATIC TRANSFER

SWITCH

AUTOMATIC

AMERICAN WIRE GAGE

CIRCUIT BREAKER AUX.

CONTACT, CLOSED WHEN

BREAKER IS OPEN

BARE COPPER GROUND

CONDUIT, CONTACTOR

CAPACITOR

CIRCUIT BREAKER

CONTROL CABLE, CLOSING

COIL

COMMUNICATION

HANDHOLE

CHLORINE

CIRCUIT

COMMUNICATION

MANHOLE CONDUIT ONLY

COMMUNICATION

CONTACTOR

CONDUCTOR

CONTINUED,

CONTINUATION

CONTROL POWER

TRANSFORMER

CONTROL PANEL

CONTROL RELAY

CONTROL SWITCH

CURRENT TRANSFORMER

COLD WATER PIPE

DIRECT CURRENT

DIAGRAM

DISCONNECT

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION PANEL

DOUBLE POLE, DOUBLE

THROW

DOUBLE POLE, SINGLE

THROW

EXISTING

EXHAUST FAN

ELECTRICAL HANDHOLE

ELEMENTARY

EMERGENCY

EFFLUENT

EQUAL

EQUIPMENT

ELAPSED TIME METER

FIRE ALARM CONTROL

PANEL

FINISHED FLOOR

FLEXIBLE

FLUORESCENT

FIBER OPTIC

FREQUENCY

FUSE

FUTURE

FULL VOLTAGE, NON

REVERSING

FULL VOLTAGE,

REVERSING FORWARD

GAUGE

GENERATOR

GROUND FAULT

INTERRUPTER

GALVANIZED RIGID STEEL

HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

HUMAN MACHINE

INTERFACE

HAND-OFF-AUTOMATIC

HAND-OFF-REMOTE

HORIZONTAL

HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM

HEATER

HIGH VOLTAGE

HERTZ (CYCLES PER

SECOND)

INDICATING LIGHT

INCANDESCENT

INPUT/OUTPUT

JUNCTION BOX

KILOAMPERES

THOUSANDS OF CIRCULAR

MILS

KILOVOLTS

KILOVOLT AMPERES

KILOVOLT AMPERES

REACTIVE

KILOVOLT AMPERES

REACTIVE HOURS

KILOWATTS

KILOWATT HOURS

LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL

LIGHTING PANEL

LOW PRESSURE SODIUM

LIGHTING

LIGHT(S)

MODIFIED

MILLIAMPERES

MOTOR CONTROL CENTER

MOTOR CIRCUIT

PROTECTOR

MOTOR OPERATED VALVE

MOTOR STARTER

MOUNTED

MOUNTING

MANUAL TRANSFER

SWITCH

NEW

NATIONAL ELECTRICAL

CODE

NATIONAL ELECTRICAL

MANUFACTURER'S ASSOC.

NEUTRAL

NORMALLY OPEN, NUMBER

NOT TO SCALE

OVERHEAD

THERMAL OVERLOAD

RELAY

OVER TEMPERATURE

PULLBOX, PUSHBUTTON

POSITIVE DISPLACEMENT

PHOTOELECTRIC

PHOTOELECTRIC CELL

POWER FACTOR

MEASURE OF ACIDITY OR

ALKALINITY

PHASE

PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC

CONTROLLER

POWER MONITOR

PANEL

PANELBOARD

PRIMARY

PRESSURE SWITCH

POUNDS PER SQUARE

INCH POWER

RELOCATE

RELOCATED

RECEPTACLE

REPEAT CYCLE TIMER

REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE

RESET TIMER

SILICON CONTROLLED

RECTIFIER

SMOKE DETECTOR

SOFT-DRAWN BARE

COPPER

SECONDS, SECONDARY

SECTION

SUPPLY FAN

SIGNAL HANDHOLE

SIGNAL

SOLID NEUTRAL

SPECIFICATIONS

SURGE PROTECTIVE

DEVICE

SINGLE POLE, DOUBLE

THROW

STAINLESS STEEL, SOLID

STATE SWITCH

SWITCHBOARD

SWITCHGEAR

SYNCHRONIZING

TERMINAL BOX, TERMINAL

BOARD

TELEPHONE CABINET

TEMPERATURE

TWISTED PAIR

UNSHIELDED

TWISTED SHIELDED PAIR

TRANSIENT VOLTAGE

SURGE SUPPRESSOR

UNIT HEATER

ULTRA VIOLET

VOLTS

VOLT-AMPERES

VARIABLE FREQUENCY

DRIVE

VOLT AMPERES REACTIVE

VERTICAL

VAR-HOUR

VOLTMETER SWITCH

WIRE, WATTS

WATTHOUR METER

WATTHOUR DEMAND

METER

WEATHERPROOF

WATERTIGHT

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

TRANSDUCER

TRANSMITTER

GENERAL NOTES    

1. ALL MATERIALS AND INSTALLATIONS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE. ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW AND LISTED

BY THE UNDERWRITERS' LABORATORY INC. (UL). ALL ELECTRICAL WORK SHALL BE INSTALLED IN A SAFE AND FUNCTIONAL MANNER.

2. REFER TO THE ELECTRICAL CIRCUIT SCHEDULE FOR CIRCUIT IDENTIFICATIONS, ROUTING, CONDUCTOR SIZES, ETC.

3. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH OTHER DISCIPLINES AS REQUIRED TO MITIGATE INTERFERENCES.

4. CONDUIT MATERIAL SHOWN ON ELECTRICAL PLANS ARE SPECIFIC FOR THE LOCATION WHERE THE CONDUIT STARTS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR

TRANSITIONING TO APPROVED CONDUIT MATERIAL BASED ON LOCATION AND IN ACCORDANCE TO ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS.

E
-
1

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I
.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
1
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
1
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
5
3
 
P
M

 
A
V
I
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

G
E
N

E
R

A
L
 
N

O
T
E
S

 
A

N
D

 
A

B
B

R
E
V

I
A

T
I
O

N
S

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 341 of 596



CONDUIT UP

CONDUIT DOWN

CONDUIT UP FROM UNDERGROUND RACEWAY

CONDUIT SEAL-OFF

CONDUIT CONCEALED

UNDERFLOOR OR UNDERGROUND

CONDUIT CONCEALED IN WALL OR

ABOVE CEILING IN FINISHED AREAS,

EXPOSED IN PROCESS AND EQUIPMENT

AREAS.

ELECTRICAL CIRCUIT

IDENTIFICATION

MULTIPLE ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS,

SEPARATE CONDUITS

MULTIPLE ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS,

COMMON CONDUIT (SIZE SHOWN)

CONDUIT STUB

FLEXIBLE CONDUIT OR MFR CABLE

LOCAL TERMINAL OR LUG

CONNECTION

FIELD TERMINAL

FU

1A

FUSED TERMINAL, SIZE SHOWN

S

SMOKE/HEAT DETECTOR

I

INTRUSION SWITCH

T

THERMOSTAT/TEMPERATURE

TRANSMITTER

MD

MOTION DETECTOR/OCCUPANCY SENSOR

XXX

HOME RUN, ELECTRICAL PANEL DESTINATION

SHOWN.

1. RUNS MARKED WITH CROSS-HATCHES

INDICATE NUMBER OF NO.12 WIRE.  LARGER

GAUGES ARE SHOWN OR NOTED

ELSEWHERE. LONG CROSS HATCH

INDICATES NEUTRAL, SHORT INDICATES

PHASE CONDUCTOR, SLANT INDICATES

GROUND WIRE PER NEC ARTICLE 250.

2. FOR UNMARKED CONDUIT RUNS,

CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL REQUIRED

NUMBER OF WIRES FOR POWER AND/OR

CONTROL OF ELEMENTS IN CIRCUIT(S)

SHOWN.  SIZE OF WIRE SHALL BE NO. 12,

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED OR REQUIRED

BY CODE.

3. SIZE CONDUIT ACCORDING TO

SPECIFICATIONS AND APPLICABLE CODE.

4. DASHED LINE INDICATE CONDUITS

CONCEALED UNDERGROUND OR

UNDERFLOOR.

5. SOLID HOME RUN INDICATES CONDUIT

ABOVE CEILING IN FINISHED AREA,

CONCEALED IN WALL OR EXPOSED IN

PROCESS AND EQUIPMENT AREAS.

XXX

ASD

SPECIAL EQUIPMENT CONNECTION

AS SHOWN

MOTOR CONNECTION,

HORSEPOWER INDICATED

TRANSFORMER

LINE OR LOAD REACTOR,

IMPEDENCE SHOWN

CURRENT TRANSFORMER

DISCONNECT SWITCH,

AMPERAGE RATING SHOWN

THERMAL MAGNETIC CIRCUIT BREAKER

MAGNETIC ONLY CIRCUIT BREAKER

(MOTOR CIRCUITS ONLY) CONTINUOUS

CURRENT RATING AND TRIP SETTINGS

SHOWN

MOTOR STARTER, SIZE SHOWN

FUSE, SIZE SHOWN

ADJUSTABLE SPEED DRIVE

(AFE DESIGNATES ACTIVE FRONT END)

JJ

30A

FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH, SWITCH

AND FUSE RATING SHOWN

60/40 = 60A SWITCH WITH 40A FUSE

F

JUNCTION BOX

GROUND CONNECTION PER

NEC ARTICLE 250

T

3
0
A
C

1
5
0
A
T

2

NEW ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

SYMBOLS LEGEND   

AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH

120V CONTROL RELAY, DPDT MINIMUM

24VDC CONTROL RELAY, DPDT

MINIMUM

RELAY CONTACT - NO, NC

PUSHBUTTON OR

SWITCH CONTACT BLOCK - NO, NC

PUSH-TO-TEST LED PILOT LIGHT

HAND

OFF

AUTO

THREE POSITION SWITCH

20A

60/40

SURFACE MOUNTED LED LUMINAIRE *

RECESSED MOUNTED LED LUMINAIRE *

WALL MOUNTED LED LUMINAIRE *

*  SHADED LUMINAIRE INDICATES BATTERY

BACKED UNIT

DUPLEX, QUADPLEX RECEPTACLE,

W/DESIGNATOR

GFI = GROUND FAULT INTERRUPTING

WP = WEATHERPROOF

+48 = HEIGHT AFF.

3

WALL SWITCH STANDARD TOGGLE,

DESIGNATOR

3 = 3-WAY

D = DIMMER

T = TIMER

METERBASE W/UTILITY METER

GFI

M

DISCONNECT RECEPTACLE AND PLUG

GROUND ROD

GROUND ROD TEST WELL

FLOAT SWITCH - NO, NC

TEMPERATURE SWITCH - NO, NC

ETM

ELAPSED TIME METER

CNT

COUNTER

LIMIT SWITCH - NO, NC

TIME DELAY CONTACTS,

NORMALLY OPEN TIMED CLOSED

NORMALLY CLOSED TIMED OPEN

5A

EXISTING ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT TO BE DEMO'D OR REMOVED

CR

CR

R

SPD

SURGE PROTECTIVE DEVICE

DOUBLE THROW SWITCH

ON OFF

TWO POSITION SWITCH, KEYED

1"C

P001

P001

P001

P001

P001

BATTERY BACKED

LIGHT FIXTURE

E
-
2

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I
.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
2
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
2
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
1
2
:
5
5
 
P
M

 
A
V
I
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

S
Y

M
B

O
L
S

 
L
E
G

E
N

D
 
A

N
D

 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 
D

E
T
A

I
L
S

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 342 of 596



100A - 2P

NG

20A-1P

NG

GROUND

RODS

10'-0" MIN.

SPACING

3/4"x10'

GROUND

RODS

UTILITY SECONDARY FED

FROM POLE-MOUNTED

UTILITY TRANSFORMER

SERVICE CONDUCTORS

 PANEL - 2P1

RESTROOM BUILDING

120/240V - 1ɸ, 3W

200A BUS

PANEL - 2P2

MECHANICAL BUILDING

120/240V - 1ɸ, 3W

 SYSTEM GROUND

NO SCALE

ONE-LINE DIAGRAM 1

-

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
3
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
3
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
9
:
0
2
 
A
M

 
A
V
I
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

E
-
3

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I
.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

O
N

E
 
L
I
N

E
 
D

I
A

G
R

A
M

 
A

N
D

 
P

A
N

E
L
 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L
E

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

20A-1P

20A-1P

20A-1P

20A-1P

20A-1P

30A-2P

20A-2P

20A-1P

20A-1P

100A

2P

2
GRINDER PUMP

2
BOOSTER PUMP

SPLASH PAD

CONTROL PANEL

CHLORINE FEED PUMP

PH FEED PUMP

2
EXHAUST FAN

RECEPTACLES

LIGHTING

NO SCALE

NEW PANEL SCHEDULE
3

-
NO SCALE

EXISTING PANEL SCHEDULE 2

-

KEY NOTES    

1 REMOVE CONDUCTORS FOR CIRCUIT 6 AND ABANDON IN PLACE.

INSTALL NEW BREAKER AND CIRCUIT TO MECHANICAL BUILDING.
2

1

2

M

200A

2P

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 343 of 596



S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

D

E E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

W

W

W

W

S

D

S

D

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

SS

W

W

W

W

SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1"= 10'

0

SCALE IN FEET

10510 20

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
4
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
4
 
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
2
 
2
:
5
0
 
P
M

 
J
E
S
S
I
C
A
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

E
-
4

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I

.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

S
I
T
E
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

EXISTING

PICNIC SHELTER

MECHANICAL

BUILDING

P1

BUILDING PLAN

SCALE: 1/2"= 1'

CHLORINE TANK

PH TANK

CHLORINE FEED PUMP CONTROLLER

EXHAUST FAN

BOOSTER PUMP

PANEL - 2P2

EXHAUST FAN

PH FEED PUMP CONTROLLER

SPLASH PAD

CONTROL

PANEL

P4

P7

P8

P2

P2

P1

0

SCALE IN FEET

212 4

P1

EXISTING

RESTROOMS

EXISTING ELECTRICAL

SERVICE

PANEL 2P1

C1

P9

C1

P6

P3

C2

C3

C2

C3

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 344 of 596



+48+48

2P2-11

2P2-8

TYPE B TYPE B

TYPE A

TYPE AE

TYPE A

TYPE C

TYPE C

BUILDING PLAN

SCALE: 3/4"= 1'

0

SCALE IN FEET

3/43/83/4 1-1/2

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
5
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
5
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
8
:
5
7
 
A
M

 
A
V
I
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

E
-
5

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I
.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
P

O
W

E
R

 
A

N
D

 
L
I
G

H
T
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

GENERAL NOTES    

1. ALL CONDUITS TO BE ROUTED UNDERGROUND, IN-SLAB, OR CONCEALED WHEREVER POSSIBLE OR PRACTICAL.

2. ALL "IN-WALL" CONDUIT TO BE GRS.  UNDERSLAB CONDUIT MAY BE PVC, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. ALL RECEPTACLES TO BE LOCATED 18" AFF, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. ALL INTERIOR LIGHTING IS DIMMABLE.

5. LUMINAIRES TO BE SURFACE MOUNTED AT FINAL FINISHED CEILING ELEVATION.  ROUTE CONDUITS ABOVE FINISHED CEILING FOR CLEAN APPEARANCE.

6. ROUTE UN-SWITCHED POWER CIRCUIT TO ALL BATTERY BACKED LUMINAIRES.

7. INTERIOR LIGHTING HAS LOCAL CONTROLS TO PROVIDE MANUAL "ON-OFF" AND FULL RANGE DIMMING TRIGGERED BY OCCUPANCY SENSOR WITH AUTOMATIC TURN

OFF SET AT 30 MINUTES OF OCCUPANTS LEAVING THE SPACE.

8. PROVIDE LABELING AT SWITCHES INDICATING EQUIPMENT CONTROLLED BY SWITCH, IE. "INTERIOR, EXTERIOR, CHLORINE STORAGE, PH STORAGE".

-

1

SCALE: NTS

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

1

2

KEY NOTES    

1 ON/OFF/DIMMING WALL SWITCH WITH SMALL MOTION DUAL TECHNOLOGY (PDT) DETECTION. SENSOR-SWITCH WSXA PDT D WH.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL POWER AND DIMMING CONTROL CIRCUITING TO LUMINAIRES.  HOMERUN SHOWN TO PANEL CIRCUIT ID.

KEEP 36" WORKSPACE CLEARANCE IN FRONT OF ELECTRICAL PANELS.

2

3

3

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 345 of 596

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



NO SCALE

CIRCUIT SCHEDULE
1

-

P
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
1
.
5
3
.
0
1
_
M

S
A
_
P
o
r
t
_
O

r
c
h
a
r
d
_
S
p
l
a
s
h
_
P
a
d
\
D

W
G

\
E
-
6
.
d
w

g
 
E
-
6
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
8
:
5
4
 
A
M

 
A
V
I
B
 
2
3
.
1
s
 
(
L
M

S
 
T
e
c
h
)

S
C
A
L
E

V
E
R
T
:

H
O

R
I
Z
:

D
A
T
E

N
O

.
R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
B
Y

D
E
S
I
G

N
E
D

:

D
R
A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

:

A
P
P
R
O

V
E
D

:

1
0

N
O

T
I
C
E

I
F
 
T
H

I
S
 
B
A
R
 
D

O
E
S

N
O

T
 
M

E
A
S
U

R
E
 
1
"

T
H

E
N

 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

N
O

T
 
T
O

 
S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

S
H

E
E
T

E
-
6

M
C

C
O

R
M

I
C

K
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E
 
S

P
L
A

S
H

 
P

A
D

3
2

0
1

 
S

W
 
O

L
D

 
C

L
I
F
T
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

P
O

R
T
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

,
 
W

A
 
9

8
3

6
7

2
1
-
3
0
2
2
.
0
2
0
0

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
2
2

o
f

X
X

E

E

S

O

F

P

R

G

G

I

S

#
2

5
4

9
5

N

G

E

I

S

E

S

O

I

R

E

E

R

E

A
L

T

N

D

T

E

T

A

O

F

H

A
W

S

N

I

N

E

R

E

T

N

O

S
H

M

I
.

E

C

L

T

M

A

L

J

J
L
B

X
X
X

X
X
X

M
J
K

C
I
R

C
U

I
T
 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L
E

E
L
E
C

T
R

I
C

A
L

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

A
S
 
S
H

O
W

N

-
-
-
-

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 8

2E
F

D
29

F
-F

E
C

5-
43

46
-9

8A
2-

F
C

86
29

B
C

E
B

09

2
/
4
/
2
0
2
2

Page 346 of 596



EXHIBIT _C

5% RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION^

Contractor;,

VAclCq^ VtnXCV-. ̂vWojL^ VKJ '^aA TT <A:VTAiLfxV

 Project Number:

>
Project Name:

j\a

Date

Pursuant to RCW 60.28.010, as amended, you may exercise an option as to how the 5% retainage under this

contract will be invested. Please complete and sign this form indication your preference. If you fail to do so

you will miss the benefit of any interest earned. Select one of the following options:

1. Savings Account: Money will be placed in an interest-bearing account. The interest

paid to you directly, rather than kept on deposit. If this is your choice, then please complete
attached SAVINGS ACCOUNT AGREEMENT. Please state the name of your bank.

Ba n k:

will be

2, Escrow/investments: The City will deliver retainage checks to a selected bank,

to an escrow agreement. The bank will then invest the funds in securities or bonds selected by you,

and interest will be paid to you as it accrues. If this is your choice then please complete attached
ESCROW AGREEMNT.

pursuant

Preferred Bank:

Securities/Bonds;

^ 3. Guarantee Deposit: Retainage will be held by the City. No interest is payable to the Contractor

Retainage is normally released 45 days after final acceptance of the work or following receipt of Labor and

Industries/Department of Revenue clearance, whichever date is the later. Retainage on landscaping work

may be longer, due to its seasonal nature. However, if this project is subject to grant funding, then the

retainage may also be held until such time as the Contractor meets its obligations to the City to provide

required information and documentation for compliance with the grant funding requirements.

State law allows for limited early release of retainage in certain circumstance.

^fdrs Signature

 Jnn Vindff-Grigod

Vice Fresidrat

a

Title

‘  If the Contractor opts to post a retainage bond under RCW 60.28.0! 1. such bond shall be in a forni acceptable to the
City, shall be with a surety with a minimum of A.M. Best llnancial strength rating of a minimum of A-.
Rcv3IS22

('iiy ofFor! Orchtin! and ('eccanlt. Inc.
McCornnck I 'dlaye Fork Splnsli Fad TivainieiU Facdily hishitliilion Frojccl "Fir2022d)l)S Caninici K'073-22

Fage IS ojM)
Page 347 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7A Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Prepared by: Noah D. Crocker 

 Amending the 2023/2024   Finance Director 
 Biennial Budget and Salary Atty Routing No: 366922-0007 
 Table Atty Review Date: 06/22/2023 

 
Summary: The City of Port Orchard Biennial Budget for 2023-2024, adopted at Ordinance No. 046-
22, is written to capture revenue and expenses over the fiscal period. During the biennial period, 
changes to the budget in both revenue and expenditures need to be recognized by a Budget 
Amendment.  Exhibit A of Ordinance No. 046-22, the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget, identifies the 
Personnel positions of the City as well as pay ranges. 
 
By this Ordinance, the City Council would amend the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget as adopted by 
Ordinance No. 046-22, including changes to Exhibit A.  
 
This Ordinance will provide the following adjustments: 
1) All Funds:  Adjust all Beginning Fund Balances to reflect actual beginning. 
2) All Funds:  Adjust interest. 
3) All Funds:  Adjust 2024 Ending Fund Balances to reflect proposed amendment. 
 
Highlighted Funds 
4) Fund 001:  Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $7,864,100 

a. Increase revenue from anticipated grant funding by $44,300 for community events center 
b.    Increase transfers in from fund 302 for cash flow funding for City hall project of $5 

million 
c. Adjust activity to reflect the Roland Property purchase net reduction of $200,000 
d. Increase transfers out to fund 302 for cash flow funding for City hall project of $5 million 
e.    Increase expenditure and transfer authority by an additional $301,800 for the 

Community Events Center project including Orchard Plaza 
f. Increase transfers out to fund 302 for Givens Park Project of $45,500 
g. Increase transfers out to fund 302 for Schedule D PW Shop of $50,000 

5) Fund 002:  Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $1,826,400 
a. Increase Revenue to reflect a $326,000 TIB grant over Old Clifton Overlay Project   

6)   Fund 109:  Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $803,700 
a. Reduce REET 1 purchases to reflect some acquisition activities which occurred in 2022 

by ~$138,000 

Page 348 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 2 of 8 

 
7) Fund 111:  Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $468,100 

a. Increase transfers out from Park Impact fee’s to Splash Pad of $250,000 
b. Increase transfers out from Park Impact fee’s to pay for the Community Events Center 

Project include Orchard Plaza Design $425,900 
8) Fund 302:  Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $16,431,100 

a. Increase Revenue for City Hall Remodel Project by $10,362,000 from bond proceeds 
b. Increase Revenue for Givens Park by $326,400 
c.    Reduce revenue for Community Events Center by $281,300 
d. Increase Transfers in for City Hall Project by $5,000,000 for cash flow 
e. Increase Transfers in for Splash Pad Project by $250,000 
f.    Increase Transfers in for Givens Park $45,500 
g. Increase Transfers in to fund 302 for Schedule D PW Shop of $50,000 
h. Increase transfers in from fund 111-Parks Impact Fee of $142,000 for Port Orchard 

Plaza Design 
i. Reduce Transfers in for Community Events Center by $66,100 
j.     Increase Expenditure authority for Splash Pad by $250,000 
k.     Increase Expenditure authority for Roland Purchase by $300,000 
l.  Increase Expenditure authority for Givens Park by $326,400 
m.     Increase Expenditures Authority for Schedule D PW Shop of $50,000 
n.  Increase transfers out to Fund 001 for $5 million need for cash flow 
o.  Reduce Expenditure authority for Community Events Center by $347,400 

9) Fund 304: Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $1,181,900 
a. Reduce Revenue and Expenditure authority to reflect TIP 1.1 Bay Street Pedestrian 

Pathway purchases which occurred in 2022 by $138,000 
b. Reduce Expenditure authority by $18k for TIP 1.8 Bethel-Blueberry/Salmonberry for 

activity occurred in 2022  
10) Fund 421: Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $314,300 

a. Reduce Transfers out by $400,000 for Roland Purchase the transfer occurred in 2022 
11) Fund 423: Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $401,300 

a. Reduce Transfers In and Expenditures related to the Roland Purchase  
12) Fund 431: Total Revenue and Expense Adjustment $1,885,900 

a. Increase Expenditure authority by $90,000 for a Sewer Rate Study 
 
13) Exhibit A 
The proposed budget amendment is intended to amend Exhibit A to add 1 FTE for Code 
Enforcement I Position as well as 1 FTE for the Code Enforcement II position (previously 
established by Ordinance No. 053-22).  There will be no other code enforcement positions.  There 
is no net impact to the number of FTE’s approved in the original 2023-2024 Budget. 
 
Recommendation:  The Finance Director recommends adoption of an Ordinance amending the 
2023-2024 Biennial Budget, including amending Exhibit A thereto. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  

Page 349 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 3 of 8 

 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt an ordinance amending the 2023-2024 Biennial 
Budget, as adopted by Ordinance No. 046-22. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Increase Revenue and Expense Budget Authority By $35,533,400 

 

Income Statement Summary  2023-2024 Original 
Biennial Budget 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 56,056,392$             15,071,620$        71,128,012$                  
Revenue 133,338,008$           20,461,780$        153,799,788$               
Expense 127,103,735$           20,809,306$        147,913,041$               

Ending Fund Balance 62,290,665$             14,724,094$        77,014,759$                  

Appropriation Summary  2023-2024 Original 
Biennial Budget 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Total Revenue 189,394,400$           35,533,400$        224,927,800$               
Total Expense 189,394,400$           35,533,400$        224,927,800$               

Fund: 001 - Current Expense  2023-2024 Original 
Biennial Budget 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 11,500,000$             2,819,782$          14,319,782$                  
Revenue 25,542,700$             5,044,318$          30,587,018$                  
Expense 34,850,943$             5,055,300$          39,906,243$                  

Ending Fund Balance 2,191,757$                2,808,800$          5,000,557$                    

Fund: 002 - City Street Fund
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 1,270,792$                1,500,376$          2,771,168$                    

Revenue 5,284,508$                326,024$              5,610,532$                    
Expense 6,148,192$                -$                        6,148,192$                    

Ending Fund Balance 407,108$                   1,826,400$          2,233,508$                    

Fund: 003 - Stabilization Fund
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 2,710,500$                30,460$                 2,740,960$                    

Revenue 180,000$                   40$                         180,040$                        
Expense -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Ending Fund Balance 2,890,500$                30,500$                 2,921,000$                    

Governmental Funds                                                                      
(Operating, Stabilization, Special, Debt Service)

 

Page 350 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 4 of 8 

 

Fund: 103 - Criminal Justice
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 390,000$                   257,725$              647,725$                        

Revenue 775,000$                   75$                         775,075$                        
Expense 1,125,000$                -$                        1,125,000$                    

Ending Fund Balance 40,000$                      257,800$              297,800$                        

Fund: 104 - Special Investigative Unit
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 94,000$                      4,895$                   98,895$                          

Revenue 8,000$                        5$                            8,005$                             
Expense 8,000$                        -$                        8,000$                             

Ending Fund Balance 94,000$                      4,900$                   98,900$                          

Fund: 107 - Community Events
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 236,200$                   85,580$                 321,780$                        

Revenue 227,400$                   20$                         227,420$                        
Expense 227,400$                   -$                        227,400$                        

Ending Fund Balance 236,200$                   85,600$                 321,800$                        

Fund: 108 - Paths & Trails
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 13,300$                      484$                       13,784$                          

Revenue 2,000$                        16$                         2,016$                             
Expense -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Ending Fund Balance 15,300$                      500$                       15,800$                          

Fund: 109 - Real Estate Excise Tax
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 3,379,100$                803,607$              4,182,707$                    

Revenue 1,600,000$                93$                         1,600,093$                    
Expense 4,152,500$                (138,015)$             4,014,485$                    

Ending Fund Balance 826,600$                   941,715$              1,768,315$                    

Fund: 111 - Impact Mitigation Fee
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 4,836,500$                468,055$              5,304,555$                    

Revenue 10,877,200$             45$                         10,877,245$                  
Expense 4,798,600$                675,900$              5,474,500$                    

Ending Fund Balance 10,915,100$             (207,800)$             10,707,300$                   
 

Page 351 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 5 of 8 

 

Fund: 206 - Bond Redemption Fund
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Revenue 598,400$                   -$                        598,400$                        
Expense 598,400$                   -$                        598,400$                        

Ending Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Fund: 302 - Capital Construction
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 245,100$                   302,531$              547,631$                        

Revenue 2,178,400$                16,128,569$        18,306,969$                  
Expense 2,178,400$                16,083,000$        18,261,400$                  

Ending Fund Balance 245,100$                   348,100$              593,200$                        

Fund: 304 - Street Capital Projects
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 979,200$                   1,319,851$          2,299,051$                    

Revenue 12,718,900$             (137,951)$             12,580,949$                  
Expense 12,385,700$             (156,880)$             12,228,820$                  

Ending Fund Balance 1,312,400$                1,338,780$          2,651,180$                    

Governmental                                                                                    
Capital Construction

 
 

Page 352 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 6 of 8 

 

Fund: 411 - Water Operating
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 3,024,800$                813,487$              3,838,287$                    

Revenue 7,661,000$                13$                         7,661,013$                    
Expense 7,675,732$                -$                        7,675,732$                    

Ending Fund Balance 3,010,068$                813,500$              3,823,568$                    

Fund: 412 - Water Stabilization
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 955,500$                   10,906$                 966,406$                        

Revenue -$                             94$                         94$                                   
Expense -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Ending Fund Balance 955,500$                   11,000$                 966,500$                        

Fund: 413 - Water Capital
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 3,821,600$                3,737,341$          7,558,941$                    

Revenue 14,861,800$             59$                         14,861,859$                  
Expense 11,424,000$             -$                        11,424,000$                  

Ending Fund Balance 7,259,400$                3,737,400$          10,996,800$                  

Fund: 414 - Water Debt Service
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Revenue 1,502,600$                -$                        1,502,600$                    
Expense 1,502,600$                -$                        1,502,600$                    

Ending Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Enterprise Funds                                                                          
(Operating, Stabilization, Debt Service, Capital)

 
 

Page 353 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 7 of 8 

 

Fund: 421 - Storm Drainage Utility
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 1,725,100$                (314,382)$             1,410,718$                    

Revenue 3,490,100$                82$                         3,490,182$                    
Expense 4,905,504$                (400,000)$             4,505,504$                    

Ending Fund Balance 309,696$                   85,700$                 395,396$                        

Fund: 422 - Storm Drainage Stabilization
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 536,800$                   6,166$                   542,966$                        

Revenue -$                             34$                         34$                                   
Expense -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Ending Fund Balance 536,800$                   6,200$                   543,000$                        

Fund: 423 - Storm Drainage Capital Facil
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 94,500$                      498,637$              593,137$                        

Revenue 1,200,000$                (899,937)$             300,063$                        
Expense 1,200,000$                (400,000)$             800,000$                        

Ending Fund Balance 94,500$                      (1,300)$                  93,200$                          

Fund: 424 - Storm Drainage Debt Service
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Revenue 355,300$                   -$                        355,300$                        
Expense 355,300$                   -$                        355,300$                        

Ending Fund Balance -$                             -$                        -$                                   
 

Page 354 of 596



Business Item 7A 
Page 8 of 8 

 

Fund: 431 - Sewer Operating
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 4,022,800$                1,885,875$          5,908,675$                    

Revenue 11,397,400$             25$                         11,397,425$                  
Expense 11,019,664$             90,000$                 11,109,664$                  

Ending Fund Balance 4,400,536$                1,795,900$          6,196,436$                    

Fund: 432 - Sewer Stabilization
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 1,430,000$                16,270$                 1,446,270$                    

Revenue -$                             30$                         30$                                   
Expense -$                             -$                        -$                                  

Ending Fund Balance 1,430,000$                16,300$                 1,446,300$                    

Fund: 433 - Sewer Capital
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 5,355,800$                426,956$              5,782,756$                    

Revenue 23,668,400$             44$                         23,668,444$                  
Expense 15,001,900$             -$                        15,001,900$                  

Ending Fund Balance 14,022,300$             427,000$              14,449,300$                  

Fund: 434 - Sewer Debt Service
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 550,000$                   8,878$                   558,878$                        

Revenue 977,600$                   22$                         977,622$                        
Expense 427,600$                   -$                        427,600$                        

Ending Fund Balance 1,100,000$                8,900$                   1,108,900$                     
 

Fund: 500 - Equipment Rental and Revolving
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 3,748,900$                241,182$              3,990,082$                    

Revenue 3,179,300$                18$                         3,179,318$                    
Expense 4,866,300$                -$                        4,866,300$                    

Ending Fund Balance 2,061,900$                241,200$              2,303,100$                    

Fund: 632 - Wastewater Treatment Facil Fee
 2023-2024 Original 

Biennial Budget 
 2023-2024 

Adjustments 
 2023-2024 Amended 

Biennial Budget 
Beginning Fund Balance 5,135,900$                146,955$              5,282,855$                    

Revenue 5,052,000$                45$                         5,052,045$                    
Expense 2,252,000$                -$                        2,252,000$                    

Ending Fund Balance 7,935,900$                147,000$              8,082,900$                     
 
Alternatives:  Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance  
   Exhibit A to Ordinance 

Page 355 of 596



 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING THE 2023–2024 BIENNIAL BUDGET AS ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE NO. 046-22, TO RECOGNIZE EXPENDITURES AND 
REVENUES NOT ANTICIPATED AT THE TIME OF THE ADOPTION 
OF THE 2023–2024 BIENNIAL BUDGET INCLUDING 
MODIFICATIONS TO THE SALARY AND POSITIONS TABLE; 
PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL TO STATE; PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard adopted its 2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget by 

Ordinance No. 046-22; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to keep current on budget amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to consider adjustments to accounts and/or funds by means of 

appropriation adjustments that could not have been anticipated at the time of passage of the 
2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved Ordinance 053-22 establishing 1.0 FTE for a Code 

Enforcement I position and 1.0 FTE for Code Enforcement Officer II, which is now reflected in 
the 2023-2024 Budget Salary Table; and 

 
WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the City will adjust all beginning fund balances to reflect 

actual fund balances as of 01.01.2023; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 001-the Current Expense fund to reflect additional 
expenditure and revenue activity related to park property purchase, City Hall project cashflow 
funding, additional funding for the Community Events Center, as well as Givens Park and the 
Public Works Shop projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 002-City Street to reflect the acceptance of TIB 
grant funding for the Old Clifton Overlay Project; and  

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 111-Impact Fee Fund to reflect additional spending 
for the Splash Pad, Community Events Center, and Orchard Plaza from Park Impact fees; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 302 to reflect additional expenditure and revenue 
activity related to park property purchase, City Hall project, the Community Events Center, Port 
Orchard Plaza, Givens Park, and the Public Works Shop projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 304 to reflect expenditure and revenue activity 

Page 356 of 596



related to TIP 1.1 and TIP 1.8; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 421 to reflect activity related to the Storm Drainage 
Property purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 423 to reflect activity related to the Storm Drainage 
Property purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 431 to reflect activity additional expenditure 
authority for a Sewer Rate Study; and 

WHEREAS, the City will adjust all 2024 ending fund balances to reflect the impact of the 
proposed budget amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed budget amendments and finds 
that amendments authorized by this Ordinance are consistent with applicable laws and financial 
policies, and further the public's health, safety and welfare; now, therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.    The 2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget and enabling Ordinance No. 046-22 at 

Section 1, is hereby amended to reflect the following: 
 

Page 357 of 596



Fund No. Fund Name Type Ordinance-046-22 Adjustment Ordinance-XXX-23
001 Current Expense Fund Revenue 37,042,700$           7,864,100$    44,906,800$            

Expense 37,042,700$           7,864,100$    44,906,800$            
002 City Street Revenue 6,555,300$            1,826,400$    8,381,700$              

Expense 6,555,300$            1,826,400$    8,381,700$              
003 Stabilization Revenue 2,890,500$            30,500$         2,921,000$              

Expense 2,890,500$            30,500$         2,921,000$              
103 Criminal Justice Revenue 1,165,000$            257,800$       1,422,800$              

Expense 1,165,000$            257,800$       1,422,800$              
104 Special Investigative Unit Revenue 102,000$               4,900$          106,900$                 

Expense 102,000$               4,900$          106,900$                 
107 Community Events Revenue 463,600$               85,600$         549,200$                 

Expense 463,600$               85,600$         549,200$                 
108 Paths & Trails Revenue 15,300$                 500$             15,800$                  

Expense 15,300$                 500$             15,800$                  
109 Real Estate Excise Tax Revenue 4,979,100$            803,700$       5,782,800$              

Expense 4,979,100$            803,700$       5,782,800$              
111 Impact Fee Revenue 15,713,700$           468,100$       16,181,800$            

Expense 15,713,700$           468,100$       16,181,800$            
206 Bond Redemption Fund Revenue 598,400$               -$              598,400$                 

Expense 598,400$               -$              598,400$                 
302 Capital Construction Revenue 2,423,500$            16,431,100$  18,854,600$            

Expense 2,423,500$            16,431,100$  18,854,600$            
304 Street Capital Projects Revenue 13,698,100$           1,181,900$    14,880,000$            

Expense 13,698,100$           1,181,900$    14,880,000$            
411 Water - Operations Revenue 10,685,800$           813,500$       11,499,300$            

Expense 10,685,800$           813,500$       11,499,300$            
412 Water - Stabilization Revenue 955,500$               11,000$         966,500$                 

Expense 955,500$               11,000$         966,500$                 
413 Water - Capital Projects Revenue 18,683,400$           3,737,400$    22,420,800$            

Expense 18,683,400$           3,737,400$    22,420,800$            
414 Water - Debt Service Revenue 1,502,600$            -$              1,502,600$              

Expense 1,502,600$            -$              1,502,600$              
421 Storm Drainage -Operations Revenue 5,215,200$            (314,300)$      4,900,900$              

Expense 5,215,200$            (314,300)$      4,900,900$              
422 Storm Drainage -Stabilization Revenue 536,800$               6,200$          543,000$                 

Expense 536,800$               6,200$          543,000$                 
423 Storm Drainage -Capital Projects Revenue 1,294,500$            (401,300)$      893,200$                 

Expense 1,294,500$            (401,300)$      893,200$                 
424 Storm Drainage -Debt Service Revenue 355,300$               -$              355,300$                 

Expense 355,300$               -$              355,300$                 
431 Sewer - Operations Revenue 15,420,200$           1,885,900$    17,306,100$            

Expense 15,420,200$           1,885,900$    17,306,100$            
432 Sewer - Stabilization Revenue 1,430,000$            16,300$         1,446,300$              

Expense 1,430,000$            16,300$         1,446,300$              
433 Sewer - Capital Projects Revenue 29,024,200$           427,000$       29,451,200$            

Expense 29,024,200$           427,000$       29,451,200$            
434 Sewer - Debt Service Revenue 1,527,600$            8,900$          1,536,500$              

Expense 1,527,600$            8,900$          1,536,500$              
500 ER&R Revenue 6,928,200$            241,200$       7,169,400$              

Expense 6,928,200$            241,200$       7,169,400$              
632 Wastewater Treatment Facility Revenue 10,187,900$           147,000$       10,334,900$            

Expense 10,187,900$           147,000$       10,334,900$            

Grand Total Revenue 189,394,400$         35,533,400$  224,927,800$          
Grand Total Expense 189,394,400$         35,533,400$  224,927,800$          

2023-2024 Biennial Budget

 

Page 358 of 596



 
 
 
 

SECTION 2. Salary Schedule. The 2023 Salary Schedule for authorized positions is 
amended to read as set out on Attachment A hereto and adopted herein by this reference.  

 
SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 4. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and the 

codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary technical corrections to this 
ordinance, including, without limitation, the correction of clerical errors; references to other 
local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/subsection numbering. 

 
SECTION 5.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after posting and 

publication as required by law. A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of the 
entire ordinance, as authorized by State Law. 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney   John Clauson, Councilmember 
 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

Page 359 of 596



6/12/2023  2:45 PM

Elected Officials Positions Wages
Mayor 1 Annual 119,145.59
Council 7 Monthly 1,000
Total Elected 8.00

Personnel Positions FTE Minimum Maximum
City Clerk 1 48.87 56.66
Police Chief 1 72.73 84.33
Community Development Director 1 67.79 78.61
Finance Director 1 67.79 78.61
Human Resources Director 1 50.77 58.88
Public Works Director 1 64.39 74.68
Total Mayoral Direct Reports 6.00
Deputy City Clerk 1 32.95 38.19
Human Resources Specialist 1 31.40 36.41
Total Administration 2.00
Deputy Finance Director 1 50.77 58.88
Accounting Assistant I 1 25.54 29.64
Accounting Assistant II 4 29.72 34.46
Accounting Assistant III 2 34.65 40.20
Accounting Assistant III / IT Specialist 1 35.90 41.62
Information Technology Manager 1 55.71 64.60
IT Support Specialist 1 35.68 41.37
Total Finance/IT 11.00

Deputy Director Community Development 1 55.71 64.60

Permit Center Manager 1 38.15 44.24
Permit Tech 1 29.91 34.68
Permit Clerk  2 26.70 30.97
Permit Center Assistant 0.50 25.54 29.64
Senior Planner 2 43.31 50.22
Plans Examiner/Building Inspector II 1 40.88 47.41
Associate Planner 1 39.24 45.51
Assistant Planner 1 31.40 36.41
Building Inspector I 1 36.85 42.73
Code Enforcement Officer I 1 31.40 36.41
Code Enforcement Officer II 1 35.90 41.62
Parking Enforcement Officer (2 PT) 1 28.35 32.88
Total Community Development 14.50
Municipal Court Judge 0.6 Annual 118,634.88   
Municipal Court Administrator 1 50.77 58.88
Lead Clerk 1 30.64 36.62
Court Clerk 2 25.89 30.91
Total Judicial 4.60
Deputy Police Chief 1 63.37 73.51
Police Services Coordinator  1 34.47 41.17
Records Evidence Specialist 3.7 25.77 30.76
Sergeant 5 51.65 57.19
Patrol Officer 18 34.65 47.58
Total Police Department 28.70

Personnel Position Listing

Page 360 of 596



6/12/2023  2:45 PM

Personnel Position Listing

First 6 After 5 Yrs. 
Personnel Positions FTE Minimum Maximum

City Engineer 1 63.40 73.51
Assistant City Engineer 1 55.71 64.60
Operations Manager 1 48.87 56.66
Utility Manager 1 48.87 56.66
Utilities Compliance Specialist 1 35.90 41.62
Civil Engineer I 1 39.24 45.51
Civil Engineer II 1 46.65 54.10
Stormwater Program Manager 1 40.88 47.41
GIS Specialist/Development Review 
Assistant 1 40.88 47.41

Public Works Procurement Specialist 1 38.15 44.24
Project Coordinator/Inspector 1 39.24 45.51
Office Assistant II 1 26.70 30.97

First 6 After 5 Yrs. 
Public Works Foreman 1 38.38 45.82
Mechanic 2 31.98 38.19
Electrician 1 33.92 40.51
Public Works Personnel 12 31.01 37.03
WA/SW/Storm Coordinators 3 33.33 39.79
Public Works Laborer 2 23.10 27.59
Total Public Works 33.00

Minimum Maximum
Seasonal Public Works Hourly 16.22 21.63
Intern Hourly 16.22 21.63
Temporary Employee Hourly 16.22 21.63

Grand Totals 99.80

Page 361 of 596



6/12/2023  2:45 PM

Elected Officials Positions Wages
Mayor 1 Annual 119,145.59
Council 7 Monthly 1,000
Total Elected 8.00

Personnel Positions FTE Minimum Maximum
City Clerk 1 48.87 56.66
Police Chief 1 72.73 84.33
Community Development Director 1 67.79 78.61
Finance Director 1 67.79 78.61
Human Resources Director 1 50.77 58.88
Public Works Director 1 64.39 74.68
Total Mayoral Direct Reports 6.00
Deputy City Clerk 1 32.95 38.19
Human Resources Specialist 1 31.40 36.41
Office Assistant II 0 26.70 30.97
Total Administration 2.00
Deputy Finance Director 1 50.77 58.88
Accounting Assistant I 1 25.54 29.64
Accounting Assistant II 4 29.72 34.46
Accounting Assistant III 2 34.65 40.20
Accounting Assistant III / IT Specialist 1 35.90 41.62
Information Technology Manager 1 55.71 64.60
IT Support Specialist 1 35.68 41.37
Total Finance/IT 11.00

Deputy Director Community Development 1 55.71 64.60

Permit Center Manager 1 38.15 44.24
Permit Tech 1 29.91 34.68
Permit Clerk  2 26.70 30.97
Permit Center Assistant 0.50 25.54 29.64
Senior Planner 2 43.31 50.22
Plans Examiner/Building Inspector II 1 40.88 47.41
Associate Planner 1 39.24 45.51
Assistant Planner 1 31.40 36.41
Building Official 0 46.65 54.10
Building Inspector I 1 36.85 42.73
Code Enforcement Officer 2 35.90 41.62
Parking Enforcement Officer (2 PT) 1 28.35 32.88
Total Community Development 14.50
Municipal Court Judge 0.6 Annual 118,634.88   
Municipal Court Administrator 1 50.77 58.88
Lead Clerk 1 30.64 36.62
Court Clerk 2 25.89 30.91
Total Judicial 4.60
Deputy Police Chief 1 63.37 73.51
Police Services Coordinator  1 34.47 41.17
Records Evidence Specialist 3.7 25.77 30.76
Sergeant 5 51.65 57.19
Patrol Officer 18 34.65 47.58
Patrol Officer 0 34.65 47.58
Total Police Department 28.70

Personnel Position Listing

Page 362 of 596



6/12/2023  2:45 PM

Personnel Position Listing
City Engineer 1 63.40 73.51
Assistant City Engineer 1 55.71 64.60
Operations Manager 1 48.87 56.66
Utility Manager 1 48.87 56.66
Utilities Compliance Specialist 1 35.90 41.62
Civil Engineer I 1 39.24 45.51
Civil Engineer II 1 46.65 54.10
Stormwater Program Manager 1 40.88 47.41
GIS Specialist/Development Review 
Assistant 1 40.88 47.41

Public Works Procurement Specialist 1 38.15 44.24
Project Coordinator/Inspector 1 39.24 45.51
Office Assistant II 1 26.70 30.97
Public Works Foreman 1 38.38 45.82
Mechanic 2 31.98 38.19
Electrician 1 33.92 40.51
Public Works Personnel 12 31.01 37.03
WA/SW/Storm Coordinators 3 33.33 39.79
Public Works Laborer 2 23.10 27.59
Total Public Works 33.00

Minimum Maximum
Seasonal Public Works Hourly 16.22 21.63
Intern Hourly 16.22 21.63
Temporary Employee Hourly 16.22 21.63

Grand Totals 99.80

Page 363 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
   Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7B Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
                    Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract Prepared by: Charlotte Archer 
 with Countyline Construction, LLC for the  City Attorney 
 Abatement of Code Violations Occurring at SE       Atty Routing No: 366922-0011 
 Crawford Road Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 

 
Summary: By way of background, SE Crawford Road is a private road owned collectively by the owners of 
the properties adjoining the road. The City of Port Orchard code enforcement team has been pursuing the 
removal of junk and inoperable vehicles and vehicle dismantling and repair activities from the roadway as 
well as two private properties since 2017. Additionally, one residential structure has been declared a 
dangerous building and ordered to be demolished. 
 
By this Resolution, the City Council would authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with County Line 
Construction, LLC. for the Crawford Road Abatement Project to remove the nuisance condition and 
associated structures (the “Project”). On April 24, 2023, consistent with RCW 39.04.115 and the City’s 
Procurement Policies (adopted by Resolution No. 036-22, as amended), Code Enforcement staff 
established a list of qualified contractors from the 2023 MRSC Small Works Roster for the Main Category – 
Demolition/Deconstruction, and Sub-Category –Refuse Removal & Disposal, to perform the Project. A copy 
of that list of qualified contractors is attached to the Resolution as Exhibit A.   
 
On May 12, 2023, and pursuant to Resolution No. 036-22 (see Section 5 – Bid Procedures), the City’s 
Department of Community Development emailed an Invitation to Bid for the Project to ten (10) qualified 
contractors on the list. Two (2) bids were received by the June 12, 2023, 3:00 pm deadline, at which time 
staff determined County Line Construction, LLC was the presumed responsive and the qualified low bidder. 
Final bid amounts were as follows:  
  

Name of Contractor Bid Total 
Becker Excavation Inc.  $99,829.24 
County Line Construction $76, 510.57 

 
On June 13, 2023, the City’s Code Enforcement Staff completed the MRSC Mandatory Bidder 
Responsibility Checklist and determined that the County Line Construction, LLC bid of $76,510.57 
(applicable tax included) was the lowest, responsive and responsible, qualified bid.  The Department of 
Community Development has confirmed that the bidding procedures for Public Works have been 
followed.   
 

Page 364 of 596



Business Item 7B 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor 
 to execute a contract with County Line Construction, LLC for the Crawford Road Abatement in the 
 amount of $76,510.57. 
 
 Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
 Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract 
 with County Line Construction, LLC for the Crawford Road Abatement in the amount of $76,510.57. 
 
 Fiscal Impact: The costs of this action, including attorney fees, are chargeable to the vehicle and/or 
 property owners, and so may be reimbursed. Due to, unclear ownership of a number of the vehicles, 
 and the difficulty in collecting such debts, total costs and percentage of recovery of those costs is 
 unknown. It is anticipated that cost recovery in this case will be limited; however, the City has 
 budgeted adequate funds for dangerous building and public nuisance abatement. 
 
 Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
 Attachments: Resolution 

 Ex. A – MRSC Roster 
 Ex. B - Small Works Contract  
 EX. C Resolution NO. 044-20 

  

Page 365 of 596



        
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING A 
SMALL WORKS CONTRACT WITH COUNTY LINE CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR CODE 
ENFORCEMENT ABATEMENT AND DOCUMENTING THE SMALL PUBLIC WORKS 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES. 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard commenced a code enforcement action pertaining 

to violations of the Port Orchard Municipal Code (“POMC”) occurring on real property located 
at SE Crawford Rd, which is a private road, and real properties located at 1691 SE Crawford Rd, 
and 1743 SE Crawford Rd (the “Properties”), with the code enforcement matter referred to by 
staff as the Crawford Road Abatement (the “Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, as part of the Project, the City identified the need to procure a contractor for 

remediation work including removal of vehicles, debris and trash, and demolition and removal 
of uninhabitable structures; and  

 
WHEREAS, City staff estimated the cost associated with this Project and determined 

that the appropriate procurement process for the Project was through the small public works 
procedures; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Municipal Research and Services Center of 

Washington (MRSC) Small Public Works Roster program, and MRSC solicited on behalf of 
participating local government agencies, including the City, within Washington State (including 
the City of Port Orchard) for the 2023 MRSC Small Public Works Roster; and     

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 39.04.155 and the City’s Procurement Policies, adopted as 

Resolution No. 036-22, the City’s Department of Community Development established a roster 
of qualified contractors from the 2023 MRSC– Small Works Roster for the Main Category – 
Demolition/Deconstruction, and Sub-Category –Refuse Removal & Disposal; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 12, 2023, the City’s Department of Community Development issued 

an Invitation to Bid for the Project to ten (10) qualified contractors on the selected roster; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2023, the City’s Department of Community Development 

received two (2) bids by the 3:00 pm deadline, and staff determined that County Line 
Construction, LLC submitted the apparent lowest, qualified bid for the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Department of Community Development then completed the 

MRSC Mandatory Bidder Responsibility Checklist and confirmed County Line Construction, LLC 
as the lowest, responsive and responsible qualified bidder; and 
 

Page 366 of 596



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor’s Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described above 
for this particular contract by Resolution; now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT:  The City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute a contract with County Line 
 Construction, LLC for the Crawford Road Abatement Project, a copy of which is attached 
 hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 27th day of June 2023.   
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 367 of 596



5/4/23, 10:02 AM MRSC Rosters

https://members.mrscrosters.org/public-agency/rosters/result?rt=czoxMToic21hbGwgd29ya3MiOw%3D%3D 1/5

3 Kings Environmental, Inc.

Able General Contracting

AC Concrete LLC

ACI Construction

Active Construction Inc.

Alderbrook Quarry Inc.

Alexander Moore Homes

American Abatement and Demo, LLC

Anderson Environmental Contracting, LLC.

Arzate Contractors LLC

Ascendent LLC

ASH CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Barcott Construction LLC

BCS Development LLC

Becker Excavation Inc

Big Sky Industrial Services

Blackwater Marine, LLC

BRUMFIELD CONSTRUCTION, INC

C. Denney Construction

Canyon Ridge Construct

Champion Specialty Services

Chinook Contractors

Clarity Construction Inc.

Clark And Sons Excavating INC

Public Agency Name: City of Port Orchard

Roster Type: Small Works Roster

Date: 05/04/2023

Time: 10:01 am

Main Category: Demolition/Deconstruction

Sub-Category: Deconstruction and Recycling

Exhibit A

Page 368 of 596



5/4/23, 10:02 AM MRSC Rosters

https://members.mrscrosters.org/public-agency/rosters/result?rt=czoxMToic21hbGwgd29ya3MiOw%3D%3D 2/5

Confederated Construction Company

Construction Group International

Core Tap Construction LLC

County Line Construction, LLC.

DallumBuildCompany LLC

DARDAN ENTERPRISES, INC

dba Parker Pacific Excavation

Decon Environmental

DH Environmental, Inc.

Diggin it!

DOWN TO EARTH LAND SERVICES, LLC

dp excavation

EHS-International, Inc.

EIB Group LLC

Empire Well Drilling LLC

Engineering/Remediation Resources Group, Inc. (ERRG)

Exo Contracting

Extreme Excavation

Fieldwrks Collaborative LLC

FORMA Construction Company

FPH Construction, Inc.

Glacier Works, LLC

Gray Excavation LLC

Graymar Environmental Services, Inc

Hanson Excavation

HCP Development

Highland Communications Inc

Huber General Contractors Inc

Interwest Construction Inc.

Page 369 of 596



5/4/23, 10:02 AM MRSC Rosters

https://members.mrscrosters.org/public-agency/rosters/result?rt=czoxMToic21hbGwgd29ya3MiOw%3D%3D 3/5

Irish Brothers Construction LLC

Iron Creek Construction LLC

IRS Environmental of WA., Inc.

Isee Construct LLC

J A Morris Construction

K-A General Construction Contractor LLC

Key Peninsula Construction, LLC

Kissler Enterprises Environmental Products, Inc.

Ladd Construction & Demolition LLC

Lamb Contracting LLC

Langsholt Contracting Inc

Layland Construction LLC

Legionary Handyman, LLC

Lewis River Doors Inc

Linden Salvage

Mainline Excavating llc

Matt Rychel

MB Dirtworks

Merriman Contracting LLC

Mt. View Locating Services, LLC

NetCompliance Environmental Services, LLC

Nordland Construction Nw

Nordvind Company

N P M Construction Co.

NRC Environmental Services Inc.

Olson Brothers Excavating

Olympic Moving & Storage

Paasche Construction Inc

pacific federal construction

Page 370 of 596



5/4/23, 10:02 AM MRSC Rosters

https://members.mrscrosters.org/public-agency/rosters/result?rt=czoxMToic21hbGwgd29ya3MiOw%3D%3D 4/5

Pacific General Builders, LLC

PAT HALL CONSTRUCTION, INC.

PrimeCom USA LLC

PrimeCore Contracting LLC

ProWorks Enterprises, LLC

Puget Paving & Construction, Inc.

R.W. Excavation, LLC

RailWorks Track Systems

Rainproof Contracting, LLC

Rains Contracting Inc

RAW Land Construction LLC

Redtail

Rivers Edge Environmental Services

RL CLEARING & EXCAVATING INC

Rocky Lang

ROGNLINS INC.

Sandvik Builders Incorporated

Seattle Junk King

SERVPRO Disaster Recovery Team

Signature General Construction Inc.

SKYCORP,LTD.

Sky High Tree Removal

Stateline LLC

STREIMER SHEET METAL WORKS, INC.

Strickland & Sons Excavation LLC

Stumpy Tree Service

Summerhill Inspections, LLC

Surowiecki Brothers Construction L.L.C

Swofford Excavating

Page 371 of 596



5/4/23, 10:02 AM MRSC Rosters

https://members.mrscrosters.org/public-agency/rosters/result?rt=czoxMToic21hbGwgd29ya3MiOw%3D%3D 5/5

Talakai Construction,LLC

Tastad Construction Inc.

Taylor pro LLC

TJR Steel Construction LLC

TKK,LLC

TRICO Companies, LLC

Trinity Contractors Inc.

Trowbridge Innovations

T Stone Construction LLC

Ultra Tank Services, Inc.

USA Building Solutions LLC

WestEnd Trucking LLC

Western States Construction, Inc.

Western United Civil Group LLC

Westmark Construction Inc.

Woodland Industries

Wyser Construction Co. Inc

Page 372 of 596



Page 373 of 596



Page 374 of 596



Page 375 of 596



Page 376 of 596



Page 377 of 596



Page 378 of 596



Page 379 of 596



Page 380 of 596



Page 381 of 596



Page 382 of 596



Page 383 of 596



Page 384 of 596



Page 385 of 596



Page 386 of 596



Page 387 of 596



Page 388 of 596



Page 389 of 596



Page 390 of 596



Page 391 of 596



Page 392 of 596



Page 393 of 596



Page 394 of 596



Page 395 of 596



Page 396 of 596



Page 397 of 596



Page 398 of 596



Page 399 of 596



Exhibit A

001 Page 400 of 596



002 Page 401 of 596



003 Page 402 of 596



004 Page 403 of 596



005 Page 404 of 596



006 Page 405 of 596



007 Page 406 of 596



008 Page 407 of 596

Rabecca Hooper
84-3009817

Rabecca Hooper
BLS60311224

Rabecca Hooper
000831248-00-2



009 Page 408 of 596



010 Page 409 of 596



011 Page 410 of 596



Page 1 of 2 
City of Port Orchard Abatement of Crawford Road-Scope of Work  

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CRAWFORD ROAD ABATEMENT 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
The project consists of three public nuisance / dangerous building abatements under one contract.  The location 
consists of two residential properties and one private road, as follows: 
 
1691 SE Crawford Rd. 
Property description: – Single-family residential property containing a house and detached garage, dilapidated 
fences, vehicles, junk, and garbage.  
 
Scope of Work:  

• Obtain all required permits. 
• Demolish and lawfully dispose of all structures, including contents, except perimeter fences, which are to 

remain. 
• Remove and lawfully dispose of everything on the property, including but not limited to all vehicles, 

vehicle parts and components, junk, trash, and debris. 
 
1743 SE Crawford Rd. 
Property description: – Single-family residential property containing a house and detached garage, numerous 
vehicles, vehicle parts and components, equipment, boats, scrap materials, junk, trash, and debris.   
 
Scope of Work:  

• Remove and lawfully dispose of all junk, trash, debris, scrap materials, vehicle parts and components, and 
all vehicles, boats, and equipment identified by the City as subject to abatement. 

 
SE Crawford Rd. 
Property description – Private road located in Port Orchard Washington containing approximately 20 junk or 
nuisance vehicles, vehicle parts and components, junk, scrap materials, and trash. 
 
Scope of Work:  

• Remove and lawfully dispose of all junk, trash, vehicle parts and components, and all vehicles identified 
by City staff as subject to abatement. 

 
The properties are all privately owned.  The City of Port Orchard does not own or control the properties.  The work 
shall be done on behalf of the City of Port Orchard under the authority of warrants issued by Kitsap County Superior 
Court. 
 
Bids shall be broken down according to the three properties and the scope of work for those properties. 
 
The contractor shall maintain separate accounting for the three properties and shall provide a final report showing 
costs and activities according to the three properties. 
 
Crawford Road must be kept open and accessible to residents and utility and emergency vehicles to the greatest 
extent possible during the cleanup.  The contractor shall be responsible for traffic control on Crawford Road and 
Bethel Road.  Obstruction of the road shall be limited to the least extent and shortest time practicable. 
 
City staff will provide Junk Vehicle Affidavits or other documentation for each vehicle, allowing for disposal of 
vehicles without impound storage. 
 
1. The contractor shall act as general contractor and shall be responsible for all aspects of the job, including 

determining and following all legal and permitting requirements, hiring, managing, and paying any/all 
subcontractors and service providers, and for all associated documentation and reporting. 

012 Page 411 of 596



Page 2 of 2 
City of Port Orchard Abatement of Crawford Road-Scope of Work  

On the property identified as 1691 Crawford Rd: 

a. Obtain all necessary permits and approvals, including but not limited to a City of Port Orchard 
demolition permit, prior to commencement of work. 

b. Have utilities located, disconnected, and properly capped, prior to commencement of work. 
*Decommission of any septic tank  

c. Have asbestos removed in a safe manner and in compliance with the regulations of the Puget Sound 
Clean Air Agency (PSCAA) prior to demolition. 

d. Demolish and completely remove all structures, including all associated foundations, slabs, 
concrete porch, fixtures, and utilities, except as follows: 

i. Perimeter fences are to remain. 

2. Remove and legally dispose of all junk, trash, litter, scrap, demolition debris, and similar materials from the 
identified properties.  Proof of legal disposal will be required. 

3. The contractor will be responsible for the safety and security of the site and their equipment during the project. 

4. At the completion of the project all of the work sites shall be left in a thoroughly clean, safe condition, free of 
debris, litter, holes, sharp drops, hazards or unsafe conditions.  The project will not be considered complete 
until the site has been inspected and approved by an official of the City of Port Orchard. 

 
CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS: 
1. The winning contractor and all subcontractors must be properly licensed by the State of Washington, not 

debarred from bidding on state- and federally-funded contracts, and must have or obtain a current City of Port 
Orchard business license prior to commencing work. 

2. Award of this contract will depend upon the contractor’s ability to perform the work as specified and in a lawful 
and timely manner. 

3. The contractor shall act as a general contractor and shall be responsible for hiring, managing, and paying any/all 
subcontractors and service providers and for all associated documentation and reporting. 

4. The contractor shall be responsible for knowledge of and compliance with all federal, state, and local 
regulations, permit requirements, and costs applicable to the scope of work. 

 
**Note:  Conditions may change somewhat due to addition or removal of materials on site prior to completion of 
the work; however, the conditions at the time of this request for bids are typical of the expected site conditions at 
the time of cleanup.  Significant changes in conditions may be subject to a change order.** 

013 Page 412 of 596



Job Name: SE Crawford Road Abatement
Proposal Provided To: Christine Civiletti
Attention:

County Line Construction, LLC.
14085 Kimber Place SE,

Olalla, WA 98359
Marcus Hooper (253) 514‐9529

marcus@countylineconstruction.us

Project Description: remove all debris and junk from road

Included In Proposal:

Date Of Proposal: Monday, June 12, 2023
Proposal Expires: 30 days after submittal
Site Address: 1743 SE Crawford RD

Port Orchard WA, 

Line Item 1:

equipment deliveries  $455.00 $0.00 $0.00

Excluded From Proposal: any additional work not noted in qoute, work in adverse weather conditions, work in wet weather 
conditions. 

Labor Materials Subs Comments

Line Item 3:

remove and off haul all 
garbage, trash and debris as 
directed by port orchard

$3,188.00 $898.00 $0.00

Line Item 2: materials section is for dump 
fees and truckingremove and off haul all vehicles $4,989.00 $2,166.00 $0.00

Line Item 5:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 4:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

• Provide equipment, labor and materials for the following:
• equipment delivery and mobilizations
• remove all junk, trash and vehicles as directed by port orchard

014 Page 413 of 596



Sub Total:

Tax: 9.3

Total:

Print

Sign

Thank you for considering County Line Construction, LLC. We look forward to making this an enjoyable experience for you. 

Line Item 7:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 6:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 9:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 8:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 11:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 10:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Please know, in order to begin work, we ask for 50% of total project value once project is approved for construction and materials are on 
site. The remaining 50% will be due when project is complete and customer is 100% satisfied. 

By signing this document, the customer agrees to pay 
the total amount of $12,965.54

**Tax not included**

$8,632.00 $3,064.00 $0.00
$11,696.00

$1,269.54

$12,965.54

015 Page 414 of 596



Proposal Expires: 30 days after submittal

remove all trash and garbage 
from site and clean up

$2,488.00 $986.00 $0.00

Line Item 6:

provide permits $566.00 $1,599.00 $0.00

Monday, June 12, 2023

$1,366.00 $0.00equipment deliveries 
Line Item 1:

Excluded From Proposal: any additional work not noted in qoute, work in adverse weather conditions, work in wet weather 
conditions. 

Site Address:

Project Description: Demo all structures at address, remove cars and junk from property.

Comments

Included In Proposal:

Port Orchard WA, 
1743 SE Crawford RD

Date Of Proposal:

Subs

$0.00

Labor Materials

Job Name:

Attention:

1691 SE Crawford Road Abatement

County Line Construction, LLC.
14085 Kimber Place SE,

Olalla, WA 98359
Marcus Hooper (253) 514‐9529

marcus@countylineconstruction.us

Proposal Provided To: Christine Civiletti

remove and off haul all 
structures

Line Item 3:

$4,589.00

Line Item 5:

Line Item 2:

$8,485.00

remove and dispose of all 
vehicles

$3,688.00

materials section is for dump 
fees

$2,596.00 $0.00remove and off haul all concrete 
foundations and slabs

Line Item 4:

$3,688.00 $0.00

$5,686.00 $0.00

• Provide equipment, labor and materials for the following:
• equipment delivery and mobilizations
• remove and off haul all structures
• remove and off haul all foundations and concrete
• remove all vehicles
• materials testing and abatement
• remove all junk, trash garbage from property
• provide permits and fees for permits

016 Page 415 of 596



Sub Total:

Tax: 9.3

Total:

Print

Sign

Thank you for considering County Line Construction, LLC. We look forward to making this an enjoyable experience for you. 

**Tax not included**

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Please know, in order to begin work, we ask for 50% of total project value once project is approved for construction and materials are on site. 
The remaining 50% will be due when project is complete and customer is 100% satisfied. 

By signing this document, the customer agrees to pay 
the total amount of $43,317.45

$3,570.45

$43,317.45

$21,182.00 $18,565.00 $0.00
$39,747.00

Line Item 10:

Line Item 11:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

disconnect utilites from 
structures

$0.00 $1,355.00 $0.00
Line Item 8:

Line Item 9:

materials testing and 
abatement

$0.00 $2,655.00 $0.00
Line Item 7:

017 Page 416 of 596



Job Name: 1743 SE crawford Road Abatement
Proposal Provided To: Christine Civiletti
Attention:

County Line Construction, LLC.
14085 Kimber Place SE,

Olalla, WA 98359
Marcus Hooper (253) 514‐9529

marcus@countylineconstruction.us

Project Description: remove and off haul all debris, vehicles and garbage

Included In Proposal:

Date Of Proposal: Monday, June 12, 2023
Proposal Expires: 30 days after submittal
Site Address: 1743 SE Crawford RD

Port Orchard WA, 

Line Item 1:

equipment deliveries  $1,366.00 $0.00 $0.00

Excluded From Proposal: any additional work not noted in qoute, work in adverse weather conditions, work in wet weather 
conditions. Building removal and off haul

Labor Materials Subs Comments

Line Item 3:

remove and off haul vehicles $4,589.00 $2,596.00 $0.00

Line Item 2: materials section is for dump 
feesremove and off haul garbage 

and debris boats
$5,966.00 $3,989.00 $0.00

Line Item 5:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 4:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

• Provide equipment, labor and materials for the following:
• equipment delivery and mobilizations
• remove all garbage boats and debris
• remove vehicles and dispose of legally

018 Page 417 of 596



Sub Total:

Tax: 9.3

Total:

Print

Sign

Thank you for considering County Line Construction, LLC. We look forward to making this an enjoyable experience for you. 

Line Item 7:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 6:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 9:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 8:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 11:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Line Item 10:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Please know, in order to begin work, we ask for 50% of total project value once project is approved for construction and materials are on 
site. The remaining 50% will be due when project is complete and customer is 100% satisfied. 

By signing this document, the customer agrees to pay 
the total amount of $20,227.58

**Tax not included**

$11,921.00 $6,585.00 $0.00
$18,506.00

$1,721.58

$20,227.58

019 Page 418 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7C Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution  Prepared by: Noah D. Crocker 

 Declaring Intent to be   Finance Director 
 Reimbursed for Capital Atty Routing No: N/A 
 Expenditures from a Future Atty Review Date: N/A 
 Borrowing   

 
Summary: The City has authorized a contract to make capital improvements for the City Hall project.  
The City intends to make expenditures for the City Hall project from available funds and reasonably 
expects to be reimbursed for those expenditures from proceeds of bonds or other obligations 
(“bonds”) issued to finance those expenditures. 
 
Recommendation:  The Finance Director recommends adoption of a resolution. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: City Facilities 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt a resolution declaring the city’s intent to be reimbursed 
from future borrowing proceeds. 

Fiscal Impact: Provides the flexibility for cashflow funding and reimbursement from bond proceeds 
 
Alternatives: Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

Page 419 of 596



RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DECLARING ITS 
OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES IN CONNECTION 
WITH CERTAIN CAPITAL PROJECTS FROM PROCEEDS OF A FUTURE 
BORROWING. 

 WHEREAS; The Port Orchard City Hall facility was constructed in 1999. Through the years, 
weather, normal wear and tear, and increased staffing have triggered a need to update and 
renovate the building; and 
 
 WHEREAS; The City Council approved a construction contract at the June 13,2023 
meeting for the City Hall Construction; and 
 
 WHEREAS; The City intends on financing the project costs by issuing debt and intend on 
using city funds to cash flow the project until the debt can be issued; now therefore 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT:  
 Section 1.  Findings. 
 1.1 The City of Port Orchard, Washington (the “City”) intends to make expenditures for 
the Project (identified below) from funds that are available but that are not (and are not 
reasonably expected to be) reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside for 
those expenditures, and reasonably expects to be reimbursed for those expenditures from 
proceeds of bonds or other obligations (“bonds”) issued to finance those expenditures. 
 1.2  Certain federal regulations (the “federal reimbursement regulations”) relating to 
the use of proceeds of tax exempt bonds to reimburse the issuer of the bonds for expenditures 
made before the issue date of the bonds require, among other things, that not later than 60 days 
after payment of the original expenditure the City (or any person designated by the City to do so 
on its behalf) declare a reasonable official intent to reimburse those expenditures from proceeds 
of bonds.  
 Section 2.  Description of Project for Which Expenditures are to be Made.  The City intends 
to make (and/or, not more than 60 days before the date of this declaration, has made) 
expenditures, and reasonably expects to reimburse itself for those expenditures from proceeds of 
bonds, to fund the City Hall Renovations Project designed to replace siding, windows, HVAC 
system and minor interior renovations, and a solar array (the “Project”).  
 Section 3.  Maximum Principal Amount and Authorization of Obligations Expected to be 
Issued for the Project.  The City expects that the maximum principal amount of bonds that will be 
issued to finance the Project is expected to be not more than $11,000,000 plus costs of issuance of 
the bonds and such principal amount is authorized to be issued pursuant to a bond ordinance to 
be presented to the City Council on a date deemed appropriate by the Finance Director, in 

Page 420 of 596



Resolution No. _______ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

consultation with the Finance Committee.  This resolution authorizes the preparation of all 
necessary bond documents and constitutes due authorization of the bonds to the extent necessary 
to authorize expenditures of available funds of the City in anticipation of the receipt of bond 
proceeds. 
 Section 4.  Declaration Reasonable.  The City Council has reviewed its existing and 
reasonably foreseeable budgetary and financial circumstances and has determined that the City 
reasonably expects to reimburse itself for expenditures for the Project from proceeds of bonds 
because the City has no funds available that already are, or are reasonably expected to be, 
reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the City for those expenditures 
on the Project. 
 Section 5.  Limitations on Uses of Reimbursement Amounts.  The City will not, within one 
year after the expected reimbursement, use amounts corresponding to proceeds received from 
bonds issued in the future to reimburse the City for previously paid expenditures for the Project in 
any manner that results in those amounts being treated as replacement proceeds of any tax 
exempt bonds, i.e., as a result of being deposited in a reserve fund, pledged fund, sinking fund or 
similar fund (other than a bona fide debt service fund) that is expected to be used to pay principal 
of or interest on tax exempt bonds.  Nor will the City use those amounts in any manner that 
employs an abusive arbitrage device to avoid arbitrage restrictions.  
 Section 6.  Date of Declaration.  This declaration of official intent shall be dated as of the 
date of adoption of this resolution. 
 Section 7.  Ratification and Confirmation.  Any actions of the City or its officers prior to the 
date thereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed. 
 Section 8.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption and approval. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 421 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7D Meeting Date: 
 
June 27, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving Prepared by: Tony Lang 
 a Contract with Aqua Tech, LLC   Public Works Director 
 for the McCormick Woods    Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
 STEP System Retrofit Project Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 

 
Summary: The City annually offers the McCormick Woods Step System Retrofit Program for residents in 
the McCormick Woods Community who have Septic Tank Effluent Pumping (STEP) systems.  The Program 
converts/upgrades residential STEP systems to grinder pumps. By this Resolution, the City Council would 
authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with Aqua Tech, LLC for the 2023 McCormick Woods Annual 
Septic Tank Cleaning Project. On May 10, 2023, consistent with RCW 39.04.155 and the City’s Procurement 
Policies (adopted by Resolution No. 036-22, as amended), Public Works staff established a roster of 
qualified contractors from the 2023 MRSC Small Works Roster for the Main Category – Septic System and 
Sub-Category – Septic Tank Cleaning/Pumping, Septic Tank Installation.   
 
On May 10, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department issued an email Request for Proposals (RFP) to all 
the contractors on the roster.  By the 2:00 pm, June 9, 2023, due date the City received one (1) proposal 
from Aqua Tech, LLC, of $143,657.42 (applicable tax included).  Aqua Tech, LLC was deemed the presumed 
responsive and qualified low bidder.  Final bid amounts are as follows: 
  

Name of Contractor Bid Total 
Aqua Tech, LLC $143,657.42 

 
On June 12, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department completed the MRSC Mandatory Bidder 
Responsibility Checklist and after reviewing the proposal and verifying the contractor’s information, Public 
Works Staff determined Aqua Tech, LLC met the requirements and criteria as described in the RFP and was 
the lowest responsive and qualified bidder for the project.  The Public Works Department has confirmed 
that the bidding procedures for Public Works have been followed. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to 
execute a Contract with Aqua Tech, LLC for the McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project in the 
amount of $143,657.42. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7 - Utilities 
  
Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract with 
Aqua Tech, LLC for the McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project. 
 

Page 422 of 596



Business Item 7D 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Fiscal Impact: There is funding available in the 2023-2024 Budget. (GL 431.05.535.30.40) 
 
 Alternatives:  Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance. 
 
 Attachments: Resolution, Contract & Proposal 
  

Page 423 of 596



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING A 
CONTRACT WITH AQUA TECH, LLC FOR MCCORMICK WOODS STEP SYSTEM 
RETROFIT PROJECT AND DOCUMENTING THE SMALL PUBLIC WORKS ROSTER 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City annually offers the McCormick Woods Step System Retrofit Program 

for residents in the McCormick Woods Community who have Septic Tank Effluent Pumping 
(STEP) systems to convert/upgrade residential STEP systems to grinder pumps; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to contract for the McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit 

Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, as performed annually since 2013, the Municipal Research and Services 

Center of Washington (MRSC) solicited on behalf of participating local government agencies 
within Washington State (including the City of Port Orchard) for the 2023 MRSC Small Public 
Works Roster; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 10, 2023, pursuant to RCW 39.04.155 and the City’s Procurement 

Policies (adopted by Resolution No. 036-22, as amended), the City’s Public Works Department 
established a roster of qualified contractors from the MRSC 2023 Small Works Roster for the 
Main Category – Septic System and Sub-Category – Septic Tank Cleaning/Pumping, Septic Tank 
Installation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on May 10, 2023, and pursuant to the City’s Procurement Procedures 
adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, at Section 5.0 Bid Procedures, the City’s Public 
Works Department issued an email Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Project to all the 
contractors from the selected Roster; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by the 2:00 pm, June 9, 2023, due date the City received one (1) proposal 
from Aqua Tech, LLC of $143,657.42 (applicable tax included); and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department completed the MRSC 
Mandatory Bidder Responsibility Checklist on Aqua Tech, LLC; and 
 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the proposal and verifying the contractor’s information, 
Public Works Staff determined Aqua Tech, LLC met the requirements and criteria as described 
in the RFP and was the lowest responsive and qualified bidder for the project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor’s Office, wishes to document their consultant selection process as described above for 
this particular contract by Resolution; now, therefore,  
 

 

Page 424 of 596



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT:  The City Council approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute a Contract with 
 Aqua Tech, LLC for the McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project.  

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 

 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 
 
 
 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 425 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012 Rev. IBDR 4-2022 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD SMALL WORKS OVER $35K 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT NO. _________ 
PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT NO.  PW2023-012 

THIS Agreement is made effective as of the 27th day of June, 2023, by and between  

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, (“CITY”), a Washington municipal corporation located 
at: 

216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
Contact:  Mayor Robert Putaansuu Phone: 360.876.4407 Fax:  360.895.9029 

and 
Aqua Tech, LLC. (“CONTRACTOR”), a Washington limited liability company located at: 

5321 Park Rd E 
Lake Tapps, WA  98391-8980 

Contact:  Robert Thurston     Phone:  360 301-3535      Email: bobt@aquatecllc.com 

for the following Project: 

McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project (“PROJECT”) 

In consideration of the mutual benefits to both parties, both Parties agree to the following: 
AGREEMENT: 

1. Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall complete the Work described in the Contract Documents
for the Project.  The following documents are collectively referred to as the “Contract Documents”:

a. This Agreement signed by the City and the Contractor;

b. Division 1 of WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, 2022
edition, together with APWA Supplement (1-99), subject to specific provisions contained within
the Public Works Terms and Conditions;

c. The attached Special Provisions, Plans and Specifications;

d. 2018 International Building Code (IBC) and 2018 Energy Code Compliance;

e. Written change orders or orders for minor changes in the Work issued after execution of this
Agreement;

f. Public Works Terms and Conditions;

g. Insurance and Bonding Requirements;

h. The Invitation to Bid, and bid proposal submitted by the Contractor, except when inconsistent with
Contract Documents a-g;

i. 2019 Public Works Engineering Standards;

j. Appendix A:  Non-Discrimination Statutes and Authorities.

Page 1 of 31Page 426 of 596

https://www.cityofportorchard.us/documents/2019-public-works-engineering-standards-pdf/


City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

k. The bid proposal submitted by the contractor, except when inconsistent with Contract documents 
a-j 

l. IF A GRANT APPLIES TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE 
FUNDING AGENCY WILL BE MADE PART OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

All of the above listed Contract Documents are each made exhibits to this Agreement and are incorporated 
into the Agreement as if set forth in full. The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items 
necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work by the Contractor.  These Contract 
Documents complement each other in describing a complete work.   Any requirement in one document 
binds as if stated in all.  The Contractor shall provide any work or materials clearly implied in the Contract 
even if the Contract does not mention it specifically. 

2. Date of Commencement and Substantial Completion Date.  The date of commencement shall be 
July 10, 2023.  The Contractor shall substantially complete the Work not later than November 10, 
2023, subject to adjustment by change order.  

3. The Contractor shall do all work and furnish all tools, materials, and equipment in accordance with 
the above described Construction Contract Documents. The Contractor shall provide and bear the 
expense of all equipment, work, and labor of any sort whatsoever that may be required for the 
transfer of materials and for constructing and completing of the work provided for in these 
Construction Contract Documents, except those items mentioned therein to be furnished by the 
City. Contractor represents that the services furnished under this Agreement will be performed in 
accordance with generally accepted professional practices in effect at the time such services are 
performed.  

 Subject to additions and deductions by change order, the construction maximum payment is the 
base bid amount of $143,657.42 (applicable sales tax included) (hereinafter “Contract Sum”). The 
construction Contract Sum shall include all items and services necessary for the proper execution 
and completion of the work. The City hereby promises and agrees with the Contractor to employ 
and does employ the Contractor to provide the materials and to do and cause to be done the work 
described in the Construction Contract Documents and to complete and finish the same according 
to the plans and specifications and the terms and conditions herein contained; and hereby contracts 
to pay for the same at the time and in the manner and upon the conditions provided for in this 
Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees to comply with all state and federal laws relating to the employment of labor 
and wage rates to be paid.  The Contractor agrees to furnish insurance of the types and in the 
amounts set forth in the Construction Contract Documents. The Contractor warrants that it is 
licensed and authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Washington and has not been 
suspended or debarred in the past three (3) years. 

6. The Contractor agrees to repair and replace all property of the City and all property of others 
damaged by Contractor, Contractor’s employees, sub-contractors.   

7. The Contractor does hereby agree to the full performance of all the covenants herein upon the part 
of the Contractor. Such agreement shall be binding upon Contractor’s heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns. 

8. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the City of Port Orchard by reason of entering 
into this Construction Contract, except as expressly provided herein.   

Page 2 of 31Page 427 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

9. Title VI.  The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 
252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of 
Transportation subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted 
programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively 
insure that its contracts comply with these regulations. 

Also, in accordance with Title VI, the City is required to include the following clauses in every 
contract subject to Title VI and its related regulations. 

Therefore, during the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest agrees as follows:  

a) Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor will comply with the Acts and the Regulations 
relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time 
to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.  

b) Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during this 
Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 
disability, income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as set 
forth in Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, including 
employment practices when this Agreement covers any activity, project, or program set forth 
in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. part 21.  

c) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Contractor for work 
to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of 
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the 
Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement and the Acts and the Regulations relative to 
Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, income-
level, or LEP.  

d) Information and Reports: The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by 
the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its 
books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined 
by the City or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, 
and instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive 
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so 
certify to the City or the FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to 
obtain the information.  

e) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the Non-
discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the City will impose such contract sanctions as it 
or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:  

1. withholding payments to the Contractor under the Agreement until the contractor 
complies; and/or  

2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Agreement, in whole or in part.  

Page 3 of 31Page 428 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

f) Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs 9.a 
through 9.f in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant 
thereto. The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as 
the City or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions 
for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened 
with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the Contractor may 
request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the City. In addition, the 
Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests 
of the United States.  

10. Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW. Contractor understands that their bid response documents, 
and any contract documents may be subject to release under the Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 
RCW and the City may be required to disclose such documents upon a request.  Contractor 
acknowledges that they have been advised to mark any records believed to be trade secrets or 
confidential in nature as “confidential.” If records marked as “confidential” are found to be 
responsive to the request for records, the City as a courtesy to the Contractor, may elect to give 
notice to Contractor of the request so as to allow Contractor to seek a protective order from a Court.  
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any records deemed responsive to a public records 
request may be released at the sole discretion of, and without notice by, the City. 

11. Warranty. Upon acceptance of the contract work, Contractor must provide the City a two-year 
warranty bond in the amount of twenty percent (20%) of the contract price a form and amount 
acceptable to the City.  The Contractor shall correct all defects in workmanship and materials 
within two (2) years from the date of the City’s acceptance of the Contract work, including 
replacing vegetation that fails to thrive.  In the event any parts are repaired or replaced, only 
original replacement parts shall be used—rebuilt or used parts will not be acceptable.  When 
defects are corrected, the warranty for that portion of the work shall extend for one  (1) additional 
year from the date such correction is completed and accepted by the City.  The Contractor shall 
begin to correct any defects within seven (7) calendar days of its receipt of notice from the City of 
the defect.  If the Contractor does not accomplish the corrections within a reasonable time as 
determined by the City, the City may complete the corrections and the Contractor shall pay all 
costs incurred by the City in order to accomplish the correction. 

12. Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or 
suits, including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the 
sole negligence of the City. 

The City's inspection or acceptance of any of Contractor's work when completed shall not be grounds 
to avoid any of these covenants of indemnification. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 
then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 
property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor and the City, its 
officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers, the Contractor's liability hereunder shall be 
only to the extent of the Contractor's negligence. 

Page 4 of 31Page 429 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED 
HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONTRACTOR'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, 
TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION.  THE PARTIES FURTHER 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. 

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 

13. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a) Non-Waiver of Breach.  The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the 
covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred by 
this Agreement in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment 
of those covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and 
effect. 

b) Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  If the parties are unable to settle any 
dispute, difference or claim arising from the parties’ performance of this Agreement, the exclusive 
means of resolving that dispute, difference or claim, shall only be by filing suit exclusively under 
the venue, rules and jurisdiction of the Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington, 
unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute resolution process.  In any claim or 
lawsuit for damages arising from the parties' performance of this Agreement, each party shall pay 
all its legal costs and attorney's fees incurred in defending or bringing such claim or lawsuit, 
including all appeals, in addition to any other recovery or award provided by law; provided, 
however, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the City's right to indemnification 
under Section XII of this Agreement. 

c) Written Notice.  All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the 
addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.  Any 
written notice hereunder shall become effective three (3) business days after the date of mailing 
by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at 
the address stated in this Agreement or such other address as may be hereafter specified in 
writing. 

d) Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by either party without the written consent of the 
non-assigning party shall be void.  If the non-assigning party gives its consent to any assignment, 
the terms of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall 
be made without additional written consent. 

e) Modification.  No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and 
Contractor. 

f) Entire Agreement.  The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits 
attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative 
of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into or forming 
a part of or altering in any manner this Agreement.  All of the above documents are hereby made 
a part of this Agreement.  However, should any language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement 
conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

g) Compliance with Laws.  The Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, 
rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the future become applicable to Contractor's 

Page 5 of 31Page 430 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or accruing 
out of the performance of those operations. 

h) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall constitute an original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be duly executed on the 
date first written above. 
 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD    CONTRACTOR 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor     
       By:      
       Its:      
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATE: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 

Page 6 of 31Page 431 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL 
 
 I, ____________________________________ (Corporate Officer (Not Contract Signer)) certify that 
I am the _________________________________________ (Corporate Title) of the corporation named as 
the Contractor in the Agreement attached hereto; that _______________________________, (Contract 
Signer) who signed said Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then __________________________ 
(Corporate Title) of said corporation; that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said 
corporation by authority of its governing body, and is within the scope of its corporate powers. 
 

Corporate Seal 
 
                            ______________________________________ 
                            Corp. officer signature (not contract signer) 
                            ______________________________________ 
                            Printed 
                            ______________________________________ 
                            Title  
 
 
State of ____________  ) 
    ) ss 
County of __________  ) 
 
_____________________________________, (corporate officer (not contract signer)) being duly sworn, 
deposes and says that he/she is _____________________________ (Corporate Title) of 
______________________________ (Name of Corporation)  
 
                        Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of _____________, 20______  
 
 

______________________________ 
                                     Notary Public (Signature) 
 
                                     ______________________________ 
                                     Notary Public (Print) 
               My commission expires____________  
 
 
 

Page 7 of 31Page 432 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
PUBLIC WORK PROJECT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The following terms and conditions shall be used in conjunction with the Standard Specifications for Road, 
Bridge and Municipal Construction, 2022 edition, together with the APWA Supplement (Section 1-99), as 
issued by the Washington State Department of Transportation and American Public Works Association, 
Washington State Chapter, hereinafter referred to as the "standard specifications".  The standard 
specifications, except as they may be modified or superseded by these provisions, shall govern all phases 
of work under this Contract, and they are by reference made an integral part of these specifications and 
Contract as if herein fully set forth.  

When the provisions of the standard specification conflict with the terms and conditions as contained 
herein, the terms and conditions shall prevail. 

1. BID PRICE: The bid price(s) shall include all necessary permits, fees and items of labor, material, 
equipment, tools, overhead and compensation, supplies, taxes, utilities, and other incidentals 
necessary to complete the work in a fully functional and operational state. All prices including bid 
prices are in US funds. 

2. DEFINITIONS: The term “City” means Port Orchard, Washington, “successful bidder” means the 
apparent lowest and best responsible bidder to whom an award is made, and “Contractor” means 
the successful bidder who has satisfied the requirements for the award and who receives a contract 
executed by the City. “Bidder” means the person, firm or corporation that has made an offer in 
response to the invitation to bid. “Work” means the construction and services required by the 
Contract Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, 
materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the 
Contractor’s obligations.  

3. LICENSING AND REGISTRATION: The Contractor must have a Washington State certificate of 
registration per chapter 18.27 RCW; a current state unified business identifier number; and if 
applicable, industrial insurance coverage for the bidder's employees working in Washington, an 
Employment Security Department number, and a state excise tax registration number. In addition, 
the bidder must not be disqualified from bidding on any public works contracts under RCW 
39.06.010 or 39.12.065(3).  

4. PUBLIC WORK REQUIREMENTS: This project constitutes a public work under state law. Bidders are 
warned to take into consideration statutory legal requirements, particularly, the payment of 
prevailing wages and fringe benefits, payment and performance bonds and sales tax implications in 
making their bids. It is the sole responsibility of the bidder to insure that the appropriate labor 
classification(s) are identified and that the applicable wage and benefit rates are taken into 
consideration when preparing their bid according to these specifications. The Contractor shall 
complete and file State of Washington, Department of Labor & Industries, Statement of Intent to 
Pay Prevailing Wages and Affidavit of Wages Paid forms and shall familiarize itself with their 
requirements. The Contractor shall also be responsible for and pay all costs pertaining to the 
processing of these forms.  

5. PREVAILING WAGES: The Contractor shall pay prevailing wages as required and shall comply with 
Chapters 39.12 and 49.28 RCW.  Prior to beginning work under this Contract, the Contractor shall 
submit -- on behalf of itself and each and every Sub-Contractor – a "Statement of Intent to Pay 
Prevailing Wages," which must be approved by the Department of Labor and Industries (See link 

Page 8 of 31Page 433 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

below.) Following the final acceptance of the project, the Contractor must submit -- on behalf of itself 
and every Sub-Contractor -- an "Affidavit of Wages Paid" for final payment.  Final payments shall be 
made in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 39.12 RCW. 

Refer to http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp for Washington 
State Prevailing Wage rates.   

6. INSURANCE REQUIREMENT: The successful bidder will furnish insurance as stipulated in the 
Attachment entitled “Insurance Requirements.” 

7. RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: All official clarifications or interpretations of the bid documents will be by 
written addenda only. 

8. PROJECT COMPLIANCE: In compliance with the request for quotation, Bidder hereby proposes to 
perform all work for this project in strict accordance with the Contract Documents, at the Contract 
Sum, and within the time set forth herein with the understanding that time is of the essence in the 
performance of this Contract. 

9. TAXES: Proposals shall include all applicable taxes except sales tax, which is a separate bid item. It 
shall be the Bidder's responsibility to furnish Federal Excise Tax Exemption Certificate, when 
applicable. 

10. ERROR IN EXTENSION: Unit price, when used, shall govern in case of extension error.  If a 
discrepancy between the numerical unit price and the written (words) unit price is found, the 
written (words) unit price shall control.   

11. PERMITS AND FEES: The Contractor shall furnish all permits, inspection fees, and fees required in 
the performance of this Contract, including those charged under RCW 39.12.070 by the Department 
of Labor and Industries for the approval of statements of intent to pay prevailing wages and the 
certification of affidavits of wages paid, etc. The Department may also charge fees to persons or 
organizations requesting the arbitration of disputes under RCW 39.12.060. The Contractor is 
responsible for all fees resulting from these statutes. 

12. CONTRACT: The Contract Documents (“Contract”), when properly signed, will be the only form that 
will be recognized by the City as an award. The executed Contract supersedes all previous 
communications and negotiations, except as referenced herein, and constitutes the entire 
agreement between the City and Contractor (parties), except as provided herein. The Contractor 
shall not make any changes, alterations, or variations in the terms of the Contract without the 
written consent of the City. No terms stated by the Bidder in its proposal shall be binding on the City 
unless accepted in writing by the City. The successful bidder may not assign the Contract resulting 
from this invitation to bid without the City’s prior written consent. No waiver by the City of a breach 
of any provision of the terms and conditions outlined in the invitation to bid shall constitute a waiver 
of any other breach of such provision or of any other provisions.  

13. CHANGES:  The City may issue a written change order for any change in the Contract work during 
the performance of this Agreement.  If the Contractor determines, for any reason, that a change 
order is necessary, Contractor must submit a written change order request to the person listed in 
the Notice provision section of this Agreement, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date 
Contractor knew or should have known of the facts and events giving rise to the requested change. 
If the City determines that the change increases or decreases the Contractor's costs or time for 
performance, the City will make an equitable adjustment. The City will attempt, in good faith, to 

Page 9 of 31Page 434 of 596

http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp


City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

reach agreement with the Contractor on all equitable adjustments.  However, if the parties are 
unable to agree, the City will determine the equitable adjustment as it deems appropriate.  The 
Contractor shall proceed with the change order work upon receiving either a written change order 
from the City or an oral order from the City before actually receiving the written change order.  If 
the Contractor fails to require a change order within the time specified in this paragraph, the 
Contractor waives its right to make any claim or submit subsequent change order requests for that 
portion of the contract work.  If the Contractor disagrees with the equitable adjustment, the 
Contractor must complete the change order work; however, the Contractor may elect to protest the 
adjustment as provided in subsections A through E of Section 13 entitled, “Claims,” below. 

The Contractor accepts all requirements of a change order by: (1) endorsing it, (2) writing a separate 
acceptance, or (3) not protesting in the way this section provides.  A change order that is accepted 
by Contractor as provided in this section shall constitute full payment and final settlement of all 
claims for contract time and for direct, indirect, and consequential costs, including costs of delays 
related to any work, either covered or affected by the change. 

14. CLAIMS:  If the Contractor disagrees with anything required by a change order, another written 
order, or an oral order from the City, including any direction, instruction, interpretation, or 
determination by the City, the Contractor may file a claim as provided in this section. The Contractor 
shall give written notice to the City of all claims within fourteen (14) calendar days of the occurrence 
of the events giving rise to the claims, or within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date the 
Contractor knew or should have known of the facts or events giving rise to the claim, whichever 
occurs first.  Any claim for damages, additional payment for any reason, or extension of time, 
whether under this Agreement or otherwise, shall be conclusively deemed to have been waived by 
the Contractor unless a timely written claim is made in strict accordance with the applicable 
provisions of this Agreement.  

At a minimum, a Contractor's written claim shall include the information set forth in subsections A, 
items 1 through 5 below. 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE A COMPLETE, WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF CLAIM WITHIN THE TIME ALLOWED 
SHALL BE AN ABSOLUTE WAIVER OF ANY CLAIMS ARISING IN ANY WAY FROM THE FACTS OR 
EVENTS SURROUNDING THAT CLAIM OR CAUSED BY THAT DELAY. 

 A. Notice of Claim. Provide a signed written notice of claim that provides the following 
information: 

1. The date of the Contractor's claim; 
2. The nature and circumstances that caused the claim; 
3.  The provisions in this Agreement that support the claim; 
4. The estimated dollar cost, if any, of the claimed work and how that estimate was 

determined; and 
5. An analysis of the progress schedule showing the schedule change or disruption if the 

Contractor is asserting a schedule change or disruption. 

 B. Records. The Contractor shall keep complete records of extra costs and time incurred as a 
result of the asserted events giving rise to the claim. The City shall have access to any of the Contractor's 
records needed for evaluating the protest. 

Page 10 of 31Page 435 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

The City will evaluate all claims, provided the procedures in this section are followed.  If the City 
determines that a claim is valid, the City will adjust payment for work or time by an equitable adjustment.  
No adjustment will be made for an invalid protest. 

 C. Contractor's Duty to Complete Protested Work.  In spite of any claim, the Contractor shall 
proceed promptly to provide the goods, materials and services required by the City under this Agreement. 

 D. Failure to Protest Constitutes Waiver.  By not protesting as this section provides, the 
Contractor also waives any additional entitlement and accepts from the City any written or oral order 
(including directions, instructions, interpretations, and determination). 

 E. Failure to Follow Procedures Constitutes Waiver.  By failing to follow the procedures of this 
section, the Contractor completely waives any claims for protested work and accepts from the City any 
written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations, and determination). 

15. LIMITATION OF ACTIONS:  CONTRACTOR MUST, IN ANY EVENT, FILE ANY LAWSUIT ARISING FROM 
OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT WITHIN 120 CALENDAR DAYS FROM THE DATE THE CONTRACT 
WORK IS COMPLETE OR CONTRACTOR’S ABILITY TO FILE THAT CLAIM OR SUIT SHALL BE FOREVER BARRED.  
THIS SECTION FURTHER LIMITS ANY APPLICABLE STATUTORY LIMITATIONS PERIOD. 

16. WORK PERFORMED AT CONTRACTOR'S RISK:  Contractor shall take all necessary precautions and 
shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of the 
contract work and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at 
Contractor's own risk, and Contractor shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or 
other articles used or held for use in connection with the work. 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS: The Contractor warrants full compliance with all 
applicable local, state, or federal laws and regulations and agrees to indemnify and defend the City against 
any loss, cost, liability, or damage, including reasonable attorney’s fees, by reason of successful bidder's 
violation of this paragraph. 
 
18.  EMPLOYMENT OF STATE RETIREES: The City is a “DRS-covered employer” which is an organization 
that employs one or more members of any retirement system administered by the Washington State 
Department of Retirement Systems (DRS). Pursuant to RCW 41.50.139(1) and WAC 415-02-325(1), the 
City is required to elicit on a written form if any of the Contractor’s employees providing services to the 
City retired using the 2008 Early Retirement Factors (ERFs), or if the Contractor is owned by an individual 
who retired using the 2008 ERFs, and whether the nature of the service and compensation would result 
in a retirement benefit being suspended. Failure to make this determination exposes the City to significant 
liability for pension overpayments. As a result, before commencing work under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall determine whether any of its employees providing services to the City or any of the 
Contractor’s owners retired using the 2008 ERFs, and shall immediately notify the City and shall promptly 
complete the form provided by the City after this notification is made. This notification to DRS could 
impact the payment of retirement benefits to employees and owners of Contractor. Contractor shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or other liability, 
including attorneys’ fees and costs, relating to a claim by DRS of a pension overpayment caused by or 
resulting from Contractor’s failure to comply with the terms of this provision. This provision shall survive 
termination of this Agreement.  
 
19. TERMINATION:  This Contract may be terminated in whole or in part, without penalty, under the 
following conditions: 1) by mutual written agreement; 2) by the City for breach by the Contractor of any 

Page 11 of 31Page 436 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

of the obligations or requirements set forth in the Contract Documents which would, at the option of the 
City, require the Contractor to assume liability for any and all damages, including the excess of re-
procuring similar products or services; 3) for convenience of the City; or 4) by the City for non-
appropriation of funds. 

a) Termination for Cause. The City may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to its surety, 
terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for 
cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events: Contractor fails to complete 
the work or any portion thereof with sufficient diligence to ensure substantial completion of the work 
within the contract time; Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit 
of its creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency; Contractor fails in a material 
way to replace or correct work not in conformance with the Contract Documents, Contractor 
repeatedly fails to supply skilled workers or proper materials or equipment;  Contractor materially 
disregards or fails to comply with laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority 
having jurisdiction; or Contractor is otherwise in material breach of any provision of the contract. Upon 
termination, the City may, at its option, take possession of or use all documents, materials, equipment, 
tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by Contractor to maintain the 
orderly progress of, and to finish, the work, and finish the work by whatever other reasonable method 
it deems expedient.  

b) Termination for Convenience. The City may, upon written notice, terminate (without prejudice to any 
right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for the convenience of the City.  

c) Settlement of Costs. If the City terminates for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled to make a 
request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred prior to the effective date 
of the termination, plus a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit on work performed prior to 
termination, plus the reasonable administrative costs of the termination, but shall not be entitled to 
any other costs or damages, whatsoever, provided however, the total sum payable upon termination 
shall not exceed the Contract Sum reduced by prior payments. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH TERMS: The City may at any time insist upon strict compliance with these terms 
and conditions, notwithstanding any previous custom, practice, or course of dealing to the contrary. 

21. PAYMENT: Contractor shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City along 
with monthly invoices in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to the date of the invoice. All 
invoices shall be paid by the City within 45 days of receipt of a proper invoice. If the services rendered to 
not meet the requirements of the Contract, Contractor will correct or modify the work to comply with the 
Contract. City may withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the 
Contract. 

22. RETAINAGE:  Unless the City waives the retainage requirement in accordance with RCW 
39.04.155(2)(f), the City shall, pursuant to the requirements of RCW 60.28.011, retain five percent (5%) of 
the monies earned under this Contract, which shall be maintained by the City according to the Contractor's 
requested method.  

23.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  In the event there is a dispute between the parties, the parties agree to resolve 
that dispute in the following manner: (a) The parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute 
promptly through negotiation. Either party may give the other party written notice that a dispute exists 
(a “Notice of Dispute”). The Notice of Dispute shall include a statement of such party’s position. Within 
ten (10) days of the delivery of the Notice of Dispute, the parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time 

Page 12 of 31Page 437 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

and place and attempt to resolve the dispute; (b) If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute, they may 
elect to submit the dispute to mediation. The cost of the mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 
The mediator shall be selected by the mutual agreement of the parties; (c) If the mediation does not result 
in a settlement of the dispute, the dispute shall be settled by binding arbitration by the Judicial Arbitration 
and Mediation Services (“JAMS”) in accordance with the then operative construction rules of JAMS. The 
parties may select an arbitrator by mutual agreement, or if unable to agree, the arbitrator will be selected 
pursuant to the rules of JAMS. The parties shall be bound by the decision of such arbitrator. The arbitration 
shall be conducted in Kitsap County, Washington; provided, if JAMS is unable to conduct the arbitration 
in Kitsap County, then the arbitration shall be held in such location as the parties may agree after 
consulting with JAMS.  

 
  

Page 13 of 31Page 438 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Insurance Term. The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Contract with the City, 
insurance as described herein, without interruption from commencement of the Contractor’s work 
through the term of the contract and for thirty (30) days after the physical completion date, unless 
otherwise indicated herein. Such insurance shall be against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
Contractor, their agents, representatives, employees and subcontractors and shall meet the requirements 
herein.   

No Limitation.  The Contractor’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage and limits as required 
herein shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.   

Minimum Scope of Insurance.  The Contractor shall obtain insurance of the types described below:  

• Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles.  
Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.  

• Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall 
cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop gap liability, independent contractors, 
products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, and liability assumed under 
an insured contract. The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide the 
Aggregate Per Project Endorsement ISO form CG 25 03 11 85 or an equivalent endorsement. There 
shall be no endorsement or modification of the Commercial General Liability Insurance for liability 
arising from explosion, collapse, or underground property damage. The City shall be named by 
endorsement as an additional insured under the Contractor’s Commercial General Liability 
insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City using ISO Additional Insured 
endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and Additional Insured-Completed Operations endorsement CG 20 
37 10 01 or substitute endorsements providing equivalent coverage.  

• Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the State of 
Washington.   

• Employers’ Liability coverage to include bodily injury, and bodily injury by disease. Employers 
Liability coverage may be included in the Contractor’s General Liability Coverage or as a stand-
alone policy. 

• Builders Risk insurance covering interests of the City, the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-
subcontractors in the work.  Builders Risk insurance shall be on an all-risk policy form and shall 
insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and physical loss or damage including flood, 
earthquake, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, temporary buildings, and debris 
removal.  The Builders Risk insurance covering the work will have a deductible of $5,000 for each 
occurrence, which will be the responsibility of the Contractor.  Higher deductibles for flood and 
earthquake perils may be accepted by the City upon written request by the Contractor and written 
acceptance by the City.  Any increased deductibles accepted by the City will remain the 

Page 14 of 31Page 439 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

responsibility of the Contractor.  The Builders Risk insurance shall be maintained until final 
acceptance of the work by the City.   

• Employer’s Liability insurance limit of $1,000,000 each accident, Employer’s Liability Disease each 
employee $1,000,000 and Employer’s Liability Disease – Policy limit $1,000.000.   

Minimum Amounts of Insurance.   The Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits:   

• Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage of $1,000.000 per accident. 

• Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and a $2,000,000 products-completed operations 
aggregate limit.   

• Builders Risk insurance shall be written in the amount of the completed value of the project with 
no coinsurance provisions.   

• Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of Washington. 

• Employer’s Liability insurance with Washington Stop Gap Employers’ Liability minimum limits of 
$1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 disease - each employee, $1,000,000 disease - policy limit. 

The City will not be responsible for payment of industrial insurance premiums or for any other claim or 
benefit for this Contractor or any sub-Contractor or employee of the Contractor which might arise under 
the industrial insurance laws during the performance of duties and services under this contract. If the 
Department of Labor and Industries, upon audit, determines that industrial insurance payments are due 
and owing as a result of work performed under this contract, those payments shall be made by the 
Contractor; the Contractor shall indemnify the City and guarantee payment of such amounts. 

Public Entity Full Availability of Contractor Limits. If the Contractor maintains higher insurance limits than 
the minimums shown above, the Public Entity shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial 
General and Excess or Umbrella liability maintained by the Contractor, irrespective of whether such limits 
maintained by the Contractor are greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate 
of insurance furnished to the Public Entity evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by the 
Contractor. 

 

Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 
following provisions for Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability and Builders Risk insurance: 

• The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

• If any coverage is written on a “claims made” basis, then a minimum of three (3) year extended 
reporting period shall be included with the claims made policy, and proof of this extended 
reporting period shall be provided to the City. 

Contractor’s Insurance for Other Losses.  The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for all loss or 
damage from any cause whatsoever to any tools, Contractor’s employee-owned tools, machinery, 
equipment, or motor vehicles owned or rented by the Contractor, or the Contractor’s agents, suppliers or 
contractors as well as to any temporary structures, scaffolding and protective fences.   

Page 15 of 31Page 440 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

Waiver of Subrogation.  The Contractor waives all rights against the City, any of its Subcontractors, Sub-
subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered 
by Builders Risk insurance or other property insurance obtained pursuant to this Insurance Requirements 
Section of the Contract or other property insurance applicable to the work.  The Contractor’s insurance 
shall be endorsed to waive the right of subrogation against the City, or any self-insurance, or insurance 
pool coverage maintained by the City.  The City will not waive its right to subrogation against the 
Contractor.  The Contractor’s insurance shall be endorsed acknowledging that the City will not waive its 
right to subrogation.     

Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not 
less than A:VII. 

Verification of Coverage.  The Contractor shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the 
amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, 
evidencing the Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance of the Contractor before 
commencement of the work.  Before any exposure to loss may occur, the Contractor shall file with the 
City a copy of the Builders Risk insurance policy that includes all applicable conditions, exclusions, 
definitions, terms, and endorsements related to this project.   

Subcontractors.  Contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor of every tier obtain at a minimum the 
same insurance coverage and limits as stated herein for the Contractor (with the exception of Builders 
Risk insurance). Upon request the City, the Contractor shall provide evidence of such insurance.  The 
Contractor shall ensure that the Public Entity is an additional insured on each and every Subcontractor’s 
Commercial General liability insurance policy using an endorsement as least as broad as ISO CG 20 10 10 
01 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 10 01 for completed operations. 

Notice of Cancellation.  The Contractor’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been provided to the City. The Contractor shall provide the City and all Additional Insureds 
for this work with written notice of any policy cancellation, within two business days of their receipt of 
such notice.   

Failure to Maintain Insurance.  The insurance required by this Section will not be canceled, materially 
changed or altered without forty-five (45) days prior written notice submitted to the City.  Failure on the 
part of the Contractor to maintain insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, 
upon which the City may, after giving five business days’ notice to the Contractor to correct the breach, 
immediately terminate the Contract, or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any 
and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, 
or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Contractor from the City.   

Page 16 of 31Page 441 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

DECLARATION OF OPTION FOR PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT 

BOND OR ADDITIONAL RETAINAGE 

(APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS OF $150,000 OR LESS –RCW 39.08.010) 

NOTE 1: This form must be submitted at the time the Contractor executes the Contract. The Contractor 
shall designate the option desired by checking the appropriate space. 

NOTE 2: Regardless of choice under Section 2 of this form, the Contractor will be required to provide a 
warranty/maintenance bond effective at project close out prior to either release of the performance bond 
or release of the 10% retainage.  

1. The Contractor shall provide 5% retainage, pursuant to RCW 60.28.011(1)(a). 

2. In addition, the Contractor elects to (select one): 

________ (1) Furnish a performance bond in the amount of the total contract sum. An executed 
performance bond on the required form is included with the executed contract documents.  

________ (2) Have the City retain, in lieu of the performance and payment bonds, an additional 
5% for a total of ten percent (10%) of the total contract amount for a period of thirty days after 
date of final acceptance, or until receipt of all necessary releases from the department of revenue, 
the employment security department and the department of labor and industries and settlement 
of any liens filed under chapter 60.28 RCW, whichever is later.  (RCW 39.08.010) 

In choosing option 2, the Contractor agrees that if the Contractor, its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions and agreements in the Contract, and shall faithfully 
perform all the provisions of such Contract and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the 
undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of any and all duly authorized 
modifications of the Contract that may hereafter be made, at the time and in the manner therein 
specified, and shall pay all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, and materialmen, and all persons 
who shall supply such person or persons, or subcontractors, with provisions and supplies for the 
carrying on of such work, on his or her part, and shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless the 
City of Port Orchard, Washington, its officers and agents from any claim for such payment, then 
the funds retained in lieu of a performance bond shall be released at the time provided in said 
option 2; otherwise, the funds shall be retained until the Contractor fulfills the said obligations. 

          __________________________________  
  Contractor Signature 

 Date_________________________ 

Bond No. _________________________ 

Page 17 of 31Page 442 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
MCCORMICK WOODS STEP SYSTEM RETROFIT PROJECT 

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT NO. PW2023-012 

Bond to City of Port Orchard, Washington 

Bond No. _____________ 

We, ___________________________________, and __________________________________, 
 (Principal) (Surety) 

a _________________________________ Corporation, and as a surety corporation authorized to become 
a surety upon Bonds of Contractors with municipal corporations in Washington State, are jointly and 
severally bound to the City of Port Orchard, Washington (“Owner”), in the penal sum of  
_________________________________________________________   Dollars ($_________________), 
the payment of which sum, on demand, we bind ourselves and our successors, heirs, administrators, 
executors, or personal representatives, as the case may be. This Performance Bond is provided to secure 
the performance of Principal in connection with a contract dated_____________, 20___, between Principal 
and Owner for a project entitled McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project, Project No. PW2023-012 
(“Project”). The initial penal sum shall equal 100 percent of the Total Bid Price, including sales tax, as 
specified in the Proposal submitted by Principal. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Performance and Payment Bond shall be satisfied and released only upon the 
condition that Principal, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns: 

• Faithfully performs all provisions of the Contract and changes authorized by Owner in the manner 
and within the time specified as may be extended under the Contract; 

• Pays all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material persons, and all 
other persons or agents who supply labor, equipment, or materials to the Project;  

• Pays the taxes, increases and penalties incurred on the Project under Titles 50, 51 and 82 RCW on: 
(A) Projects referred to in RCW 60.28.011(1)(b); and/or (B) Projects for which the bond is 
conditioned on the payment of such taxes, increases and penalties; and   

• Posts a two-year warranty/maintenance bond to secure the project. Such bond shall be in the 
amount of twenty percent (20%) of the project costs.  

 
Provided, further that this bond shall remain in full force and effect until released in writing by the City at 
the request of the Surety or Principal. 

The surety shall indemnify, defend, and protect the Owner against any claim of direct or indirect loss 
resulting from the failure: 

• Of the Principal (or any of the employees, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors of the 
Principal) to faithfully perform the contract, or 

• Of the Principal (or any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor of the Principal) to pay all 
laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material person, or any other 
person who provides supplies or provisions for carrying out the work. 

Page 18 of 31Page 443 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

The liability of Surety shall be limited to the penal sum of this Performance and Payment Bond. 

Principle and Surety agree that if the Owner is required to engage the services of an attorney in connection 
with enforcement of this bond each shall pay the Owner reasonable attorney’s fees, whether or not suit 
is commenced, in addition to the penal sum. 

No change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work to be 
performed under the Contract shall in any way affect Surety’s obligation on the Performance Bond. Surety 
hereby waives notice of any change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract 
or the Work, with the exception that Surety shall be notified if the Contract time is extended by more than 
twenty percent (20%). 

If any modification or change increases the total amount to be paid under the Contract, Surety’s obligation 
under this Performance and Payment Bond shall automatically increase in a like amount. Any such 
increase shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the original amount of the Performance and 
Payment Bond without the prior written consent of Surety. 

This Performance and Payment Bond shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State of 
Washington, and venue shall be in Kitsap County, Washington. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument in two (2) identical counterparts this 
_______ day of _________________, 20 ___. 

 
__________________________________ 
Principal 

__________________________________ 
Surety 

 
__________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Official 

 
__________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Official 

 
By___________________________________ 

 
By__________________________________ 

Printed Name and Title Attorney in Fact (Attach Power of Attorney) 

Name and address of local office of 
Agent and/or Surety Company: 

__________________________________ 
__________________________________ 
__________________________________ 
 

Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the current Authorized Insurance List in the State of 
Washington per Section 1-02.7 of the Standard Specifications. 

Page 19 of 31Page 444 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Corporation, Partnership, or Individual 

STATE OF  ) 

 )ss. 

COUNTY OF  ) 

On this _____ day of____________, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared________________________, 
to me known to be the (check one of the following boxes): 

 _______________________ of __________________________________, the 
 corporation, 

 _______________________ of __________________________________, the 
 partnership, 

 individual, 

that executed the foregoing instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said  corporation, 
 partnership,  individual for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that they 

are authorized to execute said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 

Dated: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 
Print or type name 

NOTARY PUBLIC, 
in and for the State of Washington 

Residing at:______________________________ 

My Commission expires:____________________ Notary Seal with Ink Stamp 

Page 20 of 31Page 445 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF  ) 

 )ss. 

COUNTY OF  ) 

On this _______ day of________________, 20_____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and 
for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared___________________, 
to me known to be the _____________________________ of________________________________, the 
corporation that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free 
and voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
stated that they are authorized to execute said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 

 

Dated: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 
Print or type name 

NOTARY PUBLIC, 
in and for the State of Washington 

Residing at:____________________________________ 

My Commission expires: _______________________ 
 

 
 
 

  

Notary Seal with Ink Stamp 

Page 21 of 31Page 446 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
MAINTENANCE/WARRANTY BOND 

 
(Note:  Contractor will be required to provide a two-year warranty/maintenance bond effective at 
project close out prior to either release of the performance bond or release of the 10% retainage.)  
 

PROJECT #, PERMIT #,  PW2023-012 
CONTRACT #  
SURETY BOND #:  
DATE POSTED:   
EXPIRATION DATE:  

 
RE: Project Name: McCormick Woods STEP System Retrofit Project 

Owner/Developer/Contractor:  
Project Address: McCormick Woods 

 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That we,                  (hereinafter called the 
"Principal"), and     , a corporation organized under the laws of the State of  
   , and authorized to transact surety business in the State of Washington (hereinafter 
called the "Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto the  City of Port Orchard, Washington, in the sum of  
                       dollars ($  ) 20% Total Contract 
Amount,  lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum we and each of us 
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by these 
presents.  THE CONDITIONS of the above obligation are such that:   

 WHEREAS, the above named Principal has constructed and installed certain improvements on public 
property in connection with a project as described above within the City of Port Orchard; and 

  WHEREAS, the Principal is required to post a bond for the twenty-four (24) months following written 
and final acceptance of the project in order to provide security for the obligation of the Principal to repair 
and/or replace said improvements against defects in workmanship, materials or installation during the 
twenty-four (24) months after written and final approval/acceptance of the same by the City;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, this Maintenance Bond has been secured and is hereby submitted to the City.  It 
is understood and agreed that this obligation shall continue in effect until released in writing by the City, but 
only after the Principal has performed and satisfied the following conditions:  

A. The work or improvements installed by the Principal and subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Bond are as follows: (insert complete description of work here) 

              

              

              

B. The Principal and Surety agree that the work and improvements installed in the above-referenced 
project shall remain free from defects in material, workmanship and installation (or, in the case of 
landscaping, shall survive,) for a period of twenty-four (24) months after written and final acceptance of the 

Page 22 of 31Page 447 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

same and approval by the City.  Maintenance is defined as acts carried out to prevent a decline, lapse or 
cessation of the state of the project or improvements as accepted by the City during the twenty-four (24) 
month period after final and written acceptance, and includes, but is not limited to, repair or replacement of 
defective workmanship, materials or installations.   

C. The Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, carefully replace and/or repair any damage or defects 
in workmanship, materials or installation to the City-owned real property on which improvements have been 
installed, and shall leave the same in as good condition as it was before commencement of the work.   

D. The Principal and the Surety agree that in the event any of the improvements or restoration work 
installed or completed by the Principal as described herein, fail to remain free from defects in materials, 
workmanship or installation (or in the case of landscaping, fail to survive), for a period of twenty-four (24) 
months from the date of approval/acceptance of the work by the City, the Principal shall repair and/replace 
the same within ten (10) days of demand by the City, and if the Principal should fail to do so, then the Surety 
shall: 

 1. Within twenty (20) days of demand of the City, make written commitment to the   
 City that it will either: 

  a). remedy the default itself with reasonable diligence pursuant to a time schedule 
acceptable to the City; or 

  b). tender to the City within an additional ten (10) days the amount necessary, as 
determined by the City, for the City to remedy the default, up to the total bond 
amount.   

  Upon completion of the Surety's duties under either of the options above, the Surety shall 
then have fulfilled its obligations under this bond.  If the Surety elects to fulfill its obligation 
pursuant to the requirements of subsection D(1)(b), the City shall notify the Surety of the 
actual cost of the remedy, upon completion of the remedy.  The City shall return, without 
interest, any overpayment made by the Surety, and the Surety shall pay to the City any actual 
costs which exceeded the City estimate, limited to the bond amount. 

 2. In the event the Principal fails to make repairs or provide maintenance within the time period 
requested by the City, then the City, its employees and agents shall have the right at the City's 
sole election to enter onto said property described above for the purpose of repairing or 
maintaining the improvements.  This provision shall not be construed as creating an obligation 
on the part of the City or its representatives to repair or maintain such improvements. 

E. Corrections.  Any corrections required by the City shall be commenced within ten (10) days of 
notification by the City and completed within thirty (30) days of the date of notification.  If the work 
is not performed in a timely manner, the City shall have the right, without recourse to legal action, to 
take such action under this bond as described in Section D above. 

F. Extensions and Changes.  No change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the work to be 
performed by the Principal shall affect the obligation of the Principal or Surety on this bond, unless 
the City specifically agrees, in writing, to such alteration, addition, extension or change.  The Surety 
waives notice of any such change, extension, alteration or addition thereunder.   

G. Enforcement.  It is specifically agreed by and between the parties that in the event any legal action 
must be taken to enforce the provisions of this bond or to collect said bond, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to collect its costs and reasonable attorney fees as a part of the reasonable costs of 

Page 23 of 31Page 448 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

securing the obligation hereunder.  In the event of settlement or resolution of these issues prior to 
the filing of any suit, the actual costs incurred by the City, including reasonable attorney fees, shall be 
considered a part of the obligation hereunder secured.  Said costs and reasonable legal fees shall be 
recoverable by the prevailing party, not only from the proceeds of this bond, but also over and above 
said bond as a part of any recovery (including recovery on the bond) in any judicial proceeding.  The 
Surety hereby agrees that this bond shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington.  Venue 
of any litigation arising out of this bond shall be in Kitsap County Superior Court. 

H. Bond Expiration.  This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations secured hereby 
have been fully performed and until released in writing by the City at the request of the Surety or 
Principal. 

 DATED this        day of     , 20__. 

SURETY COMPANY    DEVELOPER/OWNER 

(Signature must be notarized)   (Signature must be notarized) 

By:       By        

 Its        Its        

Business Name:       Business Name:       

Business Address:       Business Address:       

City/State/Zip Code:       City/State/Zip Code:       

Telephone Number:       Telephone Number:       

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

By:       Date: _________________________ 

 Its Public Works Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CHECK FOR ATTACHED NOTARY SIGNATURE 
____ Developer/Owner (Form P-1) 
____ Surety Company (Form P-2)  

Page 24 of 31Page 449 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

 
FORM P-1 / NOTARY BLOCK 
(Developer/Owner) 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF KITSAP   ) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that                                                 is the person who appeared 

before me, and said person acknowledged as the _____________________________ of 

_________________________________that they signed this instrument, on oath stated that they are 

authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be their free and voluntary act for the uses and 

purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 
      Dated:                     
                           
                          
  
              
                  (print or type name) 
 
       NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
       State of Washington, residing 
       at:                                                       
       My Commission expires: _______________                
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 31Page 450 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

FORM P-2 / NOTARY BLOCK 
(Surety Company) 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that                                                 is the person who 
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged as the _________________________________ of 
_________________________________that they signed this instrument, on oath stated that they are 
authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be their free and voluntary act for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
       Dated: ______________________________  
 
       ___________________________________  
                  
       ___________________________________  
                           (print or type name) 
 
       NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
       State of Washington, residing 
       at: _________________________________  
       My Commission expires: _____________    
 
  
  

Page 26 of 31Page 451 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Aqua Tech, LLC 
Public Works Project No.2023-012  Rev. IBDR 4-2022 
   
     

APPENDIX A 

During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but 
not limited to the following Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:  

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21.  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 
4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired 
because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of sex);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age);  

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs 
or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub- recipients 
and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);  

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of 
public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by 
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;  

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);  

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations 
and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by 
discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human 
health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;  

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, 
and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of 
limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable 
steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 
to 74100);  

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).  

Page 27 of 31Page 452 of 596



McCormick Woods Step System Conversion Page 9 of 15 
Project No. PW2023-012 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT PRICES 
MCCORMICK WOODS STEP SYSTEM RETROFIT PROJECT 

NOTE: Unit prices for all items and the total amount bid must be shown. The Project must be bid in its 
entirety, including all bid items as specifically listed in the Proposal to be considered a responsive bid. Where 
conflict occurs between the unit price and the total amount named for any items, the unit price typed or 
printed and entered in ink shall prevail. The Contracting Agency reserves the right to award all work bid 
according to the lowest qualified responsive bid tendered, available funds, and as it best serves the interest of 
the Contracting Agency. All work awarded will be made to the same Contractor/bidder. 

Item 
No. 

Estimated 
Quantity Description of Item Unit Price Amount 

PREPARATION 

1. 1 EA. Mobilization $_220.00_ $_220.00____ 

2. 1 EA. Cleaning / Pumping of existing Septic Tank & Pump Wet 
Well 

$_783.04___ $_783.04_____ 

DEMOLITION / REMOVAL OF EXISTING PUMP SYSTEM 

3. 1 EA. Removal of existing Pump & Appurtenances in Pump Wet 
Well 

$__71.19 $_71.19___ 

4. 1 EA. Plugging and/or Grouting existing Pump Wet Well Pipes 
and Septic Tank discharges to existing Pump Wet well 

$__71.19__ $___71.19_________ 

5. 1 C.Y. Removal and disposal of top 2' of existing Pump Wet Well 
and backfill to within 6” of grade with builders sand.  Cap 
with native material and restore to surrounding landscape 
conditions. 

$____284.75___ $_284.75_____ 

6. 6 C.Y. Backfill Secondary Septic Tank Chamber with builders 
sand to within 6” of the top of baffle wall between the 
primary and secondary tank. 

$ 783.04__ $  783.04_____ 

Page 28 of 31Page 453 of 596



McCormick Woods Step System Conversion Page 10 of 15 
Project No. PW2023-012 

Item 
No. 

Estimated 
Quantity Description of Item Unit Price Amount 

7. .3 C.Y. Cap secondary chamber with 6” of concrete sloping 
finished product to the primary Septic Tank chamber 

$_71.19___ $__71.19____ 

8. 1 EA. Remove the existing inlet deflector of the incoming pipe at 
Septic Tank inlet 

$__71.19____ $_71.19_____ 

NEW SEWER PUMP SYSTEM 

9. 20 L.F.
(max.)

1 ¼ " SCH. 40 PVC Pipe from existing Septic Tank to 
connection point at existing pump discharge pipe 

$__142.37____ $_142.37_____ 

10. 1 EA. Grinder Pump (must meet tech spec & pump curve) $ 3,089.00___ $_3,089.00______ 

11. 1 EA. NEMA 4X Lockable Control Panel with startup delay 
capability 

$ 937.25_____ $_937.25_______ 

12. 1 EA. Conduit and power connection from house to existing 
septic tank (incl. explosive gas seal-off) 

$_1,993.18____ $_1,993.18_____ 

13. 1 EA. Surface restoration and cleanup $_244.88____ $__244.88_____ 

COST PER CONVERSION: $____8,762.27__________ 

TOTAL BID FOR 15 HOME CONVERSIONS 

SUB-TOTAL BID (COST PER CONVERSION X 15 
CONVERSIONS): $____131,434.10___________ 

9.3% SALES TAX ON SUB-TOTAL BID: $  11,829.06__________ 

TOTAL BID FOR 15 HOME CONVERSIONS: $___143,263.10____________ 

SALES TAX 

Retailing/Retail Sales Tax Rule WAC 458-20-170: Washington State Retail sales tax added as percent (%) in addition to 
contract bid price; sales tax shown as separate line item. 

------------ 12,223.37

------------- 143,657.42

------------- 131,434.05

Page 29 of 31Page 454 of 596



McCormick Woods Step System Conversion Page 11 of 15 
Project No. PW2023-012 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

MCCORMICK WOODS STEP SYSTEM RETROFIT PROJECT 
PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT NO. PW2023--012 

The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to start construction on this project, if awarded, no later than fourteen (14) 
calendar days after Notice to Proceed and to complete the project within the time stipulated in the Contract. By signing 
below, Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda to the Bid Documents: 

________________ ________________ ________________ ________________ 
 Addendum No. Date of Receipt Addendum No. Date of Receipt 

________________ ________________ ________________ ________________ 
 Addendum No. Date of Receipt Addendum No. Date of Receipt 

NOTE: Failure to acknowledge receipt of Addenda may be considered as an irregularity in the Bid Proposal and Owner 
reserves the right to determine whether the bid will be disqualified. 

By signing below, Bidder certifies that he/she has reviewed the insurance provisions of the Bid Documents and will provide 
the required coverage. 

The undersigned Bidder hereby certifies that, within the three-year period immediately preceding the bid solicitation date 
for this Project, the bidder is not a “willful” violator, as defined in RCW 49.48.082, of any provision of chapters 49.46, 
49.48, or 49.52 RCW, as determined by a final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Department of 
Labor and Industries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction. 

OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR BIDDER: 

“I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the 
foregoing is true and correct.” 

Signature: Date: 

Printed Name and Title: 

 

Location or Place Executed (City, State): 

Business Address: 

 

Business Telephone: 

NOTES: If the Bidder is a co-partnership, give firm name under which business is transacted; proposal must be executed 
by a partner. If the Bidder is a corporation, proposal must be executed in the corporate name by the president or vice-
president (or any other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign).  Any signature must be 
notarized below. 

Robert Thurston, Owner

5321 Park Rd E Lake Tapps WA 98391

6/7/2023

Lake Tapps WA 98391

360-301-3535

Page 30 of 31Page 455 of 596



er Pump installs 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF~ e.J(~ 
)ss. 

I certify th ave satisfactory evidence tha 
execute the proposal and 

+.-+f:it-,~~:--:-1-~P'-:1-'l:;::,,t::,l,t=....--:---:--:- (name of part 
d voluntary act for th 

Dated this _Q_ day 

McCormick Woods Step System Conversion 

Project No. PW2023-012 

Page 12 of 15 

· ed this proposal, on oath 
_...&-"-...,_.,.__, _______ (title) of 

Notary ublic 

7hi;do-ti 
Printed Name 

ted) and 
sal. 

Page 31 of 31Page 456 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7E Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving Prepared by: Tony Lang, PW Dir.  

 a Memorandum of Understanding     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 – PW 
 with the Port of Bremerton for Atty Review Date: June 20, 2023 
 Waterfront Parking   

 
Summary: The City’s owns and operates an existing sewerage pump station located within the Port 
Orchard Harbor Area in Sinclair Inlet.  The Port of Bremerton owns and operates the Port Orchard 
Marina adjacent to the City’s sewerage pump station. The City has designed the Marina Pump Station 
project to replace the existing sewerage pump station (the “Project”), and the Project will temporarily 
and permanently impact the Port’s property as well as adjacent waterfront parking.  
 
In 1996, the City and Port executed a Memorandum of Understanding to set forth parking assignments 
and responsibilities for the parking area (the “1996 MOU”). This MOU focused on the Port’s property, 
including Kitsap County Parcels Nos. 4053-013-007-0103, 4028-001-001-0007, and 4028-001-011-0005, 
commonly known as Lots 3 and 4, which are used for water dependent uses and waterfront parking, as 
well as the City’s rights of way and associated public parking. Due to the configuration of the waterfront, 
and community events and business operations impacting parking in the area, in 2011, the City and the 
Port entered into a new Memorandum of Agreement (the “2011 MOA”) to supersede the 1996 MOU, 
setting forth terms to govern the City and Port’s use, management, and revenue collection for the 
parking areas.  
 
Because the City’s Marina Pump Station project to serve the residents of Port Orchard will impact the 
parking areas covered by the 2011 MOA, the City provided notice to the Port of the proposal in January 
2023. In response, in February 2023, the Port provided notice to the City of its intent to withdraw from 
the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023. The City and Port negotiated the terms of a Memorandum of 
Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions by which the Port will withdraw effective July 1, 2023, 
and to establish the use, management, and operation of the waterfront parking areas. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
execute a Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton for waterfront parking.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Utilities 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton for waterfront parking.” 
 

Page 457 of 596



Business Item 7E 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Fiscal Impact: None  
 
 Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance, however this is tied to the Marina 
 Pump Station project.  
 
 Attachments:  Resolution 
   Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton 
   Courtesy Copy of 2011 MOA 

Page 458 of 596



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE PORT 
OF BREMERTON CONCERNING WATERFRONT PARKING. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard Marina is owned and operated by the Port of Bremerton 

(the “Port”), including Kitsap County Parcels Nos. 4053-013-007-0103, 4028-001-001-0007, and 
4028-001-011-0005, commonly known as Lots 3 and 4, which are used for water dependent 
uses and waterfront parking; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard owns and controls rights of way providing access to 

the aforementioned parking spaces, and has historically provided parking enforcement and 
associated services for these public parking lots; and  

 
WHEREAS, in 1996, the City and the Port entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 

to set forth parking assignments and responsibilities for the area (the “1996 MOU”); and  
 
WHEREAS, due to the configuration of the waterfront, and community events and 

business operations impacting parking in the area, in 2011, the City and the Port entered into a 
new Memorandum of Agreement (the “2011 MOA”) to supersede the 1996 MOU, setting forth 
terms to govern the City and Port’s use, management, and revenue collection for the parking 
areas; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City’s proposal to construct the Marina Pump Station project to serve the 
residents of Port Orchard will impact the parking areas covered by the 2011 MOA, and 
accordingly, the City provided notice to the Port of the proposal in January 2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, in February 2023, the Port provided notice to the City of its intent to 

withdraw from the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and Port negotiated the terms of a Memorandum of Agreement to 

set forth the terms and conditions by which the Port will withdraw effective July 1, 2023, and to 
establish the use, management, and operation of the waterfront parking areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Memorandum of Agreement provides, among other terms, 

that the City and Port will work collaboratively to ensure public events continue in the area and 
that the City will provide parking enforcement to benefit the public that utilize these parking 
lots in exchange for compensation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the City and its residents to 
authorized the Mayor to execute the Memorandum of Agreement with the Port for waterfront 
parking; now, therefore,  
 

 

Page 459 of 596



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT:  The Mayor is authorized to execute the Memorandum of Agreement attached 
 hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein with this reference. The Mayor is further 
 authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the terms of the Memorandum of 
 Agreement.  
 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 
 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 460 of 596



10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum of Agreement 
 

for 
 

Allocation and Control of Parking on Waterfront 
Property 

 
Between 

 
City of Port Orchard 

 
and 

 
Port of Bremerton 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2023 

Page 461 of 596



10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
1. RECITALS .................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. PURPOSE .................................................................................................................................... 2 

3. PREMISES ................................................................................................................................... 2 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE ......................................................................................................................... 2 

5. TERM .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

6. AGREEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 2 

7. COMPENSATION ........................................................................................................................ 3 

8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE ............................................................................................................... 4 

9. EVENTS COORDINATION ............................................................................................................ 4 

10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION................................................................................................ 5 

11. DEFAULT BY CITY OF PORT ORCHARD ....................................................................................... 5 

12. NOTICE ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT .................................................................................................................. 7 
 
 
  Exhibit A:  DNR Lease No. 20-A09891  
 
  Exhibit   B:  Map of Premises 

Page 462 of 596



Page | 1  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (“MOA”) is dated on the day of the last signature on this 
MOA, by and between the Port of Bremerton (“Port”), a public port district, and the City of Port 
Orchard (“City”), a Washington State municipal corporation. 

 
RECITALS 

 

A. The Port Orchard Marina is owned and operated by the Port of Bremerton, which has a Port 
Management Agreement (PMA) no. 22-080016 with Department of Natural Resources 
(“DNR”) for use of State-owned aquatics lands for port purposes. It is located within the 
Port Orchard Harbor Area in Sinclair Inlet, in Kitsap County, Washington. 

 
B. The Port of Bremerton is in ownership of property including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 

4053-013-007-0103, commonly known as “Lot 3” and has been used for water dependent uses 
and waterfront parking.   
 

C. The Port of Bremerton is in ownership of property including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 
4028-001-001-0007, commonly known as “Lot 4” and has been used for water dependent uses 
and waterfront parking.   
 

D. The Port of Bremerton also has a lease no. 20-A09891 with DNR for use of State-owned 
aquatic lands including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4028-001-011-0005, that has been 
used for water dependent uses and waterfront parking, commonly known as the east end 
of the Port Orchard waterfront “Lot #4”.   

 
E. The City of Port Orchard is in ownership of the Harrison Avenue Right-of-Way, that has 

been used for water dependent uses and waterfront parking and includes portions of 
parking spaces within both “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”, this area is referred to as the “City’s Right-
of-Way”.   

 
F. The 2011 existing MOA between the City of Port Orchard and Port of Bremerton previously 

provided the City of Port Orchard use, management, and revenue collection for the parking 
areas identified as “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”, with allocation of spaces for Port of Bremerton use 
at 707 Sidney Parkway, in the area commonly known as “Lot 1”. 

 
G. On January 9, 2023, The City of Port Orchard provided notice to the Port of Bremerton 

that the 2011 existing MOA between the City of Port Orchard and Port of Bremerton 
would be impacted by the Marina Pump Station project. 

 
H. On February 6, 2023, The Port of Bremerton provided notice to the City of Port Orchard with 

the intent to withdraw from the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023. 

Page 463 of 596



Page | 2  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

1. RECITALS 
 

The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions 
by which the Port will withdraw from the 2011 MOA for waterfront parking, and by July 1, 
2023, will vacate the allocated parking spaces for Port of Bremerton located at 707 Sidney 
Parkway, in the area commonly known as “Lot 1”.   
 
1.2 The purpose of this Memorandum of AGREEMENT is also to set forth the means by which 
the Port will withdraw from the 2011 MOA for waterfront parking, and by July 1, 2023, will 
establish the Port of Bremerton use, management, and operation of the areas commonly 
known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 

 
1.3 The purpose of this MOA is to also replace and rescind the existing 2011 MOA 
between the City of Port Orchard and the Port of Bremerton regarding waterfront parking. 

 
3. PREMISES 

 
The "Premises" include Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4053-013-007-0103, # 4028-001-011-
0005, Parcel Number # 4028-001-001-0007, including DNR aquatic lease No. 20-A09891 and 
including 15 partial parking spaces located within the Harrison Avenue right-of-way, of the 
areas commonly known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.   

 
4. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
The "Effective Date" of this MOA shall be the date this MOA has been fully executed. 

 
5. TERM 

 
1.1 The term of this agreement shall be ongoing unless terminated by written agreement 

or with 180-day written notification. 
 

6. AGREEMENT 
 

1.1 The Port shall withdraw from the 2011 Memorandum of Agreement for waterfront 
parking with the City of Port Orchard on July 1, 2023, and will vacate the allocated parking 
spaces for Port of Bremerton located at 707 Sidney Parkway, in the area commonly known as 
“Lot 1” upon execution of this agreement.  

Page 464 of 596



Page | 3  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
1.2 The Port of Bremerton will establish the use, management, operation, maintenance, 
and revenue collection of the premises, commonly known as Port Orchard East waterfront 
parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4” upon execution of this agreement. 
 
1.3 Upon execution of this agreement, the Port of Bremerton will begin to manage 
community event permits and event usage of the premises, commonly known as Port Orchard 
East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.    The Port of Bremerton will endeavor to 
honor existing approved 2023 City event permits as much as practicable and will coordinate 
with stakeholders.  
 
1.4 The City of Port Orchard has agreed to provide parking enforcement for premises, 
commonly known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.  
Enforcement shall include Marina Tenant parking passes and interaction with the Port 
regarding implementation of Port parking rules and requirements.  Parking enforcement shall 
be provided pursuant to compensation identified in Section 7.   
 
1.5 The Port of Bremerton will manage, control, and be responsible for all maintenance, 
striping, landscaping, curbs, surfacing, lighting, signage, and all capital projects for premises, 
commonly known as parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 
 
1.6 The Port of Bremerton will manage, control, and be responsible for parking fare 
collection and any electronic parking kiosks for premises, commonly known as parking areas 
“Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 
 
1.7 The City of Port Orchard agrees to remove the existing parking kiosks and signage 
upon the execution of this agreement. 
 
1.8 The City of Port Orchard agrees to coordinate with the Port of Bremerton regarding 
plans, permits, and approvals pertaining to the construction of the Bay Street Pedestrian Path 
Segment 1, located on the premises, commonly known as parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 
 
1.9 With regards to any parking stalls or spaces not covered by this Agreement but which 
are located on the Premises described herein, the City shall be responsible for any such spaces 
in Lot 1, and the Port shall be responsible for any such spaces in Lots 3 and 4, including all 
necessary maintenance, striping, pavement repair, thermoplastics, sweeping, and 
landscaping.  
 

7. COMPENSATION 
 

1.1 Parking Enforcement:  The Port shall provide compensation and payment to the City 
each year by June 30th for Parking Enforcement services provided by the City for Lot 3 and 
Lot 4.  

Page 465 of 596



Page | 4  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
1.2 Annual parking enforcement compensation shall be in the amount of $12,000 each 
year. 
 
1.3 The annual parking enforcement compensation may be increased each year 
beginning January 1, 2025.  The compensation shall increase annually per CPI-U (All Urban 
Consumers Index) (1982-1984=100), not seasonally adjusted, for the Seattle-Tacoma-
Bellevue area for that 12-month period from January 1st to December 31st indexed as the 
annual average, as is specified by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States Department of 
Labor. Increases based on CPI-U shall take effect on January 1st of the following year.  
However, the increase shall be no more than 5% or no less than 1%.  
 
1.4 In addition to the increase set out in Section 1.3 herein, the City shall be authorized 
to increase parking enforcement compensation upon six (6) months written notice to the Port 
if the City’s costs associated with parking enforcement increase due to the Port’s selection of 
a new permitting/ticketing method or vendor, including but not limited to a selection that 
triggers the City’s purchase of necessary software or equipment at the request of the Port, or 
increased staff time dedicated to enforcement efforts due to the Port’s choice of permitting 
method/vendor.  
 
1.5 Initial parking enforcement compensation shall be prorated based on the number of 
days remaining in 2023 upon execution of this agreement. 
 
1.6 Compensation payment to the City shall be provided on or before June 30 of each 
year, with the initial prorated parking enforcement payment due to the City by December 31, 
2023. 

 
1.7 Termination of Parking Enforcement Services:  Upon six (6) months of written 
notice, either party may terminate the agreement for parking enforcement.  
Termination of parking enforcement shall not impact or affect other sections of this 
agreement.  

 
8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE 

 
1.1 The Port shall maintain a total of 20 spaces located within Lot # 3, available to the 
public for 2-hour parking free of charge for the parking space.  Those spaces shall not be 
exempt from enforcement due to a marina parking pass. 
 

9. EVENTS COORDINATION 
 
1.1 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to coordinate efforts related 
to community events occurring on the premises identified herein (for example, 4th of July, 
Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights), in relation to road closures, public works needs, police and 

Page 466 of 596



Page | 5  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

first responder safety, transit operations, and similar use of public spaces. Community events 
located in areas controlled by the Port that do not involve the closure of or impact in any way 
Harrison Avenue shall be the primary responsibility of the Port, utilizing the Port’s application 
process, provided the City shall be provided the opportunity to comment on the application. 
Community events involving Harrison Avenue shall be the primary responsibility of the City, 
utilizing the City’s application process, provided the application shall be submitted to the Port 
for review and approval for events that propose to utilize property controlled by the Port.   
 
1.2 The Port and the City agree to work together on a case-by-case basis to assist with 
temporary event parking for marina tenants where needed, related to specific community 
events (for example, 4th of July, Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights). 
 
1.3 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to review and provide 
communication in relation to each other’s Event permits and applications that may impact 
spaces or needs related to the premises.  
 
1.4 For 2023, City event permits already approved by the City shall continue to be honored 
by the Port for 2023.   

 

 
10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION 

 
To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Party shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the other Party and all of its officials, Board Members, employees, principals, and 
agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including injuries to 
persons or damages to property (“Claims”), which arise out of, are connected with, or are due 
to the negligent acts or omissions of the indemnifying Party, its contractors, and/or employees, 
agents and representatives in performing its obligations under this Agreement, provided each 
Party’s obligation under this section applies only to the extent of the negligence of that Party 
or its contractors, employees, agents, or representatives. 

 
Each of the Parties agrees that its obligations under this section extend to any claim, demand, 
cause of action and judgment brought by, or on behalf of, any of its employees or agents. For 
this purpose, both Parties, by mutual negotiation, hereby waive, regarding the other Party only, 
any immunity that would otherwise be available against such claims under the industrial 
insurance provisions of Title 51 RCW. 
 
 

11. DEFAULT  
 

Failure to perform any provision of this MOA shall constitute a default by the party failing to 
perform, unless such default is cured by the party failing to perform within 90 days after 
receiving written notice from the other party.  Exceptions: If there is any delay or stoppage due 

Page 467 of 596



Page | 6  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, inability to obtain labor or materials or 
reasonable substitutes therefor, governmental restrictions, regulations or controls, enemy or 
hostile governmental action, riot, civil commotion, fire or other casualty, and other causes 
beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to perform, such causes shall excuse the 
performance. If the default cannot reasonably be cured within 90 days, the non-performing 
party shall not be in default of this MOA if that party commences to cure the default within 
such ninety (90) day period and diligently and in good faith continues to cure the default. 
 

12. NOTICE 
 

Any notice given under this MOA shall be effective only if in writing and given by delivering 
the notice in person or by sending it first-class mail or certified mail with a return receipt 
requested or by overnight courier return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, at the 
following addresses, or at such other addresses as either the Port or City of Port Orchard may 
designate by notice as its new address: 

 
Address for Port of Bremerton: Chief Executive Officer 

Port of Bremerton 
8850 SW State 
Hwy 3 
Bremerton, WA 98312 

Telephone No: (360) 674-2381 
Fax No: (360) 674-2807 
Email: jimr@portofbremerton.org 

 
Address for City of Port Orchard: Mayor 

City of Port 
Orchard 216 
Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Telephone No: (360) 876-4407 
Fax No: (360) 895-9029 
Email: rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov  

 

Any notice hereunder shall be deemed to have been given two (2) days after the date when it 
is mailed if sent by first-class or certified mail, one day after the date it is mailed, if sent by 
overnight courier, or upon the date personal delivery is made. For convenience of the parties, 
copies of notices may also be given by email, facsimile or telephone to the address or numbers 
set forth above or such other address or number as may be provided from time to time; 
however, neither the Port nor City of Port Orchard may give official or binding notice by email, 
telephone or facsimile. 

 

Page 468 of 596

mailto:jimr@portofbremerton.org
mailto:rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov


Page | 7  
10694299.1 - 366922 - 0001 

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This MOA (including attached exhibits, if any) contains the entire AGREEMENT between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this MOA to be executed as of the date written 
below. 

City of Port Orchard Resolution No.    
Port of Bremerton Resolution No.    

 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, a public municipality 
 
 

By:   
Rob Putaansuu 
Mayor 
City of Port Orchard 

 
 

Date Signed:    

PORT OF BREMERTON, a public port district 
 
 

By:   
Jim Rothlin 
Chief Executive Officer 
Port of Bremerton 

 
 

Date Signed:    

Page 469 of 596



Page 470 of 596



Page 471 of 596



Page 472 of 596



Page 473 of 596



Page 474 of 596



Page 475 of 596



Page 476 of 596



Page 477 of 596



Page 478 of 596



Page 479 of 596



Page 480 of 596



Page 481 of 596



Page 482 of 596



Page 483 of 596



Page 484 of 596



Page 485 of 596



Page 486 of 596



Page 487 of 596



Page 488 of 596



Page 489 of 596



Page 490 of 596



Page 491 of 596



Page 492 of 596



Page 493 of 596



Page 494 of 596



Page 495 of 596



Page 496 of 596



Page 497 of 596



Page 498 of 596



Page 499 of 596



Page 500 of 596



Page 501 of 596



Page 502 of 596



Page 503 of 596



Page 504 of 596



Page 505 of 596



Page 506 of 596



Page 507 of 596



Page 508 of 596



Page 509 of 596



Page 510 of 596



Page 511 of 596



Page 512 of 596



Page 513 of 596



 

 Port Owned /  Port DNR Leased       Parcel Numbers# 4053‐013‐007‐0103, # 4028‐001‐011‐0005, & # 4028‐001‐001‐0007 

  Harrison Avenue Right‐of‐Way. 

Page 514 of 596



Memorandum of Agreement

between the City of Port Orchard and The Port of Bremerton
Concerning the Allocation and Control of Parking on Waterfront Property

City Contract No. 034- 11

This Memorandum of Agreement ( MOA ) supersedes and replaces the previous agreement between the
Port of Bremerton (" Port") and the City of Port Orchard (" City") ( hereafter collectively referred to as " the
parties") dated February 13, 1996 (see Exhibit A). 

Background: The Port currently controls 30 parking spaces adjacent to the Port' s Port Orchard Marina
Park (" Lot # 4"). These parking spaces are located on two property parcels; one parcel is owned by the Port
and the other parcel is leased by the Port from the Washington State Department of Natural Resources

WADNR"). The Port uses these spaces for Port Orchard Marina tenant parking and Marina Park
parking. The City of Port Orchard (" City") currently controls 32 spaces in two rows directly in front of the
Port' s Port Orchard Marina office (" Lot # r") that the Port propose to occupy. These parking spaces ( both
merchant/ paid parking and 4- hour parking) are located on a property parcel leased by the City from
WADNR. The City also controls 87 spaces ( both merchant/ paid and paid) on, or partially on, a Port
owned parcel of land on the waterfront accessed off Harrison Avenue ( see Exhibit B, which is attached
and incorporated by reference). 

Discussion: Over time, the configuration of the waterfront and the impact of community events and
business operations have made it advantageous for the City and the Port to exchange responsibility for the
control of Lots # r and # 4. The major impacts driving the need to change are: 

The Port' s Lot #4 spaces are sometimes underutilized due to the inconvenient distance of the lot
from the marina gates. As a result, the boaters are more likely to use the 4- hour no -fee City
parking in other lots nearer the marina gates, including Lot # r. 
When the Farmers Market is in operation adjacent to Lot # 4, marina tenants using Lot # 4 must
drive through parts of the Farmer' s Market. This is a safety concern for both the City and the Port. 
This also causes marina tenants to underutilize this lot and park in the no -fee City parking. 
When marina tenants use the no -fee City parking it lowers the number of spaces available for
local merchant customers to park. 
Very few customers of local businesses use Lot # r. Most of the spaces in Lot # r are used by
commuters and merchants who would not be adversely impacted by using Lot # 4. 
Community events frequently (3 to 5 times a year) require the Port to vacate its Lot #4 spaces and
move marina tenant parking to 32 spaces in Lot # r which have been vacated by the City for the
event. This causes major disruption to the marina tenants who are the customers of the largest

single downtown business in Port Orchard. In addition, this temporary swapping of parking
spaces causes significant confusion amongst the public. 

The City' s recent switch to an electronic paid parking system for the spaces accessed off Harrison
Avenue. 

Parking needs associated with the Port' s future Marina Park Expansion project. 

Agreement: The Port and the City agree that it is in their best interest, and in the best interest of the
public, to modify the current arrangement of parking management effective April 4, 2011 subject to the
following: 

L Attached hereto and incorporated by reference is Exhibit C which depicts the proposed
parking as described herein. 

2. The City will retain control of the 87 ( both merchant/ paid and paid) spaces on the Port
property accessed off Harrison Avenue. 

3. The Port agrees to vacate all 30 parking spaces in Lot # 4 and turn over control of those spaces
to the City. The rl existing waterfront spaces ( Lot#4) will be converted into nine ( 9) 2- hour
Marina Park parking spaces, one ( r) ADA stall with ramp and parking enforcement provided
by the City. 

4. The City agrees to vacate 32 of its merchant/ paid parking spaces in the second and third row
in Lot # r and turn over control of those spaces to the Port. 

Page 515 of 596



Port of Bremerton

Contract No. 034- 11
Page 2 of 3

5. In consideration for a net gain of one parking space the Port agrees to take over from the City
the grounds keeping responsibilities of the landscaped areas in the City' s Lot # 2 in front of
the Port Orchard Marina at no cost to the City. 

6. The City will maintain and enforce the 11 spaces ( to regular plus one ADA stall with ramp) 
facing the boardwalk in Lot # 4 as 2- hour Marina Park parking to support public access to, 
and use of, the Port Orchard Marina Park and the planned waterfront trail. 

7. The Port and the City will be responsible for signage and stripe painting revisions for the new
parking spaces each acquired as a result of this agreement. 

8. The City and the Port will establish and enforce their own rules for parking for the spaces they
control regardless of which entity owns or leases the property where the parking spaces are
located. 

9. The City will have exclusive control of all other parking spaces in the downtown area, except
for those spaces which are on private property and not allocated for City management by the
property owner. 

to. Parking enforcement by the City will be limited to those spaces under the exclusive control of
the City. The City Parking Enforcement Person will not enforce Port parking rules. The City
police will have parking enforcement authority in the Port parking areas. 

it. Routine cleaning by the City Public Works Department will include both City and Port
parking areas. 

12. Closure of either party' s parking areas will not be done without express consent of that party. 
13. The City and the Port will keep each other informed of their parking regulations for their

allocated areas. However, neither party can negate the parking regulations of the other. 

14. The term of this agreement shall be ongoing unless terminated by written agreement or with
18o- day written notification. 

15. The failure of any party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of salve, but the salve
shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

16. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create a liability or a right of
indemnification by any third party. 

17. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall
not be affected thereby if such remainder would then continue to serve the purposes and
objectives of both parties. 

18. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf a party represents and warrants that such
individual is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Agreement. 

i9. All notices and other communications to be given by either party may be given in writing to
the appropriate party as follows: 

City Clerk
City of Port Orchard
216 Prospect St. 

Port Orchard, WA 98366
360)876- 4407

Chief Executive Officer

Port of Bremerton

8850 S.W. State HwY.3
Port Orchard, WA 98367
360) 674- 2381

Page 516 of 596



below: 

Port of Bremerton

Contract No. 034-11
Page 3 of 3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by each party on the date set forth

Cary Bo eman, Chief Executive Officer
Port of Bremerton

Dated: Nf V K0A ZZ , lW (` 

Page 517 of 596



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
DOWNTOWN PARKING

This Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, is meant to replace

previous arrangements between the Port of Bremerton, hereinafter
referred to as the PORT, and the City of Port Orchard, hereinafter
referred to as the CITY. The MOU will be effective for one year and
then reviewed by both the CITY and PORT. The purpose of the that
annual review will be to draft the joint resolution to formally
adopt the downtown parking arrangements

Effective 1 January 1996, the following parking assignments
are made, as shown by Enclosure 1: 

1. The PORT will have exclusive control of the north row of
parking spaces in front of the Harbor Master' s office. 

2. The PORT will have exclusive control of the 31 spaces in
the vicinity of the Waterfront Park. 

3. The CITY will have exclusive control of all other parking
spaces in the downtown area, except for those spaces

which are on private property and not allocated for CITY
management by the property owner. 

Parking enforcement by the City will be limited to those spaces
under the exclusive control by the CITY. The CITY Parking

Enforcement Person will not enforce PORT parking rules. The CITY
Police will have parking enforcement authority in the PORT parking
areas. 

Routine cleaning by the CITY Public Works will include both
CITY and PORT parking areas. 

Closure of either party' s parking areas will not be done
without express consent of that party. 

The CITY and PORT will keep each informed of their parking
regulations for their allocated areas. However, neither party can
negate the parking regulations of the other. 

PORT OF BREM4RTON CIT OFOR4 ORCHARD

Secretary

u 7«.. all
Mar Ann Huntingt

Commissioner

Leslie- J. Weatherill
Mayor

ATTESTED BY: 

Patricia Parks

City Clerk

DATE OF DOCUMENT: 

Page 518 of 596



0

r9

z
n

r
a
0

C
u

m

rww- 

A

0

70
1

3

O
C

Ko

0
0
0  

WA
M

DCfmN
A

m

mm
A

Ln

to

D

mmy

O
D

z

70

o  

ry A
A

K

2
T

D ( l xl

n x
m D
n Z

r J, 
x

t7 D

t7 y

D D m
D a N

A Z
M

W Z
N M DA
D

m

ll
D

r* m16

x0cA
Amm

W

D V1

M
U

m D

N n
x m
A N

OZ
A D A
C7 d Or
D r- 

Z y m

A t7

N  
btl

1 Z < D GI

M
O

vmi /  

Page 519 of 596



c 

X

Page 520 of 596



Page 521 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7F Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Prepared by: Tony Lang 
 Contract with Rice Fergus Miller, Inc.  Public Works Director 
 For City Hall Construction Support        Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 Services     Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 

Summary:  The Port Orchard City Hall facility was constructed in 1999. Through the years, weather, normal 
wear and tear, and increased staffing have triggered a need to update and renovate the building. On 
October 13, 2020, following a competitive selection process consistent with Chapter 39.80 RCW and the 
City’s Procurement Policies, the City entered into a Professional Services Architecture and Engineering 
Agreement with Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. (RFM), to determine the current and future needs of the building 
and to prepare a design for the needed building renovations. The result of the consultant’s work 
determined the need and proposed scope of the City Hall Renovations Project. The design is now 
complete, and the project is beginning its construction phase.   

The City Public Works Department determined that expert construction support services (a professional, 
non-Architectural and Engineering service) are required for this project during the construction phase.  
Due to limited staff resources the City desires the assistance of a consultant with the expertise and 
qualifications to provide these services.  Because of the in-depth expertise and knowledge RFM has 
regarding the design and familiarity with the construction plans, City Staff requests that the Council waive 
procurement requirements for this contract and directly contract with RFM for this professional, non-A-E 
service.  

Staff met with RFM to discuss, clarify, and develop the project understanding and associated contract 
terms.  On June 16, 2023, RFM provided a defined Scope of Work and Budget for City Hall Construction 
Management Services in an amount not to exceed $373,430.22.  On June 16, 2023, Staff verified that RFM 
met the responsibility criteria and is not disqualified from working on this project.  To quantify the cost of 
the proposal submitted by RFM, staff did an analysis of Construction Support Services for this project. The 
results are as follows:  The Construction Cost (Bid) for this project is $8,245,941. Consultant Team Services 
are typically estimated at 10% of the Project cost.  10% (~$824,595), plus necessary subcontractors 
(~$97,000), would equate to ~$921,595 for Construction Support Services.   The proposal submitted by 
RFM is below that threshold for anticipated expenses while providing all of the services the City requires 
for the Project. 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 9 – Capital Facilities  

Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of a Resolution, waiving procurement requirements and 
thereby approving and authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract with Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. for City 
Hall Construction Support Services in an amount of $373,430.22. 

Page 522 of 596



Business Item 7F 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract 
with Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. for City Hall Construction Support Services.    

Fiscal Impact: The City intends to finance this contract with limited tax general obligation (LTGO) 
bonds.  To support the contract the Finance Department is intending to bring forth a 
budget amendment to provide cash flow funding from the general fund and other 
available resources until the bonds can be issued and proceeds received. The bonds are 
anticipated to be issued in the fall of 2023. 

 
Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance 
 
Attachments: Resolution  
 Contract  
 Proposal and Rates for Services 

Page 523 of 596



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH RICE, FERGUS, MILLER, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CITY HALL RENOVATION PROJECT 
AND WAIVING CITY PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City routinely inspects and assesses the condition of its facilities and in 
the course of its inspections of the City Hall facility, staff determined the need for a City Hall 
Renovations Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 13, 2020, following a competitive selection process consistent 
with RCW Chapter 39.80, City entered into a Professional Services Architecture and Engineering 
Agreement with Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. (RFM), to determine the current and future needs of 
the building and to prepare a design for the needed building renovations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the design is now complete, and the project is beginning its construction 
phase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Department determined that expert construction 
management services are required for this project during the construction phase; and    
 
 WHEREAS, due to limited staff resources the City desires the assistance of a consultant 
with the expertise and qualifications to provide these services; and   
 
 WHEREAS, RFM has in-depth expertise and knowledge regarding the design and 
familiarity with the construction plans, and is a qualified consultant to provide construction 
management services for this project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 16, 2023, RFM provided a defined Scope of Work and Budget for the 
City Hall Construction Management Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 16, 2023, Staff verified that RFM met the responsibility criteria and 
is not disqualified from working on this project; Now, Therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT:  The City Council authorizes a limited waiver of the procurement procedures set 
out in the City’s Procurement Policies pertaining to this professional service (non-Architectural 

Page 524 of 596



and Engineering service), and authorizes the Mayor to execute a Contract with Rice, Fergus, 
Miller, Inc. for City Hall Construction Management Services. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 

hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 

 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 525 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  

Port Orchard Contract #: ________ 
Authorized Amount: $373,430.22 

   Date Start: June 27, 2023  
Date End: June 30, 2025 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Port Orchard, Washington, 
a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington (“City”) and Rice, Fergus 
Miller, Inc., (“Consultant”) organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing 
business at 275 Fifth Street, Bremerton, WA  98337 (hereinafter the "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to have certain services performed for its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City has selected the Consultant to perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and conditions set forth below, the 
parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT: 

1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant.

The Consultant shall perform those services described on Exhibit “A,” which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. In performing such services, the Consultant shall 
at all times comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules and ordinances applicable to the 
performance of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith. The Consultant 
shall perform the services diligently and completely and in accordance with professional standards of 
conduct and performance. The Consultant shall request and obtain prior written approval from the City 
if the scope or schedule is to be modified in any way.  

If the services provided hereunder are funded in whole or in part under a Grant Funding 
Agreement, then Consultant will comply with the terms of such Grant Funding Agreement to ensure that 
the City is able to obtain the maximum funding under such Grant Funding Agreement. If this applies, the 
City will provide the Consultant with a copy of the Grant Funding Agreement.  

2. Compensation.

The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered according to the rates and methods set forth 
below.  

Page 1 of 36Page 526 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

  �  LUMP SUM.  Compensation for these services set forth in Exhibit A shall be a Lump Sum 
  of $_________________. 

 TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED.  Compensation for these services shall not exceed 
$373,430.22 without written authorization and will be based on the list of billing rates and 
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 

� TIME AND MATERIALS.  Compensation for these services shall be on a time and materials 
basis according to the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B.” 

� OTHER_____________________________________________________________ 
 

3. Payment. 
 
 A. The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City 
monthly after services have been performed, along with monthly invoices in a format acceptable to 
the City for work performed to the date of the invoice.  
 
 B. All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within thirty (30) days of receipt of a proper 
invoice.  If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the Consultant of the 
same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in 
dispute, and the Parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion. 
 
 C. The Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement 
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a longer 
period is required by a third-party agreement.  Copies shall be made available on request.  
 
 D. On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall 
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to independent contractors, including, but not limited 
to, the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all items of income and expenses 
of the Consultant’s business, pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 51.08.195, as required by 
law, to show that the services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to 
an employer-employee relationship between the parties, which is subject to Title 51 RCW, Industrial 
Insurance.   
 
 E. If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement, the Consultant 
will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may withhold payment for such 
work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement. The City shall pay the Consultant for 
services rendered within ten (10) days after City Council voucher approval. However, if the City objects 
to all or any portion of an invoice, it shall notify Consultant and reserves the option to only pay that 
portion of the invoice not in dispute. In that event, the Parties will immediately make every effort to 
settle the disputed portion. 
 
 F.  The City reserves the right to direct the Consultant's compensated services before 
reaching the maximum amount.  

Page 2 of 36Page 527 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

 
4. Duration of Agreement.  

 
A. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on June 27, 

2023, and ending June 30, 2025, unless sooner terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. The 
City reserves the right to offer two (2) one-year extensions prior to expiration of the Agreement to 
retain the Consultant’s services. 

 
B. Time is of the essence of this Agreement in each and all of its provisions in which 

performance is required. If delays beyond the Consultant's reasonable control occur, the Parties will 
negotiate in good faith to determine whether an extension is appropriate.  

 
C. The Consultant shall obtain a City of Port Orchard business license prior to commencing 

work pursuant to a written Notice to Proceed. 
 

D. The Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon receipt of a written Notice 
to Proceed. 
 

5. Standard of Care.   
 
The Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience 
necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately accredited and licensed 
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in similar circumstances. 
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.   
 

A. Ownership. Any records, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data, or 
information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials produced by the Consultant in 
connection with the services provided to the City, shall be the property of the City whether the project 
for which they were created is executed or not. 

 
B. Records preservation. Consultant understands that this Agreement is with a government 

agency and thus all records created or used in the course of Consultant’s work for the City are 
considered “public records” and are subject to disclosure by the City under the Public Records Act, 
Chapter 42.56 RCW (“the Act”). Consultant agrees to safeguard and preserve records in accordance 
with the Act. The City may be required, upon request, to disclose the Agreement, and the documents 
and records submitted to the City by Consultant, unless an exemption under the Public Records Act 
applies. If the City receives a public records request and asks Consultant to search its files for responsive 
records, Consultant agrees to make a prompt and thorough search through its files for responsive 
records and to promptly turn over any responsive records to the City’s public records officer at no cost 
to the City. 
 

7. Relationship of the Parties; Independent Consultant.  

Page 3 of 36Page 528 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

 
The Parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be created by this 
Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an independently established trade which 
encompasses the specific service provided to the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative 
or sub-consultant of the Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, 
representative or sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an 
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details of the work, 
the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.  None of the benefits 
provided by the City to its employees, including, but not limited to, compensation, insurance, and 
unemployment insurance are available from the City to the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-
consultants of the Consultant. The City shall not be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting 
federal income tax or social security or contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or 
otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the Consultant, or any employee of the 
Consultant. The Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its 
agents, employees, representatives, and sub-consultants during the performance of this Agreement.  
The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to perform 
the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder. 
 

8. Indemnification.   
 
Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 
then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property 
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence.   
 
IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED 
HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, 
TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION.  THIS WAIVER HAS BEEN 
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES.   
 
The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

9. Insurance.   
 

Page 4 of 36Page 529 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 

            A.         Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types 
described below: 
 

i. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy 
shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 

00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent 
Consultants and personal injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be named as 
an insured under the Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy 
with respect to the work performed for the City.   

 
iii. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington.  
 

iv. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 
 
         B.         Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the following insurance 

limits: 
 

i. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.  

 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less 

than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.   
 

iii. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
            C.         Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability, Commercial 

General Liability, and Professional Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or insurance 
pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

 
            D.         Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A-VII. 
 

Page 5 of 36Page 530 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

            E.         Verification of Coverage.  The Consultant shall furnish the City with original 
certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the 
additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before 
commencement of the work. 

 
            F.         Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation, within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
            G.         Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain 

the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City may, after 
giving five business days’ notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately terminate the 
contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in 
connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

 
            H.         No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 

Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by 
such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 
 

10. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
 
 A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 

property, financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and 
indirect costs of any nature expended and services performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The 
Consultant shall also maintain such other records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure 
proper accounting of all funds contributed by the City to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
 B. The foregoing records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after 

termination of this Agreement unless permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the 
Archivist in accordance with Chapter 40.14 RCW and by the City. 
 

11. City’s Right of Inspection and Audit. 
 
 A. Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control 
and direct the performance and details of the work authorized under this Agreement, the work must 
meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general right of inspection to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof.  The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state, and municipal 
laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or become applicable within the terms of this 
Agreement to the Consultant's business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by 
this Agreement or accruing out of the performance of such operations.  

 
 B. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement shall 
be subject at all times to inspection, review or audit by the City during the performance of this 
Agreement.  All work products, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, and other materials in 

Page 6 of 36Page 531 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

support of the performance of the service, work products, or outcomes fulfilling the contractual 
obligations are the products of the City. 

 
12. Work Performed at the Consultant's Risk.   

 
The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the safety of its 
employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work hereunder and shall utilize all 
protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at the Consultant's own risk, and the 
Consultant shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or 
held by the Consultant for use in connection with the work. 

13. Termination. 
 
 A. Termination without cause.  This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time 

for public convenience, for the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the Consultant’s assignment 
for the benefit of creditors.  

 B. Termination with cause.  This Agreement may be terminated upon the default of the 
Consultant and the failure of the Consultant to cure such default within a reasonable time after 
receiving written notice of the default.   

 C. Rights Upon Termination.   

  i. With or Without Cause. Upon termination for any reason, all finished or 
unfinished documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be submitted to the City, and the Consultant shall be entitled to just and 
equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed prior to the date of termination, 
not to exceed the total compensation set forth herein.  The Consultant shall not be entitled to 
any reallocation of cost, profit or overhead. The Consultant shall not in any event be entitled to 
anticipated profit on work not performed because of such termination. The Consultant shall use 
its best efforts to minimize the compensation payable under this Agreement in the event of 
such termination.  Upon termination, the City may take over the work and prosecute the same 
to completion, by contract or otherwise. 

  ii. Default.  If the Agreement is terminated for default, the Consultant shall 
not be entitled to receive any further payments under the Agreement until all work called for 
has been fully performed. Any extra cost or damage to the City resulting from such default(s) 
shall be deducted from any money due or coming due to the Consultant. The Consultant shall 
bear any extra expenses incurred by the City in completing the work, including all increased 
costs for completing the work, and all damage sustained, or which may be sustained, by the 
City by reason of such default. 

 D. Suspension. The City may suspend this Agreement, at its sole discretion. Any 
reimbursement for expenses incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to the Consultant's 
reasonable expenses, and shall be subject to verification.  The Consultant shall resume performance of 
services under this Agreement without delay when the suspension period ends. 

E. Notice of Termination or Suspension.  If delivered to the Consultant in person, 
termination shall be effective immediately upon the Consultant’s receipt of the City’s written notice or 

Page 7 of 36Page 532 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

such date as stated in the City’s notice of termination, whichever is later.  Notice of suspension shall be 
given to the Consultant in writing upon one week's advance notice to the Consultant.  Such notice shall 
indicate the anticipated period of suspension.  Notice may also be delivered to the Consultant at the 
address set forth in the “Notices” Section herein. 

 
F. Nothing in this Subsection shall prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may 

otherwise have for the violation or nonperformance of any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

14. Discrimination Prohibited.   
 
 A. The Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed, color, 
national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by federal, state, 
or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.  
 
 B. Violation of this Section shall be a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for 
cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in whole or in part, and may 
result in ineligibility for further work for the City. 
 

15. Force Majeure.  
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any prevention, delay or stoppage due to 
strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, acts of war, terrorist acts, inability to obtain services, 
labor, or materials or reasonable substitutes therefor, governmental actions, governmental laws, 
regulations or restrictions, civil commotions, casualty, actual or threatened public health emergency 
(including, without limitation, epidemic, pandemic, famine, disease, plague, quarantine, and other 
significant public health risk), governmental edicts, actions, declarations or quarantines by a 
governmental entity or health organization, breaches in cybersecurity, and other causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the Party obligated to perform, regardless of whether such other causes are (i) 
foreseeable or unforeseeable or (ii) related to the specifically enumerated events in this paragraph 
(collectively, a "Force Majeure"), shall excuse the performance of such Party for a period equal to any 
such prevention, delay or stoppage. To the extent this Agreement specifies a time period for 
performance of an obligation of either Party, that time period shall be extended by the period of any 
delay in such Party's performance caused by a Force Majeure. Provided however, that the current 
COVID-19 pandemic shall not be considered a Force Majeure unless constraints on a Party’s 
performance that result from the pandemic become substantially more onerous after the effective 
date of this Agreement.  
 

16. Assignment and Subcontract.   
 
The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated by this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. Any assignment made without the prior 
approval of the City is void. 
 

Page 8 of 36Page 533 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

17. Conflict of Interest.   
 
The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing any of the services 
set forth in Exhibit “A.”  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform services for a project with 
which it may have a conflict, Consultant will immediately disclose such conflict to the City. 
 

18. Confidentiality.   
 
All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall 
be considered confidential. Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate 
termination.  
 

19. Non-Appropriation of Funds.   
 
If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future 
fiscal period, the City will so notify the Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for 
services or amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  This Agreement will terminate 
upon the completion of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense 
shall accrue to the City in the event that the terms of the provision are effectuated. 
 

20. Employment of State Retirees.  
 
The City is a “DRS-covered employer” which is an organization that employs one or more members of 
any retirement system administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems 
(DRS). Pursuant to RCW 41.50.139(1) and WAC 415-02-325(1), the City is required to elicit on a written 
form if any of the Contractor’s employees providing services to the City retired using the 2008 Early 
Retirement Factors (ERFs), or if the Contractor is owned by an individual who retired using the 2008 
ERFs, and whether the nature of the service and compensation would result in a retirement benefit 
being suspended. Failure to make this determination exposes the City to significant liability for pension 
overpayments. As a result, before commencing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall determine 
whether any of its employees providing services to the City or any of the Contractor’s owners retired 
using the 2008 ERFs, and shall immediately notify the City and shall promptly complete the form 
provided by the City after this notification is made. This notification to DRS could impact the payment 
of retirement benefits to employees and owners of Contractor. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or other liability, including attorneys’ fees and 
costs, relating to a claim by DRS of a pension overpayment caused by or resulting from Contractor’s 
failure to comply with the terms of this provision. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

21. Entire Agreement.   
 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no other agreements, oral or 
otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either of 
the parties.  If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the attached 

Page 9 of 36Page 534 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

exhibits, then the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail over the exhibits.  Either party 
may request changes to the Agreement.  Changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be 
incorporated by written amendments to this Agreement.   
 

22. Non-waiver of Breach.   
 
The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements 
contained herein, or to exercise any option herein contained in one or more instances, shall not be 
construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, agreements, or options, and the same 
shall be in full force and effect.   
 

23. Modification.  
 
No waiver, alteration, modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless 
in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and the Consultant.  
 

24. Notices.   
 
All notices or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be (a) personally delivered, in which case the notice or communication shall be deemed given 
on the date of receipt at the office of the addressee; (b) sent by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, in which case the notice or communication shall be deemed given 
three (3) business days after the date of deposit in the United States mail; or (c) sent by overnight 
delivery using a nationally recognized overnight courier service, in which case the notice or 
communication shall be deemed given one business day after the date of deposit with such courier. In 
addition, all notices shall also be emailed, however, email does not substitute for an official notice. 
Notices shall be sent to the following addresses: 

Notices to the City of Port Orchard shall be sent to the following address: 

  City Clerk 
  City of Port Orchard 
  216 Prospect Street 
  Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
  Bwallace@portorchardwa.gov  
  Phone: 360.876.4407 Fax:  360.895.9029 

  

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

        
 
        

  Phone No.:      

  Email:      
 

Page 10 of 36Page 535 of 596

mailto:Bwallace@portorchardwa.gov


 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

25. Resolution of Disputes; Governing Law.   
 

A. Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions 
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Mayor, who shall determine the 
term or provision’s true intent or meaning.  The Mayor shall also decide all questions which may arise 
between the parties relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance 
hereunder.   
 
 B.  If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions 
of this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor’s determination in a reasonable time, or if 
the Consultant does not agree with the Mayor’s decision on a disputed matter, jurisdiction of any 
resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington.   
 
 C. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Washington.  In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, 
the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and reasonable 
attorneys’ fees from the other Party. 
 

26. Compliance with Laws.  
 
The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that 
are now effective or in the future become applicable to Consultant's business, equipment, and 
personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or accruing out of the performance of 
those operations. 
 

27. Title VI. 
 
The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 
U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation 
subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the 
Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively insure that its contracts 
comply with these regulations. 
 
Therefore, during the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest agrees as follows:  
 

A. Compliance with Regulations. The Consultant will comply with the Acts and the 
Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time to time, 
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.  

 
B. Nondiscrimination. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during this 

Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, 
income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of 

Page 11 of 36Page 536 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant will not participate directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference, including employment practices when this Agreement 
covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. part 21.  

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be 
performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each 
potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations 
under this Agreement and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds 
of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, income-level, or LEP.  

 
D. Information and Reports. The Consultant will provide all information and reports 

required by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to 
its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by 
the City or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 
instructions. Where any information required of the Consultant is in the exclusive possession of 
another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Consultant will so certify to the City or the 
FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.  

 
E. Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the 

non- discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the City will impose such contract sanctions as it or 
the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

  
i. withholding payments to the Consultant under the Agreement until the contractor 

complies; and/or  
ii. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Agreement, in whole or in part.  

 
F. Incorporation of Provisions. The Consultant will include the provisions of paragraphs one 

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant will take 
action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the City or the FHWA may direct as a means 
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Consultant 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such 
direction, the Consultant may request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 
City. In addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect 
the interests of the United States. 
 

28. Counterparts.  
 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 
original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement. 
 

29. Severability.   
 

Page 12 of 36Page 537 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

Any provision or part of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any law or regulation 
shall be deemed stricken and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon the 
City and the Consultant, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken 
provision or part with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as reasonably possible to 
expressing the intent of the stricken provision. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Consultant have executed this Agreement as of the 
dates listed below.  
 
CONSULTANT     CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 
                                                                    Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
Title: _____________________________   
Date: _____________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
       ATTEST/AUTHENTICATE 
              
       Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM 
              
       Port Orchard City Attorney’s Office 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 36Page 538 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services to be Provided by Consultant.  The Consultant shall furnish services including, 
but not limited to, the following outlined here or attached separately. 

Rates for Services to be Provided by Consultant.  The Consultant shall furnish the services in 
accordance with the rates specified below or attached hereto,

Page 14 of 36Page 539 of 596



275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 Bremerton, WA 98337 
(360) 377-8773   rfmarch.com 

 

 
 
 
June 16, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr. Chris Hammer, Director of Public Works 
City of Port Orchard  
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
 
Re: City of Port Orchard City Hall  
 RFM Project Number: 2020013.00 
 
 
Dear Chris, 
 
Rice Fergus Miller is pleased to present the following Letter of Proposal to provide professional 
architectural services for the City Hall Improvement Project – Construction Support Services. 
 

I. Project Description 

The existing City Hall building has had an ongoing maintenance issue for many years with a 
failing building envelope.  This project will provide a solution to remedy this problem, including 
new roofing, a new clock tower weatherization strategy, new siding and weather barrier, new 
windows, treatment of the existing brick veneer, and added installation.  The project scope will 
also provide improvements to the building’s HVAC system and lighting fixtures and controls.  
Additionally, there will be (3) interior renovation projects and a major refresh to the finishes 
throughout the building.  A solar array over the existing generator house and adjacent parking 
spaces will also be provided.  We are basing our proposal on a total project budget of $8.2 
million. 
 

II. Scope of Services 

Per our understanding with you, this proposal’s scope of service is for construction support and 
commissioning services.     
 
Basic Services through this first phase of work consists of: 
Construction Administration and Commissioning Services are provided by the Architect and 
Consultants.  Basic and Supplemental Services Include: 
 
Basic Services:  Architectural  

• Attend pre-construction meeting 
• Attend weekly OAC meetings and site walks for the assumed 12-month construction 

duration 
• Submittal reviews and responses 
• RFI responses 
• Review of Contractor Change Order Proposals (COPs) 
• Field Reports 

Page 15 of 36Page 540 of 596



Letter of Proposal 
Port Orchard City Hall 
June 16, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

• Punch list and back-punch 
• Structural Engineering Consultant services as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit A.  
• Mechanical Engineering Consultant services as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit B. 
• Electrical Engineering Consultant services as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit C.  

 
Supplemental Services: 

• Civil Engineering Consultant services as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit D. 
• Building Envelope Consultant services as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit E. 
• Mechanical Commissioning to include and as noted in Proposal attached as Exhibit B: 

o Commissioning plan, including commissioning acceptance criteria 
o Progress reports, issued after each visit 
o Functional test results 
o Commissioning report 
o Commissioning compliance checklist, as required for final mechanical inspections 
o Ecotope to commission the mechanical and lighting control renovated systems as 

follows 
 Building heating and cooling 
 Building ventilation 
 Building management system 
 Lighting and lighting control  
 Photovoltaic system 

• Materials Testing and Special Inspections services as noted in Proposal attached as 
Exhibit F. 

 
 

III. Additional Services 

The following services, though they could be provided by RFM, are not included in our Scope of 
Basic Services and, if requested, would be billed as Additional Services. 

• Additional meetings 

• Design Changes 

• Additional Consultants 

o Landscape Architecture 

o Lighting Design 

 

o Traffic Engineering 

o A/V, IT and 

Telecommunications 

• LEED or other certifications required 

planning & documentation 

 

IV. Owner Responsibilities 

It is our understanding that the City of Port Orchard will provide full information, including a 
program, setting forth its design objectives, constraints and criteria; a legal description and 
certified land survey showing boundary and topography of the site, if one exists; existing 
buildings drawings; and the services of soil engineers, hazardous materials surveyors, or other 
specialty consultants when such services are deemed to be necessary. 
 

Page 16 of 36Page 541 of 596



Letter of Proposal 
Port Orchard City Hall 
June 16, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

V. Schedule 

It is assumed that the construction duration of this project will be approximately 12 months 
starting in the summer of 2023. 
  

VI. Compensation 

Basic Services: Fixed Fees: 
   Architectural                                                                                    $219,959.22 
   Structural                                                                                         $    3,300.00 
   Mechanical                                                                                      $  38,500.00 
   Electrical                                                                                          $    7,480.00 
Total Basic Services:                                                                          $269,239.22 
 
Supplemental Services:  
     Civil                                                                                                $ 10,780.00 (Hourly to a max) 
     Envelope                                                                                        $ 31,900.00 (Hourly to a max) 
     Third-party Inspections:                                                               $ 13,861.00 (Hourly to a max)   
     Commissioning:                                                                             $ 45,650.00 (Fixed Fee) 
     Reimbursable Expenses:                                                              $   2,000.00    
Total Supplemental Services:                                                            $104,191.00 
 
Total Fee:                                                                                           $373,430.22 
 
 
Additional Services, when requested, will be billed on an hourly basis at our standard hourly 
rates, as listed in the attached 2023 Hourly Billing Rate Sheet, or as agreed to prior to 
commencement of the Additional Services. 
 

VII. Terms of Agreement 

This proposal, when accepted, will become an exhibit to the City of Port Orchard’s standard 
professional service agreement.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 36Page 542 of 596



Letter of Proposal 
Port Orchard City Hall 
June 16, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 

VIII. Summary 

Thank you for this important opportunity!  If this Letter of Proposal is acceptable, please sign in 
the space provided below.  We look forward to discussing our proposal with you and getting to 
work.   
 

Sincerely,     Authorized for Owner by: 
Rice Fergus Miller, Inc.     

Approved for Rice Fergus Miller by,                      
Dean Kelly, Principal    Name   Title 
Architect, NCARB 
 
 
 
Attachments: 2023 RFM Hourly Rate Sheet 
  Exhibit A – Structural Engineering Proposal   

Exhibit B – Mechanical Engineering and Commissioning Proposal 
Exhibit C – Electrical Engineering Proposal 
Exhibit D – Civil Engineering Proposal 
Exhibit E – Building Envelope Consultant Proposal 
Exhibit F – Materials Testing and Special Inspection Services Proposal 
  
  

Page 18 of 36Page 543 of 596



 

 

 

 

 

275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 

Bremerton, WA 98337 

Phone: (360) 377-8773 

rfmarch.com 

 

  

2023 Hourly Billing Rates 

Date of Proposal: June 15, 2023 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Improvement– Construction Support Services. 

Project No.: 2020013.00 

 
The hourly billing rates shall be annually adjusted in accordance with normal salary review practices 
of Rice Fergus Miller. 
 

Principal in Charge:  $ 250.00 - $ 300.00  

Senior Planner:  $ 140.00 - $ 300.00 

Project Manager:  $ 130.00 - $ 250.00 

Project Architect:  $ 120.00 - $ 250.00 

Staff Architect:  $ 110.00 - $ 190.00 

Project Designer:  $ 110.00 - $ 190.00 

Staff Designer:  $ 100.00 - $ 190.00 

Interior Designer:  $   80.00 - $ 200.00 

Technical Designer:  $  100.00 - $ 170.00 

Production Support:  $  100.00 - $ 170.00 

Graphics Visualization:  $   140.00 

Project Coordinator:  $   140.00 

Administrative Support Staff:  $   90.00 - $ 140.00 

 

Page 19 of 36Page 544 of 596



May 17, 2023 

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski, RA 
Rice Fergus Miller 

275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 

Port Orchard City Hall 
Additional Services Proposal 
For Construction Administration Services 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
WSW No. 20042 

 

Dear Jason, 

As we have previously discussed, I am sending you this proposal requesting additional fee 
due to additional anticipated effort and design services. These additional services stem from 
the greater than anticipated effort expected to coordinate and review the constructed on a 
design-build basis. Our additional fee would break down as follows: 

Scope Previous Fee Proposed Fee 

Construction Documents: $6700 $6700 
Construction Administration: $1800 + $1200 = $3000 

 $8500 $9700 
 

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

Sincerely, 

Bill Williams, P.E., S.E. 
Consultant 

 Rice Fergus Miller 
Client 

Signed: 
 

Signed: 

Date: 
 

Date: 
 

(206) 402-2906PO BOX 11678, BAINBRIDGE ISLAND, WA 98110WSW ENGINEERING

05-17-2023

Exhibit A

Page 20 of 36Page 545 of 596



Ecotope, Inc.  1 

 

PROPOSAL 

 

Project:   Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design Proposal 

To:   Jason Ritter-Lopatowski, Rice Fergus Miller 

From:   Shawn Oram, Ecotope 

Date:   March 10, 2023 

Ecotope appreciates the opportunity to propose on the Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design. This proposal 

is based on our understanding of the scope as conveyed via email and phone correspondences.  

The goals for the project are to replace aging equipment, make the building all electric, improve comfort, and 

reduce energy usage. These retrofits can reduce the energy usage by 50% over current usage and more 

importantly set the building up to be compliant with future climate mandates around electrification and energy 

use reductions.   

This proposal has been updated to include construction administration and commissioning services and scope.  

Mechanical Design Services 

This proposal assumes Ecotope will be the Engineer of Record for the HVAC and DHW design for this major 

HVAC/DHW retrofit. This scope covers DD, CD, Permitting, Bid, and CA services.   

• DD, CD, Permit Submittal, Bid Phase, CA support for HVAC and DHW design upgrades. 

• Develop demolition plan set for HVAC and Plumbing Systems.   

• Design new Dedicated Outdoor Air System (DOAS) to fit within the basic framework of the existing VAV 

ductwork and AHU’s.  This scope will replace the primary air-handlers with DOAS energy recovery 

ventilation systems and provide a balanced ventilation system. 

• Design new VRF system for heating and cooling. This scope will eliminate the existing gas boiler and 

replace the current chiller with a VRF plant and route refrigerant piping to new zoning systems per 

owner’s preference.  

• Design new HPWH for existing gas DHW system. Design will size and replace current gas fired water 

heater with a high efficiency heat pump water heating system.  

• Design new control system for VRF and DOAS system 

• Provide Energy Code compliance documentation for envelope and mechanical systems. 

• Provide mechanical and plumbing permit package for City of Port Orchard plans review.   

• Perform 1 site visit during DD phase to study the existing systems and develop our design plan and 

approach. 

• Respond to bidder questions and review and comment on bid package. 

 

Ecotope, Inc. 

1917 1st Avenue, Suite 300 

Seattle, WA 98101 

P: 206-322-3753 

F: 206-325-7270 

Exhibit B

Page 21 of 36Page 546 of 596



PROPOSAL Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design Proposal 

 

Ecotope, Inc.  2 

 

• PSE Incentive negotiations for HVAC and DHW upgrades, Lighting calcs and controls assumed by others.  

• CA phase assumes submittal reviews, response to RFI’s, and 3 site visits (rough in, substantial, punch). 

Additional Services 

Ecotope proposes to lead, plan, schedule, and coordinate a commissioning process as a consultant to RFM. This 

proposal focuses on commissioning coordination as conveyed in the specifications the Ecotope included in the 

construction documents.  The day-to-day commissioning provider will be assigned once the project starts, based 

on availability. Our commissioning services follow the Building Commissioning Association’s Essential Attributes. 

Additionally, our proposal follows the project’s specifications and meets the commissioning requirements within 

the 2018 Washington State Energy Code, Section C408. 

 

TASK 1: COMMISSIONING 

 Ecotope will review the construction documents including the MEP engineers’ “Basis of Design”. We will 

develop a commissioning plan that lists coordination items with deliverable dates to facilitate resolving 

potential system operation issues before they cause installation or turnover delays. 

 Deliverables: 

1. Commissioning plan, including commissioning acceptance criteria 

2. Progress reports, issued after each site visit 

3. Functional test results 

4. Commissioning report 

5. Commissioning compliance checklist, as required for final mechanical inspection. 

COMMISSIONED SYSTEMS 

 Ecotope will commission mechanical and lighting controls renovated systems as follows: 

1. Building Heating & Cooling  

2. Building Ventilation  

3. Building management system  

4. Lighting and lighting controls  

5. Photovoltaic system, if installed 

Key Assumptions 

 Construction administration work is separate from the commissioning process.  Commissioning does not 

include product submittal approval, RFI response, engineer of record site visits, etc.  

Page 22 of 36Page 547 of 596



PROPOSAL Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design Proposal 

 

Ecotope, Inc.  3 

 

Potential Additions to Commissioned Systems 

The systems listed below are excluded from this proposal for the reasons noted. Any of these systems may be 

added to this proposal for an additional fee.   

1. Continuous Air Barrier / Envelope. Assumed to be tested by other consultant. Reference  Washington 

Energy Code Section C402 for testing requirements. 

Proposed Fee 

Basic Services - 100% CD Full Design DD CD Bid & CA 

Full Mechanical Design Services  Complete In Process $35,000 

TOTAL: NA NA $35,000 

     

Additional Services Total CD Bid & CA 

Full Commissioning Services $45,000 $3,500 $41,500 

TOTAL: $45,000 $3,500 $41,500 

 

 

Exclusions 

Any scope, process and deliverables not shown in above Scope of Basic Services shall be Additional Services and 

may be provided as defined in Proposal Terms and Conditions below. 

Proposal Terms and Conditions 

These Terms and Conditions further define the basis of this Proposal and govern its complete content: 

Background Changes: Background drawing revisions greater than the quantity listed in the Scope of Services 

may incur additional fees to be billed as Time & Expense if significant effort is required for their incorporation. 

Revised drawings will be delivered one (1) week after receipt of new electronic background drawing files.  

Major Design Changes:  Major design changes after 25% CD may incur additional services fees if major changes 

require recalculation of loads, reselection of equipment, or relocation of equipment. 

Project Schedule: Our proposal is based upon the project schedule identified by the Client at time of proposal. 

We agree to perform our work within this project schedule. Design changes to work previously performed or 

CLIENT ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL  

   

Signed:   

Name/Title:   

Date:   

   

Page 23 of 36Page 548 of 596



PROPOSAL Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design Proposal 

 

Ecotope, Inc.  4 

 

schedule extensions of more than 1-year or compressions may require additional compensation and expenses 

beyond those listed in this proposal. 

Reproduction: Our proposal assumes that the Client or Architect will be responsible for printing/reproduction 

costs, including one hard copy of complete plan set per phase of work. 

Construction Cost Estimates: Cost estimates are an opinion of probable construction costs. It is recognized that 

neither the Owner, the Client, nor we have control over the costs of labor, equipment or materials, or over the 

Contractor's methods of determining prices. Any opinion of probable construction cost is based upon our 

reasonable professional judgment and experience and does not constitute a warranty, express or implied, that 

Contractor's bids or negotiated prices will not vary from Project's budget or construction costs estimates. 

Value Analysis: We will provide ongoing value analysis (value engineering) throughout the design process, but 

value analysis after the issue of documents will be accepted on an Additional Services basis. 

Additional Services: Project design scope, process and/or deliverables that are not identified by this Proposal as 

Basic Services are Additional Services. We will identify any work requested of us which is deemed to be outside 

or beyond our Basic Services to our Client and will not proceed with any additional work until written 

authorization to proceed has been given or acknowledged by our Client. If Client has authorized such additional 

work in either verbal or written form, Client shall be responsible for payment for those additional services 

regardless of payments' status from Owner or others. 

Billings/Payments: We shall invoice our Client on a monthly basis. Invoices shall be due upon receipt or upon 

our Client's receipt of payments for our services from Owner or others depending upon Project's design team 

structure and shall be paid in full by Client without any setoffs, withholdings, discounts or penalties for any 

reason by Client or Owner. Accounts unpaid 30 calendar days after date of invoice date may be subject to a 

monthly service charge of 1.5% per month on the then unpaid balance. If an invoice is not paid within 60 

calendar days, we may, without waiving any claim or right against our Client, and without liability whatsoever to 

our Client, terminate our performance of our services. In the event any portion or all of an account remains 

unpaid 90 calendar days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys' 

fees and our time and expenses to obtain payment. 

Insurance: Any insurance requests associated with these services shall be directed to accounting@ecotope.com.  

Reimbursable Expenses. No reimbursable or markup expenses are anticipated on this project. 

Instruments of Service. All Instruments of service prepared under this Agreement shall become the property of 

the Client and Consultant upon payment in full of all undisputed payments due to the Consultant. 

Termination/Suspension of Services. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time, with or 

without cause, with written notice submitted ten (10) working days prior to the termination date. 

Limitation of Liability. The Client agrees, to the maximum extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of 

Consultant for the Client’s damages to Consultant’s professional liability insurance coverages. 

Waiver of Consequential Damages. Consultant and Client waive consequential damages for claim, disputes or 

other matters in question arising out of or related to this Agreement.  

Page 24 of 36Page 549 of 596



PROPOSAL Port Orchard City Hall Mechanical Design Proposal 

 

Ecotope, Inc.  5 

 

Assignment. Consultant shall not transfer or assign any rights under or interest in this Agreement (including but 

not limited to monies that are due or monies that may be due) without the prior written consent of Client. 

Subcontracting to consultants normally contemplated by the Consultant shall not be considered an assignment 

for purposes of this Agreement, for as long as Consultant shall remain responsible under this Agreement. Client 

may assign this Agreement and instruments of service under this Agreement to any third party. 

Governing Law and Jurisdiction. The Client and the Consultant agree that this Agreement and any legal actions 

concerning its validity, interpretation and performance shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Washington. It is further agreed that any legal action between the Client and the Consultant arising out of this 

Agreement or the performance of the services shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

Page 25 of 36Page 550 of 596



 

923 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Tacoma, WA. 98405 * Phone: (253) 759-0118 

 
 
 
 
 
 
April 20, 2023 
 
 
 
Rice Fergus Miller Architecture 
Attn: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski 
275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 
 
Re:   Port Orchard City Hall Construction Administration - Electrical Fee Proposal 
 
Mr. Jason Ritter-Lopatowski, 

 
We welcome the opportunity to offer our electrical engineering services for your consideration.  We 
understand the scope is for construction support related to the Port Orchard City Hall project. 
 
Construction Administration: 

 Attend pre-construction kickoff meeting.   
 Respond to Division 26 bidding and construction RFI’s through Architect. 
 Review Division 26 shop drawing equipment submittals. 
 Review of contractor change order (COP) costs. 
 Prepare electrical field reports from (3) site visits to evaluate construction. 
 Prepare electrical final punch list and perform back check.   

 
Design Fee 
For the above workscope we propose a lump sum design fee of $6,800.00 through construction.  
Work will be billed monthly on a percentage complete basis. 
 
Billing 
Work will be billed monthly on a percentage complete basis. 
 
We look forward to your favorable review and working with Rice Fergus Miller on the project.  Our 
office has permanent staff available for assignment to this project with your notice to proceed. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Scott Kelly 
Cross Engineers, Inc. 
 

Exhibit C

Page 26 of 36Page 551 of 596



Exhibit D

Page 27 of 36Page 552 of 596



Page 28 of 36Page 553 of 596



Page 29 of 36Page 554 of 596



W   E  T  H  E  R  H  O  L  T     A  N  D     A  S  S  O  C  I  A  T  E  S  ,     I  N  C  . 

 

14715 NE 95th Street, Suite 100          Redmond, WA  98052 
Phone: 425-822-8397          Fax: 425-822-7595 

www.wetherholt.com 

March 7, 2023 
 
 
Rice Fergus Miller  
275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 Office:  360-377-8773 
Bremerton, Washington 98337 Mobile:  858-254-2930 
 
Attn: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski  Email:  jritter@rfmarch.com 
 
Ref: Roofing and Exterior Wall Inspection Services Proposal – Phase 2 Revision 
 Port Orchard City Hall 
 216 Prospect Street 
 Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
 
Greetings, 
 
As discussed with Jason Ritter-Lopatowski, we are pleased to submit our revised proposal for Phase 
2 services, roofing and exterior wall inspection services, for the Port Orchard City Hall project. 
 
We understand our scope of work would include the following:  
 
Phase 2: Construction Phase – Estimated Cost $29,000  
 

- Submittal and RFI review. 
- Attendance at pre-con meetings for roofing, exterior wall weather barrier, and related flashing. 
- Perform part-time inspections of the application of roofing, weather barrier and related 

flashings. We have based our proposal on approximately 15 inspections.  
- Perform punchlist inspections and final inspections at the conclusion of the project. 
- Preparation of field reports with photographs following each site visit.   
- Field report quality assurance review by a Sr. Field Engineer. 

 
A total budget of $29,000 should be set aside for these services. 
 
The actual cost for services will depend upon the time spent.  Billing will be on an hourly basis and 
invoices are itemized showing dates, hours, and description of work performed.  We have outlined 
our anticipated scope above.  Should it appear the probable cost of consulting services will be 
exceeded, authorization would be requested prior to the performance of additional work. 
 
 

Exhibit E

Page 30 of 36Page 555 of 596



Roofing and Exterior Wall Inspection Services Proposal – Ph 2 Rev Page 2 
Rice Fergus Miller March 7, 2023 
Port Orchard City Hall  

 

The billing rate for Ray Wetherholt, PE/RRC/RWC/REWC/RBEC/FRCI/F-IIBEC is $340/hr.  The 
billing rate for Don Davis, RRC/RWC/REWC/RBEC; Bob Card, F-IIBEC, 
RRC/RWC/REWC/RBEC; Mike Caniglia, RRO/RRC/RWC/REWC/RBEC; Pravat 
Sripranaratanakul, RRO/RRC/RWC, Jose Laurean, RRO/RRC/RWC, Principals of Wetherholt and 
Associates, Inc. is $240/hr.  Field Engineers are billed at $205/hr.  Roofing Application Inspectors 
and Technical Services are billed at $120/hr. for straight time, overtime at $180/hr.  Technical 
Assistants are billed at $90/hr. Expenses are billed at cost plus 10%.  Mileage will be billed at $0.70 
per mile.  Time is billed portal to portal.   
 
Assumptions and Exclusions: 
 Services are limited to the following building envelope assemblies: 

o Exterior wall weather barrier/air barrier, and related penetration flashing 
o Roofing and roof flashing assemblies 

 We assume that the contractor will provide access as required for inspections.   
 The contractor will provide all site safety and site access training required for access to perform 

inspections. 
 Not included is any specialized safety training or other specialized certifications that will be required to 

perform inspections. 
 Not included is any assembly performance testing (e.g. air barrier testing, pressurized window testing).  
 We assume no overtime hours will be needed during the project. 
 We are not responsible for acceptance or integration of our design review comments into the project 

documents and accept no liability for the project design or construction.   
 Final product selection, specification and design detailing are the responsibility of the Architect or Owner.  
 Proper execution of the design is the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
In order to briefly clarify the duties of the inspector: the inspector monitors the material application 
by verifying that the contractor is following the specifications.  The inspector measures lap seams 
and verifies that the materials specified are the materials used, that the installation methods conform 
to the manufacturer's recommendations and the Architect's specifications. 
 
Should conflicts arise between the specifications and the installation, the inspector resolves the 
problem by calling the appropriate party for an answer.  We encourage our inspectors to ask 
questions, remembering the cliché "the only dumb question is the one that was not asked". 
 
As the inspector observes items requiring correction, these are pointed out to the foreman of the 
construction crew.  If the item conflicts with the specification and is not easily resolved, it is noted in 
a daily report.  These reports discuss what occurred on the project during the day of the report and 
are relatively detailed in comparison to the standard testing laboratory report. 
 
The inspector’s authority is limited, in that they cannot change the specifications, direct the work, or 
perform the work.  They are there to observe that the material is installed in accordance with the 
specifications and good practice.  Neither is the inspector the guarantor of the performance of the 
roof or waterproofing membrane; the manufacturer and the installer provide guarantees because they 
make and install the material. 
 
Inspections are performed by personnel experienced in material application inspection and who are 
employees of Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. 
 

Page 31 of 36Page 556 of 596



Roofing and Exterior Wall Inspection Services Proposal – Ph 2 Rev Page 3 
Rice Fergus Miller March 7, 2023 
Port Orchard City Hall  

 

We are continually updating our inspectors by exposing them to the differing types of roofing, 
waterproofing and cladding and meeting with materials representatives to discuss their particular 
requirements.  In addition, we regularly meet with contractors to discuss products and application 
techniques.  Our personnel attend local and national seminars where we learn additional roofing, 
waterproofing and cladding related information. 
 
Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. does not guarantee the product application or materials, as this is the 
province of the manufacturer and applicator.  We provide experienced eyes and judgment, along 
with detailed reporting to represent the client in a professional manner. 
 
We have performed similar services for clients including Benaroya Company, Kemper 
Development, Rosen Properties, and Martin Smith.  Services included investigation of leakage, and 
evaluation of roof membrane, wall transitions, sheet metal flashings, below grade waterproofing, and 
walking decks. 
 
By retaining Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. you will be working with a knowledgeable consultant 
familiar with the various building envelope systems available.  However, due to the nature of 
building envelope specification, installation, and consulting, we have found it necessary to limit our 
liability. 
 
You, as our client, agree to limit the aggregate amount of any damages and/or costs (including 
attorney fees and expert witness fees) that you may recover against Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. 
(together with its officers, directors, and employees) on any and all claims and/or causes of action 
arising under or related to this Agreement and/or the Project to the amount of compensation paid by 
you to Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. for our services pursuant to this Agreement. The types of 
claims to which this limitation applies include, but are not limited to, claims based on negligence, 
professional negligence, professional malpractice, professional errors or omissions, indemnity or 
contribution, breach of contract, breach of expressed or implied warranty and strict liability. 
 
In summary, we try to represent the client in a fair, professional manner that will result in a 
weatherproof assembly, which lasts for the long term. 
 
Should our proposal merit your approval, please so indicate your understanding and authorization to 
proceed by your signature below, or issuance of a purchase order referencing this proposal, and 
return a signed copy to us. This proposal will remain valid for 90 days and is subject to price and 
term changes thereafter. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to discuss our services.  If you have any questions, or if we may be of 
further assistance, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Respectfully, ____________________________ 
 Signature of Authorization 
 
 ___________________ 
Don Davis, RRC, RWC, REWC, RBEC  Date 
Senior Field Engineer / Principal 
Wetherholt and Associates, Inc. M:\PROPOSALS\DON\PORT ORCHARD CITY HALL - PH 2 INSPECTION PROPOSAL 3-7-23 REV.DOC 

Page 32 of 36Page 557 of 596



Date: June 2, 2023
Client Name: Rice  Fergus Miller
Address: 275 Fifth Street, Suite 100, Bremerton, WA 98337
Email:  JRitter@rfmarch.com
Architect:  Same
Project:  Name / 

 

Bill Code Item / Description Unit Quantity Rate Total
GEO CON Pile Installation Observation, logging and sampling Hour 16 100.00$  1,600.00$               
IPDS Foundation & Slab Subgrade Compaction / VSI Hour 20 85.00$    1,700.00$               
IPDS Rock Course for Hardscaped areas/ Includes Native subgrade Hour 12 85.00$    1,020.00$               
SAMPU Sample Pickup if Required (Allowance) Hour 2 85.00$    170.00$                  
RC Footings, Grade Beams and exterior concrete if desired Hour 24 90.00$    2,160.00$               
RC Base Plate Grout Sampling Hour 6 90.00$    540.00$                  
SM  Brick Veneer Anchorage Hour 6 90.00$    540.00$                  
FAB Steel Fabrication Allowance  if required( non-AISC shop) Hour 6 99.00$    594.00$                  
SW Structural Steel -  Site Welding - Visual Hour 12 99.00$    1,188.00$               
CF Cold-Formed Steel Framing - Seismic Resistant Construction Hour 6 99.00$    594.00$                  
PA Epoxy & Expansion Anchors Allowance Hour 6 90.00$    540.00$                  

10,646.00$             

Bill Code Item / Description Unit Quantity Rate Total
PROC Moisture Density Relationship/Proctor with Sieve Each 2 320.00$  640.00$                  
CONC Concrete Compression Test Cylinders - 4” x 8” - Sets of 5 Each 25 30.00$    750.00$                  
GROUT Grout Compressive Strength Test Each 3 30.00$    90.00$                    

1,480.00$               

Bill Code Item / Description Unit Quantity Rate Total
PM - STR Project Management Hour 5 95.00$    475.00$                  

475.00$                  
 $         12,601.00 

Laboratory Testing

Budget Estimate for Services - Total: 
Subtotal - Project Management & Consulting Services:

Project Management & Consulting Services

Based on Plans Dated:

•    Soils inspection and testing services are proposed to measure compliance with project documents, including drawings, specifications and the recommendation of the 
soils report. In the event that a test or tests fail to meet the soils report's recommendations or if project conditions differ from approved project documents, it shall be 
referred to the Geotechnical Engineer of Record for resolution.

•    Invoices are due and payable upon receipt.  Any invoice not paid within thirty (30) days of the date rendered may be assessed a finance charge of one-and-one-half 
(1½%) percent per month, for each month beyond thirty (30) days past due.  Invoices not paid within sixty (60) days of the date rendered may result in MTC stopping 
work until such invoices are paid in full.  Invoices not paid within ninety (90) days of the date rendered may be referred to an independent company for collection.  
Client will be responsible for all expenses incurred by MTC for the collection of any unpaid invoice(s), including collection fees, actual attorneys’ fees, and costs for 
legal counsel as stated in RCW 19.16.250.21.  Furthermore, Client acknowledges that MTC may elect to withhold a Final Letter of Compliance for the project, and/or 
place a lien on any real property until all outstanding invoices and/or fees have been paid in full.

•    MTC will utilize the laboratory based closest to the project site. MTC offers additional services upon request which will be billed at our regular fee schedule. 
Acceptance of this proposal will constitute agreement to MTC standard general terms and conditions.

•    All services will be provided on a time and materials basis.  The total is an estimate and the actual construction cost will be based on the project schedule and 
sequencing. The estimate is not a guaranteed price. A four hour minimum charge applies to all work performed, billing is also based on a portal to portal basis. A 
premium rate of 1.5 times the regular rate will be charge for overtime and 2 times the regular charge for Sunday's and holidays.

•    Prices are subject to change if this agreement is not executed within 90 days from the date of the bid.

Subtotal - Laboratory Testing:

JASON RITTER LOPATOWSKI

 Port Orchard City Hall Renovation- 216 Prospect St, Port Orchard, WA 98366

Subtotal - Special & Construction Inspection:

Contact: 

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc. (MTC) thanks you for the opportunity, and respectfully submits the following proposal to provide materials 
testing and special inspection services during construction of the above-referenced project. Combined with our past experience with projects of 
similar size and scope, we estimate the total cost of our services for this project to be:

M 858-254-2930

Bid Set
Norm Olson

Phone:

Special & Construction Inspection

Geotech of Record:

Environmental ● Geotechnical Engineering ● Special Inspection ● Non-Destructive Testing ● Materials Testing
Burlington  ●  Olympia  ●   Bellingham  ●  Silverdale  ●  Tukwila

p: 360.755.1990  ●  f: 360.755.1980  ●  www.mtc-inc.net
Page 1 of 2

Exhibit F

Page 33 of 36Page 558 of 596

mailto:JRitter@rfmarch.com


Date: June 2, 2023
Client Name: Rice  Fergus Miller
Address: 275 Fifth Street, Suite 100, Bremerton, WA 98337
Email:  JRitter@rfmarch.com
Architect:  Same
Project:  Name / 

 

Based on Plans Dated:

JASON RITTER LOPATOWSKI

 Port Orchard City Hall Renovation- 216 Prospect St, Port Orchard, WA 98366

Contact: 
M 858-254-2930

Bid Set
Norm Olson

Phone:
Geotech of Record:

DHR@mtc-inc.net
360-508-6336
DeaneRamsdell

Respectfully Submitted,

Printed Name & Title                                             Date

Client Authorized Signature

•    In closing, our experienced inspection staff will ensure the highest level of quality is brought to your project.  We believe that our local staff and vast experience on 
projects of similar size and scope make MTC the clear team member of choice for this project.  We look forward to working with you.

•   As a mutual protection to clients, the public and ourselves, all reports are submitted as the confidential property of clients, and authorization for publication of 
statements, conclusions or extracts from or regarding our reports is reserved pending our written approval.  

Environmental ● Geotechnical Engineering ● Special Inspection ● Non-Destructive Testing ● Materials Testing
Burlington  ●  Olympia  ●   Bellingham  ●  Silverdale  ●  Tukwila

p: 360.755.1990  ●  f: 360.755.1980  ●  www.mtc-inc.net
Page 2 of 2Page 34 of 36Page 559 of 596

mailto:JRitter@rfmarch.com
mailto:DHR@mtc-inc.net
mailto:DHR@mtc-inc.net


 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

APPENDIX A 

During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including 
but not limited to:  

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:  

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U .S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21.  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 
U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been 
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of sex);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U .S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age);  

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms 
"programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid 
recipients, sub- recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally 
funded or not);  

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, 
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as 
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;  

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);  

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high 
and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;  

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes 

Page 35 of 36Page 560 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Rice, Fergus, Miller, Inc. 
Project: City Hall Construction Support Services 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, 
you must take reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your 
programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);  

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).  

 

Page 36 of 36Page 561 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7G Meeting Date: June 27, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Contract with Financial Consulting  Public works Director 
 Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group for a Sewer    Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 Rate Study  Atty Review Date: June 22, 2023 

 
Summary: In February 2022, the City hired a consultant to conduct a general sewer plan update for the 
City’s Sanitary Sewer System.  During this process, the City identified a need to review and update the 
sewer rates.  The City desires the assistance of a consultant with expertise in sewer rate study analysis.  
For the selection of this professional service, on February 9, 2023, pursuant to the City’s Procurement 
Policies Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Public Works Department established a list of 
qualified consultants for the project from the MRSC 2023 Consultant Roster for the Main Category – 
Financial Services and Sub-Category – Rate Studies.  On February 10, 2023, the City’s Public Works 
Department selected four (4) qualified consultants from the MRSC 2023 Consultant Roster.  On February 
23, 2023, after reviewing the Statement of Qualifications and scoring the consultants, the City’s Public 
Works Department selected Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group (the “Consultant), as the 
proposed consultant for the project.  Public Works Staff then met with the Consultant to clarify the project 
understanding, and the associated contract terms.  On April 19, 2023, FCS Group provided the City’s Public 
Works Department with a viable proposal for the study.  The City’s Public Works staff, based upon overall 
qualifications, including Statement of Qualifications scoring, recommends the City Council approve 
Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group for the Sewer Rate Study Project. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7 – Utilities  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to 
execute a Contract with Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group for a Sewer Rate Study in an 
amount not to exceed $85,825.00.  
 
Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract 
with Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group for a Sewer Rate Study.    
 
Fiscal Impact: A budget amendment is required for the 2023-2024 Budget. 
 
Alternative:  Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments: Resolution, Contract, Exhibits- Scope & Fee 

Page 562 of 596



RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH FINANCIAL CONSULTING 
SOLUTIONS, INC. DBA FCS GROUP FOR A SEWER RATE STUDY AND 
DOCUMENTING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES. 

 
 WHEREAS, in February 2022, the City hired a consultant to conduct a general sewer plan 
update for the City’s Sanitary Sewer System and during this process, the City identified a need 
to review the City’s sewer rates; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires the assistance of a consultant with expertise in sewer rate 
study analysis for this project; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 9, 2023, pursuant to the City’s Procurement Policies Resolution 
No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Public Works Department established a list of qualified 
consultants for the project from the MRSC 2023 Consultant Roster for the Main Category – 
Financial Services and Sub-Category – Rate Studies; and  

 
WHEREAS, on February 10, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department selected four (4) 

qualified consultants from the MRSC 2023 Consultant Roster; and  
 

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2023, after reviewing the Statement of Qualifications and 
scoring the consultants based upon the overall qualifications, the City’s Public Works 
Department selected Financial Consulting Solutions dba FCS Group (the “Consultant), as the 
responsible and responsive consultant for the project; and  
 

WHEREAS, Public Works Staff met with the Consultant to clarify the project 
understanding, the associated contract terms; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon completion of the Bidder’s Checklist on May 5, 2023, the City’s Public 
Works Department recommends the City Council approve Financial Consulting Solutions dba 
FCS Group for the Sewer Rate Study Project; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council believes Financial Consulting Solutions dba FCS 
Group to be the most highly qualified consulting firm for this Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor’s Office, wishes to document their consultant selection process as described above for 
this particular contract by Resolution; now, therefore,  

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

Page 563 of 596



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 THAT:  The City Council approves and authorizes the Mayor to sign a Contract with 
 Financial Consulting Solutions dba FCS Group for the Sewer Rate Study Project, in a form 
 acceptable to the City Attorney.  

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 

 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 27th day of June 2023. 

 
 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 564 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

Updated 4/2022 IBDR  

Port Orchard Contract #: _______ 
Authorized Amount: $85,825.00 

   Date Start: July 1, 2023  
Date End: March 31, 2024 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Sewer Rate Study Project 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Port Orchard, Washington, 
a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington (“City”) and Financial 
Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group, (“Consultant”) organized under the laws of the State of 
Washington, located and doing business at 7525 166th Ave NE, Ste D-215, Redmond WA  98502 
(hereinafter the "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to have certain services performed for its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City has selected the Consultant to perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and conditions set forth below, the 
parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT: 

1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant.

The Consultant shall perform those services described on Exhibit “A,” which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. In performing such services, the Consultant shall 
at all times comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules and ordinances applicable to the 
performance of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith. The Consultant 
shall perform the services diligently and completely and in accordance with professional standards of 
conduct and performance. The Consultant shall request and obtain prior written approval from the City 
if the scope or schedule is to be modified in any way.  

If the services provided hereunder are funded in whole or in part under a Grant Funding 
Agreement, then Consultant will comply with the terms of such Grant Funding Agreement to ensure that 
the City is able to obtain the maximum funding under such Grant Funding Agreement. If this applies, the 
City will provide the Consultant with a copy of the Grant Funding Agreement.  

Page 1 of 24Page 565 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

 
2. Compensation.   

 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered according to the rates and methods set forth 
below.  
  

  �  LUMP SUM.  Compensation for these services set forth in Exhibit A shall be a Lump Sum 
  of $_________________. 

 TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED.  Compensation for these services shall not exceed 
$85,825.00 without written authorization and will be based on the list of billing rates and 
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 

� TIME AND MATERIALS.  Compensation for these services shall be on a time and materials 
basis according to the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B.” 

� OTHER_____________________________________________________________ 
 

3. Payment. 
 

A. The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City 
monthly after services have been performed, along with monthly invoices in a format acceptable to 
the City for work performed to the date of the invoice.  

 
B. All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within thirty (30) days of receipt of a proper 

invoice.  If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the Consultant of the 
same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in 
dispute, and the Parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion. 

 
C. The Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement 

available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a longer 
period is required by a third-party agreement.  Copies shall be made available on request.  

 
D. On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall 

comply with all federal and state laws applicable to independent contractors, including, but not limited 
to, the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all items of income and expenses 
of the Consultant’s business, pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 51.08.195, as required by 
law, to show that the services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to 
an employer-employee relationship between the parties, which is subject to Title 51 RCW, Industrial 
Insurance.   

 
E. If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement, the Consultant 

will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may withhold payment for such 
work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement. The City shall pay the Consultant for 

Page 2 of 24Page 566 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

services rendered within ten (10) days after City Council voucher approval. However, if the City objects 
to all or any portion of an invoice, it shall notify Consultant and reserves the option to only pay that 
portion of the invoice not in dispute. In that event, the Parties will immediately make every effort to 
settle the disputed portion. 

 
F.  The City reserves the right to direct the Consultant's compensated services before 

reaching the maximum amount.  
 
4. Duration of Agreement.  
 
A. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on July 1, 2023 

and ending March 31, 2024 unless sooner terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. The City 
reserves the right to offer two (2) one-year extensions prior to expiration of the Agreement to retain 
the Consultant’s services. 

 
B. Time is of the essence of this Agreement in each and all of its provisions in which 

performance is required. If delays beyond the Consultant's reasonable control occur, the Parties will 
negotiate in good faith to determine whether an extension is appropriate.  

 
C. The Consultant shall obtain a City of Port Orchard business license prior to commencing 

work pursuant to a written Notice to Proceed. 
 

D. The Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon receipt of a written Notice 
to Proceed. 

 
5. Standard of Care.   
 
The Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience 

necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately accredited and licensed 
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in similar circumstances. 

 
6. Ownership and Use of Documents.   
 
A. Ownership. Any records, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data, or 

information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials produced by the Consultant in 
connection with the services provided to the City, shall be the property of the City whether the project 
for which they were created is executed or not. 

 
B. Records preservation. Consultant understands that this Agreement is with a government 

agency and thus all records created or used in the course of Consultant’s work for the City are 
considered “public records” and are subject to disclosure by the City under the Public Records Act, 
Chapter 42.56 RCW (“the Act”). Consultant agrees to safeguard and preserve records in accordance 

Page 3 of 24Page 567 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

with the Act. The City may be required, upon request, to disclose the Agreement, and the documents 
and records submitted to the City by Consultant, unless an exemption under the Public Records Act 
applies. If the City receives a public records request and asks Consultant to search its files for responsive 
records, Consultant agrees to make a prompt and thorough search through its files for responsive 
records and to promptly turn over any responsive records to the City’s public records officer at no cost 
to the City. 

 
7. Relationship of the Parties; Independent Consultant.  
 
The Parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be created by this 

Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an independently established trade which 
encompasses the specific service provided to the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative 
or sub-consultant of the Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, 
representative or sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an 
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details of the work, 
the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.  None of the benefits 
provided by the City to its employees, including, but not limited to, compensation, insurance, and 
unemployment insurance are available from the City to the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-
consultants of the Consultant. The City shall not be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting 
federal income tax or social security or contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or 
otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the Consultant, or any employee of the 
Consultant. The Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its 
agents, employees, representatives, and sub-consultants during the performance of this Agreement.  
The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to perform 
the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder. 

 
8. Indemnification.   

 
Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 
then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property 
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence.   
 
IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED 
HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, 
TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION.  THIS WAIVER HAS BEEN 
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES.   
 

Page 4 of 24Page 568 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.   
 
The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 

A.         Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described 
below: 
 

i. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy 
shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 

00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent 
Consultants and personal injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be named as 
an insured under the Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy 
with respect to the work performed for the City.   

 
iii. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington.  
 

iv. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 
 

B.         Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the following insurance 
limits: 
 

i. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.  

 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less 

than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.   
 

iii. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
C.         Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability, Commercial General 

Liability, and Professional Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, that 
they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool 
coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

Page 5 of 24Page 569 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

 
D.         Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best 

rating of not less than A-VII. 
 
E.         Verification of Coverage.  The Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates 

and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional 
insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before 
commencement of the work. 

 
F.         Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any 

policy cancellation, within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
G.         Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the 

insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City may, after 
giving five business days’ notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately terminate the 
contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in 
connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 
 

H.         No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the Agreement 
shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 
 

10. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
 

 A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended and services performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall also 
maintain such other records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure proper accounting of 
all funds contributed by the City to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. The foregoing records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after 

termination of this Agreement unless permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the 
Archivist in accordance with Chapter 40.14 RCW and by the City. 
 
 

11. City’s Right of Inspection and Audit. 
 
 A. Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control 
and direct the performance and details of the work authorized under this Agreement, the work must 
meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general right of inspection to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof.  The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state, and municipal 
laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or become applicable within the terms of this 

Page 6 of 24Page 570 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

Agreement to the Consultant's business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by 
this Agreement or accruing out of the performance of such operations.  

 
 B. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement shall 
be subject at all times to inspection, review or audit by the City during the performance of this 
Agreement.  All work products, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, and other materials in 
support of the performance of the service, work products, or outcomes fulfilling the contractual 
obligations are the products of the City. 

 
12. Work Performed at the Consultant's Risk.   

 
The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the safety of its 
employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work hereunder and shall utilize all 
protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at the Consultant's own risk, and the 
Consultant shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or 
held by the Consultant for use in connection with the work. 
 

13. Termination. 
 
 A. Termination without cause.  This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time 

for public convenience, for the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the Consultant’s assignment 
for the benefit of creditors.  
 
 B. Termination with cause.  This Agreement may be terminated upon the default of the 

Consultant and the failure of the Consultant to cure such default within a reasonable time after 
receiving written notice of the default.   
 
 C. Rights Upon Termination.   

  i. With or Without Cause. Upon termination for any reason, all finished or unfinished 
documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
submitted to the City, and the Consultant shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed prior to the date of termination, not to exceed the total compensation set 
forth herein.  The Consultant shall not be entitled to any reallocation of cost, profit or overhead. The 
Consultant shall not in any event be entitled to anticipated profit on work not performed because of 
such termination. The Consultant shall use its best efforts to minimize the compensation payable under 
this Agreement in the event of such termination.  Upon termination, the City may take over the work 
and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or otherwise. 

ii. Default.  If the Agreement is terminated for default, the Consultant shall not be entitled 
to receive any further payments under the Agreement until all work called for has been fully 
performed. Any extra cost or damage to the City resulting from such default(s) shall be deducted from 
any money due or coming due to the Consultant. The Consultant shall bear any extra expenses incurred 
by the City in completing the work, including all increased costs for completing the work, and all 
damage sustained, or which may be sustained, by the City by reason of such default. 

Page 7 of 24Page 571 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

 
 D. Suspension. The City may suspend this Agreement, at its sole discretion. Any 

reimbursement for expenses incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to the Consultant's 
reasonable expenses, and shall be subject to verification.  The Consultant shall resume performance of 
services under this Agreement without delay when the suspension period ends. 
 

E. Notice of Termination or Suspension.  If delivered to the Consultant in person, 
termination shall be effective immediately upon the Consultant’s receipt of the City’s written notice or 
such date as stated in the City’s notice of termination, whichever is later.  Notice of suspension shall be 
given to the Consultant in writing upon one week's advance notice to the Consultant.  Such notice shall 
indicate the anticipated period of suspension.  Notice may also be delivered to the Consultant at the 
address set forth in the “Notices” Section herein. 

 
F. Nothing in this Subsection shall prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may 

otherwise have for the violation or nonperformance of any provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 

14. Discrimination Prohibited.   
 
 A. The Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed, color, 
national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by federal, state, 
or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.  
 
 B. Violation of this Section shall be a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for 
cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in whole or in part, and may 
result in ineligibility for further work for the City. 
 

15. Force Majeure.  
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any prevention, delay or stoppage due to 
strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, acts of war, terrorist acts, inability to obtain services, 
labor, or materials or reasonable substitutes therefor, governmental actions, governmental laws, 
regulations or restrictions, civil commotions, casualty, actual or threatened public health emergency 
(including, without limitation, epidemic, pandemic, famine, disease, plague, quarantine, and other 
significant public health risk), governmental edicts, actions, declarations or quarantines by a 
governmental entity or health organization, breaches in cybersecurity, and other causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the Party obligated to perform, regardless of whether such other causes are (i) 
foreseeable or unforeseeable or (ii) related to the specifically enumerated events in this paragraph 
(collectively, a "Force Majeure"), shall excuse the performance of such Party for a period equal to any 
such prevention, delay or stoppage. To the extent this Agreement specifies a time period for 
performance of an obligation of either Party, that time period shall be extended by the period of any 
delay in such Party's performance caused by a Force Majeure. Provided however, that the current 
COVID-19 pandemic shall not be considered a Force Majeure unless constraints on a Party’s 

Page 8 of 24Page 572 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

performance that result from the pandemic become substantially more onerous after the effective 
date of this Agreement.  
 

16. Assignment and Subcontract.   
 
The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated by this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. Any assignment made without the prior 
approval of the City is void. 
 

17. Conflict of Interest.   
 
The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing any of the services 
set forth in Exhibit “A.”  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform services for a project with 
which it may have a conflict, Consultant will immediately disclose such conflict to the City. 

 
18. Confidentiality.   

 
All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall 
be considered confidential. Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate 
termination.  
 

19. Non-Appropriation of Funds.   
 
If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future 
fiscal period, the City will so notify the Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for 
services or amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  This Agreement will terminate 
upon the completion of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense 
shall accrue to the City in the event that the terms of the provision are effectuated. 
 

20. Employment of State Retirees.  
 
The City is a “DRS-covered employer” which is an organization that employs one or more members of 
any retirement system administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems 
(DRS). Pursuant to RCW 41.50.139(1) and WAC 415-02-325(1), the City is required to elicit on a written 
form if any of the Contractor’s employees providing services to the City retired using the 2008 Early 
Retirement Factors (ERFs), or if the Contractor is owned by an individual who retired using the 2008 
ERFs, and whether the nature of the service and compensation would result in a retirement benefit 
being suspended. Failure to make this determination exposes the City to significant liability for pension 
overpayments. As a result, before commencing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall determine 
whether any of its employees providing services to the City or any of the Contractor’s owners retired 
using the 2008 ERFs, and shall immediately notify the City and shall promptly complete the form 
provided by the City after this notification is made. This notification to DRS could impact the payment 
of retirement benefits to employees and owners of Contractor. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or other liability, including attorneys’ fees and 

Page 9 of 24Page 573 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

costs, relating to a claim by DRS of a pension overpayment caused by or resulting from Contractor’s 
failure to comply with the terms of this provision. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

21. Entire Agreement.   
 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no other agreements, oral or 
otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either of 
the parties.  If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the attached 
exhibits, then the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail over the exhibits.  Either party 
may request changes to the Agreement.  Changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be 
incorporated by written amendments to this Agreement.   
 

22. Non-waiver of Breach.   
 
The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements 
contained herein, or to exercise any option herein contained in one or more instances, shall not be 
construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, agreements, or options, and the same 
shall be in full force and effect.   
 

23. Modification.  
 
No waiver, alteration, modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless 
in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and the Consultant.  
 

24. Notices.   
 
All notices or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be (a) personally delivered, in which case the notice or communication shall be deemed given 
on the date of receipt at the office of the addressee; (b) sent by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, in which case the notice or communication shall be deemed given 
three (3) business days after the date of deposit in the United States mail; or (c) sent by overnight 
delivery using a nationally recognized overnight courier service, in which case the notice or 
communication shall be deemed given one business day after the date of deposit with such courier. In 
addition, all notices shall also be emailed, however, email does not substitute for an official notice. 
Notices shall be sent to the following addresses: 

Notices to the City of Port Orchard shall be sent to the following address: 
 
  City Clerk 
  City of Port Orchard 
  216 Prospect Street 
  Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
  Bwallace@cityofportorchard.us  

Page 10 of 24Page 574 of 596

mailto:Bwallace@cityofportorchard.us


 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

  Phone: 360.876.4407 Fax:  360.895.9029 
 
 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
   
        
 
        

  Phone No.:      

  Email:      

 
25. Resolution of Disputes; Governing Law.   

 
A. Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions 

contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Mayor, who shall determine the 
term or provision’s true intent or meaning.  The Mayor shall also decide all questions which may arise 
between the parties relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance 
hereunder.   
 
 B.  If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions 
of this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor’s determination in a reasonable time, or if 
the Consultant does not agree with the Mayor’s decision on a disputed matter, jurisdiction of any 
resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington.   
 
 C. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Washington.  In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, 
the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and reasonable 
attorneys’ fees from the other Party. 
 

26. Compliance with Laws.  
 
The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that 
are now effective or in the future become applicable to Consultant's business, equipment, and 
personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or accruing out of the performance of 
those operations. 
 

27. Title VI. 
 
The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 
U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation 
subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the 
Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively insure that its contracts 
comply with these regulations. 
 
Therefore, during the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and 

Page 11 of 24Page 575 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

successors in interest agrees as follows:  
 

A. Compliance with Regulations. The Consultant will comply with the Acts and the 
Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time to time, 
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.  

 
B. Nondiscrimination. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during this 

Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, 
income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant will not participate directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference, including employment practices when this Agreement 
covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. part 21.  

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be 
performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each 
potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations 
under this Agreement and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds 
of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, income-level, or LEP.  

 
 
D. Information and Reports. The Consultant will provide all information and reports 

required by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to 
its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by 
the City, the Washington State Department of Transportation or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where any information required of the 
Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the 
Consultant will so certify to the City, the Washington State Department of Transportation or the FHWA, 
as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.  

 
E. Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the 

non- discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the City will impose such contract sanctions as it, the 
Washington State Department of Transportation or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

  
i. withholding payments to the Consultant under the Agreement until the contractor 

complies; and/or  
ii. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Agreement, in whole or in part.  

 
F. Incorporation of Provisions. The Consultant will include the provisions of paragraphs one 

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant will take 

Page 12 of 24Page 576 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the City or the FHWA may direct as a means 
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Consultant 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such 
direction, the Consultant may request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 
City. In addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect 
the interests of the United States. 
 

28. Counterparts.  
 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 
original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement. 
 

29. Severability.   
 
Any provision or part of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any law or regulation 
shall be deemed stricken and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon the 
City and the Consultant, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken 
provision or part with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as reasonably possible to 
expressing the intent of the stricken provision. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Consultant have executed this Agreement as of the 
dates listed below.  
 
 
CONSULTANT     CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 
                                                                    Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
Title: _____________________________  
Date: _____________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
       ATTEST/AUTHENTICATE 
 
              
       Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
              
       Port Orchard City Attorney’s Office 
  

Page 13 of 24Page 577 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

Updated 4/2022 IBDR  

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services to be Provided by Consultant.  The Consultant shall furnish services including, but 
not limited to, the following outlined here or attached separately.

Page 14 of 24Page 578 of 596



Firm Headquarters 
Redmond Town Center 
7525 166th Ave NE, Ste D-215 
Redmond, Washington 98052 

Established in 1988 
Washington | 425.867.1802 

Oregon | 503.841.6543 
Colorado | 719.284.9168 

 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
SEWER RATE STUDY 

The City of Port Orchard (City) reached out to FCS GROUP and requested a scope and budget for a 
sewer utility rate study. Based on a discussion with City staff in April 2023, this study will include a 
revenue requirement, cost-of-service, and rate design analysis, which are described in detail below: 
Revenue requirement. A revenue requirement analysis identifies the total rate revenue needed to 
fully fund a utility on a standalone basis considering current financial obligations including operating 
expenditures, existing debt service, policy-driven commitments, and future capital project needs. 
Percentage increases indicated by the revenue requirement could be applied “across-the-board”,  
which maintains the existing rate structure, or incorporated into a revised rate structure (see below). 
Cost of service analysis. The cost-of-service analysis is the evaluation, based on available 
engineering and customer information, of how a utility should recover costs from customer classes. If 
the revenue requirement analysis determines the size of the pie, the cost-of-service analysis 
determines how you slice it among customers. The results of a cost-of-service analysis will be 
updated rates that proportionately charge utility customers based on the unique demands of each 
customer class. 
Rate design. This analysis includes the development of rate structures that generate sufficient 
revenue to meet the utility’s revenue requirement forecast in compliance with the cost-of-service 
analysis and the City’s pricing objectives. The City has indicated interest in a number of rate design 
changes that would vary from an “across-the-board” approach: 
⚫ Single-family: Bill based on average winter water usage instead of a uniform fixed rate. 
⚫ Multi-family / Commercial: Bill based on metered water usage; the current structure has nearly 

20 rate classifications and charges based on a variety of variables including the number of 
students, number of seats in a restaurant, number of washing machines, or other surcharges based 
on unique types of businesses. An alternative rate structure would likely result in a blend of fixed 
and variable charges that would apply uniformly to the entire class. 

⚫ Fats, oils, and grease (FOG) surcharge: A subset of non-residential customers must participate in 
a City-run FOG program; this program has staffing costs related to program administration, 
inspections, etc. The City is interested in evaluating the merits of a monthly FOG surcharge 
which would recover FOG program costs from this specific subset of customers.  

The following task plan supports these analyses.  

Task 1 | Project Kick-off & Project Management 
Once under contract, FCS GROUP will provide a data request and arrange for a kickoff meeting with 
City staff to set a course for completing the work and to confirm the project understanding. This 
project kickoff meeting will provide an opportunity for the project team to identify and discuss key 
policy and technical issues to be addressed in the study, along with any data-related questions.  
FCS GROUP will review and analyze the data received and identify any data limitations, gaps, or 
issues of concern.  

Page 15 of 24Page 579 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 2 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

Deliverables to include: 
⚫ Request the necessary information needed to perform the study. 
⚫ Prepare for and participate in one (1) virtual project kickoff meeting with City staff. 
⚫ Provide a follow-up data request and ask clarifying questions as needed. 
⚫ Perform project set up activities, work paper documentation, internal scheduling and workload 

planning, invoicing, client correspondence, and other miscellaneous tasks throughout the study.  

Task 2 | Revenue Requirement Forecast 
The revenue requirement is the total amount of rate revenue needed to meet capital, operating, debt 
service (if applicable), and policy-driven commitments. The result of the revenue requirement 
analysis will be the recommended percentage rate adjustments, as applied to the current rate 
structure, needed to meet the obligations of the utility. 
⚫ Operating Forecast. Forecast operating costs based on the most recent budget documents 

available. Also, incorporate growth forecasts, integrate additional operating expenses, if any, 
resulting from the capital program, and any other known changes in operational requirements.  

⚫ Capital Funding Strategy. Develop a capital funding strategy for the latest capital program. The 
analysis will include an update of key variables such as project costs, project timing, potential 
borrowing and financing options, and resulting cash flow and cash balances. 

⚫ Revenue Requirement Development. 
» Integrate financial policies, capital financing impacts, and the operating forecast to develop 

an annual financial forecast over the study period.  
» Compare forecasted financial needs against forecasted revenue under the City’s existing 

adopted rate schedule to determine if additional rate adjustments might be needed to keep the 
utility sufficiently funded throughout the study period. 

⚫ Up to three distinct scenarios for up to a twenty-year study period. Scenarios could be based on 
capital plans that vary in cost, timing, and or in priority. Changes in service levels that impact 
operating expenditures could also be considered if that data is provided by City staff; e.g., 
additional staffing and / or programmatic requirements to meet existing or anticipated regulatory 
requirements or additional staffing requirements needed to execute the capital plan.  

Deliverables to include: 
⚫ Revenue requirements analysis and model (electronic [Excel]). 
⚫ Up to three (3) distinct scenarios for up to a twenty-year study period. 
⚫ A monthly rate survey of up to six (6) jurisdictions in the region will be conducted. 
⚫ One (1) virtual review meeting with City staff to discuss the revenue requirement. 

  

Page 16 of 24Page 580 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 3 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

Task 3 | Cost-of-Service Analysis (COSA) 
The cost-of-service analysis is the evaluation, based on available engineering and customer 
information, of how the City should recover costs from customer classes. If the revenue requirement 
analysis determines the size of the pie, the cost-of-service analysis determines how you slice it 
among customers. The results of the cost-of-service analysis will be updated rates that equitably 
charge utility customers based on the unique demands of their class. After we allocate the function 
costs to customer classes, we can compare what the distribution of the rate burden should be 
(according to the cost-of-service analysis) with what the distribution of the rate burden actually is 
(according to recent billing data). It is a good time to review the City’s cost-of-service analysis for 
two reasons: 
⚫ The City has experienced robust growth in recent years, and 
⚫ The COSA is needed to inform rate design changes (Task 4). 

Deliverables to include:  
⚫ Customer billing data analysis. To ensure the quality and reliability of the cost-of-service 

analyses, FCS GROUP will examine the customer statistics provided for the sewer utility. This 
task will include a “Price-Out” of rate revenue by customer class under existing rates to validate 
the underlying customer data set for use in assessing cost of service shifts and designing rate 
structures. This is a critical process in a cost-of-service rate study to provide the baseline for 
analyzing the current distribution of costs by customer class in comparison to any indicated shifts 
in the distribution of costs resulting from the cost-of-service analysis.  
» Apply prevailing rates to the customer statistics and calculate revenues by customer  class.  
» These calculated revenues are tested against actual reported revenues by customer class to 

determine if the underlying data set is valid.  
» Depending on the initial outcome, this could include follow-up with City staff to determine 

potential reasons for any significant discrepancies before moving forward with rate design.  
⚫ Functional Cost Allocation. Drawing upon Consultant and City staff’s knowledge, planning 

documents, and industry experience, apportion the annual revenue requirement to the major 
functions of the sewer utility, which might include: customer, flow, biochemical oxygen demand 
(BOD), and total suspended solids (TSS). 

⚫ Cost Classification. Establishes a rational relationship between functions (activities) and costs. 
Each line item of the revenue requirement is allocated to each function based on how those 
expenses serve the system. For example, utility billing costs and postage & freight are attributed 
all to the customer function, while the salaries and benefits for an FTE might have some costs 
allocated across multiple functions. 

⚫ Customer Class Distinctions. Identifies the customer classes that will be evaluated as part of the 
study. Existing, as well as new or revised customer classes or class definitions, may be 
considered. It is appropriate to group customers that exhibit similar usage characteristics and 
service requirements. 

⚫ Cost Allocation to Customer Classes. Allocates the costs from the functional cost allocation to 
different customer classes based on their unique demands for each service as defined through the 
cost classification process. For example, the cost of serving the utility’s customers is based on 

the number of customer accounts, while the cost of providing services to support the treatment 

Page 17 of 24Page 581 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 4 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

and handling of BOD in the system is based on sewer flow data weighted by that class’s BOD 

strength (if available; City staff may need to provide strength estimates by class). The results 
identify shifts in cost recovery by customer class from that experienced under the existing rate 
structure. 

⚫ Prepare for and attend one (1) virtual review meeting with City staff to discuss the COSA. 

Task 4 | Rate Design 
Rate design is the third and final technical step in utility rate setting. The first two technical steps 
(revenue requirement, Task 2, and the cost-of-service analysis, Task 3) provide the revenue targets 
for rate design. The principal objectives of rate design are to implement rate structures that collect 
the appropriate level of revenue and that are reasonably aligned with cost-of-service.  
Based on discussions with City staff, and as summarized at the outset of this document, the following 
rate design elements will be included: 
1. Single-family: Eliminate uniform fixed charge; bill based on unique average winter water usage.  

Using winter average avoids charging sewer volume charges based on summer irrigation water, 
which does not enter the sewer system. There are a variety of approaches the City could consider, 
such as the following: 

a. Bill based on actual water usage each month, but have a year-round cap based on the 
prior winter’s monthly average water usage for each customer ;  

b. Bill based on actual water usage each month during winter months, but have a cap during 
summer months only; or  

c. Create a fixed charge unique to each customer based on the prior winter’s monthly 

average water use, then reset every twelve months.  
The City will need to provide guidance on which approach most aligns with City policy 
objectives and customer billing system capabilities. 

2. Multi-family /commercial: Eliminate the ~20-class structure; bill based on a fixed plus variable 
rate structure, where the variable charge structure is based on actual metered water usage. 

3. FOG surcharge. Develop a cost-based FOG program surcharge to recover the costs of the FOG 
program from those customers that are served by this program. 

Deliverables to include:  
⚫ Up to three (3) distinct rate design scenarios (as noted above). 
⚫ A comparison of customer bills will be generated describing the number of and degree to which 

different sample customers are impacted by changes to the current rate structures. 
⚫ Prepare for and attend two (2) virtual review meetings with City staff to discuss rate design. 

Task 5 | Update Selected Miscellaneous Fees 
The City also requested that FCS GROUP evaluate the cost to provide miscellaneous services and 
calculate fees to recover those costs. Based on discussions with City staff, these types of fees are 
likely to include, fire hydrant service, temporary service, meter rentals, delinquency notices, water 
shutoff fees, water turn-off violations, utility system damage violation fine, after hours turn-
on/shutoff, notification to tenant of water shutoff per hold harmless agreement, and final billing 

Page 18 of 24Page 582 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 5 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

closing requests. Additionally, City staff would like FCS GROUP to develop an hourly charge for 
general labor and vehicle time. 
For each type of fee, perform the following  
⚫ Develop staff time and materials cost estimates, by type of fee. 
⚫ Develop hourly rates for affected positions. 
⚫ Create an overhead factor, which could include departmental general management and 

administrative time that can be allocated to an individual service fee. 
⚫ Calculate recommended fees. 
We will rely on City staff to provide time estimates by fee, describe what staff works on each type of 
fee service, and what types of material, equipment, and or vehicles are used for each service. 

Deliverables to include:  
⚫ Calculate up to ten (10) miscellaneous fees. 
⚫ Develop a general hourly labor and vehicle charge. 
⚫ Prepare for and attend one (1) virtual review meeting with City staff to discuss charges. 

Task 6 | Utility Committee & Council Meetings 
FCS GROUP will prepare for and meet with the Utility Committee and / or City Council up to three 
times to present findings. The budget accounts for two virtual meetings and one onsite meeting. 
Based on discussions with City staff, these meetings will likely be two (2) virtual Utility Committee 
meetings and one (1) onsite City Council meeting. 

Deliverables to include: 
⚫ Provide preliminary draft PowerPoint content to City for preliminary review. 
⚫ Provide draft and final PowerPoint content for City Council meetings (electronic [PowerPoint]). 
⚫ Participate in up to two (2) virtual Utility Committee and / or City Council meetings. 
⚫ Participate in up to one (1) onsite Utility Committee and / or City Council meeting. 

Task 7 | Documentation 
FCS GROUP will document findings in a comprehensive study report, and provide a copy of the 
spreadsheet analyses for future use by City staff. Typically, the report is completed after the City 
Council meeting, which allows the written report to reflect decisions made by the City Council.  
⚫ Draft Report. After completing the analytical tasks, FCS GROUP will provide a draft report for 

City review. The preliminary draft report will summarize the methodology and analysis 
undertaken in completing the project, the results and conclusions of the study, and noted 
recommendations. 

⚫ Final Report. Upon receipt of comments from the City, FCS GROUP will incorporate the 
comments, as appropriate, into a Final Report to be submitted to the City. FCS GROUP will 
submit one electronic copy in both Word and/or PDF formats.  

⚫ Spreadsheet Model. FCS GROUP will deliver a final copy of the Excel-based spreadsheet model 
for City use. The models will provide for 1) evaluation of revenue and cost changes on rates, 2) 
analysis of fiscal policy implementation options, 3) analysis of changes in economic and 

Page 19 of 24Page 583 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 6 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

financial indicators, 4) rate smoothing, and 5) variances to any other key rate study inputs 
including the capital plan, the operating budget, etc. 

Deliverables to include: 
⚫ Provide draft & final rate study report (electronic [Word and/or PDF]). 
⚫ Provide final analytical model (electronic [Excel]).  

SCHEDULE 
The timeframe for completing the study will depend on various factors including the timeliness of 
receiving data, the relative quality and completeness of data, and the ability to schedule meetings in a 
timely manner. A study schedule will be developed in collaboration with the project team as part of 
the initial kick-off meeting.  
The City’s bimonthly sewer rates have not been updated since 2020. While the City would like to 

have updated rates approved in time to implement January 1, 2024, the study might not be completed 
by then. In order to have a January 1, 2024 rate resolution approved by the City Council, we likely 
need to be presenting to the Utility Committee and City Council in October and November. During 
discussions with City staff, they did not anticipate that this contract would be approved until the 
middle of June. For planning purposes, we anticipate that a study of this type would require 6-8 
months to complete after receiving data, which would result in meeting with the Utility Committee 
and City Council December 2023 through February 2024. 
We are currently experiencing a high demand for our services. We take our relationships and the 
quality of our deliverables seriously and want to ensure that we offer the City the appropriate amount 
of time to develop thoughtful analysis and a complete set of options to inform the City’s future 
decisions. We will work to expedite the project schedule should workload allow. We thank you for 
your consideration. 

 

  

2023 2024

Task Description Mtgs

1 Project Kick-off & Project Management 1

2 Revenue Requirement Forecast 2

3 Cost-of-Service Analysis 2

4 Rate Design 1

5 Update Selected Miscellaneous Fees 2

6 Utility Committee and City Council Meetings 2

7 Documentation

NovJun Jul Aug Sep Oct Dec Jan Feb Mar

Staff 

Meeting
Comittee /

Council 
Presentation

Report

Page 20 of 24Page 584 of 596



City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

Updated 4/2022 IBDR  

EXHIBIT B 

Rates for Services to be Provided by Consultant.  The Consultant shall furnish the services in accordance 
with the rates specified below or attached hereto, as Exhibit B. 

Page 21 of 24Page 585 of 596



City of Port Orchard  April 2023 

Sewer Utility Rate Study  page 7 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

BUDGET 
The table below summarizes our estimated cost to complete the task plan. This includes a project 
contingency to address unforeseen issues during this study and will only be utilized upon written 
request by the City. The detailed estimates by task are for planning purposes only – the “not to 

exceed” amount refers to the total contract, not any given task. 

 

Consultant Hours

Admin Total Total 

Principal Manager Analyst Support Hours Budget

Task Description $295 $230 $190 $90

Task 1  Project Kick-off & Project Management 

Data request & follow-up 2 4 6 1,220$     

Project kickoff meeting (1) virtual 2 2 2 6 1,430       

Project administration 1 6 3 10 1,945       

4,595$     

Task 2 Revenue Requirement Forecast

Update operating forecast 2 8 10 1,980       

Develop updated capital funding strategy 2 12 14 2,740       

Revenue requirement scenarios 1 8 34 43 8,595       

Rate survey 1 2 3 610          

Staff review meeting (1) virtual 2 2 2 6 1,430       

15,355$   

Task 3  Cost-of-Service Analysis 

Customer billing data analysis 4 32 36 7,000$     

Functional cost allocation 1 2 4 7 1,515       

Cost classification 1 2 6 9 1,895       

Customer class distinction 1 1 2 4 905          

Cost allocation to customer classes 1 1 8 10 2,045       

Staff review meeting (1) virtual 2 2 2 6 1,430       

14,790$   

Task 4 Rate Design

Alternative rate design alternatives (three) 2 8 24 34 6,990$     

Staff review meeting (2) virtual 4 4 4 12 2,860       

9,850$     

Task 5 Update Selected Miscellaneous Fees

Develop staff time & materials cost estimates 2 12 14 2,740$     

Develop hourly rate for affected positions 1 6 7 1,370       

Updated overhead factor 1 1 8 10 2,045       

Calculate recommended fees (up to 10) 1 4 10 15 3,115       

Develop general hourly labor and vehicle rate 1 2 4 7 1,515       

Staff review meeting (1) virtual 1 1 1 3 715          

11,500$   

Task 6 Utility Committee and City Council Meetings

Presentation materials 2 8 16 1 27 5,560$     

Utility Committee Meetings (2) virtual 4 4 4 12 2,860       

City Council meetings (1) onsite 10 10 2 22 5,630       

14,050$   

Task 7 Documentation

Staff review meetings notes 2 4 6 1,220$     

Draft report 2 4 26 32 6,450       

Final report 1 2 4 1 8 1,605       

Spreadsheet model 2 4 1 7 1,310       

10,585$   

Contingency

Only if authorized in writing by City staff 2 6 16 1 25 5,100$     

Total Budget 43 98 263 7 411 85,825$   

Total Budget without Contingency 41 92 247 6 386 80,725$   

Page 22 of 24Page 586 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

APPENDIX A 

During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including 
but not limited to:  

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:  

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U .S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21.  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 
U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been 
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of sex);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U .S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age);  

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms 
"programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid 
recipients, sub- recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally 
funded or not);  

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, 
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as 
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;  

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);  

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high 
and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;  

Page 23 of 24Page 587 of 596



 
City of Port Orchard and Financial Consulting Solutions, Inc. dba FCS Group 
Sewer Rate Study 

 
Updated 4/2022 IBDR  
 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes 
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, 
you must take reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your 
programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);  

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).  

 

Page 24 of 24Page 588 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Work Study Session Meeting of May 16, 2023 
          
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by the Deputy City Clerk as follows: 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  
Councilmember Chang Present  

 Councilmember Clauson Present 
Councilmember Cucciardi Absent  
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Absent  
  
Staff present: Community Development Director Bond, Senior Planner Fisk, Planning Commissioner 
Ashby, and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
The meeting also streamed live on YouTube. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance (Time Stamp 00:23) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
1.  Housing Action Plan (Time Stamp 00:45) 
 
Community Development Director Bond spoke to the draft Housing Action Plan, noting this was 
funded by a grant and the State gave us a little over a year to complete.  In addition, he provided a 
document, explaining it contains a wide variety of recommendations for future consideration and 
attempts to assess our code for policies and make recommendations for housing affordability and 
the variety of housing within the City. There is no obligation to act on these recommendations.  
 
The Planning Commission has been holding a public hearing to take testimony on Housing Action 
Plan. 
 
Mr. Bond discussed the contents of the Draft Housing Action Plan which included background 
information, regulatory strategies, programmatic strategies, citywide planning strategies, funding 
strategies, and implementation. 
 

Page 589 of 596



Minutes of May 16, 2023 
 Page 2 of 3  

 
Planning Commissioner Ashby joined the conversation at 7:47 p.m. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding racially disparate impacts and equality, lack of time to digest 
the information, countywide planning policies, planning for an additional 10,500 people, differences 
between east and west Port Orchard and the need to discuss those two areas, design guidelines, 
more housing types in more zones, significant trees and tree canopies, housing coordinator, middle 
housing and accessory dwelling units, recently passed bills, McCormick Woods, affordable housing, 
reaching out to the military and school districts for housing data, fine tuning the City’s code, living 
wages, landlord and tenant protections, safety, parking, homelessness, impact fees, Bethel Corridor, 
multifamily tax exemptions, Department of Commerce oversight, housing affordability program, 
anti-displacement strategies, census tract data, rental and owned homes, duplexes, code 
adjustments, and displacement. 
 
In response to Councilmember Rosapepe, Community Development Director Bond explained the 
next steps for the City is to submit a final report that has been accepted by the City Council. He 
suggests once this is completed the Council takes a couple items to start working on. Additionally, 
Vision 2050, which is our checklist from the Puget Sound Regional Council, requires us to look at race 
and equity, so this plan is actually giving us some of those tools to meet those requirements so we 
can receive federal funding for transportation. We are hoping to have the resolution adopted at the 
June 13th Council Meeting. 
 
Council Direction: Provide a red-line version of the Housing Action Plan so they can see the changes 
that have been suggested. 
 
Planning Commissioner Ashby left the meeting at 8:09 p.m. 
 
2. Development Fee Comparison (Time Stamp 1:39:10) 
 
Community Development Director Bond provided a document which showed a comparison of 
development fees from other jurisdictions, including cities and counties. Our building permits are 
lower than average, but they are offset because our impact fees are higher than average. Overall, 
our plan and inspection fees that are charged for a building permit are pretty reasonable. 
 
In response to Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary, Community Development Director Bond said at this point, 
we will probably move forward with the resolution for clean-up with minor changes. We could 
choose to adopt a new building evaluation table, but given that our other fees are so high, this is not 
needed at this time. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding the fees of the City and other jurisdictions. 
 
Council Direction: No direction given to staff. 
 
 
 

Page 590 of 596



Minutes of May 16, 2023 
 Page 3 of 3  

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:44:49) 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe asked with the new legislation, how will that impact the Community 
Development Departments workload with the comprehensive plan coming up next year. 
 
Community Development Director Bond responded they are still catching up with the mandates from 
the 2019- 2020 legislative session and with these new bills passed, they are overwhelmed. 
 
A brief discussion was held regarding the City’s utility discount program for senior citizens. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:19 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
          
Jenine Floyd, Deputy City Clerk   Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Page 591 of 596



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of May 23, 2023 
           
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:34 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  

Councilmember Chang Present  
 Councilmember Clauson Absent 

Councilmember Cucciardi Present  
Councilmember Diener Present 
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Public Works Director Lang, Community Development Director Bond, City Attorney 
Archer, HR Manager Lund, and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: City Clerk Wallace 
 
The meeting streamed live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 00:35) 

 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:55) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to add to the Consent 
Agenda the excusal of Councilmember Clauson due to business reasons and add Business Item 7F, 
Approval of Road Closures for a Special Event: Mustangs on the Waterfront, to the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the 
agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

Page 592 of 596



 

May 23, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 

 

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Time Stamp: 02:14) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:47) 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 86015 through 86082 including bank drafts in the amount of 

$169,810.39 and EFT’s in the amount of $137,445.13 totaling $307,255.52. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 86008 through 86014 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $241,620.74 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $227,550.36 totaling $469,171.10. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Increase and Decrease from State-Approved Maximum 

Speed Limits on City Streets (Resolution No. 047-23) 
D. Approval to Accept a Special Event Application and Waive the Submittal Timeline: Port Orchard 

Night Market 
E. Approval of the May 9, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
F. New Item: Excusal of Councilmember Clauson Due to Business Reasons 
G. Moved from Business: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Event: Mustangs on the 

Waterfront 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Chang, to approve the 
Consent Agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
5. PRESENTATION  

 
There were no presentations. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
There were no public hearings. 
 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC Chapter 20.200 to Conform with Updates to the 

State Building Code (Time Stamp 03:21) 
  
 MOTION: By Councilmember Trenary, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt an ordinance 
 amending POMC Chapter 20.200 to conform with updates to the State Building Code under RCW 
 19.27 as presented.   
 

The motion carried.  
(Ordinance No. 013-23) 
 

Page 593 of 596



 

May 23, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 

 

B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Small Works Contract with Stripe Rite, Inc. for the 2023 
City of Port Orchard Road Striping Project (Time Stamp: 10:49) 

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Chang, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to adopt a resolution, 
 authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract with Stripe Rite, Inc for the 2023 City of Port Orchard 
 Road Striping  Project in the amount of $67,593.48. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 048-23 and Contract No. 042-23) 
 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract and Easements with Puget Sound Energy for 

the Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Project (Time Stamp 13:49) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to adopt a resolution 
 authorizing the Mayor to execute an easement and contract, with Puget Sound Energy, to install and 
 maintain electrical infrastructure for the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Project in the amount of 
 $63,045.02 and in a form that is acceptable to the City Attorney.    

 Mayor Putaansuu briefly mentioned he heard about the federal government potentially reimbursing 
 local governments for purchasing green energy products.  

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 049-23 and Contract No. 045-23) 
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Granting Final Plat Approval for McCormick Woods North Phase III, 

Division 3 (Time Stamp 19:30) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt a resolution, 
 as presented, granting final plat approval for McCormick Woods North Phase III, Division 3. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 050-23) 
 
E. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Olson Brothers Pro-Vac LLC for the 2023 

Stormwater Catch Basin and Pipe Maintenance Project (Time Stamp 22:03) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to adopt a resolution, 
 authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract with Olson Brothers Pro-Vac, LLC for the 2023 
 Stormwater Catch Basin and Pipe Maintenance Project in the amount of $76,214.78 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 051-23 and Contract No. 044-23) 
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 

Page 594 of 596



 

May 23, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 

 

There were no discussion items. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp: 22:19) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported the Economic and Development Tourism Committee is scheduled to 
meet June 19th. The Utilities Committee is scheduled to meet on June 13th. The Finance Committee 
is scheduled to meet June 14th. The Land Use Committee is scheduled to meet June 21st. The Sewer 
Advisory Committee is scheduled to meet June 21st. He also gave a brief report on Housing Kitsap. 
 
Councilmember Lucarelli reported on the May 15th Festival of Chimes and Lights Committee meeting. 
 
Councilmember Diener reported on the May 10th Land Use Committee meeting. 
 
10. REPORT OF MAYOR (Time Stamp 29:53) 

 
The Mayor reported on the following: 

• Washington DC visit; 
• Design work grant for Phase 2 and 3 of Tremont Street; 
• Marina Pump Station project updates; 
• McCormick Village Park Splashpad; and 
• In compliance with Resolution 007-11 Establishing a Process for Future Amendments to the 

City’s Personnel Policies and Procedures, he reported updates to the City’s Personnel Policies 
related to military leave and the WA Family Care Leave. 
 

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 35:47) 
 
Public Works Director Lang reported on funding received for Safe Routes to School from Berry Lake 
to SW Hovde Road and provided updates on the Sroufe Watermain Project and the totem pole. 
 
Community Development Director Bond gave an update on the McCormick Commercial Village.  
 
City Attorney Archer reminded everyone about RCW 42.17A.555 which prohibits the use of public 
facilities in election campaigns. 
 
HR Manager Lund reported on the City’s Inclusion Commission. 
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS (Time Stamp 48:43) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
There was no executive session. 
 

Page 595 of 596



 

May 23, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 

 

14. GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 49:09) 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe spoke about the State’s new drug possession law and also mentioned the 
pickleball courts were busy in the morning. 
 
Community Development Director Bond shared McCormick Communities, as required per their 
development agreement to make improvements to the McCormick Woods Village Park, have 
identified space along McCormick Village Drive that they would like to use to build pickleball courts. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu briefly spoke about the new drug possession law. 
 
Councilmember Diener noticed cabling near Bruce Titus Ford has been cut and stolen. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 596 of 596


	4C 01 Staff Report POMC Gender Pronouns(10695179.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4C 02 POMC Clean Up Ordinance(10695182.1)
	4C 03 Exhibit A_(10695186.1)
	4D 01 SR-WSDOT-TremontNon-MtrPH12(10694970.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	4D 02 RESOLUTION-WSDOT TremontNon-MtrPh12(10694969.1)
	4D 03 2023 Ped Bike Safety Letter Port Orchard
	4E 01 SR-WSDOT-Sidney NonMotorized SRTS(10694978.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4E 02 RESOLUTION-WSDOT SdnyNonMtrSRTS Accept(10694977.1)
	4E 03 2023 SRTS State Funding Letter Port Orchard
	PortOrchard_SRTS Project Summary_FinalSigned.pdf
	$1,394,750


	4F 01 STAFF REPORT-C075-22 Change Order No. 2-Ceccanti_MW SplashPad(10695544.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4F 02 C075-22_ChangeOrderNo2_Signed by contractor
	4F 03 075-22  - Ceccanti, Inc.   - Contract
	7F 05 Exhibit B- Project Manual.pdf
	PortOrchard_21.53.01_E-SET_Signed (02.04.22) Electrical.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	E-1

	Sheets and Views
	E-2

	Sheets and Views
	E-3

	Sheets and Views
	E-4

	Sheets and Views
	E-5

	Sheets and Views
	E-6




	7A 01 Staff Report-Ordinance Amendment 2023-2024-Final
	Agenda Staff Report

	7A 02 Ordinance Amendment 2023-2024-Final
	7A 03) Exhibit A-Salary Schedule -Master and Redline
	PersonnelList redline 1-1-2 rev
	PersonnelList Eff 1-1-23

	7B 01 Draft-STAFF REPORT Crawford Road Abatement(10695174.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	7B 02 Draft -RESOLUTION-Crawford Road Abatement(10695168.1)
	7B 03 MRSC Rosters
	7B 04 Signed -notarized Small Works Contract-CE17-0049  Crawford Road Abatement with Exhibit A
	Signed -notarized Small Works Contract-CE17-0049 with Exhibit Crawford Road Abatement.pdf
	Exhibit A-Bid Documents.pdf
	Invitation to Bid - Crawford Road Abatement- County Line Construction.pdf
	Scope Of Work _ Crawford Road Abatment.pdf
	SE Crawford Road Abatement - County Line Construction LLC. - Bid Proposal - 06-12-2023.pdf
	1691 SE Crawford Road Abatement - County Line Construction LLC. - Bid Proposal - 06-12-2023.pdf
	1743 SE Crawford Road Abatement - County Line Construction LLC. - Bid Proposal - 06-12.pdf


	7C 01 Staff Report-Reimbursement Resolution-CityHall Bonds
	Agenda Staff Report

	7C 02 Reimburesment Resolution-Final
	7D 01 STAFF REPORT-MW STEP System Retrofit-AquaTech(10694954.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7D 02 RESOLUTION-MW STEP System Retrofit-AquaTech(10694953.1)
	7D 03 CONTRACT-MW Retrofit-AquaTech
	In consideration of the mutual benefits to both parties, both Parties agree to the following:
	All of the above listed Contract Documents are each made exhibits to this Agreement and are incorporated into the Agreement as if set forth in full. The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and co...
	2. Date of Commencement and Substantial Completion Date.  The date of commencement shall be July 10, 2023.  The Contractor shall substantially complete the Work not later than November 10, 2023, subject to adjustment by change order.
	Subject to additions and deductions by change order, the construction maximum payment is the base bid amount of $143,657.42 (applicable sales tax included) (hereinafter “Contract Sum”). The construction Contract Sum shall include all items and servic...
	5. The Contractor agrees to comply with all state and federal laws relating to the employment of labor and wage rates to be paid.  The Contractor agrees to furnish insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth in the Construction Contract Docume...
	6. The Contractor agrees to repair and replace all property of the City and all property of others damaged by Contractor, Contractor’s employees, sub-contractors.
	7. The Contractor does hereby agree to the full performance of all the covenants herein upon the part of the Contractor. Such agreement shall be binding upon Contractor’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.
	8. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the City of Port Orchard by reason of entering into this Construction Contract, except as expressly provided herein.
	9. Title VI.  The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, ...
	10. Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW. Contractor understands that their bid response documents, and any contract documents may be subject to release under the Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW and the City may be required to disclose such docum...
	a) Termination for Cause. The City may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of t...
	b) Termination for Convenience. The City may, upon written notice, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for the convenience of the City.
	c) Settlement of Costs. If the City terminates for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred prior to the effective date of the termination, plus a reasonable allow...

	Public Entity Full Availability of Contractor Limits. If the Contractor maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the Public Entity shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liab...
	Principle and Surety agree that if the Owner is required to engage the services of an attorney in connection with enforcement of this bond each shall pay the Owner reasonable attorney’s fees, whether or not suit is commenced, in addition to the penal ...
	Acknowledgement
	Corporation, Partnership, or Individual

	Surety Acknowledgement

	7E 01Staff Report re MOA with POB for Waterfront Parking(10694300.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7E 02 RES- XX - POB Parking MOU(10694301.1)
	7E 03 MOU re Parking - FINAL (10683570.1)(10694299.1)
	MOU re Parking - FINAL (10683570.1)(10694299.1)
	1. RECITALS
	2. PURPOSE
	3. PREMISES
	4. EFFECTIVE DATE
	5. TERM
	6. AGREEMENT
	7. COMPENSATION
	8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE
	9. EVENTS COORDINATION
	10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION
	11. DEFAULT
	12. NOTICE
	13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

	MOA Port of Bremerton re Waterfront Parking-DRAFT 032923

	7E 05 034-11 - Port of Bremerton - Contract
	7F 01 Staff Report- RFM City Hall CN Support Svs(10694979.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7F 02 RESOLUTION-RFM City Hall CN Support Svs(10694980.1)
	7F 03 CONTRACT-RFM-CityHallConstructionServices
	( TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED.  Compensation for these services shall not exceed $373,430.22 without written authorization and will be based on the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”
	( TIME AND MATERIALS.  Compensation for these services shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”
	( OTHER_____________________________________________________________
	11. City’s Right of Inspection and Audit.
	12. Work Performed at the Consultant's Risk.
	The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work s...

	7G 01 STAFF REPORT_SW Rate Study(10694965.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7G 02 RESOLUTION_SW Rate Study(10694964.1)
	7G 03 Sewer Rate Study Contract  Attachmts
	( TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED.  Compensation for these services shall not exceed $85,825.00 without written authorization and will be based on the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”
	( TIME AND MATERIALS.  Compensation for these services shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”
	( OTHER_____________________________________________________________
	11. City’s Right of Inspection and Audit.
	12. Work Performed at the Consultant's Risk.
	The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work s...
	EXHIBIT B


	7H 20230516 Minutes
	7I 20230523 Minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:55)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:47)
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	ADP29FC.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Tony Lang
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Button1: 


